
 
TEXAS VETERANS LAND BOARD 

SPECIAL CALLED MEETING 
July 30, 2024 

 

 

 

The Honorable Dawn Buckingham, M.D 

Chair 

Mr. James Rothfelder 

Member 

RDML (Ret.) Judson Scott 

Member 

 

 

 
Tony Dale 

Executive Secretary 



 
 

 

NOTICE OF SPECIAL CALLED MEETING, TEXAS VETERANS LAND BOARD 

The Texas Veterans Land Board will conduct a special called meeting to be held in person on June 25, 
2024, of the Texas State Veterans Cemetery Committee meeting beginning at 11:00 A.M. at Stephen F. 
Austin Building, 1700 N. Congress Ave., Room 170, in accordance with the Texas Government Code 
§551 (Open Meetings Act). 

Access to the meeting by members of the public will be published in advance in the Texas Register in 
accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act. A link to view a video internet stream of the meeting will 
be posted on the Texas General Land Office's website on the morning of the meeting.  

Any member of the public who wishes to address the Veterans Land Board on a matter within the 
authority of the Veterans Land Board should indicate so at the start of the meeting or during any public 
comment period. 

AGENDA 

  
1. Call to order        

a. Roll call and quorum established 
b. Invocation 
c. Pledge of Allegiance to the US and Texas flags 
d. Presentation of Alamo flag by Board to Chaplain 

 
2. Approval of minutes from the meeting of April 30, 2024. 

 
3. Citizen communication (Two Minutes each. No deliberations with the Board. The Board may 

respond only with factual statements, recitation of existing policy, and requests for an item to be 
placed on a future Agenda.) 

 
4. Chair and Board Member Opening Comments. 

 
5. Veterans Land Board Bond Funds Management 

a. Consideration and possible action on the adoption of a resolution authorizing interest rate swap 
transactions relating to bonds issued, or to be issued, in connection with the Veterans Land 
Program or the Veterans Housing Assistance Program and other related matters. 

b. Consideration and possible action on the adoption of a resolution authorizing liquidity facilities 
relating to bonds issued, or to be issued, in connection with the Veterans Land Program or the 
Veterans Housing Assistance Program and other related matters. 



 

2 
 

c. Consideration and possible action on the adoption of a resolution authorizing the issuance and 
sale of State of Texas Veterans Bonds, Taxable Series 2025, in one or more series and 
installments, in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $250,000,000, and providing for 
other matters relating to the subject. 

d. Consideration and possible action on the adoption of a resolution authorizing the issuance and 
sale of State of Texas Veterans Bonds, Tax-Exempt Series 2025, in one or more series and 
installments, in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $250,000,000, and providing for 
other matters relating to the subject. 

e. Consideration and possible action on a resolution of the Veterans Land Board of the State of 
Texas authorizing the redemption of certain outstanding bonds, and other related matters. 

f. Consideration and possible action on a resolution authorizing the issuance and sale of State of 
Texas Veterans Bonds, Taxable Refunding Series 2024 in one or more series in an aggregate 
principal amount not to exceed $200,000,000. 

6. Texas State Veterans Homes 
a. Consideration and possible action to delegate authority to the Executive Secretary to 

negotiate and execute a management and operations contract for the Ussery-Roan Texas 
State Veteran Home in Amarillo.  

b. Consideration and possible action on a contract renewal for the pharmaceutical services 
provider for Texas State Veterans Homes. 

c. Consideration and possible action on resident room rates in the Texas State Veterans Home 
program.  

 
7. Legal Services 

a. Consideration and possible action on proposed amendments to 40 Texas Administrative 
Code §178.5, concerning burial eligibility criteria in Texas State Veterans Cemeteries.  

b. Consideration and possible action on granting an easement to the City of Lubbock to 
maintain a water line on West Texas State Veterans Cemetery property.  

c. Consideration and possible action on accepting property from the City of Abilene for 
future expansion of the Texas State Veterans Cemetery at Abilene.  

d. Consideration and possible action on general review of VLB rules in Texas Administrative 
Code, Title 40, Part 5, Chapters 175 – 178.  
 

8. Construction Service 
a. Report on Construction Services.  

  
9. Executive Secretary Report  

a. Report on Veterans Land Board operations. 
 

 
II. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 
In accordance with Chapter 551, Government Code, the Texas Veteran Land Board will now convene in 
Executive Session pursuant to the following provisions of the Texas Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551, of 

the Texas Government Code: 
 

a. Section 551.071 - Consultation with attorney regarding issues concerning construction and 
warranty at the Richard A. Anderson Texas State Veterans Home in Houston, Texas.  



 

3 
 

b. Section 551.071 - Consultation with attorney regarding issues concerning construction at 
the Tuskegee Airmen Texas State Veterans Home in Fort Worth, Texas. 

 
III. RECONVENE REGULAR AGENDA 

 
10. Consider Action, If Any, On Items Discussed in Executive Session. 

  
11. Chair and Board Member Closing Comments.  
 
12.  Adjournment.  

 
An unscheduled Closed Executive Session may be called to discuss any item on this posted agenda provided it is within one of 
the permitted categories under Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.  

The above agenda schedule represents an estimate of the order for the indicated items and is subject to change at any time. All 
agenda items are subject to final action by the Board. Separate agenda items may be combined and discussed together at the 
discretion of the Chair. Any final action, decision, or vote on a matter deliberated in Closed Executive Session shall be made in 
an open meeting pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. Certain information 
may be presented to and by the Board, under the headings of “Citizen Communications”, and “Board Comments” however, by 
law, the Board shall not discuss, deliberate, or vote upon such matters except that a statement of specific factual information, a 
recitation of existing policy, and deliberations concerning the placing of the subject on a subsequent agenda may take place. 
The General Counsel has approved the Executive Session items on this agenda. 

 

The Texas Veterans Land Board meeting room is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spots are available.  Requests 
for accommodation or interpretive services must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting.  Please contact (800)998-4456 for 
further information. 

 

 

ANTHONY W. DALE 
Executive Secretary 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Rabbi-Cantor Marie Betcher 
Rabbi-Cantor Marie Betcher received Bachelor and Master of Music Degrees in Vocal 

Performance from Indiana University School of Music and Florida State respectively. After 
years of a successful music career, she made the decision to answer the call to serve the 

Jewish people. She became an Ordained Cantor in 1999 from Hebrew Union College-Jewish 
Institute of Religion in New York City and was Ordained Rabbi in 2011 

Rabbi Betcher made U.S. History being the first and only female Rabbi to be honored to 
serve the Austin Police Department as Senior Chaplain. She also served Cedar Park Police 

and Fire Departments as Chaplain. She served on the national Executive Board of The Police 
Chaplain Project. She is a Board Member and Performer for Swan Songs, Austin, Texas, 
served on Board of Directors iACT (Interfaith Action of Central Texas), served as Jewish 

Chaplain for Lone Star Social Services (working to take care of children).  

She was a Speaker at SXSW on The Spirituality of Philanthropy. She blesses all the animals at 
the Mighty Texas Dog Walk at Camp Mabry each year. 

Rabbi-Cantor Betcher sang in concert in Carnegie Hall, the Kennedy Center, toured Sicily, 
and England. New York University Recital Hall, The Ambler Music Festival in Philadelphia, 

Piccolo Spoleto in Charleston, SC, among many other venues. 

Rabbi Betcher’s husband is a former Senior Patrol Officer for APD; her brother-in-law was a 
Battalion Chief for Las Vegas Fire Department (during the MGM fire). Her father was a 

Partisan Fighter in Italy and fought the Germans along with the 10th Mountain Division in 
the Po Valley. 

 



SPECIAL CALLED MEETING   MINUTES   April 30, 2024 

 

1 | P a g e  
 

TEXAS VETERANS LAND BOARD 
SPECIAL CALLED MEETING 
Tuesday, April 30, 2024, 10:00 a.m. 
1700 N. Congress Avenue, Room 170, Austin, TX 78701 
 

 
 
 

1. Opening 
a. Chairwoman Dawn Buckingham M.D. called the meeting to order at 10:00 A.M. 
b. The Chair declared a quorum present. 

Members present were: 
Chairwoman Dawn Buckingham M.D. 
Board Member James Rothfelder 
 
Also present: 

Executive Secretary Tony Dale 
Assistant Executive Secretary Darren Fitz Gerald 
General Counsel Jeff Gordon 

c. Invocation was led by Chaplain Tom Bodine, American Legion Post 76. 

d. The Chair led the Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. and Texas flags. 

i Presentation to Chaplain by the Board of a flag flown over the Alamo in 
honor of his contributions to veterans. 

2. Approval of the minutes from the regular Board meeting of February 13, 2024. 
Approved with no objections. 

3. Citizen Communications.  No members of the public testified during citizen 
communications. 

4. Chair and Board Member Opening Comments. No comments were made. 

5. Veterans Land Board Bond Funds Management. 
a. Quarterly Veterans Land, Housing and Home Improvement Program Production 

Update for Fiscal Year 2024 2nd Quarter. 
 

6. Veterans Land Board Land and Housing. 
a. Consideration and possible action to set aside bids received from the Online 

Bidding Forfeited Land Sale held April 18, 2024, on any tract where the account 
holder is making an appeal. No action required; therefore, no action was taken. 

  



SPECIAL CALLED MEETING   MINUTES   April 30, 2024 

 

2 | P a g e  
 

b. Consideration and possible action to accept and award all qualified high bids 
received from the Online Bidding Forfeited Land Sale held April 18, 2024. 
Motion was made by Mr. Rothfelder and seconded by Chair Buckingham, to 
approve, according to staff recommendations. The motion carried unanimously. 

 
c. Consideration and possible action on request to forfeit VLB delinquent land 

accounts.  Motion was made by Mr. Rothfelder and seconded by Chair 
Buckingham, to approve, according to staff recommendations. The motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
d. Consideration and possible action on request to Order for Sale land tracts that 

may be included in the next Online Bidding Forfeited Land Sale and to set the 
next Quarterly Electronic Forfeited Land Sale bidding period to begin June 3, 
2024, through July 18, 2024. Motion was made by Mr. Rothfelder and seconded 
by Chair Buckingham, to approve, according to staff recommendations. The 
motion carried unanimously. 

 
e. Consideration and possible action on authorizing staff to conduct rulemaking 

related to the definition of  “Veteran” for the purpose of establishing eligibility 
to qualified Veterans for participation in the land loan program. Motion was 
made by Mr. Rothfelder and seconded by Chair Buckingham, to approve, 
according to staff recommendations. The motion carried unanimously. 
 

7. Texas State Veterans Cemeteries. 
a. Report on State Veterans Cemetery operations. No action required; therefore, no 

action was taken. 
 

8. Texas State Veterans Homes. 
a. Report on State Veterans Homes. No action required; therefore, no action was 

taken. 
 

b. Consideration and possible action on resident room rates in the David A. Gloier 
Texas State Veterans Home Program, and other matters in connection therewith. 
Motion was made by Mr. Rothfelder and seconded by Chair Buckingham, to 
approve, according to staff recommendations. The motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
9. Construction Services. 

a. Report on construction projects. No action required; therefore, no action was 
taken. 
 
 
 
 



SPECIAL CALLED MEETING   MINUTES   April 30, 2024 

 

3 | P a g e  
 

b. Consideration and possible action on delegation of authority to the Executive 
Secretary to execute a contract to facilitate repairs related to the roof at the 
Richard A. Anderson Texas State Veterans Home. Motion was made by Mr. 
Rothfelder and seconded by Chair Buckingham, to approve, according to staff 
recommendations. The motion carried unanimously. 

 
10. Executive Secretary Report. 

a. Report on Veterans Land Board operations. No action required; therefore, no 
action was taken. 

 
 

II. EXECUTIVE SESSION   10:38 A.M. – 10:46 A.M. 
 

In accordance with Chapter 551, Government Code, the Texas Veteran Land Board 
convened in Executive Session pursuant to the following provisions of the Texas Open 
Meetings Act, Chapter 551, of the Texas Government Code: 

 
a. Section 551.071 - Consultation with attorney regarding issues concerning 

construction and warranty at the Richard A. Anderson Texas State Veterans 
Home in Houston, Texas. 

 
 

III. RECONVENE REGULAR AGENDA  10:50 A.M.  
 
 

11. Consider Action, If Any, On Items Discussed in Executive Session. 
Chair Buckingham called item 11. 
 
Chair recognized Jeff Gordon.  Jeff Gordon made staff recommendation: 
 
General Counsel recommends the Board delegate authority to the Executive Secretary to 
initiate legal action related to the roof at the Houston Veterans Home against the general 
contractor and any other responsible parties for the reasons discussed in Executive 
Session. 
 
Mr. Rothfelder made a motion to accept staff recommendation.  Chair Buckingham 
seconded the motion.  The motion was adopted without objection. 

   
 

12. Chair and Board Member Closing Comments. Chair Buckingham made comments on the 
status of the roof repair at the Houston state veterans home. 

 
13. Adjournment.   10:51 A.M. 

 



SPECIAL CALLED MEETING   MINUTES   April 30, 2024 

 

4 | P a g e  
 

 
 

ATTEST:       APPROVED: 
 
 
 
_____________________     ____________________ 

Anthony Dale                  James Rothfelder 
            Executive Secretary    Board Member 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

1 
 

Date:  June 25, 2024 

To:  Dawn Buckingham, M.D., Chairwoman 
Judson Scott, Member 
James Rothfelder, Member 

 
From:  John Barton, Director of VLB Bond Funds Management 
 
Subject: Agenda Item 5 a - Consideration and possible adoption of a resolution 

authorizing interest rate swap transactions relating to bonds issued or to 
be issued in connection with the Veterans’ Land Program or the Veterans’ 
Housing Assistance Program and providing for other related matters. 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends that the Board authorize staff to execute interest rate 

swap transactions upon notice to the Executive Secretary of the 
Veterans’ Land Board for the period beginning June 26, 2024 and ending 
June 25, 2025. 

 
Summary 
This agenda item will constitute the Board’s annual renewal of its authorization for staff to 
execute certain interest rate swap transactions upon notice to the Executive Secretary of the 
Veterans’ Land Board for a one-year period. 
 
Financial markets continue to be volatile and are likely to remain so in the future. Volatile 
financial markets can create attractive, but fleeting, opportunities for entities that are 
sophisticated, experienced, and well-positioned to take advantage of them before they are 
arbitraged away by market participants. However, the Board’s quarterly meeting schedule is 
not conducive to executing quickly upon attractive market opportunities before they disappear. 
 
In recognition of this problem, the Board authorized staff, beginning in January 2009, to 
execute interest rate swap transactions as attractive opportunities arise, upon notice to the 
Chairwoman for rolling one-year periods. 
 
Staff believes that the annual adoption of this resolution will continue to serve as a powerful 
tool that provides the flexibility necessary to take advantage of attractive opportunities as they 
arise. 



 
Error! Unknown document property name. 

CERTIFICATE OF RESOLUTION 

THE STATE OF TEXAS §  
    §  
COUNTY OF TRAVIS §  
 

I, the undersigned Executive Secretary of the Veterans’ Land Board (the “Board”) of the 
State of Texas, hereby certify as follows: 

1. The Board convened in regular meeting on the 25th day of June, 2024, at the 
designated meeting place, and the roll was called of the duly constituted officers and members of 
said Board, to-wit: 

Dawn Buckingham, M.D. Chairwoman 
Gerald J. “Jud” Scott Member 
James Rothfelder Member 
  

and all of said persons were present, thus constituting a quorum.  Whereupon, among other 
business, the following was transacted at said meeting:  a written: 

RESOLUTION OF THE VETERANS’ LAND BOARD OF THE 
STATE OF TEXAS AUTHORIZING INTEREST RATE SWAP 
TRANSACTIONS RELATING TO BONDS ISSUED OR TO BE 
ISSUED IN CONNECTION WITH THE VETERANS’ 
HOUSING ASSISTANCE PROGRAM OR THE VETERANS’ 
LAND PROGRAM; AND PROVIDING FOR OTHER 
MATTERS RELATING TO THE SUBJECT 

was duly introduced for the consideration of said Board.  It was then duly moved and seconded 
that said Resolution be adopted; and, after due discussion, said motion, carrying with it the 
adoption of said Resolution, prevailed and carried by the following vote: 

AYES:  3    NOES:  0  

2. A true, full, and correct copy of the aforesaid Resolution adopted at the Meeting 
described in the above and foregoing paragraph is attached to and follows this Certificate; that 
said Resolution has been duly recorded in said Board’s minutes of said Meeting; that the above 
and foregoing paragraph is a true, full, and correct excerpt from said Board’s minutes of said 
meeting pertaining to the adoption of said Resolution; that the persons named in the above and 
foregoing paragraph are the duly chosen, qualified, and acting officers and members of said 
Board as indicated therein; and that each of the officers and members of said Board was duly and 
sufficiently notified officially and personally, in advance, of the time, place, and purpose of the 
aforesaid Meeting, and that said Resolution would be introduced and considered for adoption at 
said Meeting; and that said Meeting was noticed, convened, and conducted in full compliance 
with the Texas Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code, as amended, 
regarding meetings of the Board. 

3. The Resolution has not been modified, amended or repealed and is in full force 
and effect on and as of the date hereof. 



 Signature Page for Certificate of Resolution 
 Authorizing Interest Rate Swap Transactions (June 2024) 
Error! Unknown document property name. 

SIGNED AND SEALED the _____ day of _____________, 2024. 

 

 ____________________________________ 
 Anthony W. Dale, Executive Secretary 
(SEAL) 

 



 
 
Error! Unknown document property name. 

RESOLUTION 

 

OF THE VETERANS’ LAND BOARD OF THE STATE OF 
TEXAS AUTHORIZING INTEREST RATE SWAP 
TRANSACTIONS RELATING TO BONDS ISSUED OR TO BE 
ISSUED IN CONNECTION WITH THE VETERANS’ 
HOUSING ASSISTANCE PROGRAM OR THE VETERANS’ 
LAND PROGRAM; AND PROVIDING FOR OTHER 
MATTERS RELATING TO THE SUBJECT 

 

________________ 

 

Adopted and Approved on 

June 25, 2024 

  



 (i) 
 
Error! Unknown document property name. 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

Recitals  ............................................................................................................................................1 

1. Authorization of Bond Enhancement Agreements ..............................................................1 

2. Authorization for Specific Transactions ..............................................................................3 

3. Bond Enhancement Agreements in Connection with Anticipated Bonds ...........................4 

4. Master Agreements ..............................................................................................................5 

5. ISDA Protocols ....................................................................................................................6 

6. Bond Retirement Change .....................................................................................................6 

7. Authorization of Additional Acts.........................................................................................6 

8. Open Meeting.......................................................................................................................6 

9. Effective Date ......................................................................................................................7 

 

 

 

 



 
 
Error! Unknown document property name. 

RESOLUTION 

OF THE VETERANS’ LAND BOARD OF THE STATE OF TEXAS 
AUTHORIZING INTEREST RATE SWAP TRANSACTIONS RELATING TO 
BONDS ISSUED OR TO BE ISSUED IN CONNECTION WITH THE 
VETERANS’ HOUSING ASSISTANCE PROGRAM OR THE VETERANS’ 
LAND PROGRAM; AND PROVIDING FOR OTHER MATTERS RELATING 
TO THE SUBJECT 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Article III, Section 49-b (the “Constitutional 
Provision”) of the Constitution (the “State Constitution”) of the State of Texas (the “State”), and 
implemented by Chapters 161 (“Chapter 161”) and 162 (“Chapter 162”), Texas Natural 
Resources Code, as amended, the Veterans’ Land Board (the “Board”) of the State has been 
authorized, subject to the limitations set forth in the Constitutional Provision, to issue general 
obligation bonds (“Bonds”) of the State from time to time for the purpose of providing funding 
for the Veterans’ Housing Assistance Fund, the Veterans’ Housing Assistance Fund II and the 
Veterans’ Land Fund, which funds are to be used for the purpose of making home mortgage 
loans, and purchasing land to be resold or making loans for the purchase of land, to Veterans (as 
such term is defined in Chapter 161 and Chapter 162); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 161.074 of Chapter 161 and Section 162.052 of 
Chapter 162, the Board is authorized to enter into one or more bond enhancement agreements the 
Board determines to be necessary or appropriate to place the obligation of the Board, as 
represented by the Bonds, in whole or in part, on the interest rate, currency, cash flow or other 
basis desired by the Board; and 

WHEREAS, the Board desires to authorize the Chairwoman, the Executive Secretary, the 
Director of VLB Bond Funds Management and the Assistant Director of VLB Bond Funds 
Management of the Board (collectively, the “Authorized Representatives”) to act on behalf of the 
Board to enter into Bond Enhancement Agreements from time to time, all as provided in this 
Resolution; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE VETERANS’ LAND BOARD OF 
THE STATE OF TEXAS, THAT: 

1. Authorization of Bond Enhancement Agreements. 

(a) Delegation.  Pursuant to Section 161.074(b) of Chapter 161 and 
Section 162.052(b) of Chapter 162, each Authorized Representative is hereby severally 
authorized to act on behalf of the Board in accepting and executing new or amended 
confirmations (each, a “Confirmation” and, collectively with the applicable Master 
Agreement (defined below), a “Bond Enhancement Agreement”) under one or more of 
the Existing Master Agreements and the New Master Agreements (each as defined 
below) (collectively, the “Master Agreements”) when, in his judgment, the execution of 
such Confirmation is consistent with this Resolution and the Board’s Debt and 
Derivatives Policy Statement and either (i) the transaction is expected to reduce the net 
interest to be paid by the Board with respect to any then outstanding Bonds or Bonds 



 - 2 - 
Error! Unknown document property name. 

anticipated to be issued in the future over the term of the Bond Enhancement Agreement 
or (ii) the transaction is in the best interests of the Board given the market conditions at 
that time.  Each Authorized Representative is also severally authorized to execute any 
required novation agreement related to the execution and delivery of a new or amended 
Confirmation undertaken in conjunction with the novation of an existing Confirmation. 

(b) Determination as Bond Enhancement Agreement.  The Board hereby 
determines that any such Bond Enhancement Agreement entered into by an Authorized 
Representative pursuant to this Resolution is necessary or appropriate to place the 
Board’s obligations with respect to outstanding Bonds or Bonds anticipated to be issued 
in the future on the interest rate, currency, cash flow or other basis set forth in such Bond 
Enhancement Agreement as approved and executed on behalf of the Board by an 
Authorized Representative. Each Bond Enhancement Agreement constitutes a “bond 
enhancement agreement” under Section 161.074 of Chapter 161 or Section 162.052 of 
Chapter 162, as applicable.  Pursuant to Section 161.074(c) of Chapter 161 or 
Section 162.052(c) of Chapter 162, as applicable, a Bond Enhancement Agreement 
authorized and executed by an Authorized Representative under this Resolution shall not 
be considered a “credit agreement” under Chapter 1371 of the Texas Government Code, 
as amended, unless specifically designated as such by the Board. 

(c) Maximum Term.  The maximum term of each Bond Enhancement 
Agreement authorized by this Resolution shall not exceed the maturity date of the then 
outstanding related Bonds or the related Bonds anticipated to be issued in the future, as 
applicable. 

(d) Notional Amount.  The notional amount of any Bond Enhancement 
Agreement authorized by this Resolution shall not at any time exceed the aggregate 
principal amount of the then outstanding related Bonds or related Bonds anticipated to be 
issued in the future, as applicable; provided that the aggregate notional amount of 
multiple Bond Enhancement Agreements relating to the same Bonds may exceed the 
principal amount of the related Bonds if such Bond Enhancement Agreements are for 
different purposes, as evidenced for example by different rates for calculating payments 
owed, and the aggregate notional amount of any such Bond Enhancement Agreements for 
the same purpose otherwise satisfies the foregoing requirements. 

(e) Early Termination. No Confirmation entered into pursuant to this 
Resolution shall contain early termination provisions at the option of the counterparty 
except upon the occurrence of an event of default or a termination event, as prescribed in 
the applicable Master Agreement.  In addition to subsections (a) and (b) of Section 3 
hereof, each Authorized Representative is hereby severally authorized to terminate any 
Bond Enhancement Agreement in whole or in part when, in his judgment, such 
termination is in the best interests of the Board given the market conditions at that time. 

(f) Maximum Rate.  No Bond Enhancement Agreement authorized by this 
Resolution shall be payable at a rate greater than the maximum rate allowed by law. 



 - 3 - 
Error! Unknown document property name. 

2. Authorization for Specific Transactions.  In addition to the authority otherwise 
granted in this Resolution, each Authorized Representative is hereby severally granted 
continuing authority to enter into the following specific transactions pursuant to a Confirmation 
(or other agreement or instrument deemed necessary by an Authorized Representative) upon 
satisfaction of the following respective conditions: 

(a) Floating-to-fixed rate interest rate swap transactions under which the 
Board would pay an amount based upon a fixed rate of interest and the counterparty 
would pay an amount based upon a variable rate of interest with respect to Bonds then 
outstanding bearing interest at a variable rate or any Bonds anticipated to be issued in the 
future that will bear interest at a variable rate, as applicable.  Prior to an Authorized 
Representative other than the Chairwoman of the Board entering into any such 
transaction, such Authorized Representative must deliver to the Chairwoman of the 
Board or the Chief Clerk of the General Land Office a certificate to the effect that (i) the 
synthetic fixed rate to the Board pursuant to the swap transaction is lower than the rate 
available to the Board for comparable fixed rate debt at the time of the swap transaction, 
and (ii) if the variable rate being paid or expected to be paid by the Board on the 
applicable Bonds is computed on a basis different from the calculation of the variable rate 
to be received under the swap transaction over the stated term of such swap transaction, 
the basis risk of the transaction is expected to be minimal based upon historical 
relationships between such bases; 

(b) Fixed-to-floating rate interest rate swap transactions under which the 
Board would pay an amount based upon a variable rate of interest and the counterparty 
would pay an amount based upon a fixed rate of interest, with respect to Bonds then 
outstanding bearing interest at a fixed rate or Bonds anticipated to be issued in the future 
that will bear interest at a fixed rate, as applicable, including a synthetic fixed rate in 
either case.  Prior to an Authorized Representative other than the Chairwoman of the 
Board entering into any such transaction, such Authorized Representative must deliver to 
the Chairwoman of the Board or the Chief Clerk of the General Land Office a certificate 
to the effect that converting such portion of fixed rate Bonds to a variable rate pursuant to 
the fixed-to-floating interest rate swap transaction would be beneficial to the Board by (i) 
lowering the anticipated net interest cost on the Bonds to be swapped against or (ii) 
assisting in the Board’s asset/liability management by matching a portion of its variable 
rate assets with variable rate Bonds; 

(c) Basis swap transactions under which the Board would pay a variable rate 
of interest computed on one basis, such as the Securities Industry and Financial Markets 
Association Municipal Swap Index, and the counterparty would pay a variable rate of 
interest computed on a different basis, such as an index based on the Secured Overnight 
Financing Rate (“SOFR”), with respect to a given principal amount of Bonds then 
outstanding or Bonds anticipated to be issued in the future, as applicable.  Prior to an 
Authorized Representative other than the Chairwoman of the Board entering into any 
such transaction, such Authorized Representative must deliver to the Chairwoman of the 
Board or the Chief Clerk of the General Land Office a certificate to the effect that by 
entering into the basis swap transaction the Board is expected to be able to (i) achieve 
spread income or upfront cash payments, (ii) preserve call option and advance refunding 



 - 4 - 
Error! Unknown document property name. 

capability on Bonds, (iii) lower net interest cost on Bonds by layering tax risk on top of a 
traditional fixed rate financing, (iv) preserve liquidity capacity, or (v) avoid the mark to 
market volatility of a fixed-to-floating or floating-to-fixed swaps in changing interest rate 
environments; and 

(d) Interest rate locks, caps, floors, and collars for the purpose of limiting the 
exposure of the Board to adverse changes in interest rates in connection with outstanding 
Bonds or additional Bonds anticipated to be issued in the future.  Prior to an Authorized 
Representative other than the Chairwoman of the Board entering into any such 
transaction, such Authorized Representative must deliver to the Chairwoman of the 
Board or the Chief Clerk of the General Land Office a certificate to the effect that such 
transaction is expected to limit or eliminate such exposure. 

3. Bond Enhancement Agreements in Connection with Anticipated Bonds. 

(a) Requirement to Terminate or Modify Agreement for Non-issuance of 
Anticipated Bonds.  In the event a Bond Enhancement Agreement is entered into under 
this Resolution in connection with the anticipated issuance of Bonds and such Bonds are 
not actually issued on or prior to the effective date of such agreement, an Authorized 
Representative shall either terminate such Bond Enhancement Agreement or amend such 
Bond Enhancement Agreement in such event (i) to delay the effective date of such Bond 
Enhancement Agreement; or (ii) to replace such anticipated Bonds with any then 
outstanding Bonds having the same types of interest rates (fixed or variable) as the 
anticipated Bonds. 

(b) Requirement to Terminate or Modify Agreement for Notional Amount in 
Excess of Anticipated Bonds as Issued. In the event a Bond Enhancement Agreement is 
entered into under this Resolution in connection with the anticipated issuance of Bonds 
and such Bond Enhancement Agreement has a notional amount that at any time exceeds 
the principal amount to be outstanding of such anticipated Bonds as actually issued, an 
Authorized Representative shall either terminate such Bond Enhancement Agreement or 
amend such Bond Enhancement Agreement (i) to reduce the notional amount of such 
Bond Enhancement as appropriate so that such notional amount does not exceed at any 
time the principal amount to be outstanding of such anticipated Bonds as actually issued 
or (ii) supplement or replace all or a portion of such anticipated Bonds with any then 
outstanding Bonds having the same types of interest rates (fixed or variable) as the 
anticipated Bonds as necessary to ensure that the notional amount of such Bond 
Enhancement Agreement does not exceed at any time the principal amount of the 
applicable Bonds. 

(c) Board Recognition of Anticipated Bonds.  No Bond Enhancement 
Agreement may be entered into under this Resolution with respect to the Board’s 
obligations under an anticipated future issuance of Bonds unless such anticipated 
issuance of future debt shall have been recognized by official action of the Board 
pursuant to either (i) the Board’s prior adoption of a resolution authorizing the issuance 
of such debt, including but not limited to a resolution delegating the parameters of such 
issuance to an Authorized Representative or a resolution authorizing the issuance of 



 - 5 - 
Error! Unknown document property name. 

commercial paper notes, or (ii) the Board’s action pursuant to subsection (e) hereof with 
respect to Bonds anticipated to be issued to refund outstanding Bonds. 

(d) Required Description of Anticipated Bonds.  To the extent that an 
Authorized Representative other than the Chairwoman of the Board enters into an Bond 
Enhancement Agreement under this Resolution with respect to the Board’s obligations 
under an anticipated future issuance of Bonds, such Authorized Representative must also 
deliver to the Chairwoman of the Board or the Chief Clerk of the General Land Office at 
the time such agreement is entered into a certificate with respect to such anticipated 
Bonds stating:  (i) the anticipated issuance date of such Bonds or a range of anticipated 
dates of up to six months for such issuance, provided that such date or range of dates may 
not be more than seventy-two (72) months after the date of the applicable Confirmation; 
(ii) whether such Bonds will bear interest at a fixed or variable rate; (iii) if such Bonds 
will bear interest at a fixed rate, what fixed interest rate or range of interest rates with 
respect to such Bonds is anticipated; (iv) if such Bonds will bear interest at a variable 
rate, what basis is anticipated to be used to compute such variable rate; and (v) the 
assumed maturity schedule and amortization for such Bonds, including the assumed 
interest cost. 

(e) Board’s Statement of Intent to Issue Advance Refunding Debt for Savings.  
If the conditions in this Resolution are otherwise satisfied, the Board hereby authorizes 
each Authorized Representative to enter into a Bond Enhancement Agreement in 
connection with Bonds anticipated to be issued for the purpose of advance refunding any 
existing Bonds, provided that prior to any Authorized Representative other than the 
Chairwoman of the Board entering into any such agreement, such Authorized 
Representative must deliver to the Chairwoman of the Board a certificate to the effect 
that such refunding issue of Bonds, when taking into consideration the effect of such 
Bond Enhancement Agreement, is anticipated to result in a present value savings in 
connection with such advance refunding of at least 3.0%, and in such event, the Board 
hereby declares its intention to cause such refunding Bonds to be issued.  No such 
certification or declaration shall be required in connection with Bonds anticipated to be 
issued for the purpose of currently refunding any existing Bonds within ninety (90) days 
of the date of issuance of such refunding Bonds. 

4. Master Agreements. 

(a) New Master Agreements.  Each Authorized Representative is hereby 
severally authorized to enter into ISDA Master Agreements and Schedules thereto (the 
“New Master Agreements”) with counterparties satisfying the ratings requirements of the 
Board’s Debt and Derivatives Policy Statement.  Such New Master Agreements shall be 
in substantially the same form as any of the ISDA Master Agreements and Schedules 
thereto (the “Existing Master Agreements”) to which the Board is currently a party, with 
such changes as, in the judgment of an Authorized Representative, with the advice and 
counsel of Bond Counsel or Financial Advisor to the Board, are necessary or desirable 
(i) to carry out the intent of the Board as expressed in this Resolution, (ii) to 
accommodate the credit structure or requirements of a particular counterparty or (iii) to 
incorporate comments received or anticipated to be received from any credit rating 



 - 6 - 
Error! Unknown document property name. 

agency relating to a New Master Agreement.  Each Authorized Representative is 
authorized to enter into such New Master Agreements and to enter into Confirmations 
thereunder in accordance with this Resolution and in furtherance of and to carry out the 
intent hereof. 

(b) Amendments to Master Agreements.  Each Authorized Representative is 
hereby further severally authorized to enter into amendments to the Master Agreements 
to allow Confirmations thereunder to be issued and entered into with respect to any then 
outstanding Bonds or Bonds anticipated to be issued in the future and to make such other 
amendments in accordance with the terms of the respective Master Agreements as in the 
judgment of such Authorized Representative, with the advice and counsel of Bond 
Counsel to the Board, are necessary or desirable to allow the Board to achieve the 
benefits of the Bond Enhancement Agreements in accordance with and subject to the 
Board’s Debt and Derivatives Policy Statement and this Resolution. 

5. ISDA Protocols.  Each Authorized Representative is hereby severally authorized 
to take such actions as are necessary or desirable as an Authorized Representative determines in 
his judgment are appropriate to enable the Board or any of its counterparties to comply with or 
adhere to any protocols developed by the International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc. 

6. Bond Retirement Change.  If a proposed “Bond Retirement Change” occurs with 
respect to an interest rate swap transaction (each, a “Transaction”) of the Board, each Authorized 
Representative is hereby severally authorized to take such actions in connection with such Bond 
Retirement Change as an Authorized Representative determines are necessary or desirable.  If an 
Authorized Representative determines to designate additional Bonds in connection with any such 
Bond Retirement Change, such Authorized Representative shall, on behalf of the Board, make 
such findings or determinations with respect to such Bonds as are then required pursuant to the 
Constitutional Provision, Chapter 161 and Chapter 162, and any such findings or determinations 
shall be deemed to be findings or determinations by the Board for all purposes.  Any actions in 
connection with a Bond Retirement Change heretofore performed by the Authorized 
Representatives are hereby ratified, approved and confirmed in all respects. 

7. Authorization of Additional Acts.  The Authorized Representatives are hereby 
severally authorized and directed from time to time and at any time, in the name and on behalf of 
the Board, to do and perform all acts and things and to execute, deliver, and if requested by a 
counterparty, attest or affix the seal of the Board to, all certificates, instruments and other papers 
as they may determine to be necessary or desirable in connection with the consummation of any 
Bond Enhancement Agreement, such determination to be conclusively evidenced by the 
performance of such acts and things and the execution and delivery of any such certificate, 
instrument or other paper, and any such actions heretofore performed by the Authorized 
Representatives are hereby ratified, approved and confirmed in all respects. 

8. Open Meeting.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this resolution was adopted and approved was open to the public as required by law and 
public notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by 
Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code, as amended. 



 - 7 - 
Error! Unknown document property name. 

9. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect on and as of the 
date hereof, and shall supersede and replace in its entirety the resolution of the same title adopted 
by the Board on July 25, 2023.  The delegation to each Authorized Representative to act on 
behalf of the Board under this Resolution shall expire on June 24, 2025. 

  



 Signature Page for Resolution 
 Authorizing Interest Rate Swap Transactions (June 2024) 
Error! Unknown document property name. 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED on the 25th day of June, 2024. 

 
 
       /s/ Dawn Buckingham, M.D.    
       Chairwoman, Veterans’ Land Board of 
            the State of Texas 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
/s/ Anthony W. Dale      
Executive Secretary, Veterans’ Land Board of 
  the State of Texas 
 
 



 

1 
 

Date:  June 25, 2024 

To:  Dawn Buckingham, M.D., Chairwoman 
Judson Scott, Member 
James Rothfelder, Member 

 
From:  John Barton, Director of VLB Bond Funds Management 
 
Subject: Agenda Item 5 b - Consideration and possible action on the adoption of a 

resolution authorizing liquidity facilities relating to bonds issued or to be 
issued in connection with the Veterans’ Land Program or the Veterans’ 
Housing Assistance Program and other related matters. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board authorize staff to execute new liquidity 

facilities and substitute existing liquidity facilities and amend or 
supplement certain bond resolutions to accommodate such substitutions, 
as necessary, for the period beginning June 26, 2024, and ending June 25, 
2025. 

 
Summary 
In keeping with past practices, the Board approved a resolution in July 2023 that authorized 
staff to: (1) substitute, over a one-year period, as necessary, various liquidity facilities provided 
by various liquidity providers on existing VLB variable-rate bond issues; (2) execute new 
liquidity facilities related to any new VLB bond issues during the one-year period; and (3) 
amend or supplement the resolutions associated with any such VLB bond issues. 
 
During the past year, staff renewed one liquidity agreement and have three liquidity 
agreements that will be up for renewal during the one-year approval period. Staff also intends 
to enter into new liquidity agreements in conjunction with any new bond transactions.   
 
Although it remains slightly challenging to find large, creditworthy banks willing to provide 
liquidity at pricing levels like those of those previous few years, staff expects to continue to 
meet projected liquidity facility needs during the next year at prices that are reasonable. 
 



Error! Unknown document property name. 

CERTIFICATE OF RESOLUTION 

THE STATE OF TEXAS §  
    §  
COUNTY OF TRAVIS §  
 

I, the undersigned Executive Secretary of the Veterans’ Land Board (the “Board”) of the 
State of Texas, hereby certify as follows: 

1. The Board convened in regular meeting on the 25th day of June, 2024, at the 
designated meeting place, and the roll was called of the duly constituted officers and members of 
said Board, to-wit: 

Dawn Buckingham, M.D. Chairwoman 
Gerald J. “Jud” Scott Member 
James Rothfelder Member 
  

and all of said persons were present, thus constituting a quorum.  Whereupon, among other 
business, the following was transacted at said meeting:  a written: 

RESOLUTION OF THE VETERANS’ LAND BOARD OF THE STATE OF 
TEXAS AUTHORIZING LIQUIDITY FACILITIES RELATING TO BONDS 
ISSUED OR TO BE ISSUED IN CONNECTION WITH THE VETERANS’ 
LAND PROGRAM OR THE VETERANS’ HOUSING ASSISTANCE 
PROGRAM, AND PROVIDING FOR OTHER MATTERS RELATING TO 
THE SUBJECT 

was duly introduced for the consideration of said Board.  It was then duly moved and seconded 
that said Resolution be adopted; and, after due discussion, said motion, carrying with it the 
adoption of said Resolution, prevailed and carried by the following vote: 

AYES:  3    NOES:  0  

2. A true, full, and correct copy of the aforesaid Resolution adopted at the Meeting 
described in the above and foregoing paragraph is attached to and follows this Certificate; that 
said Resolution has been duly recorded in said Board’s minutes of said Meeting; that the above 
and foregoing paragraph is a true, full, and correct excerpt from said Board’s minutes of said 
meeting pertaining to the adoption of said Resolution; that the persons named in the above and 
foregoing paragraph are the duly chosen, qualified, and acting officers and members of said 
Board as indicated therein; and that each of the officers and members of said Board was duly and 
sufficiently notified officially and personally, in advance, of the time, place, and purpose of the 
aforesaid Meeting, and that said Resolution would be introduced and considered for adoption at 
said Meeting; and that said Meeting was noticed, convened, and conducted in full compliance 
with the Texas Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code, as amended, 
regarding meetings of the Board. 

3. The Resolution has not been modified, amended or repealed and is in full force 
and effect on and as of the date hereof. 



Signature Page for Certificate of Resolution 
Authorizing Liquidity Facilities (June 2024) 

Error! Unknown document property name. 

 

SIGNED AND SEALED the ___ day of ______________, 2024. 

 
 
 ____________________________________ 
 Anthony W. Dale, Executive Secretary 
(SEAL) 



Error! Unknown document property name. 

RESOLUTION 

OF THE VETERANS’ LAND BOARD OF THE STATE OF 
TEXAS AUTHORIZING LIQUIDITY FACILITIES RELATING 
TO BONDS ISSUED OR TO BE ISSUED IN CONNECTION 
WITH THE VETERANS’ LAND PROGRAM OR THE 
VETERANS’ HOUSING ASSISTANCE PROGRAM, AND 
PROVIDING FOR OTHER MATTERS RELATING TO THE 
SUBJECT 

_________________ 

Adopted and Approved on 

June 25, 2024 



 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

Recitals  ............................................................................................................................................1 

1. Incorporation of Recitals ......................................................................................................2 

2. Approval of New Liquidity Facilities ..................................................................................2 

3. Amendment of Resolutions..................................................................................................2 

4. Authorization and Ratification of Additional Acts ..............................................................3 

5. Open Meeting.......................................................................................................................3 

6. Effective Date ......................................................................................................................3 



RESOLUTION 

OF THE VETERANS’ LAND BOARD OF THE STATE OF TEXAS 
AUTHORIZING LIQUIDITY FACILITIES RELATING TO BONDS ISSUED 
OR TO BE ISSUED IN CONNECTION WITH THE VETERANS’ LAND 
PROGRAM OR THE VETERANS’ HOUSING ASSISTANCE PROGRAM, 
AND PROVIDING FOR OTHER MATTERS RELATING TO THE SUBJECT 

WHEREAS, the Veterans’ Land Board (the “Board”) of the State of Texas has caused to 
be issued from time to time and has currently outstanding variable rate demand bonds (the 
“Variable Rate Bonds”) in connection with the Veterans’ Housing Assistance Program and the 
Veterans’ Land Program; and 

WHEREAS, to provide liquidity for Variable Rate Bonds that are tendered for purchase 
but not remarketed, the Board has obtained liquidity facilities (the “Prior Liquidity Facilities”) 
for each series of the Variable Rate Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, due to current market conditions, the Board has determined it is necessary 
and desirable to authorize the substitution from time to time of liquidity facilities for one or more 
series of Variable Rate Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has authorized the issuance of up to $250,000,000 in original 
principal amount of tax-exempt bonds and of up to $250,000,000 in original principal amount of 
taxable bonds (collectively, the “Series 2024 Bonds”) in calendar year 2024 in one or more series 
and installments in connection with the Veterans’ Housing Assistance Program (the “Housing 
Program”); and 

WHEREAS, all or a portion of the Series 2024 Bonds may be issued as Variable Rate 
Bonds, and if so, any such Series 2024 Bonds will require a liquidity facility; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has authorized the issuance of refunding bonds (the “Refunding 
Bonds”) to refund certain bonds previously issued in connection with the Housing Program; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has determined it is necessary and desirable to authorize liquidity 
facilities for the Refunding Bonds and for any Series 2024 Bonds that are issued as Variable Rate 
Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the Board desires to authorize the Chairwoman, the Executive Secretary, the 
Director of VLB Bond Funds Management and the Assistant Director of VLB Bond Funds 
Management of the Board (collectively, the “Authorized Representatives”) to act on behalf of the 
Board in entering into and delivering new or substitute liquidity facilities (in any event, “New 
Liquidity Facilities”) and such other documentation required in connection therewith; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE VETERANS’ LAND BOARD OF 
THE STATE OF TEXAS, THAT: 



 -2- 
Error! Unknown document property name. 

1. Incorporation of Recitals.  All of the above recitals are found and determined to 
be true and correct and are incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their 
entirety. 

2. Approval of New Liquidity Facilities.  Each Authorized Representative is hereby 
severally authorized to act on behalf of the Board in obtaining and executing New Liquidity 
Facilities (i) for any Series 2024 Bonds issued as Variable Rate Bonds, (ii) for the Refunding 
Bonds, or (iii) when, in his judgment, the substitution of such New Liquidity Facility for an 
existing Prior Liquidity Facility is in the best interests of the Board given the market conditions 
at that time.  Each such New Liquidity Facility shall be substantially in the form of, or shall 
contain substantially the same provisions as, one or more of the Prior Liquidity Facilities, with 
such changes therein as, in the judgment of an Authorized Representative, with the advice and 
counsel of bond counsel to the Board and the financial advisor to the Board, are necessary or 
desirable (i) to carry out the intent of the Board expressed in this Resolution, (ii) to accommodate 
the requirements of a particular liquidity provider or the type of the New Liquidity Facility, or 
(iii) to incorporate comments received or anticipated to be received from any credit rating agency 
relating to the New Liquidity Facility.  The principal amount of each New Liquidity Facility 
shall be the same as the related Variable Rate Bonds, shall have an initial term not to exceed 
seven years with extensions not to exceed the lesser of seven years and the maturity date of the 
related Variable Rate Bonds, and shall have a facility fee not to exceed 150 basis points at the 
time of inception or extension, as applicable.  Each New Liquidity Facility shall be with a 
provider rated not less than A-1 with S&P Global Ratings, a division of S&P Global Inc., or P1 
with Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., and shall have the same source of payment and security as 
the Prior Liquidity Facilities.  For purposes of this Resolution, the change in form of a Prior 
Liquidity Facility, such as from a standby bond purchase agreement to a letter of credit with a 
related reimbursement agreement with the same liquidity provider, shall be considered the 
substitution of a Prior Liquidity Facility with a New Liquidity Facility. The delegation to each 
Authorized Representative to obtain and execute New Liquidity Facilities on behalf of the Board 
under this Resolution shall expire on June 24, 2025. 

3. Amendment of Resolutions.  In connection with any substitution pursuant to this 
Resolution, on the substitution date the bond resolution for the related Variable Rate Bonds shall, 
in the discretion of an Authorized Representative, be deemed to be amended to the extent 
necessary to cause the variable rate provisions to be consistent with the State of Texas Veterans 
Bonds, Series 2023 in the case of any tax-exempt Variable Rate Bonds, or with the State of 
Texas Veterans Bonds, Taxable Series 2023A in the case of any taxable Variable Rate Bonds.  
Any such amendment shall be subject to any further requirements set forth in the related bond 
resolution. 

4. Extension of Prior Liquidity Facilities.  Each Authorized Representative is hereby 
severally authorized to act on behalf of the Board in connection with the extension of the term of 
any Prior Liquidity Facility, the terms of such extension subject to the parameters provided for a 
New Liquidity Facility in Section 1 of this Resolution.  In connection with any such extension, 
each Authorized Representative is hereby severally authorized to act on behalf of the Board in 
executing any amendment to the related Prior Liquidity Facility to contain provisions 
substantially similar to another Prior Liquidity Facility or a new Liquidity Facility or as required 



 -3- 
Error! Unknown document property name. 

under then-applicable law, and any such amendments heretofore executed by the Authorized 
Representatives are hereby ratified, approved and confirmed in all respects. 

5. Authorization and Ratification of Additional Acts.  The Authorized 
Representatives are hereby severally authorized and directed from time to time and at any time, 
in the name and on behalf of the Board, to do and perform or cause to be done and performed all 
acts and things and to execute, deliver, and if requested by the provider of a New Liquidity 
Facility, attest or affix the seal of the Board to, all certificates, instruments and other papers as 
they may determine to be necessary or desirable in connection with the delivery of a New 
Liquidity Facility, including, without limitation (i) in the case of a substitution, preparation and 
distribution of a supplement to the official statement relating to the related Variable Rate Bonds, 
and (ii) the submission of a transcript of proceedings for approval of the Attorney General of the 
State of the proceedings authorizing each New Liquidity Facility as a “credit agreement” under 
Chapter 1371 of the Texas Government Code, as amended, such determination to be 
conclusively evidenced by the performance of such acts and things and the execution and 
delivery of any such certificate, instrument or other paper, and any such actions heretofore 
performed or caused to be performed by the Authorized Representatives are hereby ratified, 
approved and confirmed in all respects. 

6. Open Meeting.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this resolution was adopted and approved was open to the public as required by law and 
public notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by 
Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code, as amended. 

7. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect on and as of the 
date hereof, and shall supersede and replace in its entirety the resolution of the same title adopted 
by the Board on July 25, 2023. 

 



Signature Page for Resolution 
Authorizing Liquidity Facilities (July 2023) 

Error! Unknown document property name. 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED on the 25th day of June, 2024. 

 

 
      /s/ Dawn Buckingham, M.D.     
       Chairwoman, Veterans’ Land Board of 
           the State of Texas 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
/s/ Anthony W. Dale     
Executive Secretary, Veterans’ Land Board of 
  the State of Texas 
 

 



 

1 
 

 
Date:    June 25, 2024 
 
To:    Dawn Buckingham, M.D., Chairwoman 

Judson Scott, Member 
James Rothfelder, Member 

 
From:    John Barton, Director of VLB Bond Funds Management 
 
Subject: Agenda Item 5 c - Consideration and possible action on the adoption of a 

resolution authorizing the issuance and sale of State of Texas Veterans 
Bonds, Taxable Series 2025, in one or more series and installments, in an 
aggregate principal amount not to exceed $250,000,000 and providing 
for other matters relating to the subject. 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends that the Board authorize the issuance up to 

$250,000,000 in new-money taxable general obligation bonds in the 
Veterans Housing Assistance Program (VHAP) between June 26, 2024, 
and June 24, 2025. In addition, staff recommends that the final maturity 
of the bonds not exceed December 1, 2057, and that the bond True 
Interest Cost not exceed 6.00%. 

 
Summary 
The Board has historically issued $250 million (the maximum amount per calendar year that is 
permissible under federal income tax law) in tax-exempt new-money general obligation bonds 
for the VHAP each year. The Board typically originates more than $250 million in VHAP loans 
annually, and the combination of bond proceeds and prepayments on existing mortgage loans 
has been sufficient to meet borrower demand. However, the rise in interest rates has reduced 
the amounts of prepayments received on existing mortgage loans, as high mortgage rates 
reduce borrower refinancing opportunities and the historically low interest rates from the 
previous few years make borrowers reluctant to move and take out a loan at a significantly 
higher rate.  
 
To ensure sufficient funds to meet borrower demand, staff is requesting Board approval to 
issue $250 million in taxable new-money general obligation bonds for the VHAP. The issue is 
expected to be substantially like the Board’s typical tax-exempt issue, with variable rate bonds 
issued that are effectively converted to fixed-rate bonds with a floating-to-fixed interest rate 
swap. The amortization of the bonds will exactly match the amortization of the swap. The 
synthetic fixed-rate bond structure is expected to achieve a lower true interest cost than a 
traditional taxable fixed-rate mortgage bond structure. While the Board has used this structure 
almost exclusively in the past, staff works with the Board’s financial advisor and bond counsel 
prior to each issuance to determine the structure best suited to meet the Board’s current 
financing needs considering market conditions and other factors at that time.  



2 

2 
 

 
 
In July 2023, the Board approved a one-year resolution authorizing the issuance of up to $250 
million in taxable new-money general obligation bonds in the VHAP. As interest rates have 
increased, demand has slowed, and staff has been able to make loan purchases with the bond 
proceeds that were issued during summer 2023. As we are coming upon the expiration of last 
year’s approval, we are again requesting approval of a similar rolling one-year resolution.  
 



 
 

RESOLUTION 

 

BY THE VETERANS’ LAND BOARD OF THE STATE OF 
TEXAS AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF 
STATE OF TEXAS VETERANS BONDS, TAXABLE 
SERIES 2024 IN ONE OR MORE SERIES AND 
INSTALLMENTS IN AN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT 
NOT TO EXCEED $250,000,000, AND PROVIDING FOR 
OTHER MATTERS RELATING TO THE SUBJECT 

 

_________________ 

 

relating to 

 

State of Texas 
Veterans Bonds, 

Taxable Series 2024 

 

_________________ 

 

 

Adopted and Approved on 

June 25, 2024 

 

 



 -i- 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

ARTICLE I 
 

DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PROVISIONS OF GENERAL APPLICATION 

Section 1.1. Definitions .......................................................................................................... 2 
Section 1.2. Effect of Headings and Table of Contents ....................................................... 10 

ARTICLE II 
 

AUTHORIZATION AND TERMS OF SERIES 2024 BONDS; 
ISSUANCE AND FORM OF SERIES 2024 BONDS 

Section 2.1. Authorization of Series 2024 Bonds ................................................................ 10 
Section 2.2. Form, Maturities, Interest Rates and Numbering ............................................. 10 
Section 2.3. Execution .......................................................................................................... 11 
Section 2.4. Approval by Attorney General; Registration by Comptroller .......................... 11 
Section 2.5. Form of Bond ................................................................................................... 11 
Section 2.6. Registration, Transfer and Exchange ............................................................... 12 
Section 2.7. Damaged and Missing Bonds ........................................................................... 15 
Section 2.8. Sale and Delivery of Series 2024 Bonds .......................................................... 15 
Section 2.9. Preliminary Official Statement and Official Statement ................................... 16 
Section 2.10. Book-Entry System .......................................................................................... 16 

ARTICLE III 
 

REDEMPTION OF SERIES 2024 BONDS 

Section 3.1. Redemption ...................................................................................................... 18 
Section 3.2. Notice of Redemption ...................................................................................... 19 

ARTICLE IV 
 

FUNDS AND INVESTMENTS 

Section 4.1. Establishment of Fund II .................................................................................. 20 
Section 4.2. Deposits to Fund II ........................................................................................... 20 
Section 4.3. Home Loans ..................................................................................................... 21 
Section 4.4. Source of Payment ............................................................................................ 21 
Section 4.5. Other Uses of Fund II Moneys ......................................................................... 22 
Section 4.6. Program Administration ................................................................................... 23 
Section 4.7. Investments ....................................................................................................... 23 



 -ii- 

ARTICLE V 
 

COVENANTS OF THE BOARD 

Section 5.1. Payment Procedures ......................................................................................... 23 
Section 5.2. Paying Agent and Registrar .............................................................................. 23 
Section 5.3. Tax Covenants .................................................................................................. 24 

ARTICLE VI 
 

SUPPLEMENTS AND AMENDMENTS 

Section 6.1. Amendment of Resolution With Consent of Holders ...................................... 24 
Section 6.2. Amendment of Resolution Without Consent of Holders ................................. 26 
Section 6.3. Effect of Amendatory Resolutions ................................................................... 26 
Section 6.4. Bonds May Bear Notation of Changes ............................................................. 26 

ARTICLE VII 
 

FIXED RATE BONDS DEEMED PAID 

Section 7.1. Fixed Rate Bonds Deemed Paid ....................................................................... 27 
Section 7.2. Application of Trust Money ............................................................................. 27 

ARTICLE VIII 
 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING 

Section 8.1. Definitions ........................................................................................................ 27 
Section 8.2. Annual Reports ................................................................................................. 28 
Section 8.3. Event Notices ................................................................................................... 28 
Section 8.4. Limitations, Disclaimers and Amendments ..................................................... 30 
Section 8.5. Continuing Disclosure Relating to Other Obligated Persons ........................... 31 
Section 8.6. Agreement Regarding Assumption of Certain Home Loans ............................ 31 

ARTICLE IX 
 

ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS RELATING TO SERIES 2024 BONDS 

Section 9.1. Interest Rates and Payment .............................................................................. 31 
Section 9.2. Determination of Weekly Interest Rate ............................................................ 32 
Section 9.3. Fixed Interest Rate ............................................................................................ 33 
Section 9.4. Purchase of Weekly Rate Bonds ...................................................................... 34 
Section 9.5. Amendments to Liquidity Facility ................................................................... 38 
Section 9.6. Alternate Liquidity Facility .............................................................................. 38 
Section 9.7. Notice of Termination or Other Change in Liquidity Facility ......................... 38 
Section 9.8. Remarketing Agent and Tender Agent ............................................................. 38 



 -iii- 

Section 9.9. Qualifications of Remarketing Agent and Tender Agent; Resignation; 
Removal ............................................................................................................ 39 

Section 9.10. Notice of Weekly Rate Bonds Delivered for Purchase; Purchase of 
Weekly Rate Bonds .......................................................................................... 40 

Section 9.11. Remarketing of Series 2024 Bonds; Notice of Interest Rates .......................... 42 
Section 9.12. Delivery of Series 2024 Bonds ......................................................................... 43 
Section 9.13. Delivery of Proceeds of Sale ............................................................................ 43 
Section 9.14. Draws on Liquidity Facility to Pay Purchase Price of Weekly Rate Bonds

 43 
Section 9.15. Insufficient Funds for Purchase of Weekly Rate Bonds .................................. 44 
Section 9.16. Notices .............................................................................................................. 44 

ARTICLE X 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 10.1. Benefits of Resolution ...................................................................................... 45 
Section 10.2. Bonds to Rank Equally ..................................................................................... 45 
Section 10.3. Enforcement ..................................................................................................... 45 
Section 10.4. Separability Clause ........................................................................................... 46 
Section 10.5. Governing Law ................................................................................................. 46 
Section 10.6. Open Meeting ................................................................................................... 46 
Section 10.7. References to Liquidity Provider ..................................................................... 46 
Section 10.8. Liquidity Facilities Authorized ........................................................................ 46 
Section 10.9. Remarketing Agreements Authorized .............................................................. 46 
Section 10.10. Tender Agent Agreements Authorized ............................................................. 46 
Section 10.11. Authorization of Additional Acts ..................................................................... 46 
Section 10.12. Bond Enhancement Agreement Certificate ...................................................... 47 
Section 10.13. Prior Resolution ................................................................................................ 47 
 

 

EXHIBIT A – FORM OF WEEKLY RATE BOND .................................................................. A-1 

EXHIBIT B – FORM OF FIXED RATE BOND ........................................................................B-1 

EXHIBIT C – FORM OF VARIABLE RATE BOND ...............................................................C-1 

EXHIBIT D – DESCRIPTION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION ....................... D-1 

  



  
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 

BY THE VETERANS’ LAND BOARD OF THE STATE OF TEXAS 
AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF STATE OF TEXAS 
VETERANS BONDS, TAXABLE SERIES 2024 IN ONE OR MORE SERIES 
AND INSTALLMENTS IN AN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO 
EXCEED $250,000,000, AND PROVIDING FOR OTHER MATTERS 
RELATING TO THE SUBJECT 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Article III, Section 49-b (the “Constitutional 
Provision”) of the Constitution (the “State Constitution”) of the State of Texas (the “State”), and 
implemented by Chapter 162, Texas Natural Resources Code, as amended (the “Act”), the 
Veterans’ Land Board (the “Board”) of the State has been authorized, subject to the limitations set 
forth in the Constitutional Provision, to issue general obligation bonds (“Bonds”) of the State from 
time to time for the purpose of providing funding for the Veterans’ Housing Assistance Fund II 
(“Fund II”), which fund is to be used for the purpose of making home mortgage loans to Veterans 
(as such term is defined in the Act); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of subsection (w) of the Constitutional Provision, 
adopted by vote of the people of the State on November 6, 2001, as amended by vote of the people 
of the State on November 3, 2009, the Board has been authorized to issue Bonds, as well as general 
obligation bonds (together with the Bonds, “Veterans Bonds”) of the State for the purpose of 
providing funding for the Veterans’ Housing Assistance Fund or the Veterans’ Land Fund, from 
time to time in an aggregate principal amount outstanding at any one time not to exceed the 
aggregate principal amount of Veterans Bonds previously authorized by prior amendments to the 
State Constitution; and 

WHEREAS, prior amendments to the State Constitution have authorized $4 billion in 
aggregate principal amount of Veterans Bonds to be issued; and 

WHEREAS, less than $3.5 billion (including unamortized net original issue premium) in 
aggregate principal amount of Veterans Bonds is currently outstanding or authorized; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it is necessary and desirable at this time that up 
to $250,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of Bonds (hereinafter defined as the “Series 2024 
Bonds”) be issued in one or more series and installments for the purpose of augmenting Fund II; 
and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Constitutional Provision, the Act and Chapter 1371, Texas 
Government Code, as amended (“Chapter 1371”), the Board hereby determines to issue the 
Series 2024 Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the Board hereby finds that the purpose for which the Board may issue the 
Series 2024 Bonds constitutes “public works,” as contemplated by Chapter 1371; 



 -2- 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE VETERANS’ LAND BOARD OF 
THE STATE OF TEXAS: 

ARTICLE I 
 

DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PROVISIONS OF GENERAL APPLICATION 

Section 1.1. Definitions.  (a)  For all purposes of this Resolution, except as otherwise expressly 
provided or unless the context otherwise requires: 

(i) “This Resolution” means this resolution as originally adopted or as it may from time to 
time be supplemented or amended by one or more resolutions supplemental hereto adopted 
pursuant to the applicable provisions hereof. 

(ii) All references in this Resolution to designated “Articles,” “Sections” and other 
subdivisions are to the designated Articles, Sections and other subdivisions of this Resolution as 
originally adopted.  The words “herein,” “hereof” and “hereunder” and other words of similar 
import refer to this Resolution as a whole and not to any particular Article, Section or other 
subdivision. 

(iii) The terms defined in this Article have the meanings assigned to them in this Article and 
include the plural as well as the singular.  Reference to any named Person means that party and its 
successors and assigns. 

(b) The following terms have the meanings assigned to them below whenever they are used in 
this Resolution: 

“Act” means Chapter 162, Texas Natural Resources Code, as amended. 

“Alternate Liquidity Facility” means a letter of credit, standby bond purchase agreement 
or any other agreement or agreements used to provide liquidity support for a series of Series 2024 
Bonds, satisfactory to the Board and the Remarketing Agent therefor and containing administrative 
provisions reasonably satisfactory to the Tender Agent therefor, issued and delivered to such 
Tender Agent in accordance with Section 9.6 hereof. 

“Attorney General” means the Attorney General of the State. 

“Authorized Denomination” means (i) for Weekly Rate Bonds, (A) prior to the final 
redemption pursuant to Section 3.1(a) hereof, $100,000 and any integral multiple of $5,000 in 
excess thereof, or (B) thereafter, any integral multiple of $5,000, (ii) for Fixed Rate Bonds, $5,000 
and any integral multiple thereof, and (iii) for Variable Rate Bonds, the amount set forth in the 
Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate therefor. 

“Authorized Representative” means any of the following: the Chairwoman of the Board, 
the Executive Secretary of the Board, the Director of VLB Bond Funds Management of the Board, 
the Assistant Director of VLB Bond Funds Management of the Board, and any other officer or 
employee of the Board appointed by the Board to serve as an “Authorized Representative” 
hereunder. 



 -3- 

“Beneficial Owner” means, during any period in which ownership of a series of 
Series 2024 Bonds is determined only by a book entry at a securities depository for such 
Series 2024 Bonds, any Person who acquires a beneficial ownership in such Series 2024 Bonds. 

“Board” means the Veterans’ Land Board of the State. 

“Bond” or “Bonds” means general obligation bonds of the State authorized by the 
Constitutional Provision and issued for the benefit of Fund II. 

“Bond Counsel” means Bracewell LLP or any other attorney or firm of attorneys nationally 
recognized as experienced in the field of bonds of governmental issuers and appointed by the 
Board. 

“Bond Purchase Fund” means for any series of Series 2024 Bonds the fund so designated 
that is established with the Tender Agent therefor pursuant to Section 9.8(b)(ii) hereof. 

“Bond Register” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.6 hereof. 

“Business Day” means with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds, any day other than 
(i) a Saturday, a Sunday or any other day on which banks located in the cities in which the Board 
and the applicable Tender Agent, Remarketing Agent, Paying Agent, Registrar or Liquidity 
Provider are located, or in which the office of such Liquidity Provider from which payments are 
made pursuant to the applicable Liquidity Facility is located, are authorized or required to remain 
closed or (ii) a day on which the New York Stock Exchange is closed. 

“Ceiling Rate” means the lesser of (i) fifteen percent (15%) per annum and (ii) a per annum 
rate equal to the maximum net effective interest rate permitted to be paid on the Series 2024 Bonds 
(prescribed by Chapter 1204, Texas Government Code, as amended, or any successor provision), 
currently fifteen percent (15%). 

“Chapter 1201” means Chapter 1201, Texas Government Code, as amended. 

“Chapter 1371” means Chapter 1371, Texas Government Code, as amended. 

“Comptroller” means the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts. 

“Constitutional Provision” means Article III, Section 49-b of the Constitution of the State, 
as adopted on November 9, 1999, as it may be amended from time to time. 

“Defeasance Obligations” means (i) direct noncallable obligations of the United States of 
America, including obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed by the United States, 
(ii) noncallable obligations of an agency or instrumentality of the United States, including 
obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed or insured by the agency or instrumentality and 
that, on the date the governing body of the Board adopts or approves the proceedings authorizing 
the issuance of refunding bonds, are rated as to investment quality by the Rating Agency not less 
than AAA or its equivalent, and (iii) noncallable obligations of a state or an agency or a county, 
municipality, or other political subdivision of a state that have been refunded and that, on the date 
the governing body of the Board adopts or approves the proceedings authorizing the issuance of 



 -4- 

refunding bonds, are rated as to investment quality by the Rating Agency not less than AAA or its 
equivalent. 

“Direct Security Repurchase Agreement” means an agreement under which the Board 
buys, holds for a specified time, and then sells back any of the following securities, obligations, or 
participation certificates: 

(1) United States government securities; 

(2) direct obligations of or obligations the principal and interest of which are 
guaranteed by the United States; 

(3) direct obligations of or obligations guaranteed by the Federal Home Loan 
Banks, the Federal National Mortgage Association, the Federal Farm Credit System, the 
Student Loan Marketing Association, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, or a 
successor organization to one of those organizations; or 

(4) any other investment instrument, obligation, or other evidence of 
indebtedness the payment of which is directly or indirectly guaranteed by the full faith and 
credit of the United States. 

“DTC” means The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, and its successors 
and assigns, or any successor securities depository for a series of Series 2024 Bonds. 

“DTC Participant” means the securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, 
clearing corporations and certain other organizations on whose behalf DTC was created to hold 
securities to facilitate the clearance and settlement of securities transactions among DTC 
Participants. 

“Eligible Investments” means: 

(1) Direct Security Repurchase Agreements and Reverse Security Repurchase 
Agreements made with state or national banks domiciled in the State or with primary 
dealers as approved by the Federal Reserve System; 

(2) direct obligations of or obligations the principal and interest of which are 
guaranteed by the United States; 

(3) direct obligations of or obligations guaranteed by the Federal Home Loan 
Banks, the Federal National Mortgage Association, the Federal Farm Credit System, the 
Student Loan Marketing Association, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, or a 
successor organization to one of those organizations; 

(4) bankers’ acceptances that: 

(i) are eligible for purchase by members of the Federal Reserve System; 

(ii) do not exceed 270 days to maturity; and 



 -5- 

(iii) are issued by a bank that has received the highest short term credit 
rating by a nationally recognized investment rating firm; 

(5) commercial paper that: 

(i) does not exceed 270 days to maturity; and 

(ii) has received the highest short term credit rating by a nationally 
recognized investment rating firm; 

(6) contracts written by the Board in which the Board grants the purchaser the 
right to purchase securities in the Board’s marketable securities portfolio at a specified 
price over a specified period and for which the Board is paid a fee and specifically prohibits 
naked option or uncovered option trading; 

(7) obligations of a state or an agency, county, city, or other political 
subdivision of a state, including revenue bonds issued under Chapter 164, Texas Natural 
Resources Code, as amended, and mutual funds composed of these obligations; 

(8) an investment instrument, obligation, or other evidence of indebtedness the 
payment of which is directly or indirectly guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the 
United States; 

(9) an investment, account, depository receipt, or deposit that is fully: 

(i) insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, the Federal 
Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation, or a successor organization to one of 
those organizations; or 

(ii) secured by securities described by paragraph (2), (3), or (8) of this 
definition; 

(10) a collateralized mortgage obligation fully secured by securities or 
mortgages issued or guaranteed by the Government National Mortgage Association or any 
entity described by paragraph (3) of this definition; 

(11) a security or evidence of indebtedness issued by the Farm Credit System 
Financial Assistance Corporation, the Private Export Funding Corporation, or the Export 
Import Bank; and 

(12) any other investment authorized for investment of State funds by the 
Comptroller under applicable law; 

provided, however, that the term “Eligible Investments” does not include any investments that may 
from time to time not be authorized under the laws of the State for investment of moneys in Fund 
II; and provided, further, that the term “Eligible Investments” also includes all investments that 
may from time to time be authorized under the laws of the State for investment of moneys in Fund 
II. 



 -6- 

“Expenses Attributable to Bonds” means the expenses of issuing, selling, delivering and 
administering the Bonds, including without limitation, fees, expenses and other payments by the 
Board (excluding payments by the Board with respect to principal of or interest on the Bonds) 
payable under any bond enhancement agreement with respect to principal of or interest on the 
Bonds. 

“Expenses Attributable to Home Loans” means the expenses incurred in connection with 
originating, processing, servicing, and administering the Home Loans. 

“Fiscal Year” means the period of time beginning in each calendar year on September 1, 
and ending August 31 of the calendar year next following, or the fiscal year for the State, as may 
hereinafter be established by law. 

“Fixed Interest Rate” means (i) with respect to a Series 2024 Bond originally issued as a 
Weekly Rate Bond, the non-variable interest rate established in accordance with Section 9.3 
hereof, and (ii) with respect to a Series 2024 Bond originally issued as a Fixed Rate Bond, the 
non-variable interest rate set forth in the related Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate. 

“Fixed Interest Rate Period” means with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds, the 
period of time during which such Series 2024 Bonds bear interest at a Fixed Interest Rate. 

“Fixed Rate Bond” or “Fixed Rate Bonds” means any Series 2024 Bonds issued bearing 
interest at a Fixed Interest Rate. 

“Fixed Rate Conversion Date” means with respect to a series of Weekly Rate Bonds, the 
date on which the interest rate on each of such Series 2024 Bonds converts to a Fixed Interest Rate. 

“Fund I” means the Veterans’ Housing Assistance Fund created by the former Article III, 
Section 49-b-1 of the Constitution of the State, and currently governed by the Constitutional 
Provision. 

“Fund II” means the Veterans’ Housing Assistance Fund II created by the former 
Article III, Section 49-b-2 of the Constitution of the State and currently governed by the 
Constitutional Provision, established pursuant to the resolution of the Board authorizing the 
issuance of the Series 1994A Bonds and confirmed and ratified by Section 4.1 of this Resolution. 

“Holder” means a Person in whose name a Series 2024 Bond is registered in the Bond 
Register. 

“Home Loan” or “Home Loans” means the home mortgage loans (including qualified 
home improvement loans) made by the Board pursuant to the Constitutional Provision and the Act. 

“Initial Purchaser” means (i) with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds sold in 
connection with a public offering, the manager of the Underwriters relating thereto, or (ii) with 
respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds sold privately, the purchaser or purchasers thereof. 

“Initial Series 2024 Bond” means with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds, the 
Series 2024 Bond registered by the Comptroller. 



 -7- 

“Interest Accrual Period” means with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds, the period 
from and including each Interest Payment Date to and excluding the next Interest Payment Date 
therefor; the initial Interest Accrual Period shall begin on (and include) the Settlement Date 
therefor and the final Interest Accrual Period shall end on the day next preceding the maturity date 
of such Series 2024 Bonds. 

“Interest Payment Date” means (i) with respect to any Weekly Interest Rate Period, (A) the 
first Business Day of each month, commencing on the first such day following the applicable 
Settlement Date, (B) for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds, the Fixed Rate Conversion Date therefor, 
if any, and (C) the maturity date of a series of Series 2024 Bonds; and (ii) with respect to any Fixed 
Interest Rate Period, each June 1 and December 1, commencing the June 1 or December 1 
immediately following the Fixed Rate Conversion Date or the Settlement Date, as the case may 
be, by at least 30 days. 

“Interest Rate Period” means any Weekly Interest Rate Period or Fixed Interest Rate 
Period. 

“Liquidity Facility” means for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds, initially the documents 
described in the related Pricing Certificate or Purchase Contract, as the same may be amended or 
supplemented from time to time, and, upon the effectiveness of an Alternate Liquidity Facility, 
means such Alternate Liquidity Facility. 

“Liquidity Provider” means for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds, initially the Person 
designated in the related Pricing Certificate or Purchase Contract, and upon the effectiveness of an 
Alternate Liquidity Facility, means the bank or banks or other financial institution or financial 
institutions or other entity that is then a party to the Liquidity Facility.  In the case of any Alternate 
Liquidity Facility to which more than one bank, financial institution or other entity is a party, 
notices required by this Resolution to be given to the Liquidity Provider may be given to the bank 
or financial institution under such Liquidity Facility appointed to act as agent for all such banks or 
financial institutions. 

“Maximum Purchased Bond Rate” means for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds, the maximum 
interest rate for Purchased Bonds permitted under the Liquidity Facility therefor, but in no event 
to exceed the Ceiling Rate. 

“Outstanding” means, when used with reference to a Bond or Bonds and as of a particular 
date, such Bond or Bonds not canceled except a Bond or Bonds for the payment or redemption of 
which provision has been made. 

“Paying Agent” means with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds, the Comptroller 
unless otherwise set forth in the related Pricing Certificate or Purchase Contract, or any successor 
appointed by the Board pursuant to Section 5.2(a) hereof to perform the paying agent duties 
hereunder. 

“Person” means any individual, corporation, partnership, joint venture, association, joint 
stock company, trust, limited liability company, unincorporated organization or government or any 
agency or political subdivision thereof. 



 -8- 

“Pricing Certificate” means a certificate executed by an Authorized Representative setting 
forth certain provisions relating to a series of Series 2024 Bonds. 

“Program” means the Veterans’ Housing Assistance Program established pursuant to the 
Act. 

“Purchase Account” means for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds, the account so designated 
and established pursuant to Section 9.8(b)(ii) hereof. 

“Purchase Contract” means with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds initially sold in a 
public offering, the bond purchase contract between the Board and the Underwriters, authorized 
under Section 2.8 hereof, regarding the sale of such Series 2024 Bonds. 

“Purchased Bond” or “Purchased Bonds” with respect to a series of Weekly Rate Bonds, 
has the meaning ascribed to such term in the Liquidity Facility therefor. 

“Purchased Bond Rate” with respect to a series of Weekly Rate Bonds, has the meaning 
ascribed to such term in the Liquidity Facility therefor. 

“Rating Agency” means with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds, initially, the 
statistical rating organization designated as such in the related Pricing Certificate or Purchase 
Contract or if such entity ceases to assign a rating to such Series 2024 Bonds, any substitute 
statistical rating organization so designated by the Board, which at the time has a credit rating 
assigned to such Series 2024 Bonds at the request of the Board. 

“Record Date” means (a) with respect to any Interest Payment Date in respect of any 
Weekly Interest Rate Period, the Business Day immediately preceding such Interest Payment Date, 
and (b) with respect to any Interest Payment Date in respect of any Fixed Interest Rate Period, the 
15th day of the month immediately preceding such Interest Payment Date or, in the event that an 
Interest Payment Date shall occur less than 15 days after the Fixed Rate Conversion Date, such 
date. 

“Registrar” means with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds, initially the Person 
designated as such in the Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate therefor, or any successor entity 
appointed by the Board pursuant to Section 5.2(a) hereof to perform the duties of registrar and 
transfer agent hereunder. 

“Remarketing Account” means with respect to a series of Weekly Rate Bonds, the account 
so designated and established pursuant to Section 9.8(b)(ii) hereof. 

“Remarketing Agent” means with respect to a series of Weekly Rate Bonds, initially the 
Person designated as such in the Pricing Certificate therefor, or any successor appointed pursuant 
to Section 9.9(a) hereof. 

“Remarketing Agreement” means with respect to a series of Weekly Rate Bonds, the 
Remarketing Agreement dated as of the Settlement Date therefor, between the Board and the 
Remarketing Agent therefor, as the same may be amended or supplemented from time to time, or 
any remarketing agreement entered into with a successor Remarketing Agent. 



 -9- 

“Resolution” means this resolution of the Board authorizing the issuance of the Series 2024 
Bonds. 

“Reverse Security Repurchase Agreement” means an agreement under which the Board 
sells and after a specified time buys back any of the securities, obligations, or participation 
certificates listed in paragraphs (1) through (4) of the definition of Direct Security Repurchase 
Agreement. 

“Series 1994A Bond” or “Series 1994A Bonds” means the State of Texas Veterans’ 
Housing Assistance Program, Fund II Series 1994A Bonds, initially dated October 1, 1994. 

“Series 2024 Bond” or “Series 2024 Bonds” means the State of Texas Veterans Bonds, 
Taxable Series 2024, authorized pursuant to this Resolution. 

“Settlement Date” means with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds, the date of initial 
delivery of such Series 2024 Bonds to the Initial Purchaser thereof. 

“SOFR” means the 30-calendar-day compounded average of the “Secured Overnight 
Financing Rate” as published on the website of the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, or any 
successor source for such rate identified as such by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York or any 
successor administrator of the Secured Overnight Financing Rate. 

“State” means the State of Texas. 

“Tender Agent” means with respect to a series of Weekly Rate Bonds, any Person acting 
as Tender Agent therefor pursuant to the terms of this Resolution. 

“Tender Agent Agreement” means if required with respect to a series of Weekly Rate 
Bonds, the agreement dated as of the Settlement Date therefor between the Board and the Tender 
Agent therefor, as the same may be amended or supplemented from time to time, or any similar 
agreement entered into with a successor Tender Agent. 

“Undelivered Bonds” means any Series 2024 Bond so designated in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 9.4(e) or Section 9.4(g)(ii) hereof. 

“Underwriters” means with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds initially sold in a 
public offering, the members of the underwriting syndicate therefor. 

“Variable Rate Bond” or “Variable Rate Bonds” means Series 2024 Bonds other than 
Weekly Rate Bonds, the interest rate on which is not fixed, but is variable or adjustable by any 
formula, agreement or otherwise as set forth in the Pricing Certificate or Purchase Contract for 
such Series 2024 Bonds. 

“Veterans” has the meaning given such term in the Constitutional Provision. 

“Weekly Interest Rate” means a variable interest rate on Weekly Rate Bonds established 
in accordance with Section 9.2 hereof. 



 -10- 

“Weekly Interest Rate Period” means each period during which a Weekly Interest Rate is 
in effect. 

“Weekly Rate Bond” or “Weekly Rate Bonds” means Series 2024 Bonds subject to a 
Weekly Interest Rate Period. 

Section 1.2. Effect of Headings and Table of Contents.  The Article and Section headings herein 
and the Table of Contents are for convenience only and shall not affect the construction hereof. 

ARTICLE II 
 

AUTHORIZATION AND TERMS OF SERIES 2024 BONDS; 
ISSUANCE AND FORM OF SERIES 2024 BONDS 

Section 2.1. Authorization of Series 2024 Bonds.  To provide money for the purpose of 
augmenting Fund II, the Series 2024 Bonds are hereby authorized and shall be issued, in one or 
more series and installments, as general obligations of the State in the original aggregate principal 
amount not to exceed Two Hundred Fifty Million Dollars ($250,000,000), as determined by an 
Authorized Representative and set forth in a Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate.  The 
Series 2024 Bonds shall be entitled “STATE OF TEXAS VETERANS BONDS, TAXABLE 
SERIES 2024”; provided that unless the entire principal amount authorized for the Series 2024 
Bonds is issued in a single series or in the discretion of an Authorized Representative, the series 
designation for each separate series shall include a different capital letter after “2024,” as set forth 
in the related Pricing Certificate or Purchase Contract. 

Section 2.2. Form, Maturities, Interest Rates and Numbering. Each series of Series 2024 Bonds 
authorized hereby initially shall be dated as set forth in the related Pricing Certificate or Purchase 
Contract, and shall be issued and delivered in the form of fully registered bonds, without coupons, 
each payable to the Holder thereof, all in the manner hereinafter provided.  The principal of 
Series 2024 Bonds shall mature, subject to prior redemption, on the dates and in the amounts set 
forth in the related Pricing Certificate or Purchase Contract; provided, however, that (i) the 
aggregate principal amount of all installments and series of Series 2024 Bonds shall not exceed 
$250,000,000, and (ii) the final maturity of the Series 2024 Bonds shall occur not later than 
December 1, 2055; and provided, further, that during any period in which ownership of a series of 
the Series 2024 Bonds is determined only by a book entry at a securities depository for such 
Series 2024 Bonds, payments made to the securities depository, or its nominee, shall be made in 
accordance with existing arrangements between the Board and the securities depository.  Weekly 
Rate Bonds shall bear interest at the Weekly Interest Rate therefor, provided that from and after 
the Fixed Rate Conversion Date, such Series 2024 Bonds shall bear interest at a Fixed Interest 
Rate.  Fixed Rate Bonds shall bear interest at the Fixed Interest Rate or Rates set forth in the related 
Pricing Certificate or Purchase Contract or as determined pursuant to Section 9.3(a) hereof.  
Variable Rate Bonds shall bear interest as provided in the related Pricing Certificate or Purchase 
Contract.  Each series of Weekly Rate Bonds shall be numbered consecutively from WR-1 upward 
by the Registrar, and no two Weekly Rate Bonds of the same series shall be given the same number.  
Each series of Fixed Rate Bonds shall be numbered consecutively from FR-1 upward by the 
Registrar, and no two Fixed Rate Bonds of the same series shall be given the same number.  Each 
series of Variable Rate Bonds shall be numbered consecutively from VR-1 upward by the 



 -11- 

Registrar, and no two such Series 2024 Bonds shall be given the same number.  Notwithstanding 
the foregoing, the Initial Series 2024 Bond for any series of Series 2024 Bonds shall be numbered 
T-1.  Unless otherwise specified in the related Pricing Certificate or Purchase Contract, the Board 
shall cause CUSIP numbers to be assigned to, and reproduced on, the Series 2024 Bonds, but errors 
or omissions in the printing of such numbers shall have no effect on the validity of such Bonds. 

Section 2.3. Execution.  Each of the Series 2024 Bonds shall be executed by and on behalf of 
the Board as general obligations of the State with the manual or facsimile signatures of the 
Chairwoman of the Board and the Executive Secretary of the Board, and the manual or facsimile 
seal of the Board shall be placed thereon.  The facsimile signatures of the Chairwoman and 
Executive Secretary of the Board and the facsimile seal of the Board shall have the same effect as 
if each of said Bonds had been manually signed by such officers and said seal had been manually 
impressed on each such Bond.  Series 2024 Bonds bearing the manual or facsimile signatures of 
individuals who were at any time the proper officers of the Board shall bind the State and the 
Board, notwithstanding that such individuals or any of them have ceased to hold such offices prior 
to the authentication and delivery of such Bonds or did not hold such offices at the date of such 
Bonds. 

Section 2.4. Approval by Attorney General; Registration by Comptroller.  After any Initial 
Series 2024 Bonds shall have been executed, it shall be the duty of the Authorized Representatives 
to deliver such Series 2024 Bonds to the Attorney General for examination and approval, and after 
such Series 2024 Bonds shall have been approved by the Attorney General, they shall be delivered 
to the Comptroller for registration.  Series 2024 Bonds thus registered shall remain in the custody 
of the Chairwoman of the Board or subject to her order, until the delivery thereof to the Initial 
Purchaser thereof. 

Section 2.5. Form of Bond. The form of all Weekly Rate Bonds, including the forms of (i) 
Comptroller’s Registration Certificate to accompany each Initial Series 2024 Bond that is a 
Weekly Rate Bond, (ii) Registrar’s Authentication Certificate, and (iii) Assignment, shall be, 
respectively, substantially as set forth in Exhibit A hereto, with such appropriate variations, 
omissions, or insertions as are permitted or required by this Resolution.  The form of all Fixed 
Rate Bonds, including the forms of (i) Comptroller’s Registration Certificate to accompany each 
Initial Series 2024 Bond that is a Fixed Rate Bond, (ii) Registrar’s Authentication Certificate, and 
(iii) Assignment, shall be, respectively, substantially as set forth in Exhibit B hereto, with such 
appropriate variations, omissions, or insertions as are permitted or required by this Resolution or 
set forth in a Pricing Certificate.  The form of all Variable Rate Bonds, including the forms of (i) 
Comptroller’s Registration Certificate to accompany each Initial Series 2024 Bond that is a 
Variable Rate Bond, (ii) Registrar’s Authentication Certificate, and (iii) Assignment, shall be, 
respectively, substantially as set forth in Exhibit C hereto, with such appropriate variations, 
omissions, or insertions as are permitted or required by this Resolution or set forth in a Pricing 
Certificate.  At the direction of an Authorized Representative, a portion of the text of Series 2024 
Bonds may be printed on the back of the bond certificates, in which event the following phrase 
shall be inserted in the place where such text would otherwise appear: “Reference is hereby made 
to the further provisions of this Bond set forth on the reverse side hereof and such further 
provisions shall for all purposes have the same effect as if set forth at this place.” 



 -12- 

Section 2.6. Registration, Transfer and Exchange.  (a)  With respect to each series of Series 2024 
Bonds, the Board shall keep or cause to be kept at the designated corporate trust office of the 
Person named in the related Pricing Certificate or Purchase Contract, or at the designated office of 
any other banking institution named in accordance with the provisions of Section 5.2(a) hereof (in 
any event, a “Registrar”), books or records of the registration and transfer of such Series 2024 
Bonds (each, a “Bond Register”), and each Registrar shall act as registrar and transfer agent to 
keep such Bond Register and make such transfers and registrations under such reasonable 
regulations as the Board may prescribe, and to convert and exchange or replace the applicable 
Series 2024 Bonds; and the Registrar shall make such transfers and registrations as herein 
provided.  It shall be the duty of a Registrar to obtain from the Holder of each applicable 
Series 2024 Bond and record in the related Bond Register the address of such Holder to which 
payments with respect to the applicable Series 2024 Bonds shall be mailed, as herein provided.  
Each Registrar shall keep the related Bond Register confidential and, unless otherwise required by 
law, shall not permit their inspection by any entity other than the Board or its designee, which shall 
have the right to inspect such Bond Register during regular business hours of such Registrar.  
Registration of each Series 2024 Bond may be transferred in the applicable Bond Register only 
upon presentation and surrender of such Series 2024 Bond to the applicable Registrar for transfer 
of registration and cancellation, together with proper written instruments of assignment, in form 
and with guarantee of signatures satisfactory to such Registrar, evidencing the assignment of such 
Series 2024 Bond, or any portion thereof in any Authorized Denomination, to the assignee or 
assignees thereof, and the right of such assignee or assignees to have such Series 2024 Bond or 
any such portion thereof registered in the name of such assignee or assignees.  Upon the assignment 
and transfer of any Series 2024 Bond or any portion thereof, a new substitute Series 2024 Bond or 
Series 2024 Bonds of the same series and maturity shall be issued in conversion and exchange 
therefor in the manner herein provided. 

(b) The entity in whose name any Series 2024 Bond shall be registered in the related Bond 
Register at any time shall be treated as the absolute owner thereof for all purposes of this 
Resolution, whether or not such Series 2024 Bond shall be overdue, and the Board and the 
applicable Paying Agent and Registrar shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary; and 
payment of, or on account of, the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on any such 
Series 2024 Bond shall be made only to such Holder.  All such payments shall be valid and 
effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Series 2024 Bond to the extent of the sum 
or sums so paid. 

(c) Unless otherwise set forth in a Pricing Certificate or Purchase Contract, the Board hereby 
appoints the Comptroller in Austin, Texas, or any banking institution named in accordance with 
the provisions of Section 5.2(a) hereof (in either case, the “Paying Agent”), to act as the paying 
agent for paying the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Series 2024 Bonds, all 
as provided in this Resolution.  Each Paying Agent shall keep proper records of all payments made 
by the Board and such Paying Agent with respect to the applicable Series 2024 Bonds, as provided 
in this Resolution.  For any Series 2024 Bond that has a CUSIP number, the applicable Paying 
Agent shall provide the CUSIP number for such Series 2024 Bond with each payment of interest 
on and the principal or the redemption price of such Series 2024 Bond, specifying the amount paid 
in respect of such CUSIP number. 



 -13- 

(d) Each Series 2024 Bond may be converted into and exchanged for fully registered bonds in 
the manner set forth herein.  Each Series 2024 Bond may, upon surrender thereof to the applicable 
Registrar, together with a written request therefor duly executed by the Holder or the assignee or 
assignees thereof, or its or their duly authorized attorneys or representatives, with guarantee of 
signatures satisfactory to the Registrar, at the option of the Holder or such assignee or assignees, 
as appropriate, be converted into and exchanged for a substitute Series 2024 Bond or Series 2024 
Bonds having the same series, maturity date, bearing interest at the same rate and in any Authorized 
Denomination which may be requested in writing by such Holder or such assignee or assignees, 
in an aggregate principal amount equal to the principal amount of the Series 2024 Bond or 
Series 2024 Bonds so surrendered, and payable to the appropriate Holder, assignee, or assignees, 
as the case may be.  If only a portion of any Series 2024 Bond shall be redeemed prior to its 
scheduled maturity as provided herein, a substitute Series 2024 Bond or Series 2024 Bonds having 
the same series, maturity date, bearing interest at the same rate, in any Authorized Denomination 
at the request of the Holder, and in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion 
thereof, will be issued to the Holder upon surrender thereof for cancellation.  If any Series 2024 
Bond or portion thereof is assigned and transferred or converted, each Series 2024 Bond issued in 
exchange therefor shall have the same series, principal maturity date and bear interest at the same 
rate as the Series 2024 Bond for which it is being exchanged.  Each substitute Series 2024 Bond 
shall bear a number to distinguish it from each other Series 2024 Bond.  Each Registrar shall 
convert and exchange or replace Series 2024 Bonds as provided herein, and each fully registered 
bond delivered in conversion of and exchange for or replacement of any Series 2024 Bond or 
portion thereof as permitted or required by any provision of this Resolution shall constitute one of 
the Series 2024 Bonds for all purposes of this Resolution, and may again be converted and 
exchanged or replaced.  It is specifically provided, however, that any Series 2024 Bond delivered 
in conversion of and exchange for or replacement of another Series 2024 Bond prior to the first 
scheduled Interest Payment Date of the related series of Series 2024 Bonds shall be dated the same 
date as such Series 2024 Bond, but each substitute Series 2024 Bond so delivered on or after such 
first scheduled Interest Payment Date shall be dated as of the Interest Payment Date preceding the 
date on which such substitute Series 2024 Bond is delivered, unless such Series 2024 Bond is 
delivered on an Interest Payment Date therefor, in which case it shall be dated as of such date of 
delivery; provided, however, that if at the time of delivery of any substitute Series 2024 Bond the 
interest on the Series 2024 Bond for which it is being exchanged has not been paid, then such 
Series 2024 Bond shall be dated as of the date to which such interest has been paid in full; and 
provided, further, that any Series 2024 Bond issued in exchange for an Initial Series 2024 Bond 
shall be dated the date specified in the related Pricing Certificate or Purchase Contract.  On each 
substitute Series 2024 Bond issued in conversion of and exchange for or replacement of any 
Series 2024 Bond or Series 2024 Bonds there shall be printed a Registrar’s Authentication 
Certificate, in the form hereinafter set forth.  An authorized representative of the applicable 
Registrar shall, before the delivery of any such Series 2024 Bond, date such Series 2024 Bond in 
the manner set forth above, and manually sign and date the Registrar’s Authentication Certificate, 
and no such Series 2024 Bond shall be deemed to be issued or Outstanding unless such Registrar’s 
Authentication Certificate is so executed and dated.  Each Registrar promptly shall cancel all 
applicable Series 2024 Bonds surrendered for transfer, conversion and exchange or replacement.  
No additional orders or resolutions need be passed or adopted by the Board or any other body or 
Person so as to accomplish the foregoing conversion and exchange or replacement of any 
Series 2024 Bond or portion thereof, and each Registrar shall provide for the execution and 



 -14- 

delivery of substitute Series 2024 Bonds in the manner prescribed herein.  Pursuant to Chapter 
1201, and particularly Sections 1201.061 through 1201.063 and 1201.067 thereof, the duty of 
conversion and exchange or replacement of Series 2024 Bonds as aforesaid is hereby imposed 
upon the related Registrar, and, upon the execution and dating of the above described Registrar’s 
Authentication Certificate, the transferred, converted and exchanged or replaced Series 2024 Bond 
shall be valid, incontestable, and enforceable in the same manner and with the same effect as the 
Series 2024 Bonds which originally were delivered pursuant to this Resolution, approved by the 
Attorney General, and registered by the Comptroller.  Except in the case of tenders of Weekly Rate 
Bonds pursuant to Section 9.4 hereof or of the remarketing of Purchased Bonds, neither the Board 
nor any Registrar shall be required (i) to issue, transfer, replace or exchange any Series 2024 Bond 
subject to redemption in whole or in part during a period beginning at the opening of business 30 
days before the day of the first mailing of a notice of redemption of such series of Series 2024 
Bonds and ending at the close of business on the day of such mailing, or (ii) to replace, transfer or 
exchange any Series 2024 Bond so selected for redemption, in whole or in part, when such 
redemption is scheduled to occur within 30 calendar days; except that at the option of the Holder 
of at least $1,000,000 in principal amount of a series of Series 2024 Bonds, the applicable Registrar 
shall be required to transfer or exchange any such Series 2024 Bond of such Holder which has 
been selected, in whole or in part, for redemption upon surrender thereof.  A Registrar may make 
such arrangements as it deems appropriate for notation on each new Series 2024 Bond issued in 
exchange for or upon the transfer of the Series 2024 Bond so selected for redemption of an 
appropriate legend to the effect that such new Series 2024 Bond has been so selected for 
redemption. 

(e) All Series 2024 Bonds issued in conversion and exchange or replacement of any other 
Series 2024 Bond or portion thereof, (i) shall be issued in fully registered form, without interest 
coupons, with the principal of and interest on such Series 2024 Bonds to be payable only to the 
Holders thereof, (ii) may be redeemed prior to their scheduled maturities, (iii) may be transferred 
and assigned, (iv) may be converted and exchanged for other Series 2024 Bonds, (v) shall have 
the characteristics, (vi) shall be signed and sealed, (vii) shall be authenticated, and (viii) shall 
provide that the principal of and interest on such Series 2024 Bonds shall be payable, all as 
provided, and in the manner required or indicated, in this Resolution. 

(f) The Board shall pay each Registrar’s reasonable and standard or customary fees and 
charges for making transfers of Series 2024 Bonds, but the Holder of any related Series 2024 Bond 
requesting such transfer shall pay any taxes or other governmental charges required to be paid with 
respect thereto.  The Holder of any Series 2024 Bond requesting any conversion and exchange 
shall pay the applicable Registrar’s reasonable and standard or customary fees and charges for 
converting and exchanging any Series 2024 Bond or portion thereof, together with any taxes or 
governmental charges required to be paid with respect thereto, all as a condition precedent to the 
exercise of such privilege of conversion and exchange; except, however, that in the case of the 
conversion and exchange of an assigned and transferred Series 2024 Bond or Series 2024 Bonds 
or any portion or portions thereof in any Authorized Denomination, and in the case of the 
conversion and exchange of a portion of the unredeemed portion of a Series 2024 Bond that has 
been redeemed in part prior to maturity, as provided in this Resolution, such fees and charges will 
be paid by the Board. 



 -15- 

Section 2.7. Damaged and Missing Bonds.  (a)  In the event any Outstanding Series 2024 Bond 
is damaged, mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed, the applicable Registrar shall cause to be printed, 
executed, authenticated and delivered, a new Series 2024 Bond of the same series, principal 
amount, maturity, and interest rate, as the damaged, mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed Bond, in 
replacement for such Series 2024 Bond in the manner hereinafter provided. 

(b) Application for replacement of a damaged, mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed Series 2024 
Bond shall be made by the Holder thereof to the applicable Registrar.  In every case of loss, theft, 
or destruction of a Series 2024 Bond, the Holder applying for a replacement Series 2024 Bond 
shall furnish to the Board and to the applicable Registrar such security or indemnity as may be 
required by them to save each of them harmless from any loss or damage with respect thereto.  
Also, in every case of loss, theft, or destruction of a Series 2024 Bond, the Holder shall furnish to 
the Board and to the applicable Registrar evidence to their satisfaction of the loss, theft, or 
destruction of such Series 2024 Bond, as the case may be.  In every case of damage or mutilation 
of a Series 2024 Bond, the Holder shall surrender to the applicable Registrar for cancellation the 
Series 2024 Bond so damaged or mutilated. 

(c) Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section, in the event any such Series 2024 
Bond shall have matured, and no default has occurred which is then continuing in the payment of 
the principal of and premium, if any, or interest on the Series 2024 Bond, the Board may authorize 
the payment of the same (without surrender thereof except in the case of a damaged or mutilated 
Bond) instead of issuing a replacement Series 2024 Bond, provided security or indemnity is 
furnished as provided above in this Section. 

(d) Prior to the issuance of any replacement Series 2024 Bond pursuant to the provisions of 
this Section, the applicable Registrar shall charge the Holder of such Series 2024 Bond with all 
legal, printing, and other expenses in connection therewith.  Every replacement Series 2024 Bond 
issued pursuant to the provisions of this Section by virtue of the fact that any Series 2024 Bond is 
lost, stolen, or destroyed shall constitute a contractual obligation of the Board whether or not the 
lost, stolen, or destroyed Series 2024 Bond shall be found at any time, or be enforceable by anyone, 
and shall be entitled to all the benefits of this Resolution equally and proportionately with any and 
all other Series 2024 Bonds duly issued under this Resolution. 

(e) In accordance with Section 1201.062 of Chapter 1201, this Section shall constitute 
authority for the issuance of any such replacement Series 2024 Bond without the necessity of 
further action by the Board or any other body or Person, and the duty of the replacement of such 
Series 2024 Bond is hereby authorized and imposed upon the applicable Registrar, and such 
Registrar shall authenticate and deliver such replacement Series 2024 Bonds in the form and 
manner and with the effect, as provided in Section 2.6(d) of this Resolution for Series 2024 Bonds 
issued in conversion and exchange for other Series 2024 Bonds. 

Section 2.8. Sale and Delivery of Series 2024 Bonds.  The Series 2024 Bonds may be sold 
publicly or privately on a negotiated basis, as determined by the Authorized Representatives to 
assure that the Series 2024 Bonds are sold on advantageous terms.  Pursuant to Chapter 1371, the 
Authorized Representatives are hereby severally authorized and directed to act for and on behalf 
of the Board in connection with other matters relating to the issuance of the Series 2024 Bonds.  
In such capacity, the Authorized Representatives, acting for and on behalf of the Board, shall 



 -16- 

determine the date of issuance and sale of each series of the Series 2024 Bonds, and are also hereby 
severally authorized and directed to approve, execute and deliver the related Purchase Contract or 
Pricing Certificate, and to approve the principal amounts and maturities of such Series 2024 Bonds 
and whether such Series 2024 Bonds shall be issued initially as Fixed Rate Bonds, Weekly Rate 
Bonds or Variable Rate Bonds, the redemption provisions and such other terms applicable to such 
Series 2024 Bonds, the Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate to be approved by the Authorized 
Representative executing the Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate, such approval to be 
conclusively evidenced by such Authorized Representative’s execution thereof; provided that (i) 
the final maturity and aggregate principal amount of such Series 2024 Bonds shall comply with 
Section 2.2 hereof, and (ii) the interest rate on such Series 2024 Bonds shall not exceed the Ceiling 
Rate, subject to the unqualified approving opinion as to the legality of such Series 2024 Bonds of 
the Attorney General and of Bond Counsel.  The Authorized Representatives and all other officers, 
agents and representatives of the Board are hereby authorized to do any and all other things 
necessary or desirable to satisfy the conditions set out in the Purchase Contract or otherwise 
required by the Initial Purchaser and to provide for the issuance and delivery of Series 2024 Bonds.  
One definitive Series 2024 Bond for each series and maturity date, in the principal amount for such 
series and maturity date as set forth in the related Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate, shall 
be delivered to or as directed by the Initial Purchaser thereof.  It is further provided, however, that 
notwithstanding the foregoing provisions, a series of Series 2024 Bonds shall not be delivered 
unless prior to delivery such Series 2024 Bonds have been rated by a Rating Agency in one of the 
four highest rating categories for long-term obligations or in one of the three highest rating 
categories for short-term obligations, as required by Chapter 1371. 

Section 2.9. Preliminary Official Statement and Official Statement.  For any Series 2024 Bonds 
to be sold initially in a public offering, prior to the execution of the Purchase Contract, the 
Chairwoman of the Board, acting for and on behalf of the Board, (i) if requested by the Initial 
Purchaser thereof, shall cause a preliminary official statement (the “Preliminary Official 
Statement”) to be prepared for distribution by the Underwriters to prospective purchasers of such 
Series 2024 Bonds, such document to be in the form as an Authorized Representative may deem 
necessary or appropriate, and each Authorized Representative is hereby authorized for and on 
behalf of the Board to approve and deem final the Preliminary Official Statement as of its date, 
except for such omissions as are permitted by the Rule (as defined in Section 8.1 hereof); within 
seven business days after the execution of the related Purchase Contract, the Chairwoman of the 
Board, acting for and on behalf of the Board, shall cause the final Official Statement, in 
substantially the form of the Preliminary Official Statement, with such changes as the Chairwoman 
of the Board may approve, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by her execution thereof, 
to be provided to the Underwriters in compliance with the Rule, or (ii) if such Initial Purchaser 
does not request a Preliminary Official Statement, the Chairwoman of the Board, acting for and 
on behalf of the Board, shall cause an official statement to be prepared for distribution by the 
Underwriters to prospective purchasers of such Series 2024 Bonds, such document to be in the 
form as an Authorized Representative may deem necessary or appropriate. 

Section 2.10. Book-Entry System.  As provided in Section 2.8 of this Resolution, each series of 
Series 2024 Bonds initially shall be delivered against payment to the Initial Purchaser thereof.  The 
Series 2024 Bonds so delivered to such Initial Purchaser shall be registered in accordance with the 
instructions of such Initial Purchaser.  Each Initial Purchaser shall be required to promptly 
surrender any Initial Series 2024 Bond received by such Initial Purchaser for exchange.  



 -17- 

Series 2024 Bonds issued in exchange shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee 
of DTC, as Holder, and held in the custody or on behalf of DTC.  Unless otherwise requested by 
DTC, a single certificate will be issued and delivered to DTC or its designee for each series and 
maturity and of the Series 2024 Bonds.  Beneficial owners of Series 2024 Bonds will not receive 
physical delivery of Series 2024 Bond certificates except as provided hereinafter.  For so long as 
DTC shall continue to serve as securities depository for the Series 2024 Bonds as provided herein, 
all transfers of beneficial ownership interests therein will be made by book entry only, and no 
investor or other party purchasing, selling or otherwise transferring beneficial ownership of 
Series 2024 Bonds is to receive, hold or deliver any Series 2024 Bond certificate. 

With respect to Series 2024 Bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of 
DTC, none of the Board or the applicable Paying Agent or Registrar shall have any responsibility 
or obligation to any DTC Participant or to any Person on whose behalf a DTC Participant holds an 
interest in the Series 2024 Bonds.  Without limiting the immediately preceding sentence, none of 
the Board or any Paying Agent or Registrar shall have any responsibility or obligation with respect 
to (i) the accuracy of the records of DTC, Cede & Co. or any DTC Participant with respect to any 
ownership interest in the Series 2024 Bonds, (ii) the delivery to any DTC Participant or any other 
Person, other than a Holder, as shown on the Bond Register, of any notice with respect to the 
Series 2024 Bonds, including any notice of redemption, and (iii) the payment to any DTC 
Participant or any other Person, other than a Holder, of any amount with respect to principal of 
and premium, if any, or interest on the Series 2024 Bonds. 

Replacement Series 2024 Bonds may be issued directly to beneficial owners of Series 2024 
Bonds other than DTC, or its nominee, but only in the event that (i) DTC determines not to continue 
to act as securities depository for the Series 2024 Bonds (which determination shall become 
effective no less than 90 days after written notice to such effect to the Board and the applicable 
Paying Agent and Registrar), or (ii) the Board has advised DTC of its determination (which 
determination is conclusive as to DTC and the beneficial owners of the Series 2024 Bonds) that 
DTC is incapable of discharging its duties as securities depository for the Series 2024 Bonds, or 
(iii) the Board has determined (which determination is conclusive as to DTC and the beneficial 
owners of the Series 2024 Bonds) that the interests of the beneficial owners of the Series 2024 
Bonds might be adversely affected if such book entry only system of transfer is continued.  Upon 
occurrence of any event described in (i) or (ii) above, the Board shall use its best efforts to attempt 
to locate another qualified securities depository.  If the Board fails to locate another qualified 
securities depository to replace DTC, the Board shall cause to be executed, authenticated and 
delivered replacement Series 2024 Bonds, in certificated form, to the DTC Participants having an 
interest in the Series 2024 Bonds as shown on the records of DTC provided by DTC to the Board.  
In the event that the Board makes the determination noted in (iii) above and has made provisions 
to notify the beneficial owners of the Series 2024 Bonds of such determination by mailing an 
appropriate notice to DTC, it shall cause to be issued replacement Series 2024 Bonds in certificated 
form to the DTC Participants having an interest in the Series 2024 Bonds as shown on the records 
of DTC provided by DTC to the Board.  The Board undertakes no obligation to make any 
investigation to determine the occurrence of any events that would permit the Board to make any 
determination described in (ii) or (iii) above. 

Whenever, during the term of the Series 2024 Bonds, the beneficial ownership thereof is 
determined by a book entry at DTC (or any successor securities depository), the requirements in 



 -18- 

this Resolution of holding, registering, delivering, exchanging or transferring Series 2024 Bonds 
shall be deemed modified to require the appropriate Person to meet the requirements of DTC (or 
such successor securities depository) as to holding, registering, delivering, exchanging or 
transferring the book entry to produce the same effect. 

Whenever, during the term of the Weekly Rate Bonds, the beneficial ownership thereof is 
determined by a book entry at DTC (or any successor securities depository), tenders of Weekly 
Rate Bonds shall be made pursuant to DTC’s (or any successor securities depository’s) deliver 
order procedures or repayment option procedures, as applicable, as are in effect from time to time.  
Upon remarketing of Weekly Rate Bonds, payment of the Purchase Price thereof shall be made to 
DTC (or any successor securities depository), and no surrender of Weekly Rate Bonds is required.  
Such sales shall be made through the DTC Participants (which may include the Remarketing 
Agent) to the new beneficial owners of such Weekly Rate Bonds, and the DTC Participants shall 
transmit payment to beneficial owners whose Weekly Rate Bonds were purchased pursuant to a 
remarketing.  The Board and each Registrar, Paying Agent, Tender Agent, Liquidity Provider and 
Remarketing Agent are not responsible for transfer of payment to the DTC Participants or 
beneficial owners. 

If at any time DTC ceases to hold the Series 2024 Bonds, all references herein to DTC shall 
be of no further force or effect. 

Anything to the contrary contained herein notwithstanding, this Section 2.10 shall not 
apply to a series of the Series 2024 Bonds if so provided in a Pricing Certificate. 

ARTICLE III 
 

REDEMPTION OF SERIES 2024 BONDS 

Section 3.1. Redemption.  (a)  Series 2024 Bonds (including Purchased Bonds) shall be subject 
to scheduled mandatory sinking fund redemption and shall be redeemed on the dates and in the 
respective principal amounts set forth in the related Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate, at a 
redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof, without premium, plus accrued interest to 
the date fixed for redemption.  The principal amount of Series 2024 Bonds to be redeemed on each 
such redemption date pursuant to mandatory sinking fund redemption shall be reduced, at the 
option of the Board, by the principal amount of any Series 2024 Bonds of the same series and 
having the same stated maturity which (A) at least 45 days prior to such mandatory sinking fund 
redemption date, (1) shall have been acquired by the Board and delivered to the applicable 
Registrar for cancellation, or (2) shall have been acquired and canceled by such Registrar at the 
direction of the Board, or (3) shall have been redeemed pursuant to any redemption provision set 
forth below and (B) shall have not been previously credited against a scheduled mandatory sinking 
fund redemption. 

(b) The Weekly Rate Bonds (including Purchased Bonds) shall be subject to redemption prior 
to maturity on the first Business Day of any month, at the option and direction of the Board, in 
whole or in part, at a redemption price of par plus accrued interest.  In the case of any such 
redemption, the Board shall select the maturity or maturities of the Weekly Rate Bonds to be 
redeemed and the amounts thereof in Authorized Denominations. 



 -19- 

(c) Any series of Series 2024 Bonds issued as other than Weekly Rate Bonds shall be subject 
to redemption prior to maturity, at the option and direction of the Board, during the periods and at 
the redemption prices set forth in the related Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate, plus accrued 
interest to the date fixed for redemption 

(d) Converted Fixed Rate Bonds shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option 
and direction of the Board, during the periods specified by an Authorized Representative, in whole 
at any time or in part from time to time, at the redemption prices (expressed as a percentage of 
principal amount) determined by such Authorized Representative, plus accrued interest, if any, to 
the redemption date.  In the case of any such redemption, the Board shall select the maturity or 
maturities of the Fixed Rate Bonds to be redeemed and the amounts thereof in Authorized 
Denominations. 

(e) In the case of any redemption of less than all of the Series 2024 Bonds of a particular series 
and maturity, the particular Series 2024 Bonds within each such series and maturity to be redeemed 
shall be selected by the applicable Registrar by lot in such manner as such Registrar shall deem 
fair and appropriate; provided that during any period in which ownership of such Series 2024 
Bonds is determined only by a book entry at a securities depository, if less than the entire principal 
amount Outstanding of all Series 2024 Bonds of the same series and maturity is to be redeemed, 
the interests to be redeemed of the beneficial owners of such Series 2024 Bonds shall be selected 
in accordance with the arrangements between the Board and the securities depository. 

(f) Anything in this Section 3.1 to the contrary notwithstanding, in the event of any (i) optional 
redemption of Weekly Rate Bonds, Purchased Bonds of the same series shall be selected first for 
such redemption to the extent there are any such Purchased Bonds, provided that the Board may 
select the maturity or maturities of Purchased Bonds to be so redeemed and the amounts thereof 
in Authorized Denominations, and (ii) mandatory sinking fund redemption of Weekly Rate Bonds, 
Purchased Bonds of the same series and maturity being redeemed shall be selected first for such 
redemption to the extent there are any such Purchased Bonds. 

Section 3.2. Notice of Redemption.  At least 30 days prior to the date fixed for any redemption 
of Series 2024 Bonds, a written notice of such redemption shall be sent by first class mail, postage 
prepaid by the Registrar to the Holders of the applicable series of Series 2024 Bonds to be 
redeemed on such date.  All notices of redemption shall state:  (1) the date of redemption and 
general mailing of such notices; (2) the redemption price; (3) the identification (including complete 
official name and series designation and issue date), the CUSIP number, if any, certificate number 
(and in the case of partial redemption, the respective principal amounts), interest rates and maturity 
dates of the Series 2024 Bonds to be redeemed; (4) that on the redemption date the redemption 
price will become due and payable on each such Series 2024 Bond, and that interest thereon shall 
cease to accrue from and after such date; and (5) the name and address of the applicable Paying 
Agent, including the name and telephone number of a contact person and the place where such 
Series 2024 Bonds are to be surrendered for payment of the redemption price.  By the date fixed 
for any such redemption, due provision shall be made by the Board with the applicable Paying 
Agent for the payment of the required redemption price for such Series 2024 Bonds or the portions 
thereof which are to be so redeemed.  If such written notice of redemption is given, and if due 
provision for such payment is made, all as provided above, such Series 2024 Bonds, or the portions 
thereof which are to be so redeemed, thereby automatically shall be redeemed prior to their 



 -20- 

scheduled maturities, and shall not bear interest after the date fixed for their redemption, and shall 
not be regarded as being Outstanding except for the right of the Holders thereof to receive the 
redemption price therefor from the applicable Paying Agent out of the funds provided for such 
payment.  The applicable Registrar shall record in the related Bond Register all such redemptions 
of principal of the Series 2024 Bonds or any portion thereof.  If only a portion of any Series 2024 
Bond shall be redeemed, a substitute Series 2024 Bond or Series 2024 Bonds, having the same 
series and maturity date, bearing interest at the same rate, in any Authorized Denomination which 
may be requested by the Holder thereof, and in an aggregate principal amount equal to the 
unredeemed portion thereof, will be issued to the Holder thereof upon the surrender thereof for 
cancellation, at the expense of the Board, all as provided in this Resolution.  For all purposes of 
this Resolution, unless the context otherwise requires, all provisions relating to the redemption of 
Series 2024 Bonds shall relate, in the case of any Series 2024 Bond redeemed or to be redeemed 
only in part, to the portion of the principal of such Series 2024 Bond that has been or is to be 
redeemed. 

In addition to the notice of redemption required above, the applicable Registrar shall send 
notice of redemption by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, or 
by overnight delivery service contemporaneously with such mailing:  (1) to any Holder of 
$1,000,000 or more in principal amount of the applicable series of Series 2024 Bonds; (2) to two 
or more information services of national recognition that disseminate redemption information with 
respect to municipal bonds; and (3) to any securities depository that is a Holder of such Series 2024 
Bonds.  In addition, in the event of a redemption caused by an advance refunding of Series 2024 
Bonds, the applicable Registrar shall send a second notice of redemption to all Holders of such 
Series 2024 Bonds at least thirty (30) days but not more than ninety (90) days prior to the actual 
redemption date.  Any notice required to be sent to any registered securities depositories or national 
information services shall be sent so that it is received at least two (2) days prior to the general 
mailing date of such notice.  A Registrar shall also send a notice of redemption to the Holder of 
any applicable Series 2024 Bond called for redemption who has not sent such Series 2024 Bond 
in for redemption sixty (60) days after the redemption date. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the failure to give any notice of redemption set forth in this 
Section or any defect in such notice or the mailing thereof shall not affect the validity of any 
proceedings for redemption of Series 2024 Bonds. 

ARTICLE IV 
 

FUNDS AND INVESTMENTS 

Section 4.1. Establishment of Fund II.  The Comptroller (as successor to the Treasurer of the 
State) has established in the State Treasury the “Veterans’ Housing Assistance Fund II,” referred 
to herein as “Fund II.”  The Board hereby confirms and ratifies the establishment of Fund II and 
agrees to maintain Fund II until all Bonds have been paid in full. 

Section 4.2. Deposits to Fund II.  Fund II is and shall be comprised of, and where feasible it is 
the duty of the Board, and the officers of the Board are hereby authorized and directed, to deposit 
into Fund II, the following: 



 -21- 

(i) any interest of the Board in Home Loans made from money in Fund II pursuant to the 
Program including proceeds of any insurance thereon or on the homes; 

(ii) the proceeds derived from the sale or other disposition of the Board’s interest in Home 
Loans; 

(iii) the money attributable to any Bonds (except Expenses Attributable to Bonds) issued and 
sold by the Board to provide money for Fund II which shall include, but shall not be limited to, 
the proceeds from the issuance and sale of such Bonds; 

(iv) income, rents, and any other pecuniary benefit received by the Board as a result of making 
Home Loans; 

(v) sums received by way of indemnity or forfeiture for the failure of any bidder for the 
purchase of any Bonds to comply with the person’s bid and accept and pay for such Bonds; 

(vi) payments received by the Board under bond enhancement agreements with respect to the 
Bonds; 

(vii) interest received from investments of any such money; and 

(viii) any equitable interest of the Board in properties encumbered by Home Loans and 
attributable to Fund II. 

The Board may deposit other moneys to the credit of Fund II, including moneys transferred 
by the Board from the Veterans’ Land Fund and Fund I, which are eligible under the Constitution 
and applicable laws of the State for such deposit or transfer. 

Section 4.3. Home Loans.  (a)  Money in Fund II, including the proceeds from the sale of Bonds, 
may be used by the Board in the making of Home Loans as provided in the Act, the payment of 
Expenses Attributable to Home Loans and Expenses Attributable to Bonds, and, as herein 
provided, the payment of the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds, including 
payments by the Board under bond enhancement agreements with respect to principal of or interest 
on the Bonds; provided, that the language of this paragraph shall not be construed to prevent the 
investment of the moneys in Fund II when permitted by the Constitutional Provision or the Act. 

(b) The Board will fix interest rates to be charged Veterans receiving Home Loans from the 
Board which will assure that the proceeds from payments and repayments of Home Loans, together 
with other legally available moneys, including, without limitation, anticipated transfers from the 
Veterans’ Land Fund or Fund I, will exceed the amount of payments the Board is required to make 
from Fund II for the payment of interest on and principal of the Bonds as such come due and 
mature, including payments by the Board under bond enhancement agreements with respect to 
principal of or interest on the Bonds, and to the extent permitted by the Constitution and applicable 
laws of the State, the Board covenants to transfer such amounts from the Veterans’ Land Fund and 
Fund I as are necessary to cause available amounts in Fund II to be sufficient for such payment. 

Section 4.4. Source of Payment.  (a)  The principal of and interest on the Series 2024 Bonds, 
including payments by the Board under bond enhancement agreements with respect to principal 



 -22- 

of or interest on the Series 2024 Bonds, shall be and are hereby made general obligations of the 
State pursuant to the Constitutional Provision, and for the faithful performance in proper time and 
manner of each official or other act required and necessary to provide for the prompt payment of 
principal of and interest on each of the Series 2024 Bonds, including payments by the Board under 
bond enhancement agreements with respect to principal of or interest on the Series 2024 Bonds, 
when due the resources of the Board to the extent herein provided and the full faith and credit of 
the State are hereby pledged. 

(b) All payments of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, including payments by the 
Board under bond enhancement agreements with respect to principal of or interest on the Bonds, 
shall be made from Fund II; provided, that if the Legislature of the State shall later provide 
additional sources from which the principal of or the interest on the Bonds, including payments by 
the Board under bond enhancement agreements with respect to principal of or interest on the 
Bonds, may be paid, the Board, its officers, the Comptroller and all other officers and employees 
of the State are hereby authorized and requested, and, to the extent that they are under the 
jurisdiction of this Board, directed to take all steps necessary to accomplish the use of such 
additional funds for such purpose, without releasing the continuing right of the Holders to the 
present sources prescribed by the Constitutional Provision and the Act for the payment of such 
principal and interest. 

(c) The Board recognizes the absolute and ultimate obligation of the State to provide during 
each Fiscal Year all moneys necessary to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds, including 
money to make payments by the Board under bond enhancement agreements with respect to 
principal of or interest on the Bonds, and recognizes that the Constitutional Provision provides that 
to the extent there is not money in Fund II available for payment of principal of and interest on the 
Bonds, including money to make payments by the Board under bond enhancement agreements 
with respect to principal of or interest on the Bonds, “there is appropriated out of the first money 
coming into the treasury in each fiscal year, not otherwise appropriated by this constitution, an 
amount that is sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the general obligation bonds that 
mature or come due during that fiscal year or to make bond enhancement payments with respect 
to those bonds.” 

Section 4.5. Other Uses of Fund II Moneys.  (a)  The Constitutional Provision provides that 
receipts of all kinds of Fund II determined by the Board not to be required for the payment of 
principal of and interest on Bonds or other general obligation bonds hereafter authorized by the 
Constitution of the State to provide money for Fund II, including payments by the Board under 
bond enhancement agreements with respect to principal of or interest on Bonds and such other 
general obligation bonds, may be used by the Board, to the extent not inconsistent with the 
proceedings authorizing such bonds, to (1) make temporary transfers to either the Veterans’ Land 
Fund or Fund I to avoid a temporary cash deficiency in that fund or make a transfer to either of 
those funds for the purposes of that fund; (2) pay the principal of and interest on general obligation 
bonds issued to provide money for either the Veterans’ Land Fund or Fund I or make bond 
enhancement payments with respect to such bonds; or (3) pay the principal of and interest on 
revenue bonds of the Board or make bond enhancement payments with respect to such bonds.  In 
accordance with the Constitutional Provision, the Board reserves the right to use the moneys in 
Fund II for such purposes, or for any other purpose from time to time authorized by the 
Constitutional Provision. 



 -23- 

(b) The Constitutional Provision also provides that if the Board determines that assets from 
Fund II are not required for the purposes of Fund II, the Board may (i) transfer the assets to either 
the Veterans’ Land Fund or Fund I, (ii) use the assets to secure revenue bonds issued by the Board 
under the Constitutional Provision, (iii) use the assets to plan and design, operate, maintain, enlarge 
or improve veterans cemeteries, or (iv) use the assets to plan and design, construct, acquire, own, 
operate, maintain, enlarge, improve, furnish, or equip veterans homes.  In accordance with the 
Constitutional Provision, the Board reserves the right to use the assets from Fund II for such 
purposes, or for any other purpose from time to time authorized by the Constitutional Provision. 

Section 4.6. Program Administration.  The Program may be administered on behalf of the Board 
by one or more administrators, each of which shall be a nationally recognized institution with 
previous experience in the administration of mortgage lending programs, and whose duties shall 
be specified in an agreement between the Board and the administrator named therein.  Currently, 
the Program administrators are Gateway Mortgage Group, LLC as “Loan Origination 
Administrator” and Nationstar Mortgage LLC as “Master Servicer.”  Home Loans may (i) be 
originated by the Board, or (ii) be originated and serviced through qualified lending institutions in 
the State, which shall be subject to the approval of the Board. 

Section 4.7. Investments.  The moneys of Fund II which are not immediately committed to the 
payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds, the making of Home Loans as herein provided, 
or the payment of expenses as herein provided may be invested in Eligible Investments until such 
funds are needed for such purposes. 

ARTICLE V 
 

COVENANTS OF THE BOARD 

Section 5.1. Payment Procedures.  (a)  The Board hereby covenants that it shall establish 
procedures with the Comptroller whereby sufficient moneys shall be withdrawn from Fund II and 
forwarded to each Paying Agent for the payment of interest on and principal of the Series 2024 
Bonds coming due on each interest or principal payment date.  In addition, the Board covenants 
that as of each principal payment date and Interest Payment Date for a series of Series 2024 Bonds 
it will make available to the applicable Paying Agent the amounts required to provide for the 
payment, in immediately available funds, of all principal of and interest on the Bonds, when due.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, during any period in which ownership of a series of Series 2024 
Bonds is determined only by a book entry at a securities depository for such Series 2024 Bonds, 
payments made to the securities depository, or its nominee, shall be made in accordance with 
arrangements between the Board and the securities depository. 

If the date for the payment of the principal of or interest on the Series 2024 Bonds is a day 
other than a Business Day, then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding Business 
Day, and payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the original date 
payment was due. 

Section 5.2. Paying Agent and Registrar.  (a)  The Board covenants with the Holders that at all 
times while the Series 2024 Bonds are Outstanding, the Board will provide a competent and legally 
qualified Paying Agent and Registrar for each series of Series 2024 Bonds under this Resolution, 



 -24- 

and that the Paying Agent and Registrar for such series shall be one entity, except during any 
period when such Series 2024 Bonds are registered only by means of a book entry at a securities 
depository.  The Board reserves the right to, and may, at its option, change any Paying Agent or 
Registrar upon not less than 30 days written notice to such Paying Agent or Registrar.  In the event 
that an entity at any time acting as Paying Agent or Registrar (or the successor thereto by merger, 
acquisition, or other method) should resign or otherwise cease to act as such, the Board covenants 
that it will appoint promptly a competent and legally qualified national or state banking institution 
which shall be an entity organized and doing business under the laws of the United States of 
America or of any state, authorized under such laws to exercise trust powers, subject to supervision 
or examination by federal or state authority, and, if the previous Paying Agent or Registrar was a 
banking institution, whose qualifications substantially are similar to the previous Paying Agent or 
Registrar, as appropriate, to act as Paying Agent or Registrar under this Resolution.  Upon any 
change in a Registrar, the previous Registrar promptly shall transfer and deliver the related Bond 
Register (or a copy thereof), along with all other pertinent books and records relating to the 
applicable Series 2024 Bonds, to the new Registrar designated and appointed by the Board.  Upon 
any change in a Paying Agent, the previous Paying Agent promptly shall transfer and deliver the 
records regarding payments of principal of and interest on the applicable Series 2024 Bonds (or a 
copy thereof) it has kept and maintained, along with all other pertinent books and records relating 
to payments made regarding such Series 2024 Bonds, to the new Paying Agent designated and 
appointed by the Board.  Upon any change in Paying Agent or Registrar, the Board promptly will 
cause a written notice thereof to be sent by the new Registrar to each applicable Holder by first 
class mail, postage prepaid, which notice also shall give the address of the new Paying Agent or 
Registrar, as appropriate.  By accepting the position and performing as such, each Paying Agent 
and Registrar shall be deemed to have agreed to the provisions of this Resolution, and a certified 
copy of this Resolution shall be delivered to each Paying Agent and Registrar. 

In addition, the Board hereby covenants with the Holders that it will (i) pay the reasonable 
and standard or customary fees and charges of each Paying Agent for its services with respect to 
the payment of the principal of and interest on the Series 2024 Bonds, when due, and (ii) pay the 
fees and charges of each Registrar for services with respect to the transfer of registration of 
Series 2024 Bonds solely to the extent provided in Section 2.6(f), and with respect to the 
conversion and exchange of Series 2024 Bonds solely to the extent provided in Section 2.6(f). 

Section 5.3. Tax Covenants.  The Board does not intend to issue the Series 2024 Bonds in a 
manner such that the Series 2024 Bonds would constitute obligations described in Section 103(a) 
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (as amended, the “Code”), and all applicable temporary, 
proposed and final regulations and procedures promulgated thereunder or promulgated under the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1954, to the extent applicable to the Code.  Accordingly, the Board 
covenants to take such actions, or refrain from such actions as to assure that the Series 2024 Bonds 
are not obligations described in Section 103(a) of the Code. 

ARTICLE VI 
 

SUPPLEMENTS AND AMENDMENTS 

Section 6.1. Amendment of Resolution With Consent of Holders. (a)  The Holders of a series of 
Series 2024 Bonds aggregating a majority in principal amount of the aggregate principal amount 



 -25- 

of such Series 2024 Bonds at the time Outstanding (but not including in any case Series 2024 
Bonds which may then be held or owned by or for the account of the Board) shall have the right 
from time to time to approve an amendment of this Resolution affecting such Series 2024 Bonds 
which may be deemed necessary or desirable by the Board; provided, however, that nothing herein 
contained shall permit or be construed to permit the amendment of the terms and conditions 
contained in this Resolution or in such Series 2024 Bonds so as to: 

(i) make any change in the maturity of any of the Series 2024 Bonds of such series; 

(ii) reduce the rate of interest borne by any of the Series 2024 Bonds of such series; 

(iii) reduce the amount of the principal payable on any of the Series 2024 Bonds of such series; 

(iv) modify the terms of payment of principal of or interest on such Series 2024 Bonds, or any 
of them, or impose any conditions with respect to such payment; 

(v) change the minimum percentage of the principal amount of such Series 2024 Bonds 
necessary for consent to such amendment; or 

(vi) affect the rights of the Holders of less than all of the Series 2024 Bonds of such series then 
Outstanding, 

unless such amendment or amendments be approved by the Holders of all of such Series 2024 
Bonds at the time Outstanding. 

(b) If at any time the Board shall desire to amend this Resolution under this Section, the Board 
shall cause notice of the proposed amendment to be published in a financial newspaper or journal 
published in the City of New York, New York, or the City of Austin, Texas, once during each 
calendar week for at least four successive calendar weeks.  Such notice shall briefly set forth the 
nature of the proposed amendment and shall state that a copy thereof is on file at the principal 
office of the Board and the designated office of the Registrar for inspection by all holders of such 
Series 2024 Bonds.  Such publication is not required, however, if notice in writing is given to each 
Holder of the applicable series of Series 2024 Bonds. 

(c) Whenever at any time, within one year from the date of this publication of said notice or 
other service of written notice, the Board shall receive an instrument or instruments executed by 
the Holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of Series 2024 Bonds of the applicable 
series then Outstanding, which instrument or instruments shall refer to the proposed amendment 
described in said notice and which specifically consent to and approve such amendment in 
substantially the form of the copy thereof on file with the Registrar, the Board may adopt the 
amendatory resolution in substantially the same form. 

(d) Any consent given by the Holder of a Series 2024 Bond pursuant to the provisions of this 
Resolution shall be irrevocable for a period of six months from the date of the first publication or 
mailing of the notice provided for in this Resolution, and shall be conclusive and binding upon all 
future Holders of the same Series 2024 Bond during such period.  Such consent may be revoked 
at any time after six months from the date of the first publication or mailing of such notice by the 
holder who gave such consent, or by a successor in title, by filing notice of such revocation with 



 -26- 

the Registrar and the Board, but such revocation shall not be effective if the Holders of a majority 
in aggregate principal amount of the Series 2024 Bonds of the applicable series Outstanding as in 
this Section defined have, prior to the attempted revocation, consented to and approved the 
amendment. 

(e) For the purposes of this Section, proof of ownership of any Series 2024 Bond shall be 
established by the registration of any such Series 2024 Bond on the Bond Register kept and 
maintained by the applicable Registrar. 

Section 6.2. Amendment of Resolution Without Consent of Holders.  The foregoing provisions 
of this Article notwithstanding, the Board may, without the consent of the Holders, pursuant to 
amendatory resolution, from time to time: 

(i) impose conditions or restrictions additional to, but not in diminution of, those contained in 
this Resolution, respecting the issuance of Bonds; 

(ii) undertake covenants additional to but not inconsistent with those contained in this 
Resolution;  

(iii) correct any ambiguity or correct or supplement any inconsistent or defective provision 
contained in this Resolution or any amendatory resolution; 

(iv) adopt amendments to this Resolution that become effective as to a series of Series 2024 
Bonds following a mandatory tender of all of such Series 2024 Bonds then Outstanding; or 

(v) adopt amendments to this Resolution that, in the opinion of Bond Counsel, do not adversely 
affect the Holders. 

Section 6.3. Effect of Amendatory Resolutions.  Upon the adoption of any amendatory 
resolution pursuant to the provisions of this Section, this Resolution shall be deemed to be 
amended in accordance with such amendatory resolution, and the respective rights, duties and 
obligations of the Board under this Resolution and all the holders of Outstanding Series 2024 
Bonds of the applicable series shall thereafter be determined, exercised and enforced hereunder, 
subject in all respects to such amendments. 

Section 6.4. Bonds May Bear Notation of Changes.  Series 2024 Bonds of the applicable series 
authenticated and delivered after the execution of any amendatory resolution pursuant to this 
Article may bear a notation in form approved by the applicable Registrar as to any matter provided 
for in such amendatory resolution.  If the Board or the applicable Registrar shall so determine, new 
Series 2024 Bonds of the applicable series so modified as to conform, in the opinion of the Board 
and such Registrar, to any such amendatory resolution may be prepared and executed by the Board 
and authenticated and delivered by such Registrar in exchange for Series 2024 Bonds of the 
applicable series then Outstanding. 



 -27- 

ARTICLE VII 
 

FIXED RATE BONDS DEEMED PAID 

Section 7.1. Fixed Rate Bonds Deemed Paid.  Any Fixed Rate Bond shall be deemed to be paid 
and no longer Outstanding when payment of the principal of and premium, if any, on such Bond, 
plus interest thereon to the due date thereof (whether such due date be by reason of maturity, 
redemption, or otherwise), either (i) shall have been made or caused to be made in accordance with 
the terms thereof, or (ii) shall have been provided by irrevocably depositing with a paying agent, 
in trust and irrevocably set aside exclusively for such payment, (1) money sufficient to make such 
payment or (2) Defeasance Obligations, certified by an independent public accounting firm of 
national reputation to mature as to principal and interest in such amounts and at such times as will 
insure the availability, without reinvestment, of sufficient money to make such payment, and all 
necessary and proper fees, compensation and expenses of such paying agent for such Fixed Rate 
Bonds, with respect to which such deposit is made, shall have been paid or the payment thereof 
provided for.  At such time as a Fixed Rate Bond shall be deemed to be paid hereunder, as 
aforesaid, it shall no longer be secured by or entitled to the benefits of this Resolution, except for 
the purposes of any such payment from such money or Defeasance Obligations. 

Section 7.2. Application of Trust Money.  (a)  The deposit under clause (ii) of Section 7.1 shall 
be deemed a payment of a Fixed Rate Bond as aforesaid when proper notice of redemption of such 
Bond shall have been given, in accordance with this Resolution.  Any money so deposited with a 
paying agent as provided in this Section may at the discretion of the Board also be invested in 
Defeasance Obligations, maturing in the amounts and at the times as hereinbefore set forth, and 
all income from all Defeasance Obligations in possession of a paying agent pursuant to this 
Section which is not required for the payment of such Bond and premium, if any, and interest 
thereon, with respect to which such money has been so deposited, shall be turned over to the Board. 

(b) Notwithstanding any provision of any other Section of this Resolution which may be 
contrary to the provisions of this Section, all money or Defeasance Obligations set aside and held 
in trust pursuant to the provisions of this Section for the payment of principal of the particular 
Fixed Rate Bonds and premium, if any, and interest thereon, shall be applied to and used solely 
for the payment of the particular Fixed Rate Bonds and premium, if any, and interest thereon, with 
respect to which such money or Defeasance Obligations have been so set aside in trust. 

(c) Notwithstanding anything elsewhere in this Resolution contained, if money or Defeasance 
Obligations have been deposited or set aside with a paying agent pursuant to this Section for the 
payment of Fixed Rate Bonds and such Fixed Rate Bonds shall not have in fact been actually paid 
in full, no amendment to the provisions of this Section shall be made without the consent of the 
Holder of each Fixed Rate Bond affected thereby. 

ARTICLE VIII 
 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING 

Section 8.1. Definitions.  As used in this Article, the following terms have the meanings ascribed 
to such terms below: 



 -28- 

“EMMA” means the Electronic Municipal Market Access website of the 
MSRB, with the web address as of the date hereof of www.emma.msrb.org. 

“MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 

“Other Obligated Person” means a Person that is the mortgagor with respect 
to at least 20% in aggregate principal amount of the Home Loans in Fund II. 

“Rule” means SEC Rule 15c2-12, as amended from time to time. 

“SEC” means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. 

Section 8.2. Annual Reports.  The Board shall provide annually to the MSRB, within six months 
after the end of each fiscal year ending in or after 2024, financial information and operating data 
with respect to the Board of the general type included in each final Official Statement authorized 
by Section 2.9 of this Resolution, being the information described in Exhibit D hereto.  Any 
financial statements so to be provided shall be (1) prepared in accordance with the accounting 
principles described in Exhibit D hereto, (2) audited, if the Board commissions an audit of such 
statements and the audit is completed within the period during which they must be provided, and 
(3) submitted through EMMA, in an electronic format with accompanying identifying 
information, as prescribed by the MSRB.  If the audit of such financial statements is not complete 
within such period, then the Board shall provide unaudited financial statements by the required 
time and will provide audited financial statements for the applicable fiscal year to the MSRB, when 
and if the audit report on such financial statements becomes available. 

If the Board changes its fiscal year, it will notify the MSRB of the change (and of the date 
of the new fiscal year end) prior to the next date by which the Board otherwise would be required 
to provide financial information and operating data pursuant to this Section. 

If the Board changes the accounting principles under which its financial statements to be 
provided are prepared, it will provide notice of such change to the MSRB, including identification 
of the new accounting principles and such additional information as may be required under the 
Rule. 

The financial information and operating data to be provided pursuant to this Section may 
be set forth in full in one or more documents or may be included by specific reference to any 
document available to the public on EMMA or filed with the SEC. 

The Board represents that no Veteran eligible to participate in the Program is an “obligated 
person” (as defined in the Rule) for whom financial information or operating data would be 
presented in the final Official Statement authorized by Section 2.9 of this Resolution. 

Section 8.3. Event Notices.  The Board shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner but in any 
event within ten Business Days, of any of the following events with respect to a series of 
Series 2024 Bonds subject to the Rule: 

(A) Principal and interest payment delinquencies; 



 -29- 

(B) Non-payment related defaults, if material; 

(C) Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; 

(D) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; 

(E) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; 

(F) Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final 
determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material 
notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of such Series 2024 Bonds, or other material 
events affecting the tax status of such Series 2024 Bonds; 

(G) Modifications to rights of holders of such Series 2024 Bonds, if material; 

(H) Series 2024 Bond calls of the applicable series, if material, and tender offers; 

(I) Defeasances; 

(J) Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of such Series 2024 Bonds, if 
material; 

(K) Rating changes; 

(L) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Board; 

(M) Consummation of a merger, consolidation or acquisition involving the Board or the sale of 
all or substantially all of the assets of the Board, other than in the ordinary course of business, the 
entry of a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of a definitive 
agreement relating to any such actions, or than pursuant to its terms, if material; and 

(N) Appointment of a successor Paying Agent or Registrar or change in the name of the 
applicable Paying Agent or Registrar, if material. 

As used in clause (L) above, the phrase “bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar 
event” means the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent or similar officer for the Board in a 
proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any other proceeding under state or federal law 
in which a court of governmental authority has assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of the 
assets or business of the Board, or if jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the Board and 
official or officers of the Board in possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a court 
or governmental authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization, 
arrangement or liquidation by a court or governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction 
over substantially all of the assets or business of the Board. 

The Board shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner, of any failure by the Board to 
provide financial information or operating data in accordance with Section 8.2 of this Resolution 
by the time required by such Section. 



 -30- 

Section 8.4. Limitations, Disclaimers and Amendments.  The Board shall be obligated to 
observe and perform the covenants specified in this Article for so long as, but only for so long as, 
the Board remains an “obligated person” with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds within the 
meaning of the Rule, except that the Board in any event will give the notice required by Section 8.3 
of any Series 2024 Bond calls and defeasance of the applicable series that cause the Board to be 
no longer such an “obligated person.” 

The provisions of this Article are for the sole benefit of the Holders and beneficial owners 
of the Series 2024 Bonds, and nothing in this Article, express or implied, shall give any benefit or 
any legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim hereunder to any other person.  The Board undertakes 
to provide only the financial information, operating data, financial statements, and notices which 
it has expressly agreed to provide pursuant to this Article and does not hereby undertake to provide 
any other information that may be relevant or material to a complete presentation of the Board’s 
financial results, condition, or prospects or hereby undertake to update any information provided 
in accordance with this Article or otherwise, except as expressly provided herein.  The Board does 
not make any representation or warranty concerning such information or its usefulness to a 
decision to invest in or sell Series 2024 Bonds at any future date. 

UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE BOARD BE LIABLE TO THE HOLDER 
OR BENEFICIAL OWNER OF ANY SERIES 2024 BOND OR ANY OTHER PERSON, IN 
CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR DAMAGES RESULTING IN WHOLE OR IN PART FROM 
ANY BREACH BY THE BOARD, WHETHER FROM NEGLIGENCE OR WITHOUT FAULT 
ON ITS PART, OF ANY COVENANT SPECIFIED IN THIS ARTICLE, BUT EVERY RIGHT 
AND REMEDY OF ANY SUCH PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR OR ON 
ACCOUNT OF ANY SUCH BREACH SHALL BE LIMITED TO AN ACTION FOR 
MANDAMUS OR SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE. 

Nothing in this Article is intended or shall act to disclaim, waive, or otherwise limit the 
duties of the Board under federal and state securities laws. 

The provisions of this Article may be amended by the Board from time to time to adapt to 
changed circumstances that arise from a change in legal requirements, a change in law, or a change 
in the identity, nature, status, or type of operations of the Board, but only if (1) the provisions of 
this Article, as so amended, would have permitted an underwriter to purchase or sell Series 2024 
Bonds in the primary offering of a series of Series 2024 Bonds in compliance with the Rule, taking 
into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule to the date of such amendment, as well 
as such changed circumstances, and (2) either (a) the Holders of a majority in aggregate principal 
amount (or any greater amount required by any other provision of this Resolution that authorizes 
such an amendment) of the Outstanding Series 2024 Bonds of the applicable series consent to such 
amendment or (b) a Person that is unaffiliated with the Board (such as nationally recognized bond 
counsel) determines that such amendment will not materially impair the interests of the Holders 
and beneficial owners of the applicable series of Series 2024 Bonds.  If the Board so amends the 
provisions of this Article, it shall include with any amended financial information or operating 
data next provided in accordance with Section 8.2 an explanation, in narrative form, of the reasons 
for the amendment and of the impact of any change in the type of financial information or operating 
data so provided. 



 -31- 

Anything in this Resolution to the contrary notwithstanding, the provisions of this Article 
may be modified for a particular series of Series 2024 Bonds as set forth in the Pricing Certificate 
relating thereto. 

Section 8.5. Continuing Disclosure Relating to Other Obligated Persons.  The Board hereby 
determines that an Other Obligated Person would be an “obligated person” (as defined in the Rule) 
for whom financial information and operating data would be presented in any final official 
statement relating to a series of Series 2024 Bonds had such Person been known at the time of the 
offering thereof.  Based upon the objective criteria specified in the definition of Other Obligated 
Person, the Board concludes that no Veteran eligible to participate in the Program would be an 
Other Obligated Person. 

Section 8.6. Agreement Regarding Assumption of Certain Home Loans.  The Board agrees not 
to permit the assumption of any Home Loan that would cause any Person to become an Other 
Obligated Person. 

ARTICLE IX 
 

ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS RELATING TO SERIES 2024 BONDS 

Section 9.1. Interest Rates and Payment.  (a)  General.  Each Outstanding Weekly Rate Bond 
shall bear interest at the Weekly Interest Rate therefor, each Fixed Rate Bond shall bear interest at 
the Fixed Interest Rate therefor, each Purchased Bond shall bear interest at the Purchased Bond 
Rate therefor, and each Variable Rate Bond shall bear interest as provided in the related Purchase 
Contract or Pricing Certificate; provided, however, that in no event shall the interest rate on any 
Series 2024 Bond exceed the Ceiling Rate; and provided further that in no event shall the 
Purchased Bond Rate exceed the Maximum Purchased Bond Rate.  Unless provided to the contrary 
in the related Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate, each Series 2024 Bond shall bear interest 
from its date (except for an Initial Series 2024 Bond that is not a Fixed Rate Bond, which shall 
bear interest from the Settlement Date), and interest on each Series 2024 Bond for each Interest 
Accrual Period shall be payable on each Interest Payment Date applicable to such Series 2024 
Bond; provided, however, that the Holder (other than a Liquidity Provider) of a Weekly Rate Bond 
shall be paid interest thereon for an Interest Accrual Period only in the amount that would have 
accrued thereon at the Weekly Interest Rate, regardless of whether such Weekly Rate Bond was a 
Purchased Bond during any portion of such Interest Accrual Period, and the amount, if any, 
accrued as interest on such Weekly Rate Bond at the Purchased Bond Rate in excess of the amount 
required to be paid to such Holder shall be paid by the Board to a Liquidity Provider in accordance 
with the related Liquidity Facility. 

(b) Payment and Calculation of Interest.  Interest on the Series 2024 Bonds shall be paid in 
arrears.  Interest on Weekly Rate Bonds (including Purchased Bonds) shall be computed on the 
basis of a 365/366-day year, for the number of days actually elapsed.  Interest on Fixed Rate Bonds 
shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve (12) thirty (30) day months.  
Interest on Variable Rate Bonds shall be computed as set forth in the related Purchase Contract or 
Pricing Certificate. 



 -32- 

(c) Ceiling Rate.  Anything to the contrary contained herein notwithstanding, the maximum 
rate of interest on the Series 2024 Bonds at any time shall be the Ceiling Rate. 

(d) Purchased Bonds.  All Purchased Bonds shall bear interest at the Purchased Bond Rate 
therefor, which shall be payable at such times, in such amounts and in such manner as is provided 
in the related Liquidity Facility.  The maximum rate of interest permitted on Purchased Bonds 
shall be the Maximum Purchased Bond Rate.  Any determination of the Purchased Bond Rate 
pursuant to a Liquidity Facility shall be conclusive and binding on the Board. Anything contained 
in this Resolution notwithstanding, it is the express intention of the Board that the purchase of 
Purchased Bonds by the Comptroller, as Liquidity Provider pursuant to a Liquidity Facility, shall 
not extinguish the debt represented by such Purchased Bonds, which under such circumstances 
shall remain Outstanding and unpaid for all purposes of this Resolution. 

Section 9.2. Determination of Weekly Interest Rate.  (a)  Weekly Rate Bonds shall bear interest 
at the Weekly Interest Rate, which shall be determined by the applicable Remarketing Agent by 
4:30 p.m., New York City time, on Tuesday of each week during such Weekly Interest Rate Period, 
or if such day shall not be a Business Day, then on the next succeeding Business Day, provided 
that the first Weekly Interest Rate for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds shall be determined by the 
Initial Purchaser thereof on the date of execution of the related Purchase Contract in the manner 
set forth in this paragraph.  The first Weekly Interest Rate for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds shall 
apply to the period commencing on the Settlement Date therefor and ending on the next succeeding 
Tuesday.  Thereafter, each Weekly Interest Rate shall apply to the period commencing on 
Wednesday and ending on the next succeeding Tuesday, unless such Weekly Interest Rate Period 
shall end on a day other than Tuesday, in which event the last Weekly Interest Rate for such 
Weekly Interest Rate Period shall apply to the period commencing on the Wednesday preceding 
the last day of such Weekly Interest Rate Period and ending on the last day of such Weekly Interest 
Rate Period.  The Weekly Interest Rate for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds shall be the rate of 
interest per annum determined by the Remarketing Agent therefor (based on then prevailing 
market conditions) to be the minimum interest rate which, if borne by such Weekly Rate Bonds, 
would enable such Remarketing Agent to sell such Weekly Rate Bonds on such date of 
determination at a price (without regarding accrued interest) equal to the principal amount thereof.  
In the event that such Remarketing Agent fails to establish a Weekly Interest Rate for any week, 
then the Weekly Interest Rate for such week shall be the same as the Weekly Interest Rate for the 
immediately preceding week if the Weekly Interest Rate for such preceding week was determined 
by such Remarketing Agent.  In the event that the Weekly Interest Rate for the immediately 
preceding week was not determined by such Remarketing Agent, or in the event that the Weekly 
Interest Rate determined by such Remarketing Agent shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable 
by a court of law, then the interest rate for such week shall be equal to the most recently available 
SOFR rate plus 0.25% per annum, or if such rate is no longer available, or no such rate was so 
made available for the week preceding the date of determination, 100% of the interest rate on 
30-day high grade unsecured commercial paper notes sold through dealers by major corporations 
as reported in The Wall Street Journal on the day the Weekly Interest Rate would otherwise be 
determined as provided herein for such Weekly Interest Rate Period. 

(b) The first Interest Rate Period for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds shall commence on the 
Settlement Date and shall be a Weekly Interest Rate Period.  The initial Weekly Interest Rate to 



 -33- 

be borne by such Weekly Rate Bonds shall be determined by the Initial Purchaser thereof in the 
manner set forth in the preceding paragraph. 

(c) Notices.  On each date on which a Remarketing Agent determines the interest rate on any 
Weekly Rate Bond, such Remarketing Agent shall give the Board and the applicable Tender 
Agent, Paying Agent and Liquidity Provider notice by facsimile or e-mail transmission of the 
interest rate determined by such Remarketing Agent on such date.  Upon telephonic request, such 
Remarketing Agent will give any Holder of the applicable series of Weekly Rate Bonds notice of 
the interest rate on such Weekly Rate Bonds owned by such Holder. 

(d) Binding Effect.  Each determination of the interest rate for the Weekly Rate Bonds, as 
provided herein, shall be conclusive and binding upon the owners of the Weekly Rate Bonds, the 
Board and the applicable Remarketing Agent, Tender Agent, Liquidity Provider and Paying Agent.  
Upon telephonic request to a Remarketing Agent from the Board, the Paying Agent, the applicable 
Liquidity Provider or any Holder of any Weekly Rate Bond of the applicable series, the 
Remarketing Agent shall inform such Person of the interest rate then in effect on such Weekly 
Rate Bonds.  Failure of such Remarketing Agent to give any notice described in this Section, or 
any defect therein, shall not affect the interest rate to be borne by any of any Weekly Rate Bonds 
of the applicable series nor in any way change the rights of the Holders of such Weekly Rate Bonds 
to tender their Weekly Rate Bonds for purchase in accordance with this Resolution. 

Section 9.3. Fixed Interest Rate.  (a)  Determination of Fixed Interest Rate.  During a Fixed 
Interest Rate Period, each Series 2024 Bond shall bear interest at the Fixed Interest Rate therefor.  
The Fixed Interest Rate for each stated maturity of Series 2024 Bonds issued as Weekly Rate 
Bonds shall be determined by the applicable Remarketing Agent on a Business Day not less than 
15 days prior to the effective date of the Fixed Interest Rate Period therefor.  The Fixed Interest 
Rate for each stated maturity shall be the rate of interest per annum determined by such 
Remarketing Agent (based on then prevailing market conditions) to be the minimum interest rate, 
if any, at which such Remarketing Agent will agree to purchase the applicable series of Series 2024 
Bonds on such effective date for resale at a price (without regarding accrued interest) equal to the 
principal amount thereof.  If, for any reason, the Fixed Interest Rate for each stated maturity is not 
so determined for such Series 2024 Bonds by such Remarketing Agent at least 15 days prior to the 
first day of the Fixed Interest Rate Period therefor, then such Series 2024 Bonds shall bear interest 
at a Weekly Interest Rate as provided in Section 9.2, and shall continue to bear interest at a Weekly 
Interest Rate determined in accordance with Section 9.2 until such time as the interest rate on such 
Series 2024 Bonds shall have been adjusted to a Fixed Interest Rate, and such Series 2024 Bonds 
shall continue to be subject to purchase upon notice from the Holders thereof as described in 
Section 9.4(a).  The related Liquidity Facility shall be terminated as to such Fixed Rate Bonds. 

(b) Adjustment to Fixed Interest Rate Period. 

(i) At any time, the Board, by written direction to the applicable Registrar, Tender Agent, 
Paying Agent, Liquidity Provider and Remarketing Agent, may elect that a series of Weekly Rate 
Bonds shall be subject to a Fixed Interest Rate Period.  The direction of the Board required by the 
first sentence of this paragraph (i) shall specify the effective date of the Fixed Interest Rate Period, 
which date shall be (A) a Business Day not earlier than the 30th day following the second Business 



 -34- 

Day after receipt by the applicable Registrar of such direction, and (B) the day immediately 
following the last day of a Weekly Interest Rate Period. 

(ii) Such direction of the Board shall be accompanied by a form of the notice to be mailed by 
the applicable Registrar to the Holders of the series of Weekly Rate Bonds to be converted as 
provided in Section 9.3(c). 

(iii) If the Board shall deliver to the applicable Registrar, Remarketing Agent and Tender Agent 
on or prior to the date that the interest rate for the Fixed Interest Rate Period is determined a notice 
to the effect that the Board elects to rescind its election to have the series of Weekly Rate Bonds 
to be converted become subject to a Fixed Interest Rate Period, then such Series 2024 Bonds shall 
not become subject to a Fixed Interest Rate Period, and such Series 2024 Bonds shall bear interest 
at a Weekly Interest Rate as in effect prior to such event. 

(c) Notice of Adjustment to Fixed Interest Rate Period.  The applicable Registrar shall give 
notice by first class mail of an adjustment to a Fixed Interest Rate Period to the Holders of the 
series of Weekly Rate Bonds to be converted not less than 30 days prior to the effective date of 
such Fixed Interest Rate Period.  Such notice shall state:  (1) that the Interest Rate Period on such 
Series 2024 Bonds shall be adjusted to a Fixed Interest Rate Period unless the Board shall elect, 
on or prior to the date of determination of the Fixed Interest Rate, to rescind its election to cause 
the adjustment of the Interest Rate Period on such Series 2024 Bonds to the Fixed Interest Rate 
Period, in which case such Series 2024 Bonds shall continue to bear interest at a Weekly Interest 
Rate as in effect immediately prior to such proposed adjustment in the Interest Rate Period, (2) the 
effective date of the Fixed Interest Rate Period, (3) that such Series 2024 Bonds are subject to 
mandatory tender for purchase on such effective date and the purchase price applicable thereto, 
(4) that the related Liquidity Facility will be terminated as of the effective date of such Fixed 
Interest Rate Period, and (5) if ownership of such Series 2024 Bonds is no longer determined only 
by a book entry at a securities depository for the Series 2024 Bonds, information with respect to 
the required delivery of bond certificates and payment of purchase price under Section 9.4(f) 
hereof. 

(d) If the Board elects to convert a series of Weekly Rate Bonds to Fixed Rate Bonds, then the 
written direction furnished by the Board to the applicable Liquidity Provider, Registrar, Tender 
Agent and Remarketing Agent shall be made by registered or certified mail, or by e-mail or fax, 
confirmed by registered or certified mail.  Any such direction of the Board shall be accompanied 
by a copy of the notice required to be given by the applicable Registrar pursuant to Section 9.3(c) 
hereof. 

Section 9.4. Purchase of Weekly Rate Bonds.  (a) Optional Tender for Purchase.  If ownership 
of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds is determined only by a book entry at a securities depository for 
such Series 2024 Bonds, a Beneficial Owner (through its DTC Participant) may tender his interest 
in a Weekly Rate Bond of such series on any Business Day at a purchase price equal to the principal 
amount thereof plus accrued interest, if any, from and including the Interest Payment Date 
immediately preceding the date of purchase through and including the day immediately preceding 
the date of purchase, unless the date of purchase shall be an Interest Payment Date, in which case 
at a purchase price equal to the principal amount thereof, payable in immediately available funds, 
upon delivery to the applicable Tender Agent at its designated corporate trust office for delivery 



 -35- 

of notices, with a copy to the applicable Remarketing Agent, of an irrevocable written notice or 
telephonic notice, promptly confirmed in writing, which states the principal amount of such 
Weekly Rate Bond and the date on which the same shall be purchased, which date shall be a 
Business Day not prior to the seventh day next succeeding the date of the delivery of such notice 
to such Tender Agent.  Any notice delivered to such Tender Agent after 4:00 p.m., New York City 
time, shall be deemed to have been received on the next succeeding Business Day. 

Such Tender Agent shall promptly (but no later than the next Business Day) send a copy 
of any notice delivered to it pursuant to this Section 9.4(a) by fax or other electronic means to the 
applicable Remarketing Agent and Liquidity Provider.  On the date for purchase specified in the 
notice, the Beneficial Owner shall effect delivery of such Series 2024 Bonds by causing the DTC 
Participant through which such Beneficial Owner owns such Series 2024 Bonds to transfer its 
interest in such Series 2024 Bonds equal to such Beneficial Owner’s interest on the records of 
DTC to the participant account of the applicable Tender Agent with DTC. 

If ownership of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds is not determined only by a book entry at a 
securities depository for such Series 2024 Bonds, a Holder of a Weekly Rate Bond of such series 
may tender its Series 2024 Bond by delivery of the notice described above by the time set forth 
above and shall also deliver such Series 2024 Bond to the Tender Agent on the date specified for 
purchase. 

(b) Mandatory Tender for Purchase on First Day of Fixed Interest Rate Period.  A series of 
Weekly Rate Bonds shall be subject to mandatory tender for purchase on the first day of the Fixed 
Interest Rate Period therefor, or on the day which would have been the first day of such Fixed 
Interest Rate Period had the event specified in Section 9.3(b)(iii) not occurred which resulted in 
the interest rate on such Series 2024 Bonds not being adjusted, at a purchase price, payable in 
immediately available funds, equal to the principal amount of such Series 2024 Bonds, plus 
accrued interest (if any). 

(c) Mandatory Tender for Purchase Upon Termination, Expiration, Suspension, Modification 
or Replacement of Liquidity Facility.  If at any time the Registrar for a series of Weekly Rate 
Bonds shall give notice in accordance with Section 9.7 that such Weekly Rate Bonds which, at 
such time, are subject to purchase under the related Liquidity Facility as then in effect, shall on the 
date specified in such notice cease to be subject to purchase from such Liquidity Facility as a result 
of (A) the termination or expiration of the term of such Liquidity Facility, or (B) such Liquidity 
Facility being suspended, replaced or modified with the effect that the purchase price of such 
Series 2024 Bonds is no longer payable from such Liquidity Facility (in each case, whether or not 
any Alternate Liquidity Facility has been obtained), then on the Business Day the Board specifies 
to such Registrar that is at least five days and no more than 15 days (or, if no such date is specified, 
the fifth calendar day (or the immediately preceding Business Day if such day is not a Business 
Day)) preceding any termination, expiration, suspension, modification or replacement of such 
Liquidity Facility each such Series 2024 Bond or Series 2024 Bonds shall be purchased or deemed 
purchased as provided herein.  The purchase price for such Series 2024 Bonds shall be equal to 
the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest (if any). 

(d) Mandatory Tender for Purchase Following Event of Default Under Liquidity Facility.  All 
Weekly Rate Bonds of a series shall be subject to mandatory tender for purchase on the tenth day 



 -36- 

(or the next succeeding Business Day if such day is not a Business Day) following receipt by the 
applicable Tender Agent of notice from the applicable Liquidity Provider that an “Event of 
Default” has occurred under the applicable Liquidity Facility and directing the mandatory purchase 
of such Weekly Rate Bonds.  No later than the third Business Day following receipt of such notice 
described above, such Tender Agent shall give notice by first class mail, postage prepaid, to the 
Holders of such Series 2024 Bonds, the Board and the applicable Remarketing Agent stating that 
an “Event of Default” has occurred under the Liquidity Facility and that such Series 2024 Bonds 
are subject to mandatory tender for purchase. 

(e) Notice of Mandatory Tender for Purchase.  In connection with any mandatory tender for 
purchase of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds in accordance with Section 9.4(b) or Section 9.4(c), 
the applicable Registrar shall include notice of a mandatory tender for purchase as a part of the 
notice given pursuant to Section 9.3(c) or Section 9.7 hereof.  Each notice of mandatory tender for 
purchase shall state (A) in the case of a mandatory tender for purchase pursuant to Section 9.4(c) 
hereof, that the applicable Liquidity Facility will expire, terminate, be suspended, be replaced or 
be modified and that the purchase price of such Weekly Rate Bonds shall no longer be payable 
from such Liquidity Facility then in effect and that any rating applicable thereto may be reduced 
or withdrawn; (B) in the case of a mandatory tender for purchase pursuant to Section 9.4(d) hereof, 
that an “Event of Default” has occurred under such Liquidity Facility; (C) that the purchase price 
of any Weekly Rate Bond so subject to mandatory purchase shall be payable only upon (i) if 
ownership of such Weekly Rate Bonds is not determined only by a book entry at a securities 
depository for such Weekly Rate Bonds, surrender of such Weekly Rate Bond to the applicable 
Tender Agent at its designated corporate trust office for delivery of Weekly Rate Bonds, 
accompanied by an instrument of transfer thereof, in form satisfactory to such Tender Agent, 
executed in blank by the Holder thereof or his duly authorized attorney, with such signature 
guaranteed by a bank, trust company or member firm of the New York Stock Exchange or (ii) if 
ownership of such Weekly Rate Bonds is determined only by a book entry at a securities depository 
for such Weekly Rate Bonds, registration of the ownership rights in such Weekly Rate Bond to 
the applicable Tender Agent on the records of DTC; (D) that, provided that moneys sufficient to 
effect such purchase have been provided through the remarketing of such Weekly Rate Bonds by 
the applicable Remarketing Agent or through the applicable Liquidity Facility or otherwise, all 
Weekly Rate Bonds so subject to mandatory tender for purchase shall be purchased on the 
mandatory purchase date, and that if any Holder of a Weekly Rate Bond subject to mandatory 
tender for purchase shall not surrender such Weekly Rate Bond to the applicable Tender Agent for 
purchase (or if ownership of such Weekly Rate Bonds is determined only by a book entry at a 
securities depository for such Weekly Rate Bonds, effect the transfer of ownership rights to the 
applicable Tender Agent on the records of DTC) on such mandatory purchase date, and moneys 
sufficient to pay the purchase price thereof are on deposit with the applicable Tender Agent, then 
such Weekly Rate Bond shall be deemed to be an Undelivered Bond, and that no interest shall 
accrue thereon on and after such mandatory purchase date and that the Holder thereof shall have 
no rights under this Resolution other than to receive payment of the purchase price thereof; and 
(E) in the event that moneys sufficient to pay the purchase price of such Weekly Rate Bonds have 
not been provided to the applicable Tender Agent either through the remarketing of such Weekly 
Rate Bonds or from the applicable Liquidity Facility or otherwise, that such Weekly Rate Bonds 
shall not be purchased or deemed purchased and shall bear interest at the rate described in 
Section 9.15 hereof.  In connection with any mandatory tender for purchase of Weekly Rate Bonds 
in accordance with Section 9.4(c) hereof as a result of the replacement, termination or expiration 



 -37- 

of a Liquidity Facility, such notice also shall contain the information required by Section 9.7.  The 
Board shall provide the applicable Registrar with a form of any such notice.  

(f) Delivery of Tendered Weekly Rate Bonds.  Subject to the provisions of Section 2.10 hereof 
if ownership of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds is determined only by a book entry at a securities 
depository for such Weekly Rate Bonds, for payment of the purchase price of any such Weekly 
Rate Bond required to be purchased pursuant to this Section 9.4 on the date specified, such Weekly 
Rate Bond must be delivered, at or prior to 10:00 a.m., New York City time, on the date specified 
in such notice, to the applicable Tender Agent at its designated corporate trust office for delivery 
of Weekly Rate Bonds, accompanied by an instrument of transfer thereof, in form satisfactory to 
such Tender Agent, executed in blank by the Holder thereof or his duly authorized attorney, with 
such signature guaranteed by a commercial bank, trust company or member firm of the New York 
Stock Exchange.  In the event any such Weekly Rate Bond is delivered after 10:00 a.m., New York 
City time, on such date, payment of the purchase price of such Weekly Rate Bond need not be 
made until the Business Day following the date of delivery of such Weekly Rate Bond, but such 
Weekly Rate Bond shall nonetheless be deemed to have been purchased on the date specified in 
such notice and no interest shall accrue thereon after such date. 

(g) Irrevocable Notice Deemed to be Tender of Weekly Rate Bond; Undelivered Bonds. 

(i) The giving of notice by an owner of a Weekly Rate Bond as provided in Section 9.4(a) 
hereof shall constitute the irrevocable tender for purchase of each such Weekly Rate Bond with 
respect to which such notice shall have been given, regardless of whether such Weekly Rate Bond 
is delivered to the applicable Tender Agent for purchase on the relevant purchase date as provided 
in Section 9.4 hereof provided that moneys sufficient to pay the purchase price of such Weekly 
Rate Bonds are on deposit with the applicable Tender Agent for such purpose. 

(ii) A Tender Agent may refuse to accept delivery of any Weekly Rate Bonds for which a 
proper instrument of transfer has not been provided; such refusal, however, shall not affect the 
validity of the purchase of such Weekly Rate Bond as herein described.  If any owner of a Weekly 
Rate Bond who shall have given notice of tender of purchase pursuant to Section 9.4(a) hereof, if 
ownership of the related series of Weekly Rate Bonds is not determined only by a book entry at a 
securities depository for such Weekly Rate Bonds, shall fail to deliver such Weekly Rate Bond to 
the applicable Tender Agent at the place and on the applicable date and at the time specified, or 
shall fail to deliver such Weekly Rate Bond properly endorsed, or if ownership of such Weekly 
Rate Bonds is determined only by a book entry at a securities depository for such Weekly Rate 
Bonds, shall fail to cause its beneficial ownership to be transferred to the applicable Tender Agent 
on the records of DTC, and moneys sufficient to pay the purchase price thereof are on deposit with 
such Tender Agent for such purpose, such Weekly Rate Bond shall constitute an Undelivered 
Bond.  If funds in the amount of the purchase price of the Undelivered Bonds (including the 
Undelivered Bonds referred to in Section 9.4(e) hereof) are available for payment to the owner 
thereof on the date and at the time specified, from and after the date and time of that required 
delivery, (1) each Undelivered Bond shall be deemed to be purchased and shall no longer be 
deemed to be outstanding under this Resolution; (2) interest shall no longer accrue thereon; and 
(3) funds in the amount of the purchase price of each such Undelivered Bond shall be held by the 
applicable Tender Agent for the benefit of the owner thereof (provided that the owner shall have 
no right to any investment proceeds derived from such funds), to be paid on delivery (and proper 



 -38- 

endorsement) of such Undelivered Bond to such Tender Agent at its designated office for delivery 
of Weekly Rate Bonds.  Any funds held by such Tender Agent as described in clause (3) of the 
preceding sentence shall be held uninvested and not commingled. 

Section 9.5. Amendments to Liquidity Facility.  Except with the consent of all the Holders of a 
series of Weekly Rate Bonds, neither the Board nor the applicable Tender Agent shall permit any 
amendment, supplement, modification or waiver to the applicable Liquidity Facility that would 
result in the rating assigned to such Weekly Rate Bonds by the applicable Rating Agency being 
withdrawn or reduced below that in effect prior to such amendment, supplement, modification or 
waiver. 

Section 9.6. Alternate Liquidity Facility.  If at any time there shall be delivered to a Tender 
Agent (i) an Alternate Liquidity Facility, (ii) written evidence from the applicable Rating Agency 
stating the ratings of the applicable series of Weekly Rate Bonds after substitution of such 
Alternate Liquidity Facility, or a statement of the Board that no ratings have been obtained, and 
(iii) an opinion of counsel to the effect that such Alternate Liquidity Facility is a valid and 
enforceable obligation of the issuer or provider thereof, then such Tender Agent shall accept such 
Alternate Liquidity Facility and, if the applicable Liquidity Facility then in effect is a letter of 
credit, promptly surrender such Liquidity Facility to the Liquidity Provider that issued such 
Liquidity Facility in accordance with its terms for cancellation.  Anything in this Resolution to the 
contrary notwithstanding, following satisfaction of the requirements set forth in this Section 9.6 
and the mandatory tender for purchase of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds pursuant to Section 9.4(c) 
hereof in connection with the provision of any Alternate Liquidity Facility, (i) such Alternate 
Liquidity Facility may at any time thereafter specified by the Board to the applicable Tender Agent 
become the Liquidity Facility for such Weekly Rate Bonds for all purposes of this Resolution, and 
(ii) the Liquidity Facility replaced by such Alternate Liquidity Facility may be terminated at any 
time after such replacement. 

Section 9.7. Notice of Termination or Other Change in Liquidity Facility.  The applicable 
Registrar shall give notice by mail to the Holders of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds on or before 
the 15th day preceding (i) the expiration of any applicable Liquidity Facility in accordance with 
its terms, or (ii) any termination, replacement or modification of the terms of the applicable 
Liquidity Facility, which notice shall, to the extent applicable, (1) state the date of such 
replacement, termination, expiration or modification and the date of the proposed substitution of 
the Alternate Liquidity Facility (if any), and (2) state the date that such Weekly Rate Bonds will 
be purchased pursuant to Section 9.4(c) hereof as a result of such replacement, termination, 
expiration or modification.  The Board shall provide the applicable Registrar with written notice 
of any information required to enable such Registrar to give the foregoing notice and shall provide 
such Registrar with the form of such notice at least five days before such notice is required to be 
given. 

Section 9.8. Remarketing Agent and Tender Agent.  (a) Subject to execution of a Remarketing 
Agreement, the initial Remarketing Agent for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds shall be as designated 
in the applicable Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate.  The Board shall appoint any successor 
Remarketing Agent subject to the conditions set forth in Section 9.9(a) hereof.  Each Remarketing 
Agent shall designate its designated office (other than the initial Remarketing Agent whose 
designated office is listed in Section 9.16 hereof) and signify its acceptance of the duties and 



 -39- 

obligations imposed upon it hereunder by a written instrument of acceptance delivered to the Board 
under which such Remarketing Agent will agree, particularly, to keep such books and records with 
respect to its duties as Remarketing Agent as shall be consistent with prudent industry practice and 
to make such books and records available for inspection by the Board at all reasonable times. 

(b) The initial Tender Agent for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds shall be as designated in the 
applicable Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate.  The Board shall appoint any successor Tender 
Agent, subject to the conditions set forth in Section 9.9(b) hereof.  Each Tender Agent shall 
designate its designated office(s) for delivery of notices and delivery of Weekly Rate Bonds and 
signify its acceptance of the duties and obligations imposed upon it hereunder by a written 
instrument of acceptance delivered to the Board and the applicable Registrar, Liquidity Provider 
and Remarketing Agent.  By acceptance of its appointment hereunder, each Tender Agent agrees: 

(i) to hold all Weekly Rate Bonds delivered to it pursuant to Section 9.4 hereof, as agent and 
bailee of, and in escrow for the benefit of, the respective owners which shall have so delivered 
such Weekly Rate Bonds until moneys representing the purchase price of such Weekly Rate Bonds 
shall have been delivered to or for the account of or to the order of such owners; 

(ii) to establish and maintain a separate segregated trust fund designated as the “State of Texas 
Veterans Bonds, Taxable Series 2024 Bond Purchase Fund” (each, a “Bond Purchase Fund”) (with 
the specific series designation to replace “2024,” if applicable), and to establish and maintain 
therein a remarketing account (the “Remarketing Account”) and a liquidity facility account (the 
“Purchase Account”), until such time as it has been discharged from its duties as Tender Agent 
hereunder; 

(iii) to hold all moneys (without investment thereof) delivered to it hereunder in the Bond 
Purchase Fund for the purchase of Weekly Rate Bonds pursuant to Section 9.4 hereof, as agent 
and bailee of, and in escrow for the benefit of, the Person which shall have so delivered such 
moneys until the Weekly Rate Bonds purchased with such moneys shall have been delivered to or 
for the account of such Person; 

(iv) to hold all moneys delivered to it by the Board for the purchase of Weekly Rate Bonds 
pursuant to Section 9.4 hereof, as agent and bailee of, and in escrow for the benefit of, the owners 
or former owners who shall deliver Weekly Rate Bonds to it for purchase until the Weekly Rate 
Bonds purchased with such moneys shall have been canceled; 

(v) to hold all Weekly Rate Bonds registered in the name of the new owners thereof which 
have been delivered to it by the applicable Registrar for delivery to the applicable Remarketing 
Agent in accordance with the provisions of this Resolution; and 

(vi) to keep such books and records as shall be consistent with standard industry practice and 
to make such books and records available for inspection by the Board, the applicable Liquidity 
Provider and the applicable Remarketing Agent at all reasonable times. 

Section 9.9. Qualifications of Remarketing Agent and Tender Agent; Resignation; Removal. 

(a) Each Remarketing Agent shall be a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory 
Authority, having a combined capital stock, surplus and undivided profits of at least $250,000,000 



 -40- 

and authorized by law to perform all the duties imposed upon it by this Resolution.  Any successor 
Remarketing Agent shall have, or be a subsidiary of another entity or a partnership which includes 
as a general partner an entity which shall have, senior unsecured long-term debt which shall be 
rated, so long as the Weekly Rate Bonds shall be rated by the Rating Agency, at least Baa3/P-3 (or 
its equivalent) or otherwise qualified by the Rating Agency. A Remarketing Agent may at any 
time resign and be discharged of its duties and obligations hereunder upon providing the Board 
and the applicable Tender Agent, Liquidity Provider, Paying Agent and Registrar with at least 30 
days’ (or such number of days as is required by the applicable Remarketing Agreement) prior 
written notice.  A Remarketing Agent may be removed at any time, at the direction of the Board 
with the written consent of the applicable Liquidity Provider, by an instrument signed by the Board 
and filed with the applicable Tender Agent, Registrar, Liquidity Provider and Remarketing Agent 
at least 30 days prior to the effective date of such removal.  In the event that a Remarketing Agent 
has resigned or been removed and no successor Remarketing Agent has been appointed by the 
Board, the applicable Tender Agent shall perform, or engage a Person to perform, the duties of 
such Remarketing Agent until a successor Remarketing Agent has been appointed by the Board. 

(b) Each Tender Agent shall be a bank with trust powers or a trust company duly organized 
under the laws of the United States of America or any state or territory thereof, and authorized by 
law to exercise corporate trust powers and otherwise perform all the duties imposed upon it by this 
Resolution.  A Tender Agent may at any time resign and be discharged of the duties and obligations 
created by this Resolution by giving at least 60 days’ written notice to the Board and the applicable 
Registrar, Liquidity Provider and Remarketing Agent.  A Tender Agent may be removed at any 
time by an instrument signed by the Board, filed with the applicable Tender Agent, Registrar, 
Liquidity Provider and Remarketing Agent.  Such resignation or removal shall take effect on the 
day a successor Tender Agent shall have been appointed by the Board and the successor Tender 
Agent shall have accepted such appointment. 

(c) Upon the effective date of resignation or removal of a Tender Agent, such Tender Agent 
shall deliver any Weekly Rate Bonds and moneys held by it in such capacity to its successor. 

(d) So long as any series of Weekly Rate Bonds are Outstanding, the same entity shall be the 
Tender Agent and Registrar therefor. 

Section 9.10. Notice of Weekly Rate Bonds Delivered for Purchase; Purchase of Weekly Rate 
Bonds.  (a) The Tender Agent for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds shall determine timely and proper 
delivery of Weekly Rate Bonds of such series pursuant to this Resolution and the proper 
endorsement of such Weekly Rate Bonds.  Such determination shall be binding on the owners of 
such Weekly Rate Bonds, the Board, the applicable Remarketing Agent and the applicable 
Liquidity Provider, absent manifest error.  Such Tender Agent shall give notice by telephone, e-
mail or fax, promptly confirmed by a written notice if given by telephone, to the Board and the 
applicable Registrar, Remarketing Agent and Liquidity Provider specifying the principal amount 
of Weekly Rate Bonds, if any, as to which it shall receive notice of tender for purchase in 
accordance with Section 9.4(a) hereof. 

(b) Weekly Rate Bonds required to be purchased in accordance with Section 9.4 hereof shall 
be purchased from the owners thereof, on the date and at the purchase price at which such Weekly 



 -41- 

Rate Bonds are required to be purchased.  Funds for the payment of such purchase price shall be 
derived from the following sources in the order of priority indicated: 

(i) proceeds of the sale of such Weekly Rate Bonds remarketed to any Person pursuant to 
Section 9.11 hereof and furnished to the applicable Tender Agent by the purchasers or by the 
applicable Remarketing Agent for deposit into the Remarketing Account of the applicable Bond 
Purchase Fund; 

(ii) moneys furnished to such Tender Agent for deposit into the Purchase Account of the 
applicable Bond Purchase Fund representing moneys received from draws on the applicable 
Liquidity Facility; and 

(iii) moneys furnished to such Tender Agent for deposit into the applicable Bond Purchase Fund 
representing moneys provided by the Board in its discretion. 

A Tender Agent may establish separate accounts or sub-accounts within the Bond Purchase 
Fund for such purposes as such Tender Agent may deem appropriate. 

(c) (i)  If ownership of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds is no longer determined only by 
a book entry at a securities depository for such Series 2024 Bonds, the applicable Registrar 
shall authenticate a new Series 2024 Bond or Series 2024 Bonds of such series in an 
aggregate principal amount equal to the principal amount of Series 2024 Bonds purchased 
in accordance with Section 9.10(b) hereof, whether or not the Weekly Rate Bonds so 
purchased are presented by the owners thereof, bearing a number or numbers not 
contemporaneously outstanding.  Every Series 2024 Bond authenticated and delivered as 
provided in this Section shall be entitled to all the benefits of this Resolution equally and 
proportionately with any and all other Series 2024 Bonds of the same series duly issued 
hereunder.  The applicable Registrar shall maintain a record of the Weekly Rate Bonds 
purchased as provided in this Section, together with the names and addresses of the former 
owners thereof.  If ownership of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds is determined only by a 
book entry at a securities depository for such Series 2024 Bonds, on any date on which 
beneficial ownership in such Weekly Rate Bonds is tendered at the option of the owner of 
such beneficial interest (acting through its DTC Participant) in accordance with Section 
9.4(a) hereof (including transfer of the beneficial ownership interest of the tendering owner 
to the account of the applicable Tender Agent at DTC), the applicable Tender Agent shall 
transfer ownership of such beneficial ownership on the records of DTC as provided in 
Section 9.12 hereof.  If ownership of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds is determined only by 
a book entry at a securities depository for such Series 2024 Bonds, on any date on which 
beneficial ownership interest in such Weekly Rate Bonds is subject to mandatory tender in 
accordance with Section 9.4 hereof, the applicable Tender Agent shall transfer beneficial 
ownership of such Series 2024 Bonds on the records of DTC as provided in Section 9.12 
hereof, regardless of whether the owners of the beneficial interests subject to mandatory 
tender transfer their beneficial ownership of such Weekly Rate Bonds to such Tender Agent 
on the records of DTC, and moneys for the purchase of the beneficial interests subject to 
mandatory tender shall be transferred by such Tender Agent to DTC for transfer to the 
owners of such beneficial interests subject to mandatory purchase. 



 -42- 

(ii) If ownership of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds is no longer determined only by a book 
entry at a securities depository for such Series 2024 Bonds, in the event any such Weekly Rate 
Bonds purchased as provided in this Section shall not be presented to the applicable Tender Agent, 
such Tender Agent shall segregate and hold the moneys for the purchase price of such Weekly 
Rate Bonds in trust for the benefit of the former owners of such Weekly Rate Bonds, who shall, 
except as provided in the following sentence, thereafter be restricted exclusively to such moneys 
for the satisfaction of any claim for the purchase price of such Weekly Rate Bonds.  Any moneys 
which such Tender Agent shall segregate and hold in trust for the payment of the purchase price 
of any Weekly Rate Bond and remaining unclaimed for three years after the date of purchase shall, 
subject to the unclaimed property laws of the State and upon the Board’s written request to such 
Tender Agent, be paid to the Board.  After the payment of such unclaimed moneys to the Board, 
the former owner of such Weekly Rate Bond shall look only to the Board for the payment thereof, 
and the Board shall not be liable for any interest thereon and shall not be regarded as a trustee of 
such moneys.  If ownership of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds is determined only by a book entry 
at a securities depository for such Series 2024 Bonds, if such Weekly Rate Bonds are subject to 
mandatory tender in accordance with the terms of this Resolution, then the applicable Tender 
Agent shall transfer beneficial ownership of such Series 2024 Bonds on the records of DTC as 
provided in Section 9.12 hereof, regardless of whether the owners of the beneficial interests subject 
to mandatory tender transfer their beneficial ownership of such Weekly Rate Bonds to such Tender 
Agent on the records of DTC, and moneys for the purchase of the beneficial interests subject to 
mandatory tender shall be transferred by such Tender Agent to DTC for transfer to the owners of 
such beneficial interests subject to mandatory purchase. 

Section 9.11. Remarketing of Series 2024 Bonds; Notice of Interest Rates.  (a) Upon notice of 
the tender for purchase of Weekly Rate Bonds, the applicable Remarketing Agent shall offer for 
sale and use its best efforts to sell such Weekly Rate Bonds, any such sale to be made on the date 
of such purchase in accordance with Section 9.4 hereof at the price determined in accordance with 
Section 9.4 hereof.  Each Remarketing Agent agrees that while a Liquidity Facility is in effect it 
shall not sell knowingly any Series 2024 Bonds tendered to it for purchase pursuant to Section 9.4 
hereof to the Board, or to any Person who controls, is controlled by, or is under common control 
with, the Board.  In addition, each Remarketing Agent shall offer for sale and use its best efforts 
to sell any applicable Weekly Rate Bonds that are Purchased Bonds. 

(b) Each Remarketing Agent shall determine the rate of interest to be borne by the applicable 
Series 2024 Bonds during each Interest Rate Period and shall furnish to the Board and the 
applicable Registrar on the Business Day of determination each rate of interest so determined by 
e-mail, telephone or fax, promptly confirmed in writing if given by telephone, or shall make such 
information available to the Board and such Registrar by other readily accessible electronic means. 

(c) Each Remarketing Agent shall advise the applicable Tender Agent and Liquidity Provider 
in writing or by telephone (promptly confirmed by e-mail or fax if given by telephone) not later 
than the Business Day preceding the Business Day on which any applicable Weekly Rate Bonds 
are to be purchased pursuant to Section 9.4 hereof of the aggregate principal amount of such 
Weekly Rate Bonds subject to purchase that have not been remarketed as of such time, provided 
that such Remarketing Agent may continue to remarket such Weekly Rate Bonds thereafter.  Each 
Remarketing Agent shall give e-mail or telephonic notice, promptly confirmed by a written notice 
if given by telephone, to the applicable Registrar and Tender Agent on each date on which 



 -43- 

applicable Weekly Rate Bonds shall have been purchased pursuant to Section 9.10(b) hereof, 
specifying the principal amount of Series 2024 Bonds, if any, sold by it pursuant to Section 9.11(a) 
hereof along with, if the applicable series of Series 2024 Bonds are not registered as described in 
Section 2.10 hereof, a list of such purchasers showing the names and denominations in which such 
Series 2024 Bonds shall be registered, and the addresses and social security or taxpayer 
identification numbers of such purchasers.  Each Remarketing Agent will transfer the proceeds 
received from the purchasers named in such notice to the applicable Tender Agent by 10:00 a.m., 
New York City time, on the Business Day on which such Weekly Rate Bonds are purchased. 

Section 9.12. Delivery of Series 2024 Bonds.  (a) Weekly Rate Bonds purchased with moneys 
described in clause (i) of Section 9.10(b) hereof shall be made available by the applicable Tender 
Agent to the applicable Remarketing Agent for delivery to the purchasers thereof against payment 
therefor. 

(b) Except as otherwise provided in a Liquidity Facility, Weekly Rate Bonds purchased with 
moneys described in clause (ii) of Section 9.10(b) hereof shall be held by the applicable Tender 
Agent on behalf of the applicable Liquidity Provider as Purchased Bonds, and shall not be released 
following the remarketing thereof unless such Tender Agent has received written confirmation 
from such Liquidity Provider that the applicable Liquidity Facility has been reinstated with respect 
to such Series 2024 Bonds. 

(c) Weekly Rate Bonds purchased with moneys described in clause (iii) of Section 9.10(b) 
hereof shall be canceled. 

(d) Series 2024 Bonds delivered as provided in this Section shall be registered in the manner 
directed by the recipient thereof. 

Section 9.13. Delivery of Proceeds of Sale.  The proceeds of the sale by a Remarketing Agent of 
any applicable Weekly Rate Bonds delivered to it by any Holder shall be turned over to the 
applicable Tender Agent. 

Section 9.14. Draws on Liquidity Facility to Pay Purchase Price of Weekly Rate Bonds.  Each 
Tender Agent, on each day on which applicable Weekly Rate Bonds are required to be purchased 
pursuant to Section 9.4 hereof, is directed to make drawings under the applicable Liquidity Facility 
by such times and in such manner as shall be required to receive in immediately available funds 
on such date amounts sufficient (based upon the amount on deposit in the Remarketing Account 
of the applicable Bond Purchase Fund by 10:00 a.m., New York City time, on such day) to pay the 
purchase price plus accrued interest, if any, of Weekly Rate Bonds tendered for purchase or 
required to be purchased pursuant to the provisions of this Resolution and that have not been 
remarketed by the applicable Remarketing Agent, and to deposit the proceeds of such drawings or 
cause such proceeds to be deposited in the Purchase Account of the applicable Bond Purchase 
Fund pending application of such moneys to the payment of the purchase price of such Weekly 
Rate Bonds.  In determining the amount of any such purchase price then due, such Tender Agent 
shall not take into consideration any purchase price due on such Weekly Rate Bonds held by the 
Board or any affiliate thereof, and no drawings under such Liquidity Facility shall be made or be 
used to pay the purchase price of any Purchased Bonds or Weekly Rate Bonds held by the Board 
or any affiliate thereof. 



 -44- 

Section 9.15. Insufficient Funds for Purchase of Weekly Rate Bonds.  If payment of the purchase 
price of any Weekly Rate Bond shall not be made to the Holder thereof on any date such Weekly 
Rate Bond has been tendered for purchase pursuant to Section 9.4 hereof, such Weekly Rate Bond 
shall be returned by the applicable Tender Agent to the Holder thereof, and shall continue to bear 
interest at a Weekly Interest Rate determined as provided in Section 9.2 hereof. 

Section 9.16. Notices.  (a)  Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Resolution or set forth 
in the applicable Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate, it shall be sufficient service of any 
notice, request, complaint, demand or other paper if the same shall be duly mailed by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, or by overnight delivery service, 
addressed as follows or delivered by facsimile to the numbers provided as follows: 

If to the Board: Veterans’ Land Board of the State of Texas 
 1700 North Congress Avenue, Room 740C 
 Austin, Texas  78701-1496 
 Attn:  Director of VLB Bond Funds Management 
 Telephone:  (512) 475-4004 
 Facsimile:  (512) 463-5081 

 
If to a Tender Agent 
   or Registrar: as set forth in the applicable Purchase Contract or Pricing 

Certificate 
 
If to a Remarketing Agent: as set forth in the applicable Purchase Contract or Pricing 

Certificate 
 
 
If to a Liquidity Provider: as set forth in the applicable Purchase Contract or Pricing 

Certificate 
 

If to a Paying Agent: Comptroller of Public Accounts 
 Treasury Operations 
 Attention: Funds Transfer 

 208 E. 10th Street 
 Austin, Texas  78701 

Telephone: (512) 463-5905 
E-mail: funds.transfer@cpa.texas.gov 

 
If to a Rating Agency: as set forth in the applicable Purchase Contract or Pricing 

Certificate 
 

Except as otherwise provided or directed herein, a duplicate copy of each notice, certificate 
or other communication given hereunder by the Board, a Liquidity Provider, a Paying Agent, a 
Registrar, a Remarketing Agent or a Tender Agent to any one of the others or the Holders shall 
also be given to all of the others.  The Board, a Liquidity Provider, a Paying Agent, a Registrar, a 
Remarketing Agent or a Tender Agent may, by notice given hereunder, designate any further or 



 -45- 

different addresses or telephone numbers to which subsequent notices, certificates or other 
communications shall be sent. 

(b) The Board shall provide to the applicable Rating Agency notice in writing or by telephone 
or fax, promptly confirmed in writing, of 

(i) any resignation or removal of any applicable Paying Agent, Registrar, Tender Agent or 
Remarketing Agent, and the appointment of any successor thereto; 

(ii) any conversion of an applicable series of Weekly Rate Bonds to Fixed Rate Bonds; 

(iii) any termination, expiration, replacement, suspension or modification of the applicable 
Liquidity Facility; 

(iv) the payment in full of the applicable series of Weekly Rate Bonds; 

(v) any mandatory tender of the applicable series of Weekly Rate Bonds; and 

(vi) any amendment or material change to this Resolution. 

(c) The Board shall provide or cause to be provided to each Rating Agency such information 
as is reasonably requested in order to maintain its rating on the applicable series of Weekly Rate 
Bonds. 

ARTICLE X 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 10.1. Benefits of Resolution.  Nothing in this Resolution or in the Series 2024 Bonds, 
express or implied, shall give to any Person, other than the Board and each Paying Agent, 
Registrar, Tender Agent, Liquidity Provider and Remarketing Agent and their successors 
hereunder and the Holders, any benefit or any legal or equitable right, remedy or claim under this 
Resolution. 

Section 10.2. Bonds to Rank Equally.  None of the Bonds shall be entitled to priority over any 
other Bond in the application of moneys in Fund II, nor in the application of moneys appropriated 
by the Legislature of the State or otherwise made available by law for the payment of principal of 
and interest on the Bonds, irrespective of the fact that some of the Bonds may be delivered prior 
to the delivery of other Bonds, it being the intent of this Resolution that all Bonds shall rank 
equally. 

Section 10.3. Enforcement.  All rights available to the Holders under the Constitution and laws 
of the State, by suit for mandamus or otherwise, to compel the performance of their official duties 
by the Board, its officers and employees, and by other officers of the State to the end that the 
principal of and interest on the Series 2024 Bonds may be paid promptly, are hereby recognized 
and reserved to and for the Holders. 



 -46- 

Section 10.4. Separability Clause.  In case any provision in this Resolution shall be invalid, illegal 
or unenforceable, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not in 
any way be affected or impaired thereby. 

Section 10.5. Governing Law.  This Resolution shall be construed in accordance with and 
governed by the laws of the State. 

Section 10.6. Open Meeting.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which the Series 2024 Bonds were authorized was open to the public as required by law and public 
notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by Chapter 551 of the 
Texas Government Code, as amended. 

Section 10.7. References to Liquidity Provider.  Any provision of this Resolution regarding the 
consent of, or notice to, or mandating the direction of action by, a Liquidity Provider shall, except 
as expressly provided, be deemed ineffective (i) if the applicable Liquidity Facility is no longer in 
effect and no amount is due and owing under such Liquidity Facility, or (ii) as long as such 
Liquidity Provider has failed to honor a properly presented and conforming drawing under such 
Liquidity Facility; provided, that except as otherwise expressly set forth herein, for as long as any 
Purchased Bonds are Outstanding, the applicable Liquidity Provider shall be afforded all the rights 
and privileges granted hereunder to Holders of the Weekly Rate Bonds of the applicable series. 

Section 10.8. Liquidity Facilities Authorized.  In connection with the issuance of any series of 
Weekly Rate Bonds, the Authorized Representatives are hereby severally authorized and directed, 
in the name and on behalf of the Board, to cause to be issued a Liquidity Facility in accordance 
with the “Resolution of the Veterans’ Land Board of the State of Texas Authorizing Liquidity 
Facilities Relating to Bonds Issued or to be Issued in Connection with the Veterans’ Land Program 
or the Veterans’ Housing Assistance Program, and Providing for Other Matters Relating to the 
Subject” adopted by the Board on this date or in any comparable resolution adopted by the Board 
hereafter. 

Section 10.9. Remarketing Agreements Authorized.  In connection with the issuance of any series 
of Weekly Rate Bonds, the Authorized Representatives are hereby severally authorized and 
directed to act for and on behalf of the Board to approve, execute and deliver the related 
Remarketing Agreement. 

Section 10.10. Tender Agent Agreements Authorized.  In connection with the issuance of any 
series of Weekly Rate Bonds, if requested by the Tender Agent for such series, the Authorized 
Representatives are hereby severally authorized and directed to act for and on behalf of the Board 
to approve, execute and deliver the related Tender Agent Agreement. 

Section 10.11. Authorization of Additional Acts.  The officers, employees, and agents of the 
Board, and each of them, shall be and each is expressly authorized, empowered, and directed from 
time to time and at any time to do and perform all acts and things and to execute, acknowledge, 
and deliver in the name and under the seal and on behalf of the Board all certificates, instruments, 
and other papers, whether or not herein mentioned, as they may determine to be necessary or 
desirable in connection with the proposed issuance of the Series 2024 Bonds, including without 
limitation (a) the filing of a notice of intention to issue bonds with the Bond Review Board of the 



 -47- 

State, and (b) the submission of a transcript of proceedings for approval of the Attorney General, 
such determination to be conclusively evidenced by the performance of such acts and things and 
the execution of any such certificate, instrument, or other paper, and any such actions heretofore 
carried out by such officers, employees, and agents of the Board are hereby ratified, approved, and 
confirmed.  Prior to each Settlement Date, the Authorized Representatives and Bond Counsel are 
hereby authorized to approve any technical changes or corrections to this Resolution, or to any of 
the instruments authorized by this Resolution, necessary in order to (i) correct any ambiguity or 
mistake or more completely document the transactions contemplated and approved by this 
Resolution, (ii) obtain a rating from the Rating Agency, or (iii) obtain the approval of the 
Series 2024 Bonds by the Attorney General. 

Section 10.12. Bond Enhancement Agreement Certificate.  Notwithstanding anything to the 
contrary contained in the “Resolution of the Veterans’ Land Board of the State of Texas 
Authorizing Interest Rate Swap Transactions Relating to Bonds Issued or to be Issued in 
Connection with Veterans’ Housing Assistance Program Bonds and Veterans’ Land Program 
Bonds; and Providing for Other Matters Relating to the Subject” adopted by the Board on this date, 
or in any comparable resolution adopted by the Board hereafter, no certificates shall be required 
for any floating-to-fixed rate interest rate swap transaction entered into in connection with the 
anticipated issuance of any series of Weekly Rate Bonds. 

Section 10.13. Prior Resolution.  This Resolution shall supersede and replace in its entirety that 
certain resolution adopted by the Board on July 24, 2023, relating to the Series 2024 Bonds. 

 



Signature Page to Updated Bond Resolution (Taxable 2024) 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED this the 25th day of June, 2024. 

 
 
 

   /s/  Dawn Buckingham, M.D.    
Chairwoman 
Veterans’ Land Board of the State of Texas 

 

ATTEST: 
 
 
   /s/  Anthony W. Dale     
Executive Secretary 
Veterans’ Land Board of the State of Texas 
 



 A-2 

EXHIBIT A 

FORM OF WEEKLY RATE BOND 

[Unless this bond is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Trust Company, 
a New York corporation (“DTC”), to the Issuer or its agent for registration of transfer, exchange, 
or payment, and any certificate issued is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or in such other 
name as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC (and any payment is made to Cede 
& Co. or to such other entity as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC), ANY 
TRANSFER, PLEDGE, OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO 
ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the registered owner hereof, Cede & Co., has an 
interest herein.]1 

NO. WR-____          $__________ 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
 

STATE OF TEXAS 
VETERANS BOND, 

TAXABLE SERIES 20242 

MATURITY DATE: INTEREST RATE: BOND DATE: CUSIP NUMBER: 3 

_________, ____ Variable ____________, 2024 ______ ___ 

 

ON THE MATURITY DATE SPECIFIED ABOVE, the State of Texas (hereinafter 
sometimes called the “Issuer”), acting by and through the Veterans’ Land Board (the “Board”) of 
the Issuer, hereby promises to pay to ________________________________, or to the registered 
assignee hereof (either being hereinafter called the “Holder”) the principal amount of 
________________________________________ DOLLARS and to pay interest thereon, from 
[the Settlement Date]4 [the bond date stated above]5 to the date of its scheduled maturity or the 
date of its redemption prior to scheduled maturity, at the rate of interest per annum determined 
pursuant to the Resolution (defined below), with said interest being payable on each Interest 
Payment Date (computed on the basis of a 365/366-day year, for the number of days actually 
elapsed). 

UNLESS OTHERWISE DEFINED herein, capitalized words and terms used in this Bond 
and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings ascribed to such terms in the Resolution 
(defined below). 

 
1  To be included in any Series 2024 Bond registered in the name of Cede & Co. 
2  Series designation to be added if necessary. 
3  To be omitted from the Initial Series 2024 Bond of any series. 
4  To be included in the Initial Series 2024 Bond of any series. 
5  To be included in all Weekly Rate Bonds except an Initial Series 2024 Bond. 



 A-3 

THE PRINCIPAL OF AND PREMIUM, IF ANY, AND INTEREST ON this Bond are 
payable in lawful money of the United States of America, without exchange or collection charges.  
The principal of and premium, if any, on this Bond shall be paid to the registered owner hereof 
upon presentation and surrender of this Bond at maturity or upon the date fixed for its redemption 
prior to maturity, at the designated office of the Paying Agent for the Bonds (defined below), which 
is initially the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas in Austin, Texas.  The payment 
of interest on this Bond shall be made by the Paying Agent to the registered owner hereof as shown 
by the Registration Books kept and maintained by the Registrar for the Bonds, which is initially 
_______________________, at the close of business on the Business Day immediately preceding 
each Interest Payment Date (including each redemption date) (each, a “Record Date”) by check 
drawn by the Paying Agent on, and payable solely from, funds of the Board required to be on 
deposit with the Paying Agent for such purpose as hereinafter provided; and such check shall be 
sent by the Paying Agent by first class United States mail, postage prepaid, on each such Interest 
Payment Date, to the Holder hereof at its address as it appears on the Registration Books kept and 
maintained by the Registrar, as hereinafter described.  The Paying Agent shall make payment of 
the principal of and premium, if any, or interest on any Bond by wire transfer in immediately 
available funds to a bank account located within the United States of Federal Reserve Funds to the 
Liquidity Provider (in the case of any Purchased Bond) and to any Holder of $1,000,000 or more 
in aggregate principal amount of Bonds requesting such payment and providing the necessary wire 
information to the Paying Agent at least 15 days prior to the applicable Record Date.  The Board 
covenants with the Holder of this Bond that as of each Interest Payment Date for this Bond it will 
make available to the Paying Agent the amounts required to provide for the payment, in 
immediately available funds, of all principal of and interest on the Bonds, when due.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, during any period in which ownership of the Bonds is determined 
only by a book entry at a securities depository for the Bonds, payments made to the securities 
depository, or its nominee, shall be made in accordance with arrangements between the Board and 
the securities depository. 

THIS BOND is one of a series of bonds of like tenor and effect except as to number, 
principal amount and scheduled maturity, aggregating ___________________6 Dollars 
($_____________)6 (the “Bonds”), issued for the purpose of making Home Loans to Texas 
Veterans, all in accordance with the provisions of the Constitutional Provision, the Act and Chapter 
1371, and pursuant to a resolution authorizing the issuance of the series of Bonds of which this is 
one, adopted by the Board and duly of record in the minutes of the Board (the “Resolution”). The 
Bonds are issuable solely as fully registered bonds, without interest coupons, in Authorized 
Denominations as described in the Resolution. 

THE SERIES OF BONDS of which this is one shall be and is hereby made a general 
obligation of the State of Texas, pursuant to the Constitutional Provision and the Act, and for the 
faithful performance of all covenants, recitals and stipulations herein contained, and for the faithful 
performance in proper time and manner of each official or other act required and necessary to 
provide for the prompt payment of principal of and interest on this Bond when due, the full faith 
and credit of the State of Texas are hereby pledged. 

 
6  The original aggregate principal amount of a series of the Series 2024 Bonds set forth in the related Purchase 

Contract or Pricing Certificate should be set forth here. 



 A-4 

PAYMENTS OF THE PRINCIPAL OF and premium, if any, and interest on this Bond, 
shall be made primarily from the Veterans’ Housing Assistance Fund II (“Fund II”) governed by 
the Constitutional Provision, which fund shall be comprised of (a) any interest of the Board in all 
Home Loans made from money in Fund II pursuant to the Program, including proceeds of any 
insurance thereon or on the homes, (b) the proceeds derived from the sale or other disposition of 
the Board’s interests in Home Loans, (c) the money attributable to any Housing Assistance Bonds 
(defined below) (except for certain expenses related to the issuance of Housing Assistance Bonds) 
issued and sold by the Board to provide money for Fund II which shall include but shall not be 
limited to the proceeds from the issuance and sale of such Housing Assistance Bonds, (d) income, 
rents, and any other pecuniary benefit received by the Board as a result of making Home Loans, 
(e) sums received by way of indemnity or forfeiture for the failure of any bidder for the purchase 
of any Housing Assistance Bonds to comply with the person’s bid and accept and pay for such 
Housing Assistance Bonds, (f) payments received by the Board under bond enhancement 
agreements with respect to the Housing Assistance Bonds, (g) interest received from investments 
of any such money, and (h) any equitable interest of the Board in properties encumbered by Home 
Loans and attributable to Fund II.  The Bonds and all other bonds issued by the Board pursuant to 
the Constitution of the State to augment Fund II or to refund any such bonds are referred to herein 
as “Housing Assistance Bonds.”  The Constitutional Provision provides that to the extent there is 
not money in Fund II available for payment of principal of and interest on the Housing Assistance 
Bonds, there is appropriated out of the first money coming into the State Treasury in each fiscal 
year, not otherwise appropriated by the Texas Constitution, an amount which is sufficient to pay 
the principal of and interest on such Housing Assistance Bonds that mature or become due during 
that fiscal year. 

THE BONDS will initially be issued as Weekly Rate Bonds bearing interest at a Weekly 
Interest Rate.  Thereafter, each Bond, at the election of the Board, may be changed to a Fixed Rate 
Bond bearing interest at a Fixed Interest Rate determined by the Remarketing Agent in accordance 
with the Resolution; provided, however, that in no event shall the interest rate on any Bond, 
including Purchased Bonds, exceed the Ceiling Rate.  In addition, the interest rate on Purchased 
Bonds shall not exceed the Maximum Purchased Bond Rate.  The terms of this Bond shall not 
apply to Fixed Rate Bonds, and as used in this Bond, the term “Bond” or “Bonds” shall not include 
Fixed Rate Bonds. 

THE WEEKLY INTEREST RATE for the Bonds shall be determined by the Remarketing 
Agent by 4:30 p.m., New York City time, on Tuesday of each week during such Weekly Interest 
Rate Period, or if such day shall not be a Business Day, then on the next succeeding Business Day.  
The interest rate so determined shall be effective at the times set forth in the Resolution. 

IN DETERMINING each Weekly Interest Rate for the Bonds, the Remarketing Agent shall 
set such rates at the respective interest rates that, in the sole and exclusive judgment of the 
Remarketing Agent, would equal (but not exceed) the interest rates necessary to enable the 
Remarketing Agent to sell such Bonds (exclusive of accrued interest, if any) on the relevant 
determination date, at a price equal to the principal amount thereof; provided, however, that such 
interest rate shall not exceed the Ceiling Rate. 

NOTWITHSTANDING anything to the contrary contained herein, this Bond, if held by or 
for the account of the Liquidity Provider as a Purchased Bond, shall bear interest at the Purchased 



 A-5 

Bond Rate, payable at the times and in the manner and calculated on the basis provided in the 
Liquidity Facility; provided, however, that the Purchased Bond Rate shall not exceed the 
Maximum Purchased Bond Rate as provided in the Resolution. 

THE BONDS (including Purchased Bonds) shall be subject to scheduled mandatory 
sinking fund redemption and shall be redeemed on the first Business Day of the months and in the 
respective principal amounts set forth in the table below, at a redemption price equal to the 
principal amount thereof, without premium, plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption: 

Redemption Date Principal Amount Redemption Date Principal Amount7 

    
    
    

 

The principal amount of Bonds to be redeemed on each such redemption date pursuant to 
mandatory sinking fund redemption shall be reduced, at the option of the Board, by the principal 
amount of any Bonds [of the same stated maturity]8 which (i) at least 45 days prior to such 
mandatory sinking fund redemption date, (a) shall have been acquired by the Board and delivered 
to the Registrar for cancellation, or (b) shall have been acquired and canceled by the Registrar at 
the direction of the Board, or (c) shall have been redeemed pursuant to any redemption provision 
set forth below and (ii) shall have not been previously credited against a scheduled mandatory 
sinking fund redemption. 

THE BONDS (including Purchased Bonds) shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity 
on the first Business Day of any month, at the option and direction of the Board, in whole or in 
part, at a redemption price of par plus accrued interest.  [In the case of any such redemption, the 
Board shall select the maturity or maturities of the Bonds to be redeemed and the amounts thereof 
in Authorized Denominations.]8 

IN THE EVENT of any redemption of less than all of the Bonds [of a particular maturity]8, 
the particular Bonds [within each such maturity]8 to be redeemed are to be selected by the Registrar 
by lot in such manner as the Registrar shall deem fair and appropriate.  During any period in which 
ownership of the Bonds is determined only by a book entry at a securities depository for the Bonds, 
if less than the entire principal amount Outstanding of all the Bonds is to be redeemed, the interests 
to be redeemed of the beneficial owners of the Bonds [of such maturity]9 shall be selected in 
accordance with the arrangements between the Board and the securities depository.  In the event 
of any redemption of Bonds, Purchased Bonds shall be selected first for redemption in the manner 
described in the Resolution. 

 
7  The amounts set forth in the Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate should be included in the table.  Additional 

tables shall be added if there is more than one stated maturity of a series of Series 2024 Bonds, with a heading 
above each table identifying the stated maturity of the Series 2024 Bonds to which such table relates. 

8  Bracketed text to be deleted if there is only one stated maturity of the series of Series 2024 Bonds. 
9  Bracketed text to be deleted if there is only one stated maturity of the series of Series 2024 Bonds. 



 A-6 

AT LEAST 30 days prior to the date fixed for any such redemption of this Bond, a written 
notice of such redemption shall be sent by first class mail, postage prepaid, by the Registrar to the 
Holder hereof.  By the date fixed for any such redemption, due provision shall be made by the 
Board with the Paying Agent for the payment of the required redemption price for this Bond or 
the portion hereof which is to be so redeemed.  If such written notice of redemption is given, and 
if due provision for such payment is made, all as provided above, this Bond, or the portion hereof 
which is to be redeemed, thereby automatically shall be redeemed prior to its scheduled maturity, 
and shall not bear interest after the date fixed for its redemption, and shall not be regarded as being 
Outstanding except for the right of the Holder to receive the redemption price plus accrued interest 
to the date fixed for redemption from the Paying Agent out of the funds provided for such payment.  
The Registrar shall record in the Registration Books all such redemptions of principal of this Bond 
or any portion hereof.  If a portion of any Bond shall be redeemed, a substitute Bond [having the 
same maturity date,]9 in any Authorized Denomination that may be requested by the Holder 
thereof, and in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion thereof, will be 
issued to the Holder upon the surrender thereof for cancellation, at the expense of the Board, all as 
provided in the Resolution. 

IN ADDITION to the notice of redemption required above, the Registrar shall send notice 
of redemption of Bonds by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, 
or by overnight delivery service contemporaneously with such mailing:  (a) to any registered owner 
of $1,000,000 or more in aggregate principal amount of Bonds; (b) to two or more information 
services of national recognition that disseminate redemption information with respect to municipal 
bonds; and (c) to any securities depository that is a registered owner of the Bonds.  In addition, in 
the event of a redemption caused by an advance refunding of the Bonds, the Registrar shall send a 
second notice of redemption to all registered owners of the Bonds at least 30 days but not more 
than 90 days prior to the actual redemption date.  Any notice required to be sent to any registered 
securities depositories or national information services shall be sent so that it is received at least 
two (2) days prior to the general mailing date of such notice.  The Registrar shall also send a notice 
of redemption to the registered owner of any Bond who has not sent the Bonds in for redemption 
60 days after the redemption date.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the failure to give any notice 
of redemption set forth in this paragraph or any defect in such notice or the mailing thereof shall 
not affect the validity of any proceedings for redemption of Bonds. 

ANY BONDS, subject to the requirements regarding timely notice and delivery, will be 
purchased, in accordance with the provisions of the Resolution, on the demand of the Holder 
thereof as provided in the Resolution and delivery to the Tender Agent of such Bond, endorsed in 
blank by the Holder thereof or accompanied by an instrument of transfer thereof in form 
satisfactory to the Tender Agent, executed in blank by the Holder thereof (the Tender Agent being 
able to refuse to accept delivery of any such Bond not endorsed in blank or for which an instrument 
of transfer satisfactory to it has not been provided).  THE TIMELY DELIVERY OF A 
PROPERLY COMPLETED TENDER REQUEST NOTICE SHALL CONSTITUTE AN 
IRREVOCABLE TENDER OF THE BONDS COVERED THEREBY. 

THE BONDS WILL BE SUBJECT to mandatory tender for purchase on the Business Days 
and under the circumstances specified in the Resolution. 



 A-7 

EACH BOND SHALL BE SUBJECT to mandatory tender for purchase on the Fixed Rate 
Conversion Date. 

IF THE HOLDER HEREOF FAILS TO DELIVER THIS BOND OR ANY PORTION 
HEREOF TO THE TENDER AGENT AFTER GIVING NOTICE OF AN OPTIONAL TENDER, 
OR UPON A MANDATORY TENDER, AND MONEYS SUFFICIENT TO PAY THE 
PURCHASE PRICE OF THIS BOND ARE ON DEPOSIT WITH THE TENDER AGENT, THIS 
BOND OR PORTION HEREOF SHALL BE DEEMED TO HAVE PURCHASED, AND 
THEREAFTER NO FURTHER INTEREST SHALL ACCRUE ON THIS BOND OR SUCH 
PORTION.  THE HOLDER HEREOF SHALL THEREAFTER HAVE RECOURSE SOLELY 
TO THE FUNDS HELD BY THE TENDER AGENT FOR THE PURCHASE OF THIS BOND, 
AND THE TENDER AGENT SHALL NOT RECOGNIZE ANY FURTHER TRANSFER 
HEREOF. 

WHENEVER, during the term of the Bonds, the beneficial ownership thereof is determined 
by a book entry at DTC (or any successor securities depository), tenders of Bonds shall be made 
pursuant to DTC’s (or any successor securities depository’s) deliver order procedures or 
repayment option procedures, as applicable, as are in effect from time to time.  Upon remarketing 
of Bonds, payment of the purchase price thereof shall be made to DTC (or any successor securities 
depository) and no surrender of Bonds is required.  Such sales shall be made through the DTC 
Participants (which may include the Remarketing Agent) to the new beneficial owners of such 
Bonds, and the DTC Participants shall transmit payment to beneficial owners whose Bonds were 
purchased pursuant to a remarketing.  The Board and the Registrar, the Paying Agent, the Tender 
Agent, the Liquidity Provider and the Remarketing Agent are not responsible for transfer of 
payment to the DTC Participants or beneficial owners. 

THIS BOND or any portion or portions hereof in any Authorized Denomination may be 
assigned and shall be transferred only in the Registration Books of the Board kept and maintained 
by the Registrar acting in the capacity of registrar for the Bonds, upon the terms and conditions set 
forth in the Resolution.  Among other requirements for such assignment and transfer, this Bond 
must be presented and surrendered to the Registrar, together with proper instruments of 
assignment, in form and with guarantee of signatures satisfactory to the Registrar, evidencing 
assignment of this Bond or any portion or portions hereof, in any Authorized Denomination, to the 
assignee or assignees in whose name or names this Bond or any such portion or portions hereof is 
or are to be transferred and registered.  The form of Assignment printed or endorsed on this Bond 
may be executed by the registered owner to evidence the assignment hereof, but such method is 
not exclusive, and other instruments of assignment satisfactory to the Registrar may be used to 
evidence the assignment of this Bond or any portion or portions hereof from time to time by the 
registered owner.  A new Bond or Bonds payable to such assignee (which then will be the new 
registered owner of such new Bond or Bonds), or to the previous registered owner in the case of 
the assignment and transfer of only a portion of this Bond, may be delivered by the Registrar in 
conversion of and exchange for this Bond, all in the form and manner as provided in the next 
paragraph hereof for the conversion and exchange of other Bonds.  Except in the case of tenders 
of Bonds pursuant to the Resolution or of the remarketing of Purchased Bonds, neither the Board 
nor the Registrar shall be required (a) to issue, replace, transfer, or exchange any Bond during a 
period beginning at the opening of business 30 days before the day of the first mailing of a notice 
of redemption of Bonds and ending at the close of business on the day of such mailing or (b) to 



 A-8 

replace, transfer or exchange any Bond so selected for redemption in whole or in part when such 
redemption is scheduled to occur within 30 calendar days; except that at the option of the registered 
owner of at least $1,000,000 in principal amount of Bonds, the Registrar shall be required to 
transfer or exchange any Bond of such owner which has been selected in whole or in part for 
redemption upon surrender thereof.  The Registrar may make such arrangements as it deems 
appropriate for notation on each new Bond issued in exchange for or upon the transfer of the Bond 
so selected for redemption of an appropriate legend to the effect that such new Bond has been so 
selected for redemption.  The registered owner of this Bond shall be treated by the Issuer, the 
Board, the Paying Agent and the Registrar as the absolute owner hereof for all purposes, including 
payment and discharge of liability upon this Bond to the extent of such payment, and the Issuer, 
the Board, the Paying Agent and the Registrar shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary.  
The Board shall pay the Registrar’s reasonable and standard or customary fees and charges for 
making such transfer, but the one requesting such transfer shall pay any taxes or other 
governmental charges required to be paid with respect thereto. 

AS PROVIDED in the Resolution, this Bond, or any portion hereof, may, at the request of 
the registered owner or the assignee or assignees hereof, be converted into and exchanged for a 
like aggregate principal amount of fully registered Bonds, without interest coupons, payable to the 
appropriate registered owner, assignee, or assignees, as the case may be, having the same maturity 
date, in the same Interest Mode, bearing interest at the same rate, and in any Authorized 
Denomination, as requested in writing by the appropriate registered owner, assignee, or assignees, 
as the case may be, upon surrender of this Bond to the Registrar for cancellation, all in accordance 
with the form and procedures set forth in the Resolution.  The one requesting such conversion and 
exchange shall pay the Registrar’s reasonable and standard or customary fees and charges for 
converting and exchanging any Bond or portion thereof, together with any taxes or governmental 
charges required to be paid with respect thereto, all as a condition precedent to the exercise of such 
privilege of conversion and exchange; except, however, that in the case of the conversion and 
exchange of an assigned and transferred Bond or Bonds or any portion or portions thereof in any 
Authorized Denomination, as described in the previous paragraph, and in the case of the 
conversion and exchange of a portion of the unredeemed portion of a Bond which has been 
redeemed in part prior to maturity, as provided herein, such fees and charges will be paid by the 
Board. 

WHENEVER the beneficial ownership of this Bond is determined only by a book entry at 
a securities depository for the Bonds, the foregoing requirements of registering, holding, 
delivering, exchanging or transferring this Bond shall be modified to require the appropriate 
Person to meet the requirements of the securities depository as to registering, holding, delivering, 
exchanging or transferring the book entry to produce the same effect. 

IN THE EVENT that the initial Paying Agent or Registrar for the Bonds is changed by the 
Board, resigns, or otherwise ceases to act as such, the Board has covenanted in the Resolution that 
it promptly will appoint a competent and legally qualified substitute therefor, whose qualifications 
comply with the requirements of the Resolution, and that one entity will serve as Paying Agent 
and Registrar, except during periods when the Bonds are registered only by means of a book entry 
at a securities depository, and promptly will cause written notice thereof to be mailed to the 
registered owners of the Bonds. 



 A-9 

BY BECOMING the registered owner of this Bond, the registered owner thereby 
acknowledges all of the terms and provisions of the Resolution, agrees to be bound by such terms 
and provisions, acknowledges that the Resolution is duly recorded and available for inspection in 
the official minutes and records of the Board, and agrees that the terms and provisions of this Bond 
and the Resolution constitute a contract between each registered owner hereof and the Board. 

THE BOARD reserves the right to amend the Resolution, as deemed necessary or desirable 
by the Board, with the consent of the registered owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount 
of the Bonds then Outstanding under the terms and conditions stated in the Resolution.  The Board 
may, without the consent of the registered owners of the Bonds, adopt certain amendments to the 
Resolution as set forth in the Resolution. 

IN THE EVENT of any conflict or inconsistency between the terms and provisions of this 
Bond and the terms and provisions of the Resolution, the terms and provisions of the Resolution 
shall control. 

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED and recited that all acts, conditions and things required to be 
done precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond and the series of which it forms a part have 
been properly done, have happened and have been performed in regular and due time, form and 
manner as required by the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas and the Resolution, that the 
series of Bonds of which this is a part does not exceed any Constitutional or statutory limitation, 
and that provision has been made for the payment of the principal of and interest on this Bond and 
the series of which it is a part by a pledge of the credit of the Issuer and of the funds specified 
herein. 

[UNLESS THE COMPTROLLER’S REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE hereon has been 
executed by the Comptroller by manual signature, this Bond shall not be entitled to any benefit 
under the Resolution or be valid or obligatory for any purpose.]10  

[UNLESS THE REGISTRAR’S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE hereon has been 
executed by the Registrar by manual signature, this Bond shall not be entitled to any benefit under 
the Resolution or be valid or obligatory for any purpose.]11  

 

 
10  To be included in an Initial Series 2024 Bond only. 
11  To be included in all Series 2024 Bonds of a series other than the Initial Series 2024 Bond. 



 A-10 

IN TESTIMONY HEREOF, this Bond is executed with the manual or facsimile signatures 
of the Chairwoman of the Board and of the Executive Secretary of the Board, and the seal of said 
Board impressed, lithographed or printed hereon. 

 THE STATE OF TEXAS 
 
 
 
 _________________________ 
 Chairwoman, Veterans’ Land Board 
   of the State of Texas 
 
________________________ 
Executive Secretary, Veterans’ 
  Land Board of the State of Texas 
 
(SEAL) 
 



 A-11 

*FORM OF REGISTRAR’S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATION ATTACHED TO 
WEEKLY RATE BONDS OTHER THAN AN INITIAL SERIES 2024 BOND 

REGISTRAR’S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE 

It is hereby certified that this Bond has been issued under the provisions of the Resolution 
described in this Bond; and that this Bond has been issued in conversion of and exchange for or 
replacement of a bond, bonds, or a portion of a bond or bonds of an issue which originally was 
approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered by the Comptroller of Public 
Accounts of the State of Texas. 

Dated: _______________________ _______________________________, 
     ____________, ____________, 
 Registrar 
 
 
 By:  _______________________________ 
  Authorized Representative 
 

  



 A-12 

*FORM OF ASSIGNMENT 

ASSIGNMENT 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
(Please print or typewrite name and address, including zip code of Transferee) 

Please insert Social Security 
or Taxpayer Identification Number 
of Transferee 
 

 

the within Bond and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________ attorney to register the transfer of the within Bond on the books kept 
for registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises. 

Dated:   

Signature Guaranteed: 

NOTICE: Signature(s) must be guaranteed by 
a member firm of the New York Stock 
Exchange or a commercial bank or trust 
company. 

NOTICE: The signature above must 
correspond with the name of the Registered 
Owner as it appears upon the front of this Bond 
in every particular, without alteration or 
enlargement or any change whatsoever. 

 

 



 A-13 

*FORM OF COMPTROLLER’S REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE ATTACHED TO 
AN INITIAL SERIES 2024 BOND 

OFFICE OF COMPTROLLER § 
     § REGISTER NO. ___________ 
STATE OF TEXAS   § 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that this Bond has been examined, certified as to validity and 
approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas, and duly registered by the Texas 
Comptroller of Public Accounts. 

WITNESS MY HAND and seal of office at Austin, Texas _____________________. 

 
 
 ____________________________________ 
 Comptroller of Public Accounts 
 of the State of Texas 
 

(SEAL) 

NOTE TO PRINTER: 
* ¶s not to be on bond 
  



 A-14 

ADDITIONAL REVISIONS TO BE MADE TO 
AN INITIAL SERIES 2024 BOND IF MORE THAN ONE MATURITY 

Each Initial Series 2024 Bond shall be in the form set forth in this Exhibit A, except that if 
there is more than one stated maturity of a series of Series 2024 Bonds: 

(i) immediately under the name of the Bond, the blank beneath the heading 
“MATURITY DATE” shall be completed with the words “As shown below”; 

(ii) in the first paragraph of such Initial Series 2024 Bond, the words “ON THE 
MATURITY DATE SPECIFIED ABOVE” shall be deleted and replaced with the 
following:  “ON THE MATURITY DATES SPECIFIED BELOW”. 

(iii) in the first paragraph of such Initial Series 2024 Bond, the words “from the 
Settlement Date to the date of its scheduled maturity or the date of its redemption prior to 
scheduled maturity, at the rate of interest per annum determined pursuant to the Resolution 
(as defined below)” shall be replaced with the following “from the Settlement Date to the 
dates of its scheduled maturity or the date or dates of its redemption prior to scheduled 
maturity, in the principal installments set forth below and bearing interest at the per annum 
rate of interest per annum determined pursuant to the Resolution (as defined below): 

Date Principal Amount 

  
[Information for such Series 2024 Bonds to be inserted 

from Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate]” 

  



 B-1 

EXHIBIT B 

FORM OF FIXED RATE BOND 

[Unless this bond is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Trust Company, 
a New York corporation (“DTC”), to the Issuer or its agent for registration of transfer, exchange, 
or payment, and any certificate issued is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or in such other 
name as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC (and any payment is made to Cede 
& Co. or to such other entity as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC), ANY 
TRANSFER, PLEDGE, OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO 
ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the registered owner hereof, Cede & Co., has an 
interest herein.]1 

NO. FR-____          $__________ 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
 

STATE OF TEXAS 
VETERANS BOND, 

TAXABLE SERIES 20242 

MATURITY DATE: INTEREST RATE: BOND DATE: CUSIP NUMBER: 

_________, ____ _______% __________, 20____ ______ ___ 

ON THE MATURITY DATE SPECIFIED ABOVE, the State of Texas (hereinafter 
sometimes called the “Issuer”), acting by and through the Veterans’ Land Board (the “Board”) of 
the State of Texas, hereby promises to pay to ________________________________, or to the 
registered assignee hereof (either being hereinafter called the “registered owner”), the principal 
amount of _____________________________________ DOLLARS and to pay interest thereon, 
from the bond date stated above to the date of its scheduled maturity or the date of its redemption 
prior to scheduled maturity, at the rate of interest per annum specified above, with said interest 
being payable on __________ 1, 20___, and semiannually on each June 1 and December 1 
thereafter (computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months) (each, an 
“Interest Payment Date”). 

THE PRINCIPAL OF AND PREMIUM, IF ANY, AND INTEREST ON this Bond are 
payable in lawful money of the United States of America, without exchange or collection charges.  
The principal of and premium, if any, on this Bond shall be paid to the registered owner hereof 
upon presentation and surrender of this Bond at maturity or upon the date fixed for its redemption 
prior to maturity, at the designated office of the Paying Agent for the Bonds (defined below), which 
is initially the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas in Austin, Texas.  The payment 
of interest on this Bond shall be made by the Paying Agent to the registered owner hereof as shown 
by the Registration Books kept and maintained by the Registrar for the Bonds, which is initially 
_________________, (i) at the close of business on the fifteenth day of the calendar month 

 
1  To be included in any Series 2024 Bond registered in the name of Cede & Co. 
2  Series designation to be added if necessary. 



 B-2 

immediately preceding each Interest Payment Date, or (ii) in the case of a redemption of Bonds 
prior to maturity, the fifteenth day prior to the mailing of the applicable notice of redemption (each, 
a “Record Date”), by check drawn by the Paying Agent on, and payable solely from, funds of the 
Board required to be on deposit with the Paying Agent for such purpose as hereinafter provided; 
and such check shall be sent by the Paying Agent by first class United States mail, postage prepaid, 
on each such Interest Payment Date, to the registered owner hereof at its address as it appears on 
the Registration Books kept and maintained by the Registrar, as hereinafter described.  The Paying 
Agent shall make payment of the principal of and premium, if any, or interest on this Bond by wire 
transfer in immediately available funds to a bank account located within the United States of 
Federal Reserve Funds upon request of the registered owner hereof, provided such registered 
owner is the registered owner of $1,000,000 or more in aggregate principal amount of Bonds and 
provides the necessary wire information to the Paying Agent at least 15 days prior to the applicable 
Record Date.  The Board covenants with the registered owner of this Bond that as of each Interest 
Payment Date for this Bond it will make available to the Paying Agent the amounts required to 
provide for the payment, in immediately available funds, of all principal of and interest on the 
Bonds, when due.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, during any period in which ownership of the 
Bonds is determined only by a book entry at a securities depository for the Bonds, payments made 
to the securities depository, or its nominee, shall be made in accordance with arrangements 
between the Board and the securities depository. 

UNLESS OTHERWISE DEFINED herein, capitalized words and terms used in this Bond 
and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings ascribed to such terms in the Resolution 
(defined below). 

IF THE DATE for the payment of the principal of or interest on this Bond shall not be a 
Business Day, then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding Business Day and 
payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the original date payment 
was due. 

THIS BOND is one of a series of bonds of like tenor and effect except as to number, 
principal amount and scheduled maturity, aggregating ___________________ Dollars3 
($_____________)3 (the “Bonds”), issued for the purpose of making Home Loans to Texas 
Veterans, all in accordance with the provisions of the Constitutional Provision, the Act and Chapter 
1371, and pursuant to a resolution authorizing the issuance of the series of Bonds of which this is 
one, adopted by the Board and duly of record in the minutes of the Board (the “Resolution”).  The 
Bonds are issuable solely as fully registered bonds, without interest coupons, in denominations of 
any integral multiple of $5,000 (each, an “Authorized Denomination”). 

THE SERIES OF BONDS of which this is one shall be and is hereby made a general 
obligation of the State of Texas, pursuant to the Constitutional Provision and the Act, and for the 
faithful performance of all covenants, recitals and stipulations herein contained, and for the faithful 
performance in proper time and manner of each official or other act required and necessary to 

 
3  For Converted Fixed Rate Bonds, the original aggregate principal amount of such series of Series 2024 Bonds 

set forth in the Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate should be set forth here; for Series 2024 Bonds issued 
as Fixed Rate Bonds, the original aggregate principal amount of such series of Series 2024 Bonds set forth in 
the Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate should be set forth here. 



 B-3 

provide for the prompt payment of principal of and interest on this Bond when due, the full faith 
and credit of the State of Texas are hereby pledged. 

PAYMENTS OF THE PRINCIPAL OF and premium, if any, and interest on this Bond, 
shall be made primarily from the Veterans’ Housing Assistance Fund II (“Fund II”) created by the 
Constitutional Provision, which fund shall be comprised of (1) any interest of the Board in all 
Home Loans made from money in Fund II pursuant to the Program, including proceeds of any 
insurance thereon or on the homes, (2) the proceeds derived from the sale or other disposition of 
the Board’s interests in Home Loans, (3) the money attributable to any Housing Assistance Bonds 
(defined below) (except for certain expenses related to the issuance of Housing Assistance Bonds) 
issued and sold by the Board to provide money for Fund II which shall include but shall not be 
limited to the proceeds from the issuance and sale of such Housing Assistance Bonds, (4) income, 
rents, and any other pecuniary benefit received by the Board as a result of making Home Loans, 
(5) sums received by way of indemnity or forfeiture for the failure of any bidder for the purchase 
of any Housing Assistance Bonds to comply with the person’s bid and accept and pay for such 
Housing Assistance Bonds, (6) payments received by the Board under bond enhancement 
agreements with respect to the Housing Assistance Bonds, (7) interest received from investments 
of any such money, and (8) any equitable interest of the Board in properties encumbered by Home 
Loans and attributable to Fund II.  The Bonds and all other bonds issued by the Board pursuant to 
the Constitution of the State to augment Fund II or to refund any such bonds are referred to herein 
as “Housing Assistance Bonds.”  The Constitutional Provision provides that to the extent there is 
not money in Fund II available for payment of principal of and interest on the Housing Assistance 
Bonds, there is appropriated out of the first money coming into the State Treasury in each fiscal 
year, not otherwise appropriated by the Texas Constitution, an amount which is sufficient to pay 
the principal of and interest on such Housing Assistance Bonds that mature or become due during 
that fiscal year. 

THE BONDS are subject to scheduled mandatory sinking fund redemption, and shall be 
redeemed on the dates and in the respective principal amounts set forth in the table below, at a 
redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof, without premium, plus accrued interest to 
the date fixed for redemption: 

Redemption Date Principal Amount Redemption Date Principal Amount4 

    
    
    

__________________ 
*Stated maturity 

 
4  For Converted Fixed Rate Bonds, the remaining amounts set forth in the applicable Purchase Contract or Pricing 

Certificate should be included in the table, and additional tables shall be added if there is more than one stated 
maturity of such Series 2024 Bonds, with a heading above each table identifying the stated maturity of the 
Series 2024 Bonds to which such table relates; for Series 2024 Bonds issued as Fixed Rate Bonds, the amounts 
set forth in the Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate shall be set forth here. 

 



 B-4 

The principal amount of Bonds to be redeemed on each such redemption date pursuant to 
mandatory sinking fund redemption shall be reduced, at the option of the Board, by the principal 
amount of any Bonds [of the same stated maturity]5 which (A) at least 45 days prior to such 
mandatory sinking fund redemption date, (1) shall have been acquired by the Board and delivered 
to the Registrar for cancellation, or (2) shall have been acquired and canceled by the Registrar at 
the direction of the Board, or (3) shall have been redeemed pursuant to any optional redemption 
and (B) shall have not been previously credited against a scheduled mandatory sinking fund 
redemption. 

THE BONDS shall be subject to redemption and may be redeemed prior to the scheduled 
maturities thereof, at the option and direction of the Board, at any time and from time to time on 
and after ___________ 1, 20___, in whole or in part, at the redemption prices set forth below 
(expressed as a percentage of the principal amount of the Bonds or portions thereof to be 
redeemed), plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption: 

Redemption Dates Redemption Price 

  
  
  
  

[In the case of any such redemption, the Board shall select the maturity or maturities of the 
Bonds to be redeemed and the amounts thereof in Authorized Denominations.]5 

IN THE EVENT of any redemption of less than all of the Bonds [of a particular maturity]5, 
the particular Bonds [within such maturity]5 to be redeemed are to be selected by the Registrar by 
lot in such manner as the Registrar shall deem fair and appropriate.  During any period in which 
ownership of the Bonds is determined only by a book entry at a securities depository for the Bonds, 
if less than the entire principal amount Outstanding of all the Bonds [of the same maturity are to 
be redeemed]5, the interests to be redeemed of the beneficial owners of the Bonds of such maturity 
shall be selected in accordance with the arrangements between the Board and the securities 
depository. 

AT LEAST 30 days prior to the date fixed for any such redemption of this Bond, a written 
notice of such redemption shall be sent by first class mail, postage prepaid, by the Registrar to the 
Holder hereof.  By the date fixed for any such redemption, due provision shall be made by the 
Board with the Paying Agent for the payment of the required redemption price for this Bond or 
the portion hereof which is to be so redeemed.  If such written notice of redemption is given, and 
if due provision for such payment is made, all as provided above, this Bond, or the portion hereof 
which is to be redeemed, thereby automatically shall be redeemed prior to its scheduled maturity, 
and shall not bear interest after the date fixed for its redemption, and shall not be regarded as being 
Outstanding except for the right of the Holder to receive the redemption price plus accrued interest 
to the date fixed for redemption from the Paying Agent out of the funds provided for such payment.  
The Registrar shall record in the Registration Books all such redemptions of principal of this Bond 
or any portion hereof.  If a portion of any Bond shall be redeemed, a substitute Bond [having the 

 
5  Bracketed text to be deleted if there is only one stated maturity of the series of Series 2024 Bonds. 



 B-5 

same stated maturity,]6 in any Authorized Denomination that may be requested by the Holder 
thereof, and in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion thereof, will be 
issued to the Holder upon the surrender thereof for cancellation, at the expense of the Board, all as 
provided in the Resolution. 

IN ADDITION to the notice of redemption required above, the Registrar shall send notice 
of redemption of Bonds by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, 
or by overnight delivery service contemporaneously with such mailing:  (1) to any registered 
owner of $1,000,000 or more in aggregate principal amount of Bonds; (2) to two or more 
information services of national recognition that disseminate redemption information with respect 
to municipal bonds; and (3) to any securities depository that is a registered owner of the Bonds.  
In addition, in the event of a redemption caused by an advance refunding of the Bonds, the 
Registrar shall send a second notice of redemption to all registered owners of the Bonds at least 
30 days but not more than 90 days prior to the actual redemption date.  Any notice required to be 
sent to any registered securities depositories or national information services shall be sent so that 
it is received at least two (2) days prior to the general mailing date of such notice.  The Registrar 
shall also send a notice of redemption to the registered owner of any Bond who has not sent the 
Bonds in for redemption 60 days after the redemption date.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 
failure to give any notice of redemption set forth in this paragraph or any defect in such notice or 
the mailing thereof shall not affect the validity of any proceedings for redemption of Bonds. 

THIS BOND or any portion or portions hereof in any Authorized Denomination may be 
assigned and shall be transferred only in the Registration Books of the Board kept and maintained 
by the Registrar acting in the capacity of registrar for the Bonds, upon the terms and conditions set 
forth in the Resolution.  Among other requirements for such assignment and transfer, this Bond 
must be presented and surrendered to the Registrar, together with proper instruments of 
assignment, in form and with guarantee of signatures satisfactory to the Registrar, evidencing 
assignment of this Bond or any portion or portions hereof, in any Authorized Denomination, to the 
assignee or assignees in whose name or names this Bond or any such portion or portions hereof is 
or are to be transferred and registered.  The form of Assignment printed or endorsed on this Bond 
may be executed by the registered owner to evidence the assignment hereof, but such method is 
not exclusive, and other instruments of assignment satisfactory to the Registrar may be used to 
evidence the assignment of this Bond or any portion or portions hereof from time to time by the 
registered owner.  A new Bond or Bonds payable to such assignee (which then will be the new 
registered owner of such new Bond or Bonds), or to the previous registered owner in the case of 
the assignment and transfer of only a portion of this Bond, may be delivered by the Registrar in 
conversion of and exchange for this Bond, all in the form and manner as provided in the next 
paragraph hereof for the conversion and exchange of other Bonds.  Neither the Board nor the 
Registrar shall be required (1) to issue, replace, transfer, or exchange any Bond during a period 
beginning at the opening of business 30 days before the day of the first mailing of a notice of 
redemption of Bonds and ending at the close of business on the day of such mailing or (2) to 
replace, transfer or exchange any Bond so selected for redemption in whole or in part when such 
redemption is scheduled to occur within 30 calendar days; except that at the option of the registered 
owner of at least $1,000,000 in principal amount of Bonds, the Registrar shall be required to 
transfer or exchange any Bond of such owner which has been selected in whole or in part for 

 
6  Bracketed text to be deleted if there only one stated maturity of the series of Series 2024 Bonds. 



 B-6 

redemption upon surrender thereof.  The Registrar may make such arrangements as it deems 
appropriate for notation on each new Bond issued in exchange for or upon the transfer of the Bond 
so selected for redemption of an appropriate legend to the effect that such new Bond has been so 
selected for redemption.  The registered owner of this Bond shall be treated by the Issuer, the 
Board, the Paying Agent and the Registrar as the absolute owner hereof for all purposes, including 
payment and discharge of liability upon this Bond to the extent of such payment, and the Issuer, 
the Board, the Paying Agent and the Registrar shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary.  
The Board shall pay the Registrar’s reasonable and standard or customary fees and charges for 
making such transfer, but the one requesting such transfer shall pay any taxes or other 
governmental charges required to be paid with respect thereto. 

AS PROVIDED in the Resolution, this Bond, or any portion hereof, may, at the request of 
the registered owner or the assignee or assignees hereof, be converted into and exchanged for a 
like aggregate principal amount of fully registered Bonds, without interest coupons, payable to the 
appropriate registered owner, assignee, or assignees, as the case may be, having the same maturity 
date, bearing interest at the same rate, and in any Authorized Denomination, as requested in writing 
by the appropriate registered owner, assignee, or assignees, as the case may be, upon surrender of 
this Bond to the Registrar for cancellation, all in accordance with the form and procedures set forth 
in the Resolution.  The one requesting such conversion and exchange shall pay the Registrar’s 
reasonable and standard or customary fees and charges for converting and exchanging any Bond 
or portion thereof, together with any taxes or governmental charges required to be paid with respect 
thereto, all as a condition precedent to the exercise of such privilege of conversion and exchange; 
except, however, that in the case of the conversion and exchange of an assigned and transferred 
Bond or Bonds or any portion or portions thereof in any Authorized Denomination, as described 
in the previous paragraph, and in the case of the conversion and exchange of a portion of the 
unredeemed portion of a Bond which has been redeemed in part prior to maturity, as provided 
herein, such fees and charges will be paid by the Board. 

WHENEVER the beneficial ownership of this Bond is determined only by a book entry at 
a securities depository for the Bonds, the foregoing requirements of registering, holding, 
delivering, exchanging or transferring this Bond shall be modified to require the appropriate 
Person to meet the requirements of the securities depository as to registering, holding, delivering, 
exchanging or transferring the book entry to produce the same effect. 

IN THE EVENT that the initial Paying Agent or Registrar for the Bonds is changed by the 
Board, resigns, or otherwise ceases to act as such, the Board has covenanted in the Resolution that 
it promptly will appoint a competent and legally qualified substitute therefor, whose qualifications 
comply with the requirements of the Resolution, and that one entity will serve as Paying Agent 
and Registrar, except during periods when the Bonds are registered only by means of a book entry 
at a securities depository, and promptly will cause written notice thereof to be mailed to the 
registered owners of the Bonds. 

BY BECOMING the registered owner of this Bond, the registered owner thereby 
acknowledges all of the terms and provisions of the Resolution, agrees to be bound by such terms 
and provisions, acknowledges that the Resolution is duly recorded and available for inspection in 
the official minutes and records of the Board, and agrees that the terms and provisions of this Bond 
and the Resolution constitute a contract between each registered owner hereof and the Board. 



 B-7 

THE BOARD reserves the right to amend the Resolution, as deemed necessary or desirable 
by the Board, with the consent of the registered owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount 
of the Bonds then Outstanding under the terms and conditions stated in the Resolution.  The Board 
may, without the consent of the registered owners of the Bonds, adopt certain amendments to the 
Resolution as set forth in the Resolution. 

IN THE EVENT of any conflict or inconsistency between the terms and provisions of this 
Bond and the terms and provisions of the Resolution, the terms and provisions of the Resolution 
shall control. 

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED and recited that all acts, conditions and things required to be 
done precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond and the series of which it forms a part have 
been properly done, have happened and have been performed in regular and due time, form and 
manner as required by the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas and the Resolution, that the 
series of Bonds of which this is a part does not exceed any Constitutional or statutory limitation, 
and that provision has been made for the payment of the principal of and interest on this Bond and 
the series of which it is a part by a pledge of the credit of the Issuer and of the funds specified 
herein. 

UNLESS THE REGISTRAR’S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE hereon has been 
executed by the Registrar by manual signature, this Bond shall not be entitled to any benefit under 
the Resolution or be valid or obligatory for any purpose. 

IN TESTIMONY HEREOF, this Bond is executed with the manual or facsimile signatures 
of the Chairwoman of the Board and of the Executive Secretary of the Board, and the seal of said 
Board impressed, lithographed or printed hereon. 

 THE STATE OF TEXAS 
 
 
 
 _________________________________ 
 Chairwoman, Veterans’ Land Board 
   of the State of Texas 
 
_________________________________ 
Executive Secretary, Veterans’ 
  Land Board of the State of Texas 
 
(SEAL) 



 B-8 

*FORM OF REGISTRAR’S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATION  
ATTACHED TO ALL FIXED RATE BONDS 

OTHER THAN AN INITIAL SERIES 2024 BOND 

REGISTRAR’S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE 

It is hereby certified that this Bond has been issued under the provisions of the Resolution 
described in this Bond; and that this Bond has been issued in conversion of and exchange for or 
replacement of a bond, bonds, or a portion of a bond or bonds of an issue which originally was 
approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered by the Comptroller of Public 
Accounts of the State of Texas. 

Dated: _______________________ __________________________ 
 Registrar 
 
 
 By:  _______________________________ 
 Authorized Representative 
 

  



 B-9 

*FORM OF ASSIGNMENT 

ASSIGNMENT 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
(Please print or typewrite name and address, including zip code of Transferee) 

Please insert Social Security 
or Taxpayer Identification Number 
of Transferee 
 

 

the within Bond and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________ attorney to register the transfer of the within Bond on the books kept 
for registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises. 

Dated:   

Signature Guaranteed: 

NOTICE: Signature(s) must be guaranteed by 
a member firm of the New York Stock 
Exchange or a commercial bank or trust 
company. 

NOTICE: The signature above must 
correspond with the name of the Registered 
Owner as it appears upon the front of this Bond 
in every particular, without alteration or 
enlargement or any change whatsoever. 

 

NOTE TO PRINTER: 

*¶s not to be on bond 

 



 B-10 

*FORM OF COMPTROLLER’S REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE ATTACHED TO 
AN INITIAL SERIES 2024 BOND 

OFFICE OF COMPTROLLER § 
     § REGISTER NO. ___________ 
STATE OF TEXAS   § 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that this Bond has been examined, certified as to validity and 
approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas, and duly registered by the Texas 
Comptroller of Public Accounts. 

WITNESS MY HAND and seal of office at Austin, Texas _____________________. 

 
 
 ____________________________________ 
 Comptroller of Public Accounts 
 of the State of Texas 
 

(SEAL) 

NOTE TO PRINTER: 
* ¶s not to be on bond 
  



 B-11 

ADDITIONAL REVISIONS TO BE MADE TO 
AN INITIAL SERIES 2024 BOND IF MORE THAN ONE MATURITY 

Each Initial Series 2024 Bond shall be in the form set forth in this Exhibit B, except that if 
there is more than one stated maturity of a series of Series 2024 Bonds: 

(i) immediately under the name of the Bond, the blank beneath the headings 
“MATURITY DATE” and “INTEREST RATE” shall be completed with the words “As 
shown below”; 

(ii) in the first paragraph of such Initial Series 2024 Bond, the words “ON THE 
MATURITY DATE SPECIFIED ABOVE” shall be deleted and replaced with the 
following:  “ON THE MATURITY DATES SPECIFIED BELOW”. 

(iii) in the first paragraph of such Initial Series 2024 Bond, the words “from the 
bond date stated above to the date of its scheduled maturity or the date of its redemption 
prior to scheduled maturity, at the rate of interest per annum specified above” shall be 
replaced with the following “from the bond date stated above to the dates of its scheduled 
maturity or the date or dates of its redemption prior to scheduled maturity, in the principal 
installments and bearing interest at the per annum rates of interest per annum set forth 
below: 

Date Principal Amount Interest Rate 

   
[Information for such Series 2024 Bonds to be inserted 

from Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate]” 

 

 



 C-1 

EXHIBIT C 

FORM OF VARIABLE RATE BOND 

[Unless this bond is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Trust Company, 
a New York corporation (“DTC”), to the Issuer or its agent for registration of transfer, exchange, 
or payment, and any certificate issued is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or in such other 
name as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC (and any payment is made to Cede 
& Co. or to such other entity as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC), ANY 
TRANSFER, PLEDGE, OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO 
ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the registered owner hereof, Cede & Co., has an 
interest herein.]18 

NO. R- ____          $__________ 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
 

STATE OF TEXAS 
VETERANS BOND, 

TAXABLE SERIES 202419 

MATURITY DATE: INTEREST RATE: BOND DATE: CUSIP NUMBER: 20 

_________, ____ Variable ____________, 2024 ______ ___ 

 

ON THE MATURITY DATE SPECIFIED ABOVE, the State of Texas (hereinafter 
sometimes called the “Issuer”), acting by and through the Veterans’ Land Board (the “Board”) of 
the Issuer, hereby promises to pay to ________________________________, or to the registered 
assignee hereof (either being hereinafter called the “Holder”) the principal amount of 
________________________________________ DOLLARS and to pay interest thereon, from 
[the Settlement Date]21  [the bond date stated above]22 to the date of its scheduled maturity or the 
date of its redemption prior to scheduled maturity, at the rate of interest per annum determined 
pursuant to the Resolution (defined below), with said interest being payable on each Interest 
Payment Date (computed on the basis of _______________.23 

UNLESS OTHERWISE DEFINED herein, capitalized words and terms used in this Bond 
and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings ascribed to such terms in the Resolution 
(defined below). 

 
18  To be included in any Series 2024 Bond registered in the name of Cede & Co. 
19  Series designation to be added if applicable. 
20  To be omitted from the Initial Series 2024 Bond of any series or if indicated in the related Pricing Certificate. 
21  To be included in the Initial Series 2024 Bond of any series. 
22  To be included in all Variable Rate Bonds except an Initial Series 2024 Bond. 
23  Text specified in related Pricing Certificate to be added here. 



 C-2 

THE PRINCIPAL OF AND PREMIUM, IF ANY, AND INTEREST ON this Bond are 
payable in lawful money of the United States of America, without exchange or collection charges.  
The principal of and premium, if any, on this Bond shall be paid to the registered owner hereof 
upon presentation and surrender of this Bond at maturity or upon the date fixed for its redemption 
prior to maturity, at the designated office of the Paying Agent for the Bonds (defined below), which 
is initially the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas in Austin, Texas.  The payment 
of interest on this Bond shall be made by the Paying Agent to the registered owner hereof as shown 
by the Registration Books kept and maintained by the Registrar for the Bonds, which is initially 
_______________________, at the close of business on the Business Day immediately preceding 
each Interest Payment Date (including each redemption date) (each, a “Record Date”) by check 
drawn by the Paying Agent on, and payable solely from, funds of the Board required to be on 
deposit with the Paying Agent for such purpose as hereinafter provided; and such check shall be 
sent by the Paying Agent by first class United States mail, postage prepaid, on each such Interest 
Payment Date, to the Holder hereof at its address as it appears on the Registration Books kept and 
maintained by the Registrar, as hereinafter described.  The Paying Agent shall make payment of 
the principal of and premium, if any, or interest on any Bond by wire transfer in immediately 
available funds to a bank account located within the United States of Federal Reserve Funds to the 
Liquidity Provider (in the case of any Purchased Bond) and to any Holder of $1,000,000 or more 
in aggregate principal amount of Bonds requesting such payment and providing the necessary wire 
information to the Paying Agent at least 15 days prior to the applicable Record Date.  The Board 
covenants with the Holder of this Bond that as of each Interest Payment Date for this Bond it will 
make available to the Paying Agent the amounts required to provide for the payment, in 
immediately available funds, of all principal of and interest on the Bonds, when due.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, during any period in which ownership of the Bonds is determined 
only by a book entry at a securities depository for the Bonds, payments made to the securities 
depository, or its nominee, shall be made in accordance with arrangements between the Board and 
the securities depository. 

THIS BOND is one of a series of bonds of like tenor and effect except as to number, 
principal amount and scheduled maturity, aggregating ___________________24 Dollars 
($_____________)7 (the “Bonds”), issued for the purpose of making Home Loans to Texas 
Veterans, all in accordance with the provisions of the Constitutional Provision, the Act and Chapter 
1371, and pursuant to a resolution authorizing the issuance of the series of Bonds of which this is 
one, adopted by the Board and duly of record in the minutes of the Board (the “Resolution”). The 
Bonds are issuable solely as fully registered bonds, without interest coupons, in denominations of 
_____________25 (each, an “Authorized Denomination”). 

THE SERIES OF BONDS of which this is one shall be and is hereby made a general 
obligation of the State of Texas, pursuant to the Constitutional Provision and the Act, and for the 
faithful performance of all covenants, recitals and stipulations herein contained, and for the faithful 
performance in proper time and manner of each official or other act required and necessary to 

 
24  The original aggregate principal amount of a series of the Series 2024 Bonds set forth in the related Purchase 

Contract or Pricing Certificate should be set forth here. 
25  The Authorized Denominations set forth in the related Pricing Certificate should be set forth here. 



 C-3 

provide for the prompt payment of principal of and interest on this Bond when due, the full faith 
and credit of the State of Texas are hereby pledged. 

PAYMENTS OF THE PRINCIPAL OF and premium, if any, and interest on this Bond, 
shall be made primarily from the Veterans’ Housing Assistance Fund II (“Fund II”) governed by 
the Constitutional Provision, which fund shall be comprised of (a) any interest of the Board in all 
Home Loans made from money in Fund II pursuant to the Program, including proceeds of any 
insurance thereon or on the homes, (b) the proceeds derived from the sale or other disposition of 
the Board’s interests in Home Loans, (c) the money attributable to any Housing Assistance Bonds 
(defined below) (except for certain expenses related to the issuance of Housing Assistance Bonds) 
issued and sold by the Board to provide money for Fund II which shall include but shall not be 
limited to the proceeds from the issuance and sale of such Housing Assistance Bonds, (d) income, 
rents, and any other pecuniary benefit received by the Board as a result of making Home Loans, 
(e) sums received by way of indemnity or forfeiture for the failure of any bidder for the purchase 
of any Housing Assistance Bonds to comply with the person’s bid and accept and pay for such 
Housing Assistance Bonds, (f) payments received by the Board under bond enhancement 
agreements with respect to the Housing Assistance Bonds, (g) interest received from investments 
of any such money, and (h) any equitable interest of the Board in properties encumbered by Home 
Loans and attributable to Fund II.  The Bonds and all other bonds issued by the Board pursuant to 
the Constitution of the State to augment Fund II or to refund any such bonds are referred to herein 
as “Housing Assistance Bonds.”  The Constitutional Provision provides that to the extent there is 
not money in Fund II available for payment of principal of and interest on the Housing Assistance 
Bonds, there is appropriated out of the first money coming into the State Treasury in each fiscal 
year, not otherwise appropriated by the Texas Constitution, an amount which is sufficient to pay 
the principal of and interest on such Housing Assistance Bonds that mature or become due during 
that fiscal year.26 

THE BONDS shall be subject to scheduled mandatory sinking fund redemption and shall 
be redeemed on _____________27 and in the respective principal amounts set forth in the table 
below, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof, without premium, plus accrued 
interest to the date fixed for redemption: 

Redemption Date Principal Amount Redemption Date Principal Amount28 

    
    
    

 

The principal amount of Bonds to be redeemed on each such redemption date pursuant to 
mandatory sinking fund redemption shall be reduced, at the option of the Board, by the principal 

 
26  Additional paragraphs from the related Pricing Certificate describing interest on the series of Series 2024 Bonds 

should be added here. 
27  Text specified in related Pricing Certificate to be added here. 
28  The amounts set forth in the Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate should be included in the table.  Additional 

tables shall be added if there is more than one stated maturity of the series of Series 2024 Bonds, with a heading 
above each table identifying the stated maturity of the Series 2024 Bonds to which such table relates. 



 C-4 

amount of any Bonds [of the same stated maturity]29 which (i) at least 45 days prior to such 
mandatory sinking fund redemption date, (a) shall have been acquired by the Board and delivered 
to the Registrar for cancellation, or (b) shall have been acquired and canceled by the Registrar at 
the direction of the Board, or (c) shall have been redeemed pursuant to any redemption provision 
set forth below and (ii) shall have not been previously credited against a scheduled mandatory 
sinking fund redemption.30 

IN THE EVENT of any redemption of less than all of the Bonds [of a particular maturity]31, 
the particular Bonds [within each such maturity]14 to be redeemed are to be selected by the 
Registrar by lot in such manner as the Registrar shall deem fair and appropriate.  During any period 
in which ownership of the Bonds is determined only by a book entry at a securities depository for 
the Bonds, if less than the entire principal amount Outstanding of all the Bonds is to be redeemed, 
the interests to be redeemed of the beneficial owners of the Bonds [of such maturity]14 shall be 
selected in accordance with the arrangements between the Board and the securities depository.  In 
the event of any redemption of Bonds, Purchased Bonds shall be selected first for redemption in 
the manner described in the Resolution. 

AT LEAST 30 days prior to the date fixed for any such redemption of this Bond, a written 
notice of such redemption shall be sent by first class mail, postage prepaid, by the Registrar to the 
Holder hereof.  By the date fixed for any such redemption, due provision shall be made by the 
Board with the Paying Agent for the payment of the required redemption price for this Bond or 
the portion hereof which is to be so redeemed.  If such written notice of redemption is given, and 
if due provision for such payment is made, all as provided above, this Bond, or the portion hereof 
which is to be redeemed, thereby automatically shall be redeemed prior to its scheduled maturity, 
and shall not bear interest after the date fixed for its redemption, and shall not be regarded as being 
Outstanding except for the right of the Holder to receive the redemption price plus accrued interest 
to the date fixed for redemption from the Paying Agent out of the funds provided for such payment.  
The Registrar shall record in the Registration Books all such redemptions of principal of this Bond 
or any portion hereof.  If a portion of any Bond shall be redeemed, a substitute Bond [having the 
same maturity date,]14 in any Authorized Denomination that may be requested by the Holder 
thereof, and in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion thereof, will be 
issued to the Holder upon the surrender thereof for cancellation, at the expense of the Board, all as 
provided in the Resolution. 

IN ADDITION to the notice of redemption required above, the Registrar shall send notice 
of redemption of Bonds by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, 
or by overnight delivery service contemporaneously with such mailing:  (a) to any registered owner 
of $1,000,000 or more in aggregate principal amount of Bonds; (b) to two or more information 
services of national recognition that disseminate redemption information with respect to municipal 
bonds; and (c) to any securities depository that is a registered owner of the Bonds.  In addition, in 
the event of a redemption caused by an advance refunding of the Bonds, the Registrar shall send a 
second notice of redemption to all registered owners of the Bonds at least 30 days but not more 
than 90 days prior to the actual redemption date.  Any notice required to be sent to any registered 

 
29  Bracketed text to be deleted if there is only one stated maturity of the series of Series 2024 Bonds. 
30  Optional redemption provisions, if any, specified in the related Pricing Certificate to be added here. 
31  Bracketed text to be deleted if there is only one stated maturity of the series of Series 2024 Bonds. 



 C-5 

securities depositories or national information services shall be sent so that it is received at least 
two (2) days prior to the general mailing date of such notice.  The Registrar shall also send a notice 
of redemption to the registered owner of any Bond who has not sent the Bonds in for redemption 
60 days after the redemption date.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the failure to give any notice 
of redemption set forth in this paragraph or any defect in such notice or the mailing thereof shall 
not affect the validity of any proceedings for redemption of Bonds. 

WHENEVER, during the term of the Bonds, the beneficial ownership thereof is determined 
by a book entry at DTC (or any successor securities depository), tenders of Bonds shall be made 
pursuant to DTC’s (or any successor securities depository’s) deliver order procedures or 
repayment option procedures, as applicable, as are in effect from time to time.  Upon remarketing 
of Bonds, payment of the purchase price thereof shall be made to DTC (or any successor securities 
depository) and no surrender of Bonds is required.  Such sales shall be made through the DTC 
Participants (which may include the Remarketing Agent) to the new beneficial owners of such 
Bonds, and the DTC Participants shall transmit payment to beneficial owners whose Bonds were 
purchased pursuant to a remarketing.  The Board and the Registrar, the Paying Agent, the Tender 
Agent, the Liquidity Provider and the Remarketing Agent are not responsible for transfer of 
payment to the DTC Participants or beneficial owners. 

THIS BOND or any portion or portions hereof in any Authorized Denomination may be 
assigned and shall be transferred only in the Registration Books of the Board kept and maintained 
by the Registrar acting in the capacity of registrar for the Bonds, upon the terms and conditions set 
forth in the Resolution.  Among other requirements for such assignment and transfer, this Bond 
must be presented and surrendered to the Registrar, together with proper instruments of 
assignment, in form and with guarantee of signatures satisfactory to the Registrar, evidencing 
assignment of this Bond or any portion or portions hereof, in any Authorized Denomination, to the 
assignee or assignees in whose name or names this Bond or any such portion or portions hereof is 
or are to be transferred and registered.  The form of Assignment printed or endorsed on this Bond 
may be executed by the registered owner to evidence the assignment hereof, but such method is 
not exclusive, and other instruments of assignment satisfactory to the Registrar may be used to 
evidence the assignment of this Bond or any portion or portions hereof from time to time by the 
registered owner.  A new Bond or Bonds payable to such assignee (which then will be the new 
registered owner of such new Bond or Bonds), or to the previous registered owner in the case of 
the assignment and transfer of only a portion of this Bond, may be delivered by the Registrar in 
conversion of and exchange for this Bond, all in the form and manner as provided in the next 
paragraph hereof for the conversion and exchange of other Bonds.  Neither the Board nor the 
Registrar shall be required (a) to issue, replace, transfer, or exchange any Bond during a period 
beginning at the opening of business 30 days before the day of the first mailing of a notice of 
redemption of Bonds and ending at the close of business on the day of such mailing or (b) to 
replace, transfer or exchange any Bond so selected for redemption in whole or in part when such 
redemption is scheduled to occur within 30 calendar days; except that at the option of the registered 
owner of at least $1,000,000 in principal amount of Bonds, the Registrar shall be required to 
transfer or exchange any Bond of such owner which has been selected in whole or in part for 
redemption upon surrender thereof.  The Registrar may make such arrangements as it deems 
appropriate for notation on each new Bond issued in exchange for or upon the transfer of the Bond 
so selected for redemption of an appropriate legend to the effect that such new Bond has been so 
selected for redemption.  The registered owner of this Bond shall be treated by the Issuer, the 



 C-6 

Board, the Paying Agent and the Registrar as the absolute owner hereof for all purposes, including 
payment and discharge of liability upon this Bond to the extent of such payment, and the Issuer, 
the Board, the Paying Agent and the Registrar shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary.  
The Board shall pay the Registrar’s reasonable and standard or customary fees and charges for 
making such transfer, but the one requesting such transfer shall pay any taxes or other 
governmental charges required to be paid with respect thereto. 

AS PROVIDED in the Resolution, this Bond, or any portion hereof, may, at the request of 
the registered owner or the assignee or assignees hereof, be converted into and exchanged for a 
like aggregate principal amount of fully registered Bonds, without interest coupons, payable to the 
appropriate registered owner, assignee, or assignees, as the case may be, having the same maturity 
date, in the same Interest Mode, bearing interest at the same rate, and in any Authorized 
Denomination, as requested in writing by the appropriate registered owner, assignee, or assignees, 
as the case may be, upon surrender of this Bond to the Registrar for cancellation, all in accordance 
with the form and procedures set forth in the Resolution.  The one requesting such conversion and 
exchange shall pay the Registrar’s reasonable and standard or customary fees and charges for 
converting and exchanging any Bond or portion thereof, together with any taxes or governmental 
charges required to be paid with respect thereto, all as a condition precedent to the exercise of such 
privilege of conversion and exchange; except, however, that in the case of the conversion and 
exchange of an assigned and transferred Bond or Bonds or any portion or portions thereof in any 
Authorized Denomination, as described in the previous paragraph, and in the case of the 
conversion and exchange of a portion of the unredeemed portion of a Bond which has been 
redeemed in part prior to maturity, as provided herein, such fees and charges will be paid by the 
Board. 

WHENEVER the beneficial ownership of this Bond is determined only by a book entry at 
a securities depository for the Bonds, the foregoing requirements of registering, holding, 
delivering, exchanging or transferring this Bond shall be modified to require the appropriate 
Person to meet the requirements of the securities depository as to registering, holding, delivering, 
exchanging or transferring the book entry to produce the same effect. 

IN THE EVENT that the initial Paying Agent or Registrar for the Bonds is changed by the 
Board, resigns, or otherwise ceases to act as such, the Board has covenanted in the Resolution that 
it promptly will appoint a competent and legally qualified substitute therefor, whose qualifications 
comply with the requirements of the Resolution, and that one entity will serve as Paying Agent 
and Registrar, except during periods when the Bonds are registered only by means of a book entry 
at a securities depository, and promptly will cause written notice thereof to be mailed to the 
registered owners of the Bonds. 

BY BECOMING the registered owner of this Bond, the registered owner thereby 
acknowledges all of the terms and provisions of the Resolution, agrees to be bound by such terms 
and provisions, acknowledges that the Resolution is duly recorded and available for inspection in 
the official minutes and records of the Board, and agrees that the terms and provisions of this Bond 
and the Resolution constitute a contract between each registered owner hereof and the Board. 

THE BOARD reserves the right to amend the Resolution, as deemed necessary or desirable 
by the Board, with the consent of the registered owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount 



 C-7 

of the Bonds then Outstanding under the terms and conditions stated in the Resolution.  The Board 
may, without the consent of the registered owners of the Bonds, adopt certain amendments to the 
Resolution as set forth in the Resolution. 

IN THE EVENT of any conflict or inconsistency between the terms and provisions of this 
Bond and the terms and provisions of the Resolution, the terms and provisions of the Resolution 
shall control. 

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED and recited that all acts, conditions and things required to be 
done precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond and the series of which it forms a part have 
been properly done, have happened and have been performed in regular and due time, form and 
manner as required by the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas and the Resolution, that the 
series of Bonds of which this is a part does not exceed any Constitutional or statutory limitation, 
and that provision has been made for the payment of the principal of and interest on this Bond and 
the series of which it is a part by a pledge of the credit of the Issuer and of the funds specified 
herein.32 

[UNLESS THE COMPTROLLER’S REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE hereon has been 
executed by the Comptroller by manual signature, this Bond shall not be entitled to any benefit 
under the Resolution or be valid or obligatory for any purpose.]33  

[UNLESS THE REGISTRAR’S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE hereon has been 
executed by the Registrar by manual signature, this Bond shall not be entitled to any benefit under 
the Resolution or be valid or obligatory for any purpose.]34  

 
32  Additional text or revisions as set forth in the related Pricing Certificate to be included as specified in such 

Pricing Certificate. 
33  To be included in an Initial Series 2024 Bond only. 
34  To be included in all Series 2024 Bonds of a series other than the Initial Series 2024 Bond. 



 C-8 

IN TESTIMONY HEREOF, this Bond is executed with the manual or facsimile signatures 
of the Chairwoman of the Board and of the Executive Secretary of the Board, and the seal of said 
Board impressed, lithographed or printed hereon. 

 THE STATE OF TEXAS 
 
 
 
 ___________________________________ 
 Chairwoman, Veterans’ Land Board 
   of the State of Texas 
 
_______________________________ 
Executive Secretary, Veterans’ 
  Land Board of the State of Texas 
 
(SEAL) 
 



 C-9 

*FORM OF REGISTRAR’S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATION ATTACHED TO 
VARIABLE RATE BONDS OTHER THAN AN INITIAL SERIES 2024 BOND 

REGISTRAR’S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE 

It is hereby certified that this Bond has been issued under the provisions of the Resolution 
described in this Bond; and that this Bond has been issued in conversion of and exchange for or 
replacement of a bond, bonds, or a portion of a bond or bonds of an issue which originally was 
approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered by the Comptroller of Public 
Accounts of the State of Texas. 

Dated: _______________________ _______________________________, 
     ____________, ____________, 
 Registrar 
 
 
 By:  _______________________________ 
  Authorized Representative 
 

  



 C-10 

*FORM OF ASSIGNMENT 

ASSIGNMENT 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
(Please print or typewrite name and address, including zip code of Transferee) 

Please insert Social Security 
or Taxpayer Identification Number 
of Transferee 
 

 

the within Bond and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________ attorney to register the transfer of the within Bond on the books kept 
for registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises. 

Dated:   

Signature Guaranteed: 

NOTICE: Signature(s) must be guaranteed by 
a member firm of the New York Stock 
Exchange or a commercial bank or trust 
company. 

NOTICE: The signature above must 
correspond with the name of the Registered 
Owner as it appears upon the front of this Bond 
in every particular, without alteration or 
enlargement or any change whatsoever. 

 

 



 C-11 

*FORM OF COMPTROLLER’S REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE ATTACHED TO 
AN INITIAL SERIES 2024 BOND 

OFFICE OF COMPTROLLER § 
     § REGISTER NO. ___________ 
STATE OF TEXAS   § 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that this Bond has been examined, certified as to validity and 
approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas, and duly registered by the Texas 
Comptroller of Public Accounts. 

WITNESS MY HAND and seal of office at Austin, Texas _____________________. 

 
 
 ____________________________________ 
 Comptroller of Public Accounts 
 of the State of Texas 
 

(SEAL) 

NOTE TO PRINTER: 
* ¶s not to be on bond 
 

 



 D-1 

EXHIBIT D 

DESCRIPTION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

The following information is referred to in Section 8.2 of this Resolution. 

Annual Financial Statements and Operating Data 

The financial information and operating data with respect to the Board to be provided 
annually in accordance with such Section are the quantitative financial information and operating 
data pertaining to the Board included in Appendix B to the Official Statement relating to each 
series of Series 2024 Bonds subject to the Rule. 

Accounting Principles 

The accounting principles referred to in such Section are generally accepted accounting 
principles for governmental units as prescribed by the Government Accounting Standards Board 
from time to time, as such principles may be changed from time to time to comply with state law 
or regulation. 



 

CERTIFICATE OF RESOLUTION 

THE STATE OF TEXAS §  
    §  
COUNTY OF TRAVIS §  
 

I, the undersigned Executive Secretary of the Veterans’ Land Board (the “Board”) of the 
State of Texas, hereby certify as follows: 

1. The Board convened in regular meeting on the 25th day of June, 2024, at the 
designated meeting place, and the roll was called of the duly constituted officers and members of 
said Board, to-wit: 

Dawn Buckingham, M.D. Chairwoman 
Gerald J. “Jud” Scott, Jr. Member 
James Rothfelder Member 
  

and all of said persons were present, thus constituting a quorum.  Whereupon, among other 
business, the following was transacted at said meeting:  a written resolution 

BY THE VETERANS’ LAND BOARD OF THE STATE OF TEXAS 
AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF STATE OF TEXAS 
VETERANS BONDS, TAXABLE SERIES 2024 IN ONE OR MORE SERIES 
AND INSTALLMENTS IN AN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO 
EXCEED $250,000,000, AND PROVIDING FOR OTHER MATTERS 
RELATING TO THE SUBJECT 

was duly introduced for the consideration of said Board.  It was then duly moved and seconded 
that said Resolution be adopted; and, after due discussion, said motion, carrying with it the 
adoption of said Resolution, prevailed and carried by the following vote: 

AYES:  3    NOES:  0  

2. A true, full, and correct copy of the aforesaid Resolution adopted at the Meeting 
described in the above and foregoing paragraph is attached to and follows this Certificate; that said 
Resolution has been duly recorded in said Board’s minutes of said Meeting; that the above and 
foregoing paragraph is a true, full, and correct excerpt from said Board’s minutes of said meeting 
pertaining to the adoption of said Resolution; that the persons named in the above and foregoing 
paragraph are the duly chosen, qualified, and acting officers and members of said Board as 
indicated therein; and that each of the officers and members of said Board was duly and sufficiently 
notified officially and personally, in advance, of the time, place, and purpose of the aforesaid 
Meeting, and that said Resolution would be introduced and considered for adoption at said 
Meeting; and that said Meeting was noticed, convened, and conducted in full compliance with the 
Texas Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code, as amended, regarding 
meetings of the Board. 

3. The Resolution has not been modified, amended or repealed and is in full force and 
effect on and as of the date hereof. 



 Signature Page for Certificate of Updated Resolution 
 Authorizing Issuance of Taxable Series 2024 Bonds 
Error! Unknown document property name. 

SIGNED AND SEALED the ____ day of ________________, 2024. 

 

 ____________________________________ 
 Anthony W. Dale, Executive Secretary 
(SEAL) 

 
 

 



 

1 
 

 
Date:    June 25, 2024 
 
To:    Dawn Buckingham, M.D., Chairwoman 

Judson Scott, Member 
James Rothfelder, Member 

 
From:    John Barton, Director of VLB Bond Funds Management 
 
Subject: Agenda Item 5 d - Consideration and possible action on the adoption of a 

resolution authorizing the issuance and sale of State of Texas Veterans 
Bonds, Tax-Exempt Series 2025, in one or more series and installments, in 
an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $250,000,000 and providing 
for other matters relating to the subject. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board authorize the issuance up to 

$250,000,000 in new-money tax-exempt general obligation bonds in the 
Veterans Housing Assistance Program (VHAP) between June 26, 2024, 
and June 24, 2025. In addition, staff recommends that the final maturity 
of the bonds not exceed December 1, 2057, and that the bond True 
Interest Cost not exceed 6.00%. 

 
Summary 
VLB is limited by federal tax law to a maximum of $250 million in new-money tax-exempt 
general obligation bond issuance per calendar year, and demand is such that staff expects to 
continue to issue $250 million per calendar year for the foreseeable future. Staff annually 
requests for Board approval of a resolution authorizing the issuance of up to $250 million in 
tax-exempt new-money general obligation bonds for a one-year period.  
 
In July 2023, the Board approved a one-year resolution authorizing the issuance of up to $250 
million in tax-exempt new-money general obligation bonds in the VHAP during 2024. As 
interest rates have increased, demand has slowed, and staff has been able to make loan 
purchases with the bond proceeds that were issued during summer 2023. As we are coming 
upon the expiration of last year’s approval, we are expecting to issue new-money tax-exempt 
general obligation bonds in late summer or fall of 2024. If new-money tax-exempt general 
obligation bonds are issued in calendar year 2024, staff would return to the board for approval 
for authority to issue similar tax-exempt bonds in calendar year 2025.  
 
The bond issues are typically structured as synthetic fixed-rate bonds created by issuing 
variable-rate bonds that are effectively converted to fixed-rate bonds using a floating-to-fixed 
interest rate swap. A synthetic fixed-rate bond is a financial structure engineered to simulate 
the characteristics of a fixed-rate bond while using other financial instruments.  
 



2 

2 
 

 
 
A synthetic fixed-rate bond combines two key components: 

•  Variable rate bond: VLB issues variable-rate bonds which represent the floating interest 
rate component. 

•  Floating-to-Fixed Interest Rate Swap: VLB and a counterparty agree to exchange cash 
flows where one payment is based on a floating or variable interest rate and the other 
payment is based on a fixed interest rate. This provides the fixed interest rate 
component as VLB’s payment is based on the fixed rate. 

 
The purpose of synthetic fixed-rate bonds are for various reasons, including: 

• Lower cost of financing: The synthetic fixed-rate bond structure generally provides a 1% to 
1.25% lower cost of financing compared to a traditional fixed-rate housing bond 
structure. 

• Borrowing costs or costs of issuance (COI): The structure allows the VLB to pay minimal 
up-front costs when issuing bonds compared to traditional bonds.   

• Hedging: Managing interest rate risk by creating a synthetic fixed-rate position. 
 
The Board has used this structure almost exclusively in the past.  Staff works with the Board’s 
financial advisor and bond counsel prior to each issuance to determine the structure best suited 
to meet the Board’s current financing needs considering market conditions and other factors at 
that time.  



RESOLUTION 

 

BY THE VETERANS’ LAND BOARD OF THE STATE OF 
TEXAS AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF 
STATE OF TEXAS VETERANS BONDS, SERIES 2024 IN ONE 
OR MORE SERIES AND INSTALLMENTS IN AN 
AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
$250,000,000, AND PROVIDING FOR OTHER MATTERS 
RELATING TO THE SUBJECT 

 

_________________ 

 

relating to 

 

State of Texas 
Veterans Bonds, 

Series 2024 

 

_________________ 

 

 

Adopted and Approved on 

June 25, 2024 

 

 



 -i- 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

ARTICLE I 
 

DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PROVISIONS OF GENERAL APPLICATION 

Section 1.1. Definitions .......................................................................................................... 2 
Section 1.2. Effect of Headings and Table of Contents ....................................................... 10 

ARTICLE II 
 

AUTHORIZATION AND TERMS OF SERIES 2024 BONDS; 
ISSUANCE AND FORM OF SERIES 2024 BONDS 

Section 2.1. Authorization of Series 2024 Bonds ................................................................ 10 
Section 2.2. Form, Maturities, Interest Rates and Numbering ............................................. 10 
Section 2.3. Execution .......................................................................................................... 11 
Section 2.4. Approval by Attorney General; Registration by Comptroller .......................... 11 
Section 2.5. Form of Bond ................................................................................................... 11 
Section 2.6. Registration, Transfer and Exchange ............................................................... 12 
Section 2.7. Damaged and Missing Bonds ........................................................................... 15 
Section 2.8. Sale and Delivery of Series 2024 Bonds .......................................................... 16 
Section 2.9. Preliminary Official Statement and Official Statement ................................... 16 
Section 2.10. Book-Entry System .......................................................................................... 17 

ARTICLE III 
 

REDEMPTION OF SERIES 2024 BONDS 

Section 3.1. Redemption ...................................................................................................... 18 
Section 3.2. Notice of Redemption ...................................................................................... 20 

ARTICLE IV 
 

FUNDS AND INVESTMENTS 

Section 4.1. Establishment of Fund II .................................................................................. 21 
Section 4.2. Deposits to Fund II ........................................................................................... 21 
Section 4.3. Home Loans ..................................................................................................... 22 
Section 4.4. Source of Payment ............................................................................................ 22 
Section 4.5. Other Uses of Fund II Moneys ......................................................................... 23 
Section 4.6. Program Administration ................................................................................... 23 
Section 4.7. Investments ....................................................................................................... 23 



 -ii- 
 

ARTICLE V 
 

COVENANTS OF THE BOARD 

Section 5.1. Payment Procedures ......................................................................................... 24 
Section 5.2. Paying Agent and Registrar .............................................................................. 24 
Section 5.3. Tax Covenants .................................................................................................. 25 

ARTICLE VI 
 

SUPPLEMENTS AND AMENDMENTS 

Section 6.1. Amendment of Resolution With Consent of Holders ...................................... 30 
Section 6.2. Amendment of Resolution Without Consent of Holders ................................. 31 
Section 6.3. Effect of Amendatory Resolutions ................................................................... 31 
Section 6.4. Bonds May Bear Notation of Changes ............................................................. 32 

ARTICLE VII 
 

FIXED RATE BONDS DEEMED PAID 

Section 7.1. Fixed Rate Bonds Deemed Paid ....................................................................... 32 
Section 7.2. Application of Trust Money ............................................................................. 32 

ARTICLE VIII 
 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING 

Section 8.1. Definitions ........................................................................................................ 33 
Section 8.2. Annual Reports ................................................................................................. 33 
Section 8.3. Event Notices ................................................................................................... 34 
Section 8.4. Limitations, Disclaimers and Amendments ..................................................... 35 
Section 8.5. Continuing Disclosure Relating to Other Obligated Persons ........................... 36 
Section 8.6. Agreement Regarding Assumption of Certain Home Loans ............................ 36 

ARTICLE IX 
 

ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS RELATING TO SERIES 2024 BONDS 

Section 9.1. Interest Rates and Payment .............................................................................. 36 
Section 9.2. Determination of Weekly Interest Rate ............................................................ 37 
Section 9.3. Fixed Interest Rate ............................................................................................ 38 
Section 9.4. Purchase of Weekly Rate Bonds ...................................................................... 40 
Section 9.5. Amendments to Liquidity Facility ................................................................... 43 
Section 9.6. Alternate Liquidity Facility .............................................................................. 43 
Section 9.7. Notice of Termination or Other Change in Liquidity Facility ......................... 43 
Section 9.8. Remarketing Agent and Tender Agent ............................................................. 44 



 -iii- 
 

Section 9.9. Qualifications of Remarketing Agent and Tender Agent; Resignation; 
Removal ............................................................................................................ 45 

Section 9.10. Notice of Weekly Rate Bonds Delivered for Purchase; Purchase of 
Weekly Rate Bonds .......................................................................................... 46 

Section 9.11. Remarketing of Series 2024 Bonds; Notice of Interest Rates .......................... 47 
Section 9.12. Delivery of Series 2024 Bonds ......................................................................... 48 
Section 9.13. Delivery of Proceeds of Sale ............................................................................ 48 
Section 9.14. Draws on Liquidity Facility to Pay Purchase Price of Weekly Rate Bonds

 48 
Section 9.15. Insufficient Funds for Purchase of Weekly Rate Bonds .................................. 49 
Section 9.16. Notices .............................................................................................................. 49 

ARTICLE X 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 10.1. Benefits of Resolution ...................................................................................... 50 
Section 10.2. Bonds to Rank Equally ..................................................................................... 51 
Section 10.3. Enforcement ..................................................................................................... 51 
Section 10.4. Separability Clause ........................................................................................... 51 
Section 10.5. Governing Law ................................................................................................. 51 
Section 10.6. Open Meeting ................................................................................................... 51 
Section 10.7. References to Liquidity Provider ..................................................................... 51 
Section 10.8. Liquidity Facilities Authorized ........................................................................ 51 
Section 10.9. Remarketing Agreements Authorized .............................................................. 51 
Section 10.10. Tender Agent Agreements Authorized ............................................................. 52 
Section 10.11. Authorization of Additional Acts ..................................................................... 52 
Section 10.12. Bond Enhancement Agreement Certificate ...................................................... 52 
Section 10.13. Prior Resolution ................................................................................................ 52 
 

 

EXHIBIT A – FORM OF WEEKLY RATE BOND .................................................................. A-1 

EXHIBIT B – FORM OF FIXED RATE BOND ........................................................................B-1 

EXHIBIT C – FORM OF VARIABLE RATE BOND ...............................................................C-1 

EXHIBIT D – DESCRIPTION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION ....................... D-1 

EXHIBIT D – DESCRIPTION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION ....................... D-1 

 



  
 
 

RESOLUTION 

BY THE VETERANS’ LAND BOARD OF THE STATE OF TEXAS 
AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF STATE OF TEXAS 
VETERANS BONDS, SERIES 2024 IN ONE OR MORE SERIES AND 
INSTALLMENTS IN AN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO 
EXCEED $250,000,000, AND PROVIDING FOR OTHER MATTERS 
RELATING TO THE SUBJECT 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Article III, Section 49-b (the “Constitutional 
Provision”) of the Constitution (the “State Constitution”) of the State of Texas (the “State”), and 
implemented by Chapter 162, Texas Natural Resources Code, as amended (the “Act”), the 
Veterans’ Land Board (the “Board”) of the State has been authorized, subject to the limitations set 
forth in the Constitutional Provision, to issue general obligation bonds (“Bonds”) of the State from 
time to time for the purpose of providing funding for the Veterans’ Housing Assistance Fund II 
(“Fund II”), which fund is to be used for the purpose of making home mortgage loans to Veterans 
(as such term is defined in the Act); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of subsection (w) of the Constitutional Provision, 
adopted by vote of the people of the State on November 6, 2001, as amended by vote of the people 
of the State on November 3, 2009, the Board has been authorized to issue Bonds, as well as general 
obligation bonds (together with the Bonds, “Veterans Bonds”) of the State for the purpose of 
providing funding for the Veterans’ Housing Assistance Fund or the Veterans’ Land Fund, from 
time to time in an aggregate principal amount outstanding at any one time not to exceed the 
aggregate principal amount of Veterans Bonds previously authorized by prior amendments to the 
State Constitution; and 

WHEREAS, prior amendments to the State Constitution have authorized $4 billion in 
aggregate principal amount of Veterans Bonds to be issued; and 

WHEREAS, less than $3.5 billion (including unamortized net original issue premium) in 
aggregate principal amount of Veterans Bonds is currently outstanding or authorized; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it is necessary and desirable at this time that up 
to $250,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of Bonds (hereinafter defined as the “Series 2024 
Bonds”) be issued in one or more series and installments for the purpose of augmenting Fund II; 
and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Constitutional Provision, the Act and Chapter 1371, Texas 
Government Code, as amended (“Chapter 1371”), the Board hereby determines to issue the 
Series 2024 Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the Board hereby finds that the purpose for which the Board may issue the 
Series 2024 Bonds constitutes “public works,” as contemplated by Chapter 1371; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE VETERANS’ LAND BOARD OF 
THE STATE OF TEXAS: 



 -2- 
 

ARTICLE I 
 

DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PROVISIONS OF GENERAL APPLICATION 

Section 1.1. Definitions.  (a)  For all purposes of this Resolution, except as otherwise expressly 
provided or unless the context otherwise requires: 

(i) “This Resolution” means this resolution as originally adopted or as it may from time to 
time be supplemented or amended by one or more resolutions supplemental hereto adopted 
pursuant to the applicable provisions hereof. 

(ii) All references in this Resolution to designated “Articles,” “Sections” and other 
subdivisions are to the designated Articles, Sections and other subdivisions of this Resolution as 
originally adopted.  The words “herein,” “hereof” and “hereunder” and other words of similar 
import refer to this Resolution as a whole and not to any particular Article, Section or other 
subdivision. 

(iii) The terms defined in this Article have the meanings assigned to them in this Article and 
include the plural as well as the singular.  Reference to any named Person means that party and its 
successors and assigns. 

(b) The following terms have the meanings assigned to them below whenever they are used in 
this Resolution: 

“Act” means Chapter 162, Texas Natural Resources Code, as amended. 

“Alternate Liquidity Facility” means a letter of credit, standby bond purchase agreement 
or any other agreement or agreements used to provide liquidity support for a series of Series 2024 
Bonds, satisfactory to the Board and the Remarketing Agent therefor and containing administrative 
provisions reasonably satisfactory to the Tender Agent therefor, issued and delivered to such 
Tender Agent in accordance with Section 9.6 hereof. 

“Attorney General” means the Attorney General of the State. 

“Authorized Denomination” means (i) for Weekly Rate Bonds, (A) prior to the final 
redemption pursuant to Section 3.1(a) hereof, $100,000 and any integral multiple of $5,000 in 
excess thereof, or (B) thereafter, any integral multiple of $5,000, (ii) for Fixed Rate Bonds, $5,000 
and any integral multiple thereof, and (iii) for Variable Rate Bonds, the amount set forth in the 
Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate therefor. 

“Authorized Representative” means any of the following: the Chairwoman of the Board, 
the Executive Secretary of the Board, the Director of VLB Bond Funds Management of the Board, 
the Assistant Director of VLB Bond Funds Management of the Board and any other officer or 
employee of the Board appointed by the Board to serve as an “Authorized Representative” 
hereunder. 



 -3- 
 

“Beneficial Owner” means, during any period in which ownership of a series of 
Series 2024 Bonds is determined only by a book entry at a securities depository for such 
Series 2024 Bonds, any Person who acquires a beneficial ownership in such Series 2024 Bonds. 

“Board” means the Veterans’ Land Board of the State. 

“Bond” or “Bonds” means general obligation bonds of the State authorized by the 
Constitutional Provision and issued for the benefit of Fund II. 

“Bond Counsel” means Bracewell LLP or any other attorney or firm of attorneys nationally 
recognized as experienced in the field of bonds of governmental issuers and appointed by the 
Board. 

“Bond Purchase Fund” means for any series of Series 2024 Bonds the fund so designated 
that is established with the Tender Agent therefor pursuant to Section 9.8(b)(ii) hereof. 

“Bond Register” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.6 hereof. 

“Business Day” means with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds, any day other than 
(i) a Saturday, a Sunday or any other day on which banks located in the cities in which the Board 
and the applicable Tender Agent, Remarketing Agent, Paying Agent, Registrar or Liquidity 
Provider are located, or in which the office of such Liquidity Provider from which payments are 
made pursuant to the applicable Liquidity Facility is located, are authorized or required to remain 
closed or (ii) a day on which the New York Stock Exchange is closed. 

“Ceiling Rate” means the lesser of (i) fifteen percent (15%) per annum and (ii) a per annum 
rate equal to the maximum net effective interest rate permitted to be paid on the Series 2024 Bonds 
(prescribed by Chapter 1204, Texas Government Code, as amended, or any successor provision), 
currently fifteen percent (15%). 

“Chapter 1201” means Chapter 1201, Texas Government Code, as amended. 

“Chapter 1371” means Chapter 1371, Texas Government Code, as amended. 

“Comptroller” means the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts. 

“Constitutional Provision” means Article III, Section 49-b of the Constitution of the State, 
as adopted on November 9, 1999, as it may be amended from time to time. 

“Defeasance Obligations” means (i) direct noncallable obligations of the United States of 
America, including obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed by the United States, 
(ii) noncallable obligations of an agency or instrumentality of the United States, including 
obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed or insured by the agency or instrumentality and 
that, on the date the governing body of the Board adopts or approves the proceedings authorizing 
the issuance of refunding bonds, are rated as to investment quality by the Rating Agency not less 
than AAA or its equivalent, and (iii) noncallable obligations of a state or an agency or a county, 
municipality, or other political subdivision of a state that have been refunded and that, on the date 
the governing body of the Board adopts or approves the proceedings authorizing the issuance of 



 -4- 
 

refunding bonds, are rated as to investment quality by the Rating Agency not less than AAA or its 
equivalent. 

“Direct Security Repurchase Agreement” means an agreement under which the Board 
buys, holds for a specified time, and then sells back any of the following securities, obligations, or 
participation certificates: 

(1) United States government securities; 

(2) direct obligations of or obligations the principal and interest of which are 
guaranteed by the United States; 

(3) direct obligations of or obligations guaranteed by the Federal Home Loan 
Banks, the Federal National Mortgage Association, the Federal Farm Credit System, the 
Student Loan Marketing Association, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, or a 
successor organization to one of those organizations; or 

(4) any other investment instrument, obligation, or other evidence of 
indebtedness the payment of which is directly or indirectly guaranteed by the full faith and 
credit of the United States. 

“DTC” means The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, and its successors 
and assigns, or any successor securities depository for a series of Series 2024 Bonds. 

“DTC Participant” means the securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, 
clearing corporations and certain other organizations on whose behalf DTC was created to hold 
securities to facilitate the clearance and settlement of securities transactions among DTC 
Participants. 

“Eligible Investments” means: 

(1) Direct Security Repurchase Agreements and Reverse Security Repurchase 
Agreements made with state or national banks domiciled in the State or with primary 
dealers as approved by the Federal Reserve System; 

(2) direct obligations of or obligations the principal and interest of which are 
guaranteed by the United States; 

(3) direct obligations of or obligations guaranteed by the Federal Home Loan 
Banks, the Federal National Mortgage Association, the Federal Farm Credit System, the 
Student Loan Marketing Association, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, or a 
successor organization to one of those organizations; 

(4) bankers’ acceptances that: 

(i) are eligible for purchase by members of the Federal Reserve System; 

(ii) do not exceed 270 days to maturity; and 



 -5- 
 

(iii) are issued by a bank that has received the highest short term credit 
rating by a nationally recognized investment rating firm; 

(5) commercial paper that: 

(i) does not exceed 270 days to maturity; and 

(ii) has received the highest short term credit rating by a nationally 
recognized investment rating firm; 

(6) contracts written by the Board in which the Board grants the purchaser the 
right to purchase securities in the Board’s marketable securities portfolio at a specified 
price over a specified period and for which the Board is paid a fee and specifically prohibits 
naked option or uncovered option trading; 

(7) obligations of a state or an agency, county, city, or other political 
subdivision of a state, including revenue bonds issued under Chapter 164, Texas Natural 
Resources Code, as amended, and mutual funds composed of these obligations; 

(8) an investment instrument, obligation, or other evidence of indebtedness the 
payment of which is directly or indirectly guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the 
United States; 

(9) an investment, account, depository receipt, or deposit that is fully: 

(i) insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, the Federal 
Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation, or a successor organization to one of 
those organizations; or 

(ii) secured by securities described by paragraph (2), (3), or (8) of this 
definition; 

(10) a collateralized mortgage obligation fully secured by securities or 
mortgages issued or guaranteed by the Government National Mortgage Association or any 
entity described by paragraph (3) of this definition; 

(11) a security or evidence of indebtedness issued by the Farm Credit System 
Financial Assistance Corporation, the Private Export Funding Corporation, or the Export 
Import Bank; and 

(12) any other investment authorized for investment of State funds by the 
Comptroller under applicable law; 

provided, however, that the term “Eligible Investments” does not include any investments that may 
from time to time not be authorized under the laws of the State for investment of moneys in Fund 
II; and provided, further, that the term “Eligible Investments” also includes all investments that 
may from time to time be authorized under the laws of the State for investment of moneys in Fund 
II. 



 -6- 
 

“Expenses Attributable to Bonds” means the expenses of issuing, selling, delivering and 
administering the Bonds, including without limitation, fees, expenses and other payments by the 
Board (excluding payments by the Board with respect to principal of or interest on the Bonds) 
payable under any bond enhancement agreement with respect to principal of or interest on the 
Bonds. 

“Expenses Attributable to Home Loans” means the expenses incurred in connection with 
originating, processing, servicing, and administering the Home Loans. 

“Favorable Opinion of Bond Counsel” means with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds, 
an opinion of Bond Counsel, addressed to the Board and the applicable Remarketing Agent, 
Liquidity Provider and Tender Agent to the effect that the action proposed to be taken is authorized 
or permitted by the laws of the State and this Resolution and will not adversely affect the 
excludability of interest on the Series 2024 Bonds from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes (subject to the inclusion of any exceptions contained in the opinion of Bond Counsel 
delivered upon original issuance of the Series 2024 Bonds or other customary exceptions 
acceptable to the recipient thereof). 

“Fiscal Year” means the period of time beginning in each calendar year on September 1, 
and ending August 31 of the calendar year next following, or the fiscal year for the State, as may 
hereinafter be established by law. 

“Fixed Interest Rate” means (i) with respect to a Series 2024 Bond originally issued as a 
Weekly Rate Bond, the non-variable interest rate established in accordance with Section 9.3 
hereof, and (ii) with respect to a Series 2024 Bond originally issued as a Fixed Rate Bond, the 
non-variable interest rate set forth in the related Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate. 

“Fixed Interest Rate Period” means with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds, the 
period of time during which such Series 2024 Bonds bear interest at a Fixed Interest Rate. 

“Fixed Rate Bond” or “Fixed Rate Bonds” means any Series 2024 Bonds issued bearing 
interest at a Fixed Interest Rate. 

“Fixed Rate Conversion Date” means with respect to a series of Weekly Rate Bonds, the 
date on which the interest rate on each of such Series 2024 Bonds converts to a Fixed Interest Rate. 

“Fund I” means the Veterans’ Housing Assistance Fund created by the former Article III, 
Section 49-b-1 of the Constitution of the State, and currently governed by the Constitutional 
Provision. 

“Fund II” means the Veterans’ Housing Assistance Fund II created by the former 
Article III, Section 49-b-2 of the Constitution of the State and currently governed by the 
Constitutional Provision, established pursuant to the resolution of the Board authorizing the 
issuance of the Series 1994A Bonds and confirmed and ratified by Section 4.1 of this Resolution. 

“Holder” means a Person in whose name a Series 2024 Bond is registered in the Bond 
Register. 



 -7- 
 

“Home Loan” or “Home Loans” means the home mortgage loans (including qualified 
home improvement loans) made by the Board pursuant to the Constitutional Provision and the Act. 

“Initial Purchaser” means (i) with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds sold in 
connection with a public offering, the manager of the Underwriters relating thereto, or (ii) with 
respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds sold privately, the purchaser or purchasers thereof. 

“Initial Series 2024 Bond” means with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds, the 
Series 2024 Bond registered by the Comptroller. 

“Interest Accrual Period” means with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds, the period 
from and including each Interest Payment Date to and excluding the next Interest Payment Date 
therefor; the initial Interest Accrual Period shall begin on (and include) the Settlement Date 
therefor and the final Interest Accrual Period shall end on the day next preceding the maturity date 
of such Series 2024 Bonds. 

“Interest Payment Date” means (i) with respect to any Weekly Interest Rate Period, (A) the 
first Business Day of each month, commencing on the first such day following the applicable 
Settlement Date, (B) for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds, the Fixed Rate Conversion Date therefor, 
if any, and (C) the maturity date of a series of Series 2024 Bonds; and (ii) with respect to any Fixed 
Interest Rate Period, each June 1 and December 1, commencing the June 1 or December 1 
immediately following the Fixed Rate Conversion Date or the Settlement Date, as the case may 
be, by at least 30 days. 

“Interest Rate Period” means any Weekly Interest Rate Period or Fixed Interest Rate 
Period. 

“Liquidity Facility” means for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds, initially the documents 
described in the related Pricing Certificate or Purchase Contract, as the same may be amended or 
supplemented from time to time, and, upon the effectiveness of an Alternate Liquidity Facility, 
means such Alternate Liquidity Facility. 

“Liquidity Provider” means for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds, initially the Person 
designated in the related Pricing Certificate or Purchase Contract, and upon the effectiveness of an 
Alternate Liquidity Facility, means the bank or banks or other financial institution or financial 
institutions or other entity that is then a party to the Liquidity Facility.  In the case of any Alternate 
Liquidity Facility to which more than one bank, financial institution or other entity is a party, 
notices required by this Resolution to be given to the Liquidity Provider may be given to the bank 
or financial institution under such Liquidity Facility appointed to act as agent for all such banks or 
financial institutions. 

“Maximum Purchased Bond Rate” means for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds, the maximum 
interest rate for Purchased Bonds permitted under the Liquidity Facility therefor, but in no event 
to exceed the Ceiling Rate. 

“Outstanding” means, when used with reference to a Bond or Bonds and as of a particular 
date, such Bond or Bonds not canceled except a Bond or Bonds for the payment or redemption of 
which provision has been made. 



 -8- 
 

“Paying Agent” means with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds, the Comptroller 
unless otherwise set forth in the related Pricing Certificate or Purchase Contract, or any successor 
appointed by the Board pursuant to Section 5.2(a) hereof to perform the paying agent duties 
hereunder. 

“Person” means any individual, corporation, partnership, joint venture, association, joint 
stock company, trust, limited liability company, unincorporated organization or government or any 
agency or political subdivision thereof. 

“Pricing Certificate” means a certificate executed by an Authorized Representative setting 
forth certain provisions relating to a series of Series 2024 Bonds. 

“Program” means the Veterans’ Housing Assistance Program established pursuant to the 
Act. 

“Purchase Account” means for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds, the account so designated 
and established pursuant to Section 9.8(b)(ii) hereof. 

“Purchase Contract” means with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds initially sold in a 
public offering, the bond purchase contract between the Board and the Underwriters, authorized 
under Section 2.8 hereof, regarding the sale of such Series 2024 Bonds. 

“Purchased Bond” or “Purchased Bonds” with respect to a series of Weekly Rate Bonds, 
has the meaning ascribed to such term in the Liquidity Facility therefor. 

“Purchased Bond Rate” with respect to a series of Weekly Rate Bonds, has the meaning 
ascribed to such term in the Liquidity Facility therefor. 

“Rating Agency” means with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds, initially, the 
statistical rating organization designated as such in the related Pricing Certificate or Purchase 
Contract or if such entity ceases to assign a rating to such Series 2024 Bonds, any substitute 
statistical rating organization so designated by the Board, which at the time has a credit rating 
assigned to such Series 2024 Bonds at the request of the Board. 

“Record Date” means (a) with respect to any Interest Payment Date in respect of any 
Weekly Interest Rate Period, the Business Day immediately preceding such Interest Payment Date, 
and (b) with respect to any Interest Payment Date in respect of any Fixed Interest Rate Period, the 
15th day of the month immediately preceding such Interest Payment Date or, in the event that an 
Interest Payment Date shall occur less than 15 days after the Fixed Rate Conversion Date, such 
date. 

“Registrar” means with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds, initially the Person 
designated as such in the Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate therefor, or any successor entity 
appointed by the Board pursuant to Section 5.2(a) hereof to perform the duties of registrar and 
transfer agent hereunder. 

“Remarketing Account” means with respect to a series of Weekly Rate Bonds, the account 
so designated and established pursuant to Section 9.8(b)(ii) hereof. 



 -9- 
 

“Remarketing Agent” means with respect to a series of Weekly Rate Bonds, initially the 
Person designated as such in the Pricing Certificate therefor, or any successor appointed pursuant 
to Section 9.9(a) hereof. 

“Remarketing Agreement” means with respect to a series of Weekly Rate Bonds, the 
Remarketing Agreement dated as of the Settlement Date therefor, between the Board and the 
Remarketing Agent therefor, as the same may be amended or supplemented from time to time, or 
any remarketing agreement entered into with a successor Remarketing Agent. 

“Resolution” means this resolution of the Board authorizing the issuance of the Series 2024 
Bonds. 

“Reverse Security Repurchase Agreement” means an agreement under which the Board 
sells and after a specified time buys back any of the securities, obligations, or participation 
certificates listed in paragraphs (1) through (4) of the definition of Direct Security Repurchase 
Agreement. 

“Series 1994A Bond” or “Series 1994A Bonds” means the State of Texas Veterans’ 
Housing Assistance Program, Fund II Series 1994A Bonds, initially dated October 1, 1994. 

“Series 2024 Bond” or “Series 2024 Bonds” means the State of Texas Veterans Bonds, 
Series 2024, authorized pursuant to this Resolution. 

“Settlement Date” means with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds, the date of initial 
delivery of such Series 2024 Bonds to the Initial Purchaser thereof. 

“SIFMA Index” means the index based upon the weekly interest rate resets of tax-exempt 
variable rate issues included in a database maintained by Municipal Market Data which meet 
specific criteria established by the Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association, formerly 
The Bond Market Association. 

“State” means the State of Texas. 

“Tender Agent” means with respect to a series of Weekly Rate Bonds, any Person acting 
as Tender Agent therefor pursuant to the terms of this Resolution. 

“Tender Agent Agreement” means if required with respect to a series of Weekly Rate 
Bonds, the agreement dated as of the Settlement Date therefor between the Board and the Tender 
Agent therefor, as the same may be amended or supplemented from time to time, or any similar 
agreement entered into with a successor Tender Agent. 

“Undelivered Bonds” means any Series 2024 Bond so designated in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 9.4(e) or Section 9.4(g)(ii) hereof. 

“Underwriters” means with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds initially sold in a 
public offering, the members of the underwriting syndicate therefor. 



 -10- 
 

“Variable Rate Bond” or “Variable Rate Bonds” means Series 2024 Bonds other than 
Weekly Rate Bonds, the interest rate on which is not fixed, but is variable or adjustable by any 
formula, agreement or otherwise as set forth in the Pricing Certificate or Purchase Contract for 
such Series 2024 Bonds. 

“Veterans” has the meaning given such term in the Constitutional Provision. 

“Weekly Interest Rate” means a variable interest rate on Weekly Rate Bonds established 
in accordance with Section 9.2 hereof. 

“Weekly Interest Rate Period” means each period during which a Weekly Interest Rate is 
in effect. 

“Weekly Rate Bond” or “Weekly Rate Bonds” means Series 2024 Bonds subject to a 
Weekly Interest Rate Period. 

Section 1.2. Effect of Headings and Table of Contents.  The Article and Section headings herein 
and the Table of Contents are for convenience only and shall not affect the construction hereof. 

ARTICLE II 
 

AUTHORIZATION AND TERMS OF SERIES 2024 BONDS; 
ISSUANCE AND FORM OF SERIES 2024 BONDS 

Section 2.1. Authorization of Series 2024 Bonds.  To provide money for the purpose of 
augmenting Fund II, the Series 2024 Bonds are hereby authorized and shall be issued, in one or 
more series and installments, as general obligations of the State in the original aggregate principal 
amount not to exceed Two Hundred Fifty Million Dollars ($250,000,000), as determined by an 
Authorized Representative and set forth in a Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate.  The 
Series 2024 Bonds shall be entitled “STATE OF TEXAS VETERANS BONDS, SERIES 2024”; 
provided that unless the entire principal amount authorized for the Series 2024 Bonds is issued in 
a single series or in the discretion of an Authorized Representative, the series designation for each 
separate series shall include a different capital letter after “2024,” as set forth in the related Pricing 
Certificate or Purchase Contract. 

Section 2.2. Form, Maturities, Interest Rates and Numbering. Each series of Series 2024 Bonds 
authorized hereby initially shall be dated as set forth in the related Pricing Certificate or Purchase 
Contract, and shall be issued and delivered in the form of fully registered bonds, without coupons, 
each payable to the Holder thereof, all in the manner hereinafter provided.  The principal of 
Series 2024 Bonds shall mature, subject to prior redemption, on the dates and in the amounts set 
forth in the related Pricing Certificate or Purchase Contract; provided, however, that (i) the 
aggregate principal amount of all installments and series of Series 2024 Bonds shall not exceed 
$250,000,000, and (ii) the final maturity of the Series 2024 Bonds shall occur not later than 
December 1, 2055; and provided, further, that during any period in which ownership of a series of 
the Series 2024 Bonds is determined only by a book entry at a securities depository for such 
Series 2024 Bonds, payments made to the securities depository, or its nominee, shall be made in 
accordance with existing arrangements between the Board and the securities depository.  Weekly 
Rate Bonds shall bear interest at the Weekly Interest Rate therefor, provided that from and after 



 -11- 
 

the Fixed Rate Conversion Date, such Series 2024 Bonds shall bear interest at a Fixed Interest 
Rate.  Fixed Rate Bonds shall bear interest at the Fixed Interest Rate or Rates set forth in the related 
Pricing Certificate or Purchase Contract or as determined pursuant to Section 9.3(a) hereof.  
Variable Rate Bonds shall bear interest as provided in the related Pricing Certificate or Purchase 
Contract.  Each series of Weekly Rate Bonds shall be numbered consecutively from WR-1 upward 
by the Registrar, and no two Weekly Rate Bonds of the same series shall be given the same number.  
Each series of Fixed Rate Bonds shall be numbered consecutively from FR-1 upward by the 
Registrar, and no two Fixed Rate Bonds of the same series shall be given the same number.  Each 
series of Variable Rate Bonds shall be numbered consecutively from VR-1 upward by the 
Registrar, and no two such Series 2024 Bonds shall be given the same number.  Notwithstanding 
the foregoing, the Initial Series 2024 Bond for any series of Series 2024 Bonds shall be numbered 
T-1.  Unless otherwise specified in the related Pricing Certificate or Purchase Contract, the Board 
shall cause CUSIP numbers to be assigned to, and reproduced on, the Series 2024 Bonds, but errors 
or omissions in the printing of such numbers shall have no effect on the validity of such Bonds. 

Section 2.3. Execution.  Each of the Series 2024 Bonds shall be executed by and on behalf of 
the Board as general obligations of the State with the manual or facsimile signatures of the 
Chairwoman of the Board and the Executive Secretary of the Board, and the manual or facsimile 
seal of the Board shall be placed thereon.  The facsimile signatures of the Chairwoman and 
Executive Secretary of the Board and the facsimile seal of the Board shall have the same effect as 
if each of said Bonds had been manually signed by such officers and said seal had been manually 
impressed on each such Bond.  Series 2024 Bonds bearing the manual or facsimile signatures of 
individuals who were at any time the proper officers of the Board shall bind the State and the 
Board, notwithstanding that such individuals or any of them have ceased to hold such offices prior 
to the authentication and delivery of such Bonds or did not hold such offices at the date of such 
Bonds. 

Section 2.4. Approval by Attorney General; Registration by Comptroller.  After any Initial 
Series 2024 Bonds shall have been executed, it shall be the duty of the Authorized Representatives 
to deliver such Series 2024 Bonds to the Attorney General for examination and approval, and after 
such Series 2024 Bonds shall have been approved by the Attorney General, they shall be delivered 
to the Comptroller for registration.  Series 2024 Bonds thus registered shall remain in the custody 
of the Chairwoman of the Board or subject to his order, until the delivery thereof to the Initial 
Purchaser thereof. 

Section 2.5. Form of Bond. The form of all Weekly Rate Bonds, including the forms of (i) 
Comptroller’s Registration Certificate to accompany each Initial Series 2024 Bond that is a 
Weekly Rate Bond, (ii) Registrar’s Authentication Certificate, and (iii) Assignment, shall be, 
respectively, substantially as set forth in Exhibit A hereto, with such appropriate variations, 
omissions, or insertions as are permitted or required by this Resolution.  The form of all Fixed 
Rate Bonds, including the forms of (i) Comptroller’s Registration Certificate to accompany each 
Initial Series 2024 Bond that is a Fixed Rate Bond, (ii) Registrar’s Authentication Certificate, and 
(iii) Assignment, shall be, respectively, substantially as set forth in Exhibit B hereto, with such 
appropriate variations, omissions, or insertions as are permitted or required by this Resolution or 
set forth in a Pricing Certificate.  The form of all Variable Rate Bonds, including the forms of (i) 
Comptroller’s Registration Certificate to accompany each Initial Series 2024 Bond that is a 
Variable Rate Bond, (ii) Registrar’s Authentication Certificate, and (iii) Assignment, shall be, 



 -12- 
 

respectively, substantially as set forth in Exhibit C hereto, with such appropriate variations, 
omissions, or insertions as are permitted or required by this Resolution or set forth in a Pricing 
Certificate.  At the direction of an Authorized Representative, a portion of the text of Series 2024 
Bonds may be printed on the back of the bond certificates, in which event the following phrase 
shall be inserted in the place where such text would otherwise appear: “Reference is hereby made 
to the further provisions of this Bond set forth on the reverse side hereof and such further 
provisions shall for all purposes have the same effect as if set forth at this place.” 

Section 2.6. Registration, Transfer and Exchange.  (a)  With respect to each series of Series 2024 
Bonds, the Board shall keep or cause to be kept at the designated corporate trust office of the 
Person named in the related Pricing Certificate or Purchase Contract, or at the designated office of 
any other banking institution named in accordance with the provisions of Section 5.2(a) hereof (in 
any event, a “Registrar”), books or records of the registration and transfer of such Series 2024 
Bonds (each, a “Bond Register”), and each Registrar shall act as registrar and transfer agent to 
keep such Bond Register and make such transfers and registrations under such reasonable 
regulations as the Board may prescribe, and to convert and exchange or replace the applicable 
Series 2024 Bonds; and the Registrar shall make such transfers and registrations as herein 
provided.  It shall be the duty of a Registrar to obtain from the Holder of each applicable 
Series 2024 Bond and record in the related Bond Register the address of such Holder to which 
payments with respect to the applicable Series 2024 Bonds shall be mailed, as herein provided.  
Each Registrar shall keep the related Bond Register confidential and, unless otherwise required by 
law, shall not permit their inspection by any entity other than the Board or its designee, which shall 
have the right to inspect such Bond Register during regular business hours of such Registrar.  
Registration of each Series 2024 Bond may be transferred in the applicable Bond Register only 
upon presentation and surrender of such Series 2024 Bond to the applicable Registrar for transfer 
of registration and cancellation, together with proper written instruments of assignment, in form 
and with guarantee of signatures satisfactory to such Registrar, evidencing the assignment of such 
Series 2024 Bond, or any portion thereof in any Authorized Denomination, to the assignee or 
assignees thereof, and the right of such assignee or assignees to have such Series 2024 Bond or 
any such portion thereof registered in the name of such assignee or assignees.  Upon the assignment 
and transfer of any Series 2024 Bond or any portion thereof, a new substitute Series 2024 Bond or 
Series 2024 Bonds of the same series and maturity shall be issued in conversion and exchange 
therefor in the manner herein provided. 

(b) The entity in whose name any Series 2024 Bond shall be registered in the related Bond 
Register at any time shall be treated as the absolute owner thereof for all purposes of this 
Resolution, whether or not such Series 2024 Bond shall be overdue, and the Board and the 
applicable Paying Agent and Registrar shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary; and 
payment of, or on account of, the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on any such 
Series 2024 Bond shall be made only to such Holder.  All such payments shall be valid and 
effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Series 2024 Bond to the extent of the sum 
or sums so paid. 

(c) Unless otherwise set forth in a Pricing Certificate or Purchase Contract, the Board hereby 
appoints the Comptroller in Austin, Texas, or any banking institution named in accordance with 
the provisions of Section 5.2(a) hereof (in either case, the “Paying Agent”), to act as the paying 
agent for paying the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Series 2024 Bonds, all 



 -13- 
 

as provided in this Resolution.  Each Paying Agent shall keep proper records of all payments made 
by the Board and such Paying Agent with respect to the applicable Series 2024 Bonds, as provided 
in this Resolution.  For any Series 2024 Bond that has a CUSIP number, the applicable Paying 
Agent shall provide the CUSIP number for such Series 2024 Bond with each payment of interest 
on and the principal or the redemption price of such Series 2024 Bond, specifying the amount paid 
in respect of such CUSIP number. 

(d) Each Series 2024 Bond may be converted into and exchanged for fully registered bonds in 
the manner set forth herein.  Each Series 2024 Bond may, upon surrender thereof to the applicable 
Registrar, together with a written request therefor duly executed by the Holder or the assignee or 
assignees thereof, or its or their duly authorized attorneys or representatives, with guarantee of 
signatures satisfactory to the Registrar, at the option of the Holder or such assignee or assignees, 
as appropriate, be converted into and exchanged for a substitute Series 2024 Bond or Series 2024 
Bonds having the same series, maturity date, bearing interest at the same rate and in any Authorized 
Denomination which may be requested in writing by such Holder or such assignee or assignees, 
in an aggregate principal amount equal to the principal amount of the Series 2024 Bond or 
Series 2024 Bonds so surrendered, and payable to the appropriate Holder, assignee, or assignees, 
as the case may be.  If only a portion of any Series 2024 Bond shall be redeemed prior to its 
scheduled maturity as provided herein, a substitute Series 2024 Bond or Series 2024 Bonds having 
the same series, maturity date, bearing interest at the same rate, in any Authorized Denomination 
at the request of the Holder, and in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion 
thereof, will be issued to the Holder upon surrender thereof for cancellation.  If any Series 2024 
Bond or portion thereof is assigned and transferred or converted, each Series 2024 Bond issued in 
exchange therefor shall have the same series, principal maturity date and bear interest at the same 
rate as the Series 2024 Bond for which it is being exchanged.  Each substitute Series 2024 Bond 
shall bear a number to distinguish it from each other Series 2024 Bond.  Each Registrar shall 
convert and exchange or replace Series 2024 Bonds as provided herein, and each fully registered 
bond delivered in conversion of and exchange for or replacement of any Series 2024 Bond or 
portion thereof as permitted or required by any provision of this Resolution shall constitute one of 
the Series 2024 Bonds for all purposes of this Resolution, and may again be converted and 
exchanged or replaced.  It is specifically provided, however, that any Series 2024 Bond delivered 
in conversion of and exchange for or replacement of another Series 2024 Bond prior to the first 
scheduled Interest Payment Date of the related series of Series 2024 Bonds shall be dated the same 
date as such Series 2024 Bond, but each substitute Series 2024 Bond so delivered on or after such 
first scheduled Interest Payment Date shall be dated as of the Interest Payment Date preceding the 
date on which such substitute Series 2024 Bond is delivered, unless such Series 2024 Bond is 
delivered on an Interest Payment Date therefor, in which case it shall be dated as of such date of 
delivery; provided, however, that if at the time of delivery of any substitute Series 2024 Bond the 
interest on the Series 2024 Bond for which it is being exchanged has not been paid, then such 
Series 2024 Bond shall be dated as of the date to which such interest has been paid in full; and 
provided, further, that any Series 2024 Bond issued in exchange for an Initial Series 2024 Bond 
shall be dated the date specified in the related Pricing Certificate or Purchase Contract.  On each 
substitute Series 2024 Bond issued in conversion of and exchange for or replacement of any 
Series 2024 Bond or Series 2024 Bonds there shall be printed a Registrar’s Authentication 
Certificate, in the form hereinafter set forth.  An authorized representative of the applicable 
Registrar shall, before the delivery of any such Series 2024 Bond, date such Series 2024 Bond in 
the manner set forth above, and manually sign and date the Registrar’s Authentication Certificate, 



 -14- 
 

and no such Series 2024 Bond shall be deemed to be issued or Outstanding unless such Registrar’s 
Authentication Certificate is so executed and dated.  Each Registrar promptly shall cancel all 
applicable Series 2024 Bonds surrendered for transfer, conversion and exchange or replacement.  
No additional orders or resolutions need be passed or adopted by the Board or any other body or 
Person so as to accomplish the foregoing conversion and exchange or replacement of any 
Series 2024 Bond or portion thereof, and each Registrar shall provide for the execution and 
delivery of substitute Series 2024 Bonds in the manner prescribed herein.  Pursuant to Chapter 
1201, and particularly Sections 1201.061 through 1201.063 and 1201.067 thereof, the duty of 
conversion and exchange or replacement of Series 2024 Bonds as aforesaid is hereby imposed 
upon the related Registrar, and, upon the execution and dating of the above described Registrar’s 
Authentication Certificate, the transferred, converted and exchanged or replaced Series 2024 Bond 
shall be valid, incontestable, and enforceable in the same manner and with the same effect as the 
Series 2024 Bonds which originally were delivered pursuant to this Resolution, approved by the 
Attorney General, and registered by the Comptroller.  Except in the case of tenders of Weekly Rate 
Bonds pursuant to Section 9.4 hereof or of the remarketing of Purchased Bonds, neither the Board 
nor any Registrar shall be required (i) to issue, transfer, replace or exchange any Series 2024 Bond 
subject to redemption in whole or in part during a period beginning at the opening of business 30 
days before the day of the first mailing of a notice of redemption of such series of Series 2024 
Bonds and ending at the close of business on the day of such mailing, or (ii) to replace, transfer or 
exchange any Series 2024 Bond so selected for redemption, in whole or in part, when such 
redemption is scheduled to occur within 30 calendar days; except that at the option of the Holder 
of at least $1,000,000 in principal amount of a series of Series 2024 Bonds, the applicable Registrar 
shall be required to transfer or exchange any such Series 2024 Bond of such Holder which has 
been selected, in whole or in part, for redemption upon surrender thereof.  A Registrar may make 
such arrangements as it deems appropriate for notation on each new Series 2024 Bond issued in 
exchange for or upon the transfer of the Series 2024 Bond so selected for redemption of an 
appropriate legend to the effect that such new Series 2024 Bond has been so selected for 
redemption. 

(e) All Series 2024 Bonds issued in conversion and exchange or replacement of any other 
Series 2024 Bond or portion thereof, (i) shall be issued in fully registered form, without interest 
coupons, with the principal of and interest on such Series 2024 Bonds to be payable only to the 
Holders thereof, (ii) may be redeemed prior to their scheduled maturities, (iii) may be transferred 
and assigned, (iv) may be converted and exchanged for other Series 2024 Bonds, (v) shall have 
the characteristics, (vi) shall be signed and sealed, (vii) shall be authenticated, and (viii) shall 
provide that the principal of and interest on such Series 2024 Bonds shall be payable, all as 
provided, and in the manner required or indicated, in this Resolution. 

(f) The Board shall pay each Registrar’s reasonable and standard or customary fees and 
charges for making transfers of Series 2024 Bonds, but the Holder of any related Series 2024 Bond 
requesting such transfer shall pay any taxes or other governmental charges required to be paid with 
respect thereto.  The Holder of any Series 2024 Bond requesting any conversion and exchange 
shall pay the applicable Registrar’s reasonable and standard or customary fees and charges for 
converting and exchanging any Series 2024 Bond or portion thereof, together with any taxes or 
governmental charges required to be paid with respect thereto, all as a condition precedent to the 
exercise of such privilege of conversion and exchange; except, however, that in the case of the 
conversion and exchange of an assigned and transferred Series 2024 Bond or Series 2024 Bonds 



 -15- 
 

or any portion or portions thereof in any Authorized Denomination, and in the case of the 
conversion and exchange of a portion of the unredeemed portion of a Series 2024 Bond that has 
been redeemed in part prior to maturity, as provided in this Resolution, such fees and charges will 
be paid by the Board. 

Section 2.7. Damaged and Missing Bonds.  (a)  In the event any Outstanding Series 2024 Bond 
is damaged, mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed, the applicable Registrar shall cause to be printed, 
executed, authenticated and delivered, a new Series 2024 Bond of the same series, principal 
amount, maturity, and interest rate, as the damaged, mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed Bond, in 
replacement for such Series 2024 Bond in the manner hereinafter provided. 

(b) Application for replacement of a damaged, mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed Series 2024 
Bond shall be made by the Holder thereof to the applicable Registrar.  In every case of loss, theft, 
or destruction of a Series 2024 Bond, the Holder applying for a replacement Series 2024 Bond 
shall furnish to the Board and to the applicable Registrar such security or indemnity as may be 
required by them to save each of them harmless from any loss or damage with respect thereto.  
Also, in every case of loss, theft, or destruction of a Series 2024 Bond, the Holder shall furnish to 
the Board and to the applicable Registrar evidence to their satisfaction of the loss, theft, or 
destruction of such Series 2024 Bond, as the case may be.  In every case of damage or mutilation 
of a Series 2024 Bond, the Holder shall surrender to the applicable Registrar for cancellation the 
Series 2024 Bond so damaged or mutilated. 

(c) Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section, in the event any such Series 2024 
Bond shall have matured, and no default has occurred which is then continuing in the payment of 
the principal of and premium, if any, or interest on the Series 2024 Bond, the Board may authorize 
the payment of the same (without surrender thereof except in the case of a damaged or mutilated 
Bond) instead of issuing a replacement Series 2024 Bond, provided security or indemnity is 
furnished as provided above in this Section. 

(d) Prior to the issuance of any replacement Series 2024 Bond pursuant to the provisions of 
this Section, the applicable Registrar shall charge the Holder of such Series 2024 Bond with all 
legal, printing, and other expenses in connection therewith.  Every replacement Series 2024 Bond 
issued pursuant to the provisions of this Section by virtue of the fact that any Series 2024 Bond is 
lost, stolen, or destroyed shall constitute a contractual obligation of the Board whether or not the 
lost, stolen, or destroyed Series 2024 Bond shall be found at any time, or be enforceable by anyone, 
and shall be entitled to all the benefits of this Resolution equally and proportionately with any and 
all other Series 2024 Bonds duly issued under this Resolution. 

(e) In accordance with Section 1201.062 of Chapter 1201, this Section shall constitute 
authority for the issuance of any such replacement Series 2024 Bond without the necessity of 
further action by the Board or any other body or Person, and the duty of the replacement of such 
Series 2024 Bond is hereby authorized and imposed upon the applicable Registrar, and such 
Registrar shall authenticate and deliver such replacement Series 2024 Bonds in the form and 
manner and with the effect, as provided in Section 2.6(d) of this Resolution for Series 2024 Bonds 
issued in conversion and exchange for other Series 2024 Bonds. 



 -16- 
 

Section 2.8. Sale and Delivery of Series 2024 Bonds.  The Series 2024 Bonds may be sold 
publicly or privately on a negotiated basis, as determined by the Authorized Representatives to 
assure that the Series 2024 Bonds are sold on advantageous terms.  Pursuant to Chapter 1371, the 
Authorized Representatives are hereby severally authorized and directed to act for and on behalf 
of the Board in connection with other matters relating to the issuance of the Series 2024 Bonds.  
In such capacity, the Authorized Representatives, acting for and on behalf of the Board, shall 
determine the date of issuance and sale of each series of the Series 2024 Bonds, and are also hereby 
severally authorized and directed to approve, execute and deliver the related Purchase Contract or 
Pricing Certificate, and to approve the principal amounts and maturities of such Series 2024 Bonds 
and whether such Series 2024 Bonds shall be issued initially as Fixed Rate Bonds, Weekly Rate 
Bonds or Variable Rate Bonds, the redemption provisions and such other terms applicable to such 
Series 2024 Bonds, the Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate to be approved by the Authorized 
Representative executing the Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate, such approval to be 
conclusively evidenced by such Authorized Representative’s execution thereof; provided that (i) 
the final maturity and aggregate principal amount of such Series 2024 Bonds shall comply with 
Section 2.2 hereof, and (ii) the interest rate on such Series 2024 Bonds shall not exceed the Ceiling 
Rate, subject to the unqualified approving opinion as to the legality of such Series 2024 Bonds of 
the Attorney General and of Bond Counsel.  The Authorized Representatives and all other officers, 
agents and representatives of the Board are hereby authorized to do any and all other things 
necessary or desirable to satisfy the conditions set out in the Purchase Contract or otherwise 
required by the Initial Purchaser and to provide for the issuance and delivery of Series 2024 Bonds.  
One definitive Series 2024 Bond for each series and maturity date, in the principal amount for such 
series and maturity date as set forth in the related Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate, shall 
be delivered to or as directed by the Initial Purchaser thereof.  It is further provided, however, that 
notwithstanding the foregoing provisions, a series of Series 2024 Bonds shall not be delivered 
unless prior to delivery such Series 2024 Bonds have been rated by a Rating Agency in one of the 
four highest rating categories for long-term obligations or in one of the three highest rating 
categories for short-term obligations, as required by Chapter 1371. 

Section 2.9. Preliminary Official Statement and Official Statement.  For any Series 2024 Bonds 
to be sold initially in a public offering, prior to the execution of the Purchase Contract, the 
Chairwoman of the Board, acting for and on behalf of the Board, (i) if requested by the Initial 
Purchaser thereof, shall cause a preliminary official statement (the “Preliminary Official 
Statement”) to be prepared for distribution by the Underwriters to prospective purchasers of such 
Series 2024 Bonds, such document to be in the form as an Authorized Representative may deem 
necessary or appropriate, and each Authorized Representative is hereby authorized for and on 
behalf of the Board to approve and deem final the Preliminary Official Statement as of its date, 
except for such omissions as are permitted by the Rule (as defined in Section 8.1 hereof); within 
seven business days after the execution of the related Purchase Contract, the Chairwoman of the 
Board, acting for and on behalf of the Board, shall cause the final Official Statement, in 
substantially the form of the Preliminary Official Statement, with such changes as the Chairwoman 
of the Board may approve, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by his execution thereof, 
to be provided to the Underwriters in compliance with the Rule, or (ii) if such Initial Purchaser 
does not request a Preliminary Official Statement, the Chairwoman of the Board, acting for and 
on behalf of the Board, shall cause an official statement to be prepared for distribution by the 
Underwriters to prospective purchasers of such Series 2024 Bonds, such document to be in the 
form as an Authorized Representative may deem necessary or appropriate. 



 -17- 
 

Section 2.10. Book-Entry System.  As provided in Section 2.8 of this Resolution, each series of 
Series 2024 Bonds initially shall be delivered against payment to the Initial Purchaser thereof.  The 
Series 2024 Bonds so delivered to such Initial Purchaser shall be registered in accordance with the 
instructions of such Initial Purchaser.  Each Initial Purchaser shall be required to promptly 
surrender any Initial Series 2024 Bond received by such Initial Purchaser for exchange.  
Series 2024 Bonds issued in exchange shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee 
of DTC, as Holder, and held in the custody or on behalf of DTC.  Unless otherwise requested by 
DTC, a single certificate will be issued and delivered to DTC or its designee for each series and 
maturity and of the Series 2024 Bonds.  Beneficial owners of Series 2024 Bonds will not receive 
physical delivery of Series 2024 Bond certificates except as provided hereinafter.  For so long as 
DTC shall continue to serve as securities depository for the Series 2024 Bonds as provided herein, 
all transfers of beneficial ownership interests therein will be made by book entry only, and no 
investor or other party purchasing, selling or otherwise transferring beneficial ownership of 
Series 2024 Bonds is to receive, hold or deliver any Series 2024 Bond certificate. 

With respect to Series 2024 Bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of 
DTC, none of the Board or the applicable Paying Agent or Registrar shall have any responsibility 
or obligation to any DTC Participant or to any Person on whose behalf a DTC Participant holds an 
interest in the Series 2024 Bonds.  Without limiting the immediately preceding sentence, none of 
the Board or any Paying Agent or Registrar shall have any responsibility or obligation with respect 
to (i) the accuracy of the records of DTC, Cede & Co. or any DTC Participant with respect to any 
ownership interest in the Series 2024 Bonds, (ii) the delivery to any DTC Participant or any other 
Person, other than a Holder, as shown on the Bond Register, of any notice with respect to the 
Series 2024 Bonds, including any notice of redemption, and (iii) the payment to any DTC 
Participant or any other Person, other than a Holder, of any amount with respect to principal of 
and premium, if any, or interest on the Series 2024 Bonds. 

Replacement Series 2024 Bonds may be issued directly to beneficial owners of Series 2024 
Bonds other than DTC, or its nominee, but only in the event that (i) DTC determines not to continue 
to act as securities depository for the Series 2024 Bonds (which determination shall become 
effective no less than 90 days after written notice to such effect to the Board and the applicable 
Paying Agent and Registrar), or (ii) the Board has advised DTC of its determination (which 
determination is conclusive as to DTC and the beneficial owners of the Series 2024 Bonds) that 
DTC is incapable of discharging its duties as securities depository for the Series 2024 Bonds, or 
(iii) the Board has determined (which determination is conclusive as to DTC and the beneficial 
owners of the Series 2024 Bonds) that the interests of the beneficial owners of the Series 2024 
Bonds might be adversely affected if such book entry only system of transfer is continued.  Upon 
occurrence of any event described in (i) or (ii) above, the Board shall use its best efforts to attempt 
to locate another qualified securities depository.  If the Board fails to locate another qualified 
securities depository to replace DTC, the Board shall cause to be executed, authenticated and 
delivered replacement Series 2024 Bonds, in certificated form, to the DTC Participants having an 
interest in the Series 2024 Bonds as shown on the records of DTC provided by DTC to the Board.  
In the event that the Board makes the determination noted in (iii) above and has made provisions 
to notify the beneficial owners of the Series 2024 Bonds of such determination by mailing an 
appropriate notice to DTC, it shall cause to be issued replacement Series 2024 Bonds in certificated 
form to the DTC Participants having an interest in the Series 2024 Bonds as shown on the records 
of DTC provided by DTC to the Board.  The Board undertakes no obligation to make any 



 -18- 
 

investigation to determine the occurrence of any events that would permit the Board to make any 
determination described in (ii) or (iii) above. 

Whenever, during the term of the Series 2024 Bonds, the beneficial ownership thereof is 
determined by a book entry at DTC (or any successor securities depository), the requirements in 
this Resolution of holding, registering, delivering, exchanging or transferring Series 2024 Bonds 
shall be deemed modified to require the appropriate Person to meet the requirements of DTC (or 
such successor securities depository) as to holding, registering, delivering, exchanging or 
transferring the book entry to produce the same effect. 

Whenever, during the term of the Weekly Rate Bonds, the beneficial ownership thereof is 
determined by a book entry at DTC (or any successor securities depository), tenders of Weekly 
Rate Bonds shall be made pursuant to DTC’s (or any successor securities depository’s) deliver 
order procedures or repayment option procedures, as applicable, as are in effect from time to time.  
Upon remarketing of Weekly Rate Bonds, payment of the Purchase Price thereof shall be made to 
DTC (or any successor securities depository), and no surrender of Weekly Rate Bonds is required.  
Such sales shall be made through the DTC Participants (which may include the Remarketing 
Agent) to the new beneficial owners of such Weekly Rate Bonds, and the DTC Participants shall 
transmit payment to beneficial owners whose Weekly Rate Bonds were purchased pursuant to a 
remarketing.  The Board and each Registrar, Paying Agent, Tender Agent, Liquidity Provider and 
Remarketing Agent are not responsible for transfer of payment to the DTC Participants or 
beneficial owners. 

If at any time DTC ceases to hold the Series 2024 Bonds, all references herein to DTC shall 
be of no further force or effect. 

Anything to the contrary contained herein notwithstanding, this Section 2.10 shall not 
apply to a series of the Series 2024 Bonds if so provided in a Pricing Certificate. 

ARTICLE III 
 

REDEMPTION OF SERIES 2024 BONDS 

Section 3.1. Redemption.  (a)  Series 2024 Bonds (including Purchased Bonds) shall be subject 
to scheduled mandatory sinking fund redemption and shall be redeemed on the dates and in the 
respective principal amounts set forth in the related Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate, at a 
redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof, without premium, plus accrued interest to 
the date fixed for redemption.  The principal amount of Series 2024 Bonds to be redeemed on each 
such redemption date pursuant to mandatory sinking fund redemption shall be reduced, at the 
option of the Board, by the principal amount of any Series 2024 Bonds of the same series and 
having the same stated maturity which (A) at least 45 days prior to such mandatory sinking fund 
redemption date, (1) shall have been acquired by the Board and delivered to the applicable 
Registrar for cancellation, or (2) shall have been acquired and canceled by such Registrar at the 
direction of the Board, or (3) shall have been redeemed pursuant to any redemption provision set 
forth below and (B) shall have not been previously credited against a scheduled mandatory sinking 
fund redemption. 



 -19- 
 

(b) The Weekly Rate Bonds (including Purchased Bonds) shall be subject to redemption prior 
to maturity on the first Business Day of any month, at the option and direction of the Board, in 
whole or in part, at a redemption price of par plus accrued interest.  In the case of any such 
redemption, the Board shall select the maturity or maturities of the Weekly Rate Bonds to be 
redeemed and the amounts thereof in Authorized Denominations. 

(c) Any series of Series 2024 Bonds issued as other than Weekly Rate Bonds shall be subject 
to redemption prior to maturity, at the option and direction of the Board, during the periods and at 
the redemption prices set forth in the related Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate, plus accrued 
interest to the date fixed for redemption 

(d) Converted Fixed Rate Bonds shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option 
and direction of the Board, during the periods specified below, in whole at any time or in part from 
time to time, at the redemption prices (expressed as a percentage of principal amount) hereinafter 
indicated, plus accrued interest, if any, to the redemption date: 

Length of Fixed Interest Rate Period 
(expressed in years) Redemption Prices 

greater than 15 after 10 years at 102%, declining by 1% every 
year to 100% 

less than or equal to 15 and greater than 10 after 7 years at 102%, declining by 1% every 
year to 100% 

less than or equal to 10 and greater than 7 after 5 years at 102%, declining by 1% every 
year to 100% 

less than or equal to 7 and greater than 4 after 3 years at 101%, declining by 1% after a 
year to 100% 

less than or equal to 4 after 2 years at 100% 

In the case of any such redemption, the Board shall select the maturity or maturities of the Fixed 
Rate Bonds to be redeemed and the amounts thereof in Authorized Denominations. 

(e) In the case of any redemption of less than all of the Series 2024 Bonds of a particular series 
and maturity, the particular Series 2024 Bonds within each such series and maturity to be redeemed 
shall be selected by the applicable Registrar by lot in such manner as such Registrar shall deem 
fair and appropriate; provided that during any period in which ownership of such Series 2024 
Bonds is determined only by a book entry at a securities depository, if less than the entire principal 
amount Outstanding of all Series 2024 Bonds of the same series and maturity is to be redeemed, 
the interests to be redeemed of the beneficial owners of such Series 2024 Bonds shall be selected 
in accordance with the arrangements between the Board and the securities depository. 

(f) Anything in this Section 3.1 to the contrary notwithstanding, in the event of any (i) optional 
redemption of Weekly Rate Bonds, Purchased Bonds of the same series shall be selected first for 
such redemption to the extent there are any such Purchased Bonds, provided that the Board may 



 -20- 
 

select the maturity or maturities of Purchased Bonds to be so redeemed and the amounts thereof 
in Authorized Denominations, and (ii) mandatory sinking fund redemption of Weekly Rate Bonds, 
Purchased Bonds of the same series and maturity being redeemed shall be selected first for such 
redemption to the extent there are any such Purchased Bonds. 

Section 3.2. Notice of Redemption.  At least 30 days prior to the date fixed for any redemption 
of Series 2024 Bonds, a written notice of such redemption shall be sent by first class mail, postage 
prepaid by the Registrar to the Holders of the applicable series of Series 2024 Bonds to be 
redeemed on such date.  All notices of redemption shall state:  (1) the date of redemption and 
general mailing of such notices; (2) the redemption price; (3) the identification (including complete 
official name and series designation and issue date), the CUSIP number, if any, certificate number 
(and in the case of partial redemption, the respective principal amounts), interest rates and maturity 
dates of the Series 2024 Bonds to be redeemed; (4) that on the redemption date the redemption 
price will become due and payable on each such Series 2024 Bond, and that interest thereon shall 
cease to accrue from and after such date; and (5) the name and address of the applicable Paying 
Agent, including the name and telephone number of a contact person and the place where such 
Series 2024 Bonds are to be surrendered for payment of the redemption price.  By the date fixed 
for any such redemption, due provision shall be made by the Board with the applicable Paying 
Agent for the payment of the required redemption price for such Series 2024 Bonds or the portions 
thereof which are to be so redeemed.  If such written notice of redemption is given, and if due 
provision for such payment is made, all as provided above, such Series 2024 Bonds, or the portions 
thereof which are to be so redeemed, thereby automatically shall be redeemed prior to their 
scheduled maturities, and shall not bear interest after the date fixed for their redemption, and shall 
not be regarded as being Outstanding except for the right of the Holders thereof to receive the 
redemption price therefor from the applicable Paying Agent out of the funds provided for such 
payment.  The applicable Registrar shall record in the related Bond Register all such redemptions 
of principal of the Series 2024 Bonds or any portion thereof.  If only a portion of any Series 2024 
Bond shall be redeemed, a substitute Series 2024 Bond or Series 2024 Bonds, having the same 
series and maturity date, bearing interest at the same rate, in any Authorized Denomination which 
may be requested by the Holder thereof, and in an aggregate principal amount equal to the 
unredeemed portion thereof, will be issued to the Holder thereof upon the surrender thereof for 
cancellation, at the expense of the Board, all as provided in this Resolution.  For all purposes of 
this Resolution, unless the context otherwise requires, all provisions relating to the redemption of 
Series 2024 Bonds shall relate, in the case of any Series 2024 Bond redeemed or to be redeemed 
only in part, to the portion of the principal of such Series 2024 Bond that has been or is to be 
redeemed. 

In addition to the notice of redemption required above, the applicable Registrar shall send 
notice of redemption by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, or 
by overnight delivery service contemporaneously with such mailing:  (1) to any Holder of 
$1,000,000 or more in principal amount of the applicable series of Series 2024 Bonds; (2) to two 
or more information services of national recognition that disseminate redemption information with 
respect to municipal bonds; and (3) to any securities depository that is a Holder of such Series 2024 
Bonds.  In addition, in the event of a redemption caused by an advance refunding of Series 2024 
Bonds, the applicable Registrar shall send a second notice of redemption to all Holders of such 
Series 2024 Bonds at least thirty (30) days but not more than ninety (90) days prior to the actual 
redemption date.  Any notice required to be sent to any registered securities depositories or national 



 -21- 
 

information services shall be sent so that it is received at least two (2) days prior to the general 
mailing date of such notice.  A Registrar shall also send a notice of redemption to the Holder of 
any applicable Series 2024 Bond called for redemption who has not sent such Series 2024 Bond 
in for redemption sixty (60) days after the redemption date. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the failure to give any notice of redemption set forth in this 
Section or any defect in such notice or the mailing thereof shall not affect the validity of any 
proceedings for redemption of Series 2024 Bonds. 

ARTICLE IV 
 

FUNDS AND INVESTMENTS 

Section 4.1. Establishment of Fund II.  The Comptroller (as successor to the Treasurer of the 
State) has established in the State Treasury the “Veterans’ Housing Assistance Fund II,” referred 
to herein as “Fund II.”  The Board hereby confirms and ratifies the establishment of Fund II and 
agrees to maintain Fund II until all Bonds have been paid in full. 

Section 4.2. Deposits to Fund II.  Fund II is and shall be comprised of, and where feasible it is 
the duty of the Board, and the officers of the Board are hereby authorized and directed, to deposit 
into Fund II, the following: 

(i) any interest of the Board in Home Loans made from money in Fund II pursuant to the 
Program including proceeds of any insurance thereon or on the homes; 

(ii) the proceeds derived from the sale or other disposition of the Board’s interest in Home 
Loans; 

(iii) the money attributable to any Bonds (except Expenses Attributable to Bonds) issued and 
sold by the Board to provide money for Fund II which shall include, but shall not be limited to, 
the proceeds from the issuance and sale of such Bonds; 

(iv) income, rents, and any other pecuniary benefit received by the Board as a result of making 
Home Loans; 

(v) sums received by way of indemnity or forfeiture for the failure of any bidder for the 
purchase of any Bonds to comply with the person’s bid and accept and pay for such Bonds; 

(vi) payments received by the Board under bond enhancement agreements with respect to the 
Bonds; 

(vii) interest received from investments of any such money; and 

(viii) any equitable interest of the Board in properties encumbered by Home Loans and 
attributable to Fund II. 



 -22- 
 

The Board may deposit other moneys to the credit of Fund II, including moneys transferred 
by the Board from the Veterans’ Land Fund and Fund I, which are eligible under the Constitution 
and applicable laws of the State for such deposit or transfer. 

Section 4.3. Home Loans.  (a)  Money in Fund II, including the proceeds from the sale of Bonds, 
may be used by the Board in the making of Home Loans as provided in the Act, the payment of 
Expenses Attributable to Home Loans and Expenses Attributable to Bonds, and, as herein 
provided, the payment of the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds, including 
payments by the Board under bond enhancement agreements with respect to principal of or interest 
on the Bonds; provided, that the language of this paragraph shall not be construed to prevent the 
investment of the moneys in Fund II when permitted by the Constitutional Provision or the Act. 

(b) The Board will fix interest rates to be charged Veterans receiving Home Loans from the 
Board which will assure that the proceeds from payments and repayments of Home Loans, together 
with other legally available moneys, including, without limitation, anticipated transfers from the 
Veterans’ Land Fund or Fund I, will exceed the amount of payments the Board is required to make 
from Fund II for the payment of interest on and principal of the Bonds as such come due and 
mature, including payments by the Board under bond enhancement agreements with respect to 
principal of or interest on the Bonds, and to the extent permitted by the Constitution and applicable 
laws of the State, the Board covenants to transfer such amounts from the Veterans’ Land Fund and 
Fund I as are necessary to cause available amounts in Fund II to be sufficient for such payment. 

Section 4.4. Source of Payment.  (a)  The principal of and interest on the Series 2024 Bonds, 
including payments by the Board under bond enhancement agreements with respect to principal 
of or interest on the Series 2024 Bonds, shall be and are hereby made general obligations of the 
State pursuant to the Constitutional Provision, and for the faithful performance in proper time and 
manner of each official or other act required and necessary to provide for the prompt payment of 
principal of and interest on each of the Series 2024 Bonds, including payments by the Board under 
bond enhancement agreements with respect to principal of or interest on the Series 2024 Bonds, 
when due the resources of the Board to the extent herein provided and the full faith and credit of 
the State are hereby pledged. 

(b) All payments of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, including payments by the 
Board under bond enhancement agreements with respect to principal of or interest on the Bonds, 
shall be made from Fund II; provided, that if the Legislature of the State shall later provide 
additional sources from which the principal of or the interest on the Bonds, including payments by 
the Board under bond enhancement agreements with respect to principal of or interest on the 
Bonds, may be paid, the Board, its officers, the Comptroller and all other officers and employees 
of the State are hereby authorized and requested, and, to the extent that they are under the 
jurisdiction of this Board, directed to take all steps necessary to accomplish the use of such 
additional funds for such purpose, without releasing the continuing right of the Holders to the 
present sources prescribed by the Constitutional Provision and the Act for the payment of such 
principal and interest. 

(c) The Board recognizes the absolute and ultimate obligation of the State to provide during 
each Fiscal Year all moneys necessary to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds, including 
money to make payments by the Board under bond enhancement agreements with respect to 



 -23- 
 

principal of or interest on the Bonds, and recognizes that the Constitutional Provision provides that 
to the extent there is not money in Fund II available for payment of principal of and interest on the 
Bonds, including money to make payments by the Board under bond enhancement agreements 
with respect to principal of or interest on the Bonds, “there is appropriated out of the first money 
coming into the treasury in each fiscal year, not otherwise appropriated by this constitution, an 
amount that is sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the general obligation bonds that 
mature or come due during that fiscal year or to make bond enhancement payments with respect 
to those bonds.” 

Section 4.5. Other Uses of Fund II Moneys.  (a)  The Constitutional Provision provides that 
receipts of all kinds of Fund II determined by the Board not to be required for the payment of 
principal of and interest on Bonds or other general obligation bonds hereafter authorized by the 
Constitution of the State to provide money for Fund II, including payments by the Board under 
bond enhancement agreements with respect to principal of or interest on Bonds and such other 
general obligation bonds, may be used by the Board, to the extent not inconsistent with the 
proceedings authorizing such bonds, to (1) make temporary transfers to either the Veterans’ Land 
Fund or Fund I to avoid a temporary cash deficiency in that fund or make a transfer to either of 
those funds for the purposes of that fund; (2) pay the principal of and interest on general obligation 
bonds issued to provide money for either the Veterans’ Land Fund or Fund I or make bond 
enhancement payments with respect to such bonds; or (3) pay the principal of and interest on 
revenue bonds of the Board or make bond enhancement payments with respect to such bonds.  In 
accordance with the Constitutional Provision, the Board reserves the right to use the moneys in 
Fund II for such purposes, or for any other purpose from time to time authorized by the 
Constitutional Provision. 

(b) The Constitutional Provision also provides that if the Board determines that assets from 
Fund II are not required for the purposes of Fund II, the Board may (i) transfer the assets to either 
the Veterans’ Land Fund or Fund I, (ii) use the assets to secure revenue bonds issued by the Board 
under the Constitutional Provision, (iii) use the assets to plan and design, operate, maintain, enlarge 
or improve veterans cemeteries, or (iv) use the assets to plan and design, construct, acquire, own, 
operate, maintain, enlarge, improve, furnish, or equip veterans homes.  In accordance with the 
Constitutional Provision, the Board reserves the right to use the assets from Fund II for such 
purposes, or for any other purpose from time to time authorized by the Constitutional Provision. 

Section 4.6. Program Administration.  The Program may be administered on behalf of the Board 
by one or more administrators, each of which shall be a nationally recognized institution with 
previous experience in the administration of mortgage lending programs, and whose duties shall 
be specified in an agreement between the Board and the administrator named therein.  Currently, 
the Program administrators are Gateway Mortgage Group, LLC as “Loan Origination 
Administrator” and Nationstar Mortgage LLC as “Master Servicer.”  Home Loans may (i) be 
originated by the Board, or (ii) be originated and serviced through qualified lending institutions in 
the State, which shall be subject to the approval of the Board. 

Section 4.7. Investments.  The moneys of Fund II which are not immediately committed to the 
payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds, the making of Home Loans as herein provided, 
or the payment of expenses as herein provided may be invested in Eligible Investments until such 
funds are needed for such purposes. 



 -24- 
 

ARTICLE V 
 

COVENANTS OF THE BOARD 

Section 5.1. Payment Procedures.  (a)  The Board hereby covenants that it shall establish 
procedures with the Comptroller whereby sufficient moneys shall be withdrawn from Fund II and 
forwarded to each Paying Agent for the payment of interest on and principal of the Series 2024 
Bonds coming due on each interest or principal payment date.  In addition, the Board covenants 
that as of each principal payment date and Interest Payment Date for a series of Series 2024 Bonds 
it will make available to the applicable Paying Agent the amounts required to provide for the 
payment, in immediately available funds, of all principal of and interest on the Bonds, when due.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, during any period in which ownership of a series of Series 2024 
Bonds is determined only by a book entry at a securities depository for such Series 2024 Bonds, 
payments made to the securities depository, or its nominee, shall be made in accordance with 
arrangements between the Board and the securities depository. 

If the date for the payment of the principal of or interest on the Series 2024 Bonds is a day 
other than a Business Day, then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding Business 
Day, and payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the original date 
payment was due. 

Section 5.2. Paying Agent and Registrar.  (a)  The Board covenants with the Holders that at all 
times while the Series 2024 Bonds are Outstanding, the Board will provide a competent and legally 
qualified Paying Agent and Registrar for each series of Series 2024 Bonds under this Resolution, 
and that the Paying Agent and Registrar for such series shall be one entity, except during any 
period when such Series 2024 Bonds are registered only by means of a book entry at a securities 
depository.  The Board reserves the right to, and may, at its option, change any Paying Agent or 
Registrar upon not less than 30 days written notice to such Paying Agent or Registrar.  In the event 
that an entity at any time acting as Paying Agent or Registrar (or the successor thereto by merger, 
acquisition, or other method) should resign or otherwise cease to act as such, the Board covenants 
that it will appoint promptly a competent and legally qualified national or state banking institution 
which shall be an entity organized and doing business under the laws of the United States of 
America or of any state, authorized under such laws to exercise trust powers, subject to supervision 
or examination by federal or state authority, and, if the previous Paying Agent or Registrar was a 
banking institution, whose qualifications substantially are similar to the previous Paying Agent or 
Registrar, as appropriate, to act as Paying Agent or Registrar under this Resolution.  Upon any 
change in a Registrar, the previous Registrar promptly shall transfer and deliver the related Bond 
Register (or a copy thereof), along with all other pertinent books and records relating to the 
applicable Series 2024 Bonds, to the new Registrar designated and appointed by the Board.  Upon 
any change in a Paying Agent, the previous Paying Agent promptly shall transfer and deliver the 
records regarding payments of principal of and interest on the applicable Series 2024 Bonds (or a 
copy thereof) it has kept and maintained, along with all other pertinent books and records relating 
to payments made regarding such Series 2024 Bonds, to the new Paying Agent designated and 
appointed by the Board.  Upon any change in Paying Agent or Registrar, the Board promptly will 
cause a written notice thereof to be sent by the new Registrar to each applicable Holder by first 
class mail, postage prepaid, which notice also shall give the address of the new Paying Agent or 
Registrar, as appropriate.  By accepting the position and performing as such, each Paying Agent 



 -25- 
 

and Registrar shall be deemed to have agreed to the provisions of this Resolution, and a certified 
copy of this Resolution shall be delivered to each Paying Agent and Registrar. 

In addition, the Board hereby covenants with the Holders that it will (i) pay the reasonable 
and standard or customary fees and charges of each Paying Agent for its services with respect to 
the payment of the principal of and interest on the Series 2024 Bonds, when due, and (ii) pay the 
fees and charges of each Registrar for services with respect to the transfer of registration of 
Series 2024 Bonds solely to the extent provided in Section 2.6(f), and with respect to the 
conversion and exchange of Series 2024 Bonds solely to the extent provided in Section 2.6(f). 

Section 5.3. Tax Covenants.  (a)  Definitions.  The following terms shall have the meanings 
given below when used in this Section 5.3: 

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and, with respect to a 
specific section thereof, such reference shall be deemed to include (a) the Regulations promulgated 
under such section, (b) any successor provision of similar import hereafter enacted, (c) any 
corresponding provision of any subsequent Internal Revenue Code and (d) the regulations 
promulgated under the provisions described in (b) and (c). 

“Contract for Deed Exception” shall mean the exception from certain Home Loan 
eligibility requirements available with respect to a mortgagor possessing land under a contract for 
deed, as provided in Section 143(i)(l)(C) of the Code. 

“Costs of Issuance” shall mean costs to the extent incurred in connection with, and 
allocable to, the issuance of an issuance of obligations within the meaning of Section 147(g) of the 
Code.  For example, Costs of Issuance include the following costs, but only to the extent incurred 
in connection with, and allocable to, the borrowing: underwriters’ spread; counsel fees; financial 
advisory fees; fees paid to an organization to evaluate the credit quality of an issue; trustee fees; 
paying agent fees; bond registrar, certification and authentication fees; accounting fees; printing 
costs for bonds and offering documents; public approval process costs; engineering and feasibility 
study costs; guarantee fees, other than qualified guarantees; and similar costs. 

“Investment Proceeds” is defined in section 1.148-1(b) of the Regulations and, generally, 
consist of any amounts actually or constructively received from investing Proceeds. 

“Net Proceeds” means Proceeds of an issue reduced by amounts in a reasonably required 
reserve or replacement fund. 

“Origination Agreement” means any agreement between the Board and a Participant 
providing for the origination of Home Loans by the Participant. 

“Participant” means any entity that originates Home Loans through its participation in the 
Program. 

“Proceeds” is defined in section 1.148-1(b) of the Regulations and, generally, means any 
Sale Proceeds, Investment Proceeds and Transferred Proceeds. 



 -26- 
 

“Program Guide” means the Mortgage Origination, Sale and Servicing Guide and the 
program guidelines referred to therein. 

“Qualified Veteran” means “qualified veteran” as defined in Section 143(l)(4) of the Code. 

“Regulations” means the applicable proposed, temporary or final Treasury Regulations 
promulgated under the Code or, to the extent applicable to the Code, under the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1954, as such regulations may be amended or supplemented from time to time. 

“Sale Proceeds” is defined in section 1.148-1(b) of the Regulations and, generally, consist 
of any amounts actually or constructively received from the sale (or other disposition) of any 
obligation, including amounts used to pay underwriters’ discount or compensation and accrued 
interest other than Pre-Issuance Accrued Interest.  Sale Proceeds also include amounts derived 
from the sale of a right that is associated with any obligation and that is described in section 1.148-
4(b)(4) of the Regulations. 

“Single Family Residence” means any “residence” described in Section 6a.103A-2(d)(4) 
of the Regulations and includes two-, three- and four-family residences described in 
Section 6a.103A-1(b)(6) of the Regulations. 

“Transferred Proceeds” means (i) with respect to an issue of  Series 2024 Bonds, yield as 
determined in accordance with Section 143(g)(2)(C) of the Code and (ii) with respect to the Home 
Loans allocable to an issue of Series 2024 Bonds, the effective rate of mortgage interest as 
determined in accordance with Section 143(g)(2)(B) of the Code. 

“Yield” means yield as determined in accordance with Sections 143(g) and 148(h) of the 
Code, and the applicable provisions of Sections 1.148-1 through 1.148-10 of the Regulations. 

(b) General Tax Covenant.  The Board covenants not to take any action, or knowingly omit to 
take any action, within its control, that, if taken or omitted, respectively, would cause the interest 
on any Series 2024 Bonds to be includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes.  In 
furtherance thereof, the Board covenants to comply with section 103 and 141, 143, and 146 through 
150 of the Code and the provisions set forth in the Federal Tax Certificate executed by the Board 
in connection with an issue of Series 2024 Bonds. The Board will not be required to comply with 
any of the federal tax covenants set forth in this Section 5.3 if the Board has received a Favorable 
Opinion of Bond Counsel regarding such noncompliance. 

(c) Use of Proceeds.  The Board covenants that at least 95% of the Net Proceeds of each series 
of Series 2024 Bonds will be used to finance Home Loans for Qualified Veterans.  The Board 
further covenants that (i) no portion of the proceeds of a series of Series 2024 Bonds will be used 
in a way that would cause such Series 2024 Bonds to meet the private business use tests set forth 
in Section 141(b)(1) and (2) of the Code and applicable Regulations thereunder and (ii) no portion 
of the proceeds of a series of Series 2024 Bonds will be used to provide any airplane, skybox or 
other private luxury box, health club facility, facility primarily used for gambling, or any store the 
principal business of which is the sale of alcoholic beverages for consumption off premises. 

(d) Mortgage Eligibility Requirements. 



 -27- 
 

(i) The Board covenants: (A) to attempt in good faith to meet, with respect to each Home 
Loan, before the execution thereof, the mortgage eligibility requirements of Section 143(c), (g), 
(i)(1) and (l) of the Code (as more fully described below in this Section), by placing restrictions in 
the Origination Agreement that permit the origination and purchase of Home Loans only in 
accordance with such requirements and by establishing reasonable procedures to ensure 
compliance with such requirements including investigation by the Participants and the Program 
administrator (or its agent) to determine that each Home Loan meets such requirements; and (B) 
to correct any failure to meet such requirements within a reasonable period after such failure is 
first discovered by causing the non-qualifying Home Loan to be accelerated or to be replaced with 
a Home Loan that meets such requirements if the non-qualifying Home Loan defect cannot be 
cured within such reasonable period. 

(ii) The Board covenants to require, and the Origination Agreement and the Program Guide 
require, with respect to each Home Loan, a certification of the mortgagor and other appropriate 
evidence demonstrating that the mortgagor is a Qualified Veteran.  In determining whether a 
person is a Qualified Veteran, the Board may rely on copies of the mortgagor’s Certificate of 
Discharge indicating that the mortgagor served on active duty at some time, and stating the date 
on which the mortgagor left active service, provided that neither the Board nor the Participant 
originating the Home Loan knows or has reason to believe that such certificate is false. 

(iii) The Board covenants to require, and the Origination Agreement and the Program Guide 
require, with respect to each Home Loan, a certification of the mortgagor and other appropriate 
evidence demonstrating that the residence being financed with the proceeds of such Home Loan is 
a Single Family Residence located within the State that the mortgagor reasonably expects to 
occupy as his or her principal residence within a reasonable time (e.g., 60 days) after the financing 
is provided. 

(iv) The Board covenants to require, and the Origination Agreement and the Program Guide 
require, with respect to each Home Loan, a certification of the mortgagor and other appropriate 
evidence demonstrating that, in accordance with Section 143(i) of the Code, the Home Loan is not 
made for the purpose of acquiring or replacing an existing mortgage (i.e., that the mortgagor does 
not have an existing mortgage (whether or not paid off) on the residence securing the Home Loan 
at any time prior to the execution of the Home Loan), except for a mortgage falling within the 
Contract for Deed Exception or  a mortgage securing a construction period loan or a bridge loan 
or other similar temporary initial financing having a term of 24 months or less. The Board further 
covenants not to permit the assumption of any Home Loan unless the requirements described in 
this Section 5.3(d) are met with respect to such assumption. 

(v) The Board covenants to require, and the Origination Agreement and the Program Guide 
require, that each Home Loan include provision for acceleration in the event that the Board 
discovers that any of such mortgage eligibility requirements described in this Section 5.3(d) have 
not been met with respect to such Home Loan. 

(vi) The following terms used in this Section 5.3(d) shall have the respective meanings set forth 
in Section 143 of the Code and applicable Regulations thereunder:  mortgage, principal residence, 
residence and single-family residence. 



 -28- 
 

(e) Mortgage Rate.  The Board will take all actions necessary to ensure that the blended Yield 
on the Home Loans properly allocable under Sections 1.148-1 through 1.148-10 of the Regulations 
to an issue of Series 2024 Bonds will not exceed the Yield on such issue of Series 2024 Bonds (all 
as computed by or on behalf of the Board in accordance with Section 143(g) of the Code and 
Sections 1.148-1 and 1.148-10 of the Regulations) by more than 1.125%.  To the extent that the 
Yield on the Home Loans allocable to an issue of Series 2024 Bonds exceeds the Yield on such 
issue of Series 2024 Bonds by more than 1.125%, the Department will make “yield reduction 
payments” to the federal government as set forth in Section 1.148-5(c) of the Regulations. 

(f) No Arbitrage Covenant.  The Board covenants that it will make such use of the Gross 
Proceeds of an issue of Series 2024 Bonds and related revenues, regulate investments of proceeds 
of any issue of Series 2024 Bonds and related revenues, and take such other and further action as 
may be required so that an issue of Series 2024 Bonds will not be “arbitrage bonds” within the 
meaning of Section 148(a) of the Code. 

(g) Rebate of Arbitrage Profits.  Pursuant to Section 143(g)(3)(D) of the Code, the Board 
hereby elects to pay to the United States any amounts described in Section 143(g)(3)(A) of the 
Code.  The Board will pay to the United States such amounts at the times described in, and in such 
manner and accompanied by such forms or other information as is or may be required by the 
Regulations.  Specifically, the Board will (i) maintain records regarding the investment of the 
Proceeds of each issue of Series 2024 Bonds as may be required to calculate the amount earned on 
the investment of the Proceeds of such issue of Series 2024 Bonds separately from records of 
amounts on deposit in the funds and accounts of the Board allocable to other bond issues of the 
Board or moneys that do not represent Proceeds of any bonds of the Board, (ii) calculate at such 
times as are required by applicable Regulations, the amount earned from the investment of the 
Proceeds of such issue of Series 2024 Bonds that is required to be rebated to the federal 
government, and (iii) pay, not less often than every fifth anniversary date of the delivery of such 
issue of Series 2024 Bonds or on such other dates as may be permitted under applicable 
Regulations, all amounts required to be rebated to the federal government.  Further, the Board will 
not indirectly pay any amount otherwise payable to the federal government pursuant to the 
foregoing requirements to any Person other than the federal government by entering into any 
investment arrangements with respect to the proceeds of an issue of Series 2024 Bonds which 
results in a smaller profit or a larger loss than would have resulted if the transaction had been at 
arm’s length and had the Yield on such issue of Series 2024 Bonds not been relevant to either 
party. 

(h) Limitations on Issuance Costs.  The Board covenants that the Costs of Issuance financed 
with the proceeds of an issue of Series 2024 Bonds will not exceed two percent of the Sale 
Proceeds of such issue of  Series 2024 Bonds. 

(i) No Federal Guaranty.  The Board covenants not to take any action, or knowingly omit to 
take any action within its control, that, if taken or omitted, respectively, would cause any 
Series 2024 Bonds to be “federally guaranteed” within the meaning of Section 149(b) of the Code, 
except as permitted by Section 149(b) of the Code. 

(j) Information Reporting.  The Board covenants to file or cause to be filed with the Secretary 
of the Treasury, not later than the fifteenth day of the second calendar month after the close of the 



 -29- 
 

calendar quarter in which an issue of Series 2024 Bonds is issued, an information statement 
concerning such issue of Series 2024 Bonds, all under and in accordance with Section 149(e) of 
the Code, and to file or cause to be filed such additional information reports as may be required by 
Section 149(e) of the Code.  The Board further covenants to file or cause to be filed with the 
Secretary of the Treasury the information required by Treas. Reg. § 1.103A-2(k)(2)(ii) regarding 
the borrowers of the Proceeds of an issue of  Series 2024 Bonds (using the format set forth in 
Treas. Reg. § 1.103A-2(k)(3)(iii)) not later than the fifteenth day of the second calendar month 
after the close of each reporting period.  For purposes of the preceding sentence, a reporting period 
with respect to an issue of Series 2024 Bonds is the one-year period beginning the first day of the 
month in which the related Settlement Date occurs and ending the last day of the month preceding 
the month in which such Settlement Date occurs. 

(k) Changes in Use of Mortgage Property.  The Board acknowledges that the provisions of 
Section 150(b) of the Code (relating to changes in use of property financed with the proceeds of 
private activity bonds) will apply to the Home Loans, and covenants to advise each mortgagor 
with respect to a Home Loan of such provisions. 

(l) Volume Limitation.  The aggregate amount of the Series 2024 Bonds increased by the 
aggregate amount of all other “qualified veterans’ mortgage bonds” issued by the Board during 
calendar year 2024 does not exceed (a) the aggregate amount of qualified veterans’ mortgage 
bonds issued by the Board during the period beginning on January 1, 1979, and ending on June 22, 
1984 (not including the amount of any qualified veterans’ mortgage bonds actually issued during 
the calendar year, or the applicable proportion of 1984, in such period for which the amount of 
such bonds was the lowest), divided by (b) the number (not to exceed five) of calendar years after 
1978 and before 1985 during which the Board issued qualified veterans’ mortgage bonds 
(excluding any qualified veterans’ mortgage bonds issued after June 22, 1984). 

(m) Hedge Bonds.  The Board covenants that not more than 50 percent of the Sale Proceeds of 
an issue of  Series 2024 Bonds will be invested in nonpurpose investments having a substantially 
guaranteed yield for four years or more within the meaning of Section 149(g)(3)(A)(ii) of the 
Code, and the Board reasonably expects that at least 85 percent of the spendable proceeds of such 
issue of Series 2024 Bonds will be used to carry out the governmental purposes of such issue of 
Series 2024 Bonds within the three year period beginning on the Settlement Date of the issue of 
Series 2024 Bonds. 

(n) Record Retention.  The Board will retain all pertinent and material records relating to the 
use and expenditure of the Proceeds of an issue of Series 2024 Bonds until three years after the 
last such issue of Series 2024 Bond is redeemed, or such shorter period as authorized by 
subsequent guidance issued by the Department of Treasury, if applicable.  All records will be kept 
in a manner that ensures their complete access throughout the retention period.  For this purpose, 
it is acceptable that such records are kept either as hardcopy books and records or in an electronic 
storage and retrieval system, provided that such electronic system includes reasonable controls and 
quality assurance programs that assure the ability of the Board to retrieve and reproduce such 
books and records in the event of an examination of any issue of Series 2024 Bonds by the Internal 
Revenue Service. 



 -30- 
 

(o) Continuing Obligation.  Anything in this Resolution to the contrary notwithstanding, the 
Board’s obligations under the covenants and provisions of this Section 5.3 will survive the 
defeasance and discharge of an issue of Series 2024 Bonds for as long as such matters are relevant 
to the excludability of interest on such issue of the Series 2024 Bonds from gross income for 
federal income tax purposes. 

ARTICLE VI 
 

SUPPLEMENTS AND AMENDMENTS 

Section 6.1. Amendment of Resolution With Consent of Holders. (a)  The Holders of a series of 
Series 2024 Bonds aggregating a majority in principal amount of the aggregate principal amount 
of such Series 2024 Bonds at the time Outstanding (but not including in any case Series 2024 
Bonds which may then be held or owned by or for the account of the Board) shall have the right 
from time to time to approve an amendment of this Resolution affecting such Series 2024 Bonds 
which may be deemed necessary or desirable by the Board; provided, however, that nothing herein 
contained shall permit or be construed to permit the amendment of the terms and conditions 
contained in this Resolution or in such Series 2024 Bonds so as to: 

(i) make any change in the maturity of any of the Series 2024 Bonds of such series; 

(ii) reduce the rate of interest borne by any of the Series 2024 Bonds of such series; 

(iii) reduce the amount of the principal payable on any of the Series 2024 Bonds of such series; 

(iv) modify the terms of payment of principal of or interest on such Series 2024 Bonds, or any 
of them, or impose any conditions with respect to such payment; 

(v) change the minimum percentage of the principal amount of such Series 2024 Bonds 
necessary for consent to such amendment; or 

(vi) affect the rights of the Holders of less than all of the Series 2024 Bonds of such series then 
Outstanding, 

unless such amendment or amendments be approved by the Holders of all of such Series 2024 
Bonds at the time Outstanding. 

(b) If at any time the Board shall desire to amend this Resolution under this Section, the Board 
shall cause notice of the proposed amendment to be published in a financial newspaper or journal 
published in the City of New York, New York, or the City of Austin, Texas, once during each 
calendar week for at least four successive calendar weeks.  Such notice shall briefly set forth the 
nature of the proposed amendment and shall state that a copy thereof is on file at the principal 
office of the Board and the designated office of the Registrar for inspection by all holders of such 
Series 2024 Bonds.  Such publication is not required, however, if notice in writing is given to each 
Holder of the applicable series of Series 2024 Bonds. 

(c) Whenever at any time, within one year from the date of this publication of said notice or 
other service of written notice, the Board shall receive an instrument or instruments executed by 



 -31- 
 

the Holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of Series 2024 Bonds of the applicable 
series then Outstanding, which instrument or instruments shall refer to the proposed amendment 
described in said notice and which specifically consent to and approve such amendment in 
substantially the form of the copy thereof on file with the Registrar, the Board may adopt the 
amendatory resolution in substantially the same form. 

(d) Any consent given by the Holder of a Series 2024 Bond pursuant to the provisions of this 
Resolution shall be irrevocable for a period of six months from the date of the first publication or 
mailing of the notice provided for in this Resolution, and shall be conclusive and binding upon all 
future Holders of the same Series 2024 Bond during such period.  Such consent may be revoked 
at any time after six months from the date of the first publication or mailing of such notice by the 
holder who gave such consent, or by a successor in title, by filing notice of such revocation with 
the Registrar and the Board, but such revocation shall not be effective if the Holders of a majority 
in aggregate principal amount of the Series 2024 Bonds of the applicable series Outstanding as in 
this Section defined have, prior to the attempted revocation, consented to and approved the 
amendment. 

(e) For the purposes of this Section, proof of ownership of any Series 2024 Bond shall be 
established by the registration of any such Series 2024 Bond on the Bond Register kept and 
maintained by the applicable Registrar. 

Section 6.2. Amendment of Resolution Without Consent of Holders.  The foregoing provisions 
of this Article notwithstanding, the Board may, without the consent of the Holders, pursuant to 
amendatory resolution, from time to time: 

(i) impose conditions or restrictions additional to, but not in diminution of, those contained in 
this Resolution, respecting the issuance of Bonds; 

(ii) undertake covenants additional to but not inconsistent with those contained in this 
Resolution;  

(iii) correct any ambiguity or correct or supplement any inconsistent or defective provision 
contained in this Resolution or any amendatory resolution; 

(iv) adopt amendments to this Resolution that become effective as to a series of Series 2024 
Bonds following a mandatory tender of all of such Series 2024 Bonds then Outstanding; or 

(v) adopt amendments to this Resolution that, in the opinion of Bond Counsel, do not adversely 
affect the Holders. 

Section 6.3. Effect of Amendatory Resolutions.  Upon the adoption of any amendatory 
resolution pursuant to the provisions of this Section, this Resolution shall be deemed to be 
amended in accordance with such amendatory resolution, and the respective rights, duties and 
obligations of the Board under this Resolution and all the holders of Outstanding Series 2024 
Bonds of the applicable series shall thereafter be determined, exercised and enforced hereunder, 
subject in all respects to such amendments. 



 -32- 
 

Section 6.4. Bonds May Bear Notation of Changes.  Series 2024 Bonds of the applicable series 
authenticated and delivered after the execution of any amendatory resolution pursuant to this 
Article may bear a notation in form approved by the applicable Registrar as to any matter provided 
for in such amendatory resolution.  If the Board or the applicable Registrar shall so determine, new 
Series 2024 Bonds of the applicable series so modified as to conform, in the opinion of the Board 
and such Registrar, to any such amendatory resolution may be prepared and executed by the Board 
and authenticated and delivered by such Registrar in exchange for Series 2024 Bonds of the 
applicable series then Outstanding. 

ARTICLE VII 
 

FIXED RATE BONDS DEEMED PAID 

Section 7.1. Fixed Rate Bonds Deemed Paid.  Any Fixed Rate Bond shall be deemed to be paid 
and no longer Outstanding when payment of the principal of and premium, if any, on such Bond, 
plus interest thereon to the due date thereof (whether such due date be by reason of maturity, 
redemption, or otherwise), either (i) shall have been made or caused to be made in accordance with 
the terms thereof, or (ii) shall have been provided by irrevocably depositing with a paying agent, 
in trust and irrevocably set aside exclusively for such payment, (1) money sufficient to make such 
payment or (2) Defeasance Obligations, certified by an independent public accounting firm of 
national reputation to mature as to principal and interest in such amounts and at such times as will 
insure the availability, without reinvestment, of sufficient money to make such payment, and all 
necessary and proper fees, compensation and expenses of such paying agent for such Fixed Rate 
Bonds, with respect to which such deposit is made, shall have been paid or the payment thereof 
provided for.  At such time as a Fixed Rate Bond shall be deemed to be paid hereunder, as 
aforesaid, it shall no longer be secured by or entitled to the benefits of this Resolution, except for 
the purposes of any such payment from such money or Defeasance Obligations. 

Section 7.2. Application of Trust Money.  (a)  The deposit under clause (ii) of Section 7.1 shall 
be deemed a payment of a Fixed Rate Bond as aforesaid when proper notice of redemption of such 
Bond shall have been given, in accordance with this Resolution.  Any money so deposited with a 
paying agent as provided in this Section may at the discretion of the Board also be invested in 
Defeasance Obligations, maturing in the amounts and at the times as hereinbefore set forth, and 
all income from all Defeasance Obligations in possession of a paying agent pursuant to this 
Section which is not required for the payment of such Bond and premium, if any, and interest 
thereon, with respect to which such money has been so deposited, shall be turned over to the Board. 

(b) Notwithstanding any provision of any other Section of this Resolution which may be 
contrary to the provisions of this Section, all money or Defeasance Obligations set aside and held 
in trust pursuant to the provisions of this Section for the payment of principal of the particular 
Fixed Rate Bonds and premium, if any, and interest thereon, shall be applied to and used solely 
for the payment of the particular Fixed Rate Bonds and premium, if any, and interest thereon, with 
respect to which such money or Defeasance Obligations have been so set aside in trust. 

(c) Notwithstanding anything elsewhere in this Resolution contained, if money or Defeasance 
Obligations have been deposited or set aside with a paying agent pursuant to this Section for the 
payment of Fixed Rate Bonds and such Fixed Rate Bonds shall not have in fact been actually paid 



 -33- 
 

in full, no amendment to the provisions of this Section shall be made without the consent of the 
Holder of each Fixed Rate Bond affected thereby. 

ARTICLE VIII 
 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING 

Section 8.1. Definitions.  As used in this Article, the following terms have the meanings ascribed 
to such terms below: 

“EMMA” means the Electronic Municipal Market Access website of the 
MSRB, with the web address as of the date hereof of www.emma.msrb.org. 

“MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 

“Other Obligated Person” means a Person that is the mortgagor with respect 
to at least 20% in aggregate principal amount of the Home Loans in Fund II. 

“Rule” means SEC Rule 15c2-12, as amended from time to time. 

“SEC” means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. 

Section 8.2. Annual Reports.  The Board shall provide annually to the MSRB, within six months 
after the end of each fiscal year ending in or after 2024, financial information and operating data 
with respect to the Board of the general type included in each final Official Statement authorized 
by Section 2.9 of this Resolution, being the information described in Exhibit D hereto.  Any 
financial statements so to be provided shall be (1) prepared in accordance with the accounting 
principles described in Exhibit D hereto, (2) audited, if the Board commissions an audit of such 
statements and the audit is completed within the period during which they must be provided, and 
(3) submitted through EMMA, in an electronic format with accompanying identifying 
information, as prescribed by the MSRB.  If the audit of such financial statements is not complete 
within such period, then the Board shall provide unaudited financial statements by the required 
time and will provide audited financial statements for the applicable fiscal year to the MSRB, when 
and if the audit report on such financial statements becomes available. 

If the Board changes its fiscal year, it will notify the MSRB of the change (and of the date 
of the new fiscal year end) prior to the next date by which the Board otherwise would be required 
to provide financial information and operating data pursuant to this Section. 

If the Board changes the accounting principles under which its financial statements to be 
provided are prepared, it will provide notice of such change to the MSRB, including identification 
of the new accounting principles and such additional information as may be required under the 
Rule. 

The financial information and operating data to be provided pursuant to this Section may 
be set forth in full in one or more documents or may be included by specific reference to any 
document available to the public on EMMA or filed with the SEC. 



 -34- 
 

The Board represents that no Veteran eligible to participate in the Program is an “obligated 
person” (as defined in the Rule) for whom financial information or operating data would be 
presented in the final Official Statement authorized by Section 2.9 of this Resolution. 

Section 8.3. Event Notices.  The Board shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner but in any 
event within ten Business Days, of any of the following events with respect to a series of 
Series 2024 Bonds subject to the Rule: 

(A) Principal and interest payment delinquencies; 

(B) Non-payment related defaults, if material; 

(C) Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; 

(D) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; 

(E) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; 

(F) Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final 
determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material 
notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of such Series 2024 Bonds, or other material 
events affecting the tax status of such Series 2024 Bonds; 

(G) Modifications to rights of holders of such Series 2024 Bonds, if material; 

(H) Series 2024 Bond calls of the applicable series, if material, and tender offers; 

(I) Defeasances; 

(J) Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of such Series 2024 Bonds, if 
material; 

(K) Rating changes; 

(L) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Board; 

(M) Consummation of a merger, consolidation or acquisition involving the Board or the sale of 
all or substantially all of the assets of the Board, other than in the ordinary course of business, the 
entry of a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of a definitive 
agreement relating to any such actions, or than pursuant to its terms, if material; and 

(N) Appointment of a successor Paying Agent or Registrar or change in the name of the 
applicable Paying Agent or Registrar, if material. 

As used in clause (L) above, the phrase “bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar 
event” means the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent or similar officer for the Board in a 
proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any other proceeding under state or federal law 
in which a court of governmental authority has assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of the 
assets or business of the Board, or if jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the Board and 



 -35- 
 

official or officers of the Board in possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a court 
or governmental authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization, 
arrangement or liquidation by a court or governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction 
over substantially all of the assets or business of the Board. 

The Board shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner, of any failure by the Board to 
provide financial information or operating data in accordance with Section 8.2 of this Resolution 
by the time required by such Section. 

Section 8.4. Limitations, Disclaimers and Amendments.  The Board shall be obligated to 
observe and perform the covenants specified in this Article for so long as, but only for so long as, 
the Board remains an “obligated person” with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds within the 
meaning of the Rule, except that the Board in any event will give the notice required by Section 8.3 
of any Series 2024 Bond calls and defeasance of the applicable series that cause the Board to be 
no longer such an “obligated person.” 

The provisions of this Article are for the sole benefit of the Holders and beneficial owners 
of the Series 2024 Bonds, and nothing in this Article, express or implied, shall give any benefit or 
any legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim hereunder to any other person.  The Board undertakes 
to provide only the financial information, operating data, financial statements, and notices which 
it has expressly agreed to provide pursuant to this Article and does not hereby undertake to provide 
any other information that may be relevant or material to a complete presentation of the Board’s 
financial results, condition, or prospects or hereby undertake to update any information provided 
in accordance with this Article or otherwise, except as expressly provided herein.  The Board does 
not make any representation or warranty concerning such information or its usefulness to a 
decision to invest in or sell Series 2024 Bonds at any future date. 

UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE BOARD BE LIABLE TO THE HOLDER 
OR BENEFICIAL OWNER OF ANY SERIES 2024 BOND OR ANY OTHER PERSON, IN 
CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR DAMAGES RESULTING IN WHOLE OR IN PART FROM 
ANY BREACH BY THE BOARD, WHETHER FROM NEGLIGENCE OR WITHOUT FAULT 
ON ITS PART, OF ANY COVENANT SPECIFIED IN THIS ARTICLE, BUT EVERY RIGHT 
AND REMEDY OF ANY SUCH PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR OR ON 
ACCOUNT OF ANY SUCH BREACH SHALL BE LIMITED TO AN ACTION FOR 
MANDAMUS OR SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE. 

Nothing in this Article is intended or shall act to disclaim, waive, or otherwise limit the 
duties of the Board under federal and state securities laws. 

The provisions of this Article may be amended by the Board from time to time to adapt to 
changed circumstances that arise from a change in legal requirements, a change in law, or a change 
in the identity, nature, status, or type of operations of the Board, but only if (1) the provisions of 
this Article, as so amended, would have permitted an underwriter to purchase or sell Series 2024 
Bonds in the primary offering of a series of Series 2024 Bonds in compliance with the Rule, taking 
into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule to the date of such amendment, as well 
as such changed circumstances, and (2) either (a) the Holders of a majority in aggregate principal 
amount (or any greater amount required by any other provision of this Resolution that authorizes 



 -36- 
 

such an amendment) of the Outstanding Series 2024 Bonds of the applicable series consent to such 
amendment or (b) a Person that is unaffiliated with the Board (such as nationally recognized bond 
counsel) determines that such amendment will not materially impair the interests of the Holders 
and beneficial owners of the applicable series of Series 2024 Bonds.  If the Board so amends the 
provisions of this Article, it shall include with any amended financial information or operating 
data next provided in accordance with Section 8.2 an explanation, in narrative form, of the reasons 
for the amendment and of the impact of any change in the type of financial information or operating 
data so provided. 

Anything in this Resolution to the contrary notwithstanding, the provisions of this Article 
may be modified for a particular series of Series 2024 Bonds as set forth in the Pricing Certificate 
relating thereto. 

Section 8.5. Continuing Disclosure Relating to Other Obligated Persons.  The Board hereby 
determines that an Other Obligated Person would be an “obligated person” (as defined in the Rule) 
for whom financial information and operating data would be presented in any final official 
statement relating to a series of Series 2024 Bonds had such Person been known at the time of the 
offering thereof.  Based upon the objective criteria specified in the definition of Other Obligated 
Person, the Board concludes that no Veteran eligible to participate in the Program would be an 
Other Obligated Person. 

Section 8.6. Agreement Regarding Assumption of Certain Home Loans.  The Board agrees not 
to permit the assumption of any Home Loan that would cause any Person to become an Other 
Obligated Person. 

ARTICLE IX 
 

ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS RELATING TO SERIES 2024 BONDS 

Section 9.1. Interest Rates and Payment.  (a)  General.  Each Outstanding Weekly Rate Bond 
shall bear interest at the Weekly Interest Rate therefor, each Fixed Rate Bond shall bear interest at 
the Fixed Interest Rate therefor, each Purchased Bond shall bear interest at the Purchased Bond 
Rate therefor, and each Variable Rate Bond shall bear interest as provided in the related Purchase 
Contract or Pricing Certificate; provided, however, that in no event shall the interest rate on any 
Series 2024 Bond exceed the Ceiling Rate; and provided further that in no event shall the 
Purchased Bond Rate exceed the Maximum Purchased Bond Rate.  Unless provided to the contrary 
in the related Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate, each Series 2024 Bond shall bear interest 
from its date (except for an Initial Series 2024 Bond that is not a Fixed Rate Bond, which shall 
bear interest from the Settlement Date), and interest on each Series 2024 Bond for each Interest 
Accrual Period shall be payable on each Interest Payment Date applicable to such Series 2024 
Bond; provided, however, that the Holder (other than a Liquidity Provider) of a Weekly Rate Bond 
shall be paid interest thereon for an Interest Accrual Period only in the amount that would have 
accrued thereon at the Weekly Interest Rate, regardless of whether such Weekly Rate Bond was a 
Purchased Bond during any portion of such Interest Accrual Period, and the amount, if any, 
accrued as interest on such Weekly Rate Bond at the Purchased Bond Rate in excess of the amount 
required to be paid to such Holder shall be paid by the Board to a Liquidity Provider in accordance 
with the related Liquidity Facility. 



 -37- 
 

(b) Payment and Calculation of Interest.  Interest on the Series 2024 Bonds shall be paid in 
arrears.  Interest on Weekly Rate Bonds (including Purchased Bonds) shall be computed on the 
basis of a 365/366-day year, for the number of days actually elapsed.  Interest on Fixed Rate Bonds 
shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve (12) thirty (30) day months.  
Interest on Variable Rate Bonds shall be computed as set forth in the related Purchase Contract or 
Pricing Certificate. 

(c) Ceiling Rate.  Anything to the contrary contained herein notwithstanding, the maximum 
rate of interest on the Series 2024 Bonds at any time shall be the Ceiling Rate. 

(d) Purchased Bonds.  All Purchased Bonds shall bear interest at the Purchased Bond Rate 
therefor, which shall be payable at such times, in such amounts and in such manner as is provided 
in the related Liquidity Facility.  The maximum rate of interest permitted on Purchased Bonds 
shall be the Maximum Purchased Bond Rate.  Any determination of the Purchased Bond Rate 
pursuant to a Liquidity Facility shall be conclusive and binding on the Board. 

Section 9.2. Determination of Weekly Interest Rate.  (a)  Weekly Rate Bonds shall bear interest 
at the Weekly Interest Rate, which shall be determined by the applicable Remarketing Agent by 
4:30 p.m., New York City time, on Tuesday of each week during such Weekly Interest Rate Period, 
or if such day shall not be a Business Day, then on the next succeeding Business Day, provided 
that the first Weekly Interest Rate for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds shall be determined by the 
Initial Purchaser thereof on the date of execution of the related Purchase Contract in the manner 
set forth in this paragraph.  The first Weekly Interest Rate for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds shall 
apply to the period commencing on the Settlement Date therefor and ending on the next succeeding 
Tuesday.  Thereafter, each Weekly Interest Rate shall apply to the period commencing on 
Wednesday and ending on the next succeeding Tuesday, unless such Weekly Interest Rate Period 
shall end on a day other than Tuesday, in which event the last Weekly Interest Rate for such 
Weekly Interest Rate Period shall apply to the period commencing on the Wednesday preceding 
the last day of such Weekly Interest Rate Period and ending on the last day of such Weekly Interest 
Rate Period.  The Weekly Interest Rate for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds shall be the rate of 
interest per annum determined by the Remarketing Agent therefor (based on then prevailing 
market conditions) to be the minimum interest rate which, if borne by such Weekly Rate Bonds, 
would enable such Remarketing Agent to sell such Weekly Rate Bonds on such date of 
determination at a price (without regarding accrued interest) equal to the principal amount thereof.  
In the event that such Remarketing Agent fails to establish a Weekly Interest Rate for any week, 
then the Weekly Interest Rate for such week shall be the same as the Weekly Interest Rate for the 
immediately preceding week if the Weekly Interest Rate for such preceding week was determined 
by such Remarketing Agent.  In the event that the Weekly Interest Rate for the immediately 
preceding week was not determined by such Remarketing Agent, or in the event that the Weekly 
Interest Rate determined by such Remarketing Agent shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable 
by a court of law, then the interest rate for such week shall be equal to the most recently available 
SIFMA Index plus 0.25% per annum, or if such index is no longer available, or no such index was 
so made available for the week preceding the date of determination, 75% of the interest rate on 
30-day high grade unsecured commercial paper notes sold through dealers by major corporations 
as reported in The Wall Street Journal on the day the Weekly Interest Rate would otherwise be 
determined as provided herein for such Weekly Interest Rate Period. 



 -38- 
 

(b) The first Interest Rate Period for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds shall commence on the 
Settlement Date and shall be a Weekly Interest Rate Period.  The initial Weekly Interest Rate to 
be borne by such Weekly Rate Bonds shall be determined by the Initial Purchaser thereof in the 
manner set forth in the preceding paragraph. 

(c) Notices.  On each date on which a Remarketing Agent determines the interest rate on any 
Weekly Rate Bond, such Remarketing Agent shall give the Board and the applicable Tender 
Agent, Paying Agent and Liquidity Provider notice by facsimile or e-mail transmission of the 
interest rate determined by such Remarketing Agent on such date.  Upon telephonic request, such 
Remarketing Agent will give any Holder of the applicable series of Weekly Rate Bonds notice of 
the interest rate on such Weekly Rate Bonds owned by such Holder. 

(d) Binding Effect.  Each determination of the interest rate for the Weekly Rate Bonds, as 
provided herein, shall be conclusive and binding upon the owners of the Weekly Rate Bonds, the 
Board and the applicable Remarketing Agent, Tender Agent, Liquidity Provider and Paying Agent.  
Upon telephonic request to a Remarketing Agent from the Board, the Paying Agent, the applicable 
Liquidity Provider or any Holder of any Weekly Rate Bond of the applicable series, the 
Remarketing Agent shall inform such Person of the interest rate then in effect on such Weekly 
Rate Bonds.  Failure of such Remarketing Agent to give any notice described in this Section, or 
any defect therein, shall not affect the interest rate to be borne by any of any Weekly Rate Bonds 
of the applicable series nor in any way change the rights of the Holders of such Weekly Rate Bonds 
to tender their Weekly Rate Bonds for purchase in accordance with this Resolution. 

Section 9.3. Fixed Interest Rate.  (a)  Determination of Fixed Interest Rate.  During a Fixed 
Interest Rate Period, each Series 2024 Bond shall bear interest at the Fixed Interest Rate therefor.  
The Fixed Interest Rate for each stated maturity of Series 2024 Bonds issued as Weekly Rate 
Bonds shall be determined by the applicable Remarketing Agent on a Business Day not less than 
15 days prior to the effective date of the Fixed Interest Rate Period therefor.  The Fixed Interest 
Rate for each stated maturity shall be the rate of interest per annum determined by such 
Remarketing Agent (based on then prevailing market conditions) to be the minimum interest rate, 
if any, at which such Remarketing Agent will agree to purchase the applicable series of Series 2024 
Bonds on such effective date for resale at a price (without regarding accrued interest) equal to the 
principal amount thereof.  If, for any reason, the Fixed Interest Rate for each stated maturity is not 
so determined for such Series 2024 Bonds by such Remarketing Agent at least 15 days prior to the 
first day of the Fixed Interest Rate Period therefor, then such Series 2024 Bonds shall bear interest 
at a Weekly Interest Rate as provided in Section 9.2, and shall continue to bear interest at a Weekly 
Interest Rate determined in accordance with Section 9.2 until such time as the interest rate on such 
Series 2024 Bonds shall have been adjusted to a Fixed Interest Rate, and such Series 2024 Bonds 
shall continue to be subject to purchase upon notice from the Holders thereof as described in 
Section 9.4(a).  The related Liquidity Facility shall be terminated as to such Fixed Rate Bonds. 

(b) Adjustment to Fixed Interest Rate Period. 

(i) At any time, the Board, by written direction to the applicable Registrar, Tender Agent, 
Paying Agent, Liquidity Provider and Remarketing Agent, may elect, subject to Section 9.3(e), 
that a series of Weekly Rate Bonds shall be subject to a Fixed Interest Rate Period.  The direction 
of the Board required by the first sentence of this paragraph (i) shall specify the effective date of 



 -39- 
 

the Fixed Interest Rate Period, which date shall be (A) a Business Day not earlier than the 30th 
day following the second Business Day after receipt by the applicable Registrar of such direction, 
and (B) the day immediately following the last day of a Weekly Interest Rate Period. 

(ii) Such direction of the Board shall be accompanied by a Favorable Opinion of Bond Counsel 
and by a form of the notice to be mailed by the applicable Registrar to the Holders of the series of 
Weekly Rate Bonds to be converted as provided in Section 9.3(c). 

(iii) If the Board shall deliver to the applicable Registrar, Remarketing Agent and Tender Agent 
on or prior to the date that the interest rate for the Fixed Interest Rate Period is determined a notice 
to the effect that the Board elects to rescind its election to have the series of Weekly Rate Bonds 
to be converted become subject to a Fixed Interest Rate Period, then such Series 2024 Bonds shall 
not become subject to a Fixed Interest Rate Period, and such Series 2024 Bonds shall bear interest 
at a Weekly Interest Rate as in effect prior to such event. 

(c) Notice of Adjustment to Fixed Interest Rate Period.  The applicable Registrar shall give 
notice by first class mail of an adjustment to a Fixed Interest Rate Period to the Holders of the 
series of Weekly Rate Bonds to be converted not less than 30 days prior to the effective date of 
such Fixed Interest Rate Period.  Such notice shall state:  (1) that the Interest Rate Period on such 
Series 2024 Bonds shall be adjusted to a Fixed Interest Rate Period unless (x) Bond Counsel fails 
to deliver to the Board, the applicable Tender Agent and the applicable Remarketing Agent a 
Favorable Opinion of Bond Counsel as to such adjustment in the Interest Rate Period on the 
effective date of such adjustment, or (y) the Board shall elect, on or prior to the date of 
determination of the Fixed Interest Rate, to rescind its election to cause the adjustment of the 
Interest Rate Period on such Series 2024 Bonds to the Fixed Interest Rate Period, in which case 
such Series 2024 Bonds shall continue to bear interest at a Weekly Interest Rate as in effect 
immediately prior to such proposed adjustment in the Interest Rate Period, (2) the effective date 
of the Fixed Interest Rate Period, (3) that such Series 2024 Bonds are subject to mandatory tender 
for purchase on such effective date and the purchase price applicable thereto, (4) that the related 
Liquidity Facility will be terminated as of the effective date of such Fixed Interest Rate Period, 
and (5) if ownership of such Series 2024 Bonds is no longer determined only by a book entry at a 
securities depository for the Series 2024 Bonds, information with respect to the required delivery 
of bond certificates and payment of purchase price under Section 9.4(f) hereof. 

(d) If the Board elects to convert a series of Weekly Rate Bonds to Fixed Rate Bonds, then the 
written direction furnished by the Board to the applicable Liquidity Provider, Registrar, Tender 
Agent and Remarketing Agent shall be made by registered or certified mail, or by e-mail or fax, 
confirmed by registered or certified mail.  Any such direction of the Board shall be accompanied 
by a copy of the notice required to be given by the applicable Registrar pursuant to Section 9.3(c) 
hereof. 

(e) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, in connection with any conversion of a 
series of Weekly Rate Bonds to Fixed Rate Bonds, the Board shall cause to be provided to the 
applicable Tender Agent and Remarketing Agent a Favorable Opinion of Bond Counsel on the 
effective date of such conversion.  In the event that Bond Counsel fails to deliver a Favorable 
Opinion of Bond Counsel on any such date, then the Interest Rate Period on such Series 2024 
Bonds shall not be adjusted, and such Series 2024 Bonds shall continue to be Weekly Rate Bonds.  



 -40- 
 

In any event, if notice of such adjustment has been mailed to the Holders of such Series 2024 
Bonds and Bond Counsel fails to deliver a Favorable Opinion of Bond Counsel on the effective 
date as herein described, such Series 2024 Bonds shall continue to be subject to mandatory 
purchase on the date which would have been the effective date of such adjustment as provided in 
this Section. 

Section 9.4. Purchase of Weekly Rate Bonds.  (a) Optional Tender for Purchase.  If ownership 
of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds is determined only by a book entry at a securities depository for 
such Series 2024 Bonds, a Beneficial Owner (through its DTC Participant) may tender his interest 
in a Weekly Rate Bond of such series on any Business Day at a purchase price equal to the principal 
amount thereof plus accrued interest, if any, from and including the Interest Payment Date 
immediately preceding the date of purchase through and including the day immediately preceding 
the date of purchase, unless the date of purchase shall be an Interest Payment Date, in which case 
at a purchase price equal to the principal amount thereof, payable in immediately available funds, 
upon delivery to the applicable Tender Agent at its designated corporate trust office for delivery 
of notices, with a copy to the applicable Remarketing Agent, of an irrevocable written notice or 
telephonic notice, promptly confirmed in writing, which states the principal amount of such 
Weekly Rate Bond and the date on which the same shall be purchased, which date shall be a 
Business Day not prior to the seventh day next succeeding the date of the delivery of such notice 
to such Tender Agent.  Any notice delivered to such Tender Agent after 4:00 p.m., New York City 
time, shall be deemed to have been received on the next succeeding Business Day. 

Such Tender Agent shall promptly (but no later than the next Business Day) send a copy 
of any notice delivered to it pursuant to this Section 9.4(a) by fax or other electronic means to the 
applicable Remarketing Agent and Liquidity Provider.  On the date for purchase specified in the 
notice, the Beneficial Owner shall effect delivery of such Series 2024 Bonds by causing the DTC 
Participant through which such Beneficial Owner owns such Series 2024 Bonds to transfer its 
interest in such Series 2024 Bonds equal to such Beneficial Owner’s interest on the records of 
DTC to the participant account of the applicable Tender Agent with DTC. 

If ownership of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds is not determined only by a book entry at a 
securities depository for such Series 2024 Bonds, a Holder of a Weekly Rate Bond of such series 
may tender its Series 2024 Bond by delivery of the notice described above by the time set forth 
above and shall also deliver such Series 2024 Bond to the Tender Agent on the date specified for 
purchase. 

(b) Mandatory Tender for Purchase on First Day of Fixed Interest Rate Period.  A series of 
Weekly Rate Bonds shall be subject to mandatory tender for purchase on the first day of the Fixed 
Interest Rate Period therefor, or on the day which would have been the first day of such Fixed 
Interest Rate Period had one of the events specified in Section 9.3(b)(iii) or Section 9.3(e) not 
occurred which resulted in the interest rate on such Series 2024 Bonds not being adjusted, at a 
purchase price, payable in immediately available funds, equal to the principal amount of such 
Series 2024 Bonds, plus accrued interest (if any). 

(c) Mandatory Tender for Purchase Upon Termination, Expiration, Suspension, Modification 
or Replacement of Liquidity Facility.  If at any time the Registrar for a series of Weekly Rate 
Bonds shall give notice in accordance with Section 9.7 that such Weekly Rate Bonds which, at 



 -41- 
 

such time, are subject to purchase under the related Liquidity Facility as then in effect, shall on the 
date specified in such notice cease to be subject to purchase from such Liquidity Facility as a result 
of (A) the termination or expiration of the term of such Liquidity Facility, or (B) such Liquidity 
Facility being suspended, replaced or modified with the effect that the purchase price of such 
Series 2024 Bonds is no longer payable from such Liquidity Facility (in each case, whether or not 
any Alternate Liquidity Facility has been obtained), then on the Business Day the Board specifies 
to such Registrar that is at least five days and no more than 15 days (or, if no such date is specified, 
the fifth calendar day (or the immediately preceding Business Day if such day is not a Business 
Day)) preceding any termination, expiration, suspension, modification or replacement of such 
Liquidity Facility each such Series 2024 Bond or Series 2024 Bonds shall be purchased or deemed 
purchased as provided herein.  The purchase price for such Series 2024 Bonds shall be equal to 
the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest (if any). 

(d) Mandatory Tender for Purchase Following Event of Default Under Liquidity Facility.  All 
Weekly Rate Bonds of a series shall be subject to mandatory tender for purchase on the tenth day 
(or the next succeeding Business Day if such day is not a Business Day) following receipt by the 
applicable Tender Agent of notice from the applicable Liquidity Provider that an “Event of 
Default” has occurred under the applicable Liquidity Facility and directing the mandatory purchase 
of such Weekly Rate Bonds.  No later than the third Business Day following receipt of such notice 
described above, such Tender Agent shall give notice by first class mail, postage prepaid, to the 
Holders of such Series 2024 Bonds, the Board and the applicable Remarketing Agent stating that 
an “Event of Default” has occurred under the Liquidity Facility and that such Series 2024 Bonds 
are subject to mandatory tender for purchase. 

(e) Notice of Mandatory Tender for Purchase.  In connection with any mandatory tender for 
purchase of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds in accordance with Section 9.4(b) or Section 9.4(c), 
the applicable Registrar shall include notice of a mandatory tender for purchase as a part of the 
notice given pursuant to Section 9.3(c) or Section 9.7 hereof.  Each notice of mandatory tender for 
purchase shall state (A) in the case of a mandatory tender for purchase pursuant to Section 9.4(c) 
hereof, that the applicable Liquidity Facility will expire, terminate, be suspended, be replaced or 
be modified and that the purchase price of such Weekly Rate Bonds shall no longer be payable 
from such Liquidity Facility then in effect and that any rating applicable thereto may be reduced 
or withdrawn; (B) in the case of a mandatory tender for purchase pursuant to Section 9.4(d) hereof, 
that an “Event of Default” has occurred under such Liquidity Facility; (C) that the purchase price 
of any Weekly Rate Bond so subject to mandatory purchase shall be payable only upon (i) if 
ownership of such Weekly Rate Bonds is not determined only by a book entry at a securities 
depository for such Weekly Rate Bonds, surrender of such Weekly Rate Bond to the applicable 
Tender Agent at its designated corporate trust office for delivery of Weekly Rate Bonds, 
accompanied by an instrument of transfer thereof, in form satisfactory to such Tender Agent, 
executed in blank by the Holder thereof or his duly authorized attorney, with such signature 
guaranteed by a bank, trust company or member firm of the New York Stock Exchange or (ii) if 
ownership of such Weekly Rate Bonds is determined only by a book entry at a securities depository 
for such Weekly Rate Bonds, registration of the ownership rights in such Weekly Rate Bond to 
the applicable Tender Agent on the records of DTC; (D) that, provided that moneys sufficient to 
effect such purchase have been provided through the remarketing of such Weekly Rate Bonds by 
the applicable Remarketing Agent or through the applicable Liquidity Facility or otherwise, all 
Weekly Rate Bonds so subject to mandatory tender for purchase shall be purchased on the 



 -42- 
 

mandatory purchase date, and that if any Holder of a Weekly Rate Bond subject to mandatory 
tender for purchase shall not surrender such Weekly Rate Bond to the applicable Tender Agent for 
purchase (or if ownership of such Weekly Rate Bonds is determined only by a book entry at a 
securities depository for such Weekly Rate Bonds, effect the transfer of ownership rights to the 
applicable Tender Agent on the records of DTC) on such mandatory purchase date, and moneys 
sufficient to pay the purchase price thereof are on deposit with the applicable Tender Agent, then 
such Weekly Rate Bond shall be deemed to be an Undelivered Bond, and that no interest shall 
accrue thereon on and after such mandatory purchase date and that the Holder thereof shall have 
no rights under this Resolution other than to receive payment of the purchase price thereof; and 
(E) in the event that moneys sufficient to pay the purchase price of such Weekly Rate Bonds have 
not been provided to the applicable Tender Agent either through the remarketing of such Weekly 
Rate Bonds or from the applicable Liquidity Facility or otherwise, that such Weekly Rate Bonds 
shall not be purchased or deemed purchased and shall bear interest at the rate described in 
Section 9.15 hereof.  In connection with any mandatory tender for purchase of Weekly Rate Bonds 
in accordance with Section 9.4(c) hereof as a result of the replacement, termination or expiration 
of a Liquidity Facility, such notice also shall contain the information required by Section 9.7.  The 
Board shall provide the applicable Registrar with a form of any such notice.  

(f) Delivery of Tendered Weekly Rate Bonds.  Subject to the provisions of Section 2.10 hereof 
if ownership of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds is determined only by a book entry at a securities 
depository for such Weekly Rate Bonds, for payment of the purchase price of any such Weekly 
Rate Bond required to be purchased pursuant to this Section 9.4 on the date specified, such Weekly 
Rate Bond must be delivered, at or prior to 10:00 a.m., New York City time, on the date specified 
in such notice, to the applicable Tender Agent at its designated corporate trust office for delivery 
of Weekly Rate Bonds, accompanied by an instrument of transfer thereof, in form satisfactory to 
such Tender Agent, executed in blank by the Holder thereof or his duly authorized attorney, with 
such signature guaranteed by a commercial bank, trust company or member firm of the New York 
Stock Exchange.  In the event any such Weekly Rate Bond is delivered after 10:00 a.m., New York 
City time, on such date, payment of the purchase price of such Weekly Rate Bond need not be 
made until the Business Day following the date of delivery of such Weekly Rate Bond, but such 
Weekly Rate Bond shall nonetheless be deemed to have been purchased on the date specified in 
such notice and no interest shall accrue thereon after such date. 

(g) Irrevocable Notice Deemed to be Tender of Weekly Rate Bond; Undelivered Bonds. 

(i) The giving of notice by an owner of a Weekly Rate Bond as provided in Section 9.4(a) 
hereof shall constitute the irrevocable tender for purchase of each such Weekly Rate Bond with 
respect to which such notice shall have been given, regardless of whether such Weekly Rate Bond 
is delivered to the applicable Tender Agent for purchase on the relevant purchase date as provided 
in Section 9.4 hereof provided that moneys sufficient to pay the purchase price of such Weekly 
Rate Bonds are on deposit with the applicable Tender Agent for such purpose. 

(ii) A Tender Agent may refuse to accept delivery of any Weekly Rate Bonds for which a 
proper instrument of transfer has not been provided; such refusal, however, shall not affect the 
validity of the purchase of such Weekly Rate Bond as herein described.  If any owner of a Weekly 
Rate Bond who shall have given notice of tender of purchase pursuant to Section 9.4(a) hereof, if 
ownership of the related series of Weekly Rate Bonds is not determined only by a book entry at a 



 -43- 
 

securities depository for such Weekly Rate Bonds, shall fail to deliver such Weekly Rate Bond to 
the applicable Tender Agent at the place and on the applicable date and at the time specified, or 
shall fail to deliver such Weekly Rate Bond properly endorsed, or if ownership of such Weekly 
Rate Bonds is determined only by a book entry at a securities depository for such Weekly Rate 
Bonds, shall fail to cause its beneficial ownership to be transferred to the applicable Tender Agent 
on the records of DTC, and moneys sufficient to pay the purchase price thereof are on deposit with 
such Tender Agent for such purpose, such Weekly Rate Bond shall constitute an Undelivered 
Bond.  If funds in the amount of the purchase price of the Undelivered Bonds (including the 
Undelivered Bonds referred to in Section 9.4(e) hereof) are available for payment to the owner 
thereof on the date and at the time specified, from and after the date and time of that required 
delivery, (1) each Undelivered Bond shall be deemed to be purchased and shall no longer be 
deemed to be outstanding under this Resolution; (2) interest shall no longer accrue thereon; and 
(3) funds in the amount of the purchase price of each such Undelivered Bond shall be held by the 
applicable Tender Agent for the benefit of the owner thereof (provided that the owner shall have 
no right to any investment proceeds derived from such funds), to be paid on delivery (and proper 
endorsement) of such Undelivered Bond to such Tender Agent at its designated office for delivery 
of Weekly Rate Bonds.  Any funds held by such Tender Agent as described in clause (3) of the 
preceding sentence shall be held uninvested and not commingled. 

Section 9.5. Amendments to Liquidity Facility.  Except with the consent of all the Holders of a 
series of Weekly Rate Bonds, neither the Board nor the applicable Tender Agent shall permit any 
amendment, supplement, modification or waiver to the applicable Liquidity Facility that would 
result in the rating assigned to such Weekly Rate Bonds by the applicable Rating Agency being 
withdrawn or reduced below that in effect prior to such amendment, supplement, modification or 
waiver. 

Section 9.6. Alternate Liquidity Facility.  If at any time there shall be delivered to a Tender 
Agent (i) an Alternate Liquidity Facility, (ii) a Favorable Opinion of Bond Counsel, (iii) written 
evidence from the applicable Rating Agency stating the ratings of the applicable series of Weekly 
Rate Bonds after substitution of such Alternate Liquidity Facility, or a statement of the Board that 
no ratings have been obtained, and (iv) an opinion of counsel to the effect that such Alternate 
Liquidity Facility is a valid and enforceable obligation of the issuer or provider thereof, then such 
Tender Agent shall accept such Alternate Liquidity Facility and, if the applicable Liquidity Facility 
then in effect is a letter of credit, promptly surrender such Liquidity Facility to the Liquidity 
Provider that issued such Liquidity Facility in accordance with its terms for cancellation.  Anything 
in this Resolution to the contrary notwithstanding, following satisfaction of the requirements set 
forth in this Section 9.6 and the mandatory tender for purchase of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds 
pursuant to Section 9.4(c) hereof in connection with the provision of any Alternate Liquidity 
Facility, (i) such Alternate Liquidity Facility may at any time thereafter specified by the Board to 
the applicable Tender Agent become the Liquidity Facility for such Weekly Rate Bonds for all 
purposes of this Resolution, and (ii) the Liquidity Facility replaced by such Alternate Liquidity 
Facility may be terminated at any time after such replacement. 

Section 9.7. Notice of Termination or Other Change in Liquidity Facility.  The applicable 
Registrar shall give notice by mail to the Holders of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds on or before 
the 15th day preceding (i) the expiration of any applicable Liquidity Facility in accordance with 
its terms, or (ii) any termination, replacement or modification of the terms of the applicable 



 -44- 
 

Liquidity Facility, which notice shall, to the extent applicable, (1) state the date of such 
replacement, termination, expiration or modification and the date of the proposed substitution of 
the Alternate Liquidity Facility (if any), and (2) state the date that such Weekly Rate Bonds will 
be purchased pursuant to Section 9.4(c) hereof as a result of such replacement, termination, 
expiration or modification.  The Board shall provide the applicable Registrar with written notice 
of any information required to enable such Registrar to give the foregoing notice and shall provide 
such Registrar with the form of such notice at least five days before such notice is required to be 
given. 

Section 9.8. Remarketing Agent and Tender Agent.  (a) Subject to execution of a Remarketing 
Agreement, the initial Remarketing Agent for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds shall be as designated 
in the applicable Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate.  The Board shall appoint any successor 
Remarketing Agent subject to the conditions set forth in Section 9.9(a) hereof.  Each Remarketing 
Agent shall designate its designated office (other than the initial Remarketing Agent whose 
designated office is listed in Section 9.16 hereof) and signify its acceptance of the duties and 
obligations imposed upon it hereunder by a written instrument of acceptance delivered to the Board 
under which such Remarketing Agent will agree, particularly, to keep such books and records with 
respect to its duties as Remarketing Agent as shall be consistent with prudent industry practice and 
to make such books and records available for inspection by the Board at all reasonable times. 

(b) The initial Tender Agent for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds shall be as designated in the 
applicable Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate.  The Board shall appoint any successor Tender 
Agent, subject to the conditions set forth in Section 9.9(b) hereof.  Each Tender Agent shall 
designate its designated office(s) for delivery of notices and delivery of Weekly Rate Bonds and 
signify its acceptance of the duties and obligations imposed upon it hereunder by a written 
instrument of acceptance delivered to the Board and the applicable Registrar, Liquidity Provider 
and Remarketing Agent.  By acceptance of its appointment hereunder, each Tender Agent agrees: 

(i) to hold all Weekly Rate Bonds delivered to it pursuant to Section 9.4 hereof, as agent and 
bailee of, and in escrow for the benefit of, the respective owners which shall have so delivered 
such Weekly Rate Bonds until moneys representing the purchase price of such Weekly Rate Bonds 
shall have been delivered to or for the account of or to the order of such owners; 

(ii) to establish and maintain a separate segregated trust fund designated as the “State of Texas 
Veterans Bonds, Series 2024 Bond Purchase Fund” (each, a “Bond Purchase Fund”) (with the 
specific series designation to replace “2024,” if applicable), and to establish and maintain therein 
a remarketing account (the “Remarketing Account”) and a liquidity facility account (the “Purchase 
Account”), until such time as it has been discharged from its duties as Tender Agent hereunder; 

(iii) to hold all moneys (without investment thereof) delivered to it hereunder in the Bond 
Purchase Fund for the purchase of Weekly Rate Bonds pursuant to Section 9.4 hereof, as agent 
and bailee of, and in escrow for the benefit of, the Person which shall have so delivered such 
moneys until the Weekly Rate Bonds purchased with such moneys shall have been delivered to or 
for the account of such Person; 

(iv) to hold all moneys delivered to it by the Board for the purchase of Weekly Rate Bonds 
pursuant to Section 9.4 hereof, as agent and bailee of, and in escrow for the benefit of, the owners 



 -45- 
 

or former owners who shall deliver Weekly Rate Bonds to it for purchase until the Variable Rate 
Bonds purchased with such moneys shall have been canceled; 

(v) to hold all Weekly Rate Bonds registered in the name of the new owners thereof which 
have been delivered to it by the applicable Registrar for delivery to the applicable Remarketing 
Agent in accordance with the provisions of this Resolution; and 

(vi) to keep such books and records as shall be consistent with standard industry practice and 
to make such books and records available for inspection by the Board, the applicable Liquidity 
Provider and the applicable Remarketing Agent at all reasonable times. 

Section 9.9. Qualifications of Remarketing Agent and Tender Agent; Resignation; Removal. 

(a) Each Remarketing Agent shall be a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory 
Authority, having a combined capital stock, surplus and undivided profits of at least $250,000,000 
and authorized by law to perform all the duties imposed upon it by this Resolution.  Any successor 
Remarketing Agent shall have, or be a subsidiary of another entity or a partnership which includes 
as a general partner an entity which shall have, senior unsecured long-term debt which shall be 
rated, so long as the Weekly Rate Bonds shall be rated by the Rating Agency, at least Baa3/P-3 (or 
its equivalent) or otherwise qualified by the Rating Agency. A Remarketing Agent may at any 
time resign and be discharged of its duties and obligations hereunder upon providing the Board 
and the applicable Tender Agent, Liquidity Provider, Paying Agent and Registrar with at least 30 
days’ (or such number of days as is required by the applicable Remarketing Agreement) prior 
written notice.  A Remarketing Agent may be removed at any time, at the direction of the Board 
with the written consent of the applicable Liquidity Provider, by an instrument signed by the Board 
and filed with the applicable Tender Agent, Registrar, Liquidity Provider and Remarketing Agent 
at least 30 days prior to the effective date of such removal.  In the event that a Remarketing Agent 
has resigned or been removed and no successor Remarketing Agent has been appointed by the 
Board, the applicable Tender Agent shall perform, or engage a Person to perform, the duties of 
such Remarketing Agent until a successor Remarketing Agent has been appointed by the Board. 

(b) Each Tender Agent shall be a bank with trust powers or a trust company duly organized 
under the laws of the United States of America or any state or territory thereof, and authorized by 
law to exercise corporate trust powers and otherwise perform all the duties imposed upon it by this 
Resolution.  A Tender Agent may at any time resign and be discharged of the duties and obligations 
created by this Resolution by giving at least 60 days’ written notice to the Board and the applicable 
Registrar, Liquidity Provider and Remarketing Agent.  A Tender Agent may be removed at any 
time by an instrument signed by the Board, filed with the applicable Tender Agent, Registrar, 
Liquidity Provider and Remarketing Agent.  Such resignation or removal shall take effect on the 
day a successor Tender Agent shall have been appointed by the Board and the successor Tender 
Agent shall have accepted such appointment. 

(c) Upon the effective date of resignation or removal of a Tender Agent, such Tender Agent 
shall deliver any Weekly Rate Bonds and moneys held by it in such capacity to its successor. 

(d) So long as any series of Weekly Rate Bonds are Outstanding, the same entity shall be the 
Tender Agent and Registrar therefor. 



 -46- 
 

Section 9.10. Notice of Weekly Rate Bonds Delivered for Purchase; Purchase of Weekly Rate 
Bonds.  (a) The Tender Agent for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds shall determine timely and proper 
delivery of Weekly Rate Bonds of such series pursuant to this Resolution and the proper 
endorsement of such Weekly Rate Bonds.  Such determination shall be binding on the owners of 
such Weekly Rate Bonds, the Board, the applicable Remarketing Agent and the applicable 
Liquidity Provider, absent manifest error.  Such Tender Agent shall give notice by telephone, e-
mail or fax, promptly confirmed by a written notice if given by telephone, to the Board and the 
applicable Registrar, Remarketing Agent and Liquidity Provider specifying the principal amount 
of Weekly Rate Bonds, if any, as to which it shall receive notice of tender for purchase in 
accordance with Section 9.4(a) hereof. 

(b) Weekly Rate Bonds required to be purchased in accordance with Section 9.4 hereof shall 
be purchased from the owners thereof, on the date and at the purchase price at which such Weekly 
Rate Bonds are required to be purchased.  Funds for the payment of such purchase price shall be 
derived from the following sources in the order of priority indicated: 

(i) proceeds of the sale of such Weekly Rate Bonds remarketed to any Person pursuant to 
Section 9.11 hereof and furnished to the applicable Tender Agent by the purchasers or by the 
applicable Remarketing Agent for deposit into the Remarketing Account of the applicable Bond 
Purchase Fund; 

(ii) moneys furnished to such Tender Agent for deposit into the Purchase Account of the 
applicable Bond Purchase Fund representing moneys received from draws on the applicable 
Liquidity Facility; and 

(iii) moneys furnished to such Tender Agent for deposit into the applicable Bond Purchase Fund 
representing moneys provided by the Board in its discretion. 

A Tender Agent may establish separate accounts or sub-accounts within the Bond Purchase 
Fund for such purposes as such Tender Agent may deem appropriate. 

(c) (i)  If ownership of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds is no longer determined only by 
a book entry at a securities depository for such Series 2024 Bonds, the applicable Registrar 
shall authenticate a new Series 2024 Bond or Series 2024 Bonds of such series in an 
aggregate principal amount equal to the principal amount of Series 2024 Bonds purchased 
in accordance with Section 9.10(b) hereof, whether or not the Weekly Rate Bonds so 
purchased are presented by the owners thereof, bearing a number or numbers not 
contemporaneously outstanding.  Every Series 2024 Bond authenticated and delivered as 
provided in this Section shall be entitled to all the benefits of this Resolution equally and 
proportionately with any and all other Series 2024 Bonds of the same series duly issued 
hereunder.  The applicable Registrar shall maintain a record of the Weekly Rate Bonds 
purchased as provided in this Section, together with the names and addresses of the former 
owners thereof.  If ownership of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds is determined only by a 
book entry at a securities depository for such Series 2024 Bonds, on any date on which 
beneficial ownership in such Weekly Rate Bonds is tendered at the option of the owner of 
such beneficial interest (acting through its DTC Participant) in accordance with Section 
9.4(a) hereof (including transfer of the beneficial ownership interest of the tendering owner 



 -47- 
 

to the account of the applicable Tender Agent at DTC), the applicable Tender Agent shall 
transfer ownership of such beneficial ownership on the records of DTC as provided in 
Section 9.12 hereof.  If ownership of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds is determined only by 
a book entry at a securities depository for such Series 2024 Bonds, on any date on which 
beneficial ownership interest in such Weekly Rate Bonds is subject to mandatory tender in 
accordance with Section 9.4 hereof, the applicable Tender Agent shall transfer beneficial 
ownership of such Series 2024 Bonds on the records of DTC as provided in Section 9.12 
hereof, regardless of whether the owners of the beneficial interests subject to mandatory 
tender transfer their beneficial ownership of such Weekly Rate Bonds to such Tender Agent 
on the records of DTC, and moneys for the purchase of the beneficial interests subject to 
mandatory tender shall be transferred by such Tender Agent to DTC for transfer to the 
owners of such beneficial interests subject to mandatory purchase. 

(ii) If ownership of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds is no longer determined only by a book 
entry at a securities depository for such Series 2024 Bonds, in the event any such Weekly Rate 
Bonds purchased as provided in this Section shall not be presented to the applicable Tender Agent, 
such Tender Agent shall segregate and hold the moneys for the purchase price of such Weekly 
Rate Bonds in trust for the benefit of the former owners of such Weekly Rate Bonds, who shall, 
except as provided in the following sentence, thereafter be restricted exclusively to such moneys 
for the satisfaction of any claim for the purchase price of such Weekly Rate Bonds.  Any moneys 
which such Tender Agent shall segregate and hold in trust for the payment of the purchase price 
of any Weekly Rate Bond and remaining unclaimed for three years after the date of purchase shall, 
subject to the unclaimed property laws of the State and upon the Board’s written request to such 
Tender Agent, be paid to the Board.  After the payment of such unclaimed moneys to the Board, 
the former owner of such Weekly Rate Bond shall look only to the Board for the payment thereof, 
and the Board shall not be liable for any interest thereon and shall not be regarded as a trustee of 
such moneys.  If ownership of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds is determined only by a book entry 
at a securities depository for such Series 2024 Bonds, if such Weekly Rate Bonds are subject to 
mandatory tender in accordance with the terms of this Resolution, then the applicable Tender 
Agent shall transfer beneficial ownership of such Series 2024 Bonds on the records of DTC as 
provided in Section 9.12 hereof, regardless of whether the owners of the beneficial interests subject 
to mandatory tender transfer their beneficial ownership of such Weekly Rate Bonds to such Tender 
Agent on the records of DTC, and moneys for the purchase of the beneficial interests subject to 
mandatory tender shall be transferred by such Tender Agent to DTC for transfer to the owners of 
such beneficial interests subject to mandatory purchase. 

Section 9.11. Remarketing of Series 2024 Bonds; Notice of Interest Rates.  (a) Upon notice of 
the tender for purchase of Weekly Rate Bonds, the applicable Remarketing Agent shall offer for 
sale and use its best efforts to sell such Weekly Rate Bonds, any such sale to be made on the date 
of such purchase in accordance with Section 9.4 hereof at the price determined in accordance with 
Section 9.4 hereof.  Each Remarketing Agent agrees that while a Liquidity Facility is in effect it 
shall not sell knowingly any Series 2024 Bonds tendered to it for purchase pursuant to Section 9.4 
hereof to the Board, or to any Person who controls, is controlled by, or is under common control 
with, the Board.  In addition, each Remarketing Agent shall offer for sale and use its best efforts 
to sell any applicable Weekly Rate Bonds that are Purchased Bonds. 



 -48- 
 

(b) Each Remarketing Agent shall determine the rate of interest to be borne by the applicable 
Series 2024 Bonds during each Interest Rate Period and shall furnish to the Board and the 
applicable Registrar on the Business Day of determination each rate of interest so determined by 
e-mail, telephone or fax, promptly confirmed in writing if given by telephone, or shall make such 
information available to the Board and such Registrar by other readily accessible electronic means. 

(c) Each Remarketing Agent shall advise the applicable Tender Agent and Liquidity Provider 
in writing or by telephone (promptly confirmed by e-mail or fax if given by telephone) not later 
than the Business Day preceding the Business Day on which any applicable Weekly Rate Bonds 
are to be purchased pursuant to Section 9.4 hereof of the aggregate principal amount of such 
Weekly Rate Bonds subject to purchase that have not been remarketed as of such time, provided 
that such Remarketing Agent may continue to remarket such Weekly Rate Bonds thereafter.  Each 
Remarketing Agent shall give e-mail or telephonic notice, promptly confirmed by a written notice 
if given by telephone, to the applicable Registrar and Tender Agent on each date on which 
applicable Weekly Rate Bonds shall have been purchased pursuant to Section 9.10(b) hereof, 
specifying the principal amount of Series 2024 Bonds, if any, sold by it pursuant to Section 9.11(a) 
hereof along with, if the applicable series of Series 2024 Bonds are not registered as described in 
Section 2.10 hereof, a list of such purchasers showing the names and denominations in which such 
Series 2024 Bonds shall be registered, and the addresses and social security or taxpayer 
identification numbers of such purchasers.  Each Remarketing Agent will transfer the proceeds 
received from the purchasers named in such notice to the applicable Tender Agent by 10:00 a.m., 
New York City time, on the Business Day on which such Weekly Rate Bonds are purchased. 

Section 9.12. Delivery of Series 2024 Bonds.  (a) Weekly Rate Bonds purchased with moneys 
described in clause (i) of Section 9.10(b) hereof shall be made available by the applicable Tender 
Agent to the applicable Remarketing Agent for delivery to the purchasers thereof against payment 
therefor. 

(b) Except as otherwise provided in a Liquidity Facility, Weekly Rate Bonds purchased with 
moneys described in clause (ii) of Section 9.10(b) hereof shall be held by the applicable Tender 
Agent on behalf of the applicable Liquidity Provider as Purchased Bonds, and shall not be released 
following the remarketing thereof unless such Tender Agent has received written confirmation 
from such Liquidity Provider that the applicable Liquidity Facility has been reinstated with respect 
to such Series 2024 Bonds. 

(c) Weekly Rate Bonds purchased with moneys described in clause (iii) of Section 9.10(b) 
hereof shall be canceled. 

(d) Series 2024 Bonds delivered as provided in this Section shall be registered in the manner 
directed by the recipient thereof. 

Section 9.13. Delivery of Proceeds of Sale.  The proceeds of the sale by a Remarketing Agent of 
any applicable Weekly Rate Bonds delivered to it by any Holder shall be turned over to the 
applicable Tender Agent. 

Section 9.14. Draws on Liquidity Facility to Pay Purchase Price of Weekly Rate Bonds.  Each 
Tender Agent, on each day on which applicable Weekly Rate Bonds are required to be purchased 



 -49- 
 

pursuant to Section 9.4 hereof, is directed to make drawings under the applicable Liquidity Facility 
by such times and in such manner as shall be required to receive in immediately available funds 
on such date amounts sufficient (based upon the amount on deposit in the Remarketing Account 
of the applicable Bond Purchase Fund by 10:00 a.m., New York City time, on such day) to pay the 
purchase price plus accrued interest, if any, of Weekly Rate Bonds tendered for purchase or 
required to be purchased pursuant to the provisions of this Resolution and that have not been 
remarketed by the applicable Remarketing Agent, and to deposit the proceeds of such drawings or 
cause such proceeds to be deposited in the Purchase Account of the applicable Bond Purchase 
Fund pending application of such moneys to the payment of the purchase price of such Weekly 
Rate Bonds.  In determining the amount of any such purchase price then due, such Tender Agent 
shall not take into consideration any purchase price due on such Weekly Rate Bonds held by the 
Board or any affiliate thereof, and no drawings under such Liquidity Facility shall be made or be 
used to pay the purchase price of any Purchased Bonds or Weekly Rate Bonds held by the Board 
or any affiliate thereof. 

Section 9.15. Insufficient Funds for Purchase of Weekly Rate Bonds.  If payment of the purchase 
price of any Weekly Rate Bond shall not be made to the Holder thereof on any date such Weekly 
Rate Bond has been tendered for purchase pursuant to Section 9.4 hereof, such Weekly Rate Bond 
shall be returned by the applicable Tender Agent to the Holder thereof, and shall continue to bear 
interest at a Weekly Interest Rate determined as provided in Section 9.2 hereof. 

Section 9.16. Notices.  (a)  Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Resolution or set forth 
in the applicable Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate, it shall be sufficient service of any 
notice, request, complaint, demand or other paper if the same shall be duly mailed by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, or by overnight delivery service, 
addressed as follows or delivered by facsimile to the numbers provided as follows: 

If to the Board: Veterans’ Land Board of the State of Texas 
 1700 North Congress Avenue, Room 740C 
 Austin, Texas  78701-1496 
 Attn:  Director of VLB Bond Funds Management 
 Telephone:  (512) 475-4004 
 Facsimile:  (512) 463-5081 

 
If to a Tender Agent 
   or Registrar: as set forth in the applicable Purchase Contract or Pricing 

Certificate 
 
If to a Remarketing Agent: as set forth in the applicable Purchase Contract or Pricing 

Certificate 
 
 
If to a Liquidity Provider: as set forth in the applicable Purchase Contract or Pricing 

Certificate 
 

If to a Paying Agent: Comptroller of Public Accounts 
 Treasury Operations 



 -50- 
 

 Manager, Cash and Securities Management 
 208 E. 10th Street 
 Austin, Texas  78701 

Telephone:  (512) 463-5905 
E-mail:  funds.transfer@cpa.texas.gov 

 
If to a Rating Agency: as set forth in the applicable Purchase Contract or Pricing 

Certificate 
 

Except as otherwise provided or directed herein, a duplicate copy of each notice, certificate 
or other communication given hereunder by the Board, a Liquidity Provider, a Paying Agent, a 
Registrar, a Remarketing Agent or a Tender Agent to any one of the others or the Holders shall 
also be given to all of the others.  The Board, a Liquidity Provider, a Paying Agent, a Registrar, a 
Remarketing Agent or a Tender Agent may, by notice given hereunder, designate any further or 
different addresses or telephone numbers to which subsequent notices, certificates or other 
communications shall be sent. 

(b) The Board shall provide to the applicable Rating Agency notice in writing or by telephone 
or fax, promptly confirmed in writing, of 

(i) any resignation or removal of any applicable Paying Agent, Registrar, Tender Agent or 
Remarketing Agent, and the appointment of any successor thereto; 

(ii) any conversion of an applicable series of Weekly Rate Bonds to Fixed Rate Bonds; 

(iii) any termination, expiration, replacement, suspension or modification of the applicable 
Liquidity Facility; 

(iv) the payment in full of the applicable series of Weekly Rate Bonds; 

(v) any mandatory tender of the applicable series of Weekly Rate Bonds; and 

(vi) any amendment or material change to this Resolution. 

(c) The Board shall provide or cause to be provided to each Rating Agency such information 
as is reasonably requested in order to maintain its rating on the applicable series of Weekly Rate 
Bonds. 

ARTICLE X 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 10.1. Benefits of Resolution.  Nothing in this Resolution or in the Series 2024 Bonds, 
express or implied, shall give to any Person, other than the Board and each Paying Agent, 
Registrar, Tender Agent, Liquidity Provider and Remarketing Agent and their successors 
hereunder and the Holders, any benefit or any legal or equitable right, remedy or claim under this 
Resolution. 



 -51- 
 

Section 10.2. Bonds to Rank Equally.  None of the Bonds shall be entitled to priority over any 
other Bond in the application of moneys in Fund II, nor in the application of moneys appropriated 
by the Legislature of the State or otherwise made available by law for the payment of principal of 
and interest on the Bonds, irrespective of the fact that some of the Bonds may be delivered prior 
to the delivery of other Bonds, it being the intent of this Resolution that all Bonds shall rank 
equally. 

Section 10.3. Enforcement.  All rights available to the Holders under the Constitution and laws 
of the State, by suit for mandamus or otherwise, to compel the performance of their official duties 
by the Board, its officers and employees, and by other officers of the State to the end that the 
principal of and interest on the Series 2024 Bonds may be paid promptly, are hereby recognized 
and reserved to and for the Holders. 

Section 10.4. Separability Clause.  In case any provision in this Resolution shall be invalid, illegal 
or unenforceable, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not in 
any way be affected or impaired thereby. 

Section 10.5. Governing Law.  This Resolution shall be construed in accordance with and 
governed by the laws of the State. 

Section 10.6. Open Meeting.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which the Series 2024 Bonds were authorized was open to the public as required by law and public 
notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by Chapter 551 of the 
Texas Government Code, as amended. 

Section 10.7. References to Liquidity Provider.  Any provision of this Resolution regarding the 
consent of, or notice to, or mandating the direction of action by, a Liquidity Provider shall, except 
as expressly provided, be deemed ineffective (i) if the applicable Liquidity Facility is no longer in 
effect and no amount is due and owing under such Liquidity Facility, or (ii) as long as such 
Liquidity Provider has failed to honor a properly presented and conforming drawing under such 
Liquidity Facility; provided, that except as otherwise expressly set forth herein, for as long as any 
Purchased Bonds are Outstanding, the applicable Liquidity Provider shall be afforded all the rights 
and privileges granted hereunder to Holders of the Weekly Rate Bonds of the applicable series. 

Section 10.8. Liquidity Facilities Authorized.  In connection with the issuance of any series of 
Weekly Rate Bonds, the Authorized Representatives are hereby severally authorized and directed, 
in the name and on behalf of the Board, to cause to be issued a Liquidity Facility in accordance 
with the “Resolution of the Veterans’ Land Board of the State of Texas Authorizing Liquidity 
Facilities Relating to Bonds Issued or to be Issued in Connection with the Veterans’ Land Program 
or the Veterans’ Housing Assistance Program, and Providing for Other Matters Relating to the 
Subject” adopted by the Board on this date. 

Section 10.9. Remarketing Agreements Authorized.  In connection with the issuance of any series 
of Weekly Rate Bonds, the Authorized Representatives are hereby severally authorized and 
directed to act for and on behalf of the Board to approve, execute and deliver the related 
Remarketing Agreement. 



 -52- 
 

Section 10.10. Tender Agent Agreements Authorized.  In connection with the issuance of any 
series of Weekly Rate Bonds, if requested by the Tender Agent for such series, the Authorized 
Representatives are hereby severally authorized and directed to act for and on behalf of the Board 
to approve, execute and deliver the related Tender Agent Agreement. 

Section 10.11. Authorization of Additional Acts.  The officers, employees, and agents of the 
Board, and each of them, shall be and each is expressly authorized, empowered, and directed from 
time to time and at any time to do and perform all acts and things and to execute, acknowledge, 
and deliver in the name and under the seal and on behalf of the Board all certificates, instruments, 
and other papers, whether or not herein mentioned, as they may determine to be necessary or 
desirable in connection with the proposed issuance of the Series 2024 Bonds, including without 
limitation (a) the filing of a notice of intention to issue bonds with the Bond Review Board of the 
State, and (b) the submission of a transcript of proceedings for approval of the Attorney General, 
such determination to be conclusively evidenced by the performance of such acts and things and 
the execution of any such certificate, instrument, or other paper, and any such actions heretofore 
carried out by such officers, employees, and agents of the Board are hereby ratified, approved, and 
confirmed.  Prior to each Settlement Date, the Authorized Representatives and Bond Counsel are 
hereby authorized to approve any technical changes or corrections to this Resolution, or to any of 
the instruments authorized by this Resolution, necessary in order to (i) correct any ambiguity or 
mistake or more completely document the transactions contemplated and approved by this 
Resolution, (ii) obtain a rating from the Rating Agency, or (iii) obtain the approval of the 
Series 2024 Bonds by the Attorney General. 

Section 10.12. Bond Enhancement Agreement Certificate.  Notwithstanding anything to the 
contrary contained in the “Resolution of the Veterans’ Land Board of the State of Texas 
Authorizing Interest Rate Swap Transactions Relating to Bonds Issued or to be Issued in 
Connection with Veterans’ Housing Assistance Program Bonds and Veterans’ Land Program 
Bonds; and Providing for Other Matters Relating to the Subject” adopted by the Board on this date, 
no certificates shall be required for any floating-to-fixed rate interest rate swap transaction entered 
into in connection with the anticipated issuance of any series of Weekly Rate Bonds. 

Section 10.13. Prior Resolution.  This Resolution shall supersede and replace in its entirety that 
certain resolution adopted by the Board on July 24, 2023, relating to the Series 2024 Bonds. 

 



Signature Page to Bond Resolution (2024) 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED this the 25th day of June, 2024. 

 
 
 

   /s/  Dawn Buckingham, M.D.    
Chairwoman 
Veterans’ Land Board of the State of Texas 

 

ATTEST: 
 
 
   /s/  Anthony W. Dale   
Executive Secretary 
Veterans’ Land Board of the 
  State of Texas 
 



 A-2 
 

EXHIBIT A 

FORM OF WEEKLY RATE BOND 

[Unless this bond is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Trust Company, 
a New York corporation (“DTC”), to the Issuer or its agent for registration of transfer, exchange, 
or payment, and any certificate issued is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or in such other 
name as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC (and any payment is made to Cede 
& Co. or to such other entity as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC), ANY 
TRANSFER, PLEDGE, OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO 
ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the registered owner hereof, Cede & Co., has an 
interest herein.]1 

NO. WR-____          $__________ 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
 

STATE OF TEXAS 
VETERANS BOND, 

SERIES 20242 

MATURITY DATE: INTEREST RATE: BOND DATE: CUSIP NUMBER: 3 

_________, ____ Variable ____________, 2024 ______ ___ 

 

ON THE MATURITY DATE SPECIFIED ABOVE, the State of Texas (hereinafter 
sometimes called the “Issuer”), acting by and through the Veterans’ Land Board (the “Board”) of 
the Issuer, hereby promises to pay to ________________________________, or to the registered 
assignee hereof (either being hereinafter called the “Holder”) the principal amount of 
________________________________________ DOLLARS and to pay interest thereon, from 
[the Settlement Date]4 [the bond date stated above]5 to the date of its scheduled maturity or the 
date of its redemption prior to scheduled maturity, at the rate of interest per annum determined 
pursuant to the Resolution (defined below), with said interest being payable on each Interest 
Payment Date (computed on the basis of a 365/366-day year, for the number of days actually 
elapsed). 

UNLESS OTHERWISE DEFINED herein, capitalized words and terms used in this Bond 
and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings ascribed to such terms in the Resolution 
(defined below). 

 
1  To be included in any Series 2024 Bond registered in the name of Cede & Co. 
2  Series designation to be added if necessary. 
3  To be omitted from the Initial Series 2024 Bond of any series. 
4  To be included in the Initial Series 2024 Bond of any series. 
5  To be included in all Weekly Rate Bonds except an Initial Series 2024 Bond. 



 A-3 
 

THE PRINCIPAL OF AND PREMIUM, IF ANY, AND INTEREST ON this Bond are 
payable in lawful money of the United States of America, without exchange or collection charges.  
The principal of and premium, if any, on this Bond shall be paid to the registered owner hereof 
upon presentation and surrender of this Bond at maturity or upon the date fixed for its redemption 
prior to maturity, at the designated office of the Paying Agent for the Bonds (defined below), which 
is initially the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas in Austin, Texas.  The payment 
of interest on this Bond shall be made by the Paying Agent to the registered owner hereof as shown 
by the Registration Books kept and maintained by the Registrar for the Bonds, which is initially 
_______________________, at the close of business on the Business Day immediately preceding 
each Interest Payment Date (including each redemption date) (each, a “Record Date”) by check 
drawn by the Paying Agent on, and payable solely from, funds of the Board required to be on 
deposit with the Paying Agent for such purpose as hereinafter provided; and such check shall be 
sent by the Paying Agent by first class United States mail, postage prepaid, on each such Interest 
Payment Date, to the Holder hereof at its address as it appears on the Registration Books kept and 
maintained by the Registrar, as hereinafter described.  The Paying Agent shall make payment of 
the principal of and premium, if any, or interest on any Bond by wire transfer in immediately 
available funds to a bank account located within the United States of Federal Reserve Funds to the 
Liquidity Provider (in the case of any Purchased Bond) and to any Holder of $1,000,000 or more 
in aggregate principal amount of Bonds requesting such payment and providing the necessary wire 
information to the Paying Agent at least 15 days prior to the applicable Record Date.  The Board 
covenants with the Holder of this Bond that as of each Interest Payment Date for this Bond it will 
make available to the Paying Agent the amounts required to provide for the payment, in 
immediately available funds, of all principal of and interest on the Bonds, when due.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, during any period in which ownership of the Bonds is determined 
only by a book entry at a securities depository for the Bonds, payments made to the securities 
depository, or its nominee, shall be made in accordance with arrangements between the Board and 
the securities depository. 

THIS BOND is one of a series of bonds of like tenor and effect except as to number, 
principal amount and scheduled maturity, aggregating ___________________6 Dollars 
($_____________)6 (the “Bonds”), issued for the purpose of making Home Loans to Texas 
Veterans, all in accordance with the provisions of the Constitutional Provision, the Act and Chapter 
1371, and pursuant to a resolution authorizing the issuance of the series of Bonds of which this is 
one, adopted by the Board and duly of record in the minutes of the Board (the “Resolution”). The 
Bonds are issuable solely as fully registered bonds, without interest coupons, in Authorized 
Denominations as described in the Resolution. 

THE SERIES OF BONDS of which this is one shall be and is hereby made a general 
obligation of the State of Texas, pursuant to the Constitutional Provision and the Act, and for the 
faithful performance of all covenants, recitals and stipulations herein contained, and for the faithful 
performance in proper time and manner of each official or other act required and necessary to 
provide for the prompt payment of principal of and interest on this Bond when due, the full faith 
and credit of the State of Texas are hereby pledged. 

 
6  The original aggregate principal amount of a series of the Series 2024 Bonds set forth in the related Purchase 

Contract or Pricing Certificate should be set forth here. 



 A-4 
 

PAYMENTS OF THE PRINCIPAL OF and premium, if any, and interest on this Bond, 
shall be made primarily from the Veterans’ Housing Assistance Fund II (“Fund II”) governed by 
the Constitutional Provision, which fund shall be comprised of (a) any interest of the Board in all 
Home Loans made from money in Fund II pursuant to the Program, including proceeds of any 
insurance thereon or on the homes, (b) the proceeds derived from the sale or other disposition of 
the Board’s interests in Home Loans, (c) the money attributable to any Housing Assistance Bonds 
(defined below) (except for certain expenses related to the issuance of Housing Assistance Bonds) 
issued and sold by the Board to provide money for Fund II which shall include but shall not be 
limited to the proceeds from the issuance and sale of such Housing Assistance Bonds, (d) income, 
rents, and any other pecuniary benefit received by the Board as a result of making Home Loans, 
(e) sums received by way of indemnity or forfeiture for the failure of any bidder for the purchase 
of any Housing Assistance Bonds to comply with the person’s bid and accept and pay for such 
Housing Assistance Bonds, (f) payments received by the Board under bond enhancement 
agreements with respect to the Housing Assistance Bonds, (g) interest received from investments 
of any such money, and (h) any equitable interest of the Board in properties encumbered by Home 
Loans and attributable to Fund II.  The Bonds and all other bonds issued by the Board pursuant to 
the Constitution of the State to augment Fund II or to refund any such bonds are referred to herein 
as “Housing Assistance Bonds.”  The Constitutional Provision provides that to the extent there is 
not money in Fund II available for payment of principal of and interest on the Housing Assistance 
Bonds, there is appropriated out of the first money coming into the State Treasury in each fiscal 
year, not otherwise appropriated by the Texas Constitution, an amount which is sufficient to pay 
the principal of and interest on such Housing Assistance Bonds that mature or become due during 
that fiscal year. 

THE BONDS will initially be issued as Weekly Rate Bonds bearing interest at a Weekly 
Interest Rate.  Thereafter, each Bond, at the election of the Board, may be changed to a Fixed Rate 
Bond bearing interest at a Fixed Interest Rate determined by the Remarketing Agent in accordance 
with the Resolution; provided, however, that in no event shall the interest rate on any Bond, 
including Purchased Bonds, exceed the Ceiling Rate.  In addition, the interest rate on Purchased 
Bonds shall not exceed the Maximum Purchased Bond Rate.  The terms of this Bond shall not 
apply to Fixed Rate Bonds, and as used in this Bond, the term “Bond” or “Bonds” shall not include 
Fixed Rate Bonds. 

THE WEEKLY INTEREST RATE for the Bonds shall be determined by the Remarketing 
Agent by 4:30 p.m., New York City time, on Tuesday of each week during such Weekly Interest 
Rate Period, or if such day shall not be a Business Day, then on the next succeeding Business Day.  
The interest rate so determined shall be effective at the times set forth in the Resolution. 

IN DETERMINING each Weekly Interest Rate for the Bonds, the Remarketing Agent shall 
set such rates at the respective interest rates that, in the sole and exclusive judgment of the 
Remarketing Agent, would equal (but not exceed) the interest rates necessary to enable the 
Remarketing Agent to sell such Bonds (exclusive of accrued interest, if any) on the relevant 
determination date, at a price equal to the principal amount thereof; provided, however, that such 
interest rate shall not exceed the Ceiling Rate. 

NOTWITHSTANDING anything to the contrary contained herein, this Bond, if held by or 
for the account of the Liquidity Provider as a Purchased Bond, shall bear interest at the Purchased 



 A-5 
 

Bond Rate, payable at the times and in the manner and calculated on the basis provided in the 
Liquidity Facility; provided, however, that the Purchased Bond Rate shall not exceed the 
Maximum Purchased Bond Rate as provided in the Resolution. 

THE BONDS (including Purchased Bonds) shall be subject to scheduled mandatory 
sinking fund redemption and shall be redeemed on the first Business Day of the months and in the 
respective principal amounts set forth in the table below, at a redemption price equal to the 
principal amount thereof, without premium, plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption: 

Redemption Date Principal Amount Redemption Date Principal Amount7 

    
    
    

 

The principal amount of Bonds to be redeemed on each such redemption date pursuant to 
mandatory sinking fund redemption shall be reduced, at the option of the Board, by the principal 
amount of any Bonds [of the same stated maturity]8 which (i) at least 45 days prior to such 
mandatory sinking fund redemption date, (a) shall have been acquired by the Board and delivered 
to the Registrar for cancellation, or (b) shall have been acquired and canceled by the Registrar at 
the direction of the Board, or (c) shall have been redeemed pursuant to any redemption provision 
set forth below and (ii) shall have not been previously credited against a scheduled mandatory 
sinking fund redemption. 

THE BONDS (including Purchased Bonds) shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity 
on the first Business Day of any month, at the option and direction of the Board, in whole or in 
part, at a redemption price of par plus accrued interest.  [In the case of any such redemption, the 
Board shall select the maturity or maturities of the Bonds to be redeemed and the amounts thereof 
in Authorized Denominations.]8 

IN THE EVENT of any redemption of less than all of the Bonds [of a particular maturity]8, 
the particular Bonds [within each such maturity]8 to be redeemed are to be selected by the Registrar 
by lot in such manner as the Registrar shall deem fair and appropriate.  During any period in which 
ownership of the Bonds is determined only by a book entry at a securities depository for the Bonds, 
if less than the entire principal amount Outstanding of all the Bonds is to be redeemed, the interests 
to be redeemed of the beneficial owners of the Bonds [of such maturity]9 shall be selected in 
accordance with the arrangements between the Board and the securities depository.  In the event 
of any redemption of Bonds, Purchased Bonds shall be selected first for redemption in the manner 
described in the Resolution. 

 
7  The amounts set forth in the Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate should be included in the table.  Additional 

tables shall be added if there is more than one stated maturity of a series of Series 2024 Bonds, with a heading 
above each table identifying the stated maturity of the Series 2024 Bonds to which such table relates. 

8  Bracketed text to be deleted if there is only one stated maturity of the series of Series 2024 Bonds. 
9  Bracketed text to be deleted if there is only one stated maturity of the series of Series 2024 Bonds. 



 A-6 
 

AT LEAST 30 days prior to the date fixed for any such redemption of this Bond, a written 
notice of such redemption shall be sent by first class mail, postage prepaid, by the Registrar to the 
Holder hereof.  By the date fixed for any such redemption, due provision shall be made by the 
Board with the Paying Agent for the payment of the required redemption price for this Bond or 
the portion hereof which is to be so redeemed.  If such written notice of redemption is given, and 
if due provision for such payment is made, all as provided above, this Bond, or the portion hereof 
which is to be redeemed, thereby automatically shall be redeemed prior to its scheduled maturity, 
and shall not bear interest after the date fixed for its redemption, and shall not be regarded as being 
Outstanding except for the right of the Holder to receive the redemption price plus accrued interest 
to the date fixed for redemption from the Paying Agent out of the funds provided for such payment.  
The Registrar shall record in the Registration Books all such redemptions of principal of this Bond 
or any portion hereof.  If a portion of any Bond shall be redeemed, a substitute Bond [having the 
same maturity date,]9 in any Authorized Denomination that may be requested by the Holder 
thereof, and in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion thereof, will be 
issued to the Holder upon the surrender thereof for cancellation, at the expense of the Board, all as 
provided in the Resolution. 

IN ADDITION to the notice of redemption required above, the Registrar shall send notice 
of redemption of Bonds by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, 
or by overnight delivery service contemporaneously with such mailing:  (a) to any registered owner 
of $1,000,000 or more in aggregate principal amount of Bonds; (b) to two or more information 
services of national recognition that disseminate redemption information with respect to municipal 
bonds; and (c) to any securities depository that is a registered owner of the Bonds.  In addition, in 
the event of a redemption caused by an advance refunding of the Bonds, the Registrar shall send a 
second notice of redemption to all registered owners of the Bonds at least 30 days but not more 
than 90 days prior to the actual redemption date.  Any notice required to be sent to any registered 
securities depositories or national information services shall be sent so that it is received at least 
two (2) days prior to the general mailing date of such notice.  The Registrar shall also send a notice 
of redemption to the registered owner of any Bond who has not sent the Bonds in for redemption 
60 days after the redemption date.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the failure to give any notice 
of redemption set forth in this paragraph or any defect in such notice or the mailing thereof shall 
not affect the validity of any proceedings for redemption of Bonds. 

ANY BONDS, subject to the requirements regarding timely notice and delivery, will be 
purchased, in accordance with the provisions of the Resolution, on the demand of the Holder 
thereof as provided in the Resolution and delivery to the Tender Agent of such Bond, endorsed in 
blank by the Holder thereof or accompanied by an instrument of transfer thereof in form 
satisfactory to the Tender Agent, executed in blank by the Holder thereof (the Tender Agent being 
able to refuse to accept delivery of any such Bond not endorsed in blank or for which an instrument 
of transfer satisfactory to it has not been provided).  THE TIMELY DELIVERY OF A 
PROPERLY COMPLETED TENDER REQUEST NOTICE SHALL CONSTITUTE AN 
IRREVOCABLE TENDER OF THE BONDS COVERED THEREBY. 

THE BONDS WILL BE SUBJECT to mandatory tender for purchase on the Business Days 
and under the circumstances specified in the Resolution. 



 A-7 
 

EACH BOND SHALL BE SUBJECT to mandatory tender for purchase on the Fixed Rate 
Conversion Date. 

IF THE HOLDER HEREOF FAILS TO DELIVER THIS BOND OR ANY PORTION 
HEREOF TO THE TENDER AGENT AFTER GIVING NOTICE OF AN OPTIONAL TENDER, 
OR UPON A MANDATORY TENDER, AND MONEYS SUFFICIENT TO PAY THE 
PURCHASE PRICE OF THIS BOND ARE ON DEPOSIT WITH THE TENDER AGENT, THIS 
BOND OR PORTION HEREOF SHALL BE DEEMED TO HAVE PURCHASED, AND 
THEREAFTER NO FURTHER INTEREST SHALL ACCRUE ON THIS BOND OR SUCH 
PORTION.  THE HOLDER HEREOF SHALL THEREAFTER HAVE RECOURSE SOLELY 
TO THE FUNDS HELD BY THE TENDER AGENT FOR THE PURCHASE OF THIS BOND, 
AND THE TENDER AGENT SHALL NOT RECOGNIZE ANY FURTHER TRANSFER 
HEREOF. 

WHENEVER, during the term of the Bonds, the beneficial ownership thereof is determined 
by a book entry at DTC (or any successor securities depository), tenders of Bonds shall be made 
pursuant to DTC’s (or any successor securities depository’s) deliver order procedures or 
repayment option procedures, as applicable, as are in effect from time to time.  Upon remarketing 
of Bonds, payment of the purchase price thereof shall be made to DTC (or any successor securities 
depository) and no surrender of Bonds is required.  Such sales shall be made through the DTC 
Participants (which may include the Remarketing Agent) to the new beneficial owners of such 
Bonds, and the DTC Participants shall transmit payment to beneficial owners whose Bonds were 
purchased pursuant to a remarketing.  The Board and the Registrar, the Paying Agent, the Tender 
Agent, the Liquidity Provider and the Remarketing Agent are not responsible for transfer of 
payment to the DTC Participants or beneficial owners. 

THIS BOND or any portion or portions hereof in any Authorized Denomination may be 
assigned and shall be transferred only in the Registration Books of the Board kept and maintained 
by the Registrar acting in the capacity of registrar for the Bonds, upon the terms and conditions set 
forth in the Resolution.  Among other requirements for such assignment and transfer, this Bond 
must be presented and surrendered to the Registrar, together with proper instruments of 
assignment, in form and with guarantee of signatures satisfactory to the Registrar, evidencing 
assignment of this Bond or any portion or portions hereof, in any Authorized Denomination, to the 
assignee or assignees in whose name or names this Bond or any such portion or portions hereof is 
or are to be transferred and registered.  The form of Assignment printed or endorsed on this Bond 
may be executed by the registered owner to evidence the assignment hereof, but such method is 
not exclusive, and other instruments of assignment satisfactory to the Registrar may be used to 
evidence the assignment of this Bond or any portion or portions hereof from time to time by the 
registered owner.  A new Bond or Bonds payable to such assignee (which then will be the new 
registered owner of such new Bond or Bonds), or to the previous registered owner in the case of 
the assignment and transfer of only a portion of this Bond, may be delivered by the Registrar in 
conversion of and exchange for this Bond, all in the form and manner as provided in the next 
paragraph hereof for the conversion and exchange of other Bonds.  Except in the case of tenders 
of Bonds pursuant to the Resolution or of the remarketing of Purchased Bonds, neither the Board 
nor the Registrar shall be required (a) to issue, replace, transfer, or exchange any Bond during a 
period beginning at the opening of business 30 days before the day of the first mailing of a notice 
of redemption of Bonds and ending at the close of business on the day of such mailing or (b) to 



 A-8 
 

replace, transfer or exchange any Bond so selected for redemption in whole or in part when such 
redemption is scheduled to occur within 30 calendar days; except that at the option of the registered 
owner of at least $1,000,000 in principal amount of Bonds, the Registrar shall be required to 
transfer or exchange any Bond of such owner which has been selected in whole or in part for 
redemption upon surrender thereof.  The Registrar may make such arrangements as it deems 
appropriate for notation on each new Bond issued in exchange for or upon the transfer of the Bond 
so selected for redemption of an appropriate legend to the effect that such new Bond has been so 
selected for redemption.  The registered owner of this Bond shall be treated by the Issuer, the 
Board, the Paying Agent and the Registrar as the absolute owner hereof for all purposes, including 
payment and discharge of liability upon this Bond to the extent of such payment, and the Issuer, 
the Board, the Paying Agent and the Registrar shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary.  
The Board shall pay the Registrar’s reasonable and standard or customary fees and charges for 
making such transfer, but the one requesting such transfer shall pay any taxes or other 
governmental charges required to be paid with respect thereto. 

AS PROVIDED in the Resolution, this Bond, or any portion hereof, may, at the request of 
the registered owner or the assignee or assignees hereof, be converted into and exchanged for a 
like aggregate principal amount of fully registered Bonds, without interest coupons, payable to the 
appropriate registered owner, assignee, or assignees, as the case may be, having the same maturity 
date, in the same Interest Mode, bearing interest at the same rate, and in any Authorized 
Denomination, as requested in writing by the appropriate registered owner, assignee, or assignees, 
as the case may be, upon surrender of this Bond to the Registrar for cancellation, all in accordance 
with the form and procedures set forth in the Resolution.  The one requesting such conversion and 
exchange shall pay the Registrar’s reasonable and standard or customary fees and charges for 
converting and exchanging any Bond or portion thereof, together with any taxes or governmental 
charges required to be paid with respect thereto, all as a condition precedent to the exercise of such 
privilege of conversion and exchange; except, however, that in the case of the conversion and 
exchange of an assigned and transferred Bond or Bonds or any portion or portions thereof in any 
Authorized Denomination, as described in the previous paragraph, and in the case of the 
conversion and exchange of a portion of the unredeemed portion of a Bond which has been 
redeemed in part prior to maturity, as provided herein, such fees and charges will be paid by the 
Board. 

WHENEVER the beneficial ownership of this Bond is determined only by a book entry at 
a securities depository for the Bonds, the foregoing requirements of registering, holding, 
delivering, exchanging or transferring this Bond shall be modified to require the appropriate 
Person to meet the requirements of the securities depository as to registering, holding, delivering, 
exchanging or transferring the book entry to produce the same effect. 

IN THE EVENT that the initial Paying Agent or Registrar for the Bonds is changed by the 
Board, resigns, or otherwise ceases to act as such, the Board has covenanted in the Resolution that 
it promptly will appoint a competent and legally qualified substitute therefor, whose qualifications 
comply with the requirements of the Resolution, and that one entity will serve as Paying Agent 
and Registrar, except during periods when the Bonds are registered only by means of a book entry 
at a securities depository, and promptly will cause written notice thereof to be mailed to the 
registered owners of the Bonds. 



 A-9 
 

BY BECOMING the registered owner of this Bond, the registered owner thereby 
acknowledges all of the terms and provisions of the Resolution, agrees to be bound by such terms 
and provisions, acknowledges that the Resolution is duly recorded and available for inspection in 
the official minutes and records of the Board, and agrees that the terms and provisions of this Bond 
and the Resolution constitute a contract between each registered owner hereof and the Board. 

THE BOARD reserves the right to amend the Resolution, as deemed necessary or desirable 
by the Board, with the consent of the registered owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount 
of the Bonds then Outstanding under the terms and conditions stated in the Resolution.  The Board 
may, without the consent of the registered owners of the Bonds, adopt certain amendments to the 
Resolution as set forth in the Resolution. 

IN THE EVENT of any conflict or inconsistency between the terms and provisions of this 
Bond and the terms and provisions of the Resolution, the terms and provisions of the Resolution 
shall control. 

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED and recited that all acts, conditions and things required to be 
done precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond and the series of which it forms a part have 
been properly done, have happened and have been performed in regular and due time, form and 
manner as required by the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas and the Resolution, that the 
series of Bonds of which this is a part does not exceed any Constitutional or statutory limitation, 
and that provision has been made for the payment of the principal of and interest on this Bond and 
the series of which it is a part by a pledge of the credit of the Issuer and of the funds specified 
herein. 

[UNLESS THE COMPTROLLER’S REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE hereon has been 
executed by the Comptroller by manual signature, this Bond shall not be entitled to any benefit 
under the Resolution or be valid or obligatory for any purpose.]10  

[UNLESS THE REGISTRAR’S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE hereon has been 
executed by the Registrar by manual signature, this Bond shall not be entitled to any benefit under 
the Resolution or be valid or obligatory for any purpose.]11  

 

 
10  To be included in an Initial Series 2024 Bond only. 
11  To be included in all Series 2024 Bonds of a series other than the Initial Series 2024 Bond. 



 A-10 
 

IN TESTIMONY HEREOF, this Bond is executed with the manual or facsimile signatures 
of the Chairwoman of the Board and of the Executive Secretary of the Board, and the seal of said 
Board impressed, lithographed or printed hereon. 

 THE STATE OF TEXAS 
 
 
 
 _________________________ 
 Chairwoman, Veterans’ Land Board 
   of the State of Texas 
 
________________________ 
Executive Secretary, Veterans’ 
  Land Board of the State of Texas 
 
(SEAL) 
 



 A-11 
 

*FORM OF REGISTRAR’S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATION ATTACHED TO 
WEEKLY RATE BONDS OTHER THAN AN INITIAL SERIES 2024 BOND 

REGISTRAR’S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE 

It is hereby certified that this Bond has been issued under the provisions of the Resolution 
described in this Bond; and that this Bond has been issued in conversion of and exchange for or 
replacement of a bond, bonds, or a portion of a bond or bonds of an issue which originally was 
approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered by the Comptroller of Public 
Accounts of the State of Texas. 

Dated: _______________________ _______________________________, 
     ____________, ____________, 
 Registrar 
 
 
 By:  _______________________________ 
  Authorized Representative 
 

  



 A-12 
 

*FORM OF ASSIGNMENT 

ASSIGNMENT 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
(Please print or typewrite name and address, including zip code of Transferee) 

Please insert Social Security 
or Taxpayer Identification Number 
of Transferee 
 

 

the within Bond and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________ attorney to register the transfer of the within Bond on the books kept 
for registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises. 

Dated:   

Signature Guaranteed: 

NOTICE: Signature(s) must be guaranteed by 
a member firm of the New York Stock 
Exchange or a commercial bank or trust 
company. 

NOTICE: The signature above must 
correspond with the name of the Registered 
Owner as it appears upon the front of this Bond 
in every particular, without alteration or 
enlargement or any change whatsoever. 

 

 



 A-13 
 

*FORM OF COMPTROLLER’S REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE ATTACHED TO 
AN INITIAL SERIES 2024 BOND 

OFFICE OF COMPTROLLER § 
     § REGISTER NO. ___________ 
STATE OF TEXAS   § 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that this Bond has been examined, certified as to validity and 
approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas, and duly registered by the Texas 
Comptroller of Public Accounts. 

WITNESS MY HAND and seal of office at Austin, Texas _____________________. 

 
 
 ____________________________________ 
 Comptroller of Public Accounts 
 of the State of Texas 
 

(SEAL) 

NOTE TO PRINTER: 
* ¶s not to be on bond 
  



 A-14 
 

ADDITIONAL REVISIONS TO BE MADE TO 
AN INITIAL SERIES 2024 BOND IF MORE THAN ONE MATURITY 

Each Initial Series 2024 Bond shall be in the form set forth in this Exhibit A, except that if 
there is more than one stated maturity of a series of Series 2024 Bonds: 

(i) immediately under the name of the Bond, the blank beneath the heading 
“MATURITY DATE” shall be completed with the words “As shown below”; 

(ii) in the first paragraph of such Initial Series 2024 Bond, the words “ON THE 
MATURITY DATE SPECIFIED ABOVE” shall be deleted and replaced with the 
following:  “ON THE MATURITY DATES SPECIFIED BELOW”. 

(iii) in the first paragraph of such Initial Series 2024 Bond, the words “from the 
Settlement Date to the date of its scheduled maturity or the date of its redemption prior to 
scheduled maturity, at the rate of interest per annum determined pursuant to the Resolution 
(as defined below)” shall be replaced with the following “from the Settlement Date to the 
dates of its scheduled maturity or the date or dates of its redemption prior to scheduled 
maturity, in the principal installments set forth below and bearing interest at the per annum 
rate of interest per annum determined pursuant to the Resolution (as defined below): 

Date Principal Amount 

  
[Information for such Series 2024 Bonds to be inserted 

from Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate]” 

  



 B-1 

EXHIBIT B 

FORM OF FIXED RATE BOND 

[Unless this bond is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Trust Company, 
a New York corporation (“DTC”), to the Issuer or its agent for registration of transfer, exchange, 
or payment, and any certificate issued is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or in such other 
name as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC (and any payment is made to Cede 
& Co. or to such other entity as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC), ANY 
TRANSFER, PLEDGE, OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO 
ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the registered owner hereof, Cede & Co., has an 
interest herein.]1 

NO. FR-____          $__________ 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
 

STATE OF TEXAS 
VETERANS BOND, 

SERIES 20242 

MATURITY DATE: INTEREST RATE: BOND DATE: CUSIP NUMBER: 

_________, ____ _______% __________, 20____ ______ ___ 

ON THE MATURITY DATE SPECIFIED ABOVE, the State of Texas (hereinafter 
sometimes called the “Issuer”), acting by and through the Veterans’ Land Board (the “Board”) of 
the State of Texas, hereby promises to pay to ________________________________, or to the 
registered assignee hereof (either being hereinafter called the “registered owner”), the principal 
amount of _____________________________________ DOLLARS and to pay interest thereon, 
from the bond date stated above to the date of its scheduled maturity or the date of its redemption 
prior to scheduled maturity, at the rate of interest per annum specified above, with said interest 
being payable on __________ 1, 20___, and semiannually on each June 1 and December 1 
thereafter (computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months) (each, an 
“Interest Payment Date”). 

THE PRINCIPAL OF AND PREMIUM, IF ANY, AND INTEREST ON this Bond are 
payable in lawful money of the United States of America, without exchange or collection charges.  
The principal of and premium, if any, on this Bond shall be paid to the registered owner hereof 
upon presentation and surrender of this Bond at maturity or upon the date fixed for its redemption 
prior to maturity, at the designated office of the Paying Agent for the Bonds (defined below), which 
is initially the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas in Austin, Texas.  The payment 
of interest on this Bond shall be made by the Paying Agent to the registered owner hereof as shown 
by the Registration Books kept and maintained by the Registrar for the Bonds, which is initially 
_________________, (i) at the close of business on the fifteenth day of the calendar month 

 
1  To be included in any Series 2024 Bond registered in the name of Cede & Co. 
2  Series designation to be added if necessary. 



 B-2 

immediately preceding each Interest Payment Date, or (ii) in the case of a redemption of Bonds 
prior to maturity, the fifteenth day prior to the mailing of the applicable notice of redemption (each, 
a “Record Date”), by check drawn by the Paying Agent on, and payable solely from, funds of the 
Board required to be on deposit with the Paying Agent for such purpose as hereinafter provided; 
and such check shall be sent by the Paying Agent by first class United States mail, postage prepaid, 
on each such Interest Payment Date, to the registered owner hereof at its address as it appears on 
the Registration Books kept and maintained by the Registrar, as hereinafter described.  The Paying 
Agent shall make payment of the principal of and premium, if any, or interest on this Bond by wire 
transfer in immediately available funds to a bank account located within the United States of 
Federal Reserve Funds upon request of the registered owner hereof, provided such registered 
owner is the registered owner of $1,000,000 or more in aggregate principal amount of Bonds and 
provides the necessary wire information to the Paying Agent at least 15 days prior to the applicable 
Record Date.  The Board covenants with the registered owner of this Bond that as of each Interest 
Payment Date for this Bond it will make available to the Paying Agent the amounts required to 
provide for the payment, in immediately available funds, of all principal of and interest on the 
Bonds, when due.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, during any period in which ownership of the 
Bonds is determined only by a book entry at a securities depository for the Bonds, payments made 
to the securities depository, or its nominee, shall be made in accordance with arrangements 
between the Board and the securities depository. 

UNLESS OTHERWISE DEFINED herein, capitalized words and terms used in this Bond 
and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings ascribed to such terms in the Resolution 
(defined below). 

IF THE DATE for the payment of the principal of or interest on this Bond shall not be a 
Business Day, then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding Business Day and 
payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the original date payment 
was due. 

THIS BOND is one of a series of bonds of like tenor and effect except as to number, 
principal amount and scheduled maturity, aggregating ___________________ Dollars3 
($_____________)3 (the “Bonds”), issued for the purpose of making Home Loans to Texas 
Veterans, all in accordance with the provisions of the Constitutional Provision, the Act and Chapter 
1371, and pursuant to a resolution authorizing the issuance of the series of Bonds of which this is 
one, adopted by the Board and duly of record in the minutes of the Board (the “Resolution”).  The 
Bonds are issuable solely as fully registered bonds, without interest coupons, in denominations of 
any integral multiple of $5,000 (each, an “Authorized Denomination”). 

THE SERIES OF BONDS of which this is one shall be and is hereby made a general 
obligation of the State of Texas, pursuant to the Constitutional Provision and the Act, and for the 
faithful performance of all covenants, recitals and stipulations herein contained, and for the faithful 
performance in proper time and manner of each official or other act required and necessary to 

 
3  For Converted Fixed Rate Bonds, the original aggregate principal amount of such series of Series 2024 Bonds 

set forth in the Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate should be set forth here; for Series 2024 Bonds issued 
as Fixed Rate Bonds, the original aggregate principal amount of such series of Series 2024 Bonds set forth in 
the Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate should be set forth here. 



 B-3 

provide for the prompt payment of principal of and interest on this Bond when due, the full faith 
and credit of the State of Texas are hereby pledged. 

PAYMENTS OF THE PRINCIPAL OF and premium, if any, and interest on this Bond, 
shall be made primarily from the Veterans’ Housing Assistance Fund II (“Fund II”) created by the 
Constitutional Provision, which fund shall be comprised of (1) any interest of the Board in all 
Home Loans made from money in Fund II pursuant to the Program, including proceeds of any 
insurance thereon or on the homes, (2) the proceeds derived from the sale or other disposition of 
the Board’s interests in Home Loans, (3) the money attributable to any Housing Assistance Bonds 
(defined below) (except for certain expenses related to the issuance of Housing Assistance Bonds) 
issued and sold by the Board to provide money for Fund II which shall include but shall not be 
limited to the proceeds from the issuance and sale of such Housing Assistance Bonds, (4) income, 
rents, and any other pecuniary benefit received by the Board as a result of making Home Loans, 
(5) sums received by way of indemnity or forfeiture for the failure of any bidder for the purchase 
of any Housing Assistance Bonds to comply with the person’s bid and accept and pay for such 
Housing Assistance Bonds, (6) payments received by the Board under bond enhancement 
agreements with respect to the Housing Assistance Bonds, (7) interest received from investments 
of any such money, and (8) any equitable interest of the Board in properties encumbered by Home 
Loans and attributable to Fund II.  The Bonds and all other bonds issued by the Board pursuant to 
the Constitution of the State to augment Fund II or to refund any such bonds are referred to herein 
as “Housing Assistance Bonds.”  The Constitutional Provision provides that to the extent there is 
not money in Fund II available for payment of principal of and interest on the Housing Assistance 
Bonds, there is appropriated out of the first money coming into the State Treasury in each fiscal 
year, not otherwise appropriated by the Texas Constitution, an amount which is sufficient to pay 
the principal of and interest on such Housing Assistance Bonds that mature or become due during 
that fiscal year. 

THE BONDS are subject to scheduled mandatory sinking fund redemption, and shall be 
redeemed on the dates and in the respective principal amounts set forth in the table below, at a 
redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof, without premium, plus accrued interest to 
the date fixed for redemption: 

Redemption Date Principal Amount Redemption Date Principal Amount4 

    
    
    

__________________ 
*Stated maturity 

 
4  For Converted Fixed Rate Bonds, the remaining amounts set forth in the applicable Purchase Contract or Pricing 

Certificate should be included in the table, and additional tables shall be added if there is more than one stated 
maturity of such Series 2024 Bonds, with a heading above each table identifying the stated maturity of the 
Series 2024 Bonds to which such table relates; for Series 2024 Bonds issued as Fixed Rate Bonds, the amounts 
set forth in the Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate shall be set forth here. 

 



 B-4 

The principal amount of Bonds to be redeemed on each such redemption date pursuant to 
mandatory sinking fund redemption shall be reduced, at the option of the Board, by the principal 
amount of any Bonds [of the same stated maturity]5 which (A) at least 45 days prior to such 
mandatory sinking fund redemption date, (1) shall have been acquired by the Board and delivered 
to the Registrar for cancellation, or (2) shall have been acquired and canceled by the Registrar at 
the direction of the Board, or (3) shall have been redeemed pursuant to any optional redemption 
and (B) shall have not been previously credited against a scheduled mandatory sinking fund 
redemption. 

THE BONDS shall be subject to redemption and may be redeemed prior to the scheduled 
maturities thereof, at the option and direction of the Board, at any time and from time to time on 
and after ___________ 1, 20___, in whole or in part, at the redemption prices set forth below 
(expressed as a percentage of the principal amount of the Bonds or portions thereof to be 
redeemed), plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption: 

Redemption Dates Redemption Price 

  
  
  
  

[In the case of any such redemption, the Board shall select the maturity or maturities of the 
Bonds to be redeemed and the amounts thereof in Authorized Denominations.]5 

IN THE EVENT of any redemption of less than all of the Bonds [of a particular maturity]5, 
the particular Bonds [within such maturity]5 to be redeemed are to be selected by the Registrar by 
lot in such manner as the Registrar shall deem fair and appropriate.  During any period in which 
ownership of the Bonds is determined only by a book entry at a securities depository for the Bonds, 
if less than the entire principal amount Outstanding of all the Bonds [of the same maturity are to 
be redeemed]5, the interests to be redeemed of the beneficial owners of the Bonds of such maturity 
shall be selected in accordance with the arrangements between the Board and the securities 
depository. 

AT LEAST 30 days prior to the date fixed for any such redemption of this Bond, a written 
notice of such redemption shall be sent by first class mail, postage prepaid, by the Registrar to the 
Holder hereof.  By the date fixed for any such redemption, due provision shall be made by the 
Board with the Paying Agent for the payment of the required redemption price for this Bond or 
the portion hereof which is to be so redeemed.  If such written notice of redemption is given, and 
if due provision for such payment is made, all as provided above, this Bond, or the portion hereof 
which is to be redeemed, thereby automatically shall be redeemed prior to its scheduled maturity, 
and shall not bear interest after the date fixed for its redemption, and shall not be regarded as being 
Outstanding except for the right of the Holder to receive the redemption price plus accrued interest 
to the date fixed for redemption from the Paying Agent out of the funds provided for such payment.  
The Registrar shall record in the Registration Books all such redemptions of principal of this Bond 
or any portion hereof.  If a portion of any Bond shall be redeemed, a substitute Bond [having the 

 
5  Bracketed text to be deleted if there is only one stated maturity of the series of Series 2024 Bonds. 



 B-5 

same stated maturity,]6 in any Authorized Denomination that may be requested by the Holder 
thereof, and in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion thereof, will be 
issued to the Holder upon the surrender thereof for cancellation, at the expense of the Board, all as 
provided in the Resolution. 

IN ADDITION to the notice of redemption required above, the Registrar shall send notice 
of redemption of Bonds by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, 
or by overnight delivery service contemporaneously with such mailing:  (1) to any registered 
owner of $1,000,000 or more in aggregate principal amount of Bonds; (2) to two or more 
information services of national recognition that disseminate redemption information with respect 
to municipal bonds; and (3) to any securities depository that is a registered owner of the Bonds.  
In addition, in the event of a redemption caused by an advance refunding of the Bonds, the 
Registrar shall send a second notice of redemption to all registered owners of the Bonds at least 
30 days but not more than 90 days prior to the actual redemption date.  Any notice required to be 
sent to any registered securities depositories or national information services shall be sent so that 
it is received at least two (2) days prior to the general mailing date of such notice.  The Registrar 
shall also send a notice of redemption to the registered owner of any Bond who has not sent the 
Bonds in for redemption 60 days after the redemption date.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 
failure to give any notice of redemption set forth in this paragraph or any defect in such notice or 
the mailing thereof shall not affect the validity of any proceedings for redemption of Bonds. 

THIS BOND or any portion or portions hereof in any Authorized Denomination may be 
assigned and shall be transferred only in the Registration Books of the Board kept and maintained 
by the Registrar acting in the capacity of registrar for the Bonds, upon the terms and conditions set 
forth in the Resolution.  Among other requirements for such assignment and transfer, this Bond 
must be presented and surrendered to the Registrar, together with proper instruments of 
assignment, in form and with guarantee of signatures satisfactory to the Registrar, evidencing 
assignment of this Bond or any portion or portions hereof, in any Authorized Denomination, to the 
assignee or assignees in whose name or names this Bond or any such portion or portions hereof is 
or are to be transferred and registered.  The form of Assignment printed or endorsed on this Bond 
may be executed by the registered owner to evidence the assignment hereof, but such method is 
not exclusive, and other instruments of assignment satisfactory to the Registrar may be used to 
evidence the assignment of this Bond or any portion or portions hereof from time to time by the 
registered owner.  A new Bond or Bonds payable to such assignee (which then will be the new 
registered owner of such new Bond or Bonds), or to the previous registered owner in the case of 
the assignment and transfer of only a portion of this Bond, may be delivered by the Registrar in 
conversion of and exchange for this Bond, all in the form and manner as provided in the next 
paragraph hereof for the conversion and exchange of other Bonds.  Neither the Board nor the 
Registrar shall be required (1) to issue, replace, transfer, or exchange any Bond during a period 
beginning at the opening of business 30 days before the day of the first mailing of a notice of 
redemption of Bonds and ending at the close of business on the day of such mailing or (2) to 
replace, transfer or exchange any Bond so selected for redemption in whole or in part when such 
redemption is scheduled to occur within 30 calendar days; except that at the option of the registered 
owner of at least $1,000,000 in principal amount of Bonds, the Registrar shall be required to 
transfer or exchange any Bond of such owner which has been selected in whole or in part for 

 
6  Bracketed text to be deleted if there only one stated maturity of the series of Series 2024 Bonds. 



 B-6 

redemption upon surrender thereof.  The Registrar may make such arrangements as it deems 
appropriate for notation on each new Bond issued in exchange for or upon the transfer of the Bond 
so selected for redemption of an appropriate legend to the effect that such new Bond has been so 
selected for redemption.  The registered owner of this Bond shall be treated by the Issuer, the 
Board, the Paying Agent and the Registrar as the absolute owner hereof for all purposes, including 
payment and discharge of liability upon this Bond to the extent of such payment, and the Issuer, 
the Board, the Paying Agent and the Registrar shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary.  
The Board shall pay the Registrar’s reasonable and standard or customary fees and charges for 
making such transfer, but the one requesting such transfer shall pay any taxes or other 
governmental charges required to be paid with respect thereto. 

AS PROVIDED in the Resolution, this Bond, or any portion hereof, may, at the request of 
the registered owner or the assignee or assignees hereof, be converted into and exchanged for a 
like aggregate principal amount of fully registered Bonds, without interest coupons, payable to the 
appropriate registered owner, assignee, or assignees, as the case may be, having the same maturity 
date, bearing interest at the same rate, and in any Authorized Denomination, as requested in writing 
by the appropriate registered owner, assignee, or assignees, as the case may be, upon surrender of 
this Bond to the Registrar for cancellation, all in accordance with the form and procedures set forth 
in the Resolution.  The one requesting such conversion and exchange shall pay the Registrar’s 
reasonable and standard or customary fees and charges for converting and exchanging any Bond 
or portion thereof, together with any taxes or governmental charges required to be paid with respect 
thereto, all as a condition precedent to the exercise of such privilege of conversion and exchange; 
except, however, that in the case of the conversion and exchange of an assigned and transferred 
Bond or Bonds or any portion or portions thereof in any Authorized Denomination, as described 
in the previous paragraph, and in the case of the conversion and exchange of a portion of the 
unredeemed portion of a Bond which has been redeemed in part prior to maturity, as provided 
herein, such fees and charges will be paid by the Board. 

WHENEVER the beneficial ownership of this Bond is determined only by a book entry at 
a securities depository for the Bonds, the foregoing requirements of registering, holding, 
delivering, exchanging or transferring this Bond shall be modified to require the appropriate 
Person to meet the requirements of the securities depository as to registering, holding, delivering, 
exchanging or transferring the book entry to produce the same effect. 

IN THE EVENT that the initial Paying Agent or Registrar for the Bonds is changed by the 
Board, resigns, or otherwise ceases to act as such, the Board has covenanted in the Resolution that 
it promptly will appoint a competent and legally qualified substitute therefor, whose qualifications 
comply with the requirements of the Resolution, and that one entity will serve as Paying Agent 
and Registrar, except during periods when the Bonds are registered only by means of a book entry 
at a securities depository, and promptly will cause written notice thereof to be mailed to the 
registered owners of the Bonds. 

BY BECOMING the registered owner of this Bond, the registered owner thereby 
acknowledges all of the terms and provisions of the Resolution, agrees to be bound by such terms 
and provisions, acknowledges that the Resolution is duly recorded and available for inspection in 
the official minutes and records of the Board, and agrees that the terms and provisions of this Bond 
and the Resolution constitute a contract between each registered owner hereof and the Board. 



 B-7 

THE BOARD reserves the right to amend the Resolution, as deemed necessary or desirable 
by the Board, with the consent of the registered owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount 
of the Bonds then Outstanding under the terms and conditions stated in the Resolution.  The Board 
may, without the consent of the registered owners of the Bonds, adopt certain amendments to the 
Resolution as set forth in the Resolution. 

IN THE EVENT of any conflict or inconsistency between the terms and provisions of this 
Bond and the terms and provisions of the Resolution, the terms and provisions of the Resolution 
shall control. 

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED and recited that all acts, conditions and things required to be 
done precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond and the series of which it forms a part have 
been properly done, have happened and have been performed in regular and due time, form and 
manner as required by the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas and the Resolution, that the 
series of Bonds of which this is a part does not exceed any Constitutional or statutory limitation, 
and that provision has been made for the payment of the principal of and interest on this Bond and 
the series of which it is a part by a pledge of the credit of the Issuer and of the funds specified 
herein. 

UNLESS THE REGISTRAR’S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE hereon has been 
executed by the Registrar by manual signature, this Bond shall not be entitled to any benefit under 
the Resolution or be valid or obligatory for any purpose. 

IN TESTIMONY HEREOF, this Bond is executed with the manual or facsimile signatures 
of the Chairwoman of the Board and of the Executive Secretary of the Board, and the seal of said 
Board impressed, lithographed or printed hereon. 

 THE STATE OF TEXAS 
 
 
 
 _________________________________ 
 Chairwoman, Veterans’ Land Board 
   of the State of Texas 
 
_________________________________ 
Executive Secretary, Veterans’ 
  Land Board of the State of Texas 
 
(SEAL) 



 B-8 

*FORM OF REGISTRAR’S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATION  
ATTACHED TO ALL FIXED RATE BONDS 

OTHER THAN AN INITIAL SERIES 2024 BOND 

REGISTRAR’S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE 

It is hereby certified that this Bond has been issued under the provisions of the Resolution 
described in this Bond; and that this Bond has been issued in conversion of and exchange for or 
replacement of a bond, bonds, or a portion of a bond or bonds of an issue which originally was 
approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered by the Comptroller of Public 
Accounts of the State of Texas. 

Dated: _______________________ __________________________ 
 Registrar 
 
 
 By:  _______________________________ 
 Authorized Representative 
 

  



 B-9 

*FORM OF ASSIGNMENT 

ASSIGNMENT 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
(Please print or typewrite name and address, including zip code of Transferee) 

Please insert Social Security 
or Taxpayer Identification Number 
of Transferee 
 

 

the within Bond and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________ attorney to register the transfer of the within Bond on the books kept 
for registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises. 

Dated:   

Signature Guaranteed: 

NOTICE: Signature(s) must be guaranteed by 
a member firm of the New York Stock 
Exchange or a commercial bank or trust 
company. 

NOTICE: The signature above must 
correspond with the name of the Registered 
Owner as it appears upon the front of this Bond 
in every particular, without alteration or 
enlargement or any change whatsoever. 

 

NOTE TO PRINTER: 

*¶s not to be on bond 

 



 B-10 

*FORM OF COMPTROLLER’S REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE ATTACHED TO 
AN INITIAL SERIES 2024 BOND 

OFFICE OF COMPTROLLER § 
     § REGISTER NO. ___________ 
STATE OF TEXAS   § 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that this Bond has been examined, certified as to validity and 
approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas, and duly registered by the Texas 
Comptroller of Public Accounts. 

WITNESS MY HAND and seal of office at Austin, Texas _____________________. 

 
 
 ____________________________________ 
 Comptroller of Public Accounts 
 of the State of Texas 
 

(SEAL) 

NOTE TO PRINTER: 
* ¶s not to be on bond 
  



 B-11 

ADDITIONAL REVISIONS TO BE MADE TO 
AN INITIAL SERIES 2024 BOND IF MORE THAN ONE MATURITY 

Each Initial Series 2024 Bond shall be in the form set forth in this Exhibit B, except that if 
there is more than one stated maturity of a series of Series 2024 Bonds: 

(i) immediately under the name of the Bond, the blank beneath the headings 
“MATURITY DATE” and “INTEREST RATE” shall be completed with the words “As 
shown below”; 

(ii) in the first paragraph of such Initial Series 2024 Bond, the words “ON THE 
MATURITY DATE SPECIFIED ABOVE” shall be deleted and replaced with the 
following:  “ON THE MATURITY DATES SPECIFIED BELOW”. 

(iii) in the first paragraph of such Initial Series 2024 Bond, the words “from the 
bond date stated above to the date of its scheduled maturity or the date of its redemption 
prior to scheduled maturity, at the rate of interest per annum specified above” shall be 
replaced with the following “from the bond date stated above to the dates of its scheduled 
maturity or the date or dates of its redemption prior to scheduled maturity, in the principal 
installments and bearing interest at the per annum rates of interest per annum set forth 
below: 

Date Principal Amount Interest Rate 

   
[Information for such Series 2024 Bonds to be inserted 

from Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate]” 

 

 



 C-1 

EXHIBIT C 

FORM OF VARIABLE RATE BOND 

[Unless this bond is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Trust Company, 
a New York corporation (“DTC”), to the Issuer or its agent for registration of transfer, exchange, 
or payment, and any certificate issued is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or in such other 
name as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC (and any payment is made to Cede 
& Co. or to such other entity as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC), ANY 
TRANSFER, PLEDGE, OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO 
ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the registered owner hereof, Cede & Co., has an 
interest herein.]18 

NO. R- ____          $__________ 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
 

STATE OF TEXAS 
VETERANS BOND, 

SERIES 202419 

MATURITY DATE: INTEREST RATE: BOND DATE: CUSIP NUMBER: 20 

_________, ____ Variable ____________, 2024 ______ ___ 

 

ON THE MATURITY DATE SPECIFIED ABOVE, the State of Texas (hereinafter 
sometimes called the “Issuer”), acting by and through the Veterans’ Land Board (the “Board”) of 
the Issuer, hereby promises to pay to ________________________________, or to the registered 
assignee hereof (either being hereinafter called the “Holder”) the principal amount of 
________________________________________ DOLLARS and to pay interest thereon, from 
[the Settlement Date]21  [the bond date stated above]22 to the date of its scheduled maturity or the 
date of its redemption prior to scheduled maturity, at the rate of interest per annum determined 
pursuant to the Resolution (defined below), with said interest being payable on each Interest 
Payment Date (computed on the basis of _______________.23 

UNLESS OTHERWISE DEFINED herein, capitalized words and terms used in this Bond 
and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings ascribed to such terms in the Resolution 
(defined below). 

 
18  To be included in any Series 2024 Bond registered in the name of Cede & Co. 
19  Series designation to be added if applicable. 
20  To be omitted from the Initial Series 2024 Bond of any series or if indicated in the related Pricing Certificate. 
21  To be included in the Initial Series 2024 Bond of any series. 
22  To be included in all Variable Rate Bonds except an Initial Series 2024 Bond. 
23  Text specified in related Pricing Certificate to be added here. 



 C-2 

THE PRINCIPAL OF AND PREMIUM, IF ANY, AND INTEREST ON this Bond are 
payable in lawful money of the United States of America, without exchange or collection charges.  
The principal of and premium, if any, on this Bond shall be paid to the registered owner hereof 
upon presentation and surrender of this Bond at maturity or upon the date fixed for its redemption 
prior to maturity, at the designated office of the Paying Agent for the Bonds (defined below), which 
is initially the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas in Austin, Texas.  The payment 
of interest on this Bond shall be made by the Paying Agent to the registered owner hereof as shown 
by the Registration Books kept and maintained by the Registrar for the Bonds, which is initially 
_______________________, at the close of business on the Business Day immediately preceding 
each Interest Payment Date (including each redemption date) (each, a “Record Date”) by check 
drawn by the Paying Agent on, and payable solely from, funds of the Board required to be on 
deposit with the Paying Agent for such purpose as hereinafter provided; and such check shall be 
sent by the Paying Agent by first class United States mail, postage prepaid, on each such Interest 
Payment Date, to the Holder hereof at its address as it appears on the Registration Books kept and 
maintained by the Registrar, as hereinafter described.  The Paying Agent shall make payment of 
the principal of and premium, if any, or interest on any Bond by wire transfer in immediately 
available funds to a bank account located within the United States of Federal Reserve Funds to the 
Liquidity Provider (in the case of any Purchased Bond) and to any Holder of $1,000,000 or more 
in aggregate principal amount of Bonds requesting such payment and providing the necessary wire 
information to the Paying Agent at least 15 days prior to the applicable Record Date.  The Board 
covenants with the Holder of this Bond that as of each Interest Payment Date for this Bond it will 
make available to the Paying Agent the amounts required to provide for the payment, in 
immediately available funds, of all principal of and interest on the Bonds, when due.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, during any period in which ownership of the Bonds is determined 
only by a book entry at a securities depository for the Bonds, payments made to the securities 
depository, or its nominee, shall be made in accordance with arrangements between the Board and 
the securities depository. 

THIS BOND is one of a series of bonds of like tenor and effect except as to number, 
principal amount and scheduled maturity, aggregating ___________________24 Dollars 
($_____________)7 (the “Bonds”), issued for the purpose of making Home Loans to Texas 
Veterans, all in accordance with the provisions of the Constitutional Provision, the Act and Chapter 
1371, and pursuant to a resolution authorizing the issuance of the series of Bonds of which this is 
one, adopted by the Board and duly of record in the minutes of the Board (the “Resolution”). The 
Bonds are issuable solely as fully registered bonds, without interest coupons, in denominations of 
_____________25 (each, an “Authorized Denomination”). 

THE SERIES OF BONDS of which this is one shall be and is hereby made a general 
obligation of the State of Texas, pursuant to the Constitutional Provision and the Act, and for the 
faithful performance of all covenants, recitals and stipulations herein contained, and for the faithful 
performance in proper time and manner of each official or other act required and necessary to 

 
24  The original aggregate principal amount of a series of the Series 2024 Bonds set forth in the related Purchase 

Contract or Pricing Certificate should be set forth here. 
25  The Authorized Denominations set forth in the related Pricing Certificate should be set forth here. 



 C-3 

provide for the prompt payment of principal of and interest on this Bond when due, the full faith 
and credit of the State of Texas are hereby pledged. 

PAYMENTS OF THE PRINCIPAL OF and premium, if any, and interest on this Bond, 
shall be made primarily from the Veterans’ Housing Assistance Fund II (“Fund II”) governed by 
the Constitutional Provision, which fund shall be comprised of (a) any interest of the Board in all 
Home Loans made from money in Fund II pursuant to the Program, including proceeds of any 
insurance thereon or on the homes, (b) the proceeds derived from the sale or other disposition of 
the Board’s interests in Home Loans, (c) the money attributable to any Housing Assistance Bonds 
(defined below) (except for certain expenses related to the issuance of Housing Assistance Bonds) 
issued and sold by the Board to provide money for Fund II which shall include but shall not be 
limited to the proceeds from the issuance and sale of such Housing Assistance Bonds, (d) income, 
rents, and any other pecuniary benefit received by the Board as a result of making Home Loans, 
(e) sums received by way of indemnity or forfeiture for the failure of any bidder for the purchase 
of any Housing Assistance Bonds to comply with the person’s bid and accept and pay for such 
Housing Assistance Bonds, (f) payments received by the Board under bond enhancement 
agreements with respect to the Housing Assistance Bonds, (g) interest received from investments 
of any such money, and (h) any equitable interest of the Board in properties encumbered by Home 
Loans and attributable to Fund II.  The Bonds and all other bonds issued by the Board pursuant to 
the Constitution of the State to augment Fund II or to refund any such bonds are referred to herein 
as “Housing Assistance Bonds.”  The Constitutional Provision provides that to the extent there is 
not money in Fund II available for payment of principal of and interest on the Housing Assistance 
Bonds, there is appropriated out of the first money coming into the State Treasury in each fiscal 
year, not otherwise appropriated by the Texas Constitution, an amount which is sufficient to pay 
the principal of and interest on such Housing Assistance Bonds that mature or become due during 
that fiscal year.26 

THE BONDS shall be subject to scheduled mandatory sinking fund redemption and shall 
be redeemed on _____________27 and in the respective principal amounts set forth in the table 
below, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof, without premium, plus accrued 
interest to the date fixed for redemption: 

Redemption Date Principal Amount Redemption Date Principal Amount28 

    
    
    

 

The principal amount of Bonds to be redeemed on each such redemption date pursuant to 
mandatory sinking fund redemption shall be reduced, at the option of the Board, by the principal 

 
26  Additional paragraphs from the related Pricing Certificate describing interest on the series of Series 2024 Bonds 

should be added here. 
27  Text specified in related Pricing Certificate to be added here. 
28  The amounts set forth in the Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate should be included in the table.  Additional 

tables shall be added if there is more than one stated maturity of the series of Series 2024 Bonds, with a heading 
above each table identifying the stated maturity of the Series 2024 Bonds to which such table relates. 



 C-4 

amount of any Bonds [of the same stated maturity]29 which (i) at least 45 days prior to such 
mandatory sinking fund redemption date, (a) shall have been acquired by the Board and delivered 
to the Registrar for cancellation, or (b) shall have been acquired and canceled by the Registrar at 
the direction of the Board, or (c) shall have been redeemed pursuant to any redemption provision 
set forth below and (ii) shall have not been previously credited against a scheduled mandatory 
sinking fund redemption.30 

IN THE EVENT of any redemption of less than all of the Bonds [of a particular maturity]31, 
the particular Bonds [within each such maturity]14 to be redeemed are to be selected by the 
Registrar by lot in such manner as the Registrar shall deem fair and appropriate.  During any period 
in which ownership of the Bonds is determined only by a book entry at a securities depository for 
the Bonds, if less than the entire principal amount Outstanding of all the Bonds is to be redeemed, 
the interests to be redeemed of the beneficial owners of the Bonds [of such maturity]14 shall be 
selected in accordance with the arrangements between the Board and the securities depository.  In 
the event of any redemption of Bonds, Purchased Bonds shall be selected first for redemption in 
the manner described in the Resolution. 

AT LEAST 30 days prior to the date fixed for any such redemption of this Bond, a written 
notice of such redemption shall be sent by first class mail, postage prepaid, by the Registrar to the 
Holder hereof.  By the date fixed for any such redemption, due provision shall be made by the 
Board with the Paying Agent for the payment of the required redemption price for this Bond or 
the portion hereof which is to be so redeemed.  If such written notice of redemption is given, and 
if due provision for such payment is made, all as provided above, this Bond, or the portion hereof 
which is to be redeemed, thereby automatically shall be redeemed prior to its scheduled maturity, 
and shall not bear interest after the date fixed for its redemption, and shall not be regarded as being 
Outstanding except for the right of the Holder to receive the redemption price plus accrued interest 
to the date fixed for redemption from the Paying Agent out of the funds provided for such payment.  
The Registrar shall record in the Registration Books all such redemptions of principal of this Bond 
or any portion hereof.  If a portion of any Bond shall be redeemed, a substitute Bond [having the 
same maturity date,]14 in any Authorized Denomination that may be requested by the Holder 
thereof, and in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion thereof, will be 
issued to the Holder upon the surrender thereof for cancellation, at the expense of the Board, all as 
provided in the Resolution. 

IN ADDITION to the notice of redemption required above, the Registrar shall send notice 
of redemption of Bonds by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, 
or by overnight delivery service contemporaneously with such mailing:  (a) to any registered owner 
of $1,000,000 or more in aggregate principal amount of Bonds; (b) to two or more information 
services of national recognition that disseminate redemption information with respect to municipal 
bonds; and (c) to any securities depository that is a registered owner of the Bonds.  In addition, in 
the event of a redemption caused by an advance refunding of the Bonds, the Registrar shall send a 
second notice of redemption to all registered owners of the Bonds at least 30 days but not more 
than 90 days prior to the actual redemption date.  Any notice required to be sent to any registered 

 
29  Bracketed text to be deleted if there is only one stated maturity of the series of Series 2024 Bonds. 
30  Optional redemption provisions, if any, specified in the related Pricing Certificate to be added here. 
31  Bracketed text to be deleted if there is only one stated maturity of the series of Series 2024 Bonds. 



 C-5 

securities depositories or national information services shall be sent so that it is received at least 
two (2) days prior to the general mailing date of such notice.  The Registrar shall also send a notice 
of redemption to the registered owner of any Bond who has not sent the Bonds in for redemption 
60 days after the redemption date.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the failure to give any notice 
of redemption set forth in this paragraph or any defect in such notice or the mailing thereof shall 
not affect the validity of any proceedings for redemption of Bonds. 

WHENEVER, during the term of the Bonds, the beneficial ownership thereof is determined 
by a book entry at DTC (or any successor securities depository), tenders of Bonds shall be made 
pursuant to DTC’s (or any successor securities depository’s) deliver order procedures or 
repayment option procedures, as applicable, as are in effect from time to time.  Upon remarketing 
of Bonds, payment of the purchase price thereof shall be made to DTC (or any successor securities 
depository) and no surrender of Bonds is required.  Such sales shall be made through the DTC 
Participants (which may include the Remarketing Agent) to the new beneficial owners of such 
Bonds, and the DTC Participants shall transmit payment to beneficial owners whose Bonds were 
purchased pursuant to a remarketing.  The Board and the Registrar, the Paying Agent, the Tender 
Agent, the Liquidity Provider and the Remarketing Agent are not responsible for transfer of 
payment to the DTC Participants or beneficial owners. 

THIS BOND or any portion or portions hereof in any Authorized Denomination may be 
assigned and shall be transferred only in the Registration Books of the Board kept and maintained 
by the Registrar acting in the capacity of registrar for the Bonds, upon the terms and conditions set 
forth in the Resolution.  Among other requirements for such assignment and transfer, this Bond 
must be presented and surrendered to the Registrar, together with proper instruments of 
assignment, in form and with guarantee of signatures satisfactory to the Registrar, evidencing 
assignment of this Bond or any portion or portions hereof, in any Authorized Denomination, to the 
assignee or assignees in whose name or names this Bond or any such portion or portions hereof is 
or are to be transferred and registered.  The form of Assignment printed or endorsed on this Bond 
may be executed by the registered owner to evidence the assignment hereof, but such method is 
not exclusive, and other instruments of assignment satisfactory to the Registrar may be used to 
evidence the assignment of this Bond or any portion or portions hereof from time to time by the 
registered owner.  A new Bond or Bonds payable to such assignee (which then will be the new 
registered owner of such new Bond or Bonds), or to the previous registered owner in the case of 
the assignment and transfer of only a portion of this Bond, may be delivered by the Registrar in 
conversion of and exchange for this Bond, all in the form and manner as provided in the next 
paragraph hereof for the conversion and exchange of other Bonds.  Neither the Board nor the 
Registrar shall be required (a) to issue, replace, transfer, or exchange any Bond during a period 
beginning at the opening of business 30 days before the day of the first mailing of a notice of 
redemption of Bonds and ending at the close of business on the day of such mailing or (b) to 
replace, transfer or exchange any Bond so selected for redemption in whole or in part when such 
redemption is scheduled to occur within 30 calendar days; except that at the option of the registered 
owner of at least $1,000,000 in principal amount of Bonds, the Registrar shall be required to 
transfer or exchange any Bond of such owner which has been selected in whole or in part for 
redemption upon surrender thereof.  The Registrar may make such arrangements as it deems 
appropriate for notation on each new Bond issued in exchange for or upon the transfer of the Bond 
so selected for redemption of an appropriate legend to the effect that such new Bond has been so 
selected for redemption.  The registered owner of this Bond shall be treated by the Issuer, the 



 C-6 

Board, the Paying Agent and the Registrar as the absolute owner hereof for all purposes, including 
payment and discharge of liability upon this Bond to the extent of such payment, and the Issuer, 
the Board, the Paying Agent and the Registrar shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary.  
The Board shall pay the Registrar’s reasonable and standard or customary fees and charges for 
making such transfer, but the one requesting such transfer shall pay any taxes or other 
governmental charges required to be paid with respect thereto. 

AS PROVIDED in the Resolution, this Bond, or any portion hereof, may, at the request of 
the registered owner or the assignee or assignees hereof, be converted into and exchanged for a 
like aggregate principal amount of fully registered Bonds, without interest coupons, payable to the 
appropriate registered owner, assignee, or assignees, as the case may be, having the same maturity 
date, in the same Interest Mode, bearing interest at the same rate, and in any Authorized 
Denomination, as requested in writing by the appropriate registered owner, assignee, or assignees, 
as the case may be, upon surrender of this Bond to the Registrar for cancellation, all in accordance 
with the form and procedures set forth in the Resolution.  The one requesting such conversion and 
exchange shall pay the Registrar’s reasonable and standard or customary fees and charges for 
converting and exchanging any Bond or portion thereof, together with any taxes or governmental 
charges required to be paid with respect thereto, all as a condition precedent to the exercise of such 
privilege of conversion and exchange; except, however, that in the case of the conversion and 
exchange of an assigned and transferred Bond or Bonds or any portion or portions thereof in any 
Authorized Denomination, as described in the previous paragraph, and in the case of the 
conversion and exchange of a portion of the unredeemed portion of a Bond which has been 
redeemed in part prior to maturity, as provided herein, such fees and charges will be paid by the 
Board. 

WHENEVER the beneficial ownership of this Bond is determined only by a book entry at 
a securities depository for the Bonds, the foregoing requirements of registering, holding, 
delivering, exchanging or transferring this Bond shall be modified to require the appropriate 
Person to meet the requirements of the securities depository as to registering, holding, delivering, 
exchanging or transferring the book entry to produce the same effect. 

IN THE EVENT that the initial Paying Agent or Registrar for the Bonds is changed by the 
Board, resigns, or otherwise ceases to act as such, the Board has covenanted in the Resolution that 
it promptly will appoint a competent and legally qualified substitute therefor, whose qualifications 
comply with the requirements of the Resolution, and that one entity will serve as Paying Agent 
and Registrar, except during periods when the Bonds are registered only by means of a book entry 
at a securities depository, and promptly will cause written notice thereof to be mailed to the 
registered owners of the Bonds. 

BY BECOMING the registered owner of this Bond, the registered owner thereby 
acknowledges all of the terms and provisions of the Resolution, agrees to be bound by such terms 
and provisions, acknowledges that the Resolution is duly recorded and available for inspection in 
the official minutes and records of the Board, and agrees that the terms and provisions of this Bond 
and the Resolution constitute a contract between each registered owner hereof and the Board. 

THE BOARD reserves the right to amend the Resolution, as deemed necessary or desirable 
by the Board, with the consent of the registered owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount 



 C-7 

of the Bonds then Outstanding under the terms and conditions stated in the Resolution.  The Board 
may, without the consent of the registered owners of the Bonds, adopt certain amendments to the 
Resolution as set forth in the Resolution. 

IN THE EVENT of any conflict or inconsistency between the terms and provisions of this 
Bond and the terms and provisions of the Resolution, the terms and provisions of the Resolution 
shall control. 

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED and recited that all acts, conditions and things required to be 
done precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond and the series of which it forms a part have 
been properly done, have happened and have been performed in regular and due time, form and 
manner as required by the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas and the Resolution, that the 
series of Bonds of which this is a part does not exceed any Constitutional or statutory limitation, 
and that provision has been made for the payment of the principal of and interest on this Bond and 
the series of which it is a part by a pledge of the credit of the Issuer and of the funds specified 
herein.32 

[UNLESS THE COMPTROLLER’S REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE hereon has been 
executed by the Comptroller by manual signature, this Bond shall not be entitled to any benefit 
under the Resolution or be valid or obligatory for any purpose.]33  

[UNLESS THE REGISTRAR’S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE hereon has been 
executed by the Registrar by manual signature, this Bond shall not be entitled to any benefit under 
the Resolution or be valid or obligatory for any purpose.]34  

 
32  Additional text or revisions as set forth in the related Pricing Certificate to be included as specified in such 

Pricing Certificate. 
33  To be included in an Initial Series 2024 Bond only. 
34  To be included in all Series 2024 Bonds of a series other than the Initial Series 2024 Bond. 



 C-8 

IN TESTIMONY HEREOF, this Bond is executed with the manual or facsimile signatures 
of the Chairwoman of the Board and of the Executive Secretary of the Board, and the seal of said 
Board impressed, lithographed or printed hereon. 

 THE STATE OF TEXAS 
 
 
 
 ___________________________________ 
 Chairwoman, Veterans’ Land Board 
   of the State of Texas 
 
_______________________________ 
Executive Secretary, Veterans’ 
  Land Board of the State of Texas 
 
(SEAL) 
 



 C-9 

*FORM OF REGISTRAR’S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATION ATTACHED TO 
VARIABLE RATE BONDS OTHER THAN AN INITIAL SERIES 2024 BOND 

REGISTRAR’S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE 

It is hereby certified that this Bond has been issued under the provisions of the Resolution 
described in this Bond; and that this Bond has been issued in conversion of and exchange for or 
replacement of a bond, bonds, or a portion of a bond or bonds of an issue which originally was 
approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered by the Comptroller of Public 
Accounts of the State of Texas. 

Dated: _______________________ _______________________________, 
     ____________, ____________, 
 Registrar 
 
 
 By:  _______________________________ 
  Authorized Representative 
 

  



 C-10 

*FORM OF ASSIGNMENT 

ASSIGNMENT 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
(Please print or typewrite name and address, including zip code of Transferee) 

Please insert Social Security 
or Taxpayer Identification Number 
of Transferee 
 

 

the within Bond and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________ attorney to register the transfer of the within Bond on the books kept 
for registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises. 

Dated:   

Signature Guaranteed: 

NOTICE: Signature(s) must be guaranteed by 
a member firm of the New York Stock 
Exchange or a commercial bank or trust 
company. 

NOTICE: The signature above must 
correspond with the name of the Registered 
Owner as it appears upon the front of this Bond 
in every particular, without alteration or 
enlargement or any change whatsoever. 

 

 



 C-11 

*FORM OF COMPTROLLER’S REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE ATTACHED TO 
AN INITIAL SERIES 2024 BOND 

OFFICE OF COMPTROLLER § 
     § REGISTER NO. ___________ 
STATE OF TEXAS   § 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that this Bond has been examined, certified as to validity and 
approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas, and duly registered by the Texas 
Comptroller of Public Accounts. 

WITNESS MY HAND and seal of office at Austin, Texas _____________________. 

 
 
 ____________________________________ 
 Comptroller of Public Accounts 
 of the State of Texas 
 

(SEAL) 

NOTE TO PRINTER: 
* ¶s not to be on bond 
 

 



 D-1 

EXHIBIT D 

DESCRIPTION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

The following information is referred to in Section 8.2 of this Resolution. 

Annual Financial Statements and Operating Data 

The financial information and operating data with respect to the Board to be provided 
annually in accordance with such Section are the quantitative financial information and operating 
data pertaining to the Board included in Appendix B to the Official Statement relating to each 
series of Series 2024 Bonds subject to the Rule. 

Accounting Principles 

The accounting principles referred to in such Section are generally accepted accounting 
principles for governmental units as prescribed by the Government Accounting Standards Board 
from time to time, as such principles may be changed from time to time to comply with state law 
or regulation. 



 

CERTIFICATE OF RESOLUTION 

THE STATE OF TEXAS §  
    §  
COUNTY OF TRAVIS §  
 

I, the undersigned Executive Secretary of the Veterans’ Land Board (the “Board”) of the 
State of Texas, hereby certify as follows: 

1. The Board convened in regular meeting on the 25th day of June, 2024, at the 
designated meeting place, and the roll was called of the duly constituted officers and members of 
said Board, to-wit: 

Dawn Buckingham, M.D. Chairwoman 
Gerald J. “Jud” Scott Member 
James Rothfelder Member 
  

and all of said persons were present, thus constituting a quorum.  Whereupon, among other 
business, the following was transacted at said meeting:  a written resolution 

BY THE VETERANS’ LAND BOARD OF THE STATE OF TEXAS 
AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF STATE OF TEXAS 
VETERANS BONDS, SERIES 2024 IN ONE OR MORE SERIES AND 
INSTALLMENTS IN AN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO 
EXCEED $250,000,000, AND PROVIDING FOR OTHER MATTERS 
RELATING TO THE SUBJECT 

was duly introduced for the consideration of said Board.  It was then duly moved and seconded 
that said Resolution be adopted; and, after due discussion, said motion, carrying with it the 
adoption of said Resolution, prevailed and carried by the following vote: 

AYES:  3    NOES:  0  

2. A true, full, and correct copy of the aforesaid Resolution adopted at the Meeting 
described in the above and foregoing paragraph is attached to and follows this Certificate; that said 
Resolution has been duly recorded in said Board’s minutes of said Meeting; that the above and 
foregoing paragraph is a true, full, and correct excerpt from said Board’s minutes of said meeting 
pertaining to the adoption of said Resolution; that the persons named in the above and foregoing 
paragraph are the duly chosen, qualified, and acting officers and members of said Board as 
indicated therein; and that each of the officers and members of said Board was duly and sufficiently 
notified officially and personally, in advance, of the time, place, and purpose of the aforesaid 
Meeting, and that said Resolution would be introduced and considered for adoption at said 
Meeting; and that said Meeting was noticed, convened, and conducted in full compliance with the 
Texas Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code, as amended, regarding 
meetings of the Board. 

3. The Resolution has not been modified, amended or repealed and is in full force and 
effect on and as of the date hereof. 



 Signature Page for Certificate of Resolution 
 Authorizing Issuance of Series 2024 Bonds 

SIGNED AND SEALED the ____ day of ________________, 2024. 

 

 ____________________________________ 
 Anthony W. Dale, Executive Secretary 
(SEAL) 

 

 



 

1 
 

Date:    June 25, 2024 
 
To:    Dawn Buckingham, M.D., Chairwoman 
   Judson Scott, Member 

James Rothfelder, Member 
 

From:    John Barton, Director of VLB Bond Funds Management 
 
Subject:  Agenda Item 5 e - Consideration and possible action on a resolution of 

the Veterans Land Board of the State of Texas authorizing the 
redemption of certain outstanding bonds, and other related matters. 

 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends the Board approve the redemption of certain bond 

series.  
 
Summary 
Staff seeks approval for the redemption of the following bond series: Series 2004A, Series 
2005B, Series 2015A, Series 2016, Series 2017, Series 2020, Series 2021, and Series 2022. The 
listed series of bonds would be redeemed either in conjunction with a taxable bond issue or 
using available cash on hand.  
 
For the bonds series issued from 2015 and later, these bonds would be redeemed in 
conjunction with a taxable refunding and all or a portion of the currently outstanding tax-
exempt bonds would be replaced with similarly structured taxable bonds to increase the 
flexibility in the use of proceeds by removing the IRS limitations and increasing the amount of 
proceeds available to the program. 
 
The Series 2004A and Series 2005B bonds have accumulated sufficient cash on hand to fully 
redeem the outstanding bonds. For these two bond series, only a very small portion of 
borrowers of home mortgages in the Veterans Housing Assistance Program (VHAP) meet the 
requirements necessary to borrow from pre-2008 tax-exempt bond issues (e.g., the borrower 
must have entered the service before 1976 and applied for a loan within 30 years of their 
discharge date), therefore VLB is unable to purchase new loans with mortgage repayments VLB 
receives.   
 
Currently, the Series 2004A bonds has $12.8 million of bonds remaining and $21.8 million in 
cash on hand and the Series 2005B bonds has $14.6 million of bonds remaining and $16.9 
million in cash on hand. Redemption of these bonds will result in the VLB avoiding future 
interest expense of approximately $2.5 million for the Series 2004A bonds and $3.2 million for 
the Series 2005B bonds.  
 



 
Error! Unknown document property name. 

CERTIFICATE OF RESOLUTION 

THE STATE OF TEXAS §  
    §  
COUNTY OF TRAVIS §  
 

I, the undersigned Executive Secretary of the Veterans’ Land Board (the “Board”) of the 
State of Texas, hereby certify as follows: 

1. The Board convened in regular meeting on the 25th day of June, 2024, at the 
designated meeting place, and the roll was called of the duly constituted officers and members of 
said Board, to-wit: 

Dawn Buckingham, M.D. Chairwoman 
Gerald J. “Jud” Scott Member 
James Rothfelder Member 
  

and all of said persons were present, thus constituting a quorum.  Whereupon, among other 
business, the following was transacted at said meeting:  a written: 

RESOLUTION OF THE VETERANS’ LAND BOARD OF THE 
STATE OF TEXAS AUTHORIZING THE REDEMPTION OF 
CERTAIN BONDS ISSUED IN CONNECTION WITH THE 
VETERANS’ HOUSING ASSISTANCE PROGRAM; AND 
PROVIDING FOR OTHER MATTERS RELATING TO THE 
SUBJECT 

was duly introduced for the consideration of said Board.  It was then duly moved and seconded 
that said Resolution be adopted; and, after due discussion, said motion, carrying with it the 
adoption of said Resolution, prevailed and carried by the following vote: 

AYES:  3    NOES:  0  

2. A true, full, and correct copy of the aforesaid Resolution adopted at the Meeting 
described in the above and foregoing paragraph is attached to and follows this Certificate; that 
said Resolution has been duly recorded in said Board’s minutes of said Meeting; that the above 
and foregoing paragraph is a true, full, and correct excerpt from said Board’s minutes of said 
meeting pertaining to the adoption of said Resolution; that the persons named in the above and 
foregoing paragraph are the duly chosen, qualified, and acting officers and members of said 
Board as indicated therein; and that each of the officers and members of said Board was duly and 
sufficiently notified officially and personally, in advance, of the time, place, and purpose of the 
aforesaid Meeting, and that said Resolution would be introduced and considered for adoption at 
said Meeting; and that said Meeting was open to the public, and public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said Meeting was given, all as required by Chapter 551 of the Texas Government 
Code. 

3. The Resolution has not been modified, amended or repealed and is in full force 
and effect on and as of the date hereof. 



 Signature Page for Certificate of Resolution Authorizing Redemption of 
 Certain Bonds Issued in Connection With 
 the Veterans’ Housing Assistance Program 
Error! Unknown document property name. 

SIGNED AND SEALED the 25th day of June, 2024. 

 

 ____________________________________ 
 Anthony W. Dale, Executive Secretary 
(SEAL) 

 



 
 
Error! Unknown document property name. 

RESOLUTION 

OF THE VETERANS’ LAND BOARD OF THE STATE OF 
TEXAS AUTHORIZING THE REDEMPTION OF CERTAIN 
BONDS ISSUED IN CONNECTION WITH THE VETERANS’ 
HOUSING ASSISTANCE PROGRAM; AND PROVIDING FOR 
OTHER MATTERS RELATING TO THE SUBJECT 

 

 

 

 

________________ 

 

Adopted and Approved on 

June 25, 2024 

  



 (i) 
 
Error! Unknown document property name. 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

Recitals  ............................................................................................................................................1 

1. Incorporation of Recitals ......................................................................................................1 

2. Exercise of Option to Redeem Bonds ..................................................................................1 

3. Determination of Bonds to Be Redeemed ...........................................................................1 

4. Determination of Redemption Dates ...................................................................................1 

5. Authorization and Ratification of Additional Acts ..............................................................2 

6. Open Meeting.......................................................................................................................2 

7. Effective Date ......................................................................................................................2 

 

 

 

 



 
 
Error! Unknown document property name. 

RESOLUTION 

OF THE VETERANS’ LAND BOARD OF THE STATE OF TEXAS 
AUTHORIZING THE REDEMPTION OF CERTAIN BONDS ISSUED IN 
CONNECTION WITH THE VETERANS’ HOUSING ASSISTANCE 
PROGRAM; AND PROVIDING FOR OTHER MATTERS RELATING TO 
THE SUBJECT 

WHEREAS, the Veterans’ Land Board (the “Board”) of the State of Texas has caused to 
be issued the bonds (collectively, the “Prior Bonds”) listed in Exhibit A hereto in connection 
with the Veterans’ Housing Assistance Program pursuant to resolutions (collectively, the 
“Resolutions”) adopted by the Board authorizing the issuance of the Prior Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, each Resolution provides that the related series of Bonds is subject to 
redemption prior to maturity on the first Business Day (as defined in each Resolution) of any 
month, at the option and direction of the Board, in whole or in part, at a redemption price of par 
plus accrued interest; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has determined to exercise its option to redeem Bonds as 
provided herein; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE VETERANS’ LAND BOARD OF 
THE STATE OF TEXAS, THAT: 

1. Incorporation of Recitals.  All of the above recitals are found and determined to 
be true and correct and are incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their 
entirety. 

2. Exercise of Option to Redeem Bonds.  The Board hereby exercises its option 
pursuant to each Resolution to redeem Bonds at a redemption price equal to the principal amount 
thereof together with interest accrued thereon to the applicable redemption date. 

3. Determination of Bonds to Be Redeemed.  The Chairwoman of the Board, the 
Executive Secretary of the Board, the Director of VLB Bond Funds Management of the Board 
and the Assistant Director of VLB Bond Funds Management of the Board (collectively, the 
“Authorized Representatives”) are each hereby severally authorized to act on behalf of the Board 
in determining the Bonds and the principal amounts thereof to be redeemed as in his judgment is 
in the best interests of the Board 

4. Determination of Redemption Dates.  The Authorized Representatives are each 
hereby severally authorized to act on behalf of the Board in establishing a redemption date for 
any Bonds to be redeemed as in his judgment is in the best interests of the Board. 

5. Notice of Redemption.  In connection with the redemption of any Prior Bonds, the 
Authorized Representatives are hereby authorized and directed to cause notice to be given 
pursuant to each related Resolution that such Prior Bonds have been called for redemption on the 
applicable redemption date, which notice may be conditioned upon the issuance of refunding 
bonds on or before such redemption date. 



 - 2 - 
Error! Unknown document property name. 

6. Authorization and Ratification of Additional Acts.  The Authorized 
Representatives are hereby severally authorized and directed from time to time and at any time, 
in the name and on behalf of the Board, to do and perform or cause to be done and performed all 
acts and things and to execute, deliver, and if requested, attest or affix the seal of the Board to, 
all certificates, instruments and other papers as they may determine to be necessary or desirable 
in connection with the redemption of Bonds, such determination to be conclusively evidenced by 
the performance of such acts and things and the execution and delivery of any such certificate, 
instrument or other paper, and any such actions heretofore performed or caused to be performed 
by the Authorized Representatives are hereby ratified, approved and confirmed in all respects. 

7. Open Meeting.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this resolution was adopted and approved was open to the public as required by law and 
public notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 
Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code, as amended. 

8. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect on and as of the 
date hereof. 

  



 Signature Page for Certificate of Resolution Authorizing Redemption of 
 Certain Bonds Issued in Connection With 
 the Veterans’ Housing Assistance Program 
 Error! Unknown document property name. 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED on the 25th day of June, 2024. 

 
 
       /s/ Dawn Buckingham, M.D.    
       Chairwoman, Veterans’ Land Board of 
            the State of Texas 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
/s/ Anthony W. Dale      
Executive Secretary, Veterans’ Land Board of 
  the State of Texas 
 



 

EXHIBIT A 
 

PRIOR BONDS 
 
 

State of Texas Veterans’ Housing Assistance Program, Fund II Series 2004A Bonds 
 
State of Texas Veterans’ Housing Assistance Program, Fund II Series 2005B Bonds 
 
State of Texas Veterans Bonds, Series 2015A 
 
State of Texas Veterans Bonds, Series 2016 
 
State of Texas Veterans Bonds, Series 2017 
 
State of Texas Veterans Bonds, Series 2020 
 
State of Texas Veterans Bonds, Series 2021 
 
State of Texas Veterans Bonds, Series 2022 
 



 

1 
 

 
Date:  June 25, 2024 
 
To:  Dawn Buckingham, M.D., Chairwoman 

Judson Scott, Member 
James Rothfelder, Member 

 
From:  John Barton, Director of VLB Bond Funds Management 
 
Subject: Agenda Item 5 f - Consideration and possible action on a resolution 

authorizing the issuance and sale of State of Texas Veterans Bonds, 
Taxable Refunding Series 2024 in one or more series in an 
aggregate principal amount not to exceed $200,000,000. 

 
Recommendation: Staff recommends that the Board authorize the issuance up to 

$200,000,000 in taxable refunding general obligation bonds in the 
Veterans Housing Assistance Program (VHAP) between June 26, 
2024 and June 24, 2025. Staff recommends that the final maturity 
of the bonds not exceed December 1, 2051, and that the bond True 
Interest Cost not exceed 6.00%. 

 
Summary 
Historically, VLB has issued variable-rate bonds combined with a floating-to-fixed rate 
swap which created a synthetic fixed-rate bond. The fixed-leg of the swap rate (which 
roughly translates to the overall fixed-rate cost for the bonds) for many series of bonds 
issued by VLB was set in very different market conditions compared to today. With the 
recent rise in interest rates both in bonds and mortgages, VLB limited the amount of 
loans it purchased associated with several of its bond series due to federal tax law 
limitations on earnings for tax-exempt bonds. 
 
The change in interest rates and IRS limitations on tax-exempt bond issuances have 
effectively restricted the VHAP, but in the current market VLB has an opportunity to 
convert certain tax-exempt bonds to taxable synthetic-fixed rate bonds at substantially 
lower interest costs than issuing new taxable synthetic fixed-rate bonds. Moreover, this 
conversion will allow the VLB to provide below-market interest rate loans to Veterans 
in-line with the loan rate formula established by the VLB. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2 

2 
 

There are currently six bond series that are attractive for a full or partial conversion from 
tax-exempt financing to taxable financing. 
 

Bond Series Swap (Fixed) Rate 
Series 2015A 1.5100% 
Series 2016 1.5640% 
Series 2017 1.1750% 
Series 2020 1.0847% 
Series 2021 0.649% 
Series 2022 2.0143% 

 
Any newly issued replacement or refunding taxable bonds will be a one-to-one 
replacement of the current tax-exempt bonds and match exactly the amortizations of 
the replaced tax-exempt bonds. Additionally, the swaps currently associated with the 
tax-exempt bonds can be transferred to the new taxable bonds.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION 

 

BY THE VETERANS’ LAND BOARD OF THE STATE OF 
TEXAS AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF 
STATE OF TEXAS VETERANS BONDS, TAXABLE 
SERIES 2024 IN ONE OR MORE SERIES AND 
INSTALLMENTS IN AN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT 
NOT TO EXCEED $200,000,000, AND PROVIDING FOR 
OTHER MATTERS RELATING TO THE SUBJECT 

 

_________________ 

 

relating to 

 

State of Texas 
Veterans Bonds, 

Taxable Refunding Series 2024 

 

_________________ 

 

 

Adopted and Approved on 

June 25, 2024 

 

 



 -i- 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

ARTICLE I 
 

DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PROVISIONS OF GENERAL APPLICATION 

Section 1.1. Definitions .......................................................................................................... 2 
Section 1.2. Effect of Headings and Table of Contents ....................................................... 10 

ARTICLE II 
 

AUTHORIZATION AND TERMS OF SERIES 2024 BONDS; 
ISSUANCE AND FORM OF SERIES 2024 BONDS 

Section 2.1. Authorization of Series 2024 Bonds ................................................................ 10 
Section 2.2. Form, Maturities, Interest Rates and Numbering ............................................. 10 
Section 2.3. Execution .......................................................................................................... 11 
Section 2.4. Approval by Attorney General; Registration by Comptroller .......................... 11 
Section 2.5. Form of Bond ................................................................................................... 11 
Section 2.6. Registration, Transfer and Exchange ............................................................... 12 
Section 2.7. Damaged and Missing Bonds ........................................................................... 15 
Section 2.8. Sale and Delivery of Series 2024 Bonds .......................................................... 16 
Section 2.9. Preliminary Official Statement and Official Statement ................................... 16 
Section 2.10. Book-Entry System .......................................................................................... 17 

ARTICLE III 
 

REDEMPTION OF SERIES 2024 BONDS 

Section 3.1. Redemption ...................................................................................................... 18 
Section 3.2. Notice of Redemption ...................................................................................... 19 

ARTICLE IV 
 

FUNDS AND INVESTMENTS 

Section 4.1. Establishment of Fund II .................................................................................. 20 
Section 4.2. Deposits to Fund II ........................................................................................... 21 
Section 4.3. Home Loans ..................................................................................................... 21 
Section 4.4. Source of Payment ............................................................................................ 22 
Section 4.5. Other Uses of Fund II Moneys ......................................................................... 22 
Section 4.6. Program Administration ................................................................................... 23 
Section 4.7. Investments ....................................................................................................... 23 



 -ii- 
 

ARTICLE V 
 

COVENANTS OF THE BOARD 

Section 5.1. Payment Procedures ......................................................................................... 23 
Section 5.2. Paying Agent and Registrar .............................................................................. 24 
Section 5.3. Tax Covenants .................................................................................................. 24 

ARTICLE VI 
 

SUPPLEMENTS AND AMENDMENTS 

Section 6.1. Amendment of Resolution With Consent of Holders ...................................... 25 
Section 6.2. Amendment of Resolution Without Consent of Holders ................................. 26 
Section 6.3. Effect of Amendatory Resolutions ................................................................... 26 
Section 6.4. Bonds May Bear Notation of Changes ............................................................. 26 

ARTICLE VII 
 

FIXED RATE BONDS DEEMED PAID 

Section 7.1. Fixed Rate Bonds Deemed Paid ....................................................................... 27 
Section 7.2. Application of Trust Money ............................................................................. 27 

ARTICLE VIII 
 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING 

Section 8.1. Definitions ........................................................................................................ 28 
Section 8.2. Annual Reports ................................................................................................. 28 
Section 8.3. Event Notices ................................................................................................... 29 
Section 8.4. Limitations, Disclaimers and Amendments ..................................................... 30 
Section 8.5. Continuing Disclosure Relating to Other Obligated Persons ........................... 31 
Section 8.6. Agreement Regarding Assumption of Certain Home Loans ............................ 31 

ARTICLE IX 
 

ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS RELATING TO SERIES 2024 BONDS 

Section 9.1. Interest Rates and Payment .............................................................................. 31 
Section 9.2. Determination of Weekly Interest Rate ............................................................ 32 
Section 9.3. Fixed Interest Rate ............................................................................................ 33 
Section 9.4. Purchase of Weekly Rate Bonds ...................................................................... 34 
Section 9.5. Amendments to Liquidity Facility ................................................................... 38 
Section 9.6. Alternate Liquidity Facility .............................................................................. 38 
Section 9.7. Notice of Termination or Other Change in Liquidity Facility ......................... 38 
Section 9.8. Remarketing Agent and Tender Agent ............................................................. 38 



 -iii- 
 

Section 9.9. Qualifications of Remarketing Agent and Tender Agent; Resignation; 
Removal ............................................................................................................ 39 

Section 9.10. Notice of Weekly Rate Bonds Delivered for Purchase; Purchase of 
Weekly Rate Bonds .......................................................................................... 40 

Section 9.11. Remarketing of Series 2024 Bonds; Notice of Interest Rates .......................... 42 
Section 9.12. Delivery of Series 2024 Bonds ......................................................................... 43 
Section 9.13. Delivery of Proceeds of Sale ............................................................................ 43 
Section 9.14. Draws on Liquidity Facility to Pay Purchase Price of Weekly Rate Bonds

 43 
Section 9.15. Insufficient Funds for Purchase of Weekly Rate Bonds .................................. 44 
Section 9.16. Notices .............................................................................................................. 44 

ARTICLE X 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 10.1. Benefits of Resolution ...................................................................................... 45 
Section 10.2. Bonds to Rank Equally ..................................................................................... 45 
Section 10.3. Enforcement ..................................................................................................... 45 
Section 10.4. Separability Clause ........................................................................................... 46 
Section 10.5. Governing Law ................................................................................................. 46 
Section 10.6. Open Meeting ................................................................................................... 46 
Section 10.7. References to Liquidity Provider ..................................................................... 46 
Section 10.8. Liquidity Facilities Authorized ........................................................................ 46 
Section 10.9. Remarketing Agreements Authorized .............................................................. 46 
Section 10.10. Tender Agent Agreements Authorized ............................................................. 46 
Section 10.11. Reduction of Available Commitment ............................................................... 46 
Section 10.12. 47 
Section 10.13. Payment of Refunded Bonds ............................................................................ 47 
Section 10.14. Partial Transfer of Interest Rate Swap Transactions ........................................ 47 
Section 10.15. Authorization of Additional Acts ..................................................................... 47 
 

 

EXHIBIT A – FORM OF WEEKLY RATE BOND .................................................................. A-1 

EXHIBIT B – FORM OF FIXED RATE BOND ........................................................................B-1 

EXHIBIT C – DESCRIPTION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION ........................C-1 

  



  
 
 

RESOLUTION 

BY THE VETERANS’ LAND BOARD OF THE STATE OF TEXAS 
AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF STATE OF TEXAS 
VETERANS BONDS, TAXABLE REFUNDING SERIES 2024 IN ONE OR 
MORE SERIES AND INSTALLMENTS IN AN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $200,000,000, AND PROVIDING FOR OTHER 
MATTERS RELATING TO THE SUBJECT 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Article III, Section 49-b (the “Constitutional 
Provision”) of the Constitution (the “State Constitution”) of the State of Texas (the “State”), and 
implemented by Chapter 162, Texas Natural Resources Code, as amended (the “Act”), the 
Veterans’ Land Board (the “Board”) of the State has been authorized, subject to the limitations set 
forth in the Constitutional Provision, to issue general obligation bonds (“Bonds”) of the State from 
time to time for the purpose of providing funding for the Veterans’ Housing Assistance Fund II 
(“Fund II”), which fund is to be used for the purpose of making home mortgage loans (“Home 
Loans”) to Veterans (as such term is defined in the Act); and 

WHEREAS, the Board has previously caused to be issued the Bonds (collectively, the 
“Prior Bonds”) identified in Exhibit D hereto for the purpose of augmenting Fund II; and 

WHEREAS, there are on deposit in Fund II unexpended proceeds and “recycled” proceeds 
(in general, amounts representing payments and prepayments of Home Loans not needed to pay 
debt service on the related Prior Bonds) of the Prior Bonds (“Prior Bond Proceeds”); and 

WHEREAS, under federal income tax law, the amount that may be earned on Home Loans 
funded with the proceeds of tax-exempt Bonds, such as the Prior Bonds, is limited to 1.125% in 
excess of the yield on the related Bonds (the “Permitted Spread”), and the Board is unable to retain 
any such amount in excess of the Permitted Spread; and 

WHEREAS, as a result of the recent rise in interest rates and the low yield on the Prior 
Bonds, the amount earned on new Home Loans funded with Prior Bond Proceeds is significantly 
greater than the Permitted Spread; and 

WHEREAS, the amount that may be earned on Home Loans funded with the proceeds of 
taxable Bonds is not limited; and 

WHEREAS, the Board is authorized pursuant to Section 162.046 of the Act to provide by 
resolution for the issuance of refunding bonds for the purpose of refunding outstanding Bonds; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it is necessary and desirable at this time and in 
the best interests of the Board that up to $200,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of taxable 
Bonds (hereinafter defined as the “Series 2024 Bonds”) be issued in one or more series and 
installments for the purpose of refunding Prior Bonds; and 



 -2- 
 

WHEREAS, because the Prior Bonds bear, and the Series 2024 Bonds will bear, interest 
at a variable rate, the manner in which the refunding of any Prior Bonds is being executed does 
not make it practicable to determine the maximum amount by which or whether the aggregate 
amount of payments to be made under a series of Series 2024 Bonds exceeds the aggregate amount 
of payments that would have been made under the terms of the related Prior Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Constitutional Provision, the Act and Chapter 1207, Texas 
Government Code, as amended, the Board hereby determines to issue the Series 2024 Bonds; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE VETERANS’ LAND BOARD OF 
THE STATE OF TEXAS: 

ARTICLE I 
 

DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PROVISIONS OF GENERAL APPLICATION 

Section 1.1. Definitions.  (a)  For all purposes of this Resolution, except as otherwise expressly 
provided or unless the context otherwise requires: 

(i) “This Resolution” means this resolution as originally adopted or as it may from time to 
time be supplemented or amended by one or more resolutions supplemental hereto adopted 
pursuant to the applicable provisions hereof. 

(ii) All references in this Resolution to designated “Articles,” “Sections” and other 
subdivisions are to the designated Articles, Sections and other subdivisions of this Resolution as 
originally adopted.  The words “herein,” “hereof” and “hereunder” and other words of similar 
import refer to this Resolution as a whole and not to any particular Article, Section or other 
subdivision. 

(iii) The terms defined in this Article have the meanings assigned to them in this Article and 
include the plural as well as the singular.  Reference to any named Person means that party and its 
successors and assigns. 

(b) The following terms have the meanings assigned to them below whenever they are used in 
this Resolution: 

“Act” means Chapter 162, Texas Natural Resources Code, as amended. 

“Alternate Liquidity Facility” means a letter of credit, standby bond purchase agreement 
or any other agreement or agreements used to provide liquidity support for a series of Series 2024 
Bonds, satisfactory to the Board and the Remarketing Agent therefor and containing administrative 
provisions reasonably satisfactory to the Tender Agent therefor, issued and delivered to such 
Tender Agent in accordance with Section 9.6 hereof. 

“Attorney General” means the Attorney General of the State. 

“Authorized Denomination” means (i) for Weekly Rate Bonds, (A) prior to the final 
redemption pursuant to Section 3.1(a) hereof, $100,000 and any integral multiple of $5,000 in 



 -3- 
 

excess thereof, or (B) thereafter, any integral multiple of $5,000, and (ii) for Fixed Rate Bonds, 
$5,000 and any integral multiple thereof. 

“Authorized Representative” means any of the following: the Chairwoman of the Board, 
the Executive Secretary of the Board, the Director of VLB Bond Funds Management of the Board, 
the Assistant Director of VLB Bond Funds Management of the Board, and any other officer or 
employee of the Board appointed by the Board to serve as an “Authorized Representative” 
hereunder. 

“Beneficial Owner” means, during any period in which ownership of a series of 
Series 2024 Bonds is determined only by a book entry at a securities depository for such 
Series 2024 Bonds, any Person who acquires a beneficial ownership in such Series 2024 Bonds. 

“Board” means the Veterans’ Land Board of the State. 

“Bond” or “Bonds” means general obligation bonds of the State authorized by the 
Constitutional Provision and issued for the benefit of Fund II. 

“Bond Counsel” means Bracewell LLP or any other attorney or firm of attorneys nationally 
recognized as experienced in the field of bonds of governmental issuers and appointed by the 
Board. 

“Bond Purchase Fund” means for any series of Series 2024 Bonds the fund so designated 
that is established with the Tender Agent therefor pursuant to Section 9.8(b)(ii) hereof. 

“Bond Register” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.6 hereof. 

“Business Day” means with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds, any day other than 
(i) a Saturday, a Sunday or any other day on which banks located in the cities in which the Board 
and the applicable Tender Agent, Remarketing Agent, Paying Agent, Registrar or Liquidity 
Provider are located, or in which the office of such Liquidity Provider from which payments are 
made pursuant to the applicable Liquidity Facility is located, are authorized or required to remain 
closed or (ii) a day on which the New York Stock Exchange is closed. 

“Ceiling Rate” means the lesser of (i) fifteen percent (15%) per annum and (ii) a per annum 
rate equal to the maximum net effective interest rate permitted to be paid on the Series 2024 Bonds 
(prescribed by Chapter 1204, Texas Government Code, as amended, or any successor provision), 
currently fifteen percent (15%). 

“Chapter 1201” means Chapter 1201, Texas Government Code, as amended. 

“Chapter 1207” means Chapter 1207, Texas Government Code, as amended. 

“Comptroller” means the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts. 

“Constitutional Provision” means Article III, Section 49-b of the Constitution of the State, 
as adopted on November 9, 1999, as it may be amended from time to time. 



 -4- 
 

“Defeasance Obligations” means (i) direct noncallable obligations of the United States of 
America, including obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed by the United States, 
(ii) noncallable obligations of an agency or instrumentality of the United States, including 
obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed or insured by the agency or instrumentality and 
that, on the date the governing body of the Board adopts or approves the proceedings authorizing 
the issuance of refunding bonds, are rated as to investment quality by the Rating Agency not less 
than AAA or its equivalent, and (iii) noncallable obligations of a state or an agency or a county, 
municipality, or other political subdivision of a state that have been refunded and that, on the date 
the governing body of the Board adopts or approves the proceedings authorizing the issuance of 
refunding bonds, are rated as to investment quality by the Rating Agency not less than AAA or its 
equivalent. 

“Direct Security Repurchase Agreement” means an agreement under which the Board 
buys, holds for a specified time, and then sells back any of the following securities, obligations, or 
participation certificates: 

(1) United States government securities; 

(2) direct obligations of or obligations the principal and interest of which are 
guaranteed by the United States; 

(3) direct obligations of or obligations guaranteed by the Federal Home Loan 
Banks, the Federal National Mortgage Association, the Federal Farm Credit System, the 
Student Loan Marketing Association, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, or a 
successor organization to one of those organizations; or 

(4) any other investment instrument, obligation, or other evidence of 
indebtedness the payment of which is directly or indirectly guaranteed by the full faith and 
credit of the United States. 

“DTC” means The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, and its successors 
and assigns, or any successor securities depository for a series of Series 2024 Bonds. 

“DTC Participant” means the securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, 
clearing corporations and certain other organizations on whose behalf DTC was created to hold 
securities to facilitate the clearance and settlement of securities transactions among DTC 
Participants. 

“Eligible Investments” means: 

(1) Direct Security Repurchase Agreements and Reverse Security Repurchase 
Agreements made with state or national banks domiciled in the State or with primary 
dealers as approved by the Federal Reserve System; 

(2) direct obligations of or obligations the principal and interest of which are 
guaranteed by the United States; 



 -5- 
 

(3) direct obligations of or obligations guaranteed by the Federal Home Loan 
Banks, the Federal National Mortgage Association, the Federal Farm Credit System, the 
Student Loan Marketing Association, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, or a 
successor organization to one of those organizations; 

(4) bankers’ acceptances that: 

(i) are eligible for purchase by members of the Federal Reserve System; 

(ii) do not exceed 270 days to maturity; and 

(iii) are issued by a bank that has received the highest short term credit 
rating by a nationally recognized investment rating firm; 

(5) commercial paper that: 

(i) does not exceed 270 days to maturity; and 

(ii) has received the highest short term credit rating by a nationally 
recognized investment rating firm; 

(6) contracts written by the Board in which the Board grants the purchaser the 
right to purchase securities in the Board’s marketable securities portfolio at a specified 
price over a specified period and for which the Board is paid a fee and specifically prohibits 
naked option or uncovered option trading; 

(7) obligations of a state or an agency, county, city, or other political 
subdivision of a state, including revenue bonds issued under Chapter 164, Texas Natural 
Resources Code, as amended, and mutual funds composed of these obligations; 

(8) an investment instrument, obligation, or other evidence of indebtedness the 
payment of which is directly or indirectly guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the 
United States; 

(9) an investment, account, depository receipt, or deposit that is fully: 

(i) insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, the Federal 
Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation, or a successor organization to one of 
those organizations; or 

(ii) secured by securities described by paragraph (2), (3), or (8) of this 
definition; 

(10) a collateralized mortgage obligation fully secured by securities or 
mortgages issued or guaranteed by the Government National Mortgage Association or any 
entity described by paragraph (3) of this definition; 



 -6- 
 

(11) a security or evidence of indebtedness issued by the Farm Credit System 
Financial Assistance Corporation, the Private Export Funding Corporation, or the Export 
Import Bank; and 

(12) any other investment authorized for investment of State funds by the 
Comptroller under applicable law; 

provided, however, that the term “Eligible Investments” does not include any investments that may 
from time to time not be authorized under the laws of the State for investment of moneys in Fund 
II; and provided, further, that the term “Eligible Investments” also includes all investments that 
may from time to time be authorized under the laws of the State for investment of moneys in Fund 
II. 

“Expenses Attributable to Bonds” means the expenses of issuing, selling, delivering and 
administering the Bonds, including without limitation, fees, expenses and other payments by the 
Board (excluding payments by the Board with respect to principal of or interest on the Bonds) 
payable under any bond enhancement agreement with respect to principal of or interest on the 
Bonds. 

“Expenses Attributable to Home Loans” means the expenses incurred in connection with 
originating, processing, servicing, and administering the Home Loans. 

“Fiscal Year” means the period of time beginning in each calendar year on September 1, 
and ending August 31 of the calendar year next following, or the fiscal year for the State, as may 
hereinafter be established by law. 

“Fixed Interest Rate” means with respect to a Series 2024 Bond, the non-variable interest 
rate established in accordance with Section 9.3 hereof. 

“Fixed Interest Rate Period” means with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds, the 
period of time during which such Series 2024 Bonds bear interest at a Fixed Interest Rate. 

“Fixed Rate Bond” or “Fixed Rate Bonds” means any Series 2024 Bonds after the Fixed 
Rate Conversion Date therefor. 

“Fixed Rate Conversion Date” means with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds, the 
date on which the interest rate on each of such Series 2024 Bonds converts to a Fixed Interest Rate. 

“Fund I” means the Veterans’ Housing Assistance Fund created by the former Article III, 
Section 49-b-1 of the Constitution of the State, and currently governed by the Constitutional 
Provision. 

“Fund II” means the Veterans’ Housing Assistance Fund II created by the former 
Article III, Section 49-b-2 of the Constitution of the State and currently governed by the 
Constitutional Provision, established pursuant to the resolution of the Board authorizing the 
issuance of the Series 1994A Bonds and confirmed and ratified by Section 4.1 of this Resolution. 



 -7- 
 

“Holder” means a Person in whose name a Series 2024 Bond is registered in the Bond 
Register. 

“Home Loan” or “Home Loans” means the home mortgage loans (including qualified 
home improvement loans) made by the Board pursuant to the Constitutional Provision and the Act. 

“Initial Purchaser” means the manager of the Underwriters relating to a series of 
Series 2024 Bonds. 

“Initial Series 2024 Bond” means with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds, the 
Series 2024 Bond registered by the Comptroller. 

“Interest Accrual Period” means with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds, the period 
from and including each Interest Payment Date to and excluding the next Interest Payment Date 
therefor; the initial Interest Accrual Period shall begin on (and include) the Settlement Date 
therefor and the final Interest Accrual Period shall end on the day next preceding the maturity date 
of such Series 2024 Bonds. 

“Interest Payment Date” means (i) with respect to any Weekly Interest Rate Period, (A) the 
first Business Day of each month, commencing on the first such day following the applicable 
Settlement Date, (B) for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds, the Fixed Rate Conversion Date therefor, 
if any, and (C) the maturity date of a series of Series 2024 Bonds; and (ii) with respect to any Fixed 
Interest Rate Period, each June 1 and December 1, commencing the June 1 or December 1 
immediately following the Fixed Rate Conversion Date by at least 30 days. 

“Interest Rate Period” means any Weekly Interest Rate Period or Fixed Interest Rate 
Period. 

“Liquidity Facility” means for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds, initially the documents 
described in the related Pricing Certificate or Purchase Contract, as the same may be amended or 
supplemented from time to time, and, upon the effectiveness of an Alternate Liquidity Facility, 
means such Alternate Liquidity Facility. 

“Liquidity Provider” means for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds, initially the Person 
designated in the related Pricing Certificate or Purchase Contract, and upon the effectiveness of an 
Alternate Liquidity Facility, means the bank or banks or other financial institution or financial 
institutions or other entity that is then a party to the Liquidity Facility.  In the case of any Alternate 
Liquidity Facility to which more than one bank, financial institution or other entity is a party, 
notices required by this Resolution to be given to the Liquidity Provider may be given to the bank 
or financial institution under such Liquidity Facility appointed to act as agent for all such banks or 
financial institutions. 

“Maximum Purchased Bond Rate” means for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds, the maximum 
interest rate for Purchased Bonds permitted under the Liquidity Facility therefor, but in no event 
to exceed the Ceiling Rate. 



 -8- 
 

“Outstanding” means, when used with reference to a Bond or Bonds and as of a particular 
date, such Bond or Bonds not canceled except a Bond or Bonds for the payment or redemption of 
which provision has been made. 

“Paying Agent” means with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds, the Comptroller 
unless otherwise set forth in the related Pricing Certificate or Purchase Contract, or any successor 
appointed by the Board pursuant to Section 5.2(a) hereof to perform the paying agent duties 
hereunder. 

“Person” means any individual, corporation, partnership, joint venture, association, joint 
stock company, trust, limited liability company, unincorporated organization or government or any 
agency or political subdivision thereof. 

“Pricing Certificate” means a certificate executed by an Authorized Representative setting 
forth certain provisions relating to a series of Series 2024 Bonds. 

“Prior Bonds” means the Bonds set forth in Exhibit D hereto. 

“Program” means the Veterans’ Housing Assistance Program established pursuant to the 
Act. 

“Purchase Account” means for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds, the account so designated 
and established pursuant to Section 9.8(b)(ii) hereof. 

“Purchase Contract” means with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds initially sold in a 
public offering, the bond purchase contract between the Board and the Underwriters, authorized 
under Section 2.8 hereof, regarding the sale of such Series 2024 Bonds. 

“Purchased Bond” or “Purchased Bonds” with respect to a series of Weekly Rate Bonds, 
has the meaning ascribed to such term in the Liquidity Facility therefor. 

“Purchased Bond Rate” with respect to a series of Weekly Rate Bonds, has the meaning 
ascribed to such term in the Liquidity Facility therefor. 

“Rating Agency” means with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds, initially, the 
statistical rating organization designated as such in the related Pricing Certificate or Purchase 
Contract or if such entity ceases to assign a rating to such Series 2024 Bonds, any substitute 
statistical rating organization so designated by the Board, which at the time has a credit rating 
assigned to such Series 2024 Bonds at the request of the Board. 

“Record Date” means (a) with respect to any Interest Payment Date in respect of any 
Weekly Interest Rate Period, the Business Day immediately preceding such Interest Payment Date, 
and (b) with respect to any Interest Payment Date in respect of any Fixed Interest Rate Period, the 
15th day of the month immediately preceding such Interest Payment Date or, in the event that an 
Interest Payment Date shall occur less than 15 days after the Fixed Rate Conversion Date, such 
date. 



 -9- 
 

“Refunded Bonds” means with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds, the Prior Bonds 
designated as such in the Pricing Certificate or Purchase Contract related to such Series 2024 
Bonds. 

“Registrar” means with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds, initially the Person 
designated as such in the Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate therefor, or any successor entity 
appointed by the Board pursuant to Section 5.2(a) hereof to perform the duties of registrar and 
transfer agent hereunder. 

“Remarketing Account” means with respect to a series of Weekly Rate Bonds, the account 
so designated and established pursuant to Section 9.8(b)(ii) hereof. 

“Remarketing Agent” means with respect to a series of Weekly Rate Bonds, initially the 
Person designated as such in the Pricing Certificate therefor, or any successor appointed pursuant 
to Section 9.9(a) hereof. 

“Remarketing Agreement” means with respect to a series of Weekly Rate Bonds, the 
Remarketing Agreement dated as of the Settlement Date therefor, between the Board and the 
Remarketing Agent therefor, as the same may be amended or supplemented from time to time, or 
any remarketing agreement entered into with a successor Remarketing Agent. 

“Resolution” means this resolution of the Board authorizing the issuance of the Series 2024 
Bonds. 

“Reverse Security Repurchase Agreement” means an agreement under which the Board 
sells and after a specified time buys back any of the securities, obligations, or participation 
certificates listed in paragraphs (1) through (4) of the definition of Direct Security Repurchase 
Agreement. 

“Series 1994A Bond” or “Series 1994A Bonds” means the State of Texas Veterans’ 
Housing Assistance Program, Fund II Series 1994A Bonds, initially dated October 1, 1994. 

“Series 2024 Bond” or “Series 2024 Bonds” means the State of Texas Veterans Bonds, 
Taxable Refunding Series 2024, authorized pursuant to this Resolution. 

“Settlement Date” means with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds, the date of initial 
delivery of such Series 2024 Bonds to the Initial Purchaser thereof. 

“SOFR” means the 30-calendar-day compounded average of the “Secured Overnight 
Financing Rate” as published on the website of the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, or any 
successor source for such rate identified as such by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York or any 
successor administrator of the Secured Overnight Financing Rate. 

“State” means the State of Texas. 

“Tender Agent” means with respect to a series of Weekly Rate Bonds, any Person acting 
as Tender Agent therefor pursuant to the terms of this Resolution. 



 -10- 
 

“Tender Agent Agreement” means if required with respect to a series of Weekly Rate 
Bonds, the agreement dated as of the Settlement Date therefor between the Board and the Tender 
Agent therefor, as the same may be amended or supplemented from time to time, or any similar 
agreement entered into with a successor Tender Agent. 

“Undelivered Bonds” means any Series 2024 Bond so designated in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 9.4(e) or Section 9.4(g)(ii) hereof. 

“Underwriters” means with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds initially sold in a 
public offering, the members of the underwriting syndicate therefor. 

“Veterans” has the meaning given such term in the Constitutional Provision. 

“Weekly Interest Rate” means a variable interest rate on Weekly Rate Bonds established 
in accordance with Section 9.2 hereof. 

“Weekly Interest Rate Period” means each period during which a Weekly Interest Rate is 
in effect. 

“Weekly Rate Bond” or “Weekly Rate Bonds” means Series 2024 Bonds subject to a 
Weekly Interest Rate Period. 

Section 1.2. Effect of Headings and Table of Contents.  The Article and Section headings herein 
and the Table of Contents are for convenience only and shall not affect the construction hereof. 

ARTICLE II 
 

AUTHORIZATION AND TERMS OF SERIES 2024 BONDS; 
ISSUANCE AND FORM OF SERIES 2024 BONDS 

Section 2.1. Authorization of Series 2024 Bonds.  To provide money for the purpose of 
augmenting Fund II, the Series 2024 Bonds are hereby authorized and shall be issued, in one or 
more series and installments, as general obligations of the State in the original aggregate principal 
amount not to exceed Two Hundred Million Dollars ($200,000,000), as determined by an 
Authorized Representative and set forth in a Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate, provided 
that the principal amount, plus any original issue premium, if any, of a series of Series 2024 Bonds 
shall not exceed the principal amount of the related Refunded Bonds.  The Series 2024 Bonds shall 
be entitled “STATE OF TEXAS VETERANS BONDS, TAXABLE REFUNDING 
SERIES 2024”; provided that unless the entire principal amount authorized for the Series 2024 
Bonds is issued in a single series or in the discretion of an Authorized Representative, the series 
designation for each separate series shall include a different capital letter after “2024,” as set forth 
in the related Pricing Certificate or Purchase Contract; and provided, further, that if a series of 
Series 2024 Bonds is issued after December 31, 2024, “2025” shall replace “2024” in the series 
designation of such series. 

Section 2.2. Form, Maturities, Interest Rates and Numbering. Each series of Series 2024 Bonds 
authorized hereby initially shall be dated as set forth in the related Pricing Certificate or Purchase 
Contract, and shall be issued and delivered in the form of fully registered bonds, without coupons, 



 -11- 
 

each payable to the Holder thereof, all in the manner hereinafter provided.  The principal of 
Series 2024 Bonds shall mature, subject to prior redemption, on the dates and in the amounts set 
forth in the related Pricing Certificate or Purchase Contract; provided, however, that (i) the 
aggregate principal amount of all installments and series of Series 2024 Bonds shall not exceed 
$200,000,000, (ii) the principal amount of a series of Series 2024 Bonds shall equal the principal 
amount of the related Refunded Bonds, (iii) the final maturity of a series of Series 2024 Bonds 
shall occur not later than the latest maturity of the related Refunded Bonds; and provided, further, 
that during any period in which ownership of a series of the Series 2024 Bonds is determined only 
by a book entry at a securities depository for such Series 2024 Bonds, payments made to the 
securities depository, or its nominee, shall be made in accordance with existing arrangements 
between the Board and the securities depository.  Weekly Rate Bonds shall bear interest at the 
Weekly Interest Rate therefor, provided that from and after the Fixed Rate Conversion Date, such 
Series 2024 Bonds shall bear interest at a Fixed Interest Rate.  Fixed Rate Bonds shall bear interest 
at the Fixed Interest Rate or Rates set forth in the related Pricing Certificate or Purchase Contract 
or as determined pursuant to Section 9.3(a) hereof.  Each series of Weekly Rate Bonds shall be 
numbered consecutively from WR-1 upward by the Registrar, and no two Weekly Rate Bonds of 
the same series shall be given the same number.  Each series of Fixed Rate Bonds shall be 
numbered consecutively from FR-1 upward by the Registrar, and no two Fixed Rate Bonds of the 
same series shall be given the same number.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Initial Series 2024 
Bond for any series of Series 2024 Bonds shall be numbered T-1.  Unless otherwise specified in 
the related Pricing Certificate or Purchase Contract, the Board shall cause CUSIP numbers to be 
assigned to, and reproduced on, the Series 2024 Bonds, but errors or omissions in the printing of 
such numbers shall have no effect on the validity of such Bonds. 

Section 2.3. Execution.  Each of the Series 2024 Bonds shall be executed by and on behalf of 
the Board as general obligations of the State with the manual or facsimile signatures of the 
Chairwoman of the Board and the Executive Secretary of the Board, and the manual or facsimile 
seal of the Board shall be placed thereon.  The facsimile signatures of the Chairwoman and 
Executive Secretary of the Board and the facsimile seal of the Board shall have the same effect as 
if each of said Bonds had been manually signed by such officers and said seal had been manually 
impressed on each such Bond.  Series 2024 Bonds bearing the manual or facsimile signatures of 
individuals who were at any time the proper officers of the Board shall bind the State and the 
Board, notwithstanding that such individuals or any of them have ceased to hold such offices prior 
to the authentication and delivery of such Bonds or did not hold such offices at the date of such 
Bonds. 

Section 2.4. Approval by Attorney General; Registration by Comptroller.  After any Initial 
Series 2024 Bonds shall have been executed, it shall be the duty of the Authorized Representatives 
to deliver such Series 2024 Bonds to the Attorney General for examination and approval, and after 
such Series 2024 Bonds shall have been approved by the Attorney General, they shall be delivered 
to the Comptroller for registration.  Series 2024 Bonds thus registered shall remain in the custody 
of the Chairwoman of the Board or subject to her order, until the delivery thereof to the Initial 
Purchaser thereof. 

Section 2.5. Form of Bond. The form of all Weekly Rate Bonds, including the forms of (i) 
Comptroller’s Registration Certificate to accompany each Initial Series 2024 Bond that is a 
Weekly Rate Bond, (ii) Registrar’s Authentication Certificate, and (iii) Assignment, shall be, 



 -12- 
 

respectively, substantially as set forth in Exhibit A hereto, with such appropriate variations, 
omissions, or insertions as are permitted or required by this Resolution.  The form of all Fixed 
Rate Bonds, including the forms of (i) Comptroller’s Registration Certificate to accompany each 
Initial Series 2024 Bond that is a Fixed Rate Bond, (ii) Registrar’s Authentication Certificate, and 
(iii) Assignment, shall be, respectively, substantially as set forth in Exhibit B hereto, with such 
appropriate variations, omissions, or insertions as are permitted or required by this Resolution or 
set forth in a Pricing Certificate.  At the direction of an Authorized Representative, a portion of 
the text of Series 2024 Bonds may be printed on the back of the bond certificates, in which event 
the following phrase shall be inserted in the place where such text would otherwise appear: 
“Reference is hereby made to the further provisions of this Bond set forth on the reverse side hereof 
and such further provisions shall for all purposes have the same effect as if set forth at this place.” 

Section 2.6. Registration, Transfer and Exchange.  (a)  With respect to each series of Series 2024 
Bonds, the Board shall keep or cause to be kept at the designated corporate trust office of the 
Person named in the related Pricing Certificate or Purchase Contract, or at the designated office of 
any other banking institution named in accordance with the provisions of Section 5.2(a) hereof (in 
any event, a “Registrar”), books or records of the registration and transfer of such Series 2024 
Bonds (each, a “Bond Register”), and each Registrar shall act as registrar and transfer agent to 
keep such Bond Register and make such transfers and registrations under such reasonable 
regulations as the Board may prescribe, and to convert and exchange or replace the applicable 
Series 2024 Bonds; and the Registrar shall make such transfers and registrations as herein 
provided.  It shall be the duty of a Registrar to obtain from the Holder of each applicable 
Series 2024 Bond and record in the related Bond Register the address of such Holder to which 
payments with respect to the applicable Series 2024 Bonds shall be mailed, as herein provided.  
Each Registrar shall keep the related Bond Register confidential and, unless otherwise required by 
law, shall not permit their inspection by any entity other than the Board or its designee, which shall 
have the right to inspect such Bond Register during regular business hours of such Registrar.  
Registration of each Series 2024 Bond may be transferred in the applicable Bond Register only 
upon presentation and surrender of such Series 2024 Bond to the applicable Registrar for transfer 
of registration and cancellation, together with proper written instruments of assignment, in form 
and with guarantee of signatures satisfactory to such Registrar, evidencing the assignment of such 
Series 2024 Bond, or any portion thereof in any Authorized Denomination, to the assignee or 
assignees thereof, and the right of such assignee or assignees to have such Series 2024 Bond or 
any such portion thereof registered in the name of such assignee or assignees.  Upon the assignment 
and transfer of any Series 2024 Bond or any portion thereof, a new substitute Series 2024 Bond or 
Series 2024 Bonds of the same series and maturity shall be issued in conversion and exchange 
therefor in the manner herein provided. 

(b) The entity in whose name any Series 2024 Bond shall be registered in the related Bond 
Register at any time shall be treated as the absolute owner thereof for all purposes of this 
Resolution, whether or not such Series 2024 Bond shall be overdue, and the Board and the 
applicable Paying Agent and Registrar shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary; and 
payment of, or on account of, the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on any such 
Series 2024 Bond shall be made only to such Holder.  All such payments shall be valid and 
effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Series 2024 Bond to the extent of the sum 
or sums so paid. 



 -13- 
 

(c) Unless otherwise set forth in a Pricing Certificate or Purchase Contract, the Board hereby 
appoints the Comptroller in Austin, Texas, or any banking institution named in accordance with 
the provisions of Section 5.2(a) hereof (in either case, the “Paying Agent”), to act as the paying 
agent for paying the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Series 2024 Bonds, all 
as provided in this Resolution.  Each Paying Agent shall keep proper records of all payments made 
by the Board and such Paying Agent with respect to the applicable Series 2024 Bonds, as provided 
in this Resolution.  For any Series 2024 Bond that has a CUSIP number, the applicable Paying 
Agent shall provide the CUSIP number for such Series 2024 Bond with each payment of interest 
on and the principal or the redemption price of such Series 2024 Bond, specifying the amount paid 
in respect of such CUSIP number. 

(d) Each Series 2024 Bond may be converted into and exchanged for fully registered bonds in 
the manner set forth herein.  Each Series 2024 Bond may, upon surrender thereof to the applicable 
Registrar, together with a written request therefor duly executed by the Holder or the assignee or 
assignees thereof, or its or their duly authorized attorneys or representatives, with guarantee of 
signatures satisfactory to the Registrar, at the option of the Holder or such assignee or assignees, 
as appropriate, be converted into and exchanged for a substitute Series 2024 Bond or Series 2024 
Bonds having the same series, maturity date, bearing interest at the same rate and in any Authorized 
Denomination which may be requested in writing by such Holder or such assignee or assignees, 
in an aggregate principal amount equal to the principal amount of the Series 2024 Bond or 
Series 2024 Bonds so surrendered, and payable to the appropriate Holder, assignee, or assignees, 
as the case may be.  If only a portion of any Series 2024 Bond shall be redeemed prior to its 
scheduled maturity as provided herein, a substitute Series 2024 Bond or Series 2024 Bonds having 
the same series, maturity date, bearing interest at the same rate, in any Authorized Denomination 
at the request of the Holder, and in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion 
thereof, will be issued to the Holder upon surrender thereof for cancellation.  If any Series 2024 
Bond or portion thereof is assigned and transferred or converted, each Series 2024 Bond issued in 
exchange therefor shall have the same series, principal maturity date and bear interest at the same 
rate as the Series 2024 Bond for which it is being exchanged.  Each substitute Series 2024 Bond 
shall bear a number to distinguish it from each other Series 2024 Bond.  Each Registrar shall 
convert and exchange or replace Series 2024 Bonds as provided herein, and each fully registered 
bond delivered in conversion of and exchange for or replacement of any Series 2024 Bond or 
portion thereof as permitted or required by any provision of this Resolution shall constitute one of 
the Series 2024 Bonds for all purposes of this Resolution, and may again be converted and 
exchanged or replaced.  It is specifically provided, however, that any Series 2024 Bond delivered 
in conversion of and exchange for or replacement of another Series 2024 Bond prior to the first 
scheduled Interest Payment Date of the related series of Series 2024 Bonds shall be dated the same 
date as such Series 2024 Bond, but each substitute Series 2024 Bond so delivered on or after such 
first scheduled Interest Payment Date shall be dated as of the Interest Payment Date preceding the 
date on which such substitute Series 2024 Bond is delivered, unless such Series 2024 Bond is 
delivered on an Interest Payment Date therefor, in which case it shall be dated as of such date of 
delivery; provided, however, that if at the time of delivery of any substitute Series 2024 Bond the 
interest on the Series 2024 Bond for which it is being exchanged has not been paid, then such 
Series 2024 Bond shall be dated as of the date to which such interest has been paid in full; and 
provided, further, that any Series 2024 Bond issued in exchange for an Initial Series 2024 Bond 
shall be dated the date specified in the related Pricing Certificate or Purchase Contract.  On each 
substitute Series 2024 Bond issued in conversion of and exchange for or replacement of any 



 -14- 
 

Series 2024 Bond or Series 2024 Bonds there shall be printed a Registrar’s Authentication 
Certificate, in the form hereinafter set forth.  An authorized representative of the applicable 
Registrar shall, before the delivery of any such Series 2024 Bond, date such Series 2024 Bond in 
the manner set forth above, and manually sign and date the Registrar’s Authentication Certificate, 
and no such Series 2024 Bond shall be deemed to be issued or Outstanding unless such Registrar’s 
Authentication Certificate is so executed and dated.  Each Registrar promptly shall cancel all 
applicable Series 2024 Bonds surrendered for transfer, conversion and exchange or replacement.  
No additional orders or resolutions need be passed or adopted by the Board or any other body or 
Person so as to accomplish the foregoing conversion and exchange or replacement of any 
Series 2024 Bond or portion thereof, and each Registrar shall provide for the execution and 
delivery of substitute Series 2024 Bonds in the manner prescribed herein.  Pursuant to Chapter 
1201, and particularly Sections 1201.061 through 1201.063 and 1201.067 thereof, the duty of 
conversion and exchange or replacement of Series 2024 Bonds as aforesaid is hereby imposed 
upon the related Registrar, and, upon the execution and dating of the above described Registrar’s 
Authentication Certificate, the transferred, converted and exchanged or replaced Series 2024 Bond 
shall be valid, incontestable, and enforceable in the same manner and with the same effect as the 
Series 2024 Bonds which originally were delivered pursuant to this Resolution, approved by the 
Attorney General, and registered by the Comptroller.  Except in the case of tenders of Weekly Rate 
Bonds pursuant to Section 9.4 hereof or of the remarketing of Purchased Bonds, neither the Board 
nor any Registrar shall be required (i) to issue, transfer, replace or exchange any Series 2024 Bond 
subject to redemption in whole or in part during a period beginning at the opening of business 30 
days before the day of the first mailing of a notice of redemption of such series of Series 2024 
Bonds and ending at the close of business on the day of such mailing, or (ii) to replace, transfer or 
exchange any Series 2024 Bond so selected for redemption, in whole or in part, when such 
redemption is scheduled to occur within 30 calendar days; except that at the option of the Holder 
of at least $1,000,000 in principal amount of a series of Series 2024 Bonds, the applicable Registrar 
shall be required to transfer or exchange any such Series 2024 Bond of such Holder which has 
been selected, in whole or in part, for redemption upon surrender thereof.  A Registrar may make 
such arrangements as it deems appropriate for notation on each new Series 2024 Bond issued in 
exchange for or upon the transfer of the Series 2024 Bond so selected for redemption of an 
appropriate legend to the effect that such new Series 2024 Bond has been so selected for 
redemption. 

(e) All Series 2024 Bonds issued in conversion and exchange or replacement of any other 
Series 2024 Bond or portion thereof, (i) shall be issued in fully registered form, without interest 
coupons, with the principal of and interest on such Series 2024 Bonds to be payable only to the 
Holders thereof, (ii) may be redeemed prior to their scheduled maturities, (iii) may be transferred 
and assigned, (iv) may be converted and exchanged for other Series 2024 Bonds, (v) shall have 
the characteristics, (vi) shall be signed and sealed, (vii) shall be authenticated, and (viii) shall 
provide that the principal of and interest on such Series 2024 Bonds shall be payable, all as 
provided, and in the manner required or indicated, in this Resolution. 

(f) The Board shall pay each Registrar’s reasonable and standard or customary fees and 
charges for making transfers of Series 2024 Bonds, but the Holder of any related Series 2024 Bond 
requesting such transfer shall pay any taxes or other governmental charges required to be paid with 
respect thereto.  The Holder of any Series 2024 Bond requesting any conversion and exchange 
shall pay the applicable Registrar’s reasonable and standard or customary fees and charges for 



 -15- 
 

converting and exchanging any Series 2024 Bond or portion thereof, together with any taxes or 
governmental charges required to be paid with respect thereto, all as a condition precedent to the 
exercise of such privilege of conversion and exchange; except, however, that in the case of the 
conversion and exchange of an assigned and transferred Series 2024 Bond or Series 2024 Bonds 
or any portion or portions thereof in any Authorized Denomination, and in the case of the 
conversion and exchange of a portion of the unredeemed portion of a Series 2024 Bond that has 
been redeemed in part prior to maturity, as provided in this Resolution, such fees and charges will 
be paid by the Board. 

Section 2.7. Damaged and Missing Bonds.  (a)  In the event any Outstanding Series 2024 Bond 
is damaged, mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed, the applicable Registrar shall cause to be printed, 
executed, authenticated and delivered, a new Series 2024 Bond of the same series, principal 
amount, maturity, and interest rate, as the damaged, mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed Bond, in 
replacement for such Series 2024 Bond in the manner hereinafter provided. 

(b) Application for replacement of a damaged, mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed Series 2024 
Bond shall be made by the Holder thereof to the applicable Registrar.  In every case of loss, theft, 
or destruction of a Series 2024 Bond, the Holder applying for a replacement Series 2024 Bond 
shall furnish to the Board and to the applicable Registrar such security or indemnity as may be 
required by them to save each of them harmless from any loss or damage with respect thereto.  
Also, in every case of loss, theft, or destruction of a Series 2024 Bond, the Holder shall furnish to 
the Board and to the applicable Registrar evidence to their satisfaction of the loss, theft, or 
destruction of such Series 2024 Bond, as the case may be.  In every case of damage or mutilation 
of a Series 2024 Bond, the Holder shall surrender to the applicable Registrar for cancellation the 
Series 2024 Bond so damaged or mutilated. 

(c) Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section, in the event any such Series 2024 
Bond shall have matured, and no default has occurred which is then continuing in the payment of 
the principal of and premium, if any, or interest on the Series 2024 Bond, the Board may authorize 
the payment of the same (without surrender thereof except in the case of a damaged or mutilated 
Bond) instead of issuing a replacement Series 2024 Bond, provided security or indemnity is 
furnished as provided above in this Section. 

(d) Prior to the issuance of any replacement Series 2024 Bond pursuant to the provisions of 
this Section, the applicable Registrar shall charge the Holder of such Series 2024 Bond with all 
legal, printing, and other expenses in connection therewith.  Every replacement Series 2024 Bond 
issued pursuant to the provisions of this Section by virtue of the fact that any Series 2024 Bond is 
lost, stolen, or destroyed shall constitute a contractual obligation of the Board whether or not the 
lost, stolen, or destroyed Series 2024 Bond shall be found at any time, or be enforceable by anyone, 
and shall be entitled to all the benefits of this Resolution equally and proportionately with any and 
all other Series 2024 Bonds duly issued under this Resolution. 

(e) In accordance with Section 1201.062 of Chapter 1201, this Section shall constitute 
authority for the issuance of any such replacement Series 2024 Bond without the necessity of 
further action by the Board or any other body or Person, and the duty of the replacement of such 
Series 2024 Bond is hereby authorized and imposed upon the applicable Registrar, and such 
Registrar shall authenticate and deliver such replacement Series 2024 Bonds in the form and 



 -16- 
 

manner and with the effect, as provided in Section 2.6(d) of this Resolution for Series 2024 Bonds 
issued in conversion and exchange for other Series 2024 Bonds. 

Section 2.8. Sale and Delivery of Series 2024 Bonds.  The Series 2024 Bonds may be sold 
publicly or privately on a negotiated basis, as determined by the Authorized Representatives to 
assure that the Series 2024 Bonds are sold on advantageous terms.  Pursuant to Chapter 1371, the 
Authorized Representatives are hereby severally authorized and directed to act for and on behalf 
of the Board in connection with other matters relating to the issuance of the Series 2024 Bonds.  
In such capacity, the Authorized Representatives, acting for and on behalf of the Board, shall 
determine the date of issuance and sale of each series of the Series 2024 Bonds, and are also hereby 
severally authorized and directed to approve, execute and deliver the related Purchase Contract or 
Pricing Certificate, and to approve the principal amounts and maturities of such Series 2024 Bonds 
and whether such Series 2024 Bonds shall be issued initially as Fixed Rate Bonds or Weekly Rate 
Bonds, the redemption provisions and such other terms applicable to such Series 2024 Bonds, the 
Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate to be approved by the Authorized Representative 
executing the Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate, such approval to be conclusively evidenced 
by such Authorized Representative’s execution thereof; provided that (i) the final maturity and 
aggregate principal amount of such Series 2024 Bonds shall comply with Section 2.2 hereof, and 
(ii) the interest rate on such Series 2024 Bonds shall not exceed the Ceiling Rate, subject to the 
unqualified approving opinion as to the legality of such Series 2024 Bonds of the Attorney General 
and of Bond Counsel.  The Authorized Representatives and all other officers, agents and 
representatives of the Board are hereby authorized to do any and all other things necessary or 
desirable to satisfy the conditions set out in the Purchase Contract or otherwise required by the 
Initial Purchaser and to provide for the issuance and delivery of Series 2024 Bonds.  One definitive 
Series 2024 Bond for each series and maturity date, in the principal amount for such series and 
maturity date as set forth in the related Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate, shall be delivered 
to or as directed by the Initial Purchaser thereof. 

Section 2.9. Preliminary Official Statement and Official Statement.  For any Series 2024 Bonds 
to be sold initially in a public offering, prior to the execution of the Purchase Contract, the 
Chairwoman of the Board, acting for and on behalf of the Board, (i) if requested by the Initial 
Purchaser thereof, shall cause a preliminary official statement (the “Preliminary Official 
Statement”) to be prepared for distribution by the Underwriters to prospective purchasers of such 
Series 2024 Bonds, such document to be in the form as an Authorized Representative may deem 
necessary or appropriate, and each Authorized Representative is hereby authorized for and on 
behalf of the Board to approve and deem final the Preliminary Official Statement as of its date, 
except for such omissions as are permitted by the Rule (as defined in Section 8.1 hereof); within 
seven business days after the execution of the related Purchase Contract, the Chairwoman of the 
Board, acting for and on behalf of the Board, shall cause the final Official Statement, in 
substantially the form of the Preliminary Official Statement, with such changes as the Chairwoman 
of the Board may approve, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by her execution thereof, 
to be provided to the Underwriters in compliance with the Rule, or (ii) if such Initial Purchaser 
does not request a Preliminary Official Statement, the Chairwoman of the Board, acting for and 
on behalf of the Board, shall cause an official statement to be prepared for distribution by the 
Underwriters to prospective purchasers of such Series 2024 Bonds, such document to be in the 
form as an Authorized Representative may deem necessary or appropriate. 



 -17- 
 

Section 2.10. Book-Entry System.  As provided in Section 2.8 of this Resolution, each series of 
Series 2024 Bonds initially shall be delivered against payment to the Initial Purchaser thereof.  The 
Series 2024 Bonds so delivered to such Initial Purchaser shall be registered in accordance with the 
instructions of such Initial Purchaser.  Each Initial Purchaser shall be required to promptly 
surrender any Initial Series 2024 Bond received by such Initial Purchaser for exchange.  
Series 2024 Bonds issued in exchange shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee 
of DTC, as Holder, and held in the custody or on behalf of DTC.  Unless otherwise requested by 
DTC, a single certificate will be issued and delivered to DTC or its designee for each series and 
maturity and of the Series 2024 Bonds.  Beneficial owners of Series 2024 Bonds will not receive 
physical delivery of Series 2024 Bond certificates except as provided hereinafter.  For so long as 
DTC shall continue to serve as securities depository for the Series 2024 Bonds as provided herein, 
all transfers of beneficial ownership interests therein will be made by book entry only, and no 
investor or other party purchasing, selling or otherwise transferring beneficial ownership of 
Series 2024 Bonds is to receive, hold or deliver any Series 2024 Bond certificate. 

With respect to Series 2024 Bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of 
DTC, none of the Board or the applicable Paying Agent or Registrar shall have any responsibility 
or obligation to any DTC Participant or to any Person on whose behalf a DTC Participant holds an 
interest in the Series 2024 Bonds.  Without limiting the immediately preceding sentence, none of 
the Board or any Paying Agent or Registrar shall have any responsibility or obligation with respect 
to (i) the accuracy of the records of DTC, Cede & Co. or any DTC Participant with respect to any 
ownership interest in the Series 2024 Bonds, (ii) the delivery to any DTC Participant or any other 
Person, other than a Holder, as shown on the Bond Register, of any notice with respect to the 
Series 2024 Bonds, including any notice of redemption, and (iii) the payment to any DTC 
Participant or any other Person, other than a Holder, of any amount with respect to principal of 
and premium, if any, or interest on the Series 2024 Bonds. 

Replacement Series 2024 Bonds may be issued directly to beneficial owners of Series 2024 
Bonds other than DTC, or its nominee, but only in the event that (i) DTC determines not to continue 
to act as securities depository for the Series 2024 Bonds (which determination shall become 
effective no less than 90 days after written notice to such effect to the Board and the applicable 
Paying Agent and Registrar), or (ii) the Board has advised DTC of its determination (which 
determination is conclusive as to DTC and the beneficial owners of the Series 2024 Bonds) that 
DTC is incapable of discharging its duties as securities depository for the Series 2024 Bonds, or 
(iii) the Board has determined (which determination is conclusive as to DTC and the beneficial 
owners of the Series 2024 Bonds) that the interests of the beneficial owners of the Series 2024 
Bonds might be adversely affected if such book entry only system of transfer is continued.  Upon 
occurrence of any event described in (i) or (ii) above, the Board shall use its best efforts to attempt 
to locate another qualified securities depository.  If the Board fails to locate another qualified 
securities depository to replace DTC, the Board shall cause to be executed, authenticated and 
delivered replacement Series 2024 Bonds, in certificated form, to the DTC Participants having an 
interest in the Series 2024 Bonds as shown on the records of DTC provided by DTC to the Board.  
In the event that the Board makes the determination noted in (iii) above and has made provisions 
to notify the beneficial owners of the Series 2024 Bonds of such determination by mailing an 
appropriate notice to DTC, it shall cause to be issued replacement Series 2024 Bonds in certificated 
form to the DTC Participants having an interest in the Series 2024 Bonds as shown on the records 
of DTC provided by DTC to the Board.  The Board undertakes no obligation to make any 



 -18- 
 

investigation to determine the occurrence of any events that would permit the Board to make any 
determination described in (ii) or (iii) above. 

Whenever, during the term of the Series 2024 Bonds, the beneficial ownership thereof is 
determined by a book entry at DTC (or any successor securities depository), the requirements in 
this Resolution of holding, registering, delivering, exchanging or transferring Series 2024 Bonds 
shall be deemed modified to require the appropriate Person to meet the requirements of DTC (or 
such successor securities depository) as to holding, registering, delivering, exchanging or 
transferring the book entry to produce the same effect. 

Whenever, during the term of the Weekly Rate Bonds, the beneficial ownership thereof is 
determined by a book entry at DTC (or any successor securities depository), tenders of Weekly 
Rate Bonds shall be made pursuant to DTC’s (or any successor securities depository’s) deliver 
order procedures or repayment option procedures, as applicable, as are in effect from time to time.  
Upon remarketing of Weekly Rate Bonds, payment of the Purchase Price thereof shall be made to 
DTC (or any successor securities depository), and no surrender of Weekly Rate Bonds is required.  
Such sales shall be made through the DTC Participants (which may include the Remarketing 
Agent) to the new beneficial owners of such Weekly Rate Bonds, and the DTC Participants shall 
transmit payment to beneficial owners whose Weekly Rate Bonds were purchased pursuant to a 
remarketing.  The Board and each Registrar, Paying Agent, Tender Agent, Liquidity Provider and 
Remarketing Agent are not responsible for transfer of payment to the DTC Participants or 
beneficial owners. 

If at any time DTC ceases to hold the Series 2024 Bonds, all references herein to DTC shall 
be of no further force or effect. 

Anything to the contrary contained herein notwithstanding, this Section 2.10 shall not 
apply to a series of the Series 2024 Bonds if so provided in a Pricing Certificate. 

ARTICLE III 
 

REDEMPTION OF SERIES 2024 BONDS 

Section 3.1. Redemption.  (a)  Series 2024 Bonds (including Purchased Bonds) shall be subject 
to scheduled mandatory sinking fund redemption and shall be redeemed on the dates and in the 
respective principal amounts set forth in the related Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate, at a 
redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof, without premium, plus accrued interest to 
the date fixed for redemption.  The principal amount of Series 2024 Bonds to be redeemed on each 
such redemption date pursuant to mandatory sinking fund redemption shall be reduced, at the 
option of the Board, by the principal amount of any Series 2024 Bonds of the same series and 
having the same stated maturity which (A) at least 45 days prior to such mandatory sinking fund 
redemption date, (1) shall have been acquired by the Board and delivered to the applicable 
Registrar for cancellation, or (2) shall have been acquired and canceled by such Registrar at the 
direction of the Board, or (3) shall have been redeemed pursuant to any redemption provision set 
forth below and (B) shall have not been previously credited against a scheduled mandatory sinking 
fund redemption. 



 -19- 
 

(b) The Weekly Rate Bonds (including Purchased Bonds) shall be subject to redemption prior 
to maturity on the first Business Day of any month, at the option and direction of the Board, in 
whole or in part, at a redemption price of par plus accrued interest.  In the case of any such 
redemption, the Board shall select the maturity or maturities of the Weekly Rate Bonds to be 
redeemed and the amounts thereof in Authorized Denominations. 

(c) Any series of Series 2024 Bonds issued as other than Weekly Rate Bonds shall be subject 
to redemption prior to maturity, at the option and direction of the Board, during the periods and at 
the redemption prices set forth in the related Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate, plus accrued 
interest to the date fixed for redemption 

(d) Converted Fixed Rate Bonds shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option 
and direction of the Board, during the periods specified by an Authorized Representative, in whole 
at any time or in part from time to time, at the redemption prices (expressed as a percentage of 
principal amount) determined by such Authorized Representative, plus accrued interest, if any, to 
the redemption date.  In the case of any such redemption, the Board shall select the maturity or 
maturities of the Fixed Rate Bonds to be redeemed and the amounts thereof in Authorized 
Denominations. 

(e) In the case of any redemption of less than all of the Series 2024 Bonds of a particular series 
and maturity, the particular Series 2024 Bonds within each such series and maturity to be redeemed 
shall be selected by the applicable Registrar by lot in such manner as such Registrar shall deem 
fair and appropriate; provided that during any period in which ownership of such Series 2024 
Bonds is determined only by a book entry at a securities depository, if less than the entire principal 
amount Outstanding of all Series 2024 Bonds of the same series and maturity is to be redeemed, 
the interests to be redeemed of the beneficial owners of such Series 2024 Bonds shall be selected 
in accordance with the arrangements between the Board and the securities depository. 

(f) Anything in this Section 3.1 to the contrary notwithstanding, in the event of any (i) optional 
redemption of Weekly Rate Bonds, Purchased Bonds of the same series shall be selected first for 
such redemption to the extent there are any such Purchased Bonds, provided that the Board may 
select the maturity or maturities of Purchased Bonds to be so redeemed and the amounts thereof 
in Authorized Denominations, and (ii) mandatory sinking fund redemption of Weekly Rate Bonds, 
Purchased Bonds of the same series and maturity being redeemed shall be selected first for such 
redemption to the extent there are any such Purchased Bonds. 

Section 3.2. Notice of Redemption.  At least 30 days prior to the date fixed for any redemption 
of Series 2024 Bonds, a written notice of such redemption shall be sent by first class mail, postage 
prepaid by the Registrar to the Holders of the applicable series of Series 2024 Bonds to be 
redeemed on such date.  All notices of redemption shall state:  (1) the date of redemption and 
general mailing of such notices; (2) the redemption price; (3) the identification (including complete 
official name and series designation and issue date), the CUSIP number, if any, certificate number 
(and in the case of partial redemption, the respective principal amounts), interest rates and maturity 
dates of the Series 2024 Bonds to be redeemed; (4) that on the redemption date the redemption 
price will become due and payable on each such Series 2024 Bond, and that interest thereon shall 
cease to accrue from and after such date; and (5) the name and address of the applicable Paying 
Agent, including the name and telephone number of a contact person and the place where such 



 -20- 
 

Series 2024 Bonds are to be surrendered for payment of the redemption price.  By the date fixed 
for any such redemption, due provision shall be made by the Board with the applicable Paying 
Agent for the payment of the required redemption price for such Series 2024 Bonds or the portions 
thereof which are to be so redeemed.  If such written notice of redemption is given, and if due 
provision for such payment is made, all as provided above, such Series 2024 Bonds, or the portions 
thereof which are to be so redeemed, thereby automatically shall be redeemed prior to their 
scheduled maturities, and shall not bear interest after the date fixed for their redemption, and shall 
not be regarded as being Outstanding except for the right of the Holders thereof to receive the 
redemption price therefor from the applicable Paying Agent out of the funds provided for such 
payment.  The applicable Registrar shall record in the related Bond Register all such redemptions 
of principal of the Series 2024 Bonds or any portion thereof.  If only a portion of any Series 2024 
Bond shall be redeemed, a substitute Series 2024 Bond or Series 2024 Bonds, having the same 
series and maturity date, bearing interest at the same rate, in any Authorized Denomination which 
may be requested by the Holder thereof, and in an aggregate principal amount equal to the 
unredeemed portion thereof, will be issued to the Holder thereof upon the surrender thereof for 
cancellation, at the expense of the Board, all as provided in this Resolution.  For all purposes of 
this Resolution, unless the context otherwise requires, all provisions relating to the redemption of 
Series 2024 Bonds shall relate, in the case of any Series 2024 Bond redeemed or to be redeemed 
only in part, to the portion of the principal of such Series 2024 Bond that has been or is to be 
redeemed. 

In addition to the notice of redemption required above, the applicable Registrar shall send 
notice of redemption by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, or 
by overnight delivery service contemporaneously with such mailing:  (1) to any Holder of 
$1,000,000 or more in principal amount of the applicable series of Series 2024 Bonds; (2) to two 
or more information services of national recognition that disseminate redemption information with 
respect to municipal bonds; and (3) to any securities depository that is a Holder of such Series 2024 
Bonds.  In addition, in the event of a redemption caused by an advance refunding of Series 2024 
Bonds, the applicable Registrar shall send a second notice of redemption to all Holders of such 
Series 2024 Bonds at least thirty (30) days but not more than ninety (90) days prior to the actual 
redemption date.  Any notice required to be sent to any registered securities depositories or national 
information services shall be sent so that it is received at least two (2) days prior to the general 
mailing date of such notice.  A Registrar shall also send a notice of redemption to the Holder of 
any applicable Series 2024 Bond called for redemption who has not sent such Series 2024 Bond 
in for redemption sixty (60) days after the redemption date. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the failure to give any notice of redemption set forth in this 
Section or any defect in such notice or the mailing thereof shall not affect the validity of any 
proceedings for redemption of Series 2024 Bonds. 

ARTICLE IV 
 

FUNDS AND INVESTMENTS 

Section 4.1. Establishment of Fund II.  The Comptroller (as successor to the Treasurer of the 
State) has established in the State Treasury the “Veterans’ Housing Assistance Fund II,” referred 



 -21- 
 

to herein as “Fund II.”  The Board hereby confirms and ratifies the establishment of Fund II and 
agrees to maintain Fund II until all Bonds have been paid in full. 

Section 4.2. Deposits to Fund II.  Fund II is and shall be comprised of, and where feasible it is 
the duty of the Board, and the officers of the Board are hereby authorized and directed, to deposit 
into Fund II, the following: 

(i) any interest of the Board in Home Loans made from money in Fund II pursuant to the 
Program including proceeds of any insurance thereon or on the homes; 

(ii) the proceeds derived from the sale or other disposition of the Board’s interest in Home 
Loans; 

(iii) the money attributable to any Bonds (except Expenses Attributable to Bonds) issued and 
sold by the Board to provide money for Fund II which shall include, but shall not be limited to, 
the proceeds from the issuance and sale of such Bonds; 

(iv) income, rents, and any other pecuniary benefit received by the Board as a result of making 
Home Loans; 

(v) sums received by way of indemnity or forfeiture for the failure of any bidder for the 
purchase of any Bonds to comply with the person’s bid and accept and pay for such Bonds; 

(vi) payments received by the Board under bond enhancement agreements with respect to the 
Bonds; 

(vii) interest received from investments of any such money; and 

(viii) any equitable interest of the Board in properties encumbered by Home Loans and 
attributable to Fund II. 

The Board may deposit other moneys to the credit of Fund II, including moneys transferred 
by the Board from the Veterans’ Land Fund and Fund I, which are eligible under the Constitution 
and applicable laws of the State for such deposit or transfer. 

Section 4.3. Home Loans.  (a)  Money in Fund II, including the proceeds from the sale of Bonds, 
may be used by the Board in the making of Home Loans as provided in the Act, the payment of 
Expenses Attributable to Home Loans and Expenses Attributable to Bonds, and, as herein 
provided, the payment of the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds, including 
payments by the Board under bond enhancement agreements with respect to principal of or interest 
on the Bonds; provided, that the language of this paragraph shall not be construed to prevent the 
investment of the moneys in Fund II when permitted by the Constitutional Provision or the Act. 

(b) The Board will fix interest rates to be charged Veterans receiving Home Loans from the 
Board which will assure that the proceeds from payments and repayments of Home Loans, together 
with other legally available moneys, including, without limitation, anticipated transfers from the 
Veterans’ Land Fund or Fund I, will exceed the amount of payments the Board is required to make 
from Fund II for the payment of interest on and principal of the Bonds as such come due and 



 -22- 
 

mature, including payments by the Board under bond enhancement agreements with respect to 
principal of or interest on the Bonds, and to the extent permitted by the Constitution and applicable 
laws of the State, the Board covenants to transfer such amounts from the Veterans’ Land Fund and 
Fund I as are necessary to cause available amounts in Fund II to be sufficient for such payment. 

Section 4.4. Source of Payment.  (a)  The principal of and interest on the Series 2024 Bonds, 
including payments by the Board under bond enhancement agreements with respect to principal 
of or interest on the Series 2024 Bonds, shall be and are hereby made general obligations of the 
State pursuant to the Constitutional Provision, and for the faithful performance in proper time and 
manner of each official or other act required and necessary to provide for the prompt payment of 
principal of and interest on each of the Series 2024 Bonds, including payments by the Board under 
bond enhancement agreements with respect to principal of or interest on the Series 2024 Bonds, 
when due the resources of the Board to the extent herein provided and the full faith and credit of 
the State are hereby pledged. 

(b) All payments of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, including payments by the 
Board under bond enhancement agreements with respect to principal of or interest on the Bonds, 
shall be made from Fund II; provided, that if the Legislature of the State shall later provide 
additional sources from which the principal of or the interest on the Bonds, including payments by 
the Board under bond enhancement agreements with respect to principal of or interest on the 
Bonds, may be paid, the Board, its officers, the Comptroller and all other officers and employees 
of the State are hereby authorized and requested, and, to the extent that they are under the 
jurisdiction of this Board, directed to take all steps necessary to accomplish the use of such 
additional funds for such purpose, without releasing the continuing right of the Holders to the 
present sources prescribed by the Constitutional Provision and the Act for the payment of such 
principal and interest. 

(c) The Board recognizes the absolute and ultimate obligation of the State to provide during 
each Fiscal Year all moneys necessary to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds, including 
money to make payments by the Board under bond enhancement agreements with respect to 
principal of or interest on the Bonds, and recognizes that the Constitutional Provision provides that 
to the extent there is not money in Fund II available for payment of principal of and interest on the 
Bonds, including money to make payments by the Board under bond enhancement agreements 
with respect to principal of or interest on the Bonds, “there is appropriated out of the first money 
coming into the treasury in each fiscal year, not otherwise appropriated by this constitution, an 
amount that is sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the general obligation bonds that 
mature or come due during that fiscal year or to make bond enhancement payments with respect 
to those bonds.” 

Section 4.5. Other Uses of Fund II Moneys.  (a)  The Constitutional Provision provides that 
receipts of all kinds of Fund II determined by the Board not to be required for the payment of 
principal of and interest on Bonds or other general obligation bonds hereafter authorized by the 
Constitution of the State to provide money for Fund II, including payments by the Board under 
bond enhancement agreements with respect to principal of or interest on Bonds and such other 
general obligation bonds, may be used by the Board, to the extent not inconsistent with the 
proceedings authorizing such bonds, to (1) make temporary transfers to either the Veterans’ Land 
Fund or Fund I to avoid a temporary cash deficiency in that fund or make a transfer to either of 



 -23- 
 

those funds for the purposes of that fund; (2) pay the principal of and interest on general obligation 
bonds issued to provide money for either the Veterans’ Land Fund or Fund I or make bond 
enhancement payments with respect to such bonds; or (3) pay the principal of and interest on 
revenue bonds of the Board or make bond enhancement payments with respect to such bonds.  In 
accordance with the Constitutional Provision, the Board reserves the right to use the moneys in 
Fund II for such purposes, or for any other purpose from time to time authorized by the 
Constitutional Provision. 

(b) The Constitutional Provision also provides that if the Board determines that assets from 
Fund II are not required for the purposes of Fund II, the Board may (i) transfer the assets to either 
the Veterans’ Land Fund or Fund I, (ii) use the assets to secure revenue bonds issued by the Board 
under the Constitutional Provision, (iii) use the assets to plan and design, operate, maintain, enlarge 
or improve veterans cemeteries, or (iv) use the assets to plan and design, construct, acquire, own, 
operate, maintain, enlarge, improve, furnish, or equip veterans homes.  In accordance with the 
Constitutional Provision, the Board reserves the right to use the assets from Fund II for such 
purposes, or for any other purpose from time to time authorized by the Constitutional Provision. 

Section 4.6. Program Administration.  The Program may be administered on behalf of the Board 
by one or more administrators, each of which shall be a nationally recognized institution with 
previous experience in the administration of mortgage lending programs, and whose duties shall 
be specified in an agreement between the Board and the administrator named therein.  Currently, 
the Program administrators are Gateway Mortgage Group, LLC as “Loan Origination 
Administrator” and Nationstar Mortgage LLC as “Master Servicer.”  Home Loans may (i) be 
originated by the Board, or (ii) be originated and serviced through qualified lending institutions in 
the State, which shall be subject to the approval of the Board. 

Section 4.7. Investments.  The moneys of Fund II which are not immediately committed to the 
payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds, the making of Home Loans as herein provided, 
or the payment of expenses as herein provided may be invested in Eligible Investments until such 
funds are needed for such purposes. 

ARTICLE V 
 

COVENANTS OF THE BOARD 

Section 5.1. Payment Procedures.  (a)  The Board hereby covenants that it shall establish 
procedures with the Comptroller whereby sufficient moneys shall be withdrawn from Fund II and 
forwarded to each Paying Agent for the payment of interest on and principal of the Series 2024 
Bonds coming due on each interest or principal payment date.  In addition, the Board covenants 
that as of each principal payment date and Interest Payment Date for a series of Series 2024 Bonds 
it will make available to the applicable Paying Agent the amounts required to provide for the 
payment, in immediately available funds, of all principal of and interest on the Bonds, when due.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, during any period in which ownership of a series of Series 2024 
Bonds is determined only by a book entry at a securities depository for such Series 2024 Bonds, 
payments made to the securities depository, or its nominee, shall be made in accordance with 
arrangements between the Board and the securities depository. 



 -24- 
 

If the date for the payment of the principal of or interest on the Series 2024 Bonds is a day 
other than a Business Day, then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding Business 
Day, and payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the original date 
payment was due. 

Section 5.2. Paying Agent and Registrar.  (a)  The Board covenants with the Holders that at all 
times while the Series 2024 Bonds are Outstanding, the Board will provide a competent and legally 
qualified Paying Agent and Registrar for each series of Series 2024 Bonds under this Resolution, 
and that the Paying Agent and Registrar for such series shall be one entity, except during any 
period when such Series 2024 Bonds are registered only by means of a book entry at a securities 
depository.  The Board reserves the right to, and may, at its option, change any Paying Agent or 
Registrar upon not less than 30 days written notice to such Paying Agent or Registrar.  In the event 
that an entity at any time acting as Paying Agent or Registrar (or the successor thereto by merger, 
acquisition, or other method) should resign or otherwise cease to act as such, the Board covenants 
that it will appoint promptly a competent and legally qualified national or state banking institution 
which shall be an entity organized and doing business under the laws of the United States of 
America or of any state, authorized under such laws to exercise trust powers, subject to supervision 
or examination by federal or state authority, and, if the previous Paying Agent or Registrar was a 
banking institution, whose qualifications substantially are similar to the previous Paying Agent or 
Registrar, as appropriate, to act as Paying Agent or Registrar under this Resolution.  Upon any 
change in a Registrar, the previous Registrar promptly shall transfer and deliver the related Bond 
Register (or a copy thereof), along with all other pertinent books and records relating to the 
applicable Series 2024 Bonds, to the new Registrar designated and appointed by the Board.  Upon 
any change in a Paying Agent, the previous Paying Agent promptly shall transfer and deliver the 
records regarding payments of principal of and interest on the applicable Series 2024 Bonds (or a 
copy thereof) it has kept and maintained, along with all other pertinent books and records relating 
to payments made regarding such Series 2024 Bonds, to the new Paying Agent designated and 
appointed by the Board.  Upon any change in Paying Agent or Registrar, the Board promptly will 
cause a written notice thereof to be sent by the new Registrar to each applicable Holder by first 
class mail, postage prepaid, which notice also shall give the address of the new Paying Agent or 
Registrar, as appropriate.  By accepting the position and performing as such, each Paying Agent 
and Registrar shall be deemed to have agreed to the provisions of this Resolution, and a certified 
copy of this Resolution shall be delivered to each Paying Agent and Registrar. 

In addition, the Board hereby covenants with the Holders that it will (i) pay the reasonable 
and standard or customary fees and charges of each Paying Agent for its services with respect to 
the payment of the principal of and interest on the Series 2024 Bonds, when due, and (ii) pay the 
fees and charges of each Registrar for services with respect to the transfer of registration of 
Series 2024 Bonds solely to the extent provided in Section 2.6(f), and with respect to the 
conversion and exchange of Series 2024 Bonds solely to the extent provided in Section 2.6(f). 

Section 5.3. Tax Covenants.  The Board does not intend to issue the Series 2024 Bonds in a 
manner such that the Series 2024 Bonds would constitute obligations described in Section 103(a) 
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (as amended, the “Code”), and all applicable temporary, 
proposed and final regulations and procedures promulgated thereunder or promulgated under the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1954, to the extent applicable to the Code.  Accordingly, the Board 



 -25- 
 

covenants to take such actions, or refrain from such actions as to assure that the Series 2024 Bonds 
are not obligations described in Section 103(a) of the Code. 

ARTICLE VI 
 

SUPPLEMENTS AND AMENDMENTS 

Section 6.1. Amendment of Resolution With Consent of Holders. (a)  The Holders of a series of 
Series 2024 Bonds aggregating a majority in principal amount of the aggregate principal amount 
of such Series 2024 Bonds at the time Outstanding (but not including in any case Series 2024 
Bonds which may then be held or owned by or for the account of the Board) shall have the right 
from time to time to approve an amendment of this Resolution affecting such Series 2024 Bonds 
which may be deemed necessary or desirable by the Board; provided, however, that nothing herein 
contained shall permit or be construed to permit the amendment of the terms and conditions 
contained in this Resolution or in such Series 2024 Bonds so as to: 

(i) make any change in the maturity of any of the Series 2024 Bonds of such series; 

(ii) reduce the rate of interest borne by any of the Series 2024 Bonds of such series; 

(iii) reduce the amount of the principal payable on any of the Series 2024 Bonds of such series; 

(iv) modify the terms of payment of principal of or interest on such Series 2024 Bonds, or any 
of them, or impose any conditions with respect to such payment; 

(v) change the minimum percentage of the principal amount of such Series 2024 Bonds 
necessary for consent to such amendment; or 

(vi) affect the rights of the Holders of less than all of the Series 2024 Bonds of such series then 
Outstanding, 

unless such amendment or amendments be approved by the Holders of all of such Series 2024 
Bonds at the time Outstanding. 

(b) If at any time the Board shall desire to amend this Resolution under this Section, the Board 
shall cause notice of the proposed amendment to be published in a financial newspaper or journal 
published in the City of New York, New York, or the City of Austin, Texas, once during each 
calendar week for at least four successive calendar weeks.  Such notice shall briefly set forth the 
nature of the proposed amendment and shall state that a copy thereof is on file at the principal 
office of the Board and the designated office of the Registrar for inspection by all holders of such 
Series 2024 Bonds.  Such publication is not required, however, if notice in writing is given to each 
Holder of the applicable series of Series 2024 Bonds. 

(c) Whenever at any time, within one year from the date of this publication of said notice or 
other service of written notice, the Board shall receive an instrument or instruments executed by 
the Holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of Series 2024 Bonds of the applicable 
series then Outstanding, which instrument or instruments shall refer to the proposed amendment 
described in said notice and which specifically consent to and approve such amendment in 



 -26- 
 

substantially the form of the copy thereof on file with the Registrar, the Board may adopt the 
amendatory resolution in substantially the same form. 

(d) Any consent given by the Holder of a Series 2024 Bond pursuant to the provisions of this 
Resolution shall be irrevocable for a period of six months from the date of the first publication or 
mailing of the notice provided for in this Resolution, and shall be conclusive and binding upon all 
future Holders of the same Series 2024 Bond during such period.  Such consent may be revoked 
at any time after six months from the date of the first publication or mailing of such notice by the 
holder who gave such consent, or by a successor in title, by filing notice of such revocation with 
the Registrar and the Board, but such revocation shall not be effective if the Holders of a majority 
in aggregate principal amount of the Series 2024 Bonds of the applicable series Outstanding as in 
this Section defined have, prior to the attempted revocation, consented to and approved the 
amendment. 

(e) For the purposes of this Section, proof of ownership of any Series 2024 Bond shall be 
established by the registration of any such Series 2024 Bond on the Bond Register kept and 
maintained by the applicable Registrar. 

Section 6.2. Amendment of Resolution Without Consent of Holders.  The foregoing provisions 
of this Article notwithstanding, the Board may, without the consent of the Holders, pursuant to 
amendatory resolution, from time to time: 

(i) impose conditions or restrictions additional to, but not in diminution of, those contained in 
this Resolution, respecting the issuance of Bonds; 

(ii) undertake covenants additional to but not inconsistent with those contained in this 
Resolution;  

(iii) correct any ambiguity or correct or supplement any inconsistent or defective provision 
contained in this Resolution or any amendatory resolution; 

(iv) adopt amendments to this Resolution that become effective as to a series of Series 2024 
Bonds following a mandatory tender of all of such Series 2024 Bonds then Outstanding; or 

(v) adopt amendments to this Resolution that, in the opinion of Bond Counsel, do not adversely 
affect the Holders. 

Section 6.3. Effect of Amendatory Resolutions.  Upon the adoption of any amendatory 
resolution pursuant to the provisions of this Section, this Resolution shall be deemed to be 
amended in accordance with such amendatory resolution, and the respective rights, duties and 
obligations of the Board under this Resolution and all the holders of Outstanding Series 2024 
Bonds of the applicable series shall thereafter be determined, exercised and enforced hereunder, 
subject in all respects to such amendments. 

Section 6.4. Bonds May Bear Notation of Changes.  Series 2024 Bonds of the applicable series 
authenticated and delivered after the execution of any amendatory resolution pursuant to this 
Article may bear a notation in form approved by the applicable Registrar as to any matter provided 
for in such amendatory resolution.  If the Board or the applicable Registrar shall so determine, new 



 -27- 
 

Series 2024 Bonds of the applicable series so modified as to conform, in the opinion of the Board 
and such Registrar, to any such amendatory resolution may be prepared and executed by the Board 
and authenticated and delivered by such Registrar in exchange for Series 2024 Bonds of the 
applicable series then Outstanding. 

ARTICLE VII 
 

FIXED RATE BONDS DEEMED PAID 

Section 7.1. Fixed Rate Bonds Deemed Paid.  Any Fixed Rate Bond shall be deemed to be paid 
and no longer Outstanding when payment of the principal of and premium, if any, on such Bond, 
plus interest thereon to the due date thereof (whether such due date be by reason of maturity, 
redemption, or otherwise), either (i) shall have been made or caused to be made in accordance with 
the terms thereof, or (ii) shall have been provided by irrevocably depositing with a paying agent, 
in trust and irrevocably set aside exclusively for such payment, (1) money sufficient to make such 
payment or (2) Defeasance Obligations, certified by an independent public accounting firm of 
national reputation to mature as to principal and interest in such amounts and at such times as will 
insure the availability, without reinvestment, of sufficient money to make such payment, and all 
necessary and proper fees, compensation and expenses of such paying agent for such Fixed Rate 
Bonds, with respect to which such deposit is made, shall have been paid or the payment thereof 
provided for.  At such time as a Fixed Rate Bond shall be deemed to be paid hereunder, as 
aforesaid, it shall no longer be secured by or entitled to the benefits of this Resolution, except for 
the purposes of any such payment from such money or Defeasance Obligations. 

Section 7.2. Application of Trust Money.  (a)  The deposit under clause (ii) of Section 7.1 shall 
be deemed a payment of a Fixed Rate Bond as aforesaid when proper notice of redemption of such 
Bond shall have been given, in accordance with this Resolution.  Any money so deposited with a 
paying agent as provided in this Section may at the discretion of the Board also be invested in 
Defeasance Obligations, maturing in the amounts and at the times as hereinbefore set forth, and 
all income from all Defeasance Obligations in possession of a paying agent pursuant to this 
Section which is not required for the payment of such Bond and premium, if any, and interest 
thereon, with respect to which such money has been so deposited, shall be turned over to the Board. 

(b) Notwithstanding any provision of any other Section of this Resolution which may be 
contrary to the provisions of this Section, all money or Defeasance Obligations set aside and held 
in trust pursuant to the provisions of this Section for the payment of principal of the particular 
Fixed Rate Bonds and premium, if any, and interest thereon, shall be applied to and used solely 
for the payment of the particular Fixed Rate Bonds and premium, if any, and interest thereon, with 
respect to which such money or Defeasance Obligations have been so set aside in trust. 

(c) Notwithstanding anything elsewhere in this Resolution contained, if money or Defeasance 
Obligations have been deposited or set aside with a paying agent pursuant to this Section for the 
payment of Fixed Rate Bonds and such Fixed Rate Bonds shall not have in fact been actually paid 
in full, no amendment to the provisions of this Section shall be made without the consent of the 
Holder of each Fixed Rate Bond affected thereby. 



 -28- 
 

ARTICLE VIII 
 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING 

Section 8.1. Definitions.  As used in this Article, the following terms have the meanings ascribed 
to such terms below: 

“EMMA” means the Electronic Municipal Market Access website of the 
MSRB, with the web address as of the date hereof of www.emma.msrb.org. 

“MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 

“Other Obligated Person” means a Person that is the mortgagor with respect 
to at least 20% in aggregate principal amount of the Home Loans in Fund II. 

“Rule” means SEC Rule 15c2-12, as amended from time to time. 

“SEC” means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. 

Section 8.2. Annual Reports.  The Board shall provide annually to the MSRB, within six months 
after the end of each fiscal year ending in or after 2024, financial information and operating data 
with respect to the Board of the general type included in each final Official Statement authorized 
by Section 2.9 of this Resolution, being the information described in Exhibit C hereto.  Any 
financial statements so to be provided shall be (1) prepared in accordance with the accounting 
principles described in Exhibit C hereto, (2) audited, if the Board commissions an audit of such 
statements and the audit is completed within the period during which they must be provided, and 
(3) submitted through EMMA, in an electronic format with accompanying identifying 
information, as prescribed by the MSRB.  If the audit of such financial statements is not complete 
within such period, then the Board shall provide unaudited financial statements by the required 
time and will provide audited financial statements for the applicable fiscal year to the MSRB, when 
and if the audit report on such financial statements becomes available. 

If the Board changes its fiscal year, it will notify the MSRB of the change (and of the date 
of the new fiscal year end) prior to the next date by which the Board otherwise would be required 
to provide financial information and operating data pursuant to this Section. 

If the Board changes the accounting principles under which its financial statements to be 
provided are prepared, it will provide notice of such change to the MSRB, including identification 
of the new accounting principles and such additional information as may be required under the 
Rule. 

The financial information and operating data to be provided pursuant to this Section may 
be set forth in full in one or more documents or may be included by specific reference to any 
document available to the public on EMMA or filed with the SEC. 

The Board represents that no Veteran eligible to participate in the Program is an “obligated 
person” (as defined in the Rule) for whom financial information or operating data would be 
presented in the final Official Statement authorized by Section 2.9 of this Resolution. 



 -29- 
 

Section 8.3. Event Notices.  The Board shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner but in any 
event within ten Business Days, of any of the following events with respect to a series of 
Series 2024 Bonds subject to the Rule: 

(A) Principal and interest payment delinquencies; 

(B) Non-payment related defaults, if material; 

(C) Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; 

(D) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; 

(E) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; 

(F) Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final 
determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material 
notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of such Series 2024 Bonds, or other material 
events affecting the tax status of such Series 2024 Bonds; 

(G) Modifications to rights of holders of such Series 2024 Bonds, if material; 

(H) Series 2024 Bond calls of the applicable series, if material, and tender offers; 

(I) Defeasances; 

(J) Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of such Series 2024 Bonds, if 
material; 

(K) Rating changes; 

(L) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Board; 

(M) Consummation of a merger, consolidation or acquisition involving the Board or the sale of 
all or substantially all of the assets of the Board, other than in the ordinary course of business, the 
entry of a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of a definitive 
agreement relating to any such actions, or than pursuant to its terms, if material; and 

(N) Appointment of a successor Paying Agent or Registrar or change in the name of the 
applicable Paying Agent or Registrar, if material. 

As used in clause (L) above, the phrase “bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar 
event” means the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent or similar officer for the Board in a 
proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any other proceeding under state or federal law 
in which a court of governmental authority has assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of the 
assets or business of the Board, or if jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the Board and 
official or officers of the Board in possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a court 
or governmental authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization, 



 -30- 
 

arrangement or liquidation by a court or governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction 
over substantially all of the assets or business of the Board. 

The Board shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner, of any failure by the Board to 
provide financial information or operating data in accordance with Section 8.2 of this Resolution 
by the time required by such Section. 

Section 8.4. Limitations, Disclaimers and Amendments.  The Board shall be obligated to 
observe and perform the covenants specified in this Article for so long as, but only for so long as, 
the Board remains an “obligated person” with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds within the 
meaning of the Rule, except that the Board in any event will give the notice required by Section 8.3 
of any Series 2024 Bond calls and defeasance of the applicable series that cause the Board to be 
no longer such an “obligated person.” 

The provisions of this Article are for the sole benefit of the Holders and beneficial owners 
of the Series 2024 Bonds, and nothing in this Article, express or implied, shall give any benefit or 
any legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim hereunder to any other person.  The Board undertakes 
to provide only the financial information, operating data, financial statements, and notices which 
it has expressly agreed to provide pursuant to this Article and does not hereby undertake to provide 
any other information that may be relevant or material to a complete presentation of the Board’s 
financial results, condition, or prospects or hereby undertake to update any information provided 
in accordance with this Article or otherwise, except as expressly provided herein.  The Board does 
not make any representation or warranty concerning such information or its usefulness to a 
decision to invest in or sell Series 2024 Bonds at any future date. 

UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE BOARD BE LIABLE TO THE HOLDER 
OR BENEFICIAL OWNER OF ANY SERIES 2024 BOND OR ANY OTHER PERSON, IN 
CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR DAMAGES RESULTING IN WHOLE OR IN PART FROM 
ANY BREACH BY THE BOARD, WHETHER FROM NEGLIGENCE OR WITHOUT FAULT 
ON ITS PART, OF ANY COVENANT SPECIFIED IN THIS ARTICLE, BUT EVERY RIGHT 
AND REMEDY OF ANY SUCH PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR OR ON 
ACCOUNT OF ANY SUCH BREACH SHALL BE LIMITED TO AN ACTION FOR 
MANDAMUS OR SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE. 

Nothing in this Article is intended or shall act to disclaim, waive, or otherwise limit the 
duties of the Board under federal and state securities laws. 

The provisions of this Article may be amended by the Board from time to time to adapt to 
changed circumstances that arise from a change in legal requirements, a change in law, or a change 
in the identity, nature, status, or type of operations of the Board, but only if (1) the provisions of 
this Article, as so amended, would have permitted an underwriter to purchase or sell Series 2024 
Bonds in the primary offering of a series of Series 2024 Bonds in compliance with the Rule, taking 
into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule to the date of such amendment, as well 
as such changed circumstances, and (2) either (a) the Holders of a majority in aggregate principal 
amount (or any greater amount required by any other provision of this Resolution that authorizes 
such an amendment) of the Outstanding Series 2024 Bonds of the applicable series consent to such 
amendment or (b) a Person that is unaffiliated with the Board (such as nationally recognized bond 



 -31- 
 

counsel) determines that such amendment will not materially impair the interests of the Holders 
and beneficial owners of the applicable series of Series 2024 Bonds.  If the Board so amends the 
provisions of this Article, it shall include with any amended financial information or operating 
data next provided in accordance with Section 8.2 an explanation, in narrative form, of the reasons 
for the amendment and of the impact of any change in the type of financial information or operating 
data so provided. 

Anything in this Resolution to the contrary notwithstanding, the provisions of this Article 
may be modified for a particular series of Series 2024 Bonds as set forth in the Pricing Certificate 
relating thereto. 

Section 8.5. Continuing Disclosure Relating to Other Obligated Persons.  The Board hereby 
determines that an Other Obligated Person would be an “obligated person” (as defined in the Rule) 
for whom financial information and operating data would be presented in any final official 
statement relating to a series of Series 2024 Bonds had such Person been known at the time of the 
offering thereof.  Based upon the objective criteria specified in the definition of Other Obligated 
Person, the Board concludes that no Veteran eligible to participate in the Program would be an 
Other Obligated Person. 

Section 8.6. Agreement Regarding Assumption of Certain Home Loans.  The Board agrees not 
to permit the assumption of any Home Loan that would cause any Person to become an Other 
Obligated Person. 

ARTICLE IX 
 

ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS RELATING TO SERIES 2024 BONDS 

Section 9.1. Interest Rates and Payment.  (a)  General.  Each Outstanding Weekly Rate Bond 
shall bear interest at the Weekly Interest Rate therefor, each Fixed Rate Bond shall bear interest at 
the Fixed Interest Rate therefor, and each Purchased Bond shall bear interest at the Purchased Bond 
Rate therefor; provided, however, that in no event shall the interest rate on any Series 2024 Bond 
exceed the Ceiling Rate; and provided further that in no event shall the Purchased Bond Rate 
exceed the Maximum Purchased Bond Rate.  Unless provided to the contrary in the related 
Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate, each Series 2024 Bond shall bear interest from its date 
(except for an Initial Series 2024 Bond that is not a Fixed Rate Bond, which shall bear interest 
from the Settlement Date), and interest on each Series 2024 Bond for each Interest Accrual Period 
shall be payable on each Interest Payment Date applicable to such Series 2024 Bond; provided, 
however, that the Holder (other than a Liquidity Provider) of a Weekly Rate Bond shall be paid 
interest thereon for an Interest Accrual Period only in the amount that would have accrued thereon 
at the Weekly Interest Rate, regardless of whether such Weekly Rate Bond was a Purchased Bond 
during any portion of such Interest Accrual Period, and the amount, if any, accrued as interest on 
such Weekly Rate Bond at the Purchased Bond Rate in excess of the amount required to be paid 
to such Holder shall be paid by the Board to a Liquidity Provider in accordance with the related 
Liquidity Facility. 

(b) Payment and Calculation of Interest.  Interest on the Series 2024 Bonds shall be paid in 
arrears.  Interest on Weekly Rate Bonds (including Purchased Bonds) shall be computed on the 



 -32- 
 

basis of a 365/366-day year, for the number of days actually elapsed.  Interest on Fixed Rate Bonds 
shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve (12) thirty (30) day months. 

(c) Ceiling Rate.  Anything to the contrary contained herein notwithstanding, the maximum 
rate of interest on the Series 2024 Bonds at any time shall be the Ceiling Rate. 

(d) Purchased Bonds.  All Purchased Bonds shall bear interest at the Purchased Bond Rate 
therefor, which shall be payable at such times, in such amounts and in such manner as is provided 
in the related Liquidity Facility.  The maximum rate of interest permitted on Purchased Bonds 
shall be the Maximum Purchased Bond Rate.  Any determination of the Purchased Bond Rate 
pursuant to a Liquidity Facility shall be conclusive and binding on the Board. Anything contained 
in this Resolution notwithstanding, it is the express intention of the Board that the purchase of 
Purchased Bonds by the Comptroller, as Liquidity Provider pursuant to a Liquidity Facility, shall 
not extinguish the debt represented by such Purchased Bonds, which under such circumstances 
shall remain Outstanding and unpaid for all purposes of this Resolution. 

Section 9.2. Determination of Weekly Interest Rate.  (a)  Weekly Rate Bonds shall bear interest 
at the Weekly Interest Rate, which shall be determined by the applicable Remarketing Agent by 
4:30 p.m., New York City time, on Tuesday of each week during such Weekly Interest Rate Period, 
or if such day shall not be a Business Day, then on the next succeeding Business Day, provided 
that the first Weekly Interest Rate for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds shall be determined by the 
Initial Purchaser thereof on the date of execution of the related Purchase Contract in the manner 
set forth in this paragraph.  The first Weekly Interest Rate for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds shall 
apply to the period commencing on the Settlement Date therefor and ending on the next succeeding 
Tuesday.  Thereafter, each Weekly Interest Rate shall apply to the period commencing on 
Wednesday and ending on the next succeeding Tuesday, unless such Weekly Interest Rate Period 
shall end on a day other than Tuesday, in which event the last Weekly Interest Rate for such 
Weekly Interest Rate Period shall apply to the period commencing on the Wednesday preceding 
the last day of such Weekly Interest Rate Period and ending on the last day of such Weekly Interest 
Rate Period.  The Weekly Interest Rate for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds shall be the rate of 
interest per annum determined by the Remarketing Agent therefor (based on then prevailing 
market conditions) to be the minimum interest rate which, if borne by such Weekly Rate Bonds, 
would enable such Remarketing Agent to sell such Weekly Rate Bonds on such date of 
determination at a price (without regarding accrued interest) equal to the principal amount thereof.  
In the event that such Remarketing Agent fails to establish a Weekly Interest Rate for any week, 
then the Weekly Interest Rate for such week shall be the same as the Weekly Interest Rate for the 
immediately preceding week if the Weekly Interest Rate for such preceding week was determined 
by such Remarketing Agent.  In the event that the Weekly Interest Rate for the immediately 
preceding week was not determined by such Remarketing Agent, or in the event that the Weekly 
Interest Rate determined by such Remarketing Agent shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable 
by a court of law, then the interest rate for such week shall be equal to the most recently available 
SOFR rate plus 0.25% per annum, or if such rate is no longer available, or no such rate was so 
made available for the week preceding the date of determination, 100% of the interest rate on 
30-day high grade unsecured commercial paper notes sold through dealers by major corporations 
as reported in The Wall Street Journal on the day the Weekly Interest Rate would otherwise be 
determined as provided herein for such Weekly Interest Rate Period. 



 -33- 
 

(b) The first Interest Rate Period for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds shall commence on the 
Settlement Date and shall be a Weekly Interest Rate Period.  The initial Weekly Interest Rate to 
be borne by such Weekly Rate Bonds shall be determined by the Initial Purchaser thereof in the 
manner set forth in the preceding paragraph. 

(c) Notices.  On each date on which a Remarketing Agent determines the interest rate on any 
Weekly Rate Bond, such Remarketing Agent shall give the Board and the applicable Tender 
Agent, Paying Agent and Liquidity Provider notice by facsimile or e-mail transmission of the 
interest rate determined by such Remarketing Agent on such date.  Upon telephonic request, such 
Remarketing Agent will give any Holder of the applicable series of Weekly Rate Bonds notice of 
the interest rate on such Weekly Rate Bonds owned by such Holder. 

(d) Binding Effect.  Each determination of the interest rate for the Weekly Rate Bonds, as 
provided herein, shall be conclusive and binding upon the owners of the Weekly Rate Bonds, the 
Board and the applicable Remarketing Agent, Tender Agent, Liquidity Provider and Paying Agent.  
Upon telephonic request to a Remarketing Agent from the Board, the Paying Agent, the applicable 
Liquidity Provider or any Holder of any Weekly Rate Bond of the applicable series, the 
Remarketing Agent shall inform such Person of the interest rate then in effect on such Weekly 
Rate Bonds.  Failure of such Remarketing Agent to give any notice described in this Section, or 
any defect therein, shall not affect the interest rate to be borne by any of any Weekly Rate Bonds 
of the applicable series nor in any way change the rights of the Holders of such Weekly Rate Bonds 
to tender their Weekly Rate Bonds for purchase in accordance with this Resolution. 

Section 9.3. Fixed Interest Rate.  (a)  Determination of Fixed Interest Rate.  During a Fixed 
Interest Rate Period, each Series 2024 Bond shall bear interest at the Fixed Interest Rate therefor.  
The Fixed Interest Rate for each stated maturity of Series 2024 Bonds issued as Weekly Rate 
Bonds shall be determined by the applicable Remarketing Agent on a Business Day not less than 
15 days prior to the effective date of the Fixed Interest Rate Period therefor.  The Fixed Interest 
Rate for each stated maturity shall be the rate of interest per annum determined by such 
Remarketing Agent (based on then prevailing market conditions) to be the minimum interest rate, 
if any, at which such Remarketing Agent will agree to purchase the applicable series of Series 2024 
Bonds on such effective date for resale at a price (without regarding accrued interest) equal to the 
principal amount thereof.  If, for any reason, the Fixed Interest Rate for each stated maturity is not 
so determined for such Series 2024 Bonds by such Remarketing Agent at least 15 days prior to the 
first day of the Fixed Interest Rate Period therefor, then such Series 2024 Bonds shall bear interest 
at a Weekly Interest Rate as provided in Section 9.2, and shall continue to bear interest at a Weekly 
Interest Rate determined in accordance with Section 9.2 until such time as the interest rate on such 
Series 2024 Bonds shall have been adjusted to a Fixed Interest Rate, and such Series 2024 Bonds 
shall continue to be subject to purchase upon notice from the Holders thereof as described in 
Section 9.4(a).  The related Liquidity Facility shall be terminated as to such Fixed Rate Bonds. 

(b) Adjustment to Fixed Interest Rate Period. 

(i) At any time, the Board, by written direction to the applicable Registrar, Tender Agent, 
Paying Agent, Liquidity Provider and Remarketing Agent, may elect that a series of Weekly Rate 
Bonds shall be subject to a Fixed Interest Rate Period.  The direction of the Board required by the 
first sentence of this paragraph (i) shall specify the effective date of the Fixed Interest Rate Period, 



 -34- 
 

which date shall be (A) a Business Day not earlier than the 30th day following the second Business 
Day after receipt by the applicable Registrar of such direction, and (B) the day immediately 
following the last day of a Weekly Interest Rate Period. 

(ii) Such direction of the Board shall be accompanied by a form of the notice to be mailed by 
the applicable Registrar to the Holders of the series of Weekly Rate Bonds to be converted as 
provided in Section 9.3(c). 

(iii) If the Board shall deliver to the applicable Registrar, Remarketing Agent and Tender Agent 
on or prior to the date that the interest rate for the Fixed Interest Rate Period is determined a notice 
to the effect that the Board elects to rescind its election to have the series of Weekly Rate Bonds 
to be converted become subject to a Fixed Interest Rate Period, then such Series 2024 Bonds shall 
not become subject to a Fixed Interest Rate Period, and such Series 2024 Bonds shall bear interest 
at a Weekly Interest Rate as in effect prior to such event. 

(c) Notice of Adjustment to Fixed Interest Rate Period.  The applicable Registrar shall give 
notice by first class mail of an adjustment to a Fixed Interest Rate Period to the Holders of the 
series of Weekly Rate Bonds to be converted not less than 30 days prior to the effective date of 
such Fixed Interest Rate Period.  Such notice shall state:  (1) that the Interest Rate Period on such 
Series 2024 Bonds shall be adjusted to a Fixed Interest Rate Period unless the Board shall elect, 
on or prior to the date of determination of the Fixed Interest Rate, to rescind its election to cause 
the adjustment of the Interest Rate Period on such Series 2024 Bonds to the Fixed Interest Rate 
Period, in which case such Series 2024 Bonds shall continue to bear interest at a Weekly Interest 
Rate as in effect immediately prior to such proposed adjustment in the Interest Rate Period, (2) the 
effective date of the Fixed Interest Rate Period, (3) that such Series 2024 Bonds are subject to 
mandatory tender for purchase on such effective date and the purchase price applicable thereto, 
(4) that the related Liquidity Facility will be terminated as of the effective date of such Fixed 
Interest Rate Period, and (5) if ownership of such Series 2024 Bonds is no longer determined only 
by a book entry at a securities depository for the Series 2024 Bonds, information with respect to 
the required delivery of bond certificates and payment of purchase price under Section 9.4(f) 
hereof. 

(d) If the Board elects to convert a series of Weekly Rate Bonds to Fixed Rate Bonds, then the 
written direction furnished by the Board to the applicable Liquidity Provider, Registrar, Tender 
Agent and Remarketing Agent shall be made by registered or certified mail, or by e-mail or fax, 
confirmed by registered or certified mail.  Any such direction of the Board shall be accompanied 
by a copy of the notice required to be given by the applicable Registrar pursuant to Section 9.3(c) 
hereof. 

Section 9.4. Purchase of Weekly Rate Bonds.  (a) Optional Tender for Purchase.  If ownership 
of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds is determined only by a book entry at a securities depository for 
such Series 2024 Bonds, a Beneficial Owner (through its DTC Participant) may tender his interest 
in a Weekly Rate Bond of such series on any Business Day at a purchase price equal to the principal 
amount thereof plus accrued interest, if any, from and including the Interest Payment Date 
immediately preceding the date of purchase through and including the day immediately preceding 
the date of purchase, unless the date of purchase shall be an Interest Payment Date, in which case 
at a purchase price equal to the principal amount thereof, payable in immediately available funds, 



 -35- 
 

upon delivery to the applicable Tender Agent at its designated corporate trust office for delivery 
of notices, with a copy to the applicable Remarketing Agent, of an irrevocable written notice or 
telephonic notice, promptly confirmed in writing, which states the principal amount of such 
Weekly Rate Bond and the date on which the same shall be purchased, which date shall be a 
Business Day not prior to the seventh day next succeeding the date of the delivery of such notice 
to such Tender Agent.  Any notice delivered to such Tender Agent after 4:00 p.m., New York City 
time, shall be deemed to have been received on the next succeeding Business Day. 

Such Tender Agent shall promptly (but no later than the next Business Day) send a copy 
of any notice delivered to it pursuant to this Section 9.4(a) by fax or other electronic means to the 
applicable Remarketing Agent and Liquidity Provider.  On the date for purchase specified in the 
notice, the Beneficial Owner shall effect delivery of such Series 2024 Bonds by causing the DTC 
Participant through which such Beneficial Owner owns such Series 2024 Bonds to transfer its 
interest in such Series 2024 Bonds equal to such Beneficial Owner’s interest on the records of 
DTC to the participant account of the applicable Tender Agent with DTC. 

If ownership of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds is not determined only by a book entry at a 
securities depository for such Series 2024 Bonds, a Holder of a Weekly Rate Bond of such series 
may tender its Series 2024 Bond by delivery of the notice described above by the time set forth 
above and shall also deliver such Series 2024 Bond to the Tender Agent on the date specified for 
purchase. 

(b) Mandatory Tender for Purchase on First Day of Fixed Interest Rate Period.  A series of 
Weekly Rate Bonds shall be subject to mandatory tender for purchase on the first day of the Fixed 
Interest Rate Period therefor, or on the day which would have been the first day of such Fixed 
Interest Rate Period had the event specified in Section 9.3(b)(iii) not occurred which resulted in 
the interest rate on such Series 2024 Bonds not being adjusted, at a purchase price, payable in 
immediately available funds, equal to the principal amount of such Series 2024 Bonds, plus 
accrued interest (if any). 

(c) Mandatory Tender for Purchase Upon Termination, Expiration, Suspension, Modification 
or Replacement of Liquidity Facility.  If at any time the Registrar for a series of Weekly Rate 
Bonds shall give notice in accordance with Section 9.7 that such Weekly Rate Bonds which, at 
such time, are subject to purchase under the related Liquidity Facility as then in effect, shall on the 
date specified in such notice cease to be subject to purchase from such Liquidity Facility as a result 
of (A) the termination or expiration of the term of such Liquidity Facility, or (B) such Liquidity 
Facility being suspended, replaced or modified with the effect that the purchase price of such 
Series 2024 Bonds is no longer payable from such Liquidity Facility (in each case, whether or not 
any Alternate Liquidity Facility has been obtained), then on the Business Day the Board specifies 
to such Registrar that is at least five days and no more than 15 days (or, if no such date is specified, 
the fifth calendar day (or the immediately preceding Business Day if such day is not a Business 
Day)) preceding any termination, expiration, suspension, modification or replacement of such 
Liquidity Facility each such Series 2024 Bond or Series 2024 Bonds shall be purchased or deemed 
purchased as provided herein.  The purchase price for such Series 2024 Bonds shall be equal to 
the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest (if any). 



 -36- 
 

(d) Mandatory Tender for Purchase Following Event of Default Under Liquidity Facility.  All 
Weekly Rate Bonds of a series shall be subject to mandatory tender for purchase on the tenth day 
(or the next succeeding Business Day if such day is not a Business Day) following receipt by the 
applicable Tender Agent of notice from the applicable Liquidity Provider that an “Event of 
Default” has occurred under the applicable Liquidity Facility and directing the mandatory purchase 
of such Weekly Rate Bonds.  No later than the third Business Day following receipt of such notice 
described above, such Tender Agent shall give notice by first class mail, postage prepaid, to the 
Holders of such Series 2024 Bonds, the Board and the applicable Remarketing Agent stating that 
an “Event of Default” has occurred under the Liquidity Facility and that such Series 2024 Bonds 
are subject to mandatory tender for purchase. 

(e) Notice of Mandatory Tender for Purchase.  In connection with any mandatory tender for 
purchase of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds in accordance with Section 9.4(b) or Section 9.4(c), 
the applicable Registrar shall include notice of a mandatory tender for purchase as a part of the 
notice given pursuant to Section 9.3(c) or Section 9.7 hereof.  Each notice of mandatory tender for 
purchase shall state (A) in the case of a mandatory tender for purchase pursuant to Section 9.4(c) 
hereof, that the applicable Liquidity Facility will expire, terminate, be suspended, be replaced or 
be modified and that the purchase price of such Weekly Rate Bonds shall no longer be payable 
from such Liquidity Facility then in effect and that any rating applicable thereto may be reduced 
or withdrawn; (B) in the case of a mandatory tender for purchase pursuant to Section 9.4(d) hereof, 
that an “Event of Default” has occurred under such Liquidity Facility; (C) that the purchase price 
of any Weekly Rate Bond so subject to mandatory purchase shall be payable only upon (i) if 
ownership of such Weekly Rate Bonds is not determined only by a book entry at a securities 
depository for such Weekly Rate Bonds, surrender of such Weekly Rate Bond to the applicable 
Tender Agent at its designated corporate trust office for delivery of Weekly Rate Bonds, 
accompanied by an instrument of transfer thereof, in form satisfactory to such Tender Agent, 
executed in blank by the Holder thereof or his duly authorized attorney, with such signature 
guaranteed by a bank, trust company or member firm of the New York Stock Exchange or (ii) if 
ownership of such Weekly Rate Bonds is determined only by a book entry at a securities depository 
for such Weekly Rate Bonds, registration of the ownership rights in such Weekly Rate Bond to 
the applicable Tender Agent on the records of DTC; (D) that, provided that moneys sufficient to 
effect such purchase have been provided through the remarketing of such Weekly Rate Bonds by 
the applicable Remarketing Agent or through the applicable Liquidity Facility or otherwise, all 
Weekly Rate Bonds so subject to mandatory tender for purchase shall be purchased on the 
mandatory purchase date, and that if any Holder of a Weekly Rate Bond subject to mandatory 
tender for purchase shall not surrender such Weekly Rate Bond to the applicable Tender Agent for 
purchase (or if ownership of such Weekly Rate Bonds is determined only by a book entry at a 
securities depository for such Weekly Rate Bonds, effect the transfer of ownership rights to the 
applicable Tender Agent on the records of DTC) on such mandatory purchase date, and moneys 
sufficient to pay the purchase price thereof are on deposit with the applicable Tender Agent, then 
such Weekly Rate Bond shall be deemed to be an Undelivered Bond, and that no interest shall 
accrue thereon on and after such mandatory purchase date and that the Holder thereof shall have 
no rights under this Resolution other than to receive payment of the purchase price thereof; and 
(E) in the event that moneys sufficient to pay the purchase price of such Weekly Rate Bonds have 
not been provided to the applicable Tender Agent either through the remarketing of such Weekly 
Rate Bonds or from the applicable Liquidity Facility or otherwise, that such Weekly Rate Bonds 
shall not be purchased or deemed purchased and shall bear interest at the rate described in 



 -37- 
 

Section 9.15 hereof.  In connection with any mandatory tender for purchase of Weekly Rate Bonds 
in accordance with Section 9.4(c) hereof as a result of the replacement, termination or expiration 
of a Liquidity Facility, such notice also shall contain the information required by Section 9.7.  The 
Board shall provide the applicable Registrar with a form of any such notice.  

(f) Delivery of Tendered Weekly Rate Bonds.  Subject to the provisions of Section 2.10 hereof 
if ownership of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds is determined only by a book entry at a securities 
depository for such Weekly Rate Bonds, for payment of the purchase price of any such Weekly 
Rate Bond required to be purchased pursuant to this Section 9.4 on the date specified, such Weekly 
Rate Bond must be delivered, at or prior to 10:00 a.m., New York City time, on the date specified 
in such notice, to the applicable Tender Agent at its designated corporate trust office for delivery 
of Weekly Rate Bonds, accompanied by an instrument of transfer thereof, in form satisfactory to 
such Tender Agent, executed in blank by the Holder thereof or his duly authorized attorney, with 
such signature guaranteed by a commercial bank, trust company or member firm of the New York 
Stock Exchange.  In the event any such Weekly Rate Bond is delivered after 10:00 a.m., New York 
City time, on such date, payment of the purchase price of such Weekly Rate Bond need not be 
made until the Business Day following the date of delivery of such Weekly Rate Bond, but such 
Weekly Rate Bond shall nonetheless be deemed to have been purchased on the date specified in 
such notice and no interest shall accrue thereon after such date. 

(g) Irrevocable Notice Deemed to be Tender of Weekly Rate Bond; Undelivered Bonds. 

(i) The giving of notice by an owner of a Weekly Rate Bond as provided in Section 9.4(a) 
hereof shall constitute the irrevocable tender for purchase of each such Weekly Rate Bond with 
respect to which such notice shall have been given, regardless of whether such Weekly Rate Bond 
is delivered to the applicable Tender Agent for purchase on the relevant purchase date as provided 
in Section 9.4 hereof provided that moneys sufficient to pay the purchase price of such Weekly 
Rate Bonds are on deposit with the applicable Tender Agent for such purpose. 

(ii) A Tender Agent may refuse to accept delivery of any Weekly Rate Bonds for which a 
proper instrument of transfer has not been provided; such refusal, however, shall not affect the 
validity of the purchase of such Weekly Rate Bond as herein described.  If any owner of a Weekly 
Rate Bond who shall have given notice of tender of purchase pursuant to Section 9.4(a) hereof, if 
ownership of the related series of Weekly Rate Bonds is not determined only by a book entry at a 
securities depository for such Weekly Rate Bonds, shall fail to deliver such Weekly Rate Bond to 
the applicable Tender Agent at the place and on the applicable date and at the time specified, or 
shall fail to deliver such Weekly Rate Bond properly endorsed, or if ownership of such Weekly 
Rate Bonds is determined only by a book entry at a securities depository for such Weekly Rate 
Bonds, shall fail to cause its beneficial ownership to be transferred to the applicable Tender Agent 
on the records of DTC, and moneys sufficient to pay the purchase price thereof are on deposit with 
such Tender Agent for such purpose, such Weekly Rate Bond shall constitute an Undelivered 
Bond.  If funds in the amount of the purchase price of the Undelivered Bonds (including the 
Undelivered Bonds referred to in Section 9.4(e) hereof) are available for payment to the owner 
thereof on the date and at the time specified, from and after the date and time of that required 
delivery, (1) each Undelivered Bond shall be deemed to be purchased and shall no longer be 
deemed to be outstanding under this Resolution; (2) interest shall no longer accrue thereon; and 
(3) funds in the amount of the purchase price of each such Undelivered Bond shall be held by the 



 -38- 
 

applicable Tender Agent for the benefit of the owner thereof (provided that the owner shall have 
no right to any investment proceeds derived from such funds), to be paid on delivery (and proper 
endorsement) of such Undelivered Bond to such Tender Agent at its designated office for delivery 
of Weekly Rate Bonds.  Any funds held by such Tender Agent as described in clause (3) of the 
preceding sentence shall be held uninvested and not commingled. 

Section 9.5. Amendments to Liquidity Facility.  Except with the consent of all the Holders of a 
series of Weekly Rate Bonds, neither the Board nor the applicable Tender Agent shall permit any 
amendment, supplement, modification or waiver to the applicable Liquidity Facility that would 
result in the rating assigned to such Weekly Rate Bonds by the applicable Rating Agency being 
withdrawn or reduced below that in effect prior to such amendment, supplement, modification or 
waiver. 

Section 9.6. Alternate Liquidity Facility.  If at any time there shall be delivered to a Tender 
Agent (i) an Alternate Liquidity Facility, (ii) written evidence from the applicable Rating Agency 
stating the ratings of the applicable series of Weekly Rate Bonds after substitution of such 
Alternate Liquidity Facility, or a statement of the Board that no ratings have been obtained, and 
(iii) an opinion of counsel to the effect that such Alternate Liquidity Facility is a valid and 
enforceable obligation of the issuer or provider thereof, then such Tender Agent shall accept such 
Alternate Liquidity Facility and, if the applicable Liquidity Facility then in effect is a letter of 
credit, promptly surrender such Liquidity Facility to the Liquidity Provider that issued such 
Liquidity Facility in accordance with its terms for cancellation.  Anything in this Resolution to the 
contrary notwithstanding, following satisfaction of the requirements set forth in this Section 9.6 
and the mandatory tender for purchase of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds pursuant to Section 9.4(c) 
hereof in connection with the provision of any Alternate Liquidity Facility, (i) such Alternate 
Liquidity Facility may at any time thereafter specified by the Board to the applicable Tender Agent 
become the Liquidity Facility for such Weekly Rate Bonds for all purposes of this Resolution, and 
(ii) the Liquidity Facility replaced by such Alternate Liquidity Facility may be terminated at any 
time after such replacement. 

Section 9.7. Notice of Termination or Other Change in Liquidity Facility.  The applicable 
Registrar shall give notice by mail to the Holders of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds on or before 
the 15th day preceding (i) the expiration of any applicable Liquidity Facility in accordance with 
its terms, or (ii) any termination, replacement or modification of the terms of the applicable 
Liquidity Facility, which notice shall, to the extent applicable, (1) state the date of such 
replacement, termination, expiration or modification and the date of the proposed substitution of 
the Alternate Liquidity Facility (if any), and (2) state the date that such Weekly Rate Bonds will 
be purchased pursuant to Section 9.4(c) hereof as a result of such replacement, termination, 
expiration or modification.  The Board shall provide the applicable Registrar with written notice 
of any information required to enable such Registrar to give the foregoing notice and shall provide 
such Registrar with the form of such notice at least five days before such notice is required to be 
given. 

Section 9.8. Remarketing Agent and Tender Agent.  (a) Subject to execution of a Remarketing 
Agreement, the initial Remarketing Agent for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds shall be as designated 
in the applicable Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate.  The Board shall appoint any successor 
Remarketing Agent subject to the conditions set forth in Section 9.9(a) hereof.  Each Remarketing 



 -39- 
 

Agent shall designate its designated office (other than the initial Remarketing Agent whose 
designated office is listed in Section 9.16 hereof) and signify its acceptance of the duties and 
obligations imposed upon it hereunder by a written instrument of acceptance delivered to the Board 
under which such Remarketing Agent will agree, particularly, to keep such books and records with 
respect to its duties as Remarketing Agent as shall be consistent with prudent industry practice and 
to make such books and records available for inspection by the Board at all reasonable times. 

(b) The initial Tender Agent for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds shall be as designated in the 
applicable Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate.  The Board shall appoint any successor Tender 
Agent, subject to the conditions set forth in Section 9.9(b) hereof.  Each Tender Agent shall 
designate its designated office(s) for delivery of notices and delivery of Weekly Rate Bonds and 
signify its acceptance of the duties and obligations imposed upon it hereunder by a written 
instrument of acceptance delivered to the Board and the applicable Registrar, Liquidity Provider 
and Remarketing Agent.  By acceptance of its appointment hereunder, each Tender Agent agrees: 

(i) to hold all Weekly Rate Bonds delivered to it pursuant to Section 9.4 hereof, as agent and 
bailee of, and in escrow for the benefit of, the respective owners which shall have so delivered 
such Weekly Rate Bonds until moneys representing the purchase price of such Weekly Rate Bonds 
shall have been delivered to or for the account of or to the order of such owners; 

(ii) to establish and maintain a separate segregated trust fund designated as the “State of Texas 
Veterans Bonds, Taxable Refunding Series 2024 Bond Purchase Fund” (each, a “Bond Purchase 
Fund”) (with the specific series designation to replace “2024,” if applicable), and to establish and 
maintain therein a remarketing account (the “Remarketing Account”) and a liquidity facility 
account (the “Purchase Account”), until such time as it has been discharged from its duties as 
Tender Agent hereunder; 

(iii) to hold all moneys (without investment thereof) delivered to it hereunder in the Bond 
Purchase Fund for the purchase of Weekly Rate Bonds pursuant to Section 9.4 hereof, as agent 
and bailee of, and in escrow for the benefit of, the Person which shall have so delivered such 
moneys until the Weekly Rate Bonds purchased with such moneys shall have been delivered to or 
for the account of such Person; 

(iv) to hold all moneys delivered to it by the Board for the purchase of Weekly Rate Bonds 
pursuant to Section 9.4 hereof, as agent and bailee of, and in escrow for the benefit of, the owners 
or former owners who shall deliver Weekly Rate Bonds to it for purchase until the Weekly Rate 
Bonds purchased with such moneys shall have been canceled; 

(v) to hold all Weekly Rate Bonds registered in the name of the new owners thereof which 
have been delivered to it by the applicable Registrar for delivery to the applicable Remarketing 
Agent in accordance with the provisions of this Resolution; and 

(vi) to keep such books and records as shall be consistent with standard industry practice and 
to make such books and records available for inspection by the Board, the applicable Liquidity 
Provider and the applicable Remarketing Agent at all reasonable times. 

Section 9.9. Qualifications of Remarketing Agent and Tender Agent; Resignation; Removal. 



 -40- 
 

(a) Each Remarketing Agent shall be a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory 
Authority, having a combined capital stock, surplus and undivided profits of at least $250,000,000 
and authorized by law to perform all the duties imposed upon it by this Resolution.  Any successor 
Remarketing Agent shall have, or be a subsidiary of another entity or a partnership which includes 
as a general partner an entity which shall have, senior unsecured long-term debt which shall be 
rated, so long as the Weekly Rate Bonds shall be rated by the Rating Agency, at least Baa3/P-3 (or 
its equivalent) or otherwise qualified by the Rating Agency. A Remarketing Agent may at any 
time resign and be discharged of its duties and obligations hereunder upon providing the Board 
and the applicable Tender Agent, Liquidity Provider, Paying Agent and Registrar with at least 30 
days’ (or such number of days as is required by the applicable Remarketing Agreement) prior 
written notice.  A Remarketing Agent may be removed at any time, at the direction of the Board 
with the written consent of the applicable Liquidity Provider, by an instrument signed by the Board 
and filed with the applicable Tender Agent, Registrar, Liquidity Provider and Remarketing Agent 
at least 30 days prior to the effective date of such removal.  In the event that a Remarketing Agent 
has resigned or been removed and no successor Remarketing Agent has been appointed by the 
Board, the applicable Tender Agent shall perform, or engage a Person to perform, the duties of 
such Remarketing Agent until a successor Remarketing Agent has been appointed by the Board. 

(b) Each Tender Agent shall be a bank with trust powers or a trust company duly organized 
under the laws of the United States of America or any state or territory thereof, and authorized by 
law to exercise corporate trust powers and otherwise perform all the duties imposed upon it by this 
Resolution.  A Tender Agent may at any time resign and be discharged of the duties and obligations 
created by this Resolution by giving at least 60 days’ written notice to the Board and the applicable 
Registrar, Liquidity Provider and Remarketing Agent.  A Tender Agent may be removed at any 
time by an instrument signed by the Board, filed with the applicable Tender Agent, Registrar, 
Liquidity Provider and Remarketing Agent.  Such resignation or removal shall take effect on the 
day a successor Tender Agent shall have been appointed by the Board and the successor Tender 
Agent shall have accepted such appointment. 

(c) Upon the effective date of resignation or removal of a Tender Agent, such Tender Agent 
shall deliver any Weekly Rate Bonds and moneys held by it in such capacity to its successor. 

(d) So long as any series of Weekly Rate Bonds are Outstanding, the same entity shall be the 
Tender Agent and Registrar therefor. 

Section 9.10. Notice of Weekly Rate Bonds Delivered for Purchase; Purchase of Weekly Rate 
Bonds.  (a) The Tender Agent for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds shall determine timely and proper 
delivery of Weekly Rate Bonds of such series pursuant to this Resolution and the proper 
endorsement of such Weekly Rate Bonds.  Such determination shall be binding on the owners of 
such Weekly Rate Bonds, the Board, the applicable Remarketing Agent and the applicable 
Liquidity Provider, absent manifest error.  Such Tender Agent shall give notice by telephone, e-
mail or fax, promptly confirmed by a written notice if given by telephone, to the Board and the 
applicable Registrar, Remarketing Agent and Liquidity Provider specifying the principal amount 
of Weekly Rate Bonds, if any, as to which it shall receive notice of tender for purchase in 
accordance with Section 9.4(a) hereof. 



 -41- 
 

(b) Weekly Rate Bonds required to be purchased in accordance with Section 9.4 hereof shall 
be purchased from the owners thereof, on the date and at the purchase price at which such Weekly 
Rate Bonds are required to be purchased.  Funds for the payment of such purchase price shall be 
derived from the following sources in the order of priority indicated: 

(i) proceeds of the sale of such Weekly Rate Bonds remarketed to any Person pursuant to 
Section 9.11 hereof and furnished to the applicable Tender Agent by the purchasers or by the 
applicable Remarketing Agent for deposit into the Remarketing Account of the applicable Bond 
Purchase Fund; 

(ii) moneys furnished to such Tender Agent for deposit into the Purchase Account of the 
applicable Bond Purchase Fund representing moneys received from draws on the applicable 
Liquidity Facility; and 

(iii) moneys furnished to such Tender Agent for deposit into the applicable Bond Purchase Fund 
representing moneys provided by the Board in its discretion. 

A Tender Agent may establish separate accounts or sub-accounts within the Bond Purchase 
Fund for such purposes as such Tender Agent may deem appropriate. 

(c) (i)  If ownership of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds is no longer determined only by 
a book entry at a securities depository for such Series 2024 Bonds, the applicable Registrar 
shall authenticate a new Series 2024 Bond or Series 2024 Bonds of such series in an 
aggregate principal amount equal to the principal amount of Series 2024 Bonds purchased 
in accordance with Section 9.10(b) hereof, whether or not the Weekly Rate Bonds so 
purchased are presented by the owners thereof, bearing a number or numbers not 
contemporaneously outstanding.  Every Series 2024 Bond authenticated and delivered as 
provided in this Section shall be entitled to all the benefits of this Resolution equally and 
proportionately with any and all other Series 2024 Bonds of the same series duly issued 
hereunder.  The applicable Registrar shall maintain a record of the Weekly Rate Bonds 
purchased as provided in this Section, together with the names and addresses of the former 
owners thereof.  If ownership of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds is determined only by a 
book entry at a securities depository for such Series 2024 Bonds, on any date on which 
beneficial ownership in such Weekly Rate Bonds is tendered at the option of the owner of 
such beneficial interest (acting through its DTC Participant) in accordance with Section 
9.4(a) hereof (including transfer of the beneficial ownership interest of the tendering owner 
to the account of the applicable Tender Agent at DTC), the applicable Tender Agent shall 
transfer ownership of such beneficial ownership on the records of DTC as provided in 
Section 9.12 hereof.  If ownership of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds is determined only by 
a book entry at a securities depository for such Series 2024 Bonds, on any date on which 
beneficial ownership interest in such Weekly Rate Bonds is subject to mandatory tender in 
accordance with Section 9.4 hereof, the applicable Tender Agent shall transfer beneficial 
ownership of such Series 2024 Bonds on the records of DTC as provided in Section 9.12 
hereof, regardless of whether the owners of the beneficial interests subject to mandatory 
tender transfer their beneficial ownership of such Weekly Rate Bonds to such Tender Agent 
on the records of DTC, and moneys for the purchase of the beneficial interests subject to 



 -42- 
 

mandatory tender shall be transferred by such Tender Agent to DTC for transfer to the 
owners of such beneficial interests subject to mandatory purchase. 

(ii) If ownership of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds is no longer determined only by a book 
entry at a securities depository for such Series 2024 Bonds, in the event any such Weekly Rate 
Bonds purchased as provided in this Section shall not be presented to the applicable Tender Agent, 
such Tender Agent shall segregate and hold the moneys for the purchase price of such Weekly 
Rate Bonds in trust for the benefit of the former owners of such Weekly Rate Bonds, who shall, 
except as provided in the following sentence, thereafter be restricted exclusively to such moneys 
for the satisfaction of any claim for the purchase price of such Weekly Rate Bonds.  Any moneys 
which such Tender Agent shall segregate and hold in trust for the payment of the purchase price 
of any Weekly Rate Bond and remaining unclaimed for three years after the date of purchase shall, 
subject to the unclaimed property laws of the State and upon the Board’s written request to such 
Tender Agent, be paid to the Board.  After the payment of such unclaimed moneys to the Board, 
the former owner of such Weekly Rate Bond shall look only to the Board for the payment thereof, 
and the Board shall not be liable for any interest thereon and shall not be regarded as a trustee of 
such moneys.  If ownership of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds is determined only by a book entry 
at a securities depository for such Series 2024 Bonds, if such Weekly Rate Bonds are subject to 
mandatory tender in accordance with the terms of this Resolution, then the applicable Tender 
Agent shall transfer beneficial ownership of such Series 2024 Bonds on the records of DTC as 
provided in Section 9.12 hereof, regardless of whether the owners of the beneficial interests subject 
to mandatory tender transfer their beneficial ownership of such Weekly Rate Bonds to such Tender 
Agent on the records of DTC, and moneys for the purchase of the beneficial interests subject to 
mandatory tender shall be transferred by such Tender Agent to DTC for transfer to the owners of 
such beneficial interests subject to mandatory purchase. 

Section 9.11. Remarketing of Series 2024 Bonds; Notice of Interest Rates.  (a) Upon notice of 
the tender for purchase of Weekly Rate Bonds, the applicable Remarketing Agent shall offer for 
sale and use its best efforts to sell such Weekly Rate Bonds, any such sale to be made on the date 
of such purchase in accordance with Section 9.4 hereof at the price determined in accordance with 
Section 9.4 hereof.  Each Remarketing Agent agrees that while a Liquidity Facility is in effect it 
shall not sell knowingly any Series 2024 Bonds tendered to it for purchase pursuant to Section 9.4 
hereof to the Board, or to any Person who controls, is controlled by, or is under common control 
with, the Board.  In addition, each Remarketing Agent shall offer for sale and use its best efforts 
to sell any applicable Weekly Rate Bonds that are Purchased Bonds. 

(b) Each Remarketing Agent shall determine the rate of interest to be borne by the applicable 
Series 2024 Bonds during each Interest Rate Period and shall furnish to the Board and the 
applicable Registrar on the Business Day of determination each rate of interest so determined by 
e-mail, telephone or fax, promptly confirmed in writing if given by telephone, or shall make such 
information available to the Board and such Registrar by other readily accessible electronic means. 

(c) Each Remarketing Agent shall advise the applicable Tender Agent and Liquidity Provider 
in writing or by telephone (promptly confirmed by e-mail or fax if given by telephone) not later 
than the Business Day preceding the Business Day on which any applicable Weekly Rate Bonds 
are to be purchased pursuant to Section 9.4 hereof of the aggregate principal amount of such 
Weekly Rate Bonds subject to purchase that have not been remarketed as of such time, provided 



 -43- 
 

that such Remarketing Agent may continue to remarket such Weekly Rate Bonds thereafter.  Each 
Remarketing Agent shall give e-mail or telephonic notice, promptly confirmed by a written notice 
if given by telephone, to the applicable Registrar and Tender Agent on each date on which 
applicable Weekly Rate Bonds shall have been purchased pursuant to Section 9.10(b) hereof, 
specifying the principal amount of Series 2024 Bonds, if any, sold by it pursuant to Section 9.11(a) 
hereof along with, if the applicable series of Series 2024 Bonds are not registered as described in 
Section 2.10 hereof, a list of such purchasers showing the names and denominations in which such 
Series 2024 Bonds shall be registered, and the addresses and social security or taxpayer 
identification numbers of such purchasers.  Each Remarketing Agent will transfer the proceeds 
received from the purchasers named in such notice to the applicable Tender Agent by 10:00 a.m., 
New York City time, on the Business Day on which such Weekly Rate Bonds are purchased. 

Section 9.12. Delivery of Series 2024 Bonds.  (a) Weekly Rate Bonds purchased with moneys 
described in clause (i) of Section 9.10(b) hereof shall be made available by the applicable Tender 
Agent to the applicable Remarketing Agent for delivery to the purchasers thereof against payment 
therefor. 

(b) Except as otherwise provided in a Liquidity Facility, Weekly Rate Bonds purchased with 
moneys described in clause (ii) of Section 9.10(b) hereof shall be held by the applicable Tender 
Agent on behalf of the applicable Liquidity Provider as Purchased Bonds, and shall not be released 
following the remarketing thereof unless such Tender Agent has received written confirmation 
from such Liquidity Provider that the applicable Liquidity Facility has been reinstated with respect 
to such Series 2024 Bonds. 

(c) Weekly Rate Bonds purchased with moneys described in clause (iii) of Section 9.10(b) 
hereof shall be canceled. 

(d) Series 2024 Bonds delivered as provided in this Section shall be registered in the manner 
directed by the recipient thereof. 

Section 9.13. Delivery of Proceeds of Sale.  The proceeds of the sale by a Remarketing Agent of 
any applicable Weekly Rate Bonds delivered to it by any Holder shall be turned over to the 
applicable Tender Agent. 

Section 9.14. Draws on Liquidity Facility to Pay Purchase Price of Weekly Rate Bonds.  Each 
Tender Agent, on each day on which applicable Weekly Rate Bonds are required to be purchased 
pursuant to Section 9.4 hereof, is directed to make drawings under the applicable Liquidity Facility 
by such times and in such manner as shall be required to receive in immediately available funds 
on such date amounts sufficient (based upon the amount on deposit in the Remarketing Account 
of the applicable Bond Purchase Fund by 10:00 a.m., New York City time, on such day) to pay the 
purchase price plus accrued interest, if any, of Weekly Rate Bonds tendered for purchase or 
required to be purchased pursuant to the provisions of this Resolution and that have not been 
remarketed by the applicable Remarketing Agent, and to deposit the proceeds of such drawings or 
cause such proceeds to be deposited in the Purchase Account of the applicable Bond Purchase 
Fund pending application of such moneys to the payment of the purchase price of such Weekly 
Rate Bonds.  In determining the amount of any such purchase price then due, such Tender Agent 
shall not take into consideration any purchase price due on such Weekly Rate Bonds held by the 



 -44- 
 

Board or any affiliate thereof, and no drawings under such Liquidity Facility shall be made or be 
used to pay the purchase price of any Purchased Bonds or Weekly Rate Bonds held by the Board 
or any affiliate thereof. 

Section 9.15. Insufficient Funds for Purchase of Weekly Rate Bonds.  If payment of the purchase 
price of any Weekly Rate Bond shall not be made to the Holder thereof on any date such Weekly 
Rate Bond has been tendered for purchase pursuant to Section 9.4 hereof, such Weekly Rate Bond 
shall be returned by the applicable Tender Agent to the Holder thereof, and shall continue to bear 
interest at a Weekly Interest Rate determined as provided in Section 9.2 hereof. 

Section 9.16. Notices.  (a)  Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Resolution or set forth 
in the applicable Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate, it shall be sufficient service of any 
notice, request, complaint, demand or other paper if the same shall be duly mailed by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, or by overnight delivery service, 
addressed as follows or delivered by facsimile to the numbers provided as follows: 

If to the Board: Veterans’ Land Board of the State of Texas 
 1700 North Congress Avenue, Room 740C 
 Austin, Texas  78701-1496 
 Attn:  Director of VLB Bond Funds Management 
 Telephone:  (512) 475-4004 
 Facsimile:  (512) 463-5081 

 
If to a Tender Agent 
   or Registrar: as set forth in the applicable Purchase Contract or Pricing 

Certificate 
 
If to a Remarketing Agent: as set forth in the applicable Purchase Contract or Pricing 

Certificate 
 
 
If to a Liquidity Provider: as set forth in the applicable Purchase Contract or Pricing 

Certificate 
 

If to a Paying Agent: Comptroller of Public Accounts 
 Treasury Operations 
 Attention: Funds Transfer 

 208 E. 10th Street 
 Austin, Texas  78701 

Telephone: (512) 463-5905 
E-mail: funds.transfer@cpa.texas.gov 

 
If to a Rating Agency: as set forth in the applicable Purchase Contract or Pricing 

Certificate 
 

Except as otherwise provided or directed herein, a duplicate copy of each notice, certificate 
or other communication given hereunder by the Board, a Liquidity Provider, a Paying Agent, a 



 -45- 
 

Registrar, a Remarketing Agent or a Tender Agent to any one of the others or the Holders shall 
also be given to all of the others.  The Board, a Liquidity Provider, a Paying Agent, a Registrar, a 
Remarketing Agent or a Tender Agent may, by notice given hereunder, designate any further or 
different addresses or telephone numbers to which subsequent notices, certificates or other 
communications shall be sent. 

(b) The Board shall provide to the applicable Rating Agency notice in writing or by telephone 
or fax, promptly confirmed in writing, of 

(i) any resignation or removal of any applicable Paying Agent, Registrar, Tender Agent or 
Remarketing Agent, and the appointment of any successor thereto; 

(ii) any conversion of an applicable series of Weekly Rate Bonds to Fixed Rate Bonds; 

(iii) any termination, expiration, replacement, suspension or modification of the applicable 
Liquidity Facility; 

(iv) the payment in full of the applicable series of Weekly Rate Bonds; 

(v) any mandatory tender of the applicable series of Weekly Rate Bonds; and 

(vi) any amendment or material change to this Resolution. 

(c) The Board shall provide or cause to be provided to each Rating Agency such information 
as is reasonably requested in order to maintain its rating on the applicable series of Weekly Rate 
Bonds. 

ARTICLE X 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 10.1. Benefits of Resolution.  Nothing in this Resolution or in the Series 2024 Bonds, 
express or implied, shall give to any Person, other than the Board and each Paying Agent, 
Registrar, Tender Agent, Liquidity Provider and Remarketing Agent and their successors 
hereunder and the Holders, any benefit or any legal or equitable right, remedy or claim under this 
Resolution. 

Section 10.2. Bonds to Rank Equally.  None of the Bonds shall be entitled to priority over any 
other Bond in the application of moneys in Fund II, nor in the application of moneys appropriated 
by the Legislature of the State or otherwise made available by law for the payment of principal of 
and interest on the Bonds, irrespective of the fact that some of the Bonds may be delivered prior 
to the delivery of other Bonds, it being the intent of this Resolution that all Bonds shall rank 
equally. 

Section 10.3. Enforcement.  All rights available to the Holders under the Constitution and laws 
of the State, by suit for mandamus or otherwise, to compel the performance of their official duties 
by the Board, its officers and employees, and by other officers of the State to the end that the 



 -46- 
 

principal of and interest on the Series 2024 Bonds may be paid promptly, are hereby recognized 
and reserved to and for the Holders. 

Section 10.4. Separability Clause.  In case any provision in this Resolution shall be invalid, illegal 
or unenforceable, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not in 
any way be affected or impaired thereby. 

Section 10.5. Governing Law.  This Resolution shall be construed in accordance with and 
governed by the laws of the State. 

Section 10.6. Open Meeting.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which the Series 2024 Bonds were authorized was open to the public as required by law and public 
notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by Chapter 551 of the 
Texas Government Code, as amended. 

Section 10.7. References to Liquidity Provider.  Any provision of this Resolution regarding the 
consent of, or notice to, or mandating the direction of action by, a Liquidity Provider shall, except 
as expressly provided, be deemed ineffective (i) if the applicable Liquidity Facility is no longer in 
effect and no amount is due and owing under such Liquidity Facility, or (ii) as long as such 
Liquidity Provider has failed to honor a properly presented and conforming drawing under such 
Liquidity Facility; provided, that except as otherwise expressly set forth herein, for as long as any 
Purchased Bonds are Outstanding, the applicable Liquidity Provider shall be afforded all the rights 
and privileges granted hereunder to Holders of the Weekly Rate Bonds of the applicable series. 

Section 10.8. Liquidity Facilities Authorized.  In connection with the issuance of any series of 
Weekly Rate Bonds, the Authorized Representatives are hereby severally authorized and directed, 
in the name and on behalf of the Board, to cause to be issued a Liquidity Facility in accordance 
with the “Resolution of the Veterans’ Land Board of the State of Texas Authorizing Liquidity 
Facilities Relating to Bonds Issued or to be Issued in Connection with the Veterans’ Land Program 
or the Veterans’ Housing Assistance Program, and Providing for Other Matters Relating to the 
Subject” adopted by the Board on this date or in any comparable resolution adopted by the Board 
hereafter. 

Section 10.9. Remarketing Agreements Authorized.  In connection with the issuance of any series 
of Weekly Rate Bonds, the Authorized Representatives are hereby severally authorized and 
directed to act for and on behalf of the Board to approve, execute and deliver the related 
Remarketing Agreement. 

Section 10.10. Tender Agent Agreements Authorized.  In connection with the issuance of any 
series of Weekly Rate Bonds, if requested by the Tender Agent for such series, the Authorized 
Representatives are hereby severally authorized and directed to act for and on behalf of the Board 
to approve, execute and deliver the related Tender Agent Agreement. 

Section 10.11. Reduction of Available Commitment.  In connection with the issuance of any series 
of Series 2024 Bonds, the Authorized Representatives are hereby severally authorized and 
directed, in the name and on behalf of the Board, to cause the available commitment under any 
liquidity facility for the applicable Refunded Bonds to be reduced on the redemption date to reflect 
the redemption of such Refunded Bonds. 



 -47- 
 

Section 10.12. .  Designation and Redemption of Refunded Bonds.  In connection with the issuance 
of any series of Series 2024 Bonds, the Authorized Representatives are hereby severally authorized 
and directed, in the name and on behalf of the Board, to designate the related Refunded Bonds and 
cause the redemption of such Refunded Bonds in accordance with the “Resolution of the Veterans’ 
Land Board of the State of Texas Authorizing the Redemption of Certain Bonds Issued in 
Connection with the Veterans’ Housing Assistance Program; and Providing for Other Matters 
Relating to the Subject” adopted by the Board on this date. 

Section 10.13. Payment of Refunded Bonds.  (a)  On the Settlement Date for a series of Series 2024 
Bonds, the Board shall cause, from the proceeds of such Bonds and other available funds or 
resources of the Board, an amount sufficient to provide for the payment when due of the 
redemption price of the applicable Refunded Bonds, to be deposited with Comptroller as paying 
agent for such Refunded Bonds, such deposit to constitute the making of firm banking and financial 
arrangements for the discharge and final redemption of such Refunded Bonds within the meaning 
of Section 1207.033 of Chapter 1207. 

(b) If any Refunded Bonds are to be redeemed other than on the Settlement Date for the related 
Series 2024 Bonds, the deposit made pursuant to this Section 10.13 shall be invested, to the extent, 
if any, determined to be practicable by an Authorized Representative, in direct obligations of the 
United States of America that will mature and/or bear interest payable at such times and in such 
amounts as will be sufficient to provide for the scheduled redemption or payment of such Refunded 
Bonds.  An Authorized Representative may cause the deposit made pursuant to this Section 10,13 
to be increased in an amount determined by such Authorized Representative to enable such deposit 
to be fully invested.  Any moneys not so invested shall be held uninvested and collateralized to the 
extent required by law. 

Section 10.14. Partial Transfer of Interest Rate Swap Transactions.  Effective on the Settlement 
Date for a series of Series 2024 Bonds, the Board hereby exercises its right to transfer to such 
Series 2024 Bonds the portion of each interest rate swap transaction relating to the applicable 
Refunded Bonds. 

Section 10.15. Authorization of Additional Acts.  The officers, employees, and agents of the 
Board, and each of them, shall be and each is expressly authorized, empowered, and directed from 
time to time and at any time to do and perform all acts and things and to execute, acknowledge, 
and deliver in the name and under the seal and on behalf of the Board all certificates, instruments, 
and other papers, whether or not herein mentioned, as they may determine to be necessary or 
desirable in connection with the proposed issuance of the Series 2024 Bonds, including without 
limitation (a) the filing of a notice of intention to issue bonds with the Bond Review Board of the 
State, and (b) the submission of a transcript of proceedings for approval of the Attorney General, 
such determination to be conclusively evidenced by the performance of such acts and things and 
the execution of any such certificate, instrument, or other paper, and any such actions heretofore 
carried out by such officers, employees, and agents of the Board are hereby ratified, approved, and 
confirmed.  Prior to each Settlement Date, the Authorized Representatives and Bond Counsel are 
hereby authorized to approve any technical changes or corrections to this Resolution, or to any of 
the instruments authorized by this Resolution, necessary in order to (i) correct any ambiguity or 
mistake or more completely document the transactions contemplated and approved by this 



 -48- 
 

Resolution, (ii) obtain a rating from the Rating Agency, or (iii) obtain the approval of the 
Series 2024 Bonds by the Attorney General. 

 



Signature Page to Updated Bond Resolution (Taxable 2024) 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED this the 25th day of June, 2024. 

 
 
 

   /s/  Dawn Buckingham, M.D.    
Chairwoman 
Veterans’ Land Board of the State of Texas 

 

ATTEST: 
 
 
   /s/  Anthony W. Dale     
Executive Secretary 
Veterans’ Land Board of the State of Texas 
 



 A-2 

EXHIBIT A 

FORM OF WEEKLY RATE BOND 

[Unless this bond is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Trust Company, 
a New York corporation (“DTC”), to the Issuer or its agent for registration of transfer, exchange, 
or payment, and any certificate issued is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or in such other 
name as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC (and any payment is made to Cede 
& Co. or to such other entity as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC), ANY 
TRANSFER, PLEDGE, OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO 
ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the registered owner hereof, Cede & Co., has an 
interest herein.]1 

NO. WR-____          $__________ 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
 

STATE OF TEXAS 
VETERANS BOND, 

TAXABLE REFUNDING SERIES 20242 

MATURITY DATE: INTEREST RATE: BOND DATE: CUSIP NUMBER: 3 

_________, ____ Variable ____________, 2024 ______ ___ 

 

ON THE MATURITY DATE SPECIFIED ABOVE, the State of Texas (hereinafter 
sometimes called the “Issuer”), acting by and through the Veterans’ Land Board (the “Board”) of 
the Issuer, hereby promises to pay to ________________________________, or to the registered 
assignee hereof (either being hereinafter called the “Holder”) the principal amount of 
________________________________________ DOLLARS and to pay interest thereon, from 
[the Settlement Date]4 [the bond date stated above]5 to the date of its scheduled maturity or the 
date of its redemption prior to scheduled maturity, at the rate of interest per annum determined 
pursuant to the Resolution (defined below), with said interest being payable on each Interest 
Payment Date (computed on the basis of a 365/366-day year, for the number of days actually 
elapsed). 

UNLESS OTHERWISE DEFINED herein, capitalized words and terms used in this Bond 
and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings ascribed to such terms in the Resolution 
(defined below). 

 
1  To be included in any Series 2024 Bond registered in the name of Cede & Co. 
2  Series designation to be added if necessary. 
3  To be omitted from the Initial Series 2024 Bond of any series. 
4  To be included in the Initial Series 2024 Bond of any series. 
5  To be included in all Weekly Rate Bonds except an Initial Series 2024 Bond. 



 A-3 

THE PRINCIPAL OF AND PREMIUM, IF ANY, AND INTEREST ON this Bond are 
payable in lawful money of the United States of America, without exchange or collection charges.  
The principal of and premium, if any, on this Bond shall be paid to the registered owner hereof 
upon presentation and surrender of this Bond at maturity or upon the date fixed for its redemption 
prior to maturity, at the designated office of the Paying Agent for the Bonds (defined below), which 
is initially the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas in Austin, Texas.  The payment 
of interest on this Bond shall be made by the Paying Agent to the registered owner hereof as shown 
by the Registration Books kept and maintained by the Registrar for the Bonds, which is initially 
_______________________, at the close of business on the Business Day immediately preceding 
each Interest Payment Date (including each redemption date) (each, a “Record Date”) by check 
drawn by the Paying Agent on, and payable solely from, funds of the Board required to be on 
deposit with the Paying Agent for such purpose as hereinafter provided; and such check shall be 
sent by the Paying Agent by first class United States mail, postage prepaid, on each such Interest 
Payment Date, to the Holder hereof at its address as it appears on the Registration Books kept and 
maintained by the Registrar, as hereinafter described.  The Paying Agent shall make payment of 
the principal of and premium, if any, or interest on any Bond by wire transfer in immediately 
available funds to a bank account located within the United States of Federal Reserve Funds to the 
Liquidity Provider (in the case of any Purchased Bond) and to any Holder of $1,000,000 or more 
in aggregate principal amount of Bonds requesting such payment and providing the necessary wire 
information to the Paying Agent at least 15 days prior to the applicable Record Date.  The Board 
covenants with the Holder of this Bond that as of each Interest Payment Date for this Bond it will 
make available to the Paying Agent the amounts required to provide for the payment, in 
immediately available funds, of all principal of and interest on the Bonds, when due.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, during any period in which ownership of the Bonds is determined 
only by a book entry at a securities depository for the Bonds, payments made to the securities 
depository, or its nominee, shall be made in accordance with arrangements between the Board and 
the securities depository. 

THIS BOND is one of a series of bonds of like tenor and effect except as to number, 
principal amount and scheduled maturity, aggregating ___________________6 Dollars 
($_____________)6 (the “Bonds”), issued for the purpose of making Home Loans to Texas 
Veterans, all in accordance with the provisions of the Constitutional Provision, the Act and Chapter 
1207, and pursuant to a resolution authorizing the issuance of the series of Bonds of which this is 
one, adopted by the Board and duly of record in the minutes of the Board (the “Resolution”). The 
Bonds are issuable solely as fully registered bonds, without interest coupons, in Authorized 
Denominations as described in the Resolution. 

THE SERIES OF BONDS of which this is one shall be and is hereby made a general 
obligation of the State of Texas, pursuant to the Constitutional Provision and the Act, and for the 
faithful performance of all covenants, recitals and stipulations herein contained, and for the faithful 
performance in proper time and manner of each official or other act required and necessary to 
provide for the prompt payment of principal of and interest on this Bond when due, the full faith 
and credit of the State of Texas are hereby pledged. 

 
6  The original aggregate principal amount of a series of the Series 2024 Bonds set forth in the related Purchase 

Contract or Pricing Certificate should be set forth here. 



 A-4 

PAYMENTS OF THE PRINCIPAL OF and premium, if any, and interest on this Bond, 
shall be made primarily from the Veterans’ Housing Assistance Fund II (“Fund II”) governed by 
the Constitutional Provision, which fund shall be comprised of (a) any interest of the Board in all 
Home Loans made from money in Fund II pursuant to the Program, including proceeds of any 
insurance thereon or on the homes, (b) the proceeds derived from the sale or other disposition of 
the Board’s interests in Home Loans, (c) the money attributable to any Housing Assistance Bonds 
(defined below) (except for certain expenses related to the issuance of Housing Assistance Bonds) 
issued and sold by the Board to provide money for Fund II which shall include but shall not be 
limited to the proceeds from the issuance and sale of such Housing Assistance Bonds, (d) income, 
rents, and any other pecuniary benefit received by the Board as a result of making Home Loans, 
(e) sums received by way of indemnity or forfeiture for the failure of any bidder for the purchase 
of any Housing Assistance Bonds to comply with the person’s bid and accept and pay for such 
Housing Assistance Bonds, (f) payments received by the Board under bond enhancement 
agreements with respect to the Housing Assistance Bonds, (g) interest received from investments 
of any such money, and (h) any equitable interest of the Board in properties encumbered by Home 
Loans and attributable to Fund II.  The Bonds and all other bonds issued by the Board pursuant to 
the Constitution of the State to augment Fund II or to refund any such bonds are referred to herein 
as “Housing Assistance Bonds.”  The Constitutional Provision provides that to the extent there is 
not money in Fund II available for payment of principal of and interest on the Housing Assistance 
Bonds, there is appropriated out of the first money coming into the State Treasury in each fiscal 
year, not otherwise appropriated by the Texas Constitution, an amount which is sufficient to pay 
the principal of and interest on such Housing Assistance Bonds that mature or become due during 
that fiscal year. 

THE BONDS will initially be issued as Weekly Rate Bonds bearing interest at a Weekly 
Interest Rate.  Thereafter, each Bond, at the election of the Board, may be changed to a Fixed Rate 
Bond bearing interest at a Fixed Interest Rate determined by the Remarketing Agent in accordance 
with the Resolution; provided, however, that in no event shall the interest rate on any Bond, 
including Purchased Bonds, exceed the Ceiling Rate.  In addition, the interest rate on Purchased 
Bonds shall not exceed the Maximum Purchased Bond Rate.  The terms of this Bond shall not 
apply to Fixed Rate Bonds, and as used in this Bond, the term “Bond” or “Bonds” shall not include 
Fixed Rate Bonds. 

THE WEEKLY INTEREST RATE for the Bonds shall be determined by the Remarketing 
Agent by 4:30 p.m., New York City time, on Tuesday of each week during such Weekly Interest 
Rate Period, or if such day shall not be a Business Day, then on the next succeeding Business Day.  
The interest rate so determined shall be effective at the times set forth in the Resolution. 

IN DETERMINING each Weekly Interest Rate for the Bonds, the Remarketing Agent shall 
set such rates at the respective interest rates that, in the sole and exclusive judgment of the 
Remarketing Agent, would equal (but not exceed) the interest rates necessary to enable the 
Remarketing Agent to sell such Bonds (exclusive of accrued interest, if any) on the relevant 
determination date, at a price equal to the principal amount thereof; provided, however, that such 
interest rate shall not exceed the Ceiling Rate. 

NOTWITHSTANDING anything to the contrary contained herein, this Bond, if held by or 
for the account of the Liquidity Provider as a Purchased Bond, shall bear interest at the Purchased 



 A-5 

Bond Rate, payable at the times and in the manner and calculated on the basis provided in the 
Liquidity Facility; provided, however, that the Purchased Bond Rate shall not exceed the 
Maximum Purchased Bond Rate as provided in the Resolution. 

THE BONDS (including Purchased Bonds) shall be subject to scheduled mandatory 
sinking fund redemption and shall be redeemed on the first Business Day of the months and in the 
respective principal amounts set forth in the table below, at a redemption price equal to the 
principal amount thereof, without premium, plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption: 

Redemption Date Principal Amount Redemption Date Principal Amount7 

    
    
    

 

The principal amount of Bonds to be redeemed on each such redemption date pursuant to 
mandatory sinking fund redemption shall be reduced, at the option of the Board, by the principal 
amount of any Bonds [of the same stated maturity]8 which (i) at least 45 days prior to such 
mandatory sinking fund redemption date, (a) shall have been acquired by the Board and delivered 
to the Registrar for cancellation, or (b) shall have been acquired and canceled by the Registrar at 
the direction of the Board, or (c) shall have been redeemed pursuant to any redemption provision 
set forth below and (ii) shall have not been previously credited against a scheduled mandatory 
sinking fund redemption. 

THE BONDS (including Purchased Bonds) shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity 
on the first Business Day of any month, at the option and direction of the Board, in whole or in 
part, at a redemption price of par plus accrued interest.  [In the case of any such redemption, the 
Board shall select the maturity or maturities of the Bonds to be redeemed and the amounts thereof 
in Authorized Denominations.]8 

IN THE EVENT of any redemption of less than all of the Bonds [of a particular maturity]8, 
the particular Bonds [within each such maturity]8 to be redeemed are to be selected by the Registrar 
by lot in such manner as the Registrar shall deem fair and appropriate.  During any period in which 
ownership of the Bonds is determined only by a book entry at a securities depository for the Bonds, 
if less than the entire principal amount Outstanding of all the Bonds is to be redeemed, the interests 
to be redeemed of the beneficial owners of the Bonds [of such maturity]9 shall be selected in 
accordance with the arrangements between the Board and the securities depository.  In the event 
of any redemption of Bonds, Purchased Bonds shall be selected first for redemption in the manner 
described in the Resolution. 

 
7  The amounts set forth in the Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate should be included in the table.  Additional 

tables shall be added if there is more than one stated maturity of a series of Series 2024 Bonds, with a heading 
above each table identifying the stated maturity of the Series 2024 Bonds to which such table relates. 

8  Bracketed text to be deleted if there is only one stated maturity of the series of Series 2024 Bonds. 
9  Bracketed text to be deleted if there is only one stated maturity of the series of Series 2024 Bonds. 



 A-6 

AT LEAST 30 days prior to the date fixed for any such redemption of this Bond, a written 
notice of such redemption shall be sent by first class mail, postage prepaid, by the Registrar to the 
Holder hereof.  By the date fixed for any such redemption, due provision shall be made by the 
Board with the Paying Agent for the payment of the required redemption price for this Bond or 
the portion hereof which is to be so redeemed.  If such written notice of redemption is given, and 
if due provision for such payment is made, all as provided above, this Bond, or the portion hereof 
which is to be redeemed, thereby automatically shall be redeemed prior to its scheduled maturity, 
and shall not bear interest after the date fixed for its redemption, and shall not be regarded as being 
Outstanding except for the right of the Holder to receive the redemption price plus accrued interest 
to the date fixed for redemption from the Paying Agent out of the funds provided for such payment.  
The Registrar shall record in the Registration Books all such redemptions of principal of this Bond 
or any portion hereof.  If a portion of any Bond shall be redeemed, a substitute Bond [having the 
same maturity date,]9 in any Authorized Denomination that may be requested by the Holder 
thereof, and in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion thereof, will be 
issued to the Holder upon the surrender thereof for cancellation, at the expense of the Board, all as 
provided in the Resolution. 

IN ADDITION to the notice of redemption required above, the Registrar shall send notice 
of redemption of Bonds by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, 
or by overnight delivery service contemporaneously with such mailing:  (a) to any registered owner 
of $1,000,000 or more in aggregate principal amount of Bonds; (b) to two or more information 
services of national recognition that disseminate redemption information with respect to municipal 
bonds; and (c) to any securities depository that is a registered owner of the Bonds.  In addition, in 
the event of a redemption caused by an advance refunding of the Bonds, the Registrar shall send a 
second notice of redemption to all registered owners of the Bonds at least 30 days but not more 
than 90 days prior to the actual redemption date.  Any notice required to be sent to any registered 
securities depositories or national information services shall be sent so that it is received at least 
two (2) days prior to the general mailing date of such notice.  The Registrar shall also send a notice 
of redemption to the registered owner of any Bond who has not sent the Bonds in for redemption 
60 days after the redemption date.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the failure to give any notice 
of redemption set forth in this paragraph or any defect in such notice or the mailing thereof shall 
not affect the validity of any proceedings for redemption of Bonds. 

ANY BONDS, subject to the requirements regarding timely notice and delivery, will be 
purchased, in accordance with the provisions of the Resolution, on the demand of the Holder 
thereof as provided in the Resolution and delivery to the Tender Agent of such Bond, endorsed in 
blank by the Holder thereof or accompanied by an instrument of transfer thereof in form 
satisfactory to the Tender Agent, executed in blank by the Holder thereof (the Tender Agent being 
able to refuse to accept delivery of any such Bond not endorsed in blank or for which an instrument 
of transfer satisfactory to it has not been provided).  THE TIMELY DELIVERY OF A 
PROPERLY COMPLETED TENDER REQUEST NOTICE SHALL CONSTITUTE AN 
IRREVOCABLE TENDER OF THE BONDS COVERED THEREBY. 

THE BONDS WILL BE SUBJECT to mandatory tender for purchase on the Business Days 
and under the circumstances specified in the Resolution. 



 A-7 

EACH BOND SHALL BE SUBJECT to mandatory tender for purchase on the Fixed Rate 
Conversion Date. 

IF THE HOLDER HEREOF FAILS TO DELIVER THIS BOND OR ANY PORTION 
HEREOF TO THE TENDER AGENT AFTER GIVING NOTICE OF AN OPTIONAL TENDER, 
OR UPON A MANDATORY TENDER, AND MONEYS SUFFICIENT TO PAY THE 
PURCHASE PRICE OF THIS BOND ARE ON DEPOSIT WITH THE TENDER AGENT, THIS 
BOND OR PORTION HEREOF SHALL BE DEEMED TO HAVE PURCHASED, AND 
THEREAFTER NO FURTHER INTEREST SHALL ACCRUE ON THIS BOND OR SUCH 
PORTION.  THE HOLDER HEREOF SHALL THEREAFTER HAVE RECOURSE SOLELY 
TO THE FUNDS HELD BY THE TENDER AGENT FOR THE PURCHASE OF THIS BOND, 
AND THE TENDER AGENT SHALL NOT RECOGNIZE ANY FURTHER TRANSFER 
HEREOF. 

WHENEVER, during the term of the Bonds, the beneficial ownership thereof is determined 
by a book entry at DTC (or any successor securities depository), tenders of Bonds shall be made 
pursuant to DTC’s (or any successor securities depository’s) deliver order procedures or 
repayment option procedures, as applicable, as are in effect from time to time.  Upon remarketing 
of Bonds, payment of the purchase price thereof shall be made to DTC (or any successor securities 
depository) and no surrender of Bonds is required.  Such sales shall be made through the DTC 
Participants (which may include the Remarketing Agent) to the new beneficial owners of such 
Bonds, and the DTC Participants shall transmit payment to beneficial owners whose Bonds were 
purchased pursuant to a remarketing.  The Board and the Registrar, the Paying Agent, the Tender 
Agent, the Liquidity Provider and the Remarketing Agent are not responsible for transfer of 
payment to the DTC Participants or beneficial owners. 

THIS BOND or any portion or portions hereof in any Authorized Denomination may be 
assigned and shall be transferred only in the Registration Books of the Board kept and maintained 
by the Registrar acting in the capacity of registrar for the Bonds, upon the terms and conditions set 
forth in the Resolution.  Among other requirements for such assignment and transfer, this Bond 
must be presented and surrendered to the Registrar, together with proper instruments of 
assignment, in form and with guarantee of signatures satisfactory to the Registrar, evidencing 
assignment of this Bond or any portion or portions hereof, in any Authorized Denomination, to the 
assignee or assignees in whose name or names this Bond or any such portion or portions hereof is 
or are to be transferred and registered.  The form of Assignment printed or endorsed on this Bond 
may be executed by the registered owner to evidence the assignment hereof, but such method is 
not exclusive, and other instruments of assignment satisfactory to the Registrar may be used to 
evidence the assignment of this Bond or any portion or portions hereof from time to time by the 
registered owner.  A new Bond or Bonds payable to such assignee (which then will be the new 
registered owner of such new Bond or Bonds), or to the previous registered owner in the case of 
the assignment and transfer of only a portion of this Bond, may be delivered by the Registrar in 
conversion of and exchange for this Bond, all in the form and manner as provided in the next 
paragraph hereof for the conversion and exchange of other Bonds.  Except in the case of tenders 
of Bonds pursuant to the Resolution or of the remarketing of Purchased Bonds, neither the Board 
nor the Registrar shall be required (a) to issue, replace, transfer, or exchange any Bond during a 
period beginning at the opening of business 30 days before the day of the first mailing of a notice 
of redemption of Bonds and ending at the close of business on the day of such mailing or (b) to 



 A-8 

replace, transfer or exchange any Bond so selected for redemption in whole or in part when such 
redemption is scheduled to occur within 30 calendar days; except that at the option of the registered 
owner of at least $1,000,000 in principal amount of Bonds, the Registrar shall be required to 
transfer or exchange any Bond of such owner which has been selected in whole or in part for 
redemption upon surrender thereof.  The Registrar may make such arrangements as it deems 
appropriate for notation on each new Bond issued in exchange for or upon the transfer of the Bond 
so selected for redemption of an appropriate legend to the effect that such new Bond has been so 
selected for redemption.  The registered owner of this Bond shall be treated by the Issuer, the 
Board, the Paying Agent and the Registrar as the absolute owner hereof for all purposes, including 
payment and discharge of liability upon this Bond to the extent of such payment, and the Issuer, 
the Board, the Paying Agent and the Registrar shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary.  
The Board shall pay the Registrar’s reasonable and standard or customary fees and charges for 
making such transfer, but the one requesting such transfer shall pay any taxes or other 
governmental charges required to be paid with respect thereto. 

AS PROVIDED in the Resolution, this Bond, or any portion hereof, may, at the request of 
the registered owner or the assignee or assignees hereof, be converted into and exchanged for a 
like aggregate principal amount of fully registered Bonds, without interest coupons, payable to the 
appropriate registered owner, assignee, or assignees, as the case may be, having the same maturity 
date, in the same Interest Mode, bearing interest at the same rate, and in any Authorized 
Denomination, as requested in writing by the appropriate registered owner, assignee, or assignees, 
as the case may be, upon surrender of this Bond to the Registrar for cancellation, all in accordance 
with the form and procedures set forth in the Resolution.  The one requesting such conversion and 
exchange shall pay the Registrar’s reasonable and standard or customary fees and charges for 
converting and exchanging any Bond or portion thereof, together with any taxes or governmental 
charges required to be paid with respect thereto, all as a condition precedent to the exercise of such 
privilege of conversion and exchange; except, however, that in the case of the conversion and 
exchange of an assigned and transferred Bond or Bonds or any portion or portions thereof in any 
Authorized Denomination, as described in the previous paragraph, and in the case of the 
conversion and exchange of a portion of the unredeemed portion of a Bond which has been 
redeemed in part prior to maturity, as provided herein, such fees and charges will be paid by the 
Board. 

WHENEVER the beneficial ownership of this Bond is determined only by a book entry at 
a securities depository for the Bonds, the foregoing requirements of registering, holding, 
delivering, exchanging or transferring this Bond shall be modified to require the appropriate 
Person to meet the requirements of the securities depository as to registering, holding, delivering, 
exchanging or transferring the book entry to produce the same effect. 

IN THE EVENT that the initial Paying Agent or Registrar for the Bonds is changed by the 
Board, resigns, or otherwise ceases to act as such, the Board has covenanted in the Resolution that 
it promptly will appoint a competent and legally qualified substitute therefor, whose qualifications 
comply with the requirements of the Resolution, and that one entity will serve as Paying Agent 
and Registrar, except during periods when the Bonds are registered only by means of a book entry 
at a securities depository, and promptly will cause written notice thereof to be mailed to the 
registered owners of the Bonds. 



 A-9 

BY BECOMING the registered owner of this Bond, the registered owner thereby 
acknowledges all of the terms and provisions of the Resolution, agrees to be bound by such terms 
and provisions, acknowledges that the Resolution is duly recorded and available for inspection in 
the official minutes and records of the Board, and agrees that the terms and provisions of this Bond 
and the Resolution constitute a contract between each registered owner hereof and the Board. 

THE BOARD reserves the right to amend the Resolution, as deemed necessary or desirable 
by the Board, with the consent of the registered owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount 
of the Bonds then Outstanding under the terms and conditions stated in the Resolution.  The Board 
may, without the consent of the registered owners of the Bonds, adopt certain amendments to the 
Resolution as set forth in the Resolution. 

IN THE EVENT of any conflict or inconsistency between the terms and provisions of this 
Bond and the terms and provisions of the Resolution, the terms and provisions of the Resolution 
shall control. 

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED and recited that all acts, conditions and things required to be 
done precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond and the series of which it forms a part have 
been properly done, have happened and have been performed in regular and due time, form and 
manner as required by the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas and the Resolution, that the 
series of Bonds of which this is a part does not exceed any Constitutional or statutory limitation, 
and that provision has been made for the payment of the principal of and interest on this Bond and 
the series of which it is a part by a pledge of the credit of the Issuer and of the funds specified 
herein. 

[UNLESS THE COMPTROLLER’S REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE hereon has been 
executed by the Comptroller by manual signature, this Bond shall not be entitled to any benefit 
under the Resolution or be valid or obligatory for any purpose.]10  

[UNLESS THE REGISTRAR’S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE hereon has been 
executed by the Registrar by manual signature, this Bond shall not be entitled to any benefit under 
the Resolution or be valid or obligatory for any purpose.]11  

 

 
10  To be included in an Initial Series 2024 Bond only. 
11  To be included in all Series 2024 Bonds of a series other than the Initial Series 2024 Bond. 



 A-10 

IN TESTIMONY HEREOF, this Bond is executed with the manual or facsimile signatures 
of the Chairwoman of the Board and of the Executive Secretary of the Board, and the seal of said 
Board impressed, lithographed or printed hereon. 

 THE STATE OF TEXAS 
 
 
 
 _________________________ 
 Chairwoman, Veterans’ Land Board 
   of the State of Texas 
 
________________________ 
Executive Secretary, Veterans’ 
  Land Board of the State of Texas 
 
(SEAL) 
 



 A-11 

*FORM OF REGISTRAR’S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATION ATTACHED TO 
WEEKLY RATE BONDS OTHER THAN AN INITIAL SERIES 2024 BOND 

REGISTRAR’S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE 

It is hereby certified that this Bond has been issued under the provisions of the Resolution 
described in this Bond; and that this Bond has been issued in conversion of and exchange for or 
replacement of a bond, bonds, or a portion of a bond or bonds of an issue which originally was 
approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered by the Comptroller of Public 
Accounts of the State of Texas. 

Dated: _______________________ _______________________________, 
     ____________, ____________, 
 Registrar 
 
 
 By:  _______________________________ 
  Authorized Representative 
 

  



 A-12 

*FORM OF ASSIGNMENT 

ASSIGNMENT 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
(Please print or typewrite name and address, including zip code of Transferee) 

Please insert Social Security 
or Taxpayer Identification Number 
of Transferee 
 

 

the within Bond and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________ attorney to register the transfer of the within Bond on the books kept 
for registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises. 

Dated:   

Signature Guaranteed: 

NOTICE: Signature(s) must be guaranteed by 
a member firm of the New York Stock 
Exchange or a commercial bank or trust 
company. 

NOTICE: The signature above must 
correspond with the name of the Registered 
Owner as it appears upon the front of this Bond 
in every particular, without alteration or 
enlargement or any change whatsoever. 

 

 



 A-13 

*FORM OF COMPTROLLER’S REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE ATTACHED TO 
AN INITIAL SERIES 2024 BOND 

OFFICE OF COMPTROLLER § 
     § REGISTER NO. ___________ 
STATE OF TEXAS   § 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that this Bond has been examined, certified as to validity and 
approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas, and duly registered by the Texas 
Comptroller of Public Accounts. 

WITNESS MY HAND and seal of office at Austin, Texas _____________________. 

 
 
 ____________________________________ 
 Comptroller of Public Accounts 
 of the State of Texas 
 

(SEAL) 

NOTE TO PRINTER: 
* ¶s not to be on bond 
  



 A-14 

ADDITIONAL REVISIONS TO BE MADE TO 
AN INITIAL SERIES 2024 BOND IF MORE THAN ONE MATURITY 

Each Initial Series 2024 Bond shall be in the form set forth in this Exhibit A, except that if 
there is more than one stated maturity of a series of Series 2024 Bonds: 

(i) immediately under the name of the Bond, the blank beneath the heading 
“MATURITY DATE” shall be completed with the words “As shown below”; 

(ii) in the first paragraph of such Initial Series 2024 Bond, the words “ON THE 
MATURITY DATE SPECIFIED ABOVE” shall be deleted and replaced with the 
following:  “ON THE MATURITY DATES SPECIFIED BELOW”. 

(iii) in the first paragraph of such Initial Series 2024 Bond, the words “from the 
Settlement Date to the date of its scheduled maturity or the date of its redemption prior to 
scheduled maturity, at the rate of interest per annum determined pursuant to the Resolution 
(as defined below)” shall be replaced with the following “from the Settlement Date to the 
dates of its scheduled maturity or the date or dates of its redemption prior to scheduled 
maturity, in the principal installments set forth below and bearing interest at the per annum 
rate of interest per annum determined pursuant to the Resolution (as defined below): 

Date Principal Amount 

  
[Information for such Series 2024 Bonds to be inserted 

from Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate]” 

  



 B-1 

EXHIBIT B 

FORM OF FIXED RATE BOND 

[Unless this bond is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Trust Company, 
a New York corporation (“DTC”), to the Issuer or its agent for registration of transfer, exchange, 
or payment, and any certificate issued is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or in such other 
name as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC (and any payment is made to Cede 
& Co. or to such other entity as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC), ANY 
TRANSFER, PLEDGE, OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO 
ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the registered owner hereof, Cede & Co., has an 
interest herein.]1 

NO. FR-____          $__________ 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
 

STATE OF TEXAS 
VETERANS BOND, 

TAXABLE SERIES 20242 

MATURITY DATE: INTEREST RATE: BOND DATE: CUSIP NUMBER: 

_________, ____ _______% __________, 20____ ______ ___ 

ON THE MATURITY DATE SPECIFIED ABOVE, the State of Texas (hereinafter 
sometimes called the “Issuer”), acting by and through the Veterans’ Land Board (the “Board”) of 
the State of Texas, hereby promises to pay to ________________________________, or to the 
registered assignee hereof (either being hereinafter called the “registered owner”), the principal 
amount of _____________________________________ DOLLARS and to pay interest thereon, 
from the bond date stated above to the date of its scheduled maturity or the date of its redemption 
prior to scheduled maturity, at the rate of interest per annum specified above, with said interest 
being payable on __________ 1, 20___, and semiannually on each June 1 and December 1 
thereafter (computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months) (each, an 
“Interest Payment Date”). 

THE PRINCIPAL OF AND PREMIUM, IF ANY, AND INTEREST ON this Bond are 
payable in lawful money of the United States of America, without exchange or collection charges.  
The principal of and premium, if any, on this Bond shall be paid to the registered owner hereof 
upon presentation and surrender of this Bond at maturity or upon the date fixed for its redemption 
prior to maturity, at the designated office of the Paying Agent for the Bonds (defined below), which 
is initially the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas in Austin, Texas.  The payment 
of interest on this Bond shall be made by the Paying Agent to the registered owner hereof as shown 
by the Registration Books kept and maintained by the Registrar for the Bonds, which is initially 
_________________, (i) at the close of business on the fifteenth day of the calendar month 

 
1  To be included in any Series 2024 Bond registered in the name of Cede & Co. 
2  Series designation to be added if necessary. 



 B-2 

immediately preceding each Interest Payment Date, or (ii) in the case of a redemption of Bonds 
prior to maturity, the fifteenth day prior to the mailing of the applicable notice of redemption (each, 
a “Record Date”), by check drawn by the Paying Agent on, and payable solely from, funds of the 
Board required to be on deposit with the Paying Agent for such purpose as hereinafter provided; 
and such check shall be sent by the Paying Agent by first class United States mail, postage prepaid, 
on each such Interest Payment Date, to the registered owner hereof at its address as it appears on 
the Registration Books kept and maintained by the Registrar, as hereinafter described.  The Paying 
Agent shall make payment of the principal of and premium, if any, or interest on this Bond by wire 
transfer in immediately available funds to a bank account located within the United States of 
Federal Reserve Funds upon request of the registered owner hereof, provided such registered 
owner is the registered owner of $1,000,000 or more in aggregate principal amount of Bonds and 
provides the necessary wire information to the Paying Agent at least 15 days prior to the applicable 
Record Date.  The Board covenants with the registered owner of this Bond that as of each Interest 
Payment Date for this Bond it will make available to the Paying Agent the amounts required to 
provide for the payment, in immediately available funds, of all principal of and interest on the 
Bonds, when due.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, during any period in which ownership of the 
Bonds is determined only by a book entry at a securities depository for the Bonds, payments made 
to the securities depository, or its nominee, shall be made in accordance with arrangements 
between the Board and the securities depository. 

UNLESS OTHERWISE DEFINED herein, capitalized words and terms used in this Bond 
and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings ascribed to such terms in the Resolution 
(defined below). 

IF THE DATE for the payment of the principal of or interest on this Bond shall not be a 
Business Day, then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding Business Day and 
payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the original date payment 
was due. 

THIS BOND is one of a series of bonds of like tenor and effect except as to number, 
principal amount and scheduled maturity, aggregating ___________________ Dollars3 
($_____________)3 (the “Bonds”), issued for the purpose of making Home Loans to Texas 
Veterans, all in accordance with the provisions of the Constitutional Provision, the Act and Chapter 
1207, and pursuant to a resolution authorizing the issuance of the series of Bonds of which this is 
one, adopted by the Board and duly of record in the minutes of the Board (the “Resolution”).  The 
Bonds are issuable solely as fully registered bonds, without interest coupons, in denominations of 
any integral multiple of $5,000 (each, an “Authorized Denomination”). 

THE SERIES OF BONDS of which this is one shall be and is hereby made a general 
obligation of the State of Texas, pursuant to the Constitutional Provision and the Act, and for the 
faithful performance of all covenants, recitals and stipulations herein contained, and for the faithful 
performance in proper time and manner of each official or other act required and necessary to 

 
3  For Converted Fixed Rate Bonds, the original aggregate principal amount of such series of Series 2024 Bonds 

set forth in the Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate should be set forth here; for Series 2024 Bonds issued 
as Fixed Rate Bonds, the original aggregate principal amount of such series of Series 2024 Bonds set forth in 
the Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate should be set forth here. 



 B-3 

provide for the prompt payment of principal of and interest on this Bond when due, the full faith 
and credit of the State of Texas are hereby pledged. 

PAYMENTS OF THE PRINCIPAL OF and premium, if any, and interest on this Bond, 
shall be made primarily from the Veterans’ Housing Assistance Fund II (“Fund II”) created by the 
Constitutional Provision, which fund shall be comprised of (1) any interest of the Board in all 
Home Loans made from money in Fund II pursuant to the Program, including proceeds of any 
insurance thereon or on the homes, (2) the proceeds derived from the sale or other disposition of 
the Board’s interests in Home Loans, (3) the money attributable to any Housing Assistance Bonds 
(defined below) (except for certain expenses related to the issuance of Housing Assistance Bonds) 
issued and sold by the Board to provide money for Fund II which shall include but shall not be 
limited to the proceeds from the issuance and sale of such Housing Assistance Bonds, (4) income, 
rents, and any other pecuniary benefit received by the Board as a result of making Home Loans, 
(5) sums received by way of indemnity or forfeiture for the failure of any bidder for the purchase 
of any Housing Assistance Bonds to comply with the person’s bid and accept and pay for such 
Housing Assistance Bonds, (6) payments received by the Board under bond enhancement 
agreements with respect to the Housing Assistance Bonds, (7) interest received from investments 
of any such money, and (8) any equitable interest of the Board in properties encumbered by Home 
Loans and attributable to Fund II.  The Bonds and all other bonds issued by the Board pursuant to 
the Constitution of the State to augment Fund II or to refund any such bonds are referred to herein 
as “Housing Assistance Bonds.”  The Constitutional Provision provides that to the extent there is 
not money in Fund II available for payment of principal of and interest on the Housing Assistance 
Bonds, there is appropriated out of the first money coming into the State Treasury in each fiscal 
year, not otherwise appropriated by the Texas Constitution, an amount which is sufficient to pay 
the principal of and interest on such Housing Assistance Bonds that mature or become due during 
that fiscal year. 

THE BONDS are subject to scheduled mandatory sinking fund redemption, and shall be 
redeemed on the dates and in the respective principal amounts set forth in the table below, at a 
redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof, without premium, plus accrued interest to 
the date fixed for redemption: 

Redemption Date Principal Amount Redemption Date Principal Amount4 

    
    
    

__________________ 
*Stated maturity 

 
4  For Converted Fixed Rate Bonds, the remaining amounts set forth in the applicable Purchase Contract or Pricing 

Certificate should be included in the table, and additional tables shall be added if there is more than one stated 
maturity of such Series 2024 Bonds, with a heading above each table identifying the stated maturity of the 
Series 2024 Bonds to which such table relates; for Series 2024 Bonds issued as Fixed Rate Bonds, the amounts 
set forth in the Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate shall be set forth here. 

 



 B-4 

The principal amount of Bonds to be redeemed on each such redemption date pursuant to 
mandatory sinking fund redemption shall be reduced, at the option of the Board, by the principal 
amount of any Bonds [of the same stated maturity]5 which (A) at least 45 days prior to such 
mandatory sinking fund redemption date, (1) shall have been acquired by the Board and delivered 
to the Registrar for cancellation, or (2) shall have been acquired and canceled by the Registrar at 
the direction of the Board, or (3) shall have been redeemed pursuant to any optional redemption 
and (B) shall have not been previously credited against a scheduled mandatory sinking fund 
redemption. 

THE BONDS shall be subject to redemption and may be redeemed prior to the scheduled 
maturities thereof, at the option and direction of the Board, at any time and from time to time on 
and after ___________ 1, 20___, in whole or in part, at the redemption prices set forth below 
(expressed as a percentage of the principal amount of the Bonds or portions thereof to be 
redeemed), plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption: 

Redemption Dates Redemption Price 

  
  
  
  

[In the case of any such redemption, the Board shall select the maturity or maturities of the 
Bonds to be redeemed and the amounts thereof in Authorized Denominations.]5 

IN THE EVENT of any redemption of less than all of the Bonds [of a particular maturity]5, 
the particular Bonds [within such maturity]5 to be redeemed are to be selected by the Registrar by 
lot in such manner as the Registrar shall deem fair and appropriate.  During any period in which 
ownership of the Bonds is determined only by a book entry at a securities depository for the Bonds, 
if less than the entire principal amount Outstanding of all the Bonds [of the same maturity are to 
be redeemed]5, the interests to be redeemed of the beneficial owners of the Bonds of such maturity 
shall be selected in accordance with the arrangements between the Board and the securities 
depository. 

AT LEAST 30 days prior to the date fixed for any such redemption of this Bond, a written 
notice of such redemption shall be sent by first class mail, postage prepaid, by the Registrar to the 
Holder hereof.  By the date fixed for any such redemption, due provision shall be made by the 
Board with the Paying Agent for the payment of the required redemption price for this Bond or 
the portion hereof which is to be so redeemed.  If such written notice of redemption is given, and 
if due provision for such payment is made, all as provided above, this Bond, or the portion hereof 
which is to be redeemed, thereby automatically shall be redeemed prior to its scheduled maturity, 
and shall not bear interest after the date fixed for its redemption, and shall not be regarded as being 
Outstanding except for the right of the Holder to receive the redemption price plus accrued interest 
to the date fixed for redemption from the Paying Agent out of the funds provided for such payment.  
The Registrar shall record in the Registration Books all such redemptions of principal of this Bond 
or any portion hereof.  If a portion of any Bond shall be redeemed, a substitute Bond [having the 

 
5  Bracketed text to be deleted if there is only one stated maturity of the series of Series 2024 Bonds. 



 B-5 

same stated maturity,]6 in any Authorized Denomination that may be requested by the Holder 
thereof, and in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion thereof, will be 
issued to the Holder upon the surrender thereof for cancellation, at the expense of the Board, all as 
provided in the Resolution. 

IN ADDITION to the notice of redemption required above, the Registrar shall send notice 
of redemption of Bonds by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, 
or by overnight delivery service contemporaneously with such mailing:  (1) to any registered 
owner of $1,000,000 or more in aggregate principal amount of Bonds; (2) to two or more 
information services of national recognition that disseminate redemption information with respect 
to municipal bonds; and (3) to any securities depository that is a registered owner of the Bonds.  
In addition, in the event of a redemption caused by an advance refunding of the Bonds, the 
Registrar shall send a second notice of redemption to all registered owners of the Bonds at least 
30 days but not more than 90 days prior to the actual redemption date.  Any notice required to be 
sent to any registered securities depositories or national information services shall be sent so that 
it is received at least two (2) days prior to the general mailing date of such notice.  The Registrar 
shall also send a notice of redemption to the registered owner of any Bond who has not sent the 
Bonds in for redemption 60 days after the redemption date.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 
failure to give any notice of redemption set forth in this paragraph or any defect in such notice or 
the mailing thereof shall not affect the validity of any proceedings for redemption of Bonds. 

THIS BOND or any portion or portions hereof in any Authorized Denomination may be 
assigned and shall be transferred only in the Registration Books of the Board kept and maintained 
by the Registrar acting in the capacity of registrar for the Bonds, upon the terms and conditions set 
forth in the Resolution.  Among other requirements for such assignment and transfer, this Bond 
must be presented and surrendered to the Registrar, together with proper instruments of 
assignment, in form and with guarantee of signatures satisfactory to the Registrar, evidencing 
assignment of this Bond or any portion or portions hereof, in any Authorized Denomination, to the 
assignee or assignees in whose name or names this Bond or any such portion or portions hereof is 
or are to be transferred and registered.  The form of Assignment printed or endorsed on this Bond 
may be executed by the registered owner to evidence the assignment hereof, but such method is 
not exclusive, and other instruments of assignment satisfactory to the Registrar may be used to 
evidence the assignment of this Bond or any portion or portions hereof from time to time by the 
registered owner.  A new Bond or Bonds payable to such assignee (which then will be the new 
registered owner of such new Bond or Bonds), or to the previous registered owner in the case of 
the assignment and transfer of only a portion of this Bond, may be delivered by the Registrar in 
conversion of and exchange for this Bond, all in the form and manner as provided in the next 
paragraph hereof for the conversion and exchange of other Bonds.  Neither the Board nor the 
Registrar shall be required (1) to issue, replace, transfer, or exchange any Bond during a period 
beginning at the opening of business 30 days before the day of the first mailing of a notice of 
redemption of Bonds and ending at the close of business on the day of such mailing or (2) to 
replace, transfer or exchange any Bond so selected for redemption in whole or in part when such 
redemption is scheduled to occur within 30 calendar days; except that at the option of the registered 
owner of at least $1,000,000 in principal amount of Bonds, the Registrar shall be required to 
transfer or exchange any Bond of such owner which has been selected in whole or in part for 

 
6  Bracketed text to be deleted if there only one stated maturity of the series of Series 2024 Bonds. 



 B-6 

redemption upon surrender thereof.  The Registrar may make such arrangements as it deems 
appropriate for notation on each new Bond issued in exchange for or upon the transfer of the Bond 
so selected for redemption of an appropriate legend to the effect that such new Bond has been so 
selected for redemption.  The registered owner of this Bond shall be treated by the Issuer, the 
Board, the Paying Agent and the Registrar as the absolute owner hereof for all purposes, including 
payment and discharge of liability upon this Bond to the extent of such payment, and the Issuer, 
the Board, the Paying Agent and the Registrar shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary.  
The Board shall pay the Registrar’s reasonable and standard or customary fees and charges for 
making such transfer, but the one requesting such transfer shall pay any taxes or other 
governmental charges required to be paid with respect thereto. 

AS PROVIDED in the Resolution, this Bond, or any portion hereof, may, at the request of 
the registered owner or the assignee or assignees hereof, be converted into and exchanged for a 
like aggregate principal amount of fully registered Bonds, without interest coupons, payable to the 
appropriate registered owner, assignee, or assignees, as the case may be, having the same maturity 
date, bearing interest at the same rate, and in any Authorized Denomination, as requested in writing 
by the appropriate registered owner, assignee, or assignees, as the case may be, upon surrender of 
this Bond to the Registrar for cancellation, all in accordance with the form and procedures set forth 
in the Resolution.  The one requesting such conversion and exchange shall pay the Registrar’s 
reasonable and standard or customary fees and charges for converting and exchanging any Bond 
or portion thereof, together with any taxes or governmental charges required to be paid with respect 
thereto, all as a condition precedent to the exercise of such privilege of conversion and exchange; 
except, however, that in the case of the conversion and exchange of an assigned and transferred 
Bond or Bonds or any portion or portions thereof in any Authorized Denomination, as described 
in the previous paragraph, and in the case of the conversion and exchange of a portion of the 
unredeemed portion of a Bond which has been redeemed in part prior to maturity, as provided 
herein, such fees and charges will be paid by the Board. 

WHENEVER the beneficial ownership of this Bond is determined only by a book entry at 
a securities depository for the Bonds, the foregoing requirements of registering, holding, 
delivering, exchanging or transferring this Bond shall be modified to require the appropriate 
Person to meet the requirements of the securities depository as to registering, holding, delivering, 
exchanging or transferring the book entry to produce the same effect. 

IN THE EVENT that the initial Paying Agent or Registrar for the Bonds is changed by the 
Board, resigns, or otherwise ceases to act as such, the Board has covenanted in the Resolution that 
it promptly will appoint a competent and legally qualified substitute therefor, whose qualifications 
comply with the requirements of the Resolution, and that one entity will serve as Paying Agent 
and Registrar, except during periods when the Bonds are registered only by means of a book entry 
at a securities depository, and promptly will cause written notice thereof to be mailed to the 
registered owners of the Bonds. 

BY BECOMING the registered owner of this Bond, the registered owner thereby 
acknowledges all of the terms and provisions of the Resolution, agrees to be bound by such terms 
and provisions, acknowledges that the Resolution is duly recorded and available for inspection in 
the official minutes and records of the Board, and agrees that the terms and provisions of this Bond 
and the Resolution constitute a contract between each registered owner hereof and the Board. 



 B-7 

THE BOARD reserves the right to amend the Resolution, as deemed necessary or desirable 
by the Board, with the consent of the registered owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount 
of the Bonds then Outstanding under the terms and conditions stated in the Resolution.  The Board 
may, without the consent of the registered owners of the Bonds, adopt certain amendments to the 
Resolution as set forth in the Resolution. 

IN THE EVENT of any conflict or inconsistency between the terms and provisions of this 
Bond and the terms and provisions of the Resolution, the terms and provisions of the Resolution 
shall control. 

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED and recited that all acts, conditions and things required to be 
done precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond and the series of which it forms a part have 
been properly done, have happened and have been performed in regular and due time, form and 
manner as required by the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas and the Resolution, that the 
series of Bonds of which this is a part does not exceed any Constitutional or statutory limitation, 
and that provision has been made for the payment of the principal of and interest on this Bond and 
the series of which it is a part by a pledge of the credit of the Issuer and of the funds specified 
herein. 

UNLESS THE REGISTRAR’S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE hereon has been 
executed by the Registrar by manual signature, this Bond shall not be entitled to any benefit under 
the Resolution or be valid or obligatory for any purpose. 

IN TESTIMONY HEREOF, this Bond is executed with the manual or facsimile signatures 
of the Chairwoman of the Board and of the Executive Secretary of the Board, and the seal of said 
Board impressed, lithographed or printed hereon. 

 THE STATE OF TEXAS 
 
 
 
 _________________________________ 
 Chairwoman, Veterans’ Land Board 
   of the State of Texas 
 
_________________________________ 
Executive Secretary, Veterans’ 
  Land Board of the State of Texas 
 
(SEAL) 



 B-8 

*FORM OF REGISTRAR’S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATION  
ATTACHED TO ALL FIXED RATE BONDS 

OTHER THAN AN INITIAL SERIES 2024 BOND 

REGISTRAR’S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE 

It is hereby certified that this Bond has been issued under the provisions of the Resolution 
described in this Bond; and that this Bond has been issued in conversion of and exchange for or 
replacement of a bond, bonds, or a portion of a bond or bonds of an issue which originally was 
approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered by the Comptroller of Public 
Accounts of the State of Texas. 

Dated: _______________________ __________________________ 
 Registrar 
 
 
 By:  _______________________________ 
 Authorized Representative 
 

  



 B-9 

*FORM OF ASSIGNMENT 

ASSIGNMENT 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
(Please print or typewrite name and address, including zip code of Transferee) 

Please insert Social Security 
or Taxpayer Identification Number 
of Transferee 
 

 

the within Bond and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________ attorney to register the transfer of the within Bond on the books kept 
for registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises. 

Dated:   

Signature Guaranteed: 

NOTICE: Signature(s) must be guaranteed by 
a member firm of the New York Stock 
Exchange or a commercial bank or trust 
company. 

NOTICE: The signature above must 
correspond with the name of the Registered 
Owner as it appears upon the front of this Bond 
in every particular, without alteration or 
enlargement or any change whatsoever. 

 

NOTE TO PRINTER: 

*¶s not to be on bond 

 



 B-10 

*FORM OF COMPTROLLER’S REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE ATTACHED TO 
AN INITIAL SERIES 2024 BOND 

OFFICE OF COMPTROLLER § 
     § REGISTER NO. ___________ 
STATE OF TEXAS   § 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that this Bond has been examined, certified as to validity and 
approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas, and duly registered by the Texas 
Comptroller of Public Accounts. 

WITNESS MY HAND and seal of office at Austin, Texas _____________________. 

 
 
 ____________________________________ 
 Comptroller of Public Accounts 
 of the State of Texas 
 

(SEAL) 

NOTE TO PRINTER: 
* ¶s not to be on bond 
  



 B-11 

ADDITIONAL REVISIONS TO BE MADE TO 
AN INITIAL SERIES 2024 BOND IF MORE THAN ONE MATURITY 

Each Initial Series 2024 Bond shall be in the form set forth in this Exhibit B, except that if 
there is more than one stated maturity of a series of Series 2024 Bonds: 

(i) immediately under the name of the Bond, the blank beneath the headings 
“MATURITY DATE” and “INTEREST RATE” shall be completed with the words “As 
shown below”; 

(ii) in the first paragraph of such Initial Series 2024 Bond, the words “ON THE 
MATURITY DATE SPECIFIED ABOVE” shall be deleted and replaced with the 
following:  “ON THE MATURITY DATES SPECIFIED BELOW”. 

(iii) in the first paragraph of such Initial Series 2024 Bond, the words “from the 
bond date stated above to the date of its scheduled maturity or the date of its redemption 
prior to scheduled maturity, at the rate of interest per annum specified above” shall be 
replaced with the following “from the bond date stated above to the dates of its scheduled 
maturity or the date or dates of its redemption prior to scheduled maturity, in the principal 
installments and bearing interest at the per annum rates of interest per annum set forth 
below: 

Date Principal Amount Interest Rate 

   
[Information for such Series 2024 Bonds to be inserted 

from Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate]” 

 

 



 C-1 



 C-1 

EXHIBIT C 

DESCRIPTION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

The following information is referred to in Section 8.2 of this Resolution. 

Annual Financial Statements and Operating Data 

The financial information and operating data with respect to the Board to be provided 
annually in accordance with such Section are the quantitative financial information and operating 
data pertaining to the Board included in Appendix B to the Official Statement relating to each 
series of Series 2024 Bonds subject to the Rule. 

Accounting Principles 

The accounting principles referred to in such Section are generally accepted accounting 
principles for governmental units as prescribed by the Government Accounting Standards Board 
from time to time, as such principles may be changed from time to time to comply with state law 
or regulation. 



 C-1 

EXHIBIT D 

PRIOR BONDS 

State of Texas Veterans Bonds, Series 2015A 
 
State of Texas Veterans Bonds, Series 2016 
 
State of Texas Veterans Bonds, Series 2017 
 
State of Texas Veterans Bonds, Series 2020 
 
State of Texas Veterans Bonds, Series 2021 
 
State of Texas Veterans Bonds, Series 2022 

 



 

CERTIFICATE OF RESOLUTION 

THE STATE OF TEXAS §  
    §  
COUNTY OF TRAVIS §  
 

I, the undersigned Executive Secretary of the Veterans’ Land Board (the “Board”) of the 
State of Texas, hereby certify as follows: 

1. The Board convened in regular meeting on the 25th day of June, 2024, at the 
designated meeting place, and the roll was called of the duly constituted officers and members of 
said Board, to-wit: 

Dawn Buckingham, M.D. Chairwoman 
Gerald J. “Jud” Scott, Jr. Member 
James Rothfelder Member 
  

and all of said persons were present, thus constituting a quorum.  Whereupon, among other 
business, the following was transacted at said meeting:  a written resolution 

BY THE VETERANS’ LAND BOARD OF THE STATE OF TEXAS 
AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF STATE OF TEXAS 
VETERANS BONDS, TAXABLE SERIES 2024 IN ONE OR MORE SERIES 
AND INSTALLMENTS IN AN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO 
EXCEED $200,000,000, AND PROVIDING FOR OTHER MATTERS 
RELATING TO THE SUBJECT 

was duly introduced for the consideration of said Board.  It was then duly moved and seconded 
that said Resolution be adopted; and, after due discussion, said motion, carrying with it the 
adoption of said Resolution, prevailed and carried by the following vote: 

AYES:  2    NOES:  0  

2. A true, full, and correct copy of the aforesaid Resolution adopted at the Meeting 
described in the above and foregoing paragraph is attached to and follows this Certificate; that said 
Resolution has been duly recorded in said Board’s minutes of said Meeting; that the above and 
foregoing paragraph is a true, full, and correct excerpt from said Board’s minutes of said meeting 
pertaining to the adoption of said Resolution; that the persons named in the above and foregoing 
paragraph are the duly chosen, qualified, and acting officers and members of said Board as 
indicated therein; and that each of the officers and members of said Board was duly and sufficiently 
notified officially and personally, in advance, of the time, place, and purpose of the aforesaid 
Meeting, and that said Resolution would be introduced and considered for adoption at said 
Meeting; and that said Meeting was noticed, convened, and conducted in full compliance with the 
Texas Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code, as amended, regarding 
meetings of the Board. 

3. The Resolution has not been modified, amended or repealed and is in full force and 
effect on and as of the date hereof. 



 Signature Page for Certificate of Updated Resolution 
 Authorizing Issuance of Taxable Series 2024 Bonds 

SIGNED AND SEALED the ____ day of ________________, 2024. 

 

 ____________________________________ 
 Anthony W. Dale, Executive Secretary 
(SEAL) 

 
 

 



 

1 
 

Date:    June 25, 2024 
 
To:    Dawn Buckingham, M.D., Chairwoman 

Judson Scott, Member 
James Rothfelder, Member 

 
From:     Bobby Breeden, Director Texas State Veterans Homes 
  
Subject:             Agenda Item 6 a - Consideration and possible action to delegate authority to 

the Executive Secretary to negotiate and execute a management and 
operations contract for the Ussery-Roan Texas State Veteran Home in 
Amarillo. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends delegating authority to the Executive Secretary to 

negotiate and execute a management and operations contract for the 
Ussery-Roan Texas State Veteran Home in Amarillo. 

 
Summary 
The Texas Veterans Land Board owns ten long-term care nursing homes for qualified Veterans, 
their spouses, and Gold Star parents. To be eligible for residency, applicants must have a 
doctor's note stating the need for skilled nursing care and have resided in the state for at least 
one day. Veterans must have served at least 90 days, have a DD214 and be honorably 
discharged. 
 
The State Veterans Homes owned by the Veterans Land Board have the total capacity to serve 
1,300 residents. Texas State Veterans Homes are owned by the state of Texas and are regulated 
by both the Texas Health and Human Services Commission as well as the U.S. Department of 
Veterans Affairs (VA). Third-party operators manage the day-to-day operations of the Veterans 
homes. The Texas Veterans Land Board oversees the operators and has an on-site 
representative in each home.  
 
The current operator of the Ussery-Roan Texas State Veteran Home in Amarillo is ML 
Healthcare. The current three-year management and operations contract expires on September 
30, 2024.  The VLB staff, in cooperation with the GLO Procurement Team, are conducting a 
statewide procurement to solicit bids for a new contract beginning on August 1, 2024, for a 
three-year term. 
 
Staff recommends delegating authority to the Executive Secretary to execute a contract with 
the entity selected through the procurement process.  As of the date of this memo, the VLB 
Board is scheduled to meet one last time in FY 2024 on July 30, 2024.  The contract must be 
executed no later than the end of fiscal year 2024, August 31, 2024.  The following scheduled 



2 

2 
 

meeting of the VLB will be on November 12, 2024.  This proposal will mitigate the need for a 
special called meeting to approve a contract prior to the end of the fiscal year. 
 
 
Timeline: 
April 29, 2024:  Solicitation posted for public notice and submission 
June 3, 2024:    Deadline for solicitation responses 
June 19, 2024:  Internal deadline to select winning bid 
June 24, 2024:  Notice of award to selected vendor 
June 25, 2024:  VLB Special Called Meeting 
June 25, 2024:  Begin Negotiation Period 
July 10, 2024:   Target end of contract negotiation and execution 
July 10, 2024:   Begin transition phase 
August 31, 2024:  End of Fiscal Year 2024 
September 1, 2024:  Selected vendor assumes responsibility for management and operations.  



 

1 
 

Date:    June 25, 2024 
 
To:    Dawn Buckingham, M.D., Chairwoman 

Judson Scott, Member 
James Rothfelder, Member 

 
From:     Darren Fitz Gerald, Director of Veterans Affairs 
 
Subject:   Agenda Item 6 b - Consideration and possible action on a contract renewal for 

the pharmaceutical services provider for Texas State Veterans Homes.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends the Board approve the renewal of the contract with 

Omnicare as the pharmaceutical services provider for the Texas State 
Veterans Homes. 

 
Summary 
Staff projects this contract renewal with Omnicare to cost approximately $25 million over three 
years. This estimate incorporates current monthly cost trends, adjustments for inflation, and 
increased costs due to the overall increase in census and the increased capacity with the 
opening of the Tuskegee Airmen home in Fort Worth. Staff reviewed the existing contract, 
made changes as needed in the best interest of serving our Veterans, and coordinated with 
Contract Management. 
 
The current contract expires on August 31, 2024. The pharmacy provider, Omnicare, has been 
the contracted provider since November 1, 2021. Their pricing model is consistent with industry 
standards and when compared with the prior vendor, Omnicare has provided a better value in 
average pharmacy cost per resident per month.  For the period November 2021 through 
December 2023, the pharmacy cost per resident per month was $291 with Omnicare. This same 
cost was $317 per month during the previous vendor’s contract. This resulted in an 
approximate cost savings of $30,000 per month with Omnicare.  
 
 
 



   

GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 

Page 1 of 15 

 

 

PHARMACEUTICAL SERVICES CONTRACT  

GLO CONTRACT NO. 22-008-000-C938 

THE GENERAL LAND OFFICE (the “GLO”) and the VETERANS LAND BOARD (“VLB”) 

(collectively the “Board”) and OMNICARE PHARMACY OF TEXAS 1, LP, Texas Identification 

Number (TIN) 17607165549 (“Provider”), each a “Party” and collectively “the Parties,” enter 

into the following contract for services (the “Contract”) pursuant to applicable provisions of 

Texas Government Code, Chapter 2155.149, Texas Natural Resources Code, Chapter 164.005 

and 38 CFR Part 51, as applicable. 

I. DEFINITIONS, INTERPRETIVE PROVISIONS, AND PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

1.01 DEFINITIONS 

“Additional Services” means all services to be provided by Provider specifically listed in 

Attachment A. 

“Administrative and Audit Regulations” means all applicable statutes, regulations, and 

other laws governing administration or audit of this Contract, which may include Title 2, 

Part 200 and Title 38 Part 51, Code of Federal Regulations and Chapter 321 and Title 10, 

Subtitles D and F of the Texas Government Code. 

“Aid and Attendance Resident” or “A&A Resident” means a veteran Resident that 

receives a VA pension because the veteran Resident requires the aid and attendance of 

another person. 

“Amendment” means a written agreement, executed by the Parties’ authorized 

representatives, that documents changes to the Contract. 

“Attachment” means documents, terms, conditions, or additional information physically 

attached to this Contract after the execution page or incorporated by reference herein. 

“AWP” means average wholesale price of a drug reported by First DataBank®, Medi-

Span®, or other third-party source. 

“Brand Drug” means a drug so reported by First DataBank®, Medi-Span®, or other 

third-party source or as otherwise agreed upon by the Provider and the Board.   

“Business Associate Agreement” means a written agreement between the Board and the 

Provider as required by 45 C.F.R. § 164.504(e). 

“Census Information” means certain biographical and medical information pertaining to 

the Resident. 

“C.F.R.” means the Code of Federal Regulations. 

“Charges” means the fees and charges for Medications and services for which the Board 

is the Payer or is otherwise responsible for payment to Provider. 

“Comptroller” means the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



   

GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 

Page 2 of 15 

“Contract” means this entire document, its Attachments and Amendments, and 

documents expressly incorporated by reference herein. 

“Deliverables” means a unit or increment of work—including any item, report, data, 

document, photograph, drawing, process, computer program or code, or other 

submission—that is required to be delivered, in whatever form, under the terms of this 

Contract. 

“Equipment” means mobile medication carts appropriate for the packaging system in use 

by Provider, facsimile machines, and such other equipment as Provider deems necessary 

for provision of the services to the Board. 

“Fiscal Year” means the period beginning September 1 and ending August 31 each year, 

which is the annual accounting period for the State of Texas. 

“GAAP” means generally accepted accounting principles. 

“GASB” means the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 

“General Affirmations” means the terms and conditions in Attachment C, attached 

hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes, that Provider affirms and agrees to by 

executing this Contract.  

“Generic Drug” means drug, whether identified by its chemical, proprietary, or non-

proprietary name, that (a) is substitutable for a drug under state law; or (b) if not 

addressed by state law, is accepted by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration as 

therapeutically equivalent and interchangeable with drugs having an identical amount of 

the same active ingredient, and (s) is readily available to Pharmacy for dispensing from 

three or more of the non-affiliated top ten national manufacturers. 

“GLO” means the Texas General Land Office and its officers, employees, and designees, 

acting in their official capacities. 

“HHSC” means the Texas Health and Human Services Commission. 

“HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and 

associated statutes, regulations, and rules, including, Title 45 Parts 160 and 164 of the 

C.F.R. 

“HITECH” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health 

Act, and associated statutes, regulations, and rules.  

“HSP” means historically underutilized business subcontracting plan, as described by 

Chapter 2161 of the Texas Government Code. 

“HUB” means historically underutilized business, as defined by Chapter 2161 of the 

Texas Government Code. 

“Inclusion” means a Medication that is covered under the Per Diem Rate. 

“Intellectual Property” means patents, rights to apply for patents, trademarks, trade 

names, service marks, domain names, copyrights and all applications and worldwide 

registration of such, schematics, industrial models, inventions, know-how, trade secrets, 

computer software programs, intangible proprietary information, other commercially 

valuable products of the human intellect, and all federal, state, or international 

registrations or applications for any of the foregoing. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



   

GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 

Page 3 of 15 

“Medicaid Pending Resident” means a resident who has submitted an application for 

assistance to a state Medicaid program and is awaiting a determination as to whether the 

Resident is Medicaid eligible. 

“Medication” means prescription and non-prescription drugs, biological and parenteral 

nutrition, and intravenous solutions. 

“Mentor Protégé” means the Comptroller’s leadership program found at 

https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/vendor/hub/mentor.php. 

“Operator” means the entity contracted to manage and operate the Veteran(s) Homes. 

“Order” means those Medications, equipment and services so requested by the Board of 

Provider in accordance with the procedures set forth by Provider for placing such orders. 

“OTC” means over-the-counter or stock Medication. 

“Payer” means a Person responsible for the payment of Medications and services for a 

Resident. 

“Person” means any natural person, corporation, partnership, limited liability company, 

trust, government entity and any other type of legal entity. 

“Pharmaceutical” means a Prescription signed by a physician prescribing a drug that is 

not an OTC or a stock medication, to treat a Resident’s medical condition. 

“Prior Authorization or PA” means an intervention by a third-party Payer that denies or 

delays payment to Provider for a Medication or service ordered by the Board through its 

Operator until such time as the third-party Payer investigates the medical necessity of that 

Order or until such time as the Order is modified to qualify for payment by the third-party 

Payer. 

“Private Pay Resident” means a Resident who has authorized Provider to be their 

provider of pharmaceutical services and who is not eligible for coverage under a third-

party program accepted by Provider.  

“Project” means all products and/or services described in Section 1.03 of this Contract 

and Attachment A to be provided by Provider. 

“Project Manager” means the Board representative responsible for the day-to-day 

management of the Project and the direction of Board staff and independent contractors 

performing work relating thereto. 

“Prompt Pay Act” means Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code. 

“Public Information Act” means Chapter 552 of the Texas Government Code. 

“Resident” means a person who meets the eligibility requirements and is admitted to the 

Veterans Home to received skilled nursing care. 

“Resident Day” means any portion of any day, except day of discharge, or residence at 

the facility for a Medicare A and Managed Care Resident, whether or not Provider 

provided any Medications or services to that Resident. 

“Service-Connected” has the meaning prescribed by 38 C.F.R. § 3.1. 

“Service-Connected Veteran” means any veteran with a Service-Connected disability 

rating by the VA. Determination of a service-connected disability rating at 70% or more 

should be determined by the hospital inquiry or the Service-Connected rating letter 

provided by the VA.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF

https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/vendor/hub/mentor.php


   

GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 

Page 4 of 15 

“Solicitation” means the Board’s Request for Proposals No. X0023829B-KM (including 

any Attachments and addenda), which is incorporated herein by reference for all purposes 

in its entirety. 

“Solicitation Response” means Provider’s full and complete response to the Solicitation. 

The Solicitation Response is incorporated herein by reference for all purposes in its 

entirety, including any attachments and addenda.  

“Stat” means any Order that is received after the established cut-off time and that must be 

delivered prior to the next cut off time and/or corresponding regularly scheduled delivery 

time. 

“Subcontractor” means a person or entity that contracts with Provider to perform part or 

all of Provider’s obligations under this Contract. 

“Travel Regulations” means all applicable statutes, regulations, laws, and Comptroller 

guidance related to reimbursement for Provider’s travel expenses, including: Title 34, 

Section 5.22, of the Texas Administrative Code; Chapter 660 of the Texas Government 

Code; the General Appropriations Act; and Textravel, the Comptroller’s travel regulation 

guidance available on the Comptroller’s website. 

“VA” means the United States Department of Veterans Affairs. 

“VA Eligible Resident” means A&A Residents, veteran Residents with a Service 

Connected disability rating between 50% and 60%. 

“VA Formulary” means the National Formulary for medications as listed by the VA’s 

Pharmacy Benefits Management Services, as updated by the VA and located at 

http://www.pbm.va.gov/nationalformulary.asp. 

“Veterans Home(s)” means each of the Texas State Veterans Homes located in Amarillo, 

Big Spring, Bonham, El Paso, Floresville, Houston, McAllen, Temple, and Tyler Texas. 

“VLB” means the Veterans Land Board and its officers, employees, and designees, acting 

in their official capacities. 

“WAC” means the Wholesale Acquisition Cost of prescription and non-prescription 

Medications and items as reported by First DataBank®, MediSpan®, or other third-party 

source. 

1.02 INTERPRETIVE PROVISIONS 

(a) The meaning of a defined term applies to its singular and plural forms.  

(b) The words “hereof,” “herein,” “hereunder,” and similar words refer to this 

Contract as a whole and not to any particular provision, section, Attachment, or 

schedule of this Contract unless otherwise specified.  

(c) The word “including” means “including, without limitation.” 

(d) Unless otherwise expressly provided, a reference to a contract includes 

subsequent amendments and other modifications thereto executed according to 

the contract’s terms, and a reference to a statute, regulation, ordinance, or other 

law includes subsequent amendments, renumbering, recodification, and other 

modifications thereto by the enacting authority.  

(e) The captions and headings of this Contract are for convenience of reference only 

and shall not affect interpretation of this Contract.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF

http://www.pbm.va.gov/nationalformulary.asp


   

GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 

Page 5 of 15 

(f) The limitations, regulations, and policies contained herein are cumulative, and 

each must be performed in accordance with its terms without regard to other 

limitations, regulations, and policies affecting the same matter.  

(g) Unless otherwise expressly provided, reference to any Board action by way of 

consent, approval, or waiver is deemed modified by the phrase “in its sole 

discretion.” Notwithstanding the preceding, the Board shall not unreasonably 

withhold or delay any such consent, approval, or waiver.  

(h) Time is of the essence in this Contract. 

(i) If this Contract and any Attachments conflict, such conflicts shall be resolved in 

the following order of precedence: first, the Contract, then Attachments to the 

Contract in this order: Attachment E, Attachment A, Attachment B, 

Attachment C, Attachment D, Attachment F, the Solicitation, and the 

Solicitation Response. 

1.03 PROJECT 

(a) Provider shall provide pharmaceutical services including generic and brand name 

pharmaceuticals to the Veterans Homes owned by the VLB and a tenth Veterans 

Home that may open during the term of this Contract in strict accordance with the 

Scope of Services and Fee Schedule each attached hereto as Attachment A and 

Attachment B, respectively. 

(b) Provider must perform the Project in accordance with this Contract and all 

Attachments, the Solicitation and Solicitation Response.  

1.04 REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 

Provider must timely submit monthly, quarterly, annual, and final reports in portable 

document format (.pdf) to GLO Project Manager John Berkely via email at 

John.Berkely@glo.texas.gov. Quarterly reports are due within two (2) weeks of the end 

of each quarter; the final report is due within sixty (60) days of expiration or termination 

of the Contract or completion of the Project.  

II. TERM 

2.01 DURATION 

(a) This Contract is effective as of the November 1, 2021 (the “Effective Date”) and 

shall terminate on August 31, 2024. The Board, at its own discretion and subject 

to applicable limitations in the General Appropriations Act and other law, may 

extend this Contract for up to one (1) additional three-year term, subject to terms 

and conditions mutually agreeable to both parties. If renewed, any renewal period 

shall begin on September 1 and end on August 31, always coinciding with the 

Board’s fiscal year.  

(b) This Contract is effective for the term specified herein. Any services Provider 

performs before the Effective Date (with respect to this Contract) or after the 

Contract’s termination or expiration are performed at Provider’s sole risk and the 

Board may choose not to compensate Provider for such services. 

2.02 EARLY TERMINATION 

The Board may terminate this Contract by giving Provider written notice specifying a 

termination date at least thirty (30) days after the date of the notice. Upon receipt of a 

termination notice, Provider must immediately cease work, terminate all subcontracts, 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



   

GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 

Page 6 of 15 

and incur no further expense related to this Contract. Early termination shall be subject to 

the equitable settlement of the Parties’ interests accrued up to the date of termination. 

2.03 ABANDONMENT OR DEFAULT 

If Provider abandons work or defaults on the Contract, the Board may terminate the 

Contract without notice. 

III. CONSIDERATION 

3.01 COMPENSATION 

The GLO will compensate Provider, in accordance with Attachment B, Fee Schedule, in 

an amount not to exceed $13,500,000. 

3.02 TRAVEL EXPENSES 

(a) The Board will not reimburse Provider for travel expenses of any kind without 

prior written Board approval. The Board will only reimburse travel expenses 

directly attributable to Provider’s performance of this Contract at the rates 

established or adopted by the Comptroller of the State of Texas, as outlined in the 

Travel Regulations.  

(b) Subject to the maximum Contract amount authorized herein and upon specific, 

prior, written approval by the Board, lodging, travel, and other incidental direct 

expenses may be reimbursed under this Contract for professional or technical 

personnel who are working away from the cities in which they are permanently 

assigned and conducting business specifically authorized in the scope of services 

in Attachment A.  

(c) The limits for reimbursements are the rates established or adopted by the 

Comptroller, as outlined in the Travel Regulations. Provider understands and 

acknowledges that any travel-expense reimbursement by the Board is not a 

per diem. The Board will only reimburse actual, allowable expenses in 

accordance with the Travel Regulations. Provider must submit itemized 

receipts to support any request for travel-expense reimbursement. 

3.03 INVOICES 

Invoices must:  

(a) be submitted to vendorinvoices@glo.texas.gov 

(b) be supported by documentation (including itemized receipts) that, in the judgment 

of the Board, allows for full substantiation of the costs incurred; and  

(c) prominently display GLO Contract Number 22-008-000-C938. 

3.04 PAYMENT 

The Prompt Pay Act generally applies to payments to Provider. However, the Prompt 

Pay Act does not apply if Provider does not send invoices that comply with this 

Contract to vendorinvoices@glo.texas.gov. If Provider does not submit invoices in 

strict accordance with the instructions in this Contract, payment of invoices may be 

significantly delayed. The Board will not pay interest, fees, or other penalties for late 

payments resulting from Provider’s failure to submit invoices in strict accordance with 

the instructions in this Contract. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF

mailto:vendorinvoices@glo.texas.gov
mailto:VENDORINVOICES@GLO.TEXAS.GOV


   

GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 

Page 7 of 15 

IV. PERFORMANCE, AFFIRMATIONS, AND ASSURANCES 

4.01 PERFORMANCE WARRANTY 

(a) Provider warrants that it will perform all services under this Contract in a manner 

consistent with the degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of 

the same profession currently practicing under similar circumstances.  

(b) Provider warrants that all Deliverables it completes under this Contract will meet or 

exceed the standards of Provider’s trade, profession, or industry; meet or exceed the 

specifications set forth in the Attachments; and be fit for ordinary use, of good 

quality, and with no material defects. 

(c) If Provider submits Deliverables that do not meet specifications, fails to complete 

Deliverables timely, or fails to perform its obligations under this Contract, the 

Board may require Provider, at its sole expense, to:  

(i) repair or replace Deliverables that do not meet specifications,  

(ii) refund payment for Deliverables that do not meet specifications and accept 

the return of such Deliverables, and  

(iii) take necessary action to ensure that future performance and Deliverables 

meet specifications and conform to the Contract. 

4.02 GENERAL AFFIRMATIONS 

Provider certifies it has reviewed the General Affirmations in Attachment C and that 

Provider is in compliance with all applicable requirements contained therein. Provider 

affirms and agrees to all conditions contained in Attachment C. 

4.03 FEDERAL ASSURANCES AND CERTIFICATIONS 

To the extent they apply, Provider certifies it has reviewed the Federal Assurances and 

Certifications in Attachment D, and that Provider is in compliance with all the applicable 

requirements contained therein. Provider certifies it is in compliance with all other 

applicable federal laws, rules, or regulations, pertaining to this Contract. 

V. STATE FUNDING 

5.01 STATE FUNDING 

(a) This Contract shall not be construed as creating any debt on behalf of the State of 

Texas or the Board in violation of Article III, Section 49, of the Texas Constitution. 

The Board’s obligations hereunder are subject to the availability of state funds. If 

adequate funds are not appropriated or become unavailable, the Board may 

terminate this Contract. In that event, the Parties shall be discharged from further 

obligations, subject to the equitable settlement of their interests accrued up to the 

date of termination. 

(b) Any claim by Provider for damages under this Contract may not exceed the amount 

of payment due and owing Provider or the amount of funds appropriated for 

payment but not yet paid to Provider. NOTHING IN THIS PROVISION SHALL BE 

CONSTRUED AS A WAIVER OF THE BOARD’S SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY. 

5.02 RECAPTURE OF FUNDS 

The Board may recapture payments, including those for any unapproved expenditures, 

that it makes to Provider that exceed the maximum allowable rates; are not allowed under 

applicable laws, rules, or regulations; or are otherwise inconsistent with this Contract. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



   

GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 

Page 8 of 15 

Provider must refund such recaptured payments within 30 days after the Board issues 

notice of recapture to Provider. 

5.03 OVERPAYMENT 

Provider shall be liable to the Board for any costs disallowed pursuant to financial and/or 

compliance audit(s) of funds received under this Contract. Provider shall reimburse such 

disallowed costs from funds other than those that Provider received under this Contract. 

Provider must refund disallowed costs and overpayments of funds received under this 

Contract to the Board within 30 days after the Board issues notice of overpayment to 

Provider. 

VI. OWNERSHIP AND INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY 

6.01 OWNERSHIP AND INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY  

(a) The Board shall own, and Provider hereby irrevocably assigns to the Board, all 

ownership rights, title, and interest in and to all Intellectual Property acquired or 

developed by Provider pursuant to this Contract, including, without limitation, all 

Intellectual Property in and to reports, drafts of reports, data, drawings, computer 

programs and codes, and/or any other information or materials acquired or 

developed by Provider under this Contract. The Board may obtain and hold in its 

name any and all patents, copyrights, trademarks, service marks, registrations, or 

such other protections, including extensions and renewals thereof, as may be 

appropriate to the subject matter.  

(b) Provider must give the Board and the State of Texas, as well as any person 

designated by the Board or the State of Texas, all assistance and execute 

documents required to perfect the rights granted to the Board herein, without any 

charge or expense beyond the stated amount payable to Provider for the services 

authorized under this Contract. 

(c) The Board and Provider retain, both during and after the term of this Contract, 

exclusive ownership of all rights, title, and interest in and to their respective pre-

existing Intellectual Property as of the effective date of this Contract. 

6.02 COPYRIGHT  

(a) Provider agrees and acknowledges that all expressive content subject to copyright 

protection, including, without limitation, all reports, drafts of reports, drawings, 

artwork, photographs, video, computer programs and codes, and/or any other 

expressive content acquired or developed by Provider pursuant to this Contract 

(individually a “Work” and collectively the “Works”) will be made the exclusive 

property of the Board. Provider acknowledges that each Work is a “work made 

for hire” under the United States Copyright Act of 1976. All rights in and to each 

Work, including the copyright to the Work, shall be and remain the sole and 

exclusive property of the Board. 

(b) If, for any reason, any Work or any portion of a Work is not a work made for hire, 

Provider hereby irrevocably assigns to the Board ownership of all rights, title and 

interest in and to the Works or such portion of any Work. Such rights, title, and 

interest include, without limitation, the entire and exclusive copyright in the 

Works and all rights associated with the copyright, including reproduction rights, 

distribution rights, the right to prepare translations and other derivative works, 

and the right to display the Works in all formats and media now known or 

developed in the future. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



   

GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 

Page 9 of 15 

(c) Provider must give the Board and the State of Texas, as well as any person 

designated by the Board or the State of Texas, all assistance required to perfect 

the rights defined herein that were granted to the Board, without any charge or 

expense beyond the stated amount payable to Provider for the services authorized 

under this Contract. 

(d) Provider grants to the Board a worldwide, royalty-free, fully paid-up, perpetual, 

non-exclusive, and irrevocable license to any pre-existing Intellectual Property it 

has right, title, or interest in, to the extent such license is required to reproduce, 

publish, publicly display, distribute, or create derivative or new works and 

otherwise use, exploit, or authorize others to use and exploit any Work or product 

created under this Contract. 

(e) Provider must not use any Work, product, or Intellectual Property acquired for or 

created pursuant to this Contract for any other purpose than performance of this 

Contract without the prior written approval of the Board. 

6.03 PUBLICATION 

Reports, publications, presentations, and all other materials produced by Provider with 

funding provided in whole or in part under this Contract must carry on the front cover or 

title page of such items appropriate acknowledgement of financial or other support by the 

Board and, if applicable, all federal entities providing funds or other support for the 

Project. 

VII. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

7.01 INSURANCE  

For the duration of this Contract, Provider must acquire and maintain insurance and bonds 

with financially sound and reputable insurers licensed by the Texas Department of 

Insurance in the type, amount, and form required by Attachment F of this Contract, 

Required Insurance. Provider must submit to the Board certificates of insurance and 

other documents necessary to establish to the Board’s satisfaction that Provider carries 

the types and amounts of insurance specified in this Contract. If the insurance needs 

change or the Board determines any policy does not comply with the terms of this 

Contract, Provider must secure such additional policies or coverage that the Board may 

reasonably request or that are required by law or regulation. If coverage expires during the 

term of this Contract, Provider must submit renewal certificates to the Board evidencing 

continuity of coverage. 

7.02 TAXES, WORKERS’ COMPENSATION, AND UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE  

(a) Provider shall be solely liable and responsible for payment of Provider’s and 

Provider’s employees’ taxes of whatever kind, arising out of the execution or 

performance of the Contract. Provider must comply with all state and federal 

laws—including laws regarding wages, taxes, insurance, and workers’ 

compensation—that apply to Provider or its employees. The Board and the State 

of Texas shall not be liable to Provider or its officers, agents, employees, 

representatives, contractors, assignees, designees, or others for the payment of 

taxes or the provision of unemployment insurance, workers’ compensation, or any 

benefit available to a state employee or employee of another governmental entity. 

(b) Provider shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the State of Texas, the 

Board, and/or their officers, agents, employees, representatives, contractors, 

assignees, and/or designees from and against any and all liability, actions, claims, 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



   

GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 

Page 10 of 15 

demands, damages, proceedings, or suits and all related costs, attorney fees, and 

expenses arising out of, connected with, or resulting from tax liability, 

unemployment insurance, or workers’ compensation in the execution or 

performance of the Contract and any purchase orders issued under the Contract. 

Provider shall be liable to pay all costs of defense, including attorneys’ fees. 

Provider must coordinate its defense with the Board and the Office of the Texas 

Attorney General or other Board legal counsel if the Board is a named defendant 

in any lawsuit arising out of the execution or performance of the Contract. 

Provider may not agree to the settlement of any such lawsuit or other claim 

without first obtaining the written consent of the Board and, if applicable, the 

Office of the Attorney General or other Board legal counsel. The Parties must 

furnish timely written notice to each other of any action, claim, demand, or suit 

described herein. 

7.03 LEGAL OBLIGATIONS 

For the duration of this Contract, Provider must procure and maintain any license, 

authorization, insurance policy, waiver, permit, qualification, or certification that a 

federal, state, county, or city statute, ordinance, law, or regulation requires Provider to 

hold to provide the goods or services required by this Contract. Provider must pay all 

taxes, assessments, fees, premiums, permit fees, and license fees required by law. 

Provider must pay any such government obligations not paid by its Subcontractors during 

performance of this Contract. 

7.04 INDEMNITY  

Provider shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the State of Texas, the Board, and 

their officers, agents, employees, representatives, contractors, assignees, and designees 

from any liability, actions, claims, demands, damage, or suits and all related costs, 

attorney fees, and expenses arising out of, or resulting from any acts or omissions of 

Provider or its agents, employees, Subcontractors, order fulfillers, or Subcontractors’ 

suppliers in the execution or performance of the Contract and any purchase orders issued 

under the Contract. Provider must coordinate its defense with the Board and the Office of 

the Texas Attorney General or other Board legal counsel if the Board is a named 

defendant in any lawsuit arising out of the execution or performance of the Contract. 

Provider may not agree to settle any such lawsuit without the concurrence of the Office 

of the Texas Attorney General or other Board legal counsel. The Parties must furnish 

timely written notice to each other of any action, claim, demand, or suit described herein. 

7.05 INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY INFRINGEMENT  

(a) Provider shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the State of Texas, the 

Board, and/or their officers, agents, employees, representatives, contractors, 

assignees, and/or designees from and against any and all liability, actions, claims, 

demands, damages, proceedings, or suits and all related costs, attorney fees, and 

expenses arising out of, connected with, or resulting from infringement of any 

United States patent, copyright, trade or service mark, or any other intellectual or 

intangible property right that occurs in the execution or performance of the 

Contract and any purchase orders issued under the Contract. Provider shall be 

liable to pay all costs of defense, including attorney fees. Provider must 

coordinate its defense with the Board and the Office of the Texas Attorney 

General or other Board legal counsel if the Board is a named defendant in any 

lawsuit arising out of the execution or performance of the Contract. Provider may 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



   

GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 

Page 11 of 15 

not agree to settle any such lawsuit without the concurrence of the Board and, if 

applicable, the Office of the Texas Attorney General or other Board legal counsel. 

The Parties must furnish timely written notice to each other of any action, claim, 

demand, or suit described herein. 

(b) If Provider becomes aware of an actual or potential claim of Intellectual Property 

infringement caused by or resulting from Provider’s performance of this Contract 

or the Board provides Provider with notice of such claim, Provider must, at 

Provider’s sole expense: (i) procure for the Board the right to continue to use the 

affected portion of the product or service or (ii) modify or replace the affected 

portion of the product or service with a functionally equivalent or superior 

product or service so that the Board’s use is non-infringing. 

7.06 ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTS 

Provider must not assign, transfer, or delegate any rights, obligations, or duties under this 

Contract without the prior written consent of the Board. Any attempted assignment, 

transfer, or delegation in violation of this provision is void and without effect. 

Notwithstanding this provision, it is mutually understood and agreed that Provider may 

subcontract with others for some or all of the services to be performed. In any approved 

subcontracts, Provider must legally bind such Subcontractor to perform and make such 

Subcontractor subject to all the duties, requirements, and obligations of Provider as specified 

in this Contract. Nothing in this Contract shall be construed to relieve Provider of the 

responsibility for ensuring that the goods delivered and/or the services rendered by Provider 

and/or any of its Subcontractors comply with all the terms and provisions of this Contract. 

Provider will provide written notification to the Board of any such Subcontractor 

performing fifteen percent (15%) or more of the work under this Contract. Such 

notification must include the name and Texas Identification Number of Subcontractor, the 

task(s) being performed, and the number of Subcontractor employees expected to work on 

the task. 

7.07 HISTORICALLY UNDERUTILIZED BUSINESSES (HUBS) / MENTOR PROTÉGÉ PROGRAM 

Provider must notify the Board of HUB Subcontractors performing under this Contract 

through the submission of an HSP to the Board for approval.  During the term of the 

Contract, Provider must submit monthly compliance reports (Prime Contractor Progress 

Assessment Report) to HUB@glo.texas.gov detailing any HUB Subcontractor 

participation. Provider must submit proposed modifications to its HSP to the Board for 

prior approval through an HSP Change Order. Provider may not modify its HSP without 

the Board’s prior written approval. If Provider modifies its HSP without the Board’s prior 

written approval, the Board may initiate remedial action as provided in Chapter 2161 of 

the Texas Government Code.  

7.08 RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES 

Provider is associated with the Board only for the purposes and to the extent specified in 

this Contract. Provider is and shall be an independent contractor and, subject only to the 

terms of this Contract, shall have the sole right to supervise, manage, operate, control, and 

direct performance of the details incident to its duties under this Contract. Nothing 

contained in this Contract creates a partnership or joint venture, employer-employee or 

principal-agent relationships, or any liability whatsoever with respect to the indebtedness, 

liabilities, or obligations of Provider or any other party. Provider shall be solely responsible 

for, and the Board shall have no obligation with respect to: withholding of income taxes, 

FICA, or any other taxes or fees; industrial or workers’ compensation insurance coverage; 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF

mailto:HUB@glo.texas.gov


   

GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 

Page 12 of 15 

accumulation of vacation leave or sick leave; or unemployment compensation coverage 

provided by the State. 

7.09 COMPLIANCE WITH OTHER LAWS 

In its performance of this Contract, Provider must comply with all applicable federal, 

state, and local laws, statutes, ordinances, and regulations, including federal and state 

anti-kickback statutes and safe harbors to such statutes and associated rules and 

regulations. Provider is deemed to know of and understand all applicable laws, statutes, 

ordinances, and regulations.  

7.10 NOTICES 

Any notices required under this Contract shall be deemed delivered when deposited either in 

the United States mail (postage paid, certified, return receipt requested) or with a common 

carrier (overnight, signature required) to the appropriate address below: 

GLO 

Texas General Land Office & Texas Veterans Land Board 

1700 N. Congress Avenue, 7th Floor 

Austin, Texas 78701 

Attention: Contract Management Division  

Provider 

Omnicare Pharmacy of Texas 1, LP 

14450 Trinity Blvd. Ste. 200 

Fort Worth, Texas 76155  

Attention: Matthew Lerner 

Notice given in any other manner shall be deemed effective only upon receipt by the Party 

to be notified. Either Party may change its address for notice by written notice to the other 

Party as herein provided. 

7.11 SEVERABILITY 

If a court of competent jurisdiction determines any provision of this Contract is invalid, 

void, or unenforceable, the remaining terms, provisions, covenants, and conditions of this 

Contract shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired, or 

invalidated. 

7.12 FORCE MAJEURE 

Except with respect to the obligation of payments under this Contract, if either of the 

Parties, after a good faith effort, is prevented from complying with any express or implied 

covenant of this Contract by reason of war; terrorism; rebellion; riots; strikes; acts of God; 

any valid order, rule, or regulation of governmental authority; or similar events that are 

beyond the control of the affected Party (collectively referred to as a “Force Majeure”), 

then, while so prevented, the affected Party’s obligation to comply with such covenant shall 

be suspended, and the affected Party shall not be liable for damages for failure to comply 

with such covenant. In any such event, the Party claiming Force Majeure must promptly 

notify the other Party of the Force Majeure event in writing, and, if possible, such notice 

must set forth the extent and duration thereof. The Party claiming Force Majeure must 

exercise due diligence to prevent, eliminate, or overcome such Force Majeure event when it 

is possible to do so and must resume performance at the earliest possible date. However, if 

nonperformance continues for more than thirty (30) days, the Board may terminate this 

Contract immediately upon written notification to Provider.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



   

GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 

Page 13 of 15 

7.13 ENTIRE CONTRACT AND MODIFICATION 

This Contract, its Attachments, its Amendments, and any purchase order issued in 

conjunction with this Contract constitute the entire agreement of the Parties and are 

intended as a complete and exclusive statement of the promises, representations, 

negotiations, discussions, and other agreements made in connection with the subject matter 

hereof. Any additional or conflicting terms in any Attachment, Amendment, or purchase 

order shall be harmonized with this Contract to the extent possible. Except as provided 

herein, this Contract may be amended only by a mutual, written agreement executed by 

authorized representatives of the Parties.  

7.14 COUNTERPARTS 

This Contract may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be an 

original, and all such counterparts shall together constitute one and the same Contract. 

7.15 DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

Except as otherwise provided by statute, rule, or regulation, Provider must use the dispute 

resolution process provided for in Chapter 2260 of the Texas Government Code to 

attempt to resolve any dispute arising under the Contract. NOTHING IN THIS SECTION 

SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS A WAIVER OF SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY BY THE BOARD. 

7.16 GOVERNING LAW, VENUE, AND SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY 

The Contract shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State 

of Texas, without regard to the conflicts of law provisions. The venue of any suit arising 

under the Contract is fixed in any court of competent jurisdiction of Travis County, 

Texas, unless a specific venue is otherwise identified in a statute that directly names or 

otherwise identifies its applicability to the Board. Provider irrevocably waives any 

objection—including any objection to personal jurisdiction—it has or may have to the 

bringing of any action or proceeding in such jurisdiction in respect of this Contract or any 

related document. NOTHING IN THE CONTRACT SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS A WAIVER OF 

SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY BY THE BOARD OR THE STATE OF TEXAS. 

 

7.17 BOOKS AND RECORDS 

Provider shall keep and maintain under GAAP or GASB, as applicable, full, true, and 

complete records necessary to fully disclose to the GLO/VLB, the Texas State Auditor’s 

Office, the United States Government, and/or their authorized representatives sufficient 

information to determine Provider’s compliance with this Contract and all applicable state, 

federal, and local laws, rules, regulations, and statutes. 

 

7.18 INSPECTION AND AUDIT 

(a) All records related to this Contract, including records of Provider and its 

Subcontractors, shall be subject to the Administrative and Audit Regulations. 

(b) The state auditor may conduct an audit or investigation of any entity receiving 

funds from the state directly under the Contract or indirectly through a 

subcontract under the Contract. Acceptance of funds directly under the Contract 

or indirectly through a subcontract under the Contract acts as acceptance of the 

authority of the state auditor, under the direction of the Legislative Audit 

Committee, to conduct an audit or investigation in connection with those funds. 

Under the direction of the Legislative Audit Committee, an entity that is the 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



   

GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 

Page 14 of 15 

subject of an audit or investigation by the state auditor must provide the state 

auditor with access to any information the state auditor considers relevant to the 

investigation or audit. If work performed under this Contract is federally funded, 

the Office of the Comptroller General of the United States, the Government 

Accountability Office, the Office of Inspector General, or any authorized 

representative of the U.S. Government shall also have this right of inspection. 

Provider shall ensure that this clause concerning the authority to audit funds 

received indirectly by Subcontractors through Provider and the requirement to 

cooperate is included in any subcontract it awards. 

(c) State agencies authorized to audit and inspect Provider and its records, 

Subcontractors, and Subcontractors’ records include the GLO/VLB, the 

GLO/VLB’s contracted examiners, the State Auditor’s Office, the Texas Attorney 

General’s Office, the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts, and their authorized 

designees. With regard to any federal funding, federal agencies authorized to 

audit and inspect Provider and its records, Subcontractors, and Subcontractors’ 

records include any relevant federal agency, the Office of the Comptroller 

General of the United States, the Government Accountability Office, the Office of 

Inspector General, and their authorized designees. 

7.19 RECORDS RETENTION 

Each Party must retain in its records the Contract and all documents related to the 

Contract. Unless a longer retention period is specified by applicable law or regulation, the 

Parties may destroy the Contract and related documents only after the seventh 

anniversary of the date: the Contract is completed, terminates, or expires; or the date 

when all issues that arise from any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit, open records 

request, administrative review, or other action involving the Contract or related 

documents are resolved. 

7.20 CONFIDENTIALITY/HIPAA & TEXAS MEDICAL RECORDS PRIVACY ACT COMPLIANCE 

To the extent permitted by law, Provider and the Board shall keep all information, in 

whatever form produced, prepared, observed, or received by Provider or the Board, 

confidential to the extent that such information is: (a) confidential by law; (b) marked or 

designated “confidential” (or words to that effect) by Provider or the Board; or (c) 

information that Provider or the Board is otherwise required to keep confidential by this 

Contract.  Provider must not advertise that it is doing business with the Board, use this 

Contract as a marketing or sales tool, or make any communications or announcements 

relating to this Contract through press releases, social media, or other public relations 

efforts without the prior written consent of the Board. 

Provider shall comply with HIPAA, HITECH, the Texas Medical Records Privacy Act, 

Tex. Health & Safety Code Chapter 181, and any associated statutes, regulations, and 

rules.  Provider shall execute and abide by the terms of the Business Associate 

Agreement attached hereto as Attachment E and incorporated herein. 

7.21 PUBLIC RECORDS 

The Board shall post this Contract to the Board’s website.  Provider understands that the 

Board will comply with the Texas Public Information Act (Texas Government Code 

Chapter 552, the “PIA”), as interpreted by judicial rulings and opinions of the Attorney 

General of the State of Texas (the “Attorney General”). Information, documentation, and 

other material in connection with this Contract may be subject to public disclosure 

pursuant to the PIA. In accordance with Section 2252.907 of the Texas Government 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



   

GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 

Page 15 of 15 

Code, Provider is required to make any information created or exchanged with the Board 

or the State of Texas pursuant to the Contract, and not otherwise excepted from 

disclosure under the PIA, available to the Board in portable document file (“.pdf”) format 

or any other format agreed upon between the Parties that is accessible by the public at no 

additional charge to the Board or the State of Texas. By failing to mark any information 

that believes to be excepted from disclosure as “confidential” or a “trade secret,” Provider 

waives any and all claims it may make against the Board for releasing such information 

without prior notice to. The Attorney General will ultimately determine whether any 

information may be withheld from release under the PIA.  Provider shall notify the 

Board’s Office of General Counsel within twenty-four (24) hours of receipt of any third-

party written requests for information and forward a copy of said written requests to 

PIALegal@glo.texas.gov. If a request for information was not written, Provider shall 

forward the third party’s contact information to the above-designated e-mail address. 

7.22 SURVIVAL OF TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

The terms and conditions of this Contract related to the following subjects shall survive 

the termination of this Contract: definitions; interpretive provisions; consideration; 

warranties; General Affirmations, Federal Assurances; state funding, prohibition on debts 

created on behalf of the State of Texas and/or the Board, recapture of state funds, and 

overpayment of state funds; limitation of any Provider claim for damages to the amount 

of funds appropriated for payment but not yet paid to Provider; ownership, Intellectual 

Property, and copyright; records retention requirements; inspection and audit; 

confidentiality/HIPAA and Texas Medical Privacy Act compliance; public records; 

insurance; taxes; workers’ compensation; unemployment insurance; Provider’s obligation 

to procure and maintain, at its sole expense, all government licenses, authorizations, 

insurance, waivers, permits, and/or qualifications necessary for Provider or any 

Subcontractors to provide the goods or services described in this Contract; 

indemnification and liability; infringement of Intellectual Property rights; assignment and 

subcontracting; relationship of the Parties; compliance with laws; notices; governing law 

and venue; severability; dispute resolution; merger and integration; invoice and fee 

verification; property rights; default; and amendment.  Terms and conditions that, 

explicitly or by their nature, evidence the Parties’ intent that they should survive the 

termination or expiration of this Contract shall so survive. 

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF

mailto:PIALegal@glo.texas.gov


  

GSstBB2019 

 

SIGNATURE PAGE FOR GLO CONTRACT NO. 22-008-000-C938 

SERVICES CONTRACT 

 

GENERAL LAND OFFICE & OMNICARE PHARMACY OF TEXAS 1, LP 

VETERANS LAND BOARD 

 

                   ______ 

Mark A. Havens, Chief Clerk/           Name:       

Deputy Land Commissioner           Title:       

Executive Secretary, VLB 

 

Date of execution: _______________          Date of execution:__________________ 

 

 
OGC___________________ 

DD_____________________ 

DGC ___________________ 

GC_____________________ 

 

ATTACHED TO THIS CONTRACT:  

ATTACHMENT A – Scope of Services 

ATTACHMENT B – Fee Schedule 

ATTACHMENT C – General Affirmations 

ATTACHMENT D – Federal Assurances and Certifications 

ATTACHMENT E – Business Associate Agreement 

ATTACHMENT F – Required Insurance 

 

INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE:  

 

SOLICITATION  

 

SOLICITATION RESPONSE  

ATTACHMENTS FOLLOW  

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF

10/29/2021

Senior Legal Counsel

Errin Simpkins-Travers

11/1/2021



Attachment A 

GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 

Page 1 of 9 

 SCOPE OF SERVICES 

  

1.1 Resident Classification 

Provider shall provide pharmaceutical services to all Residents as directed by Operator 

staff.  Primary Resident Classifications are as follows: 

 Veteran Residents 

o Veteran Residents not eligible for A&A coverage and have no Service-

Connected disability rating; 

o Veteran A&A Residents; 

o Veteran Residents with an Service-Connected disability rating less than 

50%; 

o Veteran Residents with an Service-Connected disability rating between 

50% and 60%; and 

o Veteran Residents with an Service-Connected disability rating of 70% or 

above. 

 Medicare Part A Residents 

o Veteran Residents (all classifications except veterans with an SCD rating of 

70% or above); and 

o Non-veteran Residents. 

 Non-veteran Residents (Resident is responsible for medication costs). 

Certain Veteran Residents, listed below, are entitled to VA prescription benefits; therefore, 

their prescriptions are filled at a VA facility. Provider shall only be required to fill 

prescriptions for the following Resident Classifications (collectively “VA Eligible Veteran 

Residents”) for new orders or under emergency or extraordinary circumstances. 

 Veteran A&A Residents - All prescriptions should be filled by the VA; 

 Veteran Residents with a Service-Connected disability rating between 50% and 

60% - All prescriptions should be filled by the VA; and 

 Veteran Residents with a Service-Connected disability rating less than 50% - the 

VA should fill those prescriptions for medications needed to treat the disability, or 

disabilities, responsible for the Service-Connected disability rating. 

Notwithstanding the preceding, if the VA is unable to fill a prescription for VA Eligible 

Veteran Residents, Provider must fill the prescription. 

The Board or the Operator will provide Provider with a list of VA Eligible Veteran 

Residents in each respective Veterans Home. Provider shall perform screen checks for VA 

Eligible Veteran Residents to avoid inadvertently filling their prescriptions. In an 

emergency case, if requested by the Board through its Operator, Provider must fill VA 

Eligible Veteran Resident prescriptions on a temporary basis in quantities sufficient to 

allow the Operator to fill the prescription through the VA. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Attachment A 

GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 

Page 2 of 9 

Provider shall treat charges for Veteran and Non-Veteran Medicare A residents separately 

in order to comply with CMS consolidated billing requirements.  Provider will follow the 

VA’s developed payor source for the seventy percent (70%) Service-Connected Veterans 

which mirrors the Medicare A consolidated billing payor source.  Provider shall set up 

separate payor sources for tracking these resident categories in addition to the VA Eligible 

Residents. 

1.2 Co-Located Pharmacies and Distribution Processes 

For handling emergency prescriptions, Providers shall make use of its nine (9) long-term 

care pharmacies located throughout the State of Texas (each a “Pharmacy” and collectively 

the “Pharmacies”) co-located in close proximity to Texas State Veterans Homes. Provider 

shall utilize, to the extent possible, its pharmacy nearest to each home for distribution to 

each individual home. 

1.3 Hours of Operation 

At a minimum Provider must provide pharmaceutical services during normal business 

hours (8:00 a.m. to 5:00 pm CST, Monday through Friday) In addition, Provider must also 

provide emergency after-hours, weekend, and holiday service.  Emergency service must 

be available twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week. For “emergency 

service” orders, time is of the essence. 

1.4 Pick-up and Delivery/Shipping 

a) Provider shall make routine deliveries to each Texas State Veterans Home in accordance 

with Provider’s Solicitation Response, but at a minimum of three times per week.  The 

regular schedule and delivery locations are to be determined after consultation with the 

Board and with the Operator. Routine deliveries shall be made within reasonable times and 

without unreasonable delay.  For routine deliveries, “reasonable time” means that the 

orders will be delivered within seventy-two (72) hours of receipt of the order. 

b) All Stat and emergency deliveries will be in addition to Provider’s routine deliveries.  

Provider agrees that for Stat and emergency orders time is of the essence.  Provider may 

utilize local contracted pharmacies for emergency prescription orders. 

c) Upon delivery, all delivery containers shall contain a delivery receipt which shall be 

reviewed and signed by the Operator’s designated licensed nurse.  Provider’s delivery 

agent will, at a minimum, request signatures for the following documents: 

 Delivery receipts for non-controlled substances; 

 Delivery receipts for controlled substances; and 

 Signature sheets for Stat and emergency deliveries. 

d) Provider shall maintain all medications in the proper manufacturer’s recommended 

environmental climate control levels.  Refrigerated medications shall be delivered in 

insulated containers with “cold packs” to keep the medications at the required 

temperatures.  The insulated containers will be placed within the delivery container and 

will be signed for by Operator staff. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Attachment A 

GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 

Page 3 of 9 

e) Provider shall advise the Operator immediately of any delays or deviations from the above-

specified delivery and shipping requirements.  If Provider anticipates or encounters a 

medication delay lasting longer than forty-eight (48) hours, Provider’s pharmacist shall 

contact the Operator or the prescribing physician to arrange for an alternative therapy. 

f) If special conditions occur, such as manufacturer drug allotments, Provider is responsible 

for making every effort to obtain the requested drug from the manufacturer or from any 

other source.  In the event that a drug is not available, Provider’s pharmacist shall contact 

the Operator of the prescribing physician to arrange for an alternative therapy. 

g) Provider will utilize the delivery procedures currently in place due to the COVID-19 

pandemic for as long as required to ensure the health, welfare and safety of individuals. 

Provider shall comply with any and all COVID-19 safety protocols implemented at each 

Texas State Veterans Home. 

1.5 Packaging 

Provider shall utilize a thirty-day (30) blister card system for the packaging of medication.  

The blister card packaging and labeling shall conform with federal, state, and local law.  

All blister card labels shall include patient name, name of drug (both generic and trade 

name including tall-man lettering), dosage amount, lot number, expiration date, 

manufacturer name, physician name, pharmacist’s initials, precautions, and time of 

administration. The thirty-day blister cards will be dispensed with the amount of 

medication as prescribed by the physician, whether it is a thirty-day supply or a lesser 

amount.  Provider shall utilize the thirty-day blister card system for both prescription and 

over-the-counter medications.  All blister cards will have a tamper evidence closure and 

will be sealed to prevent moisture of other factors from interfering with the therapeutic 

value of the medications.  

Controlled substances shall be packaged in thirty (30) day blister cards containing the 

number of doses to be administered by the Operator. Controlled substances that require 

refrigeration shall be maintained in a secure container in the refrigerator at the facility.  

Provider shall abide by and follow all required state and federal laws, rules and regulations 

pertaining to the dispensing of controlled substances and narcotic medications.  

Dispensing quantities of prescription medications shall not exceed a thirty (30) day supply, 

unless specifically requested by the ordering clinician. 

Prior to each delivery a Provider pharmacist shall visually check the blister cards.  

1.6  Returns 

a) As permitted by federal and state law, Operator or the Board may return eligible 

medications for credit.   

b) Unused medications may be returned to Provider in the event of discharge, death, or 

discontinuation, with the following exceptions: 

 If the safety seal is broken on ointments, creams, liquids, or eye drops; 

 Inhalers not in the original safety packaging; 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Attachment A 

GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 

Page 4 of 9 

 Reconstituted products; 

 Flu vaccines; 

 Refrigerated items that are not returned in a cooler; 

 Soiled, damaged, or manipulated products/blister cards; 

 Self-administration and teaching medications; 

 TPN or pre-mixed medications; 

 IV supplies; 

 Syringed medications prepared at Provider’s pharmacy; 

 Medications dispensed more than 60 days before being returned; 

 Compounded medications; 

 Controlled substances (except as allowed by federal regulations); and 

 Medications that are written upon or defaced by facility staff. 

Controlled substances cannot be returned to the pharmacy for credit EXCEPT: 

 An item incorrectly ordered by the facility and/or incorrectly prepared by the 

pharmacy; and  

 A correctly ordered and prepared item was refused upon pharmacy delivery (i.e., 

order was discontinued or resident expired before the item was delivered). 

For controlled substances that may not be returned, Provider shall assist Operator in 

completing the forms required for the destruction of controlled substances. 

c) If a medication is eligible for credit, credit will be issued upon the following criteria: 

 All return medications will be returned and handled according to all state and 

federal rules and regulations; and 

 Return medication forms will be provided to the Operator or to the Board for 

documentation purposes. 

Credit (in the amount initially charged) will be issued for properly returned medications. 

1.7 Medication Carts and Equipment 

a) Provider shall provide medication and treatment carts as required to provide pharmacy 

services at the Texas State Veterans Homes at no charge to the GLO/VLB. 

b) Any and all equipment provided by Provider for use at any Texas State Veterans Home, 

including without limitation, medication carts, crash carts, treatment carts, scanners, fax 

machines, and any other equipment necessary for the provision of pharmacy services, shall 

remain the property of Provider, which ownership shall be marked accordingly. The 

equipment shall be used for pharmacy services only. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Attachment A 

GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 

Page 5 of 9 

c) In the event that any Provider provided medication cart, fax machine, or other equipment 

requires maintenance, and upon notification from the Operator or from the Board, Provider 

will deploy staff to the facility to perform the required maintenance on-site. If the 

maintenance cannot be performed on-site, Provider will provide interim equipment and 

will transport the equipment off-site for maintenance or replacement.  Replacement 

equipment shall be of the same type and style as that which was removed. 

1.8 Emergency Kits and Leave of Absence Medications/Travel Packs 

a) Provider shall provide, for immediate administration, tamper-resistant emergency drug 

kits/E-boxes and c-boxes, containing medication not otherwise obtainable at the time 

required, to alleviate pain, infection, modify dangerous behavior, or preserve life.  Kits 

shall be available and stored in such a manner that is within the parameters of all state 

statutes and federal regulations and rules. Kits shall be inventoried monthly. Provider shall 

collaborate with the Operator’s staff to establish and update the list of medications to be 

maintained in the emergency kits.  

b) Provider shall provide leave of absence medications in conventional properly-labeled 

prescription containers within 48 hours.  

1.9 Formulary Management 

a) VA Formulary and Generics First Approach.  Provider shall match the VA Formulary and 

substitute generic drugs when available unless directed by the physician to “Dispense as 

Written.”  Provider will work, on an ongoing basis, with the Operator, the Operator’s 

medical director or with the Board (only in instances where appropriate and compliant with 

all applicable laws and regulations) to be certain formulary medications are clinically 

suitable and represent the lowest cost alternative to Texas State Veterans Homes. Provider 

shall utilize generics with at least an AB rating and the manufacturer will remain consistent 

whenever possible.  When brand-name medications become generically available, Provider 

shall use its best efforts to generically substitute these new generic items, whenever 

possible, within 7-10 days from that brand-named medication becoming generically 

available. 

b) RxClaim Clinical Edits.  Where clinically appropriate, branded medications may have a 

pharmacy operating system edit in place to prompt for a short supply, length of therapy 

limit or require a Prior Authorization to dispense the medication. 

c) Focus on Cost & Utilization.  Provider shall address utilization of specific, high cost, high 

utilization agents through quantity limits (e.g., Low Molecular Weight Heparins, blood 

Modifiers); Prior Authorizations (e.g., appetite stimulants); dosage form modifications 

(e.g., Vancomycin capsules to compounded oral solution) and length of therapy. 

d) Therapeutic Interchange Program.  Provider shall develop specific interchange protocols 

built upon the principles of evidenced based medicine, clinical integrity, and financial 

transparency.  Provider will utilize a centralized process for developing therapeutic 

interchange programs that will consider the relative therapeutic interchange programs that 

will consider the relative therapeutic or pharmaceutical attributes of the drugs subject to 

the therapeutic interchange and, secondarily, to the relative prices of the drugs subject to 

the therapeutic interchange. Provider will collaborate with the Operator or with the 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Attachment A 

GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 

Page 6 of 9 

GLO/VLB to implement formulary management for drugs paid for by GLO/VLB as part 

of Medicare A or managed care stays. 

e) Preview Pre-Admission Screening Tool.  Provider shall assist the Operator with therapeutic 

interchange opportunities, prior to Resident admission, to a clinically superior or equivalent 

medication. 

f) Facility Specific Formulary.  Where allowed by law, Provider will implement a facility 

specific formulary. 

1.10 Billing and Charges 

a) The GLO/VLB is responsible for the cost of Medications for all Veteran Residents except 

for VA Eligible Residents. 

b) Medicare Part D and other third-party Payer formulary management.   For residents with 

coverage under a third-party prescription benefit plan, such as Medicare Part D, Medicaid, 

or a commercial insurer, Provider will coordinate with its dispensing pharmacy to: 

 Recommend a covered alternative when a Resident is prescribed a non-covered 

drug (these recommendations are made on a Resident/situation specific basis); 

 Work with the Operator or with the GLO/VLB to submit the appropriate 

documentation to the Medicare Part D plan to allow payment when a Resident is 

prescribed a drug subject to a prior authorization (“PA”) or medical exceptions for 

clinical reasons; and 

 Assist in resolving claims that are rejected for clinical reasons. 

Where applicable, Provider will provide the prescribing physician all necessary 

forms mandated for the payer to seek a PA, an exception to a non-formulary status, 

an exception to a quantity limit or any other applicable exception to the coverage 

restriction. 

c) Prior Authorization.  Prescriptions that are rejected by the Payer which necessitate a Prior 

Authorization and medical exceptions shall be primarily processed by Provider.  Provider 

will generate a form that will provide the prescriber with covered alternatives for the payer.  

In the event that the prescriber wishes to pursue a Prior Authorization or a medical 

exception, Provider will provide the prescriber with any necessary forms for the process as 

mandated by the payer to seek a Prior Authorization, an exception to a non-formulary 

status, an exception to a quantity limit, or any other applicable exception to the coverage 

restriction. 

d) Medicaid Pending. For Medicaid Pending Residents, Provider shall identify and 

appropriately bill Residents or the Resident’s responsible party with pending Medicaid 

applications.  Identified Residents shall have all charges billed to the responsible party, or 

their primary coverage with co-pays billed to the responsible party, via a monthly invoice.  

When the Medicaid application is approved, the charges will be re-billed for the 

appropriate retroactive coverage date.  At that time, any Medicaid non-covered charges, 

both retroactive and future, may be billed to the GLO/VLB.  Provider will attempt to find 

coverage for Residents upon admission as well as monthly for any outstanding balance 

accounts. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Attachment A 

GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 

Page 7 of 9 

e) Automatic Split Billing.  When a Medicare Part A Resident is discharged from a Texas 

State Veterans Home for a stay consisting of less than thirty (30) days, Provider’s system 

will act automatically halt the dispensing of medication and will issue a credit memo to the 

GLO/VLB for the unused portion of the Medicare Part A prescription.  The Provider will 

then automatically generate a charge to the new payer for the unused portion. 

f) Non-Covered Medications. Non-covered Medications will be billed to Residents directly 

by Provider.  To the extent that the non-covered Residents later obtain some type of third-

party coverage, Provider will work with the Residents to have any newly-covered items re-

billed to the appropriate third-party pay source.  For a dual-eligible resident who has both 

Medicare and Medicaid coverage, a non-covered Medication will be billed to the 

GLO/VLB.  

1.11 Electronic Ordering, Electronic Invoicing, and Web-Interface 

For electronic ordering, electronic invoicing, and web-interface, Provider will utilize its 

internal pharmacy dispensing system as described in Provider’s Solicitation Response and 

in accordance with updated industry encryption standards. 

1.12 Additional Services 

a)  COVID-19 Vaccinations.  If requested by the Operator, Provider shall provide COVID-19 

vaccinations and shall manage the storage, delivery logistics and vaccine administration 

reporting.  

b) Annual Quality Review.  If requested by the GLO/VLB, Provider shall provide annual 

quality review services as outlined and in accordance with Provider’s Solicitation 

Response. 

c) Quality Assurance.  If requested by the GLO/VLB, Provider shall provide the quality 

assurance services as outlined and in accordance with Provider’s Solicitation Response.  

d) Quality Improvement.  If requested by the GLO/VLB, Provider shall provide the quality 

improvement services as outlined and in accordance with the Provider’s Solicitation 

Response. 

1.13 Reporting and Analysis 

Provider shall develop custom reports, as may be requested by the GLO/VLB.  The reports 

shall contain, at a minimum, the following data: 

 A cost analysis on pre-admitted residents; 

 An automated electronic daily census extract and payer status change; 

 A profile of each resident, physician, payer source, pharmacy, and Texas State 

Veterans Home; 

 A list of high-cost drugs, per facility; 

 A summary invoice and detail billing file to support orders filled and charges billed 

for each home; 

Reports shall be provided to the GLO/VLB in Microsoft® Excel®, or compatible, format 

containing the data fields reasonably requested by the GLO/VLB. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Attachment A 

GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 

Page 8 of 9 

In addition, the following reports are for the GLO/VLB to review at any time: 

 Total orders filled in the prior month (new and refills); 

 Total number of doses dispensed for formulary brand, non-formulary brand, and 

generics; 

 Total cost for non-formulary vs. formulary orders; 

 Percentage of residents on medication by gender; 

 Number of prescriptions, per resident, by gender; 

 Prescriber profile for each prescriber; 

 Top non-formulary prescriptions by prescriber; 

 Detail of orders written by class of drug; 

 Summary of orders by therapeutic class; 

 Percentage of total orders for each prescriber by class of drug; 

 Non-formulary orders by class of drug; 

 Breakdown of total drug cost by class; 

 Top ten psychotropic drugs by cost; 

 Top ten non-psychotropic drugs by cost; 

 Top OTC medications by cost; 

 Quarterly graphs that illustrate utilization patterns; 

 Drug history and physician prescribing reports; and 

 Any and all other reports requested by the GLO/VLB. 

1.14 Quarterly Meetings 

Provider shall conduct a quarterly business meeting.  In attendance at the quarterly meeting 

shall be the Provider’s pharmacist, designated provider staff, and the designated GLO/VLB 

staff or the GLO/VLB’s On-Site Representative.  At the quarterly meeting, Provider will 

present a Quarterly Business Meeting Report.  The Quarterly Business Meeting Report 

shall consist of, at a minimum, six (6) components: (i) Service and Financial Overview; 

(ii) Clinical Utilization Review; (iii) Infusion Updates; (iv) Industry Updates and Business 

Plan Update; and (vi) Open Discussion.  The Quarterly Business Meeting will be in 

addition to the standard quarterly consultant pharmacist meeting. 

1.15 HIPAA and Texas Medical Records Privacy Act Compliance 

Provider shall comply with the HIPAA, HITECH, and the Texas Medical Records Privacy 

Act, TEX. HEALTH & SAFETY CODE 181. Provider is required to execute the Business 

Associate Agreement, incorporated herein as Attachment E. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Attachment A 

GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 

Page 9 of 9 

1.16 Drug Discount Coupons 

Subject to Provider’s participation in the coupon program, the patient’s eligibility, and 

compliance with all applicable terms, conditions, laws and regulations, including all state 

and federal anti-kickback laws, Provider will honor commonly available pharmacy drug 

discount coupons when doing so will result in cost savings for the GLO/VLB. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Attachment B 
GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 

Page 1 of 2 

Fee Schedule 
 

 
1. Calculations of Charges: The Charges for Medications shall be established as follows: 

 
a. Non-IV and Non-TPN Pricing: 

i. Rx Brand:   WAC + $1.00 
ii. RX Generic: AWP – 90% + $1.00 
iii. OTC Brand: WAC + 10% + $1.00 
iv. OTC Generic: WAC +15% + $1.00 

 
b. Bulk House Stock: 

i. Brand:  WAC + 10% 
ii. Generic:  WAC + 15% 

 
c. Intravenous (IV) Drug Therapy Pricing:  The Board shall compensate Provider for IV Drug 

Therapy Services  at the rates in the table included in Section 3 of this Attachment B. IV 
Supply Per Diem Pricing shall include all IV pumps and disposable IV supplies that are 
necessary to administer IV medications in compliance Provider’s Infusion Policy, FDA, INS, 
and OSHA requirements and guidelines.  These may include, without limitation, IV pumps, 
infusion sets/tubing, peripheral IV catheters, IV start kits, CVAD dressing change kits, 
needle-less supplies/connections.  Diluents, prefilled IV Flush Syringes, and elastomeric 
devices are not included in the per diem or per does charges unless otherwise noted.  

i. Per dose charges:  The per dose charges shall be applied to each IV dose that is 
dispensed unless otherwise noted. 

ii. Per diem charges:  The per diem fees will be applied to each drug dispensed for 
each day of service unless otherwise noted. (Example:  If a Resident receives 2 
different IV antibiotic drugs for 7 days, with drug A administered once per day and 
drug B administered twice per day, the QD per diem fee will be applied drug A with 
a quantity of 7 and the BID per diem fee will be applied to drug B with a quantity 
of 7).  

  

2. General Terms and Conditions: The following terms and conditions apply: 

a. Provider understands that Operator is responsible for wastage of Medication as a result of 
improper storage.  Provider shall replace the Medication and shall invoice the Operator for the 
applicable charges in accordance with the pricing schedule listed in Section of this Attachment 
B.  

b. In providing the Board with the IV Drug Therapy Services listed herein, Provider shall: 

i. Select and prepare parenatal products, as appropriate, and provide and maintain IV 
administration products as necessary for IV drug therapy; 

ii. Supply an IV drug therapy emergency kit to the facilities and replenish the kit as 
necessary; 

iii. Provide a copy of the Provider’s Infusion Therapy Policy and Procedure Manual to 
each facility; and 

iv. Provide IV drug therapy services, if available, on a routine basis Monday-Sunday.  
Provider shall provide IV drug therapy services on an emergency basis, as needed, 
except for PICC insertion, which is not available after the Provider’s weekday hours or 
on weekends. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Attachment B 
GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Section 3:  

 
REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Attachment C 

1. GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 

Page 1 of 5 
 

Revised 8/27/2021 BB:lw 

General Affirmations 

Provider affirms and agrees to the following provisions: 

1. Provider represents and warrants that, in accordance with Section 2155.005 of the Texas Government 

Code, neither Provider; the firm, corporation, partnership, or institution represented by Provider; nor 

anyone acting for such a firm, corporation, partnership, or institution has (a) violated any provision of 

the Texas Free Enterprise and Antitrust Act of 1983—Chapter 15 of the Texas Business and 

Commerce Code—or the federal antitrust laws or (b) directly or indirectly communicated the contents 

of the Contract or any solicitation response upon which the Contract is based to any competitor or any 

other person engaged in the same line of business as Provider. 

2. Under Section 231.006, Family Code, the vendor or applicant [Provider] certifies that the individual 

or business entity named in this Contract, bid, or application is not ineligible to receive the specified 

grant, loan, or payment and acknowledges that this Contract may be terminated and payment may be 

withheld if this certification is inaccurate. 

3. A bid or an application for a contract, grant, or loan paid from state funds must include the name and 

social security number of the bidder/applicant or each partner, shareholder, or owner with an 

ownership interest of at least 25% of the business entity submitting the bid or application. Provider 

certifies it has submitted this information to the Board. 

4. If the Contract is for the purchase or lease of computer equipment—as defined by Texas Health and 

Safety Code, Section 361.952(2)— Provider certifies its compliance with Subchapter Y, Chapter 361 

of the Texas Health and Safety Code and the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality rules in 

30 Tex. Admin. Code Chapter 328. 

5. Pursuant to Section 2155.003 of the Texas Government Code, Provider represents and warrants that it 

has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give at any time hereafter any economic opportunity, 

future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip, favor, or service to a public servant in 

connection with the Contract. 

6. Payments due under the Contract shall be directly applied toward eliminating any debt or 

delinquency—including delinquent taxes, delinquent student loan payments, and delinquent child 

support—that Provider owes to the State of Texas, regardless of when the debt or delinquency arises. 

7. Upon the Board’s request, Provider must provide copies of its business continuity and disaster 

recovery plans. 

8. If the Contract is for consulting services governed by Texas Government Code Chapter 2254, in 

accordance with Section 2254.033 of the Texas Government Code, Provider certifies that it does not 

employ an individual who has been employed by the Board or another state agency at any time during 

the two years preceding the Provider’s submission of its offer to provide consulting services to the 

Board or that Provider, in its offer to provide consulting services to the Board, disclosed the 

following: (a) the nature of the Provider’s employee’s previous employment with the GLO or other 

state agency; (b) the date such employment was terminated; and (c) the annual rate of compensation 

for such employment at the time of its termination. 

9. If Chapter 2271 of the Texas Government Code applies to this Contract, Provider verifies it does not 

boycott Israel and will not boycott Israel during the term of this Contract. 

10. This Contract is contingent upon the continued availability of lawful appropriations by the Texas 

Legislature. Provider understands that all obligations of the Board under this Contract are subject to 

the availability of state funds. If such funds are not appropriated or become unavailable, the Board 

may terminate the Contract. The Contract shall not be construed as creating a debt on behalf of the 

Board in violation of Article III, Section 49(a), of the Texas Constitution.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Attachment C 

1. GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 

Page 2 of 5 
 

Revised 8/27/2021 BB:lw 

11. Provider certifies that it is not listed in the prohibited vendors list authorized by Executive Order No. 

13224, “Blocking Property and Prohibiting Transactions with Persons Who Commit, Threaten to 

Commit, or Support Terrorism”, published by the United States Department of the Treasury, Office of 

Foreign Assets Control. 

12. In accordance with Section 669.003 of the Texas Government Code relating to contracting with the 

executive head of a state agency, Provider certifies that it (1) is not the executive head of the Board; 

(2) was not, at any time during the four years before the effective date of the Contract, the executive 

head of the Board; and (3) does not employ a current or former executive head of the Board. 

13. Provider represents and warrants that all statements and information prepared and submitted in 

connection with this Contract are current, complete, true, and accurate. Submitting a false statement 

or making a material misrepresentation during the performance of this Contract is a material breach of 

contract and may void the Contract or constitute grounds for its termination. 

14. Pursuant to Section 2155.004(a) of the Texas Government Code, Provider certifies that neither 

Provider nor any person or entity represented by Provider has received compensation from the Board 

to participate in the preparation of the specifications or solicitation on which this Contract is based. 

Under Section 2155.004, Government Code, the vendor [Provider] certifies that the individual or 

business entity named in this bid or Contract is not ineligible to receive the specified contract and 

acknowledges that this Contract may be terminated and payment withheld if this certification is 

inaccurate. 

15. Provider represents and warrants that it is not engaged in business with Iran, Sudan, or a foreign 

terrorist organization, as prohibited by Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code. 

16. In accordance with Section 2252.901 of the Texas Government Code, for the categories of contracts 

listed in that section, Provider represents and warrants that none of its employees including, but not 

limited to, those authorized to provide services under the contract, were employees of the Board 

during the twelve (12) month period immediately prior to the date of execution of the contract.  

Solely for professional services contracts as described by Chapter 2254 of the Texas Government 

Code, Provider further represents and warrants that if a former employee of the Board was employed 

by Provider within one year of the employee’s leaving the Board, then such employee will not 

perform services on projects with Provider that the employee worked on while employed by the 

Board. 

17. Provider represents and warrants that it has disclosed in writing to the Board all existing or potential 

conflicts of interest related to Provider’s performance of the Contract. 

18. Sections 2155.006 and 2261.053 of the Texas Government Code prohibit state agencies from 

accepting a solicitation response or awarding a contract that includes proposed financial participation 

by a person who, in the past five years, has been convicted of violating a federal law or assessed a 

penalty in connection with a contract involving relief for Hurricane Rita, Hurricane Katrina, or any 

other disaster, as defined by Section 418.004 of the Texas Government Code, that occurred after 

September 24, 2005. Under Sections 2155.006 and 2261.053 of the Texas Government Code, 

Provider certifies that the individual or business entity named in this bid or Contract is not ineligible 

to receive the specified contract and acknowledges that this contract may be terminated and payment 

withheld if this certification is inaccurate. 

19. To the extent permitted by law, Provider and the Board shall keep all information, in whatever form 

produced, prepared, observed, or received by Provider or the Board, confidential to the extent that 

such information is: (a) confidential by law; (b) marked or designated “confidential” (or words to that 

effect) by Provider or the Board; or (c) information that Provider or the Board is otherwise required to 

keep confidential by this Contract. Provider must not advertise that it is doing business with the 

Board, use this Contract as a marketing or sales tool, or make any communications or announcements 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Attachment C 

1. GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 

Page 3 of 5 
 

Revised 8/27/2021 BB:lw 

relating to this Contract through press releases, social media, or other public relations efforts without 

the prior written consent of the Board. 

20. Each person signing the Contract represents and warrants that he or she is duly authorized to execute 

and enter into the Contract on behalf of the Party listed directly above his or her signature and to bind 

that Party to the terms and conditions in the Contract. 

21. The state auditor may conduct an audit or investigation of any entity, including Provider and its 

subcontractors, receiving funds from the state directly under the contract or indirectly through a 

subcontract under the contract. Provider’s acceptance of funds directly under the contract, and a 

Subcontractor’s acceptance of funds indirectly through a subcontract under the contract, acts as 

acceptance of the authority of the state auditor, under the direction of the legislative audit committee, 

to conduct an audit or investigation in connection with those funds. Under the direction of the 

legislative audit committee, an entity that is the subject of an audit or investigation by the state 

auditor must provide the state auditor with access to any information the state auditor considers 

relevant to the investigation or audit. Provider must include this paragraph concerning the authority to 

audit funds and the requirement to cooperate with audits and investigations in any subcontract it 

awards. The Board may unilaterally amend the Contract to comply with any rules and procedures of 

the state auditor in the implementation and enforcement of Section 2262.154 of the Texas 

Government Code. 

22. Provider certifies that neither it nor its principals are debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, 

declared ineligible, or otherwise excluded from participation in the Contract by any state or federal 

agency. 

23. If the Contract is for the purchase or lease of covered television equipment, as defined by Section 

361.971(3) of the Texas Health and Safety Code, Provider certifies its compliance with Texas Health 

and Safety Code, Chapter 361, Subchapter Z, related to the Television Equipment Recycling 

Program. 

24. Pursuant to Section 572.069 of the Texas Government Code, Provider certifies it has not employed 

and will not employ a former state officer or employee who, on behalf of the Board, participated in a 

procurement or contract negotiations involving Provider within two (2) years after the date that the 

Contract is signed or the procurement is terminated or withdrawn. This certification only applies to 

former state officers or employees whose state service or employment ceased on or after September 1, 

2015. 

25. If the Contract is for services, Provider, in performing the Contract, must purchase products and 

materials produced in Texas when they are available at a price and time comparable to products and 

materials produced outside Texas. 

26. Under Section 2155.0061, Government Code, the vendor [Provider] certifies that the individual or 

business entity named in this bid or contract is not ineligible to receive the specified contract and 

acknowledges that this contract may be terminated and payment withheld if this certification is 

inaccurate. 

27. Pursuant to GAAP or GASB, as applicable, Provider must keep and maintain full, true, and complete 

records sufficient to allow the Board, the Texas State Auditor’s Office, the United States Government 

(if applicable), and/or their authorized representatives to determine Provider’s compliance with this 

Contract and all applicable laws, rules, and regulations. 

28. All records related to the Contract, including records of Provider and its Subcontractors, are subject to 

the Administrative and Audit Regulations.  

29. State agencies that are authorized to audit and inspect Provider, its records, its Subcontractors, and its 

Subcontractors’ records include the Board, the Board’s contracted examiners, the Texas State 

Auditor’s Office, the Texas Attorney General’s Office, the Comptroller, and their authorized 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Attachment C 

1. GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 

Page 4 of 5 
 

Revised 8/27/2021 BB:lw 

designees. With regard to any federal funding, federal agencies that are authorized to audit and 

inspect Provider, its records, its Subcontractors, and its Subcontractors’ records may include any 

federal agency funding the Contract, the Office of the Comptroller General of the United States, the 

Government Accountability Office, the Office of Inspector General, and their authorized designees. 

30. The Board shall post this Contract to the Board’s website. Provider understands that the Board will 

comply with the Texas Public Information Act (Texas Government Code Chapter 552, the “PIA”), as 

interpreted by judicial rulings and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas (the 

“Attorney General”). Information, documentation, and other material in connection with this Contract 

may be subject to public disclosure pursuant to the PIA. In accordance with Section 2252.907 of the 

Texas Government Code, Provider is required to make any information created or exchanged with the 

Board or the State of Texas pursuant to the Contract, and not otherwise excepted from disclosure 

under the PIA, available to the Board in portable document file (“.pdf”) format or any other format 

agreed upon between the Parties that is accessible by the public at no additional charge to the Board 

or the State of Texas. By failing to mark any information that Provider believes to be excepted from 

disclosure as “confidential” or a “trade secret,” Provider waives any and all claims it may make 

against the Board for releasing such information without prior notice to Provider. The Attorney 

General will ultimately determine whether any information may be withheld from release under the 

PIA. Provider shall notify the Board’s Office of General Counsel within twenty-four (24) hours of 

receipt of any third-party written requests for information and forward a copy of said written requests 

to PIALegal@glo.texas.gov. If a request for information was not written, Provider shall forward the 

third party’s contact information to the above-designated e-mail address. 

31. If the Contract is for consulting services governed by Chapter 2254 of the Texas Government Code, 

Provider, upon completion of the Contract, must give the Board a compilation, in a digital medium 

agreed to by the Parties, of all documents, films, recordings, or reports Provider compiled in 

connection with its performance under the Contract. 

32. To the extent Section 552.371 of the Texas Government Code applies to Provider and the Contract, in 

accordance with Section 552.372 of the Texas Government Code, Provider must (a) preserve all 

contracting information related to the Contract in accordance with the records retention requirements 

applicable to the Board for the duration of the Contract, (b) no later than the tenth business day after 

the date of the Board’s request, provide to the Board any contracting information related to the 

Contract that is in Provider’s custody or possession, and (c) on termination or expiration of the 

Contract, either (i) provide to the Board at no cost all contracting information related to the Contract 

that is in Provider’s custody or possession or (ii) preserve the contracting information related to the 

Contract in accordance with the records retention requirements applicable to the Board. Except as 

provided by Section 552.374(c) of the Texas Government Code, the requirements of Subchapter J, 

Chapter 552, Government Code, may apply to the Contract and Provider agrees that the Contract may 

be terminated if Provider knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that 

subchapter. 

33. If Provider, in its performance of the Contract, has access to a state computer system or database, 

Provider must complete a cybersecurity training program selected by the Board that is certified under 

Section 2054.519 of the Texas Government Code. Provider must complete the cybersecurity training 

program during the initial term of the Contract and during any renewal period. Provider must verify in 

writing to the Board its completion of the cybersecurity training program. 

34. The Board does not tolerate any type of fraud. Board policy promotes consistent, legal, and ethical 

organizational behavior by assigning responsibilities and providing guidelines to enforce controls. 

Any violations of law, agency policies, or standards of ethical conduct will be investigated, and 

appropriate actions will be taken. Provider must report any possible fraud, waste, or abuse that occurs 

in connection with the Contract to the Board in the manner prescribed by the Board’s website, 

http://glo.texas.gov.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF

mailto:PIALegal@glo.texas.gov
https://gcc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fglo.texas.govn&data=02%7C01%7CBen.Bellomy%40GLO.TEXAS.GOV%7Cd97c406d38b148ffd0ba08d74e6f8253%7Cd81139cff1a542e9a0c84514e4002e96%7C0%7C0%7C637064113143064786&sdata=O1jsE2hBuCKNHd2gtSQ2ws0TBzIXtAgYUZ6PY%2By%2Fbd4%3D&reserved=0


Attachment C 

1. GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 

Page 5 of 5 
 

Revised 8/27/2021 BB:lw 

35. Provider certifies that it does not require its customers to provide any documentation certifying the 

customer’s COVID-19 vaccination or post-transmission recovery on entry to, to gain access to, or to 

receive service from the Provider’s business. Provider acknowledges that such a vaccine or recovery 

requirement would make Provider ineligible for a state-funded contract. 

36. Pursuant to Government Code Section 2274.0102, Provider certifies that neither it nor its parent 

company, nor any affiliate of Provider or its parent company, is: (1) majority owned or controlled by 

citizens or governmental entities of China, Iran, North Korea, Russia, or any other country designated 

by the Governor under Government Code Section 2274.0103, or (2) headquartered in any of those 

countries. 

37. If Provider is required to make a verification pursuant to Section 2274.002 of the Texas Government 

Code, Provider verifies that Provider does not boycott energy companies and will not boycott energy 

companies during the term of the Contract. If Provider does not make that verification, Provider must 

notify the Board and state why the verification is not required. 

38. If Provider is required to make a verification pursuant to Section 2274.002 of the Texas Government 

Code, Provider verifies that it (1) does not have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that 

discriminates against a “firearm entity” or “firearm trade association” as those terms are defined in 

Texas Government Code section 2274.001 and (2) will not discriminate during the term of the 

contract against a firearm entity or firearm trade association. If Provider does not make that 

verification, Provider must notify the Board and state why the verification is not required. 

39. If Provider is a “professional sports team” as defined by Texas Occupations Code Section 2004.002, 

Provider will play the United States national anthem at the beginning of each team sporting event 

held at the Provider’s home venue or other venue controlled by Provider for the event. Failure to 

comply with this obligation constitutes a default of this Contract, and immediately subjects Provider 

to the penalties for default, such as repayment of money received or ineligibility for additional 

money. In addition, Provider may be debarred from contracting with the State. The Board or the 

Attorney General may strictly enforce this provision. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Attachment D 
1. GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 

Page 1 of 5 
  

Previous Edition Usable      Standard Form 424B (Rev. 7-97)
 Authorized for Local Reproduction Prescribed by OMB Circular A-102 

 
 

ASSURANCES – NON-CONSTRUCTION PROGRAMS OMB Approval No. 4040-0007 
Expiration Date: 02/28/2022 

  

NOTE:  Certain of these assurances may not be applicable to your project or program. If you have questions, please contact the 
awarding agency. Further, certain Federal awarding agencies may require applicants to certify to additional assurances. If 
such is the case, you will be notified. 

As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, I certify that the applicant: 

1. Has the legal authority to apply for Federal assistance, 
and the institutional, managerial and financial capability 
(including funds sufficient to pay the non-Federal share 
of project costs) to ensure proper planning, 
management and completion of the project described in 
this application. 

 
2. Will give the awarding agency, the Comptroller General 

of the United States and, if appropriate, the State, 
through any authorized representative, access to and 
the right to examine all records, books, papers, or 
documents related to the award; and will establish a 
proper accounting system in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting standards or agency directives. 

 
3. Will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from 

using their positions for a purpose that constitutes or 
presents the appearance of personal or organizational 
conflict of interest, or personal gain. 

 
4. Will initiate and complete the work within the applicable 

time frame after receipt of approval of the awarding 
agency. 

 

5. Will comply with the Intergovernmental Personnel Act of 
1970 (42 U.S.C. §§4728-4763) relating to prescribed 
standards for merit systems for programs funded under 
one of the 19 statutes or regulations specified in 
Appendix A of OPM’s Standards for a Merit System of 
Personnel Administration (5 C.F.R. 900, Subpart F). 

 
6. Will comply with all Federal statutes relating to 

nondiscrimination. These include but are not limited to: 
(a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352) 
which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color 
or national origin; (b) Title IX of the Education 
Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. §§1681- 
1683, and 1685-1686), which prohibits discrimination on 
the basis of sex; (c) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation 

Act of  1973,  as  amended  (29  U.S.C.§794), which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps; (d) the 
Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. 
§§6101-6107), which prohibits discrimination on the basis 
of age; (e) the Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 
1972 (P.L. 92-255), as amended, relating to 
nondiscrimination on the basis of drug abuse; (f) the 
Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism 
Prevention, Treatment and  Rehabilitation Act of 1970 
(P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination 
on the basis of alcohol abuse or alcoholism; (g) §§523 
and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 
U.S.C. §§290 dd-3 and 290 ee-3), as amended, relating  
to  confidentiality  of  alcohol and drug abuse patient 
records;  (h)  Title  VIII  of  the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 
U.S.C. §§3601 et seq.), as amended, relating to 
nondiscrimination in the  sale,  rental or financing of 
housing; (i) any other non-discrimination provisions in the 
specific statute(s) under which application for Federal 
assistance is being made; and, (j) the requirements of 
any other nondiscrimination statute(s) which may apply to 
the application. 

 
7. Will comply, or has already complied, with the 

requirements of Titles II and III of the Uniform Relocation 
Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 
1970 (P.L. 91-646) which provide for fair and equitable 
treatment of persons displaced or whose property is 
acquired as a result of Federal and federally-assisted 
programs. These requirements apply to all interests in 
real property acquired for project purposes regardless of 
Federal participation in purchases. 

 
8. Will comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the 

Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. §§1501-1508 and 7324-7328) which 
limit the political activities of employees whose principal 
employment activities are funded in whole or in part with 
Federal funds. 
 

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15 minutes per response, including time for reviewing 
instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of 
information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for 
reducing this burden, to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0348-0040), Washington, DC 20503. 
 
PLEASE DO NOT RETURN YOUR COMPLETED FORM TO THE OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET. SEND IT TO 
THE ADDRESS PROVIDED BY THE SPONSORING AGENCY. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Attachment D 
1. GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 

Page 2 of 5 
  

 

 
9. Will comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the Davis- 

Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. §§276a to 276a-7), the Copeland Act 
(40 U.S.C. §276c and 18 U.S.C. §874), and the Contract 
Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 
§§327-333) regarding labor standards for federally-assisted 
construction subagreements. 

 
10. Will comply, if applicable, with flood insurance purchase 

requirements of Section 102(a) of the Flood Disaster 
Protection Act of 1973 (P.L. 93-234) which requires 
recipients in a special flood hazard area to participate in the 
program and to purchase flood insurance if the total cost of 
insurable construction and acquisition is $10,000 or more. 

 
11. Will comply with environmental standards which may be 

prescribed pursuant to the following: (a) institution of 
environmental quality control measures under the National 
Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (P.L. 91-190) and 
Executive Order (EO) 11514;  (b)  notification of violating 
facilities pursuant to EO 11738; (c)  protection of wetlands 
pursuant to EO 11990; (d) evaluation of flood hazards in 
floodplains in accordance with EO 11988; (e) assurance of  
project  consistency with the approved State management 
program developed under the Coastal Zone Management 
Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C. §§1451 et seq.); (f) conformity of 
Federal actions to State (Clean Air) Implementation Plans 
under Section 176(c) of the Clean Air Act  of  1955, as 
amended (42 U.S.C. §§7401 et seq.); (g) protection of 
underground sources of drinking water under the Safe 
Drinking Water Act of  1974,  as amended (P.L. 93-523); 
and, (h) protection of endangered species under the 
Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended (P.L. 93-
205). 

 
12. Will comply with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968 (16 

U.S.C. §§1271 et seq.) related to protecting components or 
potential components of the national wild and scenic rivers 
system. 

 
 
 
 

13. Will assist the awarding agency in assuring compliance 
with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation 
Act of 1966, as amended (16 U.S.C. §470), EO 11593 
(identification and protection of historic properties), and 
the Archaeological and Historic Preservation Act of 
1974 (16 U.S.C. §§469a-1 et seq.). 

 
14. Will comply with P.L. 93-348 regarding the protection of 

human subjects involved in research, development, and 
related activities supported by this award of assistance. 

 
15. Will comply with the Laboratory Animal Welfare Act of 

1966 (P.L. 89-544, as amended, 7 U.S.C. §§2131 et 
seq.) pertaining to the care, handling, and treatment of 
warm blooded animals held for research, teaching, or 
other activities supported by this award of assistance. 

 
16. Will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning 

Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. §§4801 et seq.) which 
prohibits the use of lead-based paint in construction or 
rehabilitation of residence structures. 

 
17. Will cause to be performed the required financial and 

compliance audits in accordance with the Single Audit 
Act Amendments of 1996 and OMB Circular No. A-133, 
"Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations." 

 
18. Will comply with all applicable requirements of all other 

Federal laws, executive orders, regulations, and policies 
governing this program. 

 
19. Will comply with the requirements of Section 106(g) of 

the Trafficking Victims Protection Act (TVPA) of 2000, 
as amended (22 U.S.C. 7104) which prohibits grant 
award recipients or a sub-recipient from (1) Engaging in 
severe forms of trafficking in persons during the period 
of time that the award is in effect (2) Procuring a 
commercial sex act during the period of time that the 
award is in effect or (3) Using forced labor in the 
performance of the award or subawards under the 
award.  

 
SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED CERTIFYING OFFICIAL TITLE 

APPLICANT ORGANIZATION 

Omnicare Pharmacy of Texas 1, LP 
 

DATE SUBMITTED 

    SF-424B (Rev. 7-97) Back 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF

Senior Legal Counsel

10/29/2021



Attachment D 
1. GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 

Page 3 of 5 
  

 

 
 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING 
COMPLIANT WITH APPENDIX A TO 24 C.F.R. PART 87* 

 
Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements:  
 
The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:  
 
(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person 
for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or 
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal 
contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative 
agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, 
loan, or cooperative agreement.  
 
(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or 
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of 
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or 
cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, ‘‘Disclosure Form to 
Report Lobbying,’’ in accordance with its instructions.  
 
(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all 
subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative 
agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.  
 
This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made 
or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed 
by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil 
penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.  
 
Statement for Loan Guarantees and Loan Insurance:  
 
The undersigned states, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: If any funds have been paid or will be 
paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of 
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this 
commitment providing for the United States to insure or guarantee a loan, the undersigned shall complete and 
submit Standard Form-LLL, ‘‘Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,’’ in accordance with its instructions. 
Submission of this statement is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, 
title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required statement shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less 
than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.  
 
As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, I hereby certify that the applicant will comply with the 
above applicable certification.  
 
NAME OF APPLICANT     AWARD NUMBER AND/OR PROJECT NAME  

1. Omnicare Pharmacy of Texas 1, LP     22-008-000-C938 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________  

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE  
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SIGNATURE         DATE  
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
* 24 C.F.R. 87 App. A, available at https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/granule/CFR-2011-title24-vol1/CFR-2011-title24-vol1-part87-
appA. Published Apr. 1, 2011. Accessed Aug. 1, 2018. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF

10/29/2021

Errin Simpkins-Travers Senior Legal Counsel

https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/granule/CFR-2011-title24-vol1/CFR-2011-title24-vol1-part87-appA
https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/granule/CFR-2011-title24-vol1/CFR-2011-title24-vol1-part87-appA


Attachment D 
1. GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 

Page 4 of 5 
  

 

 
 

Disclosure of Lobbying Activities 
Complete this form to disclose lobbying activities pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352 

(See reverse for public burden disclosure) 

 
OMB Number: 4040-0013 

Expiration Date: 02/28/2022 

 
1. *Type of Federal Action: 

a. contract 
   b. grant 

c. cooperative agreement 
d. loan 
e. loan guarantee 
f. loan insurance 

 
2. *Status of Federal Action: 

a. bid/offer/application 
   b. initial award 

c. post-award 

 
3. *Report Type: 

a. initial filing 
     b. material change 

 
 

4. Name and Address of Reporting Entity: 
   Prime  Subawardee 

Name: ______________________________________________ 
Street 1: 
Street 2: 
City: _________________ State:                  Zip: 
 
Congressional District, if known: 

5. If Reporting Entity in No. 4 is Subawardee, 
Enter Name and Address of Prime: 

 
 
 
 
 

Congressional District, if known: 
6. Federal Department/Agency: 7. Federal Program Name/Description: 

 
 

CFDA Number, if applicable:    

8. Federal Action Number, if known: 9. Award Amount, if known: 
$ 

10. a. Name and Address of Lobbying Registrant 
(if individual, last name, first name, MI): 

b. Individuals Performing Services (including address if 
different from No. 10a) 

(last name, first name, MI): 

11. Information requested through this form is authorized by 
title 31 U.S.C. section 1352. This disclosure of lobbying 
activities is a material representation of fact upon which 
reliance was placed by the tier above when this transaction 
was made or entered into. This disclosure is required 
pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352. This information will be reported 
to the Congress semi-annually and will be available for public 
inspection. Any person who fails to file the required 
disclosure shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than 
$10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 

Signature:   

Print Name:    

Title:    
 

Telephone No.:  Date:    

 
Federal Use Only 

 
Authorized for Local Reproduction 
Standard Form - LLL (Rev. 7-97) 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Attachment D 
1. GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 

Page 5 of 5 
  

 

 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETION OF SF-LLL, DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES 

 
This disclosure form shall be completed by the reporting entity, whether subawardee or prime Federal recipient, at the 
initiation or receipt of a covered Federal action, or a material change to a previous filing, pursuant to title 31 U.S.C. section 
1352. The filing of a form is required for each payment or agreement to make payment to any lobbying entity for influencing 
or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, 
or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with a covered Federal action. Complete all items that apply for both 
the initial filing and material change report. Refer to the implementing guidance published by the Office of Management and 
Budget for additional information. 

 
1. Identify the type of covered Federal action for which lobbying activity is and/or has been secured to influence the 

outcome of a covered Federal action. 
 

2. Identify the status of the covered Federal action. 
 

3. Identify the appropriate classification of this report. If this is a followup report caused by a material change to the 
information previously reported, enter the year and quarter in which the change occurred. Enter the date of the last 
previously submitted report by this reporting entity for this covered Federal action. 

 
4. Enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the reporting entity.  Include Congressional District, if 

known. Check the appropriate classification of the reporting entity that designates if it is, or expects to be, a prime 
or subaward recipient. Identify the tier of the subawardee, e.g., the first subawardee of the prime is the 1st tier. 
Subawards include but are not limited to subcontracts, subgrants and contract awards under grants. 

 
5. If the organization filing the report in item 4 checks “Subawardee,” then enter the full name, address, city, State and 

zip code of the prime Federal recipient. Include Congressional District, if known. 
 

6. Enter the name of the federal agency making the award or loan commitment. Include at least one organizational 
level below agency name, if known. For example, Department of Transportation, United States Coast Guard. 

 
7. Enter the Federal program name or description for the covered Federal action (item 1). If known, enter the full 

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number for grants, cooperative agreements, loans, and loan 
commitments. 

 
8. Enter the most appropriate Federal identifying number available for the Federal action identified in item 1 (e.g., 

Request for Proposal (RFP) number; Invitations for Bid (IFB) number; grant announcement number; the contract, 
grant, or loan award number; the application/proposal control number assigned by the Federal agency). Included 
prefixes, e.g., “RFP-DE-90-001.” 

 
9. For a covered Federal action where there has been an award or loan commitment by the Federal agency, enter the 

Federal amount of the award/loan commitment for the prime entity identified in item 4 or 5. 
 

10. (a) Enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the lobbying registrant under the Lobbying Disclosure 
Act of 1995 engaged by the reporting entity identified in item 4 to influence the covered Federal action. 

 
(b) Enter the full names of the individual(s) performing services, and include full address if different from 10(a). 
Enter Last Name, First Name, and Middle Initial (MI). 

 
11. The certifying official shall sign and date the form, print his/her name, title, and telephone number. 

 
According to the Paperwork Reduction Act, as amended, no persons are required to respond to a collection of information unless it displays a 
valid OMB control Number. The valid OMB control number for this information collection is OMB No. 4040-0013. Public reporting burden 
for this collection of information is estimated to average 10 minutes per response, including time for reviewing instructions, searching 
existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send 
comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, 
to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (4040-0013), Washington, DC 20503. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Attachment E 

GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938  

Page 1 of 6 

Revised Date: 3/26/2021HDLG:MB 

 

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT   

 WHEREAS, the GENERAL LAND OFFICE and the VETERANS LAND BOARD (collectively, “the 

Board”) and OMNICARE PHARMACY OF TEXAS 1, LP, Texas Identification Number 17607165549 

(“Business Associate”), each a “Party” and collectively “the Parties”, have entered into GLO Contract 

No. 22-008-000-C938 (the “Agreement”); and  

WHEREAS, the Congress of the United States enacted the Health Insurance Portability and 

Accountability Act of 1996 (“HIPAA”) which creates a national standard for protecting the privacy and 

security of patients’ Protected Health Information (“PHI”); and 

WHEREAS, the United States Department of Health and Human Services (“HHS”) 

promulgated rules for the implementation of HIPAA, and pursuant to the “business associate” provisions 

of the privacy regulations found in 45 CFR § 160 and §164 Subparts A and E (“Privacy Rule”) and 

security regulations found in 45 CFR § 160 and §164 Subparts A and C (“Security Rule”) and pursuant 

to the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act of 2009, 42 U.S.C. §§ 

17931-39 (the “HITECH Act”), The Board is required to enter into agreements with the Board’s 

Business Associates to assure that the Board’s Business Associates appropriately safeguard patient 

information; and 

WHEREAS, the State of Texas enacted the Medical Records Privacy Act (“MRPA”), in 2001 

and amended the MRPA in 2003 and 2011 creating standards in addition to HIPAA and the HITECH 

Act for protecting the privacy and security of patients’ PHI; and 

WHEREAS, the, in the event of a Breach, as defined hereafter, the Board is required under 

Section 2054.1125(b) of the Texas Government Code to notify the Department of Information 

Resources, Chief Information Security Officer, and state cybersecurity coordinator not later than 48 

hours.  

 WHEREAS, Business Associate provides pharmacy services for, or on behalf of, the Board 

requiring the use and disclosure of PHI, pursuant to the terms of the Agreement.  

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 

SECTION 1. Definitions. 

a. All terms used in this Business Associate Agreement defined in the HIPAA Statute, Regulations, 

and Rules or HITECH Act shall have the meaning ascribed to them in the HIPAA Statute, 

Regulation, and Rules, or HITECH Act, as applicable. 

b. Capitalized terms used in this Business Associate Agreement shall have the following meanings, 

provided that if any of the following definitions conflicts with the respective definition of such 

term in the Privacy Regulations, Security Regulations or HITECH Act, the definition in the 

Privacy Regulations, Security Regulations or HITECH Act shall control: 

1. Breach.  “Breach” shall mean the acquisition, access, use or disclosure of PHI in a manner 

not permitted under the Privacy Regulations which compromises the security or privacy of 

the PHI, provided that the following shall not constitute a Breach: (A) any unintentional 

acquisition, access or use of PHI by a workforce member or agent of Business Associate, if 

it was made in good faith, within the course and scope of such individual’s authority and 

does not result in further use or disclosure of the PHI; (B) any inadvertent disclosure of PHI 

by a person authorized to access PHI by Business Associate to another person authorized to 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Attachment E 

GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938  

Page 2 of 6 

Revised Date: 3/26/2021HDLG:MB 

 

access PHI within the Business Associate organization, provided the PHI is not further used 

or disclosed; and (C) a disclosure of PHI in which Business Associate has a good faith 

belief that the unauthorized person to whom the disclosure was made would not reasonably 

have been able to retain the PHI.  

2. Business Associate. “Business Associate” shall have the same meaning as the term 

“business associate” at 45 CFR 160.103 and shall refer herein to OMNICARE PHARMACY 

OF TEXAS 1, LP. 

3. Covered Entity. “Covered Entity” shall mean, in accordance with 45 CFR § 160.103, (1) A 

health plan; (2) A health care clearinghouse; (3) A health care provider who transmits any 

health information in electronic form in connection with a transaction covered by HIPAA, 

and, in accordance with Tex. Health & Safety Code § 181.001(b)(2), includes any person 

who engages in the practice of assembling, collecting, analyzing, using, evaluating, storing, 

or transmitting protected health information, including a business associate, health care 

payer, governmental unit, information or computer management entity, school, health 

researcher, health care facility, clinic, health care provider, or person who maintains 

protected health information on an internet site. 

4. Electronic PHI. “Electronic PHI” or “ePHI” shall mean PHI which is transmitted by or 

maintained in electronic media. 

5. GLO.  “GLO” shall mean the General Land Office and shall include the Veterans Land 

Board. 

6. Hybrid Entity.  “Hybrid Entity” shall mean a single legal entity: (1) that is a Covered 

Entity; (2) whose business activities include both covered and non-covered functions; and 

(3) that designates Health Care Components in accordance with 45 CFR § 

164.105(a)(2)(iii)(c).  The GLO is designated as a Hybrid Entity.  

7. Privacy Rule. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the standards for privacy of individually 

identifiable health information found in 45 C.F.R. § 160 & 164. 

8. Protected Health Information (“PHI”). “Protected Health Information” or “PHI” shall 

have the same meaning as the term “protected health information” in 45 CFR 160.103 as 

applied to 45 CFR 164.501, and shall refer to information obtained under the Agreement. 

9. Security Rule.  “Security Rule” shall mean the technical requirements and guidelines 

found in 45 C.F.R. § 160 & 164.  

10. Unsecured PHI. “Unsecured PHI” shall mean PHI, in any medium, which is not rendered 

unusable, unreadable or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals through the use of a 

technology or methodology specified in guidance issued by HHS. 

SECTION 2. Rights and Responsibilities of Business Associate 

a. Business Associate shall have the right to use and disclose PHI in order to perform services for 

or on behalf of the Board, consistent with the terms of this Business Associate Agreement and 

consistent with the Privacy Rule and Security Rule. 

b. In providing services, Business Associate shall use and disclose PHI only as permitted by the 

terms of this Business Associate Agreement or as required by law and only to the extent that 

such use and disclosure would not violate the Privacy Rule, Security Rule, or HITECH Act if 

performed by the Board.  Upon the request of Board, Business Associate may use PHI to provide 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Attachment E 

GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938  

Page 3 of 6 

Revised Date: 3/26/2021HDLG:MB 

 

data aggregation services related to the healthcare operations of the Board as permitted by 45 

CFR § 164.504(e)(2)(i)(B). 

c. Business Associate may use and disclose PHI received during the performance of the Agreement 

if necessary for the proper management and administration of the Agreement, provided that 

Business Associate may disclose PHI to third parties not employed by Business Associate only if 

(i) the disclosure is required by law, or (ii) Business Associate enters into a business associate 

agreement with the recipient, if the recipient is a subcontractor, or obtains reasonable assurances 

from the recipient, if the recipient is not a subcontractor, that (A) the PHI will remain 

confidential and will be used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for 

which it was disclosed to the recipient, and (B) the recipient will notify Business Associate of 

any breach of confidentiality of PHI.   

d. To the extent that Business Associate may use or disclose PHI as provided by this Business 

Associate Agreement and HIPAA, the HITECH Act, or State Law, Business Associate shall 

make reasonable efforts limit the disclosure of PHI to the minimum necessary to accomplish the 

intended purpose of the use or disclosure. 

e. Business Associate shall utilize appropriate safeguards in accordance with HIPAA and the 

HITECH Act to prevent any use or disclosure of PHI not authorized by the terms of this 

Business Associate Agreement.  

f. Business Associate shall utilize administrative, physical, and technical safeguards in accordance 

with HIPAA and the HITECH Act that reasonably and appropriately protect the confidentiality, 

integrity, and availability of Electronic PHI that Business Associate creates, receives, maintains, 

or transmits for or on behalf of the Board.   

g. Business Associate shall report to the Board On-Site Representative and GLO Privacy Officer: 

(i) any Breach, use, or disclosure of PHI not permitted under the terms of this Agreement 

without delay and no later than twenty-four (24) hours after becoming aware of such use or 

disclosure; and (ii) any unauthorized access, use, disclosure, modification, or destruction of 

Electronic PHI or interference with systems operations in an information system containing 

Electronic PHI without delay and no later than twenty-four (24) hours after becoming aware of 

such incident where each incident affects the Board’s PHI.  In the event that Business Associate 

becomes aware of any violation of any HIPAA provision and fails to notify the Board and take 

corrective action, the Board may immediately terminate the Agreement without prior notice to 

Business Associate. 

h. With respect to any improper uses and disclosures of PHI reported to the Board under Section 2 

(g) above that constituted, in Business Associate’s determination, a Breach of Unsecured PHI, 

Business Associate shall also, within six (6) business days of discovering such incident, report to 

the GLO’s Privacy Officer the following: (i) a brief description of the incident, including the date 

of the incident, the date of the discovery of the incident, and identification of each patient whose 

Unsecured PHI has been, or is reasonably believed by Business Associate to have been, 

improperly accessed, acquired, used, or disclosed, (ii) a description of the types of Unsecured 

PHI involved in the incident, (iii) any steps the patient should take to protect himself or herself 

from harm resulting from the incident, (iv) a brief description of what Business Associate is 

doing to investigate the incident, mitigate the harm to the patient, and protect against future 

occurrences; and (v) any other relevant information.  Business Associate and the Board shall 

cooperate with respect to providing any notification of the Breach to the patient as required by 

the HITECH Act. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Attachment E 

GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938  

Page 4 of 6 

Revised Date: 3/26/2021HDLG:MB 

 

i. Business Associate shall enter into business associate agreements, pursuant to the “business 

associate” provisions of the Privacy Rule found in 45 CFR § 160 and §164 Subparts A and E, 

with agents and subcontractors to ensure that any agent or subcontractor to whom Business 

Associate furnishes PHI agrees to the same restrictions and conditions that apply under this 

Business Associate Agreement to Business Associate with respect to PHI.   

j. Business Associate shall take appropriate actions necessary to mitigate any harmful effects 

known to Business Associate to result from an unauthorized use or disclosure of PHI by 

Business Associate. 

k. Within twenty-four (24) hours of receiving an individual’s request for access, Business Associate 

shall allow a person who is the subject of the PHI, his/her legal representative, or the Board to 

have access to inspect and copy PHI maintained by the Business Associate.  If the Business 

Associate uses or maintains an electronic health record, Business Associate shall provide such 

PHI in electronic format, if requested.  Copies, if requested must be provided within five (5) 

business days.  

l. To enable the Board to respond to a patient’s request to amend the patient’s PHI, Business 

Associate shall make the requested PHI maintained by Business Associate available to the Board 

within twenty (20) business days of receiving a request from the Board and Business Associate 

shall amend the patient’s PHI as directed by the Board. 

m. Business Associate shall (i) maintain a record of its disclosures of PHI according to 45 CFR § 

164.528(a)(1), including disclosures not made for the purposes of this Business Associate 

Agreement, and (ii) within thirty (30) business days of receiving a request for accounting of 

disclosures, make available to the requestor the following information concerning such 

disclosures made on or after the date which is six (6) years prior to the request date:  the date of 

disclosure; the name of the recipient and, if known, the recipient’s address; a brief description of 

the PHI disclosed; and a brief statement of the purpose of the disclosure. 

n. Business Associate shall make all internal practices, books, and records relating to the use and 

disclosure of PHI received or created by Business Associate on behalf of the Board available to 

the Secretary of HHS for the purpose of determining the Board’s or Business Associate’s 

compliance with the Privacy Rule or the Security Rule. 

o. Business Associate acknowledges that as required by the HITECH Act, Business Associate shall 

comply with the requirements of the Security Rule and the other applicable requirements 

imposed on business associates under the HITECH Act. 

p. If Business Associate conducts electronically any of the administrative or financial healthcare 

transactions identified as standard transactions under HIPAA for or on behalf of the Board, 

Business Associate shall comply with all applicable requirements of the Electronic Transactions 

and Code Sets Standards promulgated under HIPAA when conducting such standard transactions 

for or on behalf of Hybrid Entity.  

q. Business Associate shall, pursuant to Tex. Health and Safety Code § 181.101, train its employees 

within ninety (90) days of employment regarding the state and federal law concerning PHI as 

necessary and appropriate for the employees to carry out their duties.  If the duties of an 

employee are affected by a material change in state or federal law concerning PHI, Business 

Associate shall train the  employee regarding such material change within a reasonable period, 

but not later than one (1) year after the effective date of the material change.  Business Associate 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Attachment E 

GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938  

Page 5 of 6 

Revised Date: 3/26/2021HDLG:MB 

 

shall require its employees to sign a statement verifying training and retain the statement for six 

(6) years. 

SECTION 3.  Obligations of the Board.   

a. With respect to the use and/or disclosure of PHI by Business Associate , the Board shall: 

i. Notify Business Associate in writing of any limitation(s) in its notice of privacy practices, 

if such limitation(s) would impact Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI;  

ii. Inform Business Associate in writing of any changes in, or revocation of, a patient’s 

authorization to use or disclose the patient’s PHI, if such action would impact 

Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI; and 

iii. Notify Business Associate in writing of any restrictions on the use or disclosure of PHI to 

which the Board has agreed, if such restriction would impact Business Associate’s use 

or disclosure of PHI. 

SECTION 4. General Provisions. 

a. Business Associate shall comply with all applicable federal and state laws, rules, and regulations 

in its performance of the Agreement.  Omission of a law, rule, or regulation from this Business 

Associate Agreement does not relieve Business Associate of its duty to comply with such law, 

rule, or regulation. 

b. The Board and Business Associate are independent contractors and nothing in this Business 

Associate Agreement is intended to, nor shall be, construed to create any agency, partnership, 

employer-employee, or joint venture relationship between them. 

c. This Business Associate Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties hereto 

relating to the subject matter hereof and supersedes any prior or contemporaneous verbal or 

written agreements, communications, and representations relating to the subject matter hereof.  

Notwithstanding any provision in the Agreement indicating that it is the sole agreement 

governing the relationship between the parties, including a provision that the Agreement shall 

constitute the entire agreement between the parties thereof, the terms of this Business Associate 

Agreement shall be effective and shall govern the relationship between the parties with respect to 

the subject matter hereof. 

d. In the event of any inconsistency between the terms of this Business Associate Agreement and 

the terms of the Agreement, the terms of this Business Associate Agreement shall prevail with 

respect to the subject matter hereof notwithstanding any contrary provision in the Agreement. 

e. This Business Associate Agreement may be modified or amended only upon mutual written 

consent of the parties. 

f. Business Associate may not assign its rights and obligations under this Business Associate 

Agreement without the prior written consent of the Board.   

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Attachment E 

GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938  

Page 6 of 6 

Revised Date: 3/26/2021HDLG:MB 

 

g. Any notices to be given hereunder shall be deemed effectively given when personally delivered, 

received by electronic means (including facsimile, .pdf, or e-mail) or overnight courier, or five 

(5) calendar days after being deposited in the United States mail, with postage prepaid thereon, 

certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, addressed as follows: 

If to the Board:   General Land Office 

 P.O. BOX 12783 

 Austin, TX 78711-2873 

Attn: Haley Karstens, GLO Privacy Officer 

 

 

If to Business Associate : Omnicare Pharmacy of Texas 1, LP 

 14450 Trinity Blvd. Ste 200 

 Fort Worth, Texas 76155 

 Attn: Errin Simpkins-Travers  

 

h. No Third Party Beneficiaries.  The terms of this Business Associate Agreement are not intended 

and shall not be construed to confer upon any person other than the parties hereto any rights, 

remedies, obligations, or liabilities whatsoever.  

i. A reference in this Business Associate Agreement to any section or provision of HIPAA, the 

HITECH Act, or State Law means the section or provision as in effect or as amended and for 

which compliance is required. 

j. The parties shall amend this Business Associate Agreement from time to time, as is necessary to 

comply with federal and state laws, rules, and regulations. 

k. Notwithstanding anything in this Business Associate Agreement to the contrary, the respective 

rights and obligations of Business Associate shall survive the termination of this Business 

Associate Agreement. 

l. Any ambiguity in this Business Associate Agreement shall be resolved to permit the parties to 

comply with HIPAA, the HITECH Act, and State law. 

The Term of this Business Associate Agreement will be effective as of the date signed by the last party 

and shall terminate when all PHI provided by the Board to the Business Associate or created or received 

by Business Associate on behalf of the Board is destroyed or, if feasible, returned to the Board. Upon 

termination of the Agreement, Business Associate shall, as directed by the Board, promptly return to the 

Board or destroy PHI possessed by Business Associate and its agents or subcontractors and retain no 

copies or back-up records of PHI.  If such return or destruction is infeasible, as mutually determined by 

the Board and Business Associate, the obligations set forth in this Business Associate Agreement with 

respect to PHI shall survive termination of the Agreement and Business Associate shall limit any further 

use and disclosure of PHI to the purposes that make the return or destruction of PHI infeasible. 

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS  

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



 

Revised Date: 3/26/2021HDLG:MB 

 

SIGNATURE PAGE FOR  GLO CONTRACT NO. 22-008-000-C938  

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 

 

 

GENERAL LAND OFFICE & VETERANS OMNICARE PHARMACY OF TEXAS 1, LP 

LAND BOARD  

  

 

             

Mark A. Havens, Chief Clerk/    Name: _________________________ 

Deputy Land Commissioner; 

Executive Secretary, VLB       Title: __________________________ 

 

Date of execution: _______________   Date of execution:________________ 

 
 

OGC _____ 

ISO _____ 

DD _____ 

DGC _____ 

GC _____ 

 

 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF

10/29/2021

Vice President Operations

David Purdy

11/1/2021



Attachment F 

GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 

2 pages plus certificate 

Revised 9/2/2016 

REQUIRED INSURANCE 

 

GENERALLY.  Provider shall, at its sole expense, acquire, maintain, and keep in force for 

the duration of this Contract, insurance in the amounts attached herein and under the 

requirements specified herein.  Furthermore, unless specified or otherwise agreed to by 

the Board, the required insurance shall be in effect prior to the commencement of work 

by Provider and shall continue in full force until the earlier as appropriate of (i) the 

expiration of this Contract; or (ii) such time as the Board notifies Provider that such 

insurance is no longer required.  Any insurance or self-insurance available to the Board 

shall be in excess of, and non-contributing with, any insurance required from Provider.  

Provider’s insurance policies shall apply on a primary basis.  General aggregate limits of 

Provider’s Commercial General Liability policy shall apply per policy. However, if, at any 

time during the Contract, the Provider’s Commercial General Liability policy, an insurer or 

surety fails to provide insurance to Provider or otherwise fails to comply with the 

requirements of this Contract, Provider shall immediately notify the Board and replace 

such insurance or bond with an insurer meeting such requirements. Provider’s auto 

insurance policy shall apply to “any auto.” 

 

Approval.  Prior approval of the insurance policies by the Board shall be a condition 

precedent to any payment of consideration under this Contract and insurance must be 

submitted for review and approval by the Board prior to the commencement of work.  

Any failure of the Board to timely approve or failure to disapprove the insurance 

furnished by Provider shall not relieve Provider of Provider’s full responsibility to 

provide the insurance required by this Contract. 

 

Continuing Coverage.  The Board’s approval of any changes to insurance coverage 

during the course of performance shall constitute an ongoing condition subsequent to this 

Contract. 

 

Renewal.  Provider shall provide the Board with renewal or replacement certificates no less 

than ten (10) days before the expiration or replacement of the required insurance. 

 

Additional Insured Endorsement. The Board, its officers, employees, and authorized 

agents shall be named as additional insureds for all liability arising under this Contract 

except on Workers’ Compensation and Professional Liability policies.  In the alternative, 

Provider may utilize a blanket endorsement for Provider’s Commercial General Liability 

policy, a copy of which must be provided to the Board.  Provider represents and warrants 

to the Board that such blanket endorsement complies with this requirement.  An original 

additional insured endorsement signed by an authorized insurance company 

representative must be submitted to the Board to evidence the endorsement of the 

Board, its officers, employees, and authorized agents as an additional insured on all 

policies, and the certificate(s) must reference the related GLO Contract Number.  
 

Subrogation.  Each liability insurance policy, except Professional Liability, shall provide 

for a waiver of subrogation as to the State of Texas, the Board, and their officers, 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Attachment F 

GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 

  2 pages plus certificate 

Revised 9/2/2016  

employees, and authorized agents, and shall be issued by insurance companies authorized 

to do business in the State of Texas, and currently rated by A.M. Best as “A-” or better. 

 

Policy Cancellation Endorsement.  Except for ten (10) days’ notice for non-payment of 

premium, each insurance policy shall be endorsed to specify that without 10 days’ prior 

written notice to the Board, the policy shall not be canceled, non-renewed, or coverage 

and/or limits reduced or materially altered, and shall provide that notices required by this 

paragraph shall be sent by certified mail to the address specified in this Contract.  A copy 

of this signed endorsement must be attached to this Contract. 

 

Alternative Insurability.  Notwithstanding the requirements of this Attachment, the Board 

reserves the right to consider reasonable alternative methods of insuring the contract in 

lieu of the insurance policies and/or bonds required.  It will be Provider’s responsibility 

to recommend to the Board alternative methods of insuring the Contract.  Any 

alternatives proposed by Provider should be accompanied by a detailed explanation 

regarding Provider’s inability to obtain insurance coverage as described in this Contract.  

The Board shall be the sole and final judge as to the adequacy of any substitute form of 

insurance coverage. 

 

INSURANCE REQUIRED:   

 

$1 MILLION COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY (EACH OCCURRENCE) 

$2 MILLION COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY (AGGREGATE LIMIT) 

$150,000 PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY  

$300,000 EXCESS PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY 

STATUTORY WORKERS’ COMPENSATION & EMPLOYERS LIABILITY 
- $1 MILLION EACH ACCIDENT 

- $1 MILLION DISEASE EACH EMPLOYEE 

- $1 MILLION DISEASE POLICY LIMIT 

 

 

NOTE:  Insurance certificates must be in the form approved by the Texas Attorney 

General, a sample of which follows this page. 

 

Insurance Certificates must:  

 

(a) be submitted to insurance@GLO.TEXAS.GOV 

(b) prominently display "GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938." and  

(c) Name the General Land Office as an additional insured. 

 

Failure to submit required insurance forms as instructed may significantly delay 

the start of work under the Contract. 

 

. 

 

REQUIRED FORM OF CERTIFICATE FOLLOWS THIS PAGE

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF

mailto:insurance@GLO.TEXAS.GOV


 

Revised 9/2/2016 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



 

 

 

 

 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



   
 
Texas General Land Office 
Stephen F. Austin Building 
1700 N. Congress Avenue 
Austin, Texas 78701 
10:00 A.M.      Room 170 and Virtually by Zoom 
 
The October 28, 2021 meeting of the Veterans Land Board will be held by in person 
and video conference call, as authorized under Texas Government Code section 
551.127. Access to the meeting by members of the public will be published in advance 
in the Texas Register in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act.  Any member 
of the public who wishes to address the Veterans Land Board on a matter within the 
authority of the Veterans Land Board should indicate so at the start of the meeting or 
during any public comment period. The Chairman may limit the length of time 
available to each individual. 

 
 AGENDA 

VETERANS LAND BOARD MEETING 
THURSDAY, OCTOBER 28, 2021 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
1. Approval of the minutes from the August 5, 2021 Veterans Land Board meeting. 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
2. Approval of the minutes from the August 13, 2021 Veterans Land Board special 

meeting. 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
3.      Consideration and approval of the new Board Secretary. 
 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
4. Quarterly Investment Report for the period ended June 30, 2021. 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
5. Consideration and possible action on a major construction contract for the crypt 

expansion at the Texas State Veterans Cemetery in Abilene, Texas and discussion 
regarding annual spending costs for the Texas State Veterans Cemetery program. 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
6. Notification and discussion on updates regarding the Covid-19 Reimbursement 

Agreements, extension, and additional funding for the consulting services 
agreement for the pandemic advisor, and execution of four Coronavirus 
Prevention, Preparation, and Response Agreements with the operators of the 
Texas State Veterans Homes. 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



   
 

 2 

7.  Consideration and possible action on a contract for pharmacy services for the 
Texas State Veterans Home Program. 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
8.  Consideration and possible board ratification of the termination of GLO Contract 

No. 19-124-000-B460 with Touchstone Veterans Management, Ltd. 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
9. Consideration and possible action on a contract for the management and operation 

of the Richard A. Anderson Texas State Veterans Home. 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
10. Consideration and possible action on a contract for the management and operation 

of the Ussery Roan Texas State Veterans Home. 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

 
XXX 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF







Open Market Requisition X0023829 Status: 1RRP - Ready for Purchasing

General Items Vendors Address Accounting Routing Attachments(2) Notes(4) Reminders

Header Information

Requisition Number: X0023829 Short Description: RFP for Pharmacy Services-
Funds encumbrance for FY '22

Status: 1RRP -
Ready for
Purchasing

Organization: Texas General Land Office
and Veterans Land Board

Department: 09000 - Texas State
Veterans Homes

Location: 09002 - Veterans Homes Required By Date:

Entered Date: 03/23/2021 Requisition Type: Open Market Type Code:

Requestor: Claire McKinney Purchaser: Kenneth Maze Fiscal Year: 2021

Contact: Claire McKinney Contact Phone: (512)475-1448 Alternate ID: 22-008-000-
C938

Estimated Cost: $3,500,000.00 Print Format: Requisition print form

Solicitation Enabled: No

Invoice Method: Three Way Match

P-Card Desired: No

Ship-to Address: Texas General Land Office
and Veterans Land Board
Stephen F Austin Building
1700 North Congress Ave
Room B-30
Contact Name: Chris
Symons
Austin, TX 78701-1495
USA
Email:
chris.symons@glo.texas.gov
Phone: (512)463-8264

Bill-to Address: Texas General Land Office
and Veterans Land Board
Cash Disbursements
Contact Name: Roland Torres
PO Box 12873
Austin, TX 78701-1495
USA
Email:
VendorInvoices@glo.texas.gov
Phone: (512)463-3883

Summary

Overall Validation Warnings

Account code 22-2022-00650-7312000-7312000-0650-13030-4093 used in item# 9: The account is in the red by $350,000.00.

Account code 22-2022-00651-7312000-7312000-0651-13030-4093 used in item# 6: The account is in the red by $500,000.00.

Account code 22-2022-00652-7312000-7312000-0652-13030-4093 used in item# 8: The account is in the red by $510,000.00.

Account code 22-2022-00653-7312000-7312000-0653-13030-4093 used in item# 5: The account is in the red by $620,000.00.

Account code 22-2022-00654-7312000-7312000-0654-13030-4093 used in item# 2: The account is in the red by $270,000.00.

Account code 22-2022-00656-7312000-7312000-0656-13030-4093 used in item# 10: The account is in the red by $330,000.00.

Account code 22-2022-00657-7312000-7312000-0657-13030-4093 used in item# 7: The account is in the red by $250,000.00.

Account code 22-2022-00660-7312000-7312000-0660-13030-4093 used in item# 4: The account is in the red by $300,000.00.

Account code 22-2022-00661-7312000-7312000-0661-13030-4093 used in item# 3: The account is in the red by $370,000.00.

Item # 1: No ship-to address. Ship-to address "09001 - Central Austin Shipping" at header level will be used instead.



. )+

BuySpeed Online https://buy.glo.texas.gov/bso/requisition/reqSummary.sdo?docId=X0023...

1 of 3 10/26/2021, 2:52 PM

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF

javascript: openStatusHistory()
javascript: openStatusHistory()
https://buy.glo.texas.gov/bso/requisition/reqGeneral.sdo?docType=R&mode=initial&docId=X0023829
https://buy.glo.texas.gov/bso/requisition/reqGeneral.sdo?docType=R&mode=initial&docId=X0023829
https://buy.glo.texas.gov/bso/requisition/item/itemGeneral.sdo?docType=R&mode=item_general&docId=X0023829
https://buy.glo.texas.gov/bso/requisition/item/itemGeneral.sdo?docType=R&mode=item_general&docId=X0023829
https://buy.glo.texas.gov/bso/requisition/reqVendors.sdo?docType=R&mode=vendors&docId=X0023829
https://buy.glo.texas.gov/bso/requisition/reqVendors.sdo?docType=R&mode=vendors&docId=X0023829
https://buy.glo.texas.gov/bso/document/address/docHeaderAddress.sdo?docType=R&mode=address&docId=X0023829
https://buy.glo.texas.gov/bso/document/address/docHeaderAddress.sdo?docType=R&mode=address&docId=X0023829
https://buy.glo.texas.gov/bso/document/acct/headerAccount.sdo?docType=R&docId=X0023829
https://buy.glo.texas.gov/bso/document/acct/headerAccount.sdo?docType=R&docId=X0023829
https://buy.glo.texas.gov/bso/requisition/reqRouting.sdo?docType=R&mode=routing&docId=X0023829
https://buy.glo.texas.gov/bso/requisition/reqRouting.sdo?docType=R&mode=routing&docId=X0023829
https://buy.glo.texas.gov/bso/document/attachments/attachments.sdo?docType=R&docId=X0023829
https://buy.glo.texas.gov/bso/document/attachments/attachments.sdo?docType=R&docId=X0023829
https://buy.glo.texas.gov/bso/document/docHeaderNote.sdo?docType=R&docId=X0023829
https://buy.glo.texas.gov/bso/document/docHeaderNote.sdo?docType=R&docId=X0023829
https://buy.glo.texas.gov/bso/document/reminder/docReminderList.sdo?docType=R&docId=X0023829
https://buy.glo.texas.gov/bso/document/reminder/docReminderList.sdo?docType=R&docId=X0023829


Notes: Originally routed for $0 amount. NTE amount for 3 years is $13.5M.
The cost over six years (original 3-year contract and one 3-year renewal) is estimated to be $28M.
Assigned contract number is 22-008-000-C938
The current pharmacy services contract terminates on October 31, 2021.

Vendors:
Vendor ID Alternative

ID
Vendor Name Preferred Delivery

Method
Recommended

00036799 12329632827 Omnicare Pharmacy of Texas 1, LP dba
Omnicare of Fort Worth

Email Yes

Attachments  

Agency Files: Acq Plan - Pharmaceutical Services for TSVHs_March 2021.pdf
BuySpeed Omnicare Memo 22-008-000-C938_10.22.2021.pdf

Agency Forms:

Vendor Files:

Vendor Forms:

Item Information 

Approval Paths

Approval Path - NDDEP09000 - ( No Director, Veteran Homes Deputy )
Delete Order

Sequence
Approver Alternate

Approver
Level Date Requested Date Action Comments

1 John
Berkely

1 10/22/2021 11:23 AM 10/22/2021 11:25 AM Approved (John
Berkely)

Approval Path - FUNDMGMT - ( INVESTMENT-MGMT Approval )
Delete Order

Sequence
Approver Alternate

Approver
Level Date Requested Date Action Comments

2 Rusty
Martin

0 10/22/2021 11:25 AM 10/25/2021 02:03 PM Approved (Rusty
Martin)

Approval Path - BUDGET - ( Budget Approval )
Delete Order

Sequence
Approver Alternate

Approver
Level Date Requested Date Action Comments

3 Valerie
Hooper

Amy Minor
Adel
Barrientos
Chris
Sanchez
Gayle

1 10/25/2021 02:03 PM 10/25/2021 03:09 PM Approved
(Stanley
Rasberry)

. )+

BuySpeed Online https://buy.glo.texas.gov/bso/requisition/reqSummary.sdo?docId=X0023...

2 of 3 10/26/2021, 2:52 PM

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF

javascript:viewVendorProfile('00036799')
javascript:viewVendorProfile('00036799')
javascript:downloadFile('280472', '');
javascript:downloadFile('280472', '');
javascript:downloadFile('317970', '');
javascript:downloadFile('317970', '');
https://buy.glo.texas.gov/bso/index.jsp
https://buy.glo.texas.gov/bso/index.jsp


Eiben
Jason
Storey
Paul
Botello
Sarah
Clawson
Stanley
Rasberry

4 Angie
Williams

Jason
Storey

2 10/25/2021 03:09 PM 10/25/2021 03:24 PM Approved (Angie
Williams)

Approval Path - CHIEF - ( CHIEF Clerk Approval )
Delete Order

Sequence
Approver Alternate

Approver
Level Date Requested Date Action Comments

5 David Repp Warren
Collier

1 10/25/2021 03:24 PM 10/25/2021 04:36 PM Approved (Brent
McNguyen)

Approving for David
while he's out.

6 Mark
Havens

2 10/25/2021 04:36 PM 10/26/2021 09:19 AM Approved (Mark
Havens)

Approval Path - PROCURE - ( Procurement Approval )
Delete Order

Sequence
Approver Alternate

Approver
Level Date Requested Date Action Comments

7 Suzanne
Loy

1 10/26/2021 09:19 AM 10/26/2021 09:51 AM Approved
(Suzanne Loy)

Cancel Requisition Clone Requisition Print

Copyright © 2021 Periscope Holdings, Inc. - All Rights Reserved.
TXGLO_GLO_AWS_PROD_BUYSPEED_1_bso

. )+

BuySpeed Online https://buy.glo.texas.gov/bso/requisition/reqSummary.sdo?docId=X0023...

3 of 3 10/26/2021, 2:52 PM

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Controlling
Name of Interested Party

4
Nature of interest

City, State, Country (place of business)
Intermediary

(check applicable)

CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES 1295FORM
1 of 1

1

OFFICE USE ONLY

2 09/16/2021

Complete Nos. 1 - 4 and 6 if there are interested parties.
Complete Nos. 1, 2, 3, 5, and 6 if there are no interested parties.

Name of business entity filing form, and the city, state and country of the business entity's place
of business.
Omnicare Pharmacy of Texas 1, LP
Fort Worth, TX United States
Name of governmental entity or state agency that is a party to the contract for which the form is
being filed.

Provide the identification number used by the governmental entity or state agency to track or identify the contract, and provide a
description of the services, goods, or other property to be provided under the contract.

3

Texas General Land Office

Pharmaceutical Services for the Texas State Veterans Homes
RFP No. X0023829B-KM

2021-802643

Date Filed:

Date Acknowledged:

Certificate Number:

CERTIFICATION OF FILING

Pharmacy Holding #1, LLC XCincinnati, OH United States

6

Signature of authorized agent of contracting business entity

My name is _______________________________________________________________,

UNSWORN DECLARATION

Check only if there is NO Interested Party.5

My address is _______________________________________________, _______________________,

and my date of birth is _______________________.

Executed in ________________________________________County,

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

(street) (state) (zip code) (country)

(year)(month)

 _______, ______________, _________.

State of ________________, on the _____day of ___________, 20_____.

(city)

(Declarant)

Version V1.1.191b5cdcwww.ethics.state.tx.usForms provided by Texas Ethics Commission

Ozaukee                WI        16th              September           21

5185 S. 9th Street     Milwaukee            WI              53221                 USA

Matthew Lerner           2/7/1980

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Controlling
Name of Interested Party

4
Nature of interest

City, State, Country (place of business)
Intermediary

(check applicable)

CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES 1295FORM
1 of 1

1

OFFICE USE ONLY

2 09/16/2021

Complete Nos. 1 - 4 and 6 if there are interested parties.
Complete Nos. 1, 2, 3, 5, and 6 if there are no interested parties.

Name of business entity filing form, and the city, state and country of the business entity's place
of business.
Omnicare Pharmacy of Texas 1, LP
Fort Worth, TX United States
Name of governmental entity or state agency that is a party to the contract for which the form is
being filed.

Provide the identification number used by the governmental entity or state agency to track or identify the contract, and provide a
description of the services, goods, or other property to be provided under the contract.

3

Texas General Land Office

Pharmaceutical Services for the Texas State Veterans Homes
RFP No. X0023829B-KM

2021-802643

10/27/2021

Date Filed:

Date Acknowledged:

Certificate Number:

CERTIFICATION OF FILING

Pharmacy Holding #1, LLC XCincinnati, OH United States

6

Signature of authorized agent of contracting business entity

My name is _______________________________________________________________,

UNSWORN DECLARATION

Check only if there is NO Interested Party.5

My address is _______________________________________________, _______________________,

and my date of birth is _______________________.

Executed in ________________________________________County,

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

(street) (state) (zip code) (country)

(year)(month)

 _______, ______________, _________.

State of ________________, on the _____day of ___________, 20_____.

(city)

(Declarant)

Version V1.1.191b5cdcwww.ethics.state.tx.usForms provided by Texas Ethics Commission

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



 

1700 North Congress Avenue, Austin, Texas 78701-1495 

P.O. Box 12873, Austin, Texas 78711-2873 

512-463-5001   glo.texas.gov 
 

September 15, 2021 

 

Matthew Lerner, 

Omnicare Pharmacy of Texas 1, LP d/b/a Omnicare of Fort Worth 

14450 Trinity Blvd., Suite 200 

Fort Worth, TX 76155 

matthew.lerner@omnicare.com 

 

Re:  Notice of Intent to Award - Request for Proposals (RFP) No. X0023829B-KM 

Project Title – Pharmaceutical Services for the Texas State Veterans Homes 

 

Dear Mr. Lerner: 

 

The General Land Office (GLO) has considered your proposal in response to RFP No. X0023829B-KM 

for the project described above. You are hereby notified of our intent to award Omnicare Pharmacy of 

Texas 1, LP d/b/a Omnicare of Fort Worth a contract for the project. The GLO’s issuance and your 

acceptance of this notice of intent to award does not form a contract between your company and the GLO. 

You will receive a contract for your signature via DocuSign after the GLO receives the signed 

“Acceptance of Notice of Intent to Award”.  

 

After the contract is fully executed by both parties, you must obtain all insurance and bonds specified in 

the RFP and its attachments. You must provide proof of all required insurance and bonds to the GLO 

before work can begin. The GLO will not authorize work to begin without documentation of all required 

insurance and bonds. 

 

By signing the “Acceptance of Notice of Intent to Award”, Omnicare Pharmacy of Texas 1, LP d/b/a 

Omnicare of Fort Worth agrees that it shall not disclose to any party the issuance of this intent to award, 

nor any confidential and proprietary information provided by GLO throughout the course of contract 

negotiations. 

The term "Confidential and Proprietary Information" relates to the following classes of information: 

 

(a) Trade secrets and other information that is owned by the GLO including, but not limited to, 

information related to or resulting from the Solicitation, including: contract negotiations; processes; 

methods or practice of operations; plans; analyses; surveys; drawings; appraisals; research notes; 

notebooks; customer lists; distribution lists; audits, financial information; pricing points; customer 

needs and requirements; non-public information concerning location, appraisal and/or pricing of real 

estate being considered for acquisition, sale, or lease by the GLO; and other information or documents 

that relate to the GLO’s business that have not been released by the GLO as general public information, 

and from which economic or competitive advantage is sought by the GLO in maintaining the non-

disclosure of such information. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



2 

1700 North Congress Avenue, Austin, Texas 78701-1495 

P.O. Box 12873, Austin, Texas 78711-2873 

512-463-5001   glo.texas.gov 
 

(b) Financial, sales, purchasing, marketing data or documents, business plans or strategies, customer lists 

and non-public pricing (including that information submitted by vendors competing in the bid process 

that is considered by such vendors as “trade secrets” or “confidential trade information”) compiled by, 

or on behalf of, the GLO that has not been released by the GLO as general public information, and 

from which economic or competitive advantage is sought by the GLO in maintaining the non-

disclosure of such information. 

 

(c) Information concerning litigation or settlement negotiations involving the GLO, and information made 

confidential under the Texas State Bar’s Rules of Professional Conduct for Attorneys. 

 

(d) All other information designated by the GLO as Confidential and Proprietary Information, or that to 

which the GLO maintains limited access and distribution. 

 

(e) All other information made confidential by or that may potentially be withheld under Federal or State 

Law, including, but not limited to, chapter 552 of the Texas Government Code.  

 

Pursuant to Section 2252.908 of the Texas Government Code, a state agency may not enter into certain 

contracts with a business entity unless the business entity submits a disclosure of interested parties (Form 

1295 Certificate of Interested Parties – “Form 1295”) to the state agency at the time of contracting. 

 

A business entity must use the Form 1295 filing application available on the Texas Ethics Commission’s 

website to enter the required information on Form 1295 and print a copy of the completed form. Once 

entered into the filing application, the completed form will include a unique certification number, called 

a “certification of filing.” An authorized agent of the business entity must sign the printed copy of the 

form affirming under the penalty of perjury that the completed form is true and correct. The completed, 

printed, and signed Form 1295 bearing the unique certification of filing number must be filed with the 

GLO prior to entering into the contract. 

 

Additional information about Form 1295, including frequently asked questions and instructional videos 

for business entities, may be found on the Texas Ethics Commission’s website: 

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/filinginfo/1295/ 

 

If you have any questions, please contact me. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Kenneth Maze 
 

Kenneth Maze, CTCD 

(512) 475-3504 

kenneth.maze@glo.texas.gov  

 

Enclosures:  Acceptance of Notice of Intent to Award 

 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/filinginfo/1295/
mailto:kenneth.maze@glo.texas.gov


3 

1700 North Congress Avenue, Austin, Texas 78701-1495 

P.O. Box 12873, Austin, Texas 78711-2873 

512-463-5001   glo.texas.gov 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF NOTICE OF INTENT TO AWARD 
RFP X0023829B-KM 

Pharmaceutical Services for the Texas State Veterans Homes 

 
I hereby acknowledge receipt of the NOTICE OF INTENT TO AWARD for RFP X0023829B-KM. 

 

Authorized Signature of the person 
authorized to bind Respondent to any 
contract that may result from this 
Solicitation: 

  

Date: 

 9/15/2021 

Printed Name and Title of Signatory: 

 Matthew Lerner, Senior Manager 

Telephone: 

 414-335-6930 

Email: 

 Matthew.lerner@omnicare.com 

Address: 

 14450 Trinity Blvd., Suite 200 

City/State/Zip: 

 Fort Worth, TX  76155 

Full Legal Name of Respondent’s company 
as registered with the Texas Secretary of 
State, and as it should appear on any 
Contract resulting from this Solicitation: 

 Omnicare Pharmacy of Texas 1, LP 

d/b/a Omnicare of Fort Worth 

Respondent’s Tax I.D. Number as 
registered with the Texas Comptroller of 
Public Accounts, and as it should appear 
on any Contract resulting from this 
Solicitation: 

 Omnicare Pharmacy of Texas 1, LP's EIN is 76-0716554, however, it 
is a disregarded entity and files taxes under Omnicare, LLC which 
has an EIN of 31-1001351. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Texas General Land Office ACQUISITION PLAN 

1 | P a g e

TEXAS GENERAL LAND OFFICE 
ACQUISITION PLAN 

Introduction 
In its Procurement and Contract Management Guide, the Statewide Procurement Division of the Texas
Comptroller’s Office requires agencies to use an Acquisition Plan for any purchase of goods or services 
from an outside entity that is anticipated to exceed twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000).  An
Acquisition Plan ensures a procurement is solicited, negotiated, executed, and managed to deliver best
value to the State. The form must be submitted to your division’s assigned Purchaser a minimum of
150 days before the desired contract start date to allow sufficient time for the solicitation and 
contracting processes. If the total value (including renewal options) will exceed $5 million, allow a
minimum of 180 days.   

The approval of this document, a BuySpeed requisition, and any necessary Procurement and Grant
Committee approvals shall constitute approval for the solicitation and contracting process to proceed. 
Any maps, surveys, photographs, etc., that need to be included in the solicitation and the contract should 
also be included with the form when submitting.  

Should additional space be needed for any part of this form, a supplemental document with additional 
information may be included in the submission to the assigned Purchaser.

Contract Administration Team 
Below is a list of assignments for this procurement and a brief list of responsibilities for this form and the 
overall purchase. 

Role Acquisition Plan Responsibility Contract Responsibility Name 

 Project Manager Section One  Phases 01, 03, 04, and 05* 

 Purchaser** 
Section Two 

Phases 01, 02, and 03 

 Contract Manager 

Facilitate, Review, Route, and Version Control 

Phases 04 and 05 

 Legal Counsel  Review and Approval Phases 02 and 04 

*Program Area Responsibilities include the day to day management of the contract, acceptance of deliverables in accordance with divisional policies, and the 
programmatic monitoring of the contract.
**A GLO "Purchaser" listed here is the equivalent of the Comptroller's Contract Developer.

V2 1/2020

Review / Provide Sample Contract

John Berkely

Kenneth Maze

Chelsa Castilleja

Heather De La Garza

DocuSign Envelope ID: 875E4EBF-34DE-420C-8A8D-69179B8E6FCEDocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Texas General Land Office ACQUISITION PLAN 

2 | P a g e

Section 1 
General Solicitation Information 

Project Name:

Division Name: 

Date Created: Proposed Contract Start Date:

Previous Contract Number, if applicable: 

Previous Solicitation Number, if applicable: 

Executive Summary 
Briefly describe the project:

Needs Assessment 
To ensure a successful procurement, the needs assessment must identify the key business 
requirements of the procurement.  Program Areas may use market research, historical spending
analysis, or benchmarking to determine their need.  The GLO Procurement Division can also use more 
formal methods to assess needs, such as a Request for Information (RFI) from potential vendors.

Describe (1) the process you used to determine that the GLO needs this service and (2) why this service is 
required to meet the GLO's strategic goals.

Solicitation for a pharmaceutical services provider

08/26/2020 09/01/2021

(Omnicare #16-194-000-9598, terms 8/31/2021)

X0006868-SG

The Texas General Land Office (GLO), on behalf of the Texas Veterans Land Board (VLB), is seeking proposals from 
pharmaceutical service providers for the provision of generic and brand name pharmaceuticals under the Texas State 
Veterans Home Program. The VLB, with the assistance of private contract operators, operates nine (9) Texas State 
Veterans Homes within Texas. 10th Home opening approximately 2-3 years out. 
 
See Section 1.1 of RFP X0006868-SG.

A vendor is required to provide generic and brand name pharmaceuticals to residents of the TSVHs. 
 
This project cannot be performed in house and therefore must contract with an outside vendor. 
 
Benefits include ensuring the highest quality of care our Veterans can receive; and is required under contract with 
Medicare, Medicaid, and The Department of Veterans Affairs. 
 
These services support the agency's strategic goal: Provide Benefit Programs to Texas Veterans.

Veterans Homes

DocuSign Envelope ID: 875E4EBF-34DE-420C-8A8D-69179B8E6FCEDocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Texas General Land Office ACQUISITION PLAN 

3 | P a g e

Cost Estimate 
As the Project Manager, you must estimate the cost of the service and determine the funding source(s) 
the GLO will use for the procurement. You may base your cost estimate on a vendor’s advertised price 
list, online research, standardized estimation methods, historical spending, or another cost estimation 
method. The maximum estimated cost must include, (1) the cost for the initial contract duration and 
all possible extensions and (2) the cost of any potential change orders or amendments.

Note: If a contract or work order, including all renewals, may exceed $100,000, you must 
submit an 'Evaluation of Potential Subcontracting Opportunities for HUB Subcontracting Plan' form 
with this document. Please see Attachment A in this document.  

Contract Goals and Objectives 
Describe the business goals and objectives of the purchase. 

Note:  A goal is broad in scope, states general intentions, intangible results, and abstracts, and is not
measurable. An objective is narrow in scope, states precise intentions, tangible results, and 
concrete concepts, and is measurable. 

Estimated Cost: Min To Max 

Method Used to Estimate Cost: 

Payment Frequency: 

List all funding sources below: 

Note: Money for the 
proposed Fort Worth 
home included in the 
renewal amount. Max is 
for a 6-year term.

$ 13,500,000.00 $ 28,000,000.00

Monthly

Medicare Medicaid

VA Per Diem Private Insurance

VA Private Pay

Opportunity to bring in an existing or new vendor that will provide quality pharmaceutical services at the best prices 
for our Veterans at each of our TSVHs; ensuring prescription accuracy and on-time delivery, while adhering to VLB 
pharmacy ordering guidelines. 
 
Embraces the spirit of SB20 ensuring a competitive environment for state contracting. 
 
Increase HUB participation.

Historical Spending Patterns

DocuSign Envelope ID: 875E4EBF-34DE-420C-8A8D-69179B8E6FCEDocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Texas General Land Office ACQUISITION PLAN 

4 | P a g e

Scope Summary
The scope defines the contract limits and identifies services and deliverables due under the
contract. The Scope of Work may specifically state what is not included in the contract. For instance,
the contract scope may outline duties relating to the removal of derelict vessels from the coastline,
but specifically excludes vessels beyond a certain distance from land.

In the space below, provide a brief summary of the contract Scope of Work. A more detailed Statement 
of Work will need to be completed by the Program Area following the kick-off meeting.

Glossary 
Define any terms or acronyms that are unique to this solicitation.  Attach additional sheets if more space 
is required.

Deliverables 
List the specific items or services to be purchased through this procurement. Attach additional sheets 
if there are more than 10 deliverables. 

1 6 

2 7 

3 8 

4 9 

5 10 

Term or Acronym Definition 

Vendor must demonstrate the ability to fill, package, deliver, and bill for pharmaceuticals. 
 
See Section 2.1 of RFP X0006868-SG.

Prescription drug services to TSVH residents

Highest quality of care to our Veterans

Monthly invoices

Custom reports, as requested

Brand Drug” A drug so reported by First DataBank®, Medi-Span®, or other third-party source or as otherwise agreed upon by Provider and GLO.

Charges 

Generic Drug

Inclusion

Medication

Preferred Formulary

VA Formulary

Other terms --

Fees and charges for Medications and services for which the GLO is the Payer or is otherwise responsible for payment to Provider.

A drug, whether identified by its chemical, proprietary, or non-proprietary name, that (a) is substitutable for a drug under state law; or (b) if not addressed by state law, is accepted by the 
U.S. Food and Drug Administration as therapeutically equivalent and interchangeable with drugs having an identical amount of the same active ingredient, and (s) is readily available to 
Pharmacy for dispensing from three or more of the non-affiliated top ten national manufacturers.

A Medication that is covered under the Per Diem Rate.

Prescription and non-prescription drugs, biological and parenteral nutrition, and intravenous solutions.

List of preferred quality and cost effective Medications established by the Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee.

National formulary for medications as listed by the VA’s Pharmacy Benefits Management Services, as updated by the VA

See Section 1.2 of RFP X0006868-SG and 1.01 of contract #16-194-000-9598

DocuSign Envelope ID: 875E4EBF-34DE-420C-8A8D-69179B8E6FCEDocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Texas General Land Office ACQUISITION PLAN 

5 | P a g e

Exclusions 
List all services specifically excluded from the contract:

Critical Success Factors 
List all factors or characteristics required to ensure a successful contract:

Assumptions 
Describe assumptions that impact and clarify the procurement scope and overall procurement effort. 
Include assumptions related to business, technology, resources, scope, expectations, or schedules.  

Constraints 
Based on your current knowledge, describe any constraints that impact the procurement process. Include
constraints such as schedule, budget, resources, products to be reused, technology to be deployed, 
products to be acquired, and interfaces to other products.   

Those drugs obtained directly from the VA for eligible Veterans. Pharmaceuticals for residents in hospice are also 
excluded.

Quality of service 
Fiscal compliance 
Regulatory compliance 
Prescription accuracy 
On-time delivery of prescriptions 

Vendor will work collaboratively with the VLB and private contract operators, in regards to the terms of the contract 
and changes to the regulatory environment.

Vendor must be able to honor commonly available pharmacy drug discount coupons when it results in cost savings 
for the VLB. 
 
For handling emergency prescriptions, vendors must be able to have access to long term care pharmacies located in 
close proximity to all the TSVHs.  
 
Vendors must be able to provide emergency and pharmaceutical services 24/7, 365 days per year. 
 
See Section 2.2.2 of RFP X0006868-SG.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 875E4EBF-34DE-420C-8A8D-69179B8E6FCEDocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Texas General Land Office ACQUISITION PLAN 

6 | P a g e

Risks 
Risk is the possibility that an event will occur and adversely affect the achievement of objectives. Risks are 
inherent in all the stages of the procurement process. Appropriate planning and effective risk assessment 
are components of successful contract management.  Select as many as applies and provide a brief detail
as to why it is a perceived risk.  Attach additional sheets, if needed, to completely detail each risk.

Risk Risk Details 

 How critical is the timing of this contract or work order? 

 What, if any, is the impact of the failure of this contract? 

 How many locations will be impacted by this contract? 

 How complex is the work that will be done under this 
contract? 

What is the impact on state business processes? 

What is the agency’s personnel experience with the product 
provided or the type of work to be performed? 

Other  
(Attach additional sheets if more space is required)

Insurance and Bonds 
The default insurance coverages typically used in a GLO contract are listed below.  Please select all that
apply to your contract.  If you believe a different amount should be required than the default, please 
provide that amount to the right. 

Select Default Type Amount other than default 

One Million ($1,000,000) Commercial General Liability - Occurrence 

Two Million ($2,000,000) Commercial General Liability - Aggregate 

One Million ($1,000,000) Errors and Omission / Professional Liability 

Statutory Limits Workers Comp / Employer Liability N/A 

 Statutory Limits Longshoreman Insurance N/A 

One Million ($1,000,000) CSL Automobile Insurance 

Five Hundred Thousand ($500,000) Contractors Pollution Liability 

 Full amount of contract or work order Performance Bond N/A 

 Full amount of contract or work order Other Bonds N/A 

See Required Insurance, Attachment F in Contract #16-194-000-9598 (attached)

Timing is critical

Significant impact

Multiple agency sites

Very complex requirements involving external expertise

Single GLO Business Unit

Highly experienced

✔

✔

✔

✔

DocuSign Envelope ID: 875E4EBF-34DE-420C-8A8D-69179B8E6FCEDocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Texas General Land Office ACQUISITION PLAN 

7 | P a g e

In addition to the standards insurance coverages, there are times that other types of insurance are 
required. Some examples would be Longshore and Harbor Workers’ insurance, Marine Contractors’ 
insurance, and Damage to Premises insurance.  List any additional type(s) and amount(s) of required 
insurance not listed above.

Consulting 
A consulting service is "studying or advising a state agency under a contract that does not involve the
traditional relationship of employer and employee.” A Consultant is “a person that provides or proposes
to provide a consulting service.” 

Check here if this contract will include consulting or consulting services:

If checked, what percent of the funds will be used for consulting services?   ______ 

Resources 
Describe additional GLO and non-GLO resources that are available or will be required to complete this
contract.  

Statutory Mandates 
If the proposed services are necessary to fulfill a statutory requirement, list the applicable statute(s).

Confidential Information 
If the contract may involve potential vendor access to confidential or restricted information, please
describe the type of information and the reason for the access.  If the contract may involve potential
vendor access to GLO systems, please indicate the system below. 

See attachment from prior contract.

0%

We will rely on assistance from Procurement, Contract Management, Investment Management, and General Counsel.

38 CFR §§ 51.60, 51.180 
 

PHI for residents we currently serve or will serve. 
 
HIPAA guidelines. 
 
A BAA will be required.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 875E4EBF-34DE-420C-8A8D-69179B8E6FCEDocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Texas General Land Office ACQUISITION PLAN 

8 | P a g e

Minimum Qualifications 
List any minimum vendor qualifications that may exist other than a minimum of 5 years 
experience providing the proposed service, financial solvency, and adequate capitalization.

Evaluation Committee 
List the members of the evaluation committee below.  Provide contact information for any evaluators 
that are not GLO employees. It is recommended that the committee consist of three to five (3-5)
evaluators.  When creating the committee, ensure there are no actual or potential conflicts of
interests.  Managers and subordinates may only serve on the same committee if the manager and
subordinate both possess expertise that is valuable during the evaluation process and not shared by 
other GLO staff members. 

Name Division Email Phone 

Note:  Evaluation committees are not required for IFBs, Interagency, or Interlocal agreements.

Pre-Proposal, Pre-Submittal, or Pre-Bid Conference 
Please indicate below if you plan to host a pre-proposal, pre-submittal, or pre-bid conference. If
so, please provide the location and indicate whether the conference is mandatory.

See Section 4.1.2 of RFP X0006868-SG

John Berkely john.berkely@glo.texas.gov

Sara Rodriguez sara.rodriguez@glo.texas.gov

Kathy Johanns kathy.johanns@glo.texas.gov

Ping Ku ping.ku@glo.texas.gov

Technical Advisor:  
Rusty Martin

Pre-proposal conference (optional) on Zoom.

Veterans Homes

Veterans Homes

Veterans Homes

Veterans Homes

Investment Management

(select one)

DocuSign Envelope ID: 875E4EBF-34DE-420C-8A8D-69179B8E6FCEDocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Texas General Land Office ACQUISITION PLAN 

9 | P a g e

Selection Criteria 
Review the list of proposal evaluation criteria.  Each criterion must be weighted and the total of all 
weights must equal 100%.  Contact Procurement if you need assistance in determining criteria. 

 

Construction Only Questions 
For Construction projects, provide the following information:

Name of Engineer in place for this project? 

Engineer phone number and email address:

Will the A/E have a plan room available? 

Will the A/E have plans available for purchase? 

If yes, format and price: 

Will the Miller IDS plan room be utilized? 

Liquidated damages amount per day, if any:

Request for Proposals Percentage 

Cost Proposal 

Demonstrated Experience, qualifications, and past 
performance of Respondent and proposed staff 

Proposed methodology and schedule for completion
of the Project 

Overall responsiveness, clarity, and organization
of Solicitation Response 

Total Percentage:

Request for Qualifications Percentage 

Demonstrated Experience, qualifications, and past 
performance of Respondent and proposed staff 
Overall responsiveness, clarity, and organization 
of Solicitation Response 

NOTE: Percentages need to be entered as a decimal.  For example, 50% is entered as .50 rather than just 50.

Other:
Other:

Other:
Other:

Total Percentage:
Note:  If additional criteria are required, please use Excel and provide as an attachment to this form. The  
suggested criteria above may be subdivided into more specific criteria.

45%

30%

20%

5%

100%

0%

0%

0%

0%

(select one)

(select one)

(select one)

0%

0%

0%

0%

Financial stability (Pass/Fail Minimum Qualification)

References (included in Experience & Quals)

DocuSign Envelope ID: 875E4EBF-34DE-420C-8A8D-69179B8E6FCEDocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Texas General Land Office ACQUISITION PLAN 

10 | P a g e

Conclusion 
Thank you for completing this Acquisition Plan.  After you complete Section 1, send this document to your 
assigned Purchaser, who will route the plan through DocuSign for approvals.  Procurement will 
complete the Calendar of Events in Section 2 of this document after the kickoff meeting.  This 
document will be updated as dates change.

The Project Manager is responsible for the day to day management of the contract.  This includes the 
acceptance of deliverables, approval of payments, and programmatic monitoring of the contract in 
accordance with the program area's policies.  The Project Manager must know, understand, and 
comply with these policies. Please discuss any questions or concerns with Procurement or your 
assigned Contract Manager.  

Program Area Signatures 
By signing below, you agree the information provided herein, including the estimated budget and funding 
sources, is true, accurate, and complete, to the best of your knowledge.

Project Manager (PM) 
Name Signature Date 

PM’s Direct Supervisor 
Name Signature Date 

Mark Havens

John Berkely

DocuSign Envelope ID: 875E4EBF-34DE-420C-8A8D-69179B8E6FCE

3/17/2021

3/19/2021

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Texas General Land Office ACQUISITION PLAN 

11 | P a g e

Section 2 

Procurement Method 
Provide the procurement method and the justification for selecting that method.

Internal Calendar of Events – Prior to Award 
This should be tailored to each procurement.

Activity 
CPA Recommended Dates 

(Based Off Desired Start Date) Anticipated Date 

Kick-Off Meeting 

Draft Solicitation 

CAT Review:  Equal to or greater than $5 million 
SPD Delegation Review: Services Over $100k 
SPD Delegation Review:  Goods Over $50k
Finalize Solicitation for Issuance

Solicitation Advertised

Submission of Questions

Release of Official Response to Questions

Response Deadline

HSP Evaluation

Evaluation of Responses

Contract Negotiation, if allowed, and Formation

Contract Execution (all signatures obtained)

Internal Calendar of Events – Post Award 
This should be tailored to each procurement and will be completed at the kick-off meeting.

Activity 

Contract Award 

Post Award Meeting with Vendor 

Project Start Date 

Project Completion Date 

Contract End Date 

Performance Begins

Anticipated Dates

(10 Days)

(12 Days)

(14 Days)

(3 Days)

(14 Days)

(3 Days)

(3 Days)

(30 Days)

(15 Days)

(5 Days)

(45 Days)

(14 Days)Program Area Provide Scope and BuySpeed

Note: We need more time added for contract negotiation

Board Review

Request for Proposals - allows the agency to consider factors besides cost due to the 
complex nature of the services; also allows for negotiations.

3/17/2021

05/15/2021 3/29/2021

06/14/2021 4/30/2021

06/29/2021 5/6/2021
07/02/2021 5/7/2021

07/07/2021 5/19/2021

07/10/2021 5/24/2021

07/24/2021 6/7/2021

07/27/2021 6/9/2021

08/10/2021 6/18/2021

8/18/202108/20/2021

8/31/202109/01/2021

August 2021

August 2021

9/1/2021

8/31/2027

8/31/2027 (if renewal exercised)

09/01/202109/01/2021

03/31/2021

03/17/2021

DocuSign Envelope ID: 875E4EBF-34DE-420C-8A8D-69179B8E6FCEDocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Texas General Land Office ACQUISITION PLAN 

12 | P a g e

Approvals 

Purchaser 
Provide any notes that need to be considered below and then sign.

Name Signature 

Name 

Procurement Director or Disaster Recovery Procurement Manager granting final approval:
Signature 

Attorney 
Provide the statutory authority for the procurement.

Please provide any notes that need to be considered below and then sign. 

Name Signature 

Contract Manager 
If this procurement requires Procurement and Grants (P&G) Committee approval, please provide the date and
the outcome, if available.  If this procurement does not require P&G Committee approval, state the reason why 
it does not.

Provide any notes that need to be considered below and then sign.

Name Signature 

Kenneth Maze

Suzanne Loy

Texas Gov't Code, Chapter 2155.149; Texas Natural Resources Code, Chapter 
164.005

Heather De La Garza

Chelsa Castilleja

DocuSign Envelope ID: 875E4EBF-34DE-420C-8A8D-69179B8E6FCE

New Contract# 22-008-000-C938

Contract will need to go to VLB for review and approval.

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Attachment A 
Revised 2/2019 

Texas General Land Office 
Evaluation of Potential Subcontracting Opportunities for HUB Subcontracting Plan 

Per TAC Rule §20.285 (a), agencies that consider entering into a contract with an expected value of $100,000 
or more over the life of the contract (including any renewals) shall, before the agency solicits bids, proposals or 
other applicable expressions of interest, determine whether subcontracting opportunities are probable under the 
contract. 
Please submit this form in Buy Speed with your Needs Assessment.  

Project Manager Name 

Division: 

Date of Request: 

Estimated Contract Amount (including any 
renewals): 

Project Name: 

Brief Project Description:

BuySpeed Expenditure Object Code (4-digit GLA Code): 
Used to determine the Procurement Category and the corresponding HUB utilization goal. 

Please list a minimum of three main trades/disciplines required to perform services indicated in 
this project: 

Please list a minimum of three primary supplies required to perform services indicated in this 
project: 

$ 28,000,000.00

Solicitation for a pharmaceutical services provider

Provide pharmaceutical services to the nine TSVHs

Institutional pharmaceutical services to all nine Texas State Veterans Homes 
 
Completing orders  
 
Completing on-time delivery 
 
 
 
 

Pharmaceuticals

John Berkely

Veterans Homes

7312

DocuSign Envelope ID: 875E4EBF-34DE-420C-8A8D-69179B8E6FCEDocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Attachment F 

GLO Contract No. 6-194-000-9598 

Page 1 of 2 

REQUIRED INSURANCE 

 

GENERALLY.  Unless expressly waived in writing by the GLO, Provider, as an independent 

contractor, must carry policies of insurance and/or bonds in amounts specified in this Attachment 

and pay all premiums, taxes, and fees incident thereto.  Provider shall, at its sole expense, acquire, 

maintain, and keep in force for the duration of this Contract, insurance in the amounts listed 

below and under the requirements specified herein.  Furthermore, unless specified or otherwise 

agreed to by the GLO, the required insurance shall be in effect prior to the commencement of 

work by Provider and shall continue in full force until the earlier as appropriate of (i) the 

expiration of this Contract; or (ii) such time as the GLO notifies Provider that such insurance is 

no longer required.  Any insurance or self-insurance available to the GLO shall be in excess of, 

and non-contributing with, any insurance required from Provider.  Provider’s insurance policies 

shall apply on a primary basis.  If, at any time during the Contract, an insurer or surety shall fail to 

provide insurance to Provider or otherwise fails to comply with the requirements of this Contract, 

Provider shall immediately notify the GLO as soon it has knowledge of any such failure, and shall 

immediately replace such insurance or bond with an insurer meeting such requirements. 

 

Specific Coverage: 

 

Required 

Type of 

Coverage 

Limits 

Required  

(000s) 

Limits 

Carried 

(000s) 

Carrier Policy Number 
Coverage 

Dates 

General 

Liability 
$500/$1,000 

$4,000 / 

$5,000 
   

1.  Prof. Liab. 
2.  Excess Prof. 

Liab. 
$150/$300 

1. $10,000 
2. $25,000 

   

Excess 

Liability 
-- 

$5,000 / 

$5,000 
   

Workers 
Compensation 

Statutory Statutory    

 

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS.  

 

Approval.  Prior approval of the insurance policies by the GLO shall be a condition precedent to 

any payment of consideration under this Contract and insurance must be submitted for review 

and approval by the GLO prior to the commencement of work.  Any failure of the GLO to timely 

approve or failure to disapprove the insurance furnished by Provider shall not relieve Provider of 

Provider’s full responsibility to provide the insurance required by this Contract. 

 

 

 

 

Continuing Coverage.  The GLO’s approval of any changes to insurance coverage during the 

course of performance shall constitute an ongoing condition subsequent to this Contract. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 875E4EBF-34DE-420C-8A8D-69179B8E6FCEDocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Attachment F 

GLO Contract No. 6-194-000-9598 

Page 2 of 2 

 

Renewal.  Provider shall provide the GLO with renewal or replacement evidence of insurance no 

less than thirty (30) days before the expiration or replacement of the required insurance. 

 

Additional Insured Endorsement. The GLO, its officers, employees, and authorized agents shall 

be named as additional insureds for all liability arising under this Contract except on Workers’ 

Compensation and Professional Liability policies.  An original additional insured endorsement 

signed by an authorized insurance company representative must be submitted to the GLO to 

evidence the endorsement of the GLO as an additional insured on all policies. 

 

Subrogation.  Each liability insurance policy, except Professional Liability and Workers’ 

Compensation, shall provide for a waiver of subrogation as to all additional insureds, and shall 

be issued by insurance companies authorized to do business in the State of Texas, and currently 

rated by A.M. Best as “A-” or better. 

 

Policy Cancellation Endorsement.  Except for ten (10) days’ notice for non-payment of premium, 

each insurance policy shall be endorsed to specify that without thirty (30) days’ prior written 

notice to the GLO, the policy shall not be canceled, non-renewed, or coverage and/or limits 

reduced or materially altered, and shall provide that notices required by this paragraph shall be 

sent by certified mail to the address specified in Section 8.08 of this Contract.  A copy of this 

signed endorsement must be attached to this Contract. 

 

Alternative Insurability.  Notwithstanding the requirements of this Attachment, the GLO reserves 

the right to consider reasonable alternative methods of insuring the contract in lieu of the 

insurance policies and/or bonds required.  It will be Provider’s responsibility to recommend to 

the GLO alternative methods of insuring the Contract.  Any alternatives proposed by Provider 

should be accompanied by a detailed explanation regarding Provider’s inability to obtain 

insurance coverage as described in this Contract.  The GLO shall be the sole and final judge as to 

the adequacy of any substitute form of insurance coverage. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 875E4EBF-34DE-420C-8A8D-69179B8E6FCEDocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Certificate Of Completion
Envelope Id: 875E4EBF34DE420C8A8D69179B8E6FCE Status: Completed

Subject: Acquisition Plan: RFP for Pharmaceutical Services for the Texas State Veterans Homes

Source Envelope: 

Document Pages: 15 Signatures: 6 Envelope Originator: 

Certificate Pages: 3 Initials: 0 Suzanne Loy

AutoNav: Enabled

EnvelopeId Stamping: Enabled

Time Zone: (UTC-06:00) Central Time (US & Canada)

1700 Congress Ave

Austin, TX  78701

suzanne.loy@glo.texas.gov

IP Address: 75.81.52.156   

Record Tracking
Status: Original

             3/17/2021 5:09:43 PM

Holder: Suzanne Loy

             suzanne.loy@glo.texas.gov

Location: DocuSign

Signer Events Signature Timestamp
John Berkely

John.Berkely@glo.texas.gov

Director

Texas General Land Office

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Using IP Address: 76.251.160.211

Signed using mobile

Sent: 3/17/2021 5:25:52 PM

Viewed: 3/17/2021 5:27:01 PM 

Signed: 3/17/2021 5:27:10 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Mark Havens

mark.havens@glo.texas.gov

Chief Clerk and Deputy Land Commissioner

Texas General Land Office

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Uploaded Signature Image

Using IP Address: 107.77.234.188

Signed using mobile

Sent: 3/17/2021 5:27:12 PM

Viewed: 3/19/2021 11:15:58 AM 

Signed: 3/19/2021 11:16:08 AM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Kenneth Maze

kenneth.maze@glo.texas.gov

Purchaser VI

Texas General Land Office

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Drawn on Device

Using IP Address: 165.225.34.51

Sent: 3/19/2021 11:16:10 AM

Viewed: 3/22/2021 9:15:11 AM 

Signed: 3/22/2021 9:15:27 AM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Suzanne Loy

suzanne.loy@glo.texas.gov

Procurement Director

Texas General Land Office

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Uploaded Signature Image

Using IP Address: 165.225.34.60

Sent: 3/22/2021 9:15:30 AM

Viewed: 3/22/2021 9:17:04 AM 

Signed: 3/22/2021 9:17:17 AM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Signer Events Signature Timestamp
Heather De La Garza

Heather.DeLaGarza@glo.texas.gov

Staff Attorney

Texas General Land Office

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Using IP Address: 165.225.34.54

Sent: 3/22/2021 9:17:21 AM

Viewed: 3/22/2021 9:19:48 AM 

Signed: 3/22/2021 9:20:19 AM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Chelsa Castilleja

chelsa.castilleja@glo.texas.gov

Contract Manager

Texas General Land Office

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Using IP Address: 165.225.34.70

Sent: 3/22/2021 9:20:22 AM

Viewed: 3/23/2021 11:19:27 AM 

Signed: 3/23/2021 11:27:04 AM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

In Person Signer Events Signature Timestamp

Editor Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Agent Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Intermediary Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp
Kelly McBride

kelly.mcbride@glo.texas.gov

Director of Contract Management

Texas General Land Office

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 3/17/2021 5:25:51 PM

Viewed: 3/18/2021 9:53:55 AM 

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Rusty Martin

Rusty.Martin@glo.texas.gov

Chief Investment Officer

Texas General Land Office

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 3/23/2021 11:27:06 AM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Daphne Grantham

Daphne.Grantham@GLO.TEXAS.GOV

Assistant HUB Coordinator

Texas General Land Office

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 3/23/2021 11:27:06 AM

Viewed: 3/23/2021 11:28:43 AM 

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Witness Events Signature Timestamp

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Notary Events Signature Timestamp

Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Envelope Sent Hashed/Encrypted 3/17/2021 5:25:51 PM

Certified Delivered Security Checked 3/23/2021 11:19:27 AM

Signing Complete Security Checked 3/23/2021 11:27:04 AM

Completed Security Checked 3/23/2021 11:27:06 AM

Payment Events Status Timestamps

DocuSign Envelope ID: C1C039CF-D526-41E2-8CAF-32D2C2726BBF



Certificate Of Completion
Envelope Id: C1C039CFD52641E28CAF32D2C2726BBF Status: Completed

Subject: $13M New Contract: 22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy of Texas 1, LP (Texas - GLO)

Source Envelope: 

Document Pages: 76 Signatures: 6 Envelope Originator: 

Certificate Pages: 4 Initials: 9 Clay Sebek

AutoNav: Enabled

EnvelopeId Stamping: Enabled

Time Zone: (UTC-06:00) Central Time (US & Canada)

1700 Congress Ave

Austin, TX  78701

Clay.Sebek@glo.texas.gov

IP Address: 70.114.138.135 

Record Tracking
Status: Original

             10/29/2021 3:28:25 PM

Holder: Clay Sebek

             Clay.Sebek@glo.texas.gov

Location: DocuSign

Signer Events Signature Timestamp
Heather De La Garza

Heather.DeLaGarza@glo.texas.gov

Special Counsel, Veterans Affairs

Texas General Land Office

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Using IP Address: 165.225.34.75

Sent: 10/29/2021 4:02:06 PM

Viewed: 10/29/2021 4:02:55 PM 

Signed: 10/29/2021 4:12:42 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

John Berkely

john.berkely@glo.texas.gov

Director

Texas General Land Office

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Using IP Address: 76.251.160.211

Signed using mobile

Sent: 10/29/2021 4:12:49 PM

Viewed: 10/29/2021 4:16:27 PM 

Signed: 10/29/2021 4:16:54 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Jose "Arturo" Montalvo

arturo.montalvo@glo.texas.gov

Texas General Land Office

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None) Signature Adoption: Drawn on Device

Using IP Address: 165.225.34.84

Sent: 10/29/2021 4:17:04 PM

Viewed: 10/29/2021 4:17:41 PM 

Signed: 10/29/2021 4:17:47 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Marc Barenblat

marc.barenblat@glo.texas.gov

Deputy General Counsel

Texas General Land Office

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Using IP Address: 165.225.34.69

Sent: 10/29/2021 4:17:54 PM

Viewed: 10/29/2021 4:22:31 PM 

Signed: 10/29/2021 4:23:12 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign



Signer Events Signature Timestamp
Jeff Gordon

jeff.gordon@glo.texas.gov

General Counsel

Texas General Land Office

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Using IP Address: 165.225.34.84

Sent: 10/29/2021 4:23:20 PM

Viewed: 10/29/2021 4:24:25 PM 

Signed: 10/29/2021 4:24:36 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Errin Simpkins-Travers

Errin.SimpkinsTravers@omnicare.com

Senior Legal Counsel

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None) Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Using IP Address: 12.15.136.26

Sent: 10/29/2021 4:24:45 PM

Resent: 10/29/2021 4:30:25 PM

Viewed: 10/29/2021 4:31:38 PM 

Signed: 10/29/2021 4:32:40 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

David Purdy

david.purdy@cvshealth.com

Vice President Operations

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None) Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Using IP Address: 12.15.136.25

Sent: 10/29/2021 4:32:50 PM

Viewed: 10/29/2021 4:44:28 PM 

Signed: 10/29/2021 5:44:22 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Mark A. Havens

Mark.Havens@GLO.TEXAS.GOV

Chief Clerk and Deputy Land Commissioner

Texas General Land Office

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Drawn on Device

Using IP Address: 165.225.34.61

Sent: 10/29/2021 5:44:33 PM

Viewed: 11/1/2021 11:39:10 AM 

Signed: 11/1/2021 11:39:18 AM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

In Person Signer Events Signature Timestamp

Editor Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Agent Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Intermediary Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp
CMD Drafting Requests

draftingrequests@GLO.TEXAS.GOV

Texas General Land Office

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 10/29/2021 4:02:06 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign



Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp
Kelly McBride

kelly.mcbride@glo.texas.gov

Director of CMD

Texas General Land Office

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 10/29/2021 4:02:07 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Clay Sebek

clay.sebek@glo.texas.gov

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 10/29/2021 4:12:48 PM

Resent: 11/1/2021 11:39:30 AM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Kenneth Maze

kenneth.maze@glo.texas.gov

Purchaser VI

Texas General Land Office

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 10/29/2021 4:12:48 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Claire McKinney

Claire.McKinney@glo.texas.gov

Texas General Land Office

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 10/29/2021 4:12:49 PM

Viewed: 11/1/2021 3:39:57 PM 

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Haley Karstens

haley.karstens@glo.texas.gov

Texas General Land Office

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 10/29/2021 4:17:04 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

George P. Bush

sigexec-commissioner@glo.texas.gov

Commissioner

Texas General Land Office

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 10/29/2021 4:24:44 PM

Viewed: 10/29/2021 4:37:58 PM 

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Sage Hopmeier

sage.hopmeier@glo.texas.gov

Texas General Land Office

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 11/1/2021 11:39:28 AM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Witness Events Signature Timestamp

Notary Events Signature Timestamp



Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Envelope Sent Hashed/Encrypted 10/29/2021 4:02:07 PM

Certified Delivered Security Checked 11/1/2021 11:39:10 AM

Signing Complete Security Checked 11/1/2021 11:39:18 AM

Completed Security Checked 11/1/2021 11:39:28 AM

Payment Events Status Timestamps



 
 

Attestation Letter 

GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 
 

January 14, 2022 

 

Jerry McGinty 

Director Legislative Budget Board 

Robert E. Johnson Bldg., 5th Floor 

1501 N. Congress 

Austin, Texas 78701-1200 

 

Dear Mr. McGinty: 

 

Pursuant to Article IX, Section 7.12, of the General Appropriations Act (2020-21 biennium), the Texas 

General Land Office and the Veterans Land Board hereby notify the Legislative Budget Board (LBB) that 

Texas General Land Office and the Veterans Land Board have entered into the following contract. 

 

A.  Contract Information. 

Attached is a summary of the purpose of and major deliverables for the following contract:  

 

1. Vendor’s Name, Address, and Phone Number: 

Omnicare Pharmacy of Texas 1, LP 

14450 Trinity Blvd 

Fort Worth, TX  76155 

(414) 335-6930 

 

2. Contract Identification Number: 

22-008-000-C938 

 

3. Estimated Maximum Amount of the Contract: 

$13,500,000.00 

 

4. Scheduled Payment Date(s): 

As invoiced 

 

5. Term of the Contract: 

11/01/2021 to 08/31/2024 

 

B.  Executive Director Certification 
 

1. I certify that the process used to award this contract complies with or is consistent with the 

following: 

a. State of Texas Procurement and Contract Management Guide; 

b. All applicable statutes, rules, policies, and procedures related to procurement and contracting 

of goods and services, including compliance with conflict of interest disclosure requirements. 

 

2. I also certify that the agency or institution has an effective process and adequate management 

controls to:  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3CC774FF-FBC5-403A-9297-A9970789A155



 
 

Attestation Letter 

GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 
 

a. Verify vendor performance and deliverables for this contract;  

b. Only pay for goods and services that are within the scope of the contract or procurement; 

c. Calculate and collect any liquidated damages associated with vendor performance; and  

d. When, why, or how to apply corrective action plans for continuing poor vendor performance. 

 

3. I certify that the agency or institution will comply with the requirement to provide information to 

the Vendor Performance Tracking System in accordance with Section 2155.089 of the 

Government Code, as amended by Senate Bill 65, Eighty-sixth Legislature, 2019. 

 

C.  Risk Statement 

I believe that the goods or services being procured via this contract are necessary to provide mission 

critical functions of this agency or institution. The attached describes the importance of the goods and 

services and risk to the agency or institution if the parameters of the contract are not met within the 

specified time frames.  

 

D.  Continuing Duty to Report 

I acknowledge a continuing duty to provide any information or documentation regarding this contract 

upon request by the LBB and to report any changes to the information provided as well as any later 

discovered errors or inconsistencies to the LBB. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

_____________________________________________  ______________________ 

Mark A. Havens      Date 

Chief Clerk / Deputy Land Commissioner     

Texas General Land Office 

Executive Secretary, Veterans Land Board 

 

OGC_____

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3CC774FF-FBC5-403A-9297-A9970789A155

1/17/2022



 
 

Attestation Letter 

GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 
 

ATTACHMENT 

A. Contract Information: Description of the purpose of the contract and summary of major deliverables: 

Texas State Veterans Homes provide affordable, long-term skilled nursing care for qualified Veterans, 

their spouses and Gold Star Parents. Texas State Veterans Homes are owned by the state of Texas and are 

regulated by both the Texas Health and Human Services Commission as well as the U.S. Department of 

Veterans Affairs (VA).  

The Texas General Land Office and the VLB, have contracted with a highly qualified operator to provide 

pharmaceutical services including generic and brand name pharmaceuticals to the Veterans Homes owned 

by the VLB and a tenth Veterans Home that may open during the term of this Contract. 

B. Executive Director Certification: If the process to award the contract, contract extension, or 

procurement did not comply with the requirements of Subsection 1 a and b, provide an explanation for the 

alternative process utilized, legal justification for the alternative process. 

The General Land Office (“GLO”) and VLB issued a Request for Proposals 

http://www.txsmartbuy.com/esbddetails/view/X0024068-KM for a highly qualified operator to supervise 

the performance of all administrative functions necessary to manage the provision of generic and brand 

name pharmaceuticals for the Texas State Veterans Home Programs. The GLO and VLB issued an 

independent contract to perform the services requested under this Solicitation.  

C.  Risk Statement: Statement of the importance of the contract to the agency or institution of higher 

education, and risk to the agency or institution if the parameters of the solicitation or contract are not met 

within the specified time frames. 

The service(s) being provided are mission critical for the VLB to provide for the long-term medical care 

of Texas Veterans. The VLB recognizes that the Texas State Veterans Homes serve a very special and 

unique population, and thus requires highly qualified operator to provide pharmaceutical services 

including generic and brand name pharmaceuticals to the Veterans Homes owned by the VLB. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3CC774FF-FBC5-403A-9297-A9970789A155

http://www.txsmartbuy.com/esbddetails/view/X0024068-KM


Certificate Of Completion
Envelope Id: 3CC774FFFBC5403A9297A9970789A155 Status: Completed

Subject: LBB Attestation Letter: 22-008-000-C938 - Omnicare Pharmacy of Texas 1, LP (Texas GLO and VLB)

Source Envelope: 

Document Pages: 3 Signatures: 1 Envelope Originator: 

Certificate Pages: 2 Initials: 1 Clay Sebek

AutoNav: Enabled

EnvelopeId Stamping: Enabled

Time Zone: (UTC-06:00) Central Time (US & Canada)

1700 Congress Ave

Austin, TX  78701

Clay.Sebek@glo.texas.gov

IP Address: 70.114.138.135 

Record Tracking
Status: Original

             1/14/2022 2:36:12 PM

Holder: Clay Sebek

             Clay.Sebek@glo.texas.gov

Location: DocuSign

Signer Events Signature Timestamp
Heather De La Garza

Heather.DeLaGarza@glo.texas.gov

Special Counsel, Veterans Affairs

Texas General Land Office

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Using IP Address: 165.225.34.75

Sent: 1/14/2022 2:42:12 PM

Viewed: 1/14/2022 3:04:55 PM 

Signed: 1/14/2022 3:05:10 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Mark A. Havens

Mark.Havens@GLO.TEXAS.GOV

Chief Clerk and Deputy Land Commissioner

Texas General Land Office

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Drawn on Device

Using IP Address: 162.193.135.244

Sent: 1/14/2022 3:05:11 PM

Viewed: 1/17/2022 1:01:12 PM 

Signed: 1/17/2022 1:01:18 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

In Person Signer Events Signature Timestamp

Editor Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Agent Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Intermediary Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp
Clay Sebek

clay.sebek@glo.texas.gov

Team Lead, General Contracts

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 1/14/2022 2:42:12 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign



Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp
CMD Drafting Requests

draftingrequests@GLO.TEXAS.GOV

Texas General Land Office

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 1/14/2022 2:42:11 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Kelly McBride

kelly.mcbride@glo.texas.gov

Director of CMD

Texas General Land Office

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 1/14/2022 2:42:12 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Sage Hopmeier

sage.hopmeier@glo.texas.gov

Texas General Land Office

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 1/17/2022 1:01:19 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Witness Events Signature Timestamp

Notary Events Signature Timestamp

Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Envelope Sent Hashed/Encrypted 1/14/2022 2:42:12 PM

Certified Delivered Security Checked 1/17/2022 1:01:12 PM

Signing Complete Security Checked 1/17/2022 1:01:18 PM

Completed Security Checked 1/17/2022 1:01:19 PM

Payment Events Status Timestamps



SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

INSURER F :

INSURER E :

INSURER D :

INSURER C :

INSURER B :

INSURER A :

NAIC #

NAME:
CONTACT

(A/C, No):
FAX

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

PRODUCER

(A/C, No, Ext):
PHONE

INSURED

REVISION NUMBER:CERTIFICATE NUMBER:COVERAGES

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

OTHER:

(Per accident)

(Ea accident)

$

$

N / A

SUBR
WVD

ADDL
INSD

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

$

$

$

$PROPERTY DAMAGE

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

AUTOS ONLY

AUTOSAUTOS ONLY
NON-OWNED

SCHEDULEDOWNED

ANY AUTO

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Y / N

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
If yes, describe under

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

$

$

$

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

ER
OTH-

STATUTE
PER

LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EFF

POLICY NUMBERTYPE OF INSURANCELTR
INSR

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

EXCESS LIAB

UMBRELLA LIAB $EACH OCCURRENCE

$AGGREGATE

$

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

DED RETENTION $

$PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$GENERAL AGGREGATE

$PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

$MED EXP (Any one person)

$EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY
PRO-
JECT LOC

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CANCELLATION

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2016 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

10/14/2021

MARSH USA, INC.
99 HIGH STREET
BOSTON, MA 02110
Attn: CVSCaremark.CertRequest@marsh.com Fax:212-948-5338

CN101226639-ALL-GAW-22-23 ACE American Insurance Company 22667

OMNICARE PHARMACY OF TEXAS 1, LP
DBA AS OMNICARE OF FT. WORTH
14450 TRINITY BLVD., SUITE 200
FT.WORTH, TX 76155

NYC-011212718-01 7

X

X SIR:  $500,000
X LIQUOR LIABILITY INCLUDED

X

X

XSLG72495603 01/01/2022 01/01/2023

4,500,000

1,000,000
4,500,000

N

See Page Two for Policy Numbers 01/01/2022 01/01/2023

2,000,000
2,000,000
2,000,000

RE: GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938
TEXAS GENERAL LAND OFFICE, VETERANS LAND BOARD, ITS OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, AND AUTHORIZED AGENTS IS/ARE INCLUDED AS ADDITIONAL INSURED (EXCEPT WORKERS’
COMPENSATION) WHERE REQUIRED BY WRITTEN CONTRACT.  WAIVER OF SUBROGATION IS APPLICABLE WHERE REQUIRED BY WRITTEN CONTRACT.

INCLUDED
28,000,000

X

A

TEXAS GENERAL LAND OFFICE

of Marsh USA Inc.

VETERANS LAND BOARD
ATTN: PURCHASING DEPARTMENT
PO BOX 12873
AUSTIN, TX 78711-2873



ACORD 101 (2008/01)
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

© 2008 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,
FORM NUMBER: FORM TITLE:

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page           of

AGENCY CUSTOMER ID:
LOC #:

AGENCY

CARRIER NAIC CODE

POLICY NUMBER

NAMED INSURED

EFFECTIVE DATE:

MARSH USA, INC.

2 3

OMNICARE PHARMACY OF TEXAS 1, LP
DBA AS OMNICARE OF FT. WORTH
14450 TRINITY BLVD., SUITE 200
FT.WORTH,TX 76155

25 Certificate of Liability Insurance

CN101226639
Boston

WORKERS COMPENSATION DEDUCTIBLE PROGRAM:
POLICY DATES: JAN 1, 2022 TO JAN 1, 2023            (Coverage A)

Policy #                      States Covered                         Carrier
WLRC68922598               AOS                                   Indemnity Insurance Company of North America
SCFC6892263A                WI                                     ACE Fire Underwriters Insurance Company
WLRC68927675                CA                                    ACE American Insurance Company
Limit:  $2,000,000/ $2,000,000/ $2,000,000
DEDUCTIBLE:  $2,000,000

EXCESS WORKERS COMPENSATION PROGRAM
POLICY DATES: JAN 1, 2022 TO JAN 1, 2023              (Coverage B)

Policy #                            States Covered                     Carrier
WCUC68922677             DC, MA, OH, RI                   ACE American Insurance Company
WCUC68922719             CT, NC, NJ, VA                    ACE American Insurance Company

COVERAGE A: Workers Compensation: Statutory
COVERAGE B:  Employers Liability Limits: Stat/$500,000/$500,000/$500,000

Excess Workers Compensation Self-Insured Retentions:
DC, MA, OH, RI:    $500,000
CT, NC, NJ, VA:  $1,000,000

COMMON POLICY CONDITIONS
A. Cancellation
    2. We [Carrier] may cancel this policy by mailing or delivery to the first Named Insured written notice of cancellation at least:
        a. 10 days before the effective date of cancellation if we cancel for non payment of premium

1) General Liability Additional Insured - Where Required Under Contract or Agreement language per endorsement CG 2026 (04/13):

SECTION II - WHO IS AN INSURED, is amended to include as an additional insured:
Any person or organization for whom the Named Insured has agreed to provide insurance prior to loss as provided by the General Liability Policy but only to the
limit and scope of insurance agreed to by the Named Insured but only with respect to liability for "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and
advertising injury" caused, in whole or in part, by the Named Insureds acts or omissions or the acts or omissions of those acting on the Named Insured's behalf:

1. In the performance of your ongoing operations;
or
2. In connection with your premises owned by or rented to you.

2) General Liability Earlier Notice of Cancellation Provided By Us language per endorsement CG 02 24 10 93:



ACORD 101 (2008/01)
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

© 2008 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,
FORM NUMBER: FORM TITLE:

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page           of

AGENCY CUSTOMER ID:
LOC #:

AGENCY

CARRIER NAIC CODE

POLICY NUMBER

NAMED INSURED

EFFECTIVE DATE:

MARSH USA, INC.

3 3

OMNICARE PHARMACY OF TEXAS 1, LP
DBA AS OMNICARE OF FT. WORTH
14450 TRINITY BLVD., SUITE 200
FT.WORTH,TX 76155

25 Certificate of Liability Insurance

CN101226639
Boston

Number of Days' Notice   90

For any statutorily permitted reason other than nonpayment of premium, the number of days required for notice of cancellation, as provided in paragraph 2. of
either the CANCELLATION Common Policy Condition or as amended by an applicable state cancellation endorsement, is increased to the number of days shown in the
Schedule above.

3) GENERAL LIABILITY CANCELLATION NOTIFICATION TO OTHERS ENDORSEMENT
In the event coverage is cancelled for any statutorily permitted reason, other than nonpayment of premium, advanced written notice will be mailed or delivered
to person(s) or entity(ies) by the Carrier according to the notification schedule shown below:

Name of Person(s) or Entity(ies):
Per the most current schedule maintained by Marsh USA, Inc. and furnished to Chubb no less than 45 days prior to the effective date of cancellation.

Number of Days Advanced Notice of Cancellation: 90



H
o

ld
e
r 

Id
e
n

ti
fi

e
r 

: 
77777
77707
07070
00777
61616
04557
11107
65736
12623
74442
07760
31557
27143
30073
76357
43641
33300
75272
73033
57332
00763
04067
34673
31307
10415
71367
30130
07477
50420
73677
74077
37245
63137
45620
76727
24203
57720
00777
77770
70007
07007
 

77777
77707
07070
00735
25677
11545
60007
77054
01713
31471
07665
11506
03665
62071
22237
35206
30110
70233
37243
06200
10702
32362
42073
11007
03333
62420
73011
07133
33635
20731
01070
33326
24307
30000
77756
16335
17655
40777
77770
70007
07007

C
e
rt

if
ic

a
te

 N
o

 :
5
7
0
0
9
0
7
7
1
3
4
4

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
 DATE(MM/DD/YYYY)        

 12/22/2021

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. If 
SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to   the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this 
certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

PRODUCER

Aon Risk Services Northeast, Inc.

Providence RI Office
100 Westminster Street, 10th Floor
Providence RI 02903-2393 USA 

PHONE
(A/C. No. Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

(866) 283-7122

INSURED 15686Coverys Specialty Insurance CompanyINSURER A:

20079National Fire & Marine Ins CoINSURER B:

INSURER C:

INSURER D:

INSURER E:

INSURER F:

FAX
(A/C. No.):

(800) 363-0105

CONTACT
NAME:

Omnicare Pharmacy of Texas
dba Omnicare of Fort Worth
14450 Trinity Blvd.
Suite 200
Fort Worth TX 76155 USA 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 570090771344 REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. Limits shown are as requested

POLICY EXP 
(MM/DD/YYYY)

POLICY EFF 
(MM/DD/YYYY)

SUBR
WVD

INSR 
LTR

ADDL 
INSD POLICY NUMBER  TYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

POLICY LOC

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO RENTED 
PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person)

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: 
PRO-
JECT

OTHER:

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

OWNED 
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
 AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS 
ONLY

NON-OWNED 
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY ( Per person)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea accident)

EXCESS LIAB X

OCCUR 

CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE

EACH OCCURRENCE

DED 

$15,000,000

$15,000,000

$15,000,000

01/01/2022

Med Prof;  (Claims Made)

SIR applies per policy terms & conditions

UMBRELLA LIABA 01/01/2023005RI000029923

RETENTIONX

X

Each Loss

E.L. DISEASE-EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE-POLICY LIMIT

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

OTH-
ER

PER STATUTE

Y / N

(Mandatory in NH)

ANY PROPRIETOR / PARTNER / EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N / A

WORKERS COMPENSATION AND 
EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

If yes, describe under 
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

AggregateEN040526 01/01/2022 01/01/2023
XS Med Prof (Claims Made)

Misc Med ProfB $10,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

Pharmacist Professional Liability included.

CANCELLATIONCERTIFICATE HOLDER

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVETexas General Land Office
Vetrans Land Board
Attn: Purchasing Department
P.O.Box 12873
Austin TX 78711-2873 USA 

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

©1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE 

EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 

POLICY PROVISIONS.



H
o

ld
e
r 

Id
e
n

ti
fi

e
r 

: 
77777
77707
07070
00777
61616
04557
11107
65736
12623
74442
07760
31557
27143
30073
76357
43641
33300
71636
33033
53332
00727
00467
70277
75307
54451
71767
74534
07077
10464
73677
30077
37245
63137
45620
76727
24203
57720
00777
77770
70007
07007
 

77777
77707
07070
00735
25677
11545
60007
66055
00612
21570
07675
10406
13675
72070
32226
25217
31000
70333
37343
17210
00702
33262
43062
11107
12232
62531
73101
07033
32635
20631
10070
33336
24207
20010
77756
16335
17655
40777
77770
70007
07007

C
e
rt

if
ic

a
te

 N
o

 :
5
7
0
0
9
6
9
1
0
8
1
8

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
 DATE(MM/DD/YYYY)        

 12/21/2022

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. If 
SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to   the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this 
certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

PRODUCER

Aon Risk Services Northeast, Inc.

Providence RI Office
100 Westminster Street, 10th Floor
Providence RI 02903-2393 USA 

PHONE
(A/C. No. Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

(866) 283-7122

INSURED 15686Coverys Specialty Insurance CompanyINSURER A:

20079National Fire & Marine Ins CoINSURER B:

INSURER C:

INSURER D:

INSURER E:

INSURER F:

FAX
(A/C. No.):

(800) 363-0105

CONTACT
NAME:

Omnicare Pharmacy of Texas
dba Omnicare of Fort Worth
14450 Trinity Blvd.
Suite 200
Fort Worth TX 76155 USA 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 570096910818 REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. Limits shown are as requested

POLICY EXP 
(MM/DD/YYYY)

POLICY EFF 
(MM/DD/YYYY)

SUBR
WVD

INSR 
LTR

ADDL 
INSD POLICY NUMBER  TYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

POLICY LOC

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO RENTED 
PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person)

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: 
PRO-
JECT

OTHER:

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

OWNED 
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
 AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS 
ONLY

NON-OWNED 
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY ( Per person)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea accident)

EXCESS LIAB X

OCCUR 

CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE

EACH OCCURRENCE

DED 

$15,000,000

$15,000,000

$15,000,000

01/01/2023

Med Prof;  (Claims Made)

SIR applies per policy terms & conditions

UMBRELLA LIABA 01/01/2024005RI000029923

RETENTIONX

X

Each Loss

E.L. DISEASE-EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE-POLICY LIMIT

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

OTH-
ER

PER STATUTE

Y / N

(Mandatory in NH)

ANY PROPRIETOR / PARTNER / EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N / A

WORKERS COMPENSATION AND 
EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

If yes, describe under 
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

AggregateEN040526 01/01/2023 01/01/2024
XS Med Prof (Claims Made)

Misc Med ProfB $10,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

Pharmacist Professional Liability included.

CANCELLATIONCERTIFICATE HOLDER

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVETexas General Land Office
Vetrans Land Board
Attn: Purchasing Department
P.O.Box 12873
Austin TX 78711-2873 USA 

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

©1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE 

EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 

POLICY PROVISIONS.



SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

INSURER F :

INSURER E :

INSURER D :

INSURER C :

INSURER B :

INSURER A :

NAIC #

NAME:
CONTACT

(A/C, No):
FAX

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

PRODUCER

(A/C, No, Ext):
PHONE

INSURED

REVISION NUMBER:CERTIFICATE NUMBER:COVERAGES

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

OTHER:

(Per accident)

(Ea accident)

$

$

N / A

SUBR
WVD

ADDL
INSD

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

$

$

$

$PROPERTY DAMAGE

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

AUTOS ONLY

AUTOSAUTOS ONLY
NON-OWNED

SCHEDULEDOWNED

ANY AUTO

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Y / N

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
If yes, describe under

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

$

$

$

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

ER
OTH-

STATUTE
PER

LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EFF

POLICY NUMBERTYPE OF INSURANCELTR
INSR

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

EXCESS LIAB

UMBRELLA LIAB $EACH OCCURRENCE

$AGGREGATE

$

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

DED RETENTION $

$PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$GENERAL AGGREGATE

$PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

$MED EXP (Any one person)

$EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY
PRO-
JECT LOC

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CANCELLATION

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2016 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

12/23/2022

               MARSH USA, INC.
               99 HIGH STREET
               BOSTON, MA  02110
               Attn: CVSCaremark.CertRequest@marsh.com Fax:212-948-5338

CN101226639-ALL-GAW-23-24 ACE American Insurance Company 22667

OMNICARE PHARMACY OF TEXAS 1, LP
DBA AS OMNICARE OF FT. WORTH
14450 TRINITY BLVD., SUITE 200
FT.WORTH, TX  76155

NYC-011212718-05 7

X

X SIR:  $500,000
X LIQUOR LIABILITY INCLUDED

X

X

XSL G47360791 01/01/2023 01/01/2024

4,500,000

1,000,000
4,500,000

N

See Page Two for Policy Numbers 01/01/2023 01/01/2024

2,000,000
2,000,000
2,000,000

RE: GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938
TEXAS GENERAL LAND OFFICE, VETERANS LAND BOARD, ITS OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, AND AUTHORIZED AGENTS IS/ARE INCLUDED AS ADDITIONAL INSURED (EXCEPT WORKERS’
COMPENSATION) WHERE REQUIRED BY WRITTEN CONTRACT.  WAIVER OF SUBROGATION IS APPLICABLE WHERE REQUIRED BY WRITTEN CONTRACT.

INCLUDED
28,000,000

X

A

               TEXAS GENERAL LAND OFFICE
               VETERANS LAND BOARD
               ATTN: PURCHASING DEPARTMENT
               PO BOX 12873
               AUSTIN, TX  78711-2873



ACORD 101 (2008/01)
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

© 2008 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,
FORM NUMBER: FORM TITLE:

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page           of

AGENCY CUSTOMER ID:
LOC #:

AGENCY

CARRIER NAIC CODE

POLICY NUMBER

NAMED INSURED

EFFECTIVE DATE:

               MARSH USA, INC.

2 3

OMNICARE PHARMACY OF TEXAS 1, LP
DBA AS OMNICARE OF FT. WORTH
14450 TRINITY BLVD., SUITE 200
FT.WORTH, TX  76155

25 Certificate of Liability Insurance

CN101226639
Boston

WORKERS COMPENSATION DEDUCTIBLE PROGRAM:

           POLICY DATES: JAN 1, 2023 TO JAN 1, 2024  (Coverage A)

               Policy #                     States Covered                  Carrier

             WLR C5074291A             AOS                              Indemnity Insurance Company of North America

             SCF C50743056               WI                                 ACE Fire Underwriters Insurance Company

                Limit:   Stat / $2,000,000/ $2,000,000 / $2,000,000

                Deductible:  $2,000,000

             EXCESS WORKERS COMPENSATION PROGRAM

             POLICY DATES: JAN 1, 2023 TO JAN 1, 2024       (Coverage B)

             Policy #                        States Covered                     Carrier

              WCU C50738188         DC, MA, OH , RI                      ACE American Insurance Company

              WCU  C50738279        CT, NC, NJ, VA                        ACE American Insurance Company

              COVERAGE A:  Workers Compensation:  Statutory

              COVERAGE B:   Employers Liability Limits: Stat / $500,000/$500,000/$500,000

              Excess Workers Compensation Self-Insured Retentions:

              DC, MA, OH, RI:      $500,000

              CT, NC, NJ, VA:      $1,000,000

COMMON POLICY CONDITIONS
A. Cancellation
    2. We [Carrier] may cancel this policy by mailing or delivery to the first Named Insured written notice of cancellation at least:
        a. 10 days before the effective date of cancellation if we cancel for non payment of premium



ACORD 101 (2008/01)
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

© 2008 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,
FORM NUMBER: FORM TITLE:

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page           of

AGENCY CUSTOMER ID:
LOC #:

AGENCY

CARRIER NAIC CODE

POLICY NUMBER

NAMED INSURED

EFFECTIVE DATE:

               MARSH USA, INC.

3 3

OMNICARE PHARMACY OF TEXAS 1, LP
DBA AS OMNICARE OF FT. WORTH
14450 TRINITY BLVD., SUITE 200
FT.WORTH, TX  76155

25 Certificate of Liability Insurance

CN101226639
Boston

1) General Liability Additional Insured - Where Required Under Contract or Agreement language per endorsement CG 2026 (04/13):

SECTION II - WHO IS AN INSURED, is amended to include as an additional insured:
Any person or organization for whom the Named Insured has agreed to provide insurance prior to loss as provided by the General Liability Policy but only to the
limit and scope of insurance agreed to by the Named Insured but only with respect to liability for "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and
advertising injury" caused, in whole or in part, by the Named Insureds acts or omissions or the acts or omissions of those acting on the Named Insureds behalf:

1. In the performance of your ongoing operations;
or
2. In connection with your premises owned by or rented to you.

2) General Liability Earlier Notice of Cancellation Provided By Us language per endorsement CG 02 24 10 93:

Number of Days Notice   90

For any statutorily permitted reason other than nonpayment of premium, the number of days required for notice of cancellation, as provided in paragraph 2. of
either the CANCELLATION Common Policy Condition or as amended by an applicable state cancellation endorsement, is increased to the number of days shown in the
Schedule above.

3) GENERAL LIABILITY CANCELLATION NOTIFICATION TO OTHERS ENDORSEMENT
In the event coverage is cancelled for any statutorily permitted reason, other than nonpayment of premium, advanced written notice will be mailed or delivered
to person(s) or entity(ies) by the Carrier according to the notification schedule shown below:

Name of Person(s) or Entity(ies):
Per the most current schedule maintained by Marsh USA, Inc. and furnished to Chubb no less than 45 days prior to the effective date of cancellation.

Number of Days Advanced Notice of Cancellation: 90









H
o

ld
e

r 
Id

e
n

ti
fi

e
r 

: 
77777

77707
07070

00777
61616

04557
11107

65736
12623

74442
07760

31557
27143

30073
76357

43641
33300

71636
33033

53332
00727

00067
30237

71307
54055

35323
74130

07477
14024

37677
30073

37201
27137

01220
76727

24203
57720

00777
77770

70007
07007

 
77777

77707
07070

00735
25677

11545
60007

67145
10603

31560
07664

00417
02765

73070
23326

25217
30000

71222
37343

06211
10713

22372
52173

11007
02322

73421
73110

07123
33624

30631
10071

32237
35216

21110
77756

16335
17655

40777
77770

70007
07007

C
e

rt
if

ic
a

te
 N

o
 :

 5
7

0
0

9
7

2
2
4

3
8

7
 

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
 DATE(MM/DD/YYYY)        

 01/04/2023

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. If 

SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to   the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this 

certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW. 

THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

PRODUCER

Aon Risk Services Northeast, Inc.
Providence RI Office
100 Westminster Street, 10th Floor
Providence RI 02903-2393 USA 

PHONE
(A/C. No. Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

(866) 283-7122

INSURED 15686Coverys Specialty Insurance CompanyINSURER A:

20079National Fire & Marine Ins CoINSURER B:

INSURER C:

INSURER D:

INSURER E:

INSURER F:

FAX
(A/C. No.):

(800) 363-0105

CONTACT
NAME:

Omnicare Pharmacy of Texas
dba Omnicare of Fort Worth
14450 Trinity Blvd.
Suite 200
Fort Worth TX 76155 USA 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 570097224387 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. Limits shown are as requested

POLICY EXP 
(MM/DD/YYYY)

POLICY EFF 
(MM/DD/YYYY)

SUBR
WVD

INSR 
LTR

ADDL 
INSD POLICY NUMBER  TYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

POLICY LOC

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO RENTED 

PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person)

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: 
PRO-

JECT

OTHER:

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

OWNED 

AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED

 AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS 

ONLY

NON-OWNED 

AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY ( Per person)

PROPERTY DAMAGE

(Per accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

(Ea accident)

EXCESS LIAB X

OCCUR 

CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE

EACH OCCURRENCE

DED 

$15,000,000

$15,000,000

$15,000,000

01/01/2023

Med Prof;  (Claims Made)
SIR applies per policy terms & conditions

UMBRELLA LIAB
A 01/01/2024005RI000029923

RETENTIONX

X

Each Loss

E.L. DISEASE-EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE-POLICY LIMIT

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

OTH
-

PER STATUTE

Y / N

(Mandatory in NH)

ANY PROPRIETOR / PARTNER / EXECUTIVE 

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N / A

WORKERS COMPENSATION AND 

EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

If yes, describe under 
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

AggregateEN040526 01/01/2023 01/01/2024
XS Med Prof (Claims Made)

Misc Med ProfB $10,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

Re: Contract: GLO-Omnicare contract number 22-008-000-C938; Pharmacist Professional Liability included

CANCELLATIONCERTIFICATE HOLDER

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVETexas General Land Office
Vetrans Land Board
Attn: Purchasing Department
P.O.Box 12873
Austin TX 78711-2873 USA 

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

©1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE 

EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 

POLICY PROVISIONS.



H
o

ld
e
r 

Id
e
n

ti
fi

e
r 

: 
77777
77707
07070
00777
61616
04557
11107
65736
12623
74442
07760
31557
27143
30073
76357
43641
33300
75272
77473
57776
00763
40423
30673
31307
50051
31723
74130
07473
50420
37673
30073
77205
67137
41220
76727
24203
57720
00777
77770
70007
07007
 

77777
77707
07070
00735
25677
11545
60007
66155
11603
30560
07675
11417
02774
62071
22227
35216
31100
70233
37343
17211
00702
23362
52073
10007
03322
62431
63111
07023
23724
21731
10071
23226
35317
30010
77756
16335
17655
40777
77770
70007
07007

C
e
rt

if
ic

a
te

 N
o

 :
5
7
0
1
0
3
3
6
5
3
5
0

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
 DATE(MM/DD/YYYY)        

 12/29/2023

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. If 
SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to   the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this 
certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

PRODUCER

Aon Risk Services Northeast, Inc.

Providence RI Office
100 Westminster Street, 10th Floor
Providence RI 02903-2393 USA 

PHONE
(A/C. No. Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

(866) 283-7122

INSURED 15686Coverys Specialty Insurance CompanyINSURER A:

20079National Fire & Marine Ins CoINSURER B:

INSURER C:

INSURER D:

INSURER E:

INSURER F:

FAX
(A/C. No.):

(800) 363-0105

CONTACT
NAME:

Omnicare Pharmacy of Texas
dba Omnicare of Fort Worth
14450 Trinity Blvd.
Suite 200
Fort Worth TX 76155 USA 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 570103365350 REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. Limits shown are as requested

POLICY EXP 
(MM/DD/YYYY)

POLICY EFF 
(MM/DD/YYYY)

SUBR
WVD

INSR 
LTR

ADDL 
INSD POLICY NUMBER  TYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

POLICY LOC

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO RENTED 
PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person)

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: 
PRO-
JECT

OTHER:

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

OWNED 
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
 AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS 
ONLY

NON-OWNED 
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY ( Per person)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea accident)

EXCESS LIAB X

OCCUR 

CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE

EACH OCCURRENCE

DED 

$15,000,000

$15,000,000

$15,000,000

01/01/2024

Med Prof;  (Claims Made)

SIR applies per policy terms & conditions

UMBRELLA LIABA 01/01/2025005RI000029923

RETENTIONX

X

Each Loss

E.L. DISEASE-EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE-POLICY LIMIT

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

OTH-
ER

PER STATUTE

Y / N

(Mandatory in NH)

ANY PROPRIETOR / PARTNER / EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N / A

WORKERS COMPENSATION AND 
EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

If yes, describe under 
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

AggregateEN040526 01/01/2024 01/01/2025
XS Med Prof (Claims Made)

Miscellaneous Medical 
Professional Liab

B $10,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

Re: Contract: GLO-Omnicare contract number 22-008-000-C938; Pharmacist Professional Liability included

CANCELLATIONCERTIFICATE HOLDER

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVETexas General Land Office
Vetrans Land Board
Attn: Purchasing Department
P.O.Box 12873
Austin TX 78711-2873 USA 

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

©1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE 

EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 

POLICY PROVISIONS.



X

28,000,000

LIQUOR LIABILITY INCLUDED

22667

A

01/01/2025 X

CN101226639-ALL-GAW-24-25

2,000,000

NYC-011212718-05

01/01/2024

INCLUDED

12/19/2023

X

7

               AUSTIN, TX  78711-2873

4,500,000

X

2,000,000

2,000,000

01/01/2025

See Page Two for Policy Numbers

1,000,000

COMPENSATION) WHERE REQUIRED BY WRITTEN CONTRACT.  WAIVER OF SUBROGATION IS APPLICABLE WHERE REQUIRED BY WRITTEN CONTRACT. 

RE: GLO Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 
TEXAS GENERAL LAND OFFICE, VETERANS LAND BOARD, ITS OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, AND AUTHORIZED AGENTS IS/ARE INCLUDED AS ADDITIONAL INSURED (EXCEPT WORKERS’ 

               DBA AS OMNICARE OF FT. WORTH
               OMNICARE PHARMACY OF TEXAS 1, LP

               FT.WORTH, TX  76155
               14450 TRINITY BLVD., SUITE 200

4,500,000

ACE American Insurance Company

X

               99 HIGH STREET
               MARSH USA, LLC.

               Attn: CVSCaremark.CertRequest@marsh.com Fax:212-948-5338
               BOSTON, MA  02110

XSL G47361576

N

               ATTN: PURCHASING DEPARTMENT
               PO BOX 12873

               TEXAS GENERAL LAND OFFICE
               VETERANS LAND BOARD

01/01/2024

SIR:  $500,000

X



               MARSH USA, LLC.

DC, MA, OH, RI: $500,000

Deductible: $2,000,000

Limit: Stat / $2,000,000/ $2,000,000 / $2,000,000

Policy #WLR C50742428 AOS

Carrier: Indemnity Insurance Company of North America

Policy #SCFC50742520 WI 

Carrier: ACE Fire Underwriters Insurance Company 

For any statutorily permitted reason other than nonpayment of premium, the number of days required for notice of cancellation, as provided in paragraph 2. of either the 

WORKERS COMPENSATION DEDUCTIBLE PROGRAM:

Policy #WCUC50742751 CT, NC, NJ, VA

Carrier: ACE American Insurance Company

A. Cancellation

1) General Liability Additional Insured - Where Required Under Contract or Agreement language per endorsement CG 2026 (04/13):

Excess Workers Compensation Self-Insured Retentions: 

CT, NC, NJ, VA: $1,000,000

CANCELLATION Common Policy Condition or as amended by an applicable state cancellation endorsement, is increased to the number of days shown in the Schedule above.

the Named Insureds acts or omissions or the acts or omissions of those acting on the Named Insured's behalf:

Policy #WCUC50742659 DC, MA, OH , RI 

    2. We [Carrier] may cancel this policy by mailing or delivery to the first Named Insured written notice of cancellation at least:

insurance agreed to by the Named Insured but only with respect to liability for "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" caused, in whole or in part, by 

EXCESS WORKERS COMPENSATION PROGRAM

COVERAGE A: Workers Compensation: Statutory

or

        a. 10 days before the effective date of cancellation if we cancel for non payment of premium

Number of Days' Notice   90

SECTION II - WHO IS AN INSURED, is amended to include as an additional insured:

POLICY PERIOD: 01/01/2024 - 01/01/2025 (Coverage A)

2) General Liability Earlier Notice of Cancellation Provided By Us language per endorsement CG 02 24 10 93:

Carrier: ACE American Insurance Company

POLICY PERIOD: 01/01/2024 - 01/01/2025 (Coverage B)

               DBA AS OMNICARE OF FT. WORTH
               OMNICARE PHARMACY OF TEXAS 1, LP

3) GENERAL LIABILITY CANCELLATION NOTIFICATION TO OTHERS ENDORSEMENT

               14450 TRINITY BLVD., SUITE 200

COVERAGE B: Employers Liability Limits: Stat / $500,000/$500,000/$500,000

2. In connection with your premises owned by or rented to you.

               FT.WORTH, TX  76155

1. In the performance of your ongoing operations;

COMMON POLICY CONDITIONS

Any person or organization for whom the Named Insured has agreed to provide insurance prior to loss as provided by the General Liability Policy but only to the limit and scope of 



               MARSH USA, LLC.

Per the most current schedule maintained by Marsh USA, Inc. and furnished to Chubb no less than 45 days prior to the effective date of cancellation.

Number of Days Advanced Notice of Cancellation: 90

(ies) by the Carrier according to the notification schedule shown below:

In the event coverage is cancelled for any statutorily permitted reason, other than nonpayment of premium, advanced written notice will be mailed or delivered to person(s) or entity

Name of Person(s) or Entity(ies):

               DBA AS OMNICARE OF FT. WORTH
               OMNICARE PHARMACY OF TEXAS 1, LP

               14450 TRINITY BLVD., SUITE 200
               FT.WORTH, TX  76155



   
 
Texas General Land Office 
Stephen F. Austin Building 
1700 N. Congress Avenue 
Austin, Texas 78701 
10:00 A.M.   Room 170 and Virtually by Zoom 
 
 
The February 11, 2022 meeting of the Veterans Land Board will be held in person at 
the address below and by video conference call, as authorized under Texas 
Government Code section 551.127. Access to the meeting by members of the public 
will be published in advance in the Texas Register in accordance with the Texas 
Open Meetings Act. Any member of the  public who wishes to address the Veterans 
Land Board on a matter within the authority of the Veterans Land Board should 
indicate so at the start of the meeting or during any public comment period. The 
Chairman may limit the length of time available to each individual. 
 
 

 AGENDA 
VETERANS LAND BOARD MEETING 

 FEBRUARY 11, 2022 
 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
1. Approval of the minutes from the October 28, 2021, Veterans Land Board 

meeting.  
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
2. Consideration and possible action on increasing the maximum allowable loan 

amount in the Veterans' Housing Assistance Program, and other matters in 
connection therewith.  

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
3. Consideration and action on request to Order for Sale land tracts that may be 

included in the next Online Bidding Forfeited Land Sale. 

________________________________________________________________________  
 

4. Consideration and action to set the next Quarterly Electronic Forfeited Land Sale 
bidding period to begin March 7, 2022 through April 25, 2022 at 5:00 p.m. 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
5. Notification and discussion regarding execution of GLO Contract No. 22-015-

000-D019 with MeridianLink, Inc. for loan origination software services for the 
Land & Housing Program. 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 



   
 

 2 

6. Notification of executed Management and Operations contract with ML-Cares for 
the Ussery-Roan Texas State Veterans Home in Amarillo – non-action item. 

 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
7. Consideration and possible action to extend GLO Contract No. 16-319-000-9882, 

Management and Operations Agreement with Texas VSI, LLC for the 
management and operation of the Clyde W. Cosper Texas State Veterans Home in 
Bonham, Texas. 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
8. Consideration and possible action on a contract for the management and operation 

of the Ambrosio Guillen Texas State Veterans Home in El Paso, Texas and 
extension of current GLO Contract No. 18-263-000-A913 with Texas VSI, LLC 
for same. 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
9. Consideration and possible action on a contract for the management and operation 

of the Watkins-Logan Texas State Veterans Home in Tyler, Texas and extension 
of current GLO Contract No. 16-318-000-9881 with Texas VSI, LLC for same. 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
10. Consideration and possible action to (i) renew the management and operations 

agreement with Care Inns of Texas, Ltd. (GLO Contract No. 20-050-000-B826) to 
manage and operate the Frank M. Tejeda Texas State Veterans Home in 
Floresville, Texas; or (ii) re-procure these management and operation services. 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
11. Consideration and possible action to (i) renew the management and operations 

agreement with Care Inns of Texas – Temple, Ltd. (GLO Contract No. 20-049-
000-B825) to manage and operate the William R. Courtney Texas State Veterans 
Home in Temple, Texas; or (ii) re-procure these management and operation 
services. 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

XXX 







1

Ashley Fletcher

From: Vendor Performance <vendor.performance@cpa.texas.gov>
Sent: Thursday, April 21, 2022 10:44 AM
To: Ashley Fletcher
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Vendor Performance Report - Published Omnicare Pharmacy of Texas 1 LP 

Purchase Order No.: EP020178

 

***This is an automated email.*** 

The following Vendor Performance Report (VPR) is now closed and is public record. Thank you for your 
work with the State of Texas. 

Best regards, 

Vendor Performance Program 

Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts Email: vendor.performance@cpa.texas.gov 

   

-Vendor Performance Report Summary- 

View Vendor Performance Report 

   

Report Date: 4/21/2022 

Date Published: 4/21/2022 

Report Grade: A 

Commodity/Service: Services 

Purchase Type: SPD Delegated 

Purchase Order No.: EP020178 

Purchase Order Amount: 13500000.00 

Requisition No: X0023829 

PO Date: 11/1/2021 

Class/Items: 26972 



2

Contract ID: 22-008-000-C938 

Report Submission Reason: Annual Review 

Delay Justification:  

Vendor ID: 17607165549 

Vendor Name: Omnicare Pharmacy of Texas 1 LP 

Vendor Contact Name: Elizabeth Haley 

Vendor Address: 14450 Trinity Blvd,  

Vendor City/State/Zip: Fort Worth/Texas/76155 

Vendor Phone: (401) 765-1500 

Vendor Email: Elizabeth.Haley@omnicare.com 

Agency Name: Gen. Land Off. & Vet. Land Bd. - 305 

Agency Address: 111 E 17th Street,  

Agency City/State/Zip: Austin/Texas/78774 

Agency Contact: Ashley Fletcher 

Agency Phone: (888) 479-7602 

Agency Email: Ashley.Fletcher@glo.texas.gov 

Performance Codes: 

Positive Performance Code(s) 

(305) Exceptional customer service response (309) Provided technical/training/set-up assistance when 
not required (310) Order or service completed satisfactorily 

(Code Descriptions:http://www.window.state.tx.us/procurement/prog/vendor_performance/vendor-
performance-codes) 

  

Resolution date:  

Grade Explanation 

Grade A: 



3

Contractor that delivered the good or service; that is the best value for the good or service because it 
complied with all the specifications and evaluation criteria identified in the solicitation documents; in full 
compliance of all material terms of the contract; and with complete or substantial customer satisfaction. 

Grade B: 

Contractor delivered the good or service that is the best value for the good or service because it complied 
with all specifications and evaluation criteria identified in the solicitation documents; in substantial 
compliance of all material terms of the contract or promptly remedied any instance of non-compliance 
with the material terms of the contract; and with substantial or adequate customer satisfaction. 

Grade C: 

Contractor delivered the good or service that is the best value for the good or service because it complied 
with all specifications and evaluation criteria identified in the solicitation documents; substantially 
remedied a majority of the in-stances of non-compliance with the material terms of the contract; and with 
adequate customer satisfaction. 

Grade D: 

Contractor delivered the good or service that was not the best value for the good or service because it did 
not comply with substantially all specifications and evaluation criteria identified in the solicitation 
documents; or in substantial non-compliance of material terms of the contract and failed to remedy a 
majority of instances of non-compliance with the material terms of the contract. 

Grade F: 

Contractor delivered the good or service that was not the best value for the good or service because it did 
not comply with all specifications and evaluation criteria identified in the solicitation documents; in 
substantial non-compliance of material terms of the contract and failed to remedy a majority of instances 
of non-compliance with the material terms of the contract; or in a manner that subjects the contractor to 
debarment. 

 

CAUTION: This email originated from OUTSIDE of the Texas General Land Office. Links or attachments 
may be dangerous. Please be careful clicking on any links or opening any attachments. 

NoCPABanner  



Texas General Land Office 
Contract Management Division 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Monitoring Report Review 

FY22 Enhanced R2 

 

 
Monitoring Report  

Screenshot Report 

BSO Alt ID Report 

USAS History Report 

Invoice Review Worksheet 

Project Manager Response 

 
 
 
 
 



FINAL Monitoring Report

Contract Company CM Monitoring
Started

Task Notes Cleared By Cleared On Workflow
Owner

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare
Pharmacy of Texas
1, LP

Webb, Genesis 05/05/2022
16:57:00

Question 01 – USAS
(GL History Report)

[Completed by
workflow owner :
Cruz Banda ] USAS
report ran by Clay.
Clearing step

Banda, Cruz 05/09/2022
21:08:10

Banda, Cruz

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare
Pharmacy of Texas
1, LP

Webb, Genesis 05/05/2022
16:57:00

Question 02 -
DocuShare File

2) a) Yes
       i) Yes
       ii) Yes
       iii) No
Duplicated docs in
docushare

Banda, Cruz 05/09/2022
21:26:32

Banda, Cruz

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare
Pharmacy of Texas
1, LP

Webb, Genesis 05/05/2022
16:57:00

Question 03 -
Contract Purpose

Yes Banda, Cruz 05/09/2022
21:26:53

Banda, Cruz

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare
Pharmacy of Texas
1, LP

Webb, Genesis 05/05/2022
16:57:00

Question 04 -
Contract Number

Yes, except the
CNG number still
refers to Texas
Solicitation.

Banda, Cruz 05/09/2022
21:28:26

Banda, Cruz

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare
Pharmacy of Texas
1, LP

Webb, Genesis 05/05/2022
16:57:00

Question 05 -
Contract Value,
Total Cost,
including
amendments,
Accumulative total
of all Work Orders

Yes Banda, Cruz 05/09/2022
21:29:09

Banda, Cruz

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare
Pharmacy of Texas
1, LP

Webb, Genesis 05/05/2022
16:57:00

Question 06 -
Effective Date

Yes Banda, Cruz 05/09/2022
22:25:09

Banda, Cruz

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare
Pharmacy of Texas
1, LP

Webb, Genesis 05/05/2022
16:57:00

Question 07 –
Original Exp. Date

Yes Banda, Cruz 05/09/2022
22:25:18

Banda, Cruz

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare
Pharmacy of Texas
1, LP

Webb, Genesis 05/05/2022
16:57:00

Question 08 –
Status

Yes Banda, Cruz 05/09/2022
22:25:30

Banda, Cruz

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare
Pharmacy of Texas
1, LP

Webb, Genesis 05/05/2022
16:57:00

Question 09 -
Purchase Order
Number(s)

2) a) Yes
       i) (1) Yes
       ii) (1) Yes

Banda, Cruz 05/10/2022
15:31:29

Banda, Cruz

Page:  1 of 6Generated On:  Thu Jul 28 13:49:03 UTC 2022

Confidential Information - Not for Distribution



Contract Company CM Monitoring
Started

Task Notes Cleared By Cleared On Workflow
Owner

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare
Pharmacy of Texas
1, LP

Webb, Genesis 05/05/2022
16:57:00

Question 10 – Total
Value, including
amendments and
DocuShare

Yes Banda, Cruz 05/10/2022
15:32:28

Banda, Cruz

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare
Pharmacy of Texas
1, LP

Webb, Genesis 05/05/2022
16:57:00

Question 11 – USAS
Report, Total
Value, POs

USAS History
$1,060,084.26
CLM  Total Value
13,500,000.00
BSO PO's
$3,500,000.00

Alvarez, Jason 05/16/2022
17:27:44

Banda, Cruz

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare
Pharmacy of Texas
1, LP

Webb, Genesis 05/05/2022
16:57:00

Question 12 –
Invoice Review

Invoice review
uploaded to CLM

Alvarez, Jason 05/18/2022
16:00:25

Banda, Cruz

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare
Pharmacy of Texas
1, LP

Webb, Genesis 05/05/2022
16:57:00

Question 13 - Post
to LBB

2) b) Yes,
      i) (1) Yes
      ii) (1) Yes
      iii) (1) Yes
      iv) Yes

Banda, Cruz 05/10/2022
15:38:39

Banda, Cruz

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare
Pharmacy of Texas
1, LP

Webb, Genesis 05/05/2022
16:57:00

Question 14 -
Federal Funds

No Banda, Cruz 05/10/2022
16:05:15

Banda, Cruz

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare
Pharmacy of Texas
1, LP

Webb, Genesis 05/05/2022
16:57:00

Question 15 – 1295
Form

2) b) Yes
      i) (1) Yes
      ii) (1) Yes
      iii) Yes

Banda, Cruz 05/10/2022
16:07:52

Banda, Cruz

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare
Pharmacy of Texas
1, LP

Webb, Genesis 05/05/2022
16:57:00

Question 16 –
Board Approval
Required

1) Yes
     a) No
        iii) VLB –
Meeting Agenda

      b) CLM
correctly reflect:
         i) Date of
meetings, Yes
10/28/21
         ii) Date of
approval, Yes
10/28/21

Banda, Cruz 05/10/2022
16:30:36

Banda, Cruz

Page:  2 of 6Generated On:  Thu Jul 28 13:49:03 UTC 2022

Confidential Information - Not for Distribution



Contract Company CM Monitoring
Started

Task Notes Cleared By Cleared On Workflow
Owner

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare
Pharmacy of Texas
1, LP

Webb, Genesis 05/05/2022
16:57:00

Question 17 - SB20 1) a. i. Yes
     b. i. Yes

Banda, Cruz 05/10/2022
16:31:47

Banda, Cruz

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare
Pharmacy of Texas
1, LP

Webb, Genesis 05/05/2022
16:57:00

Question 18 –
Email PM, lessons
learned and status
of project

PM Email Response
Received and
added to CLM.

Banda, Cruz 05/10/2022
16:33:53

Banda, Cruz

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare
Pharmacy of Texas
1, LP

Webb, Genesis 05/05/2022
16:57:00

Question 19 – LBB
(Compliance Team
Verification)

(1) Yes, to select
Yes, verify the
following:
(a) Current Value:
Yes
(b) Max. Value:
Yes
(c) Competitively
Procured:  Yes, not
competitively
procured
(d) Revenue
Generating: Yes,
not revenue
generating
(e) Purchase
Category Code:
Yes
(f) Number of
Bids:  Yes
(g) Subject within
CLM should
coincide to the
LBB: Yes,
Other; NIGP 269-72
is the only item
listed in BuySpeed,
prior to late 2021
we relied on
BuySpeed and
moving forward we
rely on the
solicitation
document which

Torres, Donna 05/06/2022
13:39:31

Banda, Cruz

Page:  3 of 6Generated On:  Thu Jul 28 13:49:03 UTC 2022

Confidential Information - Not for Distribution



Contract Company CM Monitoring
Started

Task Notes Cleared By Cleared On Workflow
Owner

includes 269 / All
items, 948-72 and
958-58 that in
addition have been
added to the LBB
posting.
Note: Uploaded
RFP_X0023829B-
KM Solicitation
Information to the
attachments
section for LBB,
Solicitation
information
document is a new
process that has
been implemented
since early 2022.

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare
Pharmacy of Texas
1, LP

Webb, Genesis 05/05/2022
16:57:00

Question 20 - Pull
the ALT ID BSO
report

BSO report
uploaded to CLM

Alvarez, Jason 05/12/2022
19:58:41

Banda, Cruz

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare
Pharmacy of Texas
1, LP

Webb, Genesis 05/05/2022
16:57:00

Question 21 -
Review Open
Events

Verified Fletcher, Ashley 05/10/2022
12:29:18

Banda, Cruz

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare
Pharmacy of Texas
1, LP

Webb, Genesis 05/05/2022
16:57:00

Question 22 –
Other Issues

No Banda, Cruz 05/19/2022
15:50:20

Banda, Cruz

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare
Pharmacy of Texas
1, LP

Webb, Genesis 05/05/2022
16:57:00

Question 23 –
Management
Review

CM
1. Request signed
minutes from Linda
for the 10/28/21
VLB meeting and
ask Ashley to add
to DocuShare
record
2. Update CNG
record with vendor
name, still refers to
solicitation

CT
1. Add 2/11/22 VLB

McBride, Kelly 07/01/2022
22:41:48

Banda, Cruz

Page:  4 of 6Generated On:  Thu Jul 28 13:49:03 UTC 2022

Confidential Information - Not for Distribution



Contract Company CM Monitoring
Started

Task Notes Cleared By Cleared On Workflow
Owner

meeting minutes to
DocuShare and
bookmark once
received from CM
2. Add 2/11/22 VLB
meeting agenda
and bookmark
(agenda in CLM
record)

CA: N/A

Monitor:  N/A

Other:  N/A

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare
Pharmacy of Texas
1, LP

Webb, Genesis 05/05/2022
16:57:00

Question 24 –
Contract Manager

Cleared. Webb, Genesis 07/19/2022
20:11:06

Banda, Cruz

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare
Pharmacy of Texas
1, LP

Webb, Genesis 05/05/2022
16:57:00

Question 25 –
Contract Tech

Added VLB
Agenda's &
minutes

Fletcher, Ashley 07/19/2022
19:37:35

Banda, Cruz

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare
Pharmacy of Texas
1, LP

Webb, Genesis 05/05/2022
16:57:00

Question 26 –
Compliance
Analyst

[Completed by
workflow owner :
Kelly McBride ] N/A

McBride, Kelly 07/01/2022
22:43:49

Banda, Cruz

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare
Pharmacy of Texas
1, LP

Webb, Genesis 05/05/2022
16:57:00

Question 27 -
Monitor

[Completed by
workflow owner :
Kelly McBride ] N/A

McBride, Kelly 07/01/2022
22:43:58

Banda, Cruz

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare
Pharmacy of Texas
1, LP

Webb, Genesis 05/05/2022
16:57:00

Question 28 -
Compliance Team
Lead

[Completed by
workflow owner :
Kelly McBride ] N/A

McBride, Kelly 07/01/2022
22:44:07

Banda, Cruz

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare
Pharmacy of Texas
1, LP

Webb, Genesis 05/05/2022
16:57:00

Question 29 –
Management Final
Review

Approved.  Verified
agenda and
minutes, and CNG
had the correct
vendor listed

Hopmeier, W Sage 07/27/2022
16:32:21

Banda, Cruz

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare
Pharmacy of Texas
1, LP

Webb, Genesis 05/05/2022
16:57:00

Question 30 - Run
the 'FINAL
Monitoring Report'
from CLM.

Running FINAL
Monitoring Report

Banda, Cruz 07/28/2022
13:47:59

Banda, Cruz

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare
Pharmacy of Texas

Webb, Genesis 05/05/2022
16:57:00

Question 31–
Finalize Monitoring

Finalized for
Posting

Banda, Cruz 07/28/2022
13:48:17

Banda, Cruz

Page:  5 of 6Generated On:  Thu Jul 28 13:49:03 UTC 2022

Confidential Information - Not for Distribution



Contract Company CM Monitoring
Started

Task Notes Cleared By Cleared On Workflow
Owner

1, LP Document for
Posting - Monitor

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare
Pharmacy of Texas
1, LP

Webb, Genesis 05/05/2022
16:57:00

Question 32– Post
to DocuShare

Banda, Cruz

Page:  6 of 6Generated On:  Thu Jul 28 13:49:03 UTC 2022

Confidential Information - Not for Distribution



 
 
 

 Texas General Land Office  
Contract Management Division 

 

 

 
 
 

Monitoring Screenshots 
FY22 Enhanced R2 

 
Contract Number 22-008-000-C938 

 
NOTES:  
*Refer to Guide for examples of the required screenshots 
*If screenshots are not available, add “N/A” below the screenshot header 
*You may have more than one screenshot on each page – space accordingly 
 
1. CNG: Contract Record 

 
2. CLM: Top Portion of CLM Record 

 



 
 
 

 Texas General Land Office  
Contract Management Division 

 

 

3. CLM: Contract Additional Fields 

 
 

 
 
4. CLM: Contract Family Field  
 with fields organized as noted in the screenshot 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 Texas General Land Office  
Contract Management Division 

 

 

 
 
 
5. DocuShare: Contract Bookmarks 
 

 
 
 
6. DocuShare: NTE from contract document (if in contract) 
 

 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 Texas General Land Office  
Contract Management Division 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
7. DocuShare:  Effective Date in the contract 

 
8. DocuShare:  Expiration Date in the contract 

 
9. DocuShare: If Form 1295 Required Date Acknowledged from form 

  



 
 
 

 Texas General Land Office  
Contract Management Division 

 

 

10. LBB – Full contract screen 
 

 

 
 



 
 
 

 Texas General Land Office  
Contract Management Division 

 

 

 
 
11. SB20 website  
 

 



PO # Purchase Order DateDescriptionOrganizationDepartment / LocationPurchaser Vendor Total Status
EP020178 ######## RFP for Pharmacy Services-Funds encumbrance for FY '22Texas General Land Office and Veterans Land Board09000/09002Kenneth MazeOmnicare Pharmacy of Texas 1, LP######## 3PPR - Partial Receipt



3PPR - Partial Receipt



USAS History Report
WO Vendor PO# Rel. Amount Fund Doc # Ref Doc # Invoice #

EP020178C938 0650 9CA89361 9CA89361 NOVEMBER$20,996.70OMNICARE PHARMACY 

EP020178C938 0651 9CA89361 9CA89361 NOVEMBER$42,198.86OMNICARE PHARMACY 

EP020178C938 0652 9CA89361 9CA89361 NOVEMBER$33,415.07OMNICARE PHARMACY 

EP020178C938 0653 9CA89361 9CA89361 NOVEMBER$38,473.62OMNICARE PHARMACY 

EP020178C938 0654 9CA89361 9CA89361 NOVEMBER$23,050.50OMNICARE PHARMACY 

EP020178C938 0656 9CA89361 9CA89361 NOVEMBER$28,800.35OMNICARE PHARMACY 

EP020178C938 0657 9CA89361 9CA89361 NOVEMBER$18,129.14OMNICARE PHARMACY 

EP020178C938 0660 9CA89361 9CA89361 NOVEMBER$20,915.40OMNICARE PHARMACY 

EP020178C938 0661 9CA89361 9CA89361 NOVEMBER$31,476.25OMNICARE PHARMACY 

EP020178C938 0650 9CA90186 9CA90186 DECEMBER $28,766.94OMNICARE PHARMACY 

EP020178C938 0651 9CA90186 9CA90186 DECEMBER $53,875.34OMNICARE PHARMACY 

EP020178C938 0652 9CA90186 9CA90186 DECEMBER $32,979.92OMNICARE PHARMACY 

EP020178C938 0653 9CA90186 9CA90186 DECEMBER $37,279.43OMNICARE PHARMACY 

EP020178C938 0654 9CA90186 9CA90186 DECEMBER $19,816.14OMNICARE PHARMACY 

EP020178C938 0656 9CA90186 9CA90186 DECEMBER $31,808.49OMNICARE PHARMACY 

EP020178C938 0657 9CA90186 9CA90186 DECEMBER $32,534.38OMNICARE PHARMACY 



USAS History Report
WO Vendor PO# Rel. Amount Fund Doc # Ref Doc # Invoice #

EP020178C938 0660 9CA90186 9CA90186 DECEMBER $18,216.38OMNICARE PHARMACY 

EP020178C938 0661 9CA90186 9CA90186 DECEMBER $30,650.24OMNICARE PHARMACY 

EP020178C938 0650 9CA91944 9CA91944 JANUARY 2$32,333.86OMNICARE PHARMACY 

EP020178C938 0651 9CA91944 9CA91944 JANUARY 2$49,600.31OMNICARE PHARMACY 

EP020178C938 0652 9CA91944 9CA91944 JANUARY 2$31,620.44OMNICARE PHARMACY 

EP020178C938 0653 9CA91944 9CA91944 JANUARY 2$40,124.56OMNICARE PHARMACY 

EP020178C938 0654 9CA91944 9CA91944 JANUARY 2$19,022.23OMNICARE PHARMACY 

EP020178C938 0656 9CA91944 9CA91944 JANUARY 2$30,082.05OMNICARE PHARMACY 

EP020178C938 0657 9CA91944 9CA91944 JANUARY 2$21,682.30OMNICARE PHARMACY 

EP020178C938 0660 9CA91944 9CA91944 JANUARY 2$16,092.02OMNICARE PHARMACY 

EP020178C938 0661 9CA91944 9CA91944 JANUARY 2$31,121.05OMNICARE PHARMACY 

EP020178C938 0650 9CA93341 9CA93341 FEBRUARY $23,625.76OMNICARE PHARMACY 

EP020178C938 0651 9CA93341 9CA93341 FEBRUARY $48,462.68OMNICARE PHARMACY 

EP020178C938 0652 9CA93341 9CA93341 FEBRUARY $32,261.38OMNICARE PHARMACY 

EP020178C938 0653 9CA93341 9CA93341 FEBRUARY $33,152.25OMNICARE PHARMACY 

EP020178C938 0654 9CA93341 9CA93341 FEBRUARY $20,178.82OMNICARE PHARMACY 



USAS History Report
WO Vendor PO# Rel. Amount Fund Doc # Ref Doc # Invoice #

EP020178C938 0656 9CA93341 9CA93341 FEBRUARY $21,592.30OMNICARE PHARMACY 

EP020178C938 0657 9CA93341 9CA93341 FEBRUARY $22,327.78OMNICARE PHARMACY 

EP020178C938 0660 9CA93341 9CA93341 FEBRUARY $14,747.74OMNICARE PHARMACY 

EP020178C938 0661 9CA93341 9CA93341 FEBRUARY $28,673.58OMNICARE PHARMACY 

$1,060,084.26

Wednesday, May 4, 2022

2:58 PM



Invoice Details Yellow - > 60 days Orange - Greater 
than 30 Days

Red - Check your 
information

Contract Number PO Number

Description Invoice # Date Services 
Rendered Invoice Date Diff Between 

Column D and E Date Paid Diff Between 
Column G and E Invoiced AMT AMT Paid

Difference between 
the Invoiced Amt and 
Paid

December-2021 TSVH 
Pharmacy Approvals

DECEMBER 2021 INVOICE 1/12/2022 1/12/2022                                        1 2/9/2022                               21 $285,927.26 $285,927.26 $0.00

Feb-2022 TSVH Pharmacy 
Approvals

FEBRUARY 2022 OMNICARE	 3/9/2022 3/9/2022                                        1 4/6/2022                               21 $245,022.29 $245,022.29 $0.00

NOVEMBER 2021 INVOICES NOVEMBER 2021 OMNICARE	 12/14/2021 12/14/2021                                        1 1/20/2022                               28 $257,455.89 $257,695.72 -$239.83

                                        -                                  - $0.00

                                        -                                  - $0.00

                                        -                                  - $0.00

22-008-000-C938 EP020178



Invoice Details Yellow - > 60 days Orange - Greater 
than 30 Days

Red - Check your 
information

Contract Number PO Number

Description Invoice # Date Services 
Rendered Invoice Date Diff Between 

Column D and E Date Paid Diff Between 
Column G and E Invoiced AMT AMT Paid

Difference between 
the Invoiced Amt and 
Paid

22-008-000-C938 EP020178

                                        -                                  - $0.00

Page 2 of 2



From: John Berkely
To: Cruz Banda (Texas General Land Office (GLO))
Cc: Cruz Banda
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] 2022 Monitoring - Questions Regarding Contract #22-008-000-C938
Date: Friday, May 6, 2022 2:57:35 PM
Attachments: image001.png

See below
 

From: Cruz Banda (Texas General Land Office (GLO)) <m-
3d5eb2f2mpqqil4dwbwff7lqbz4x2ih4qwcnc7y2bhcb7epr3b7a@app1mail.novatuscontracts.com> 
Sent: Friday, May 6, 2022 2:50 PM
To: John Berkely <John.Berkely@GLO.TEXAS.GOV>
Cc: Cruz Banda <cruz.banda@glo.texas.gov>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] 2022 Monitoring - Questions Regarding Contract #22-008-000-C938
 

Contracts System Message

 

2022 Monitoring - Questions Regarding
Contract #22-008-000-C938
Hello John,

 

Contract # 22-008-000-C938 has been selected for a monitoring review, and I wanted to get some
feedback concerning the contract, contract enforcement, and lessons learned. Please take a few minutes
to answer the following questions based on the information available at the time of this request:

 

· Does the vendor respond to communication and/or requests for information within a reasonable
timeframe?

mailto:John.Berkely@GLO.TEXAS.GOV
mailto:m-3d5eb2f2mpqqil4dwbwff7lqbz4x2ih4qwcnc7y2bhcb7epr3b7a@app1mail.novatuscontracts.com
mailto:cruz.banda@glo.texas.gov



 Yes, always

· Are invoices being submitted in accordance with contract terms or reasonable timeframes and against
the budget?

 Yes

· Have there been any discrepancies? If so, was there a mutually agreeable resolution?

 No discrepancies

· Overall, has the contractor’s progress and performance conformed to the contract requirements/terms?

 Yes, excellent

· Has the vendor met all required milestones? If not, what led to the deviation and what was the
resolution?

 Yes

· Based on your experience (to-date) with the vendor and/or contract, are there key takeaways or lessons
that can be applied to future contracts/projects of this nature?

 Excellent vendor

Finally, as part of CMD’s financial review, I have attached a USAS Expenditure Report for your review.
The report was pulled on 05/04/2022.

 

If you have any questions or concerns, please feel free to contact me. Can you please provide a
response within 5 business days?

 

I appreciate your assistance.

Thank you,

Cruz Banda

 

Omnicare Pharmacy of Texas 1, LP
22-008-000-C938

Base Contract

Message Subject 2022 Monitoring - Questions Regarding Contract #22-008-000-C938

Company Name Omnicare Pharmacy of Texas 1, LP

Company Type Private - Vendor

Contract Number 22-008-000-C938



Go To Company »

Go To Contract »

Go To Message »

Contract Type Services / General Services

Agreement Type Independent Contract

View email attachment to download file: USAS WOC938 $1,060,084.26 5.6.22.pdf

 

CAUTION: This email originated from OUTSIDE of the Texas General Land Office. Links or
attachments may be dangerous. Please be careful clicking on any links or opening any attachments.

https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/app1.novatuscontracts.com/Contracts/*company/c489bd0b-7429-48f3-81b8-280fb892b84a__;Iw!!KdvXE0Mailv0sVgoF6U!CsLHhld_uCFMIpYkO0ZXRppE2q5chlZSNewRQhDpgEaVL7RkAkWCXOv4cyy6KhSytoZLU5b9uRvLIExJxyTVhvIub5iFiDeeZu0JNdVVM2t5G_lz-HOH$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/app1.novatuscontracts.com/Contracts/*contract/653dc3d4-ba5c-49bd-a7e5-3bde49fec9c6__;Iw!!KdvXE0Mailv0sVgoF6U!CsLHhld_uCFMIpYkO0ZXRppE2q5chlZSNewRQhDpgEaVL7RkAkWCXOv4cyy6KhSytoZLU5b9uRvLIExJxyTVhvIub5iFiDeeZu0JNdVVM2t5G6Uto5ea$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/app1.novatuscontracts.com/Contracts/*contract/653dc3d4-ba5c-49bd-a7e5-3bde49fec9c6/messaging/6c82d8b0-2d81-435a-b0d5-9dcb28275235__;Iw!!KdvXE0Mailv0sVgoF6U!CsLHhld_uCFMIpYkO0ZXRppE2q5chlZSNewRQhDpgEaVL7RkAkWCXOv4cyy6KhSytoZLU5b9uRvLIExJxyTVhvIub5iFiDeeZu0JNdVVM2t5G15sFqid$


Texas General Land Office 
Contract Management Division 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Monitoring Report Review 
FY 2023 Enhanced Round 1 

22-008-000-C938 

 
Monitoring Report: 

Screenshot Report: 

BSO Alt ID Report: 

USAS History Report: 

Invoice Review Worksheet: 

Project Manager Response: 

 
 
 
 
 



Contract Company CM Monitoring 
Started

Task Notes Cleared By Cleared On Workflow 
Owner

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 01- Run a USAS Report Yes Sebek, Clay 11/16/2022 16:08:59 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 02 - Email PM, lessons 
learned, USAS report, and status of 
project

PM response received Sebek, Clay 11/18/2022 21:09:00 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 03 - DocuShare File Yes Sebek, Clay 11/16/2022 16:09:06 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 04 - BSO Alt ID Report BSO Alt ID uploaded to CLM Alvarez, Jason 11/21/2022 19:17:25 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 05 - Purchase Order 
Number(s)

PO EP021748 missing from CLM. 
Work order listed in extended 
accounting codes.

Alvarez, Jason 11/21/2022 19:40:13 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 06 - Total Value, including 
amendments and DocuShare

Yes Sebek, Clay 11/16/2022 16:09:27 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 07 - Contract Value, Total 
Cost, including amendments, 
Accumulative total of all Work Orders

Yes Sebek, Clay 11/16/2022 16:09:51 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 08 - USAS History, Total 
Value, POs

$3,024,612.82/ $13,000,000.00/ 
$7,000,000.00

Sebek, Clay 11/16/2022 16:39:53 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 09 - Invoice Review  Jason Invoice review uploaded to CLM Alvarez, Jason 11/21/2022 19:40:24 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 10 - Contract Group Yes Sebek, Clay 11/16/2022 16:42:16 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 11 - Contract Purpose Yes Sebek, Clay 11/16/2022 16:42:53 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 12 - Contract Number Yes Sebek, Clay 11/16/2022 16:45:06 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 13 - Agreement Type Yes Sebek, Clay 11/16/2022 16:45:38 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 14 - Agreement Link (if 
contract has amendment(s) or work 
orders)

Yes Sebek, Clay 11/16/2022 16:46:00 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 15 - Contract Type Yes Sebek, Clay 11/16/2022 16:46:26 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 16 - Location Yes Sebek, Clay 11/16/2022 16:55:12 Sebek, Clay

FINAL Monitoring Report



22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 17 - Description Yes Sebek, Clay 11/16/2022 16:56:16 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 18 - Legal Entity Yes Sebek, Clay 11/16/2022 17:00:10 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 19 - Term Type No Sebek, Clay 11/16/2022 17:01:56 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 20 - Effective Date Yes Sebek, Clay 11/16/2022 17:03:56 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 21 - Original Exp. Date Yes Sebek, Clay 11/16/2022 17:04:15 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 22 - Current Expiration 
Date/Renewal Interval (if applicable)

No Sebek, Clay 11/16/2022 17:06:07 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 23 - Notice Period Yes Sebek, Clay 11/16/2022 17:06:35 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 24 - Status Yes Sebek, Clay 11/16/2022 17:07:04 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 25 - Entity Referred to Yes Sebek, Clay 11/16/2022 17:08:05 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 26 - Work Order Yes Sebek, Clay 11/16/2022 17:19:38 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 27 - Program Area – Assign 
to CM

Yes Sebek, Clay 11/16/2022 17:20:08 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 28 - Program Area Project 
Number – Assign to CM

No - N/A Sebek, Clay 11/16/2022 19:30:40 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 29 - Insurance Yes i)Yes ii) Yes Sebek, Clay 11/16/2022 19:35:41 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 30 - Federal Funds – Assign 
to CM

No Sebek, Clay 11/16/2022 19:36:24 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 31 - 1295 Form Yes i) Yes ii) Yes iii) Yes Sebek, Clay 11/16/2022 19:40:34 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 32 - Board Approval 
Required - Assign to Kelly

Verified - agenda and minutes for 
10/28/21 are in DocuShare and CLM up-
to-date - KLM

McBride, Kelly 12/09/2022 18:12:45 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 33 - Procurement Method Yes Sebek, Clay 11/16/2022 19:48:28 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 34 - Legal Citation – Assign 
to Lance

The legal citation is correct. White, Lance 11/17/2022 21:00:57 Sebek, Clay



22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 35 - LBB Reason Code for 
10% change (if applicable)

N/A Sebek, Clay 11/16/2022 19:54:31 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 36 - Notice to Proceed No Sebek, Clay 11/16/2022 19:55:09 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 37 - Bonds No Sebek, Clay 11/16/2022 19:55:23 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 38 - Review Open Events Verified Sebek, Clay 11/16/2022 20:00:13 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 39 - LBB (Compliance Team 
Verification)

YES Hopmeier, W 
Sage

11/18/2022 22:11:07 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 40 - Vendor Performance 
Over $5 Million (Annual)

Yes, 
ii)	In CLM - Additional Fields, Vendor 
Performance, is there an entry for each 
year the contract was over $5M?
(1)	Answer: YES – FY22
iii)	Does DocuShare contain a copy of 
the relevant Vendor Performance 
Reports (VPR)
(1)	Answer: YES – FY22
iv)	Does the Vendor Performance 
Tracking System contain a record for 
this VPR?
(1)	Answer Options: YES – FY22

Hopmeier, W 
Sage

11/18/2022 22:14:09 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 41 - SB20 a. Yes/ b. Yes/ c. N/A Sebek, Clay 11/16/2022 20:07:21 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 43 - Ensure all files have 
been uploaded to CLM and 
appropriately named

Completed Sebek, Clay 11/28/2022 13:44:16 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 42 - Other Issues No Sebek, Clay 12/09/2022 21:07:22 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 44 - Management Review of 
Issues Identified by Monitor

CM - Review BSO Alt ID report and 
make sure both POs are listed in CLM
Ask PA is the FY22 PO can be closed 
at the point
CT - 	N/A
CA -  	N/A
Monitor:  USAS Report to the 
documents section of monitoring 
workflow
Other: 	N/A
Compliance Team Lead:  N/A
Notes for myself: Invoice Review, 
invoiced and billing paid in efficient 
manner

McBride, Kelly 02/13/2023 21:43:29 Sebek, Clay



22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 45 - Monitoring Issues for 
correction by Contract Manager

1. PO's have been added
2. IM sent to Claire McKinney to see if 
FY 22 PO could be closed. 

Sebek, Clay 02/15/2023 17:10:31 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 46 - Monitoring Issues for 
correction by Contract Technician

[Completed by workflow owner : Kelly 
McBride ] N/A

McBride, Kelly 02/13/2023 21:43:53 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 47 - Monitoring Issues for 
correction by LBB Compliance Analyst

[Completed by workflow owner : Kelly 
McBride ] N/A

McBride, Kelly 02/13/2023 21:44:07 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 48 - Monitoring Issues for 
correction by Monitor

Issues addressed under Contract 
Manager. 

Sebek, Clay 02/15/2023 17:11:46 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 49 - Monitoring Issues for 
correction by Compliance Team Lead

[Completed by workflow owner : Kelly 
McBride ] N/A

McBride, Kelly 02/13/2023 21:44:26 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 50 - Management Final 
Review

Approved
PA response to whether the FY22 PO 
can be closed  is found on the attached 
IM communication from 2/22/2023 – 
2/23/2023
CLM Messaging Subject: RE: 
[EXTERNAL] FY 23 Enhanced R1 
(Question # 44)

Hopmeier, W 
Sage

02/23/2023 21:34:07 Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 51 - Run the 'FINAL 
Monitoring Report' from CLM.

Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 52 - Finalize Monitoring 
Document for Posting - Monitor

Sebek, Clay

22-008-000-C938 Omnicare Pharmacy 
of Texas 1, LP

Lawrence, 
Katie

11/16/2022 16:08:31 Question 53 - Monitoring posted to 
DocuShare

Sebek, Clay



 
 
 

 Texas General Land Office  
Contract Management Division 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 

Screenshots  
FY 2023 Enhanced Round 1 

 
22-008-000-C938 

 
1. CNG: Contract Record 

 
 
 
2. CLM: Top Portion of CLM Record 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 Texas General Land Office  
Contract Management Division 

 

 

3. CLM: Contract Additional Fields 

 
 

 
 
 
4. CLM: Contract Family Field  
 with fields organized as noted in the screenshot 

 
 
 
 
  



 
 
 

 Texas General Land Office  
Contract Management Division 

 

 

5. DocuShare: Contract Bookmarks 

 
 
 
6. DocuShare: NTE from contract document (if in contract) 

 
 
 



 
 
 

 Texas General Land Office  
Contract Management Division 

 

 

7. DocuShare:  Effective Date in the contract 

 
 

8. DocuShare:  Expiration Date in the contract 

 
 

9. DocuShare: If Form 1295 Required Date Acknowledged from form 

    
 



 
 
 

 Texas General Land Office  
Contract Management Division 

 

 

10. LBB – Full contract screen 

 
 

 
 
 
 
   



 
 
 

 Texas General Land Office  
Contract Management Division 

 

 

11. SB20 website  

 
 



PO # Purchase Order Date Description Organization Department / Location Purchaser Vendor Total Status

EP021748 08/24/2022 Pharmacy Services-Funds encumbrance for FY '23 Texas General Land Office and Veterans Land Board 09000/09002 Sarah Bergmann Omnicare Pharmacy of Texas 1, LP dba Omnicare of Fort Worth $3,500,000.00 3PPR - Partial Receipt

EP020178 11/01/2021 RFP for Pharmacy Services-Funds encumbrance for FY '22 Texas General Land Office and Veterans Land Board 09000/09002 Kenneth Maze Omnicare Pharmacy of Texas 1, LP $3,500,000.00 3PPR - Partial Receipt



GL History Report
WO Vendor PO# Rel. Amount Fund Doc # Ref Doc # Invoice # Date

EP020178C938 0650 9CA98361 9CA98361 MAY 202$34,776.83OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220712

EP020178C938 0651 9CA98361 9CA98361 MAY 202$50,145.17OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220712

EP020178C938 0652 9CA98361 9CA98361 MAY 202$39,393.86OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220712

EP020178C938 0653 9CA98361 9CA98361 MAY 202$36,687.13OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220712

EP020178C938 0654 9CA98361 9CA98361 MAY 202$24,344.41OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220712

EP020178C938 0656 9CA98361 9CA98361 MAY 202$31,247.91OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220712

EP020178C938 0657 9CA98361 9CA98361 MAY 202$19,501.09OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220712

EP020178C938 0660 9CA98361 9CA98361 MAY 202$12,185.29OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220712

EP020178C938 0661 9CA98361 9CA98361 MAY 202$37,134.80OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220712

EP020178C938 0650 9QQ01411 9QQ01411 JULY 202$27,722.49OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220907

EP020178C938 0651 9QQ01411 9QQ01411 JULY 202$53,231.83OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220907

EP020178C938 0652 9QQ01411 9QQ01411 JULY 202$38,015.85OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220907

EP020178C938 0653 9QQ01411 9QQ01411 JULY 202$53,666.58OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220907

EP020178C938 0654 9QQ01411 9QQ01411 JULY 202$26,213.45OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220907

EP020178C938 0656 9QQ01411 9QQ01411 JULY 202$32,228.19OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220907

EP020178C938 0657 9QQ01411 9QQ01411 JULY 202$30,322.96OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220907



GL History Report
WO Vendor PO# Rel. Amount Fund Doc # Ref Doc # Invoice # Date

EP020178C938 0660 9QQ01411 9QQ01411 JULY 202$13,185.90OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220907

EP020178C938 0661 9QQ01411 9QQ01411 JULY 202$31,920.06OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220907

EP020178C938 0650 9CA96552 9CA96552 APRIL 20$30,321.89OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220601

EP020178C938 0651 9CA96552 9CA96552 APRIL 20$44,079.79OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220601

EP020178C938 0652 9CA96552 9CA96552 APRIL 20$36,276.01OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220601

EP020178C938 0653 9CA96552 9CA96552 APRIL 20$32,488.71OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220601

EP020178C938 0654 9CA96552 9CA96552 APRIL 20$17,684.84OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220601

EP020178C938 0656 9CA96552 9CA96552 APRIL 20$27,530.65OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220601

EP020178C938 0657 9CA96552 9CA96552 APRIL 20$16,708.95OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220601

EP020178C938 0660 9CA96552 9CA96552 APRIL 20$13,990.73OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220601

EP020178C938 0661 9CA96552 9CA96552 APRIL 20$32,287.39OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220601

EP020178C938 0650 9CA99937 9CA99937 JUNE 202$20,672.40OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220810

EP020178C938 0651 9CA99937 9CA99937 JUNE 202$41,877.51OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220810

EP020178C938 0652 9CA99937 9CA99937 JUNE 202$34,999.95OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220810

EP020178C938 0653 9CA99937 9CA99937 JUNE 202$50,080.33OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220810

EP020178C938 0654 9CA99937 9CA99937 JUNE 202$26,411.30OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220810



GL History Report
WO Vendor PO# Rel. Amount Fund Doc # Ref Doc # Invoice # Date

EP020178C938 0656 9CA99937 9CA99937 JUNE 202$25,745.78OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220810

EP020178C938 0657 9CA99937 9CA99937 JUNE 202$28,831.72OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220810

EP020178C938 0660 9CA99937 9CA99937 JUNE 202$13,703.94OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220810

EP020178C938 0661 9CA99937 9CA99937 JUNE 202$36,250.13OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220810

EP020178C938 0650 9CA91944 9CA91944 JANUARY $32,333.86OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220308

EP020178C938 0651 9CA91944 9CA91944 JANUARY $49,600.31OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220308

EP020178C938 0652 9CA91944 9CA91944 JANUARY $31,620.44OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220308

EP020178C938 0650 9CA89361 9CA89361 NOVEMB$20,996.70OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220120

EP020178C938 0651 9CA89361 9CA89361 NOVEMB$42,198.86OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220120

EP020178C938 0652 9CA89361 9CA89361 NOVEMB$33,415.07OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220120

EP020178C938 0653 9CA89361 9CA89361 NOVEMB$38,473.62OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220120

EP020178C938 0654 9CA89361 9CA89361 NOVEMB$23,050.50OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220120

EP020178C938 0656 9CA89361 9CA89361 NOVEMB$28,800.35OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220120

EP020178C938 0657 9CA89361 9CA89361 NOVEMB$18,129.14OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220120

EP020178C938 0660 9CA89361 9CA89361 NOVEMB$20,915.40OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220120

EP020178C938 0661 9CA89361 9CA89361 NOVEMB$31,476.25OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220120



GL History Report
WO Vendor PO# Rel. Amount Fund Doc # Ref Doc # Invoice # Date

EP020178C938 0653 9CA91944 9CA91944 JANUARY $40,124.56OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220308

EP020178C938 0654 9CA91944 9CA91944 JANUARY $19,022.23OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220308

EP020178C938 0656 9CA91944 9CA91944 JANUARY $30,082.05OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220308

EP020178C938 0657 9CA91944 9CA91944 JANUARY $21,682.30OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220308

EP020178C938 0660 9CA91944 9CA91944 JANUARY $16,092.02OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220308

EP020178C938 0661 9CA91944 9CA91944 JANUARY $31,121.05OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220308

EP020178C938 0650 9QQ03793 9QQ03793 AUGUST $31,141.62OMNICARE PHARMACY 20221011

EP020178C938 0651 9QQ03793 9QQ03793 AUGUST $48,602.33OMNICARE PHARMACY 20221011

EP020178C938 0652 9QQ03793 9QQ03793 AUGUST $40,940.06OMNICARE PHARMACY 20221011

EP020178C938 0653 9QQ03793 9QQ03793 AUGUST $13,840.43OMNICARE PHARMACY 20221011

EP020178C938 0654 9QQ03793 9QQ03793 AUGUST $28,360.38OMNICARE PHARMACY 20221011

EP020178C938 0656 9QQ03793 9QQ03793 AUGUST $26,518.89OMNICARE PHARMACY 20221011

EP020178C938 0657 9QQ03793 9QQ03793 AUGUST $24,049.06OMNICARE PHARMACY 20221011

EP020178C938 0660 9QQ03793 9QQ03793 AUGUST $15,092.99OMNICARE PHARMACY 20221013

EP020178C938 0661 9QQ03793 9QQ03793 AUGUST $34,810.32OMNICARE PHARMACY 20221013

EP020178C938 0650 9CA90186 9CA90186 DECEMB$28,766.94OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220209



GL History Report
WO Vendor PO# Rel. Amount Fund Doc # Ref Doc # Invoice # Date

EP020178C938 0651 9CA90186 9CA90186 DECEMB$53,875.34OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220209

EP020178C938 0652 9CA90186 9CA90186 DECEMB$32,979.92OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220209

EP020178C938 0653 9CA90186 9CA90186 DECEMB$37,279.43OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220209

EP020178C938 0654 9CA90186 9CA90186 DECEMB$19,816.14OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220209

EP020178C938 0656 9CA90186 9CA90186 DECEMB$31,808.49OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220209

EP020178C938 0657 9CA90186 9CA90186 DECEMB$32,534.38OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220209

EP020178C938 0660 9CA90186 9CA90186 DECEMB$18,216.38OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220209

EP020178C938 0661 9CA90186 9CA90186 DECEMB$30,650.24OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220209

EP020178C938 0650 9CA93341 9CA93341 FEBRUAR$23,625.76OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220406

EP020178C938 0651 9CA93341 9CA93341 FEBRUAR$48,462.68OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220406

EP020178C938 0652 9CA93341 9CA93341 FEBRUAR$32,261.38OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220406

EP020178C938 0653 9CA93341 9CA93341 FEBRUAR$33,152.25OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220406

EP020178C938 0654 9CA93341 9CA93341 FEBRUAR$20,178.82OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220406

EP020178C938 0656 9CA93341 9CA93341 FEBRUAR$21,592.30OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220406

EP020178C938 0657 9CA93341 9CA93341 FEBRUAR$22,327.78OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220406

EP020178C938 0660 9CA93341 9CA93341 FEBRUAR$14,747.74OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220406



GL History Report
WO Vendor PO# Rel. Amount Fund Doc # Ref Doc # Invoice # Date

EP020178C938 0661 9CA93341 9CA93341 FEBRUAR$28,673.58OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220406

EP020178C938 0650 9CA95226 9CA95226 MARCH 2$30,673.95OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220516

EP020178C938 0651 9CA95226 9CA95226 MARCH 2$48,076.86OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220516

EP020178C938 0652 9CA95226 9CA95226 MARCH 2$32,142.02OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220516

EP020178C938 0653 9CA95226 9CA95226 MARCH 2$48,241.19OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220516

EP020178C938 0654 9CA95226 9CA95226 MARCH 2$17,123.99OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220516

EP020178C938 0656 9CA95226 9CA95226 MARCH 2$35,435.30OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220516

EP020178C938 0657 9CA95226 9CA95226 MARCH 2$23,440.53OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220516

EP020178C938 0660 9CA95226 9CA95226 MARCH 2$14,925.24OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220516

EP020178C938 0661 9CA95226 9CA95226 MARCH 2$35,233.29OMNICARE PHARMACY 20220516

EP021748C938 0650 9QQ05278 9QQ05278 SEPT 202$32,264.05NEIGHBORCARE PHARM 20221107

EP021748C938 0651 9QQ05278 9QQ05278 SEPT 202$49,575.52NEIGHBORCARE PHARM 20221107

EP021748C938 0652 9QQ05278 9QQ05278 SEPT 202$42,457.42NEIGHBORCARE PHARM 20221107

EP021748C938 0653 9QQ05278 9QQ05278 SEPT 202$38,382.53NEIGHBORCARE PHARM 20221107

EP021748C938 0654 9QQ05278 9QQ05278 SEPT 202$24,460.26NEIGHBORCARE PHARM 20221107

EP021748C938 0656 9QQ05278 9QQ05278 SEPT 202$25,433.39NEIGHBORCARE PHARM 20221107



GL History Report
WO Vendor PO# Rel. Amount Fund Doc # Ref Doc # Invoice # Date

EP021748C938 0657 9QQ05278 9QQ05278 SEPT 202$30,596.20NEIGHBORCARE PHARM 20221107

EP021748C938 0660 9QQ05278 9QQ05278 SEPT 202$14,720.35NEIGHBORCARE PHARM 20221107

EP021748C938 0661 9QQ05278 9QQ05278 SEPT 202$36,124.57NEIGHBORCARE PHARM 20221107

$3,024,612.82

Wednesday, November 9, 2022

9:58 AM



Invoice Details Yellow - > 60 days Orange - Greater 
than 30 Days

Red - Check your 
information

Contract Number PO Number

Description Invoice # Date Services 
Rendered Invoice Date Diff Between 

Column D and E Date Paid Diff Between 
Column G and E Invoiced AMT AMT Paid

Difference between 
the Invoiced Amt and 
Paid

FY21 - SS & C Technologies VLB Annual 
Maintance fee for DBC Housing INV522583 1/29/2021 2/1/2021                               2 2/25/2021                              19 $21,888.00 $21,888.00 $0.00

September 2022 - TSVH Pharmacy 
Approvals	

SEPT 2022 OMNICARE 9/30/2022 10/10/2022                               7 11/7/2022                              21 $294,014.29 $294,014.29 $0.00

July-2022 TSVH Pharmacy Approvals	 JULY 2022 OMNICARE	 7/31/2022 8/10/2022                               8 9/7/2022                              21 $306,507.31 $306,507.31 $0.00

December-2021 TSVH Pharmacy 
Approvals	

DECEMBER 2021 INVOICE 12/31/2021 1/12/2022                               9 2/9/2022                              21 $285,927.26 $285,927.26 $0.00

May-2022 TSVH Pharmacy Approvals	 DECEMBER 2021 INVOICE 5/31/2022 6/14/2022                            11 7/12/2022                              21 $285,416.49 $285,416.49 $0.00

March-2022 TSVH Pharmacy Approvals	 MARCH 2022 OMNICARE 3/31/2022 4/18/2022                            13 5/16/2022                              21 $285,292.37 $285,292.37 $0.00

June 2022 TSVH Pharmacy Approvals	 JUNE 2022 OMNICARE 6/30/2022 7/14/2022                            11 8/10/2022                              20 $278,573.06 $278,573.06 $0.00

22-008-000-C938 EP021748, EP020178



From: Kathy Johanns
To: Clay Sebek
Cc: Claire McKinney
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] 2023 Monitoring – Questions Regarding Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 - Omnicare Pharmacy of

Texas 1, LP
Date: Thursday, November 17, 2022 8:52:29 AM
Attachments: image001.png

Answered.
 
Thank you,
 
Kathy Johanns
BSSW, CALM, CMC, CDP
Program Administrator
Texas State Veterans Homes
Texas Veterans Land Board
Kathy.johanns@glo.texas.gov
Office: 512-463-5383
Cell: 512-921-6938
 
“Where Honor Lives”
 

From: Claire McKinney <Claire.McKinney@GLO.TEXAS.GOV> 
Sent: Wednesday, November 16, 2022 9:25 AM
To: Kathy Johanns <Kathy.Johanns@GLO.TEXAS.GOV>
Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] 2023 Monitoring – Questions Regarding Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 -
Omnicare Pharmacy of Texas 1, LP
 
This one is for Omnicare. I’m not sure if John responded to the monitoring requests in the past or if
he forwarded them to Ping.
 
 

From: Clay Sebek (Texas General Land Office (GLO)) <m-
nx5qfon2zjzs3it7dmbfdpriunnrhxiw44ivbm3e6oozzswjbe5a@app1mail.novatuscontracts.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, November 16, 2022 8:39 AM
To: Claire McKinney <Claire.McKinney@GLO.TEXAS.GOV>
Cc: Clay Sebek <Clay.Sebek@glo.texas.gov>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] 2023 Monitoring – Questions Regarding Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 -
Omnicare Pharmacy of Texas 1, LP
 

mailto:Kathy.Johanns@GLO.TEXAS.GOV
mailto:Clay.Sebek@glo.texas.gov
mailto:Claire.McKinney@GLO.TEXAS.GOV
mailto:Kathy.johanns@glo.texas.gov
mailto:m-nx5qfon2zjzs3it7dmbfdpriunnrhxiw44ivbm3e6oozzswjbe5a@app1mail.novatuscontracts.com
mailto:m-nx5qfon2zjzs3it7dmbfdpriunnrhxiw44ivbm3e6oozzswjbe5a@app1mail.novatuscontracts.com
mailto:Claire.McKinney@GLO.TEXAS.GOV
mailto:Clay.Sebek@glo.texas.gov



Contracts System Message

 

2023 Monitoring – Questions Regarding
Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 - Omnicare
Pharmacy of Texas 1, LP
Hello, 

Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 has been selected for a monitoring review, and I wanted to get
some feedback concerning the contract, contract enforcement, and lessons learned.  Please take
a few minutes to answer the following questions based on the information available at the time of
this request: 

Does the vendor respond to communication and/or requests for information within a
reasonable timeframe? Yes
Are invoices being submitted in accordance with contract terms or reasonable timeframes
and against the budget?  Yes
Have there been any discrepancies? If so, was there a mutually agreeable resolution? No
Overall, has the contractor’s progress and performance conformed to the contract
requirements/terms? Yes
Has the vendor met all required milestones? If not, what led to the deviation and what was
the resolution? Yes
Based on your experience (to-date) with the vendor and/or contract, are there key
takeaways or lessons that can be applied to future contracts/projects of this nature? No

Finally, as part of CMD’s financial review, I have attached a USAS Expenditure Report for your
review.  The report was pulled on 11/9/2022. 

If you have any questions or concerns, please feel free to contact me.

To facilitate the process and meet monitoring deadlines, please reply by 11/22/2022. CMD
appreciates your assistance.

I appreciate your assistance. 

Thank you, 

Clay Sebek, CTCM



Go To Company »

Go To Contract »

Go To Message »

 

Omnicare Pharmacy of Texas 1, LP
22-008-000-C938

Base Contract

Message
Subject

2023 Monitoring – Questions Regarding Contract No. 22-008-000-C938 - Omnicare
Pharmacy of Texas 1, LP

Company
Name

Omnicare Pharmacy of Texas 1, LP

Company
Type

Private - Vendor

Contract
Number

22-008-000-C938

Contract
Type

Services / General Services

Agreement
Type

Independent Contract

View email attachment to download file: USAS Report C938.pdf

 

CAUTION: This email originated from OUTSIDE of the Texas General Land Office. Links or
attachments may be dangerous. Please be careful clicking on any links or opening any attachments.

https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/app1.novatuscontracts.com/Contracts/*company/c489bd0b-7429-48f3-81b8-280fb892b84a__;Iw!!KdvXE0Mailv0sVgoF6U!BvywJinhsAr7xjNDbH4l_dZz4yaMdRZCwF3JPrlFH80MArpccDt-r8hKzdjh74ZBy7MBzszrU-JSmzvrtfRkrfwslvHzS1wQNjYKVNMlRywqF16opxESug$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/app1.novatuscontracts.com/Contracts/*contract/653dc3d4-ba5c-49bd-a7e5-3bde49fec9c6__;Iw!!KdvXE0Mailv0sVgoF6U!BvywJinhsAr7xjNDbH4l_dZz4yaMdRZCwF3JPrlFH80MArpccDt-r8hKzdjh74ZBy7MBzszrU-JSmzvrtfRkrfwslvHzS1wQNjYKVNMlRywqF16Or54i9w$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/app1.novatuscontracts.com/Contracts/*contract/653dc3d4-ba5c-49bd-a7e5-3bde49fec9c6/messaging/fe03b583-f2b4-4ded-8302-3bb43e804271__;Iw!!KdvXE0Mailv0sVgoF6U!BvywJinhsAr7xjNDbH4l_dZz4yaMdRZCwF3JPrlFH80MArpccDt-r8hKzdjh74ZBy7MBzszrU-JSmzvrtfRkrfwslvHzS1wQNjYKVNMlRywqF15yuC0i7g$


1

Ashley Fletcher

From: Vendor Performance <vendor.performance@cpa.texas.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, April 12, 2023 11:11 AM
To: Ashley Fletcher
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Vendor Performance Report - Published Omnicare Pharmacy of Texas 1 LP 

Purchase Order No.: EP020178

 

***This is an automated email.*** 

The following Vendor Performance Report (VPR) is now closed and is public record. Thank you for your 
work with the State of Texas. 

Best regards, 

Vendor Performance Program 

Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts Email: vendor.performance@cpa.texas.gov 

   

-Vendor Performance Report Summary- 

View Vendor Performance Report 

   

Report Date: 04/12/2023 

Date Published: 04/12/2023 

Report Grade: B 

Commodity/Service: Services 

Purchase Type: SPD Delegated 

Purchase Order No.: EP020178 

Purchase Order Amount: 13500000.00 

Requisition No: X0023829 

PO Date: 11/1/2021 

Class/Items: 26972 



2

Contract ID: 22-008-000-C938 

Report Submission Reason: Annual Review 

Delay Justification:  

Vendor ID: 17607165549 

Vendor Name: Omnicare Pharmacy of Texas 1 LP 

Vendor Contact Name: Elizabeth Haley 

Vendor Address: 14450 Trinity Blvd,  

Vendor City/State/Zip: Fort Worth/Texas/76155 

Vendor Phone: (401) 765-1500 

Vendor Email: Elizabeth.Haley@omnicare.com 

Agency Name: Gen. Land Off. & Vet. Land Bd. - 305 

Agency Address: 111 E 17th Street,  

Agency City/State/Zip: Austin/Texas/78774 

Agency Contact: Ashley Fletcher 

Agency Phone: (888) 479-7602 

Agency Email: Ashley.Fletcher@glo.texas.gov 

Performance Codes: 

Positive Performance Code(s) 

(305) Exceptional customer service response (310) Order or service completed satisfactorily 

(Code Descriptions:http://www.window.state.tx.us/procurement/prog/vendor_performance/vendor-
performance-codes) 

  

Resolution date:  

Grade Explanation 

Grade A: 



3

Contractor that delivered the good or service; that is the best value for the good or service because it 
complied with all the specifications and evaluation criteria identified in the solicitation documents; in full 
compliance of all material terms of the contract; and with complete or substantial customer satisfaction. 

Grade B: 

Contractor delivered the good or service that is the best value for the good or service because it complied 
with all specifications and evaluation criteria identified in the solicitation documents; in substantial 
compliance of all material terms of the contract or promptly remedied any instance of non-compliance 
with the material terms of the contract; and with substantial or adequate customer satisfaction. 

Grade C: 

Contractor delivered the good or service that is the best value for the good or service because it complied 
with all specifications and evaluation criteria identified in the solicitation documents; substantially 
remedied a majority of the in-stances of non-compliance with the material terms of the contract; and with 
adequate customer satisfaction. 

Grade D: 

Contractor delivered the good or service that was not the best value for the good or service because it did 
not comply with substantially all specifications and evaluation criteria identified in the solicitation 
documents; or in substantial non-compliance of material terms of the contract and failed to remedy a 
majority of instances of non-compliance with the material terms of the contract. 

Grade F: 

Contractor delivered the good or service that was not the best value for the good or service because it did 
not comply with all specifications and evaluation criteria identified in the solicitation documents; in 
substantial non-compliance of material terms of the contract and failed to remedy a majority of instances 
of non-compliance with the material terms of the contract; or in a manner that subjects the contractor to 
debarment. 

 

CAUTION: This email originated from OUTSIDE of the Texas General Land Office. Links or attachments 
may be dangerous. Please be careful clicking on any links or opening any attachments. 

NoCPABanner  



1

Payton Ray

From: Vendor Performance <vendor.performance@cpa.texas.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, June 12, 2024 2:49 PM
To: Payton Ray
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Vendor Performance Report - Published Omnicare Pharmacy of Texas 1 LP 

Purchase Order No.: EP020178

***This is an automated email.*** 

The following Vendor Performance Report (VPR) is now closed and is public record. Thank you for your 
work with the State of Texas. 

Best regards, 

Vendor Performance Program 

Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts Email: vendor.performance@cpa.texas.gov 

   

-Vendor Performance Report Summary- 

View Vendor Performance Report 

   

Report Date: 6/12/2024 

Date Published: 6/12/2024 

Report Grade: B 

Commodity/Service: Services 

Purchase Type: SPD Delegated 

Purchase Order No.: EP020178 

Purchase Order Amount: 13,500,000.00 

Requisition No: X0023829 

PO Date: 11/1/2021 

Class/Items: 26972-Miscellaneous Drugs And Pharmaceuticals (Not Otherwise Classified); 
,26900-Drugs And Pharmaceuticals; 
,94872-Pharmaceutical Services; 
,95856-Health Care Management Services (Including Managed Care Services); 



2

Contract ID: 22-008-000-C938 

Report Submission Reason: Annual Review 

Delay Justification:  

Vendor ID: 17607165549 

Vendor Name: Omnicare Pharmacy of Texas 1 LP 

Vendor Contact Name: Elizabeth Haley 

Vendor Address: 14450 Trinity Blvd,  

Vendor City/State/Zip: Fort Worth/Texas/76155 

Vendor Phone: (401) 765-1500 

Vendor Email: Elizabeth.Haley@omnicare.com 

Agency Name: Gen. Land Off. & Vet. Land Bd. - 305 

Agency Address: 111 E 17th Street,  

Agency City/State/Zip: Austin/Texas/78774 

Agency Contact: Payton Ray 

Agency Phone: 5121111111 

Agency Email: Payton.Ray@glo.texas.gov 

Performance Codes: 

View the performance codes: https://www.txsmartbuy.com/vpts/17607165549/87869 

  

Resolution date:  

Grade Explanation 

Grade A: 

Contractor that delivered the good or service; that is the best value for the good or service because it 
complied with all the specifications and evaluation criteria identified in the solicitation documents; in full 
compliance of all material terms of the contract; and with complete or substantial customer satisfaction. 

Grade B: 



3

Contractor delivered the good or service that is the best value for the good or service because it complied 
with all specifications and evaluation criteria identified in the solicitation documents; in substantial 
compliance of all material terms of the contract or promptly remedied any instance of non-compliance 
with the material terms of the contract; and with substantial or adequate customer satisfaction. 

Grade C: 

Contractor delivered the good or service that is the best value for the good or service because it complied 
with all specifications and evaluation criteria identified in the solicitation documents; substantially 
remedied a majority of the in-stances of non-compliance with the material terms of the contract; and with 
adequate customer satisfaction. 

Grade D: 

Contractor delivered the good or service that was not the best value for the good or service because it did 
not comply with substantially all specifications and evaluation criteria identified in the solicitation 
documents; or in substantial non-compliance of material terms of the contract and failed to remedy a 
majority of instances of non-compliance with the material terms of the contract. 

Grade F: 

Contractor delivered the good or service that was not the best value for the good or service because it did 
not comply with all specifications and evaluation criteria identified in the solicitation documents; in 
substantial non-compliance of material terms of the contract and failed to remedy a majority of instances 
of non-compliance with the material terms of the contract; or in a manner that subjects the contractor to 
debarment. 

CAUTION: This email originated from OUTSIDE of the Texas General Land Office. Links or attachments 
may be dangerous. Please be careful clicking on any links or opening any attachments. 

NoCPABanner  



 

1 
 

 
Date:    June 25, 2024 
 
To:  Dawn Buckingham, M.D., Chairwoman 

Judson Scott, Member 
James Rothfelder, Member 

 
From:  John Barton, Director of VLB Bond Funds Management  
 
Subject:  Agenda Item 6 c - Consideration and possible action on resident room rates in the 

Texas State Veterans Home program. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the Board affirm and approve the proposed resident room rates 

in the supporting document effective July 1, 2024. 
 
Summary 
The Board has the authority to set room rates for Texas State Veterans Homes in accordance with Board 
Policy 110, Authority and Responsibilities, section 110.30, item D.   
 
The Board has made minimal changes to resident room rates over the past six years. The most recent 
changes were mirror changes in the Veterans basic per diem credit rate. These actions resulted in no 
out-of-pocket changes for Veterans and due to increases in the basic per diem credit rate, actual costs 
to Veterans are lower today than they were 10 years ago.   
 
Since 2018, room rates for non-veterans have not changed. At the February 13, 2024, Board meeting the 
daily room rates for the Tuskegee Airmen Texas State Veterans Home in Fort Worth did not specifically 
identify a private room, Alzheimer’s rate for non-veterans.  To ensure staff has Board approval to 
publish those rates, staff requests that the Board specifically approve the attached daily room rates.  
This action, if approved, will ratify the current non-Veteran room rates in all homes and add the Fort 
Worth private room Alzheimer’s rate.   
 
 
 



Texas State Veterans Home Program Room Rates Effective July 1, 2024
Veterans Amarillo Big Spring Bonham El Paso Floresville Houston McAllen Temple Tyler Fort Worth
Private Room, Non‐A&A 202.80    211.00    211.00   208.00     208.00     269.00     200.00      200.00   255.00    309.00      
Private Room, A&A 190.80    199.00    199.00   196.00     196.00     257.00     188.00      188.00   243.00    297.00      
Private Room, Alzheimer Unit, Non‐A&A 216.80    225.00    225.00   222.00     222.00     281.00     214.00      214.00   267.00    323.00      
Private Room, Alzheimer Unit, A&A 204.80    213.00    213.00   210.00     210.00     269.00     202.00      202.00   255.00    311.00      
Private Room, Medicaid 149.80    149.80    149.80   147.00     147.00     260.80     147.00      147.00   246.80    259.00      
Semi‐Private, Non‐A&A 149.80    158.00    158.00   155.00     155.00     ‐            147.00      147.00   ‐          259.00      
Semi‐Private, A&A 137.80    146.00    146.00   143.00     143.00     ‐            135.00      135.00   ‐          247.00      
Semi‐Private, Alzheimer Unit, Non‐A&A 163.80    172.00    172.00   169.00     169.00     ‐            161.00      161.00   ‐          273.00      
Semi‐Private, Alzheimer Unit, A&A 151.80    160.00    160.00   157.00     157.00     ‐            149.00      149.00   ‐          261.00      
Semi‐Private, Medicaid 149.80    149.80    149.80   147.00     147.00     ‐            147.00      147.00   ‐          259.00      
Non‐Veterans
Private Room 200.00    200.00    200.00   200.00     200.00     258.00     200.00      200.00   244.00    309.00      
Private Room, Alzheimer Unit 214.00    214.00    214.00   214.00     214.00     270.00     214.00      214.00   256.00    323.00      
Semi‐Private Room 147.00    147.00    147.00   147.00     147.00     147.00      147.00   259.00      
Semi‐Private Alzheimer Unit 161.00    161.00    161.00   161.00     161.00     161.00      161.00   273.00      
Semi‐Private Medicaid 149.80    149.80    149.80   147.00     147.00     147.00      147.00   259.00      
Semi‐Private Medicaid Alzheimer 149.80    149.80    149.80   147.00     147.00     147.00      147.00   259.00      
Semi‐Private Medicaid Hospice Alzheimer 149.80    149.80    149.80   147.00     147.00     147.00      147.00   259.00      



 

1 
 

 
 
Date:    June 25, 2024  
  
To:    Dawn Buckingham, M.D., Chairwoman  

Judson Scott, Member  
James Rothfelder, Member  

  
From:    Morris Karam, Attorney, GLO/VLB  
  
Subject:  Agenda Item 7 a - Consideration and possible action on proposed 

amendments to 40 Texas Administrative Code §178.5, concerning burial 
eligibility criteria in Texas State Veterans Cemeteries. 

  
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends the Board approve the proposed amendments to 

extend eligibility to Texas Military Forces members killed on state active 
duty or state training and other duty.  

  
Summary  
At its June 25, 2024, meeting and pursuant to the Texas Natural Resources Code, §164.005(f), 
the Texas State Veterans Cemetery Committee (“Committee”) shall vote to set guidelines for 
determining eligibility for burial in Texas State Veterans Cemeteries (“TSVCs”).  These guidelines 
direct the Board to determine burial eligibility and engage in related rulemaking.  These 
guidelines allow the Board to extend such eligibility to individuals not provided for in laws and 
regulations associated with the Department of Veterans’ Affairs National Cemetery 
Administration (NCA) to the extent permitted by law, or if such eligibility does not jeopardize 
future (NCA)-related funding. 
 
On June 12, 2023, the Governor signed the Bishop Evans Act (House Bill 90) to provide death 
benefits to the families of Texas military forces members killed on state active duty.  In 
response, at its October 19, 2023 meeting, the Board unanimously resolved to allow Texas 
Military Forces members killed on state active duty or state training and other duty to be 
interred in TSVCs.   
 
Contingent on the Texas State Cemetery Committee’s approval of these guidelines, staff 
proposes amendments to the Texas Administrative Code, Title 40, Part 5, §178.5.  This rule 
outlines eligibility requirements for interment in TSVCs.   



2 
 

 
Proposed amendments to this rule follow: 
 

 
For In order to qualify for all funding available from the USDVA through the State 
Cemetery Program, the Board, for each TSVC, the Board will allow for only the interment 
of veterans and eligible relatives as defined by the USDVA laws and regulations , as they 
may be amended from time-to-time.  In addition, the Board will allow for the interment 
of Texas Military Forces members killed on state active duty or during state training and 
other duty, as defined in Chapter 437 of the Texas Government Code. 

 
Staff anticipates the number of would-be eligible individuals is limited. Staff anticipates an 
approximate total cost of $1,100 per burial for each Texas Military Forces member. Costs for 
grave markers, which is currently $550, will be reimbursed by the Texas Military Department 
through a memorandum of understanding related to these interments. The Cost to the VLB will 
be approximately $550 per interment. 
 
If approved by the Board, staff will start the rulemaking process and submit the proposed 
amendments to the Texas Register for public comment. At the end of the notice period staff will 
seek final approval from the Board to adopt the proposed amendments, either as provided 
herein, or considering any appropriate, applicable public comment. 



 

1 
 

 
Date:    June 25, 2024  
  
To:    Dawn Buckingham, M.D., Chairwoman  

Judson Scott, Member  
James Rothfelder, Member  

  
From:    Morris Karam, Attorney, GLO/VLB  
  
Subject:  Agenda Item 7 b - Consideration and possible action on granting an 

easement to the City of Lubbock to maintain a water line on West Texas 
State Veterans Cemetery property. 

  
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends the Board approve granting the Executive Secretary  

authority to execute the below-described easement to limit maintenance  
and repair expenses.   

  
Summary  
Pursuant to authority under the Texas Natural Resources Code, §164.005(g), staff seeks 
approval to enter into an agreement with the City of Lubbock (“City”) related to the ongoing 
development of the West Texas State Veterans Cemetery. If approved, this action would grant 
an easement to the City for the domestic water service line on the Cemetery’s property.   
 
A draft copy of the easement is attached for reference. The accompanying diagram (referred to 
as “Exhibit A” in the draft easement) shows the location of the line on the property. As 
indicated, the easement is 15 feet wide along the property’s North/South access, and 10 feet 
wide when it turns into the Cemetery’s administration building. The water pipeline itself is eight 
inches wide. Pursuant to the easement, the Board will conduct a survey to document additional 
information.   
 
The easement gives the City free and uninterrupted access to the line for construction, 
maintenance, and repair purposes. It requires the City to notify the Board prior to performing 
any such work, save for in emergency situations. It further requires the Board not to construct 
or allow the construction of anything permanent in nature over the easement area and allows 
the City to remove such a structure. 
 
The benefit of the easement is that it allows the City to maintain and repair the line, as opposed 
to the Board, thus limiting the VLB’s operational expenses for the Cemetery.   
  
  



 

1 
 

 
Date:    June 25, 2024  
  
To:    Dawn Buckingham, M.D., Chairwoman  

Judson Scott, Member  
James Rothfelder, Member  

  
From:    Morris Karam, Attorney, GLO/VLB  
  
Subject:  Agenda Item 7 c - Consideration and possible action on accepting 

property from the City of Abilene for future expansion of the Texas State 
Veterans Cemetery at Abilene. 

  
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends the Board accept a general warranty deed conveying  

property to be added to the Texas State Veterans Cemetery (TSVC) at 
Abilene. 

  
Summary 
At its June 13, 2024, meeting, the Abilene City Council (City) approved donating approximately 
115.35 acres of City-owned land by general warranty deed to the State for the sole purpose, 
use, and benefit of the Board to enlarge its TSVC in Abilene.  A copy of the deed with a 
description of the property illustrated in Exhibit A follows this memo. The donation followed a 
request by the Board for land for future expansion of the TSVC.   
 
The deed reserves a mineral interest in the property on behalf of the City; however, the City has 
waived its right to enter the property and use the surface for the retained mineral interest.  In 
addition, the deed contains a reverter to the City should the Board, in its sole discretion, find 
the property or any part of it unacceptable or unsuitable for the TSVC’s purposes.  
Furthermore, the conveyance of the property to the Board is subject to certain permitted 
exceptions listed in Exhibit B of the deed, which is customary in real estate conveyances.  The 
deed has been reviewed by GLO and Board staff and determined to be consistent with GLO and 
Board rules and policies.   
 
Accepting this property would allow more eligible veterans access to the Board’s burial 
benefits. 
 
At its June 25, 2024, meeting and pursuant to the Texas Natural Resources Code, §164.005(f), 
the Texas State Veterans Cemetery Committee (Committee) shall vote to set guidelines to 
determine the location and size of TSVCs.  In part, these guidelines direct the Board to make 
determinations on and accept donations of land to expand existing TSVCs.  Contingent on the 



 

2 
 

Committee’s approval of these guidelines, staff recommends the acceptance of this general 
warranty deed. 
 
 



NOTICE OF CONFIDENTIALITY RIGHTS:  IF YOU ARE A NATURAL PERSON, 
YOU MAY REMOVE OR STRIKE ANY OR ALL OF THE FOLLOWING 
INFORMATION FROM ANY INSTRUMENT THAT TRANSFERS AN INTEREST IN 
REAL PROPERTY BEFORE IT IS FILED FOR RECORD IN THE PUBLIC 
RECORDS:  YOUR SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER OR YOUR DRIVER'S LICENSE 
NUMBER. 

GENERAL WARRANTY DEED  
 

STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     §   KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS: 
COUNTY OF JONES   § 
 
WHEREAS, The Texas Legislature has authorized the Veterans’ Land Board of the State of Texas 
to plan, design, operate, maintain, enlarge, or improve state Veterans’ cemeteries on land duly 
selected by the Veterans’ Land Board of the State of Texas for such cemetery sites; and 
WHEREAS, The City of Abilene, Texas was duly selected by the Veterans’ Land Board of the 
State of Texas to provide one such site for such use; and 
WHEREAS, The Veterans’ Land Board has requested the donation of certain land for the future 
expansion of the Texas State Veterans’ Cemetery in Abilene; and 
WHEREAS, The City of Abilene, Texas, as Grantor, is ready to make such land available to the 
Veterans’ Land Board of the State of Texas for the future expansion of the Texas State Veterans’ 
Cemetery in Abilene. 
NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that THE CITY OF ABILENE, 
TEXAS, a municipal corporation whose address is 555 Walnut Street, Abilene, Texas 79601 (“Grantor”), 
acting by and through its duly authorized officials, for and in consideration of Ten and No/100 Dollars ($10.00) 
and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, has 
GRANTED, BARGAINED, SOLD, and CONVEYED and by these presents does hereby GRANT, 
BARGAIN, SELL and CONVEY unto the STATE OF TEXAS, for the sole purpose, use and benefit of 
the Texas Veterans Land Board (“Grantee) whose mailing address is 1700 North Congress Ave., Austin, 
Texas 78701, the following described tract of land (the “Property”): 

Being a parcel of land consisting of approximately 115.35 acres out of the L. Landant 
Survey No. 17, Jones County, Texas and being out of a 202-acre tract recorded in Volume 
176, Page 542, Deed Records, Jones County, Texas, said 115.35 acres being more 
particularly described in Exhibit "A", attached hereto and incorporated herein for all 
purposes.   

IT IS EXPRESSLY UNDERSTOOD, ACKNOWLEDGED, and AGREED that Grantor hereby 
RESERVES and EXCEPTS from this conveyance all interests in and right to remove all oil, gas, sulphur, 
and other minerals, together with all attendant mineral rights, royalty interests, and development rights, 
together with any and all rights of leasing, exploration and development, if any, ("Mineral Interests") but 
specifically excluding minerals that form a part of the surface or soil such as sand, iron ore, gravel, uranium, 
coal, lignite, or limestone, and all rights appurtenant thereto. Provided further that Grantor waives the right 
to enter onto or use the surface of the Property for the retained Mineral Interests. 



TO HAVE AND TO HOLD, subject to the reservations and exceptions herein, the Property, together with 
all and singular the rights, improvements, and appurtenances thereto in anywise belonging unto the said 
Grantee, Grantee’s successors and assigns forever.   

PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that if the property conveyed herein or any part thereof is not acceptable by or 
ceases in any particular or reason whatsoever to be acceptable to the Veterans’ Land Board of the State of 
Texas in its sole discretion for the purposes indicated herein, the title to the property conveyed hereby shall 
upon notice of such unacceptable condition in duly recordable form to Grantor, automatically revert to 
Grantor; and PROVIDED FURTHER, that insofar as allowed by law, and except for any damages and costs 
proximately cause by acts of omission or commission of the Veterans’ Land Board, its agents, employees, 
or representatives, the Grantor will indemnify and hold harmless the State of Texas for use and benefit of 
the Veterans’ Land Board of the State of Texas, Grantee herein, its successors and assigns from any and all 
damages, costs, or causes of action whatsoever as a result of having held title to or used the subject property 
for the purpose of establishing, implementing, expanding, and/or operating a Texas Veterans’ Cemetery on 
part or all of the property conveyed herein.  

And Grantor does hereby bind itself, its successors and assigns to WARRANT AND FOREVER DEFEND 
all and singular the said Property unto the Grantee, its successors and assigns against every person 
whomsoever lawfully claiming or to claim the same or any part thereof.   

This conveyance is made subject to the covenants, conditions, reservations, restrictions, rights of way, 
easements, and leases which appear of record ("Permitted Exceptions") listed in Exhibit "B" attached hereto 
and incorporated herein. 

 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank; signature to follow]  



Witness my hand and seal of office effective this ________ day of _______________________, 2024. 

 

Grantor: CITY OF ABILENE, TEXAS 

 
 
 
By:    
 

Name:    
 

Title:    
 
 
Date of Execution: __________, 2024 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS                              § 
                     § 
COUNTY OF _________________    § 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ______________ day of _____________________, 20_____,  
 
by _________________________________________. 
        (Representative signing this document)  
 
 
 

_____________________________________________ 
                                           (Notary Signature) 

 
                       Notary Stamp 
 

  
Notary Public, State of    ________________________ 

 
My commission expires:  ________________________ 

 
 

 



Exhibit “A”  

 



 

  



Exhibit “B”  
 

PERMITTED EXCEPTIONS 
 

1. Oil and Gas Lease to John R. Jordan, recorded in Volume 564, Page 372, Deed Records of 
Jones County, Texas. 
 
2. Oil and Gas Lease to John R. Jordan, recorded in Volume 566, Page 820, Deed Records of 
Jones County, Texas. 
 
3. Terms, conditions and stipulations of Agreement between the City of Abilene, Texas and 
Schkade Brothers Drilling Co., recorded in Volume 573, Page 298, Deed Records of Jones 
County, Texas. 
 
4. Any and all matters as shown on survey dated July and August, 2010, prepared by James L. 
Williams, Jr. RPLS No. 4885, including but not limited to: part lying in Flood Zone A and Flood 
Zone B. 



 

1 
 

Date:    June 25, 2024  
  
To:    Dawn Buckingham, M.D., Chairwoman  

Judson Scott, Member  
James Rothfelder, Member  

  
From:    Morris Karam, Attorney, GLO/VLB  
  
Subject:  Agenda Item 7 d - Consideration and possible action on general review of 

VLB rules in Texas Administrative Code, Title 40, Part 5, Chapters 175 – 
178. 

  
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends the Board approve commencing a review of its rules 

pursuant to Section 2001.039 of the Texas Government Code through          
   publication in the Texas Register. 

  
Summary 
Section 2001.039 of the Texas Government Code requires the Board, as a State agency, to 
conduct a review of its rules every four years.  These rules are in Title 40, Part 5, Chapters 175 – 
178 of the Texas Administrative Code.  This review requires a determination as to whether to 
readopt, readopt with amendments, or repeal these chapters.  Readopting a chapter with 
amendments would entail changing or omitting its individual rules.   
 
Contingent upon Board approval, staff will conduct this review as follows: 
 
• Publish notice in the Texas Register (“Register”) of the Board’s intent to review these 

chapters to receive public comment; 
• After at least 30 days, conclude its review and publish notice in the Register of the Board’s 

determination on adopting, adopting with amendments, or repealing these chapters.  
During this period, staff will review individual rules, take into consideration any public 
comment, and make determinations on changing or repealing them; 

• Provide Board members for review any proposed changes and/or repeals of individual rules; 
and then 

• Request approval from the Board to publish these proposed changes in the Register for 
public comment. 

 
Proposed changes to rules may be substantial, to improve their efficacy and to reflect current 
Board practices and policies.  Likewise, proposed changes may be non-substantial, to improve 
the rules’ readability. Rule repeals would be proposed should they be determined to be 
obsolete or hold no current purpose. 
 



 

1 
 

Date:  June 25, 2024 
 
To:  Dawn Buckingham, M.D., Chairwoman 

Judson Scott, Member 
James Rothfelder, Member 

 
From:   Ray Minjarez, Director of Construction Services  
 
Subject:   Agenda Item 8 a – Report on Construction Services. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  This agenda item requires no action from the Board. 
 
Houston Roof: 
Kitchell initiated additional roof repairs as of May 13, 2024. Since new repairs began there have 
been multiple rainstorms but only one new leak reported, and it was fixed within 24 hours. Repairs 
were reported to be complete as of June 4, 2024. GLO is coordinating final inspection with Kitchell 
week of July 1, 2024.  
 
Fort Worth Construction: 
Bartlett-Cocke General Contractor provided a substantial completion date of June 22, 2024.  They 
now indicate substantial completion is projected for October 2, 2024. Extension of substantial 
completion date is attributed to procurement of fire and smoke dampers, quality control findings 
and the general contractor’s inability to secure sufficient subcontractors to complete work in the 
home. GLO met with Bartlett-Cocke General Contractor leadership on June 18, 2024, to express 
concerns regarding continued project delays and quality control. 
 
This significant proposed change in completion shifts the timeline for furnishing the building to 
November 2024; safety inspections into December 2024 or January 2025; and initial resident 
occupancy and HHSC/VA inspections into February 2025 or March 2025. 
 



 

 

1 
 

Date:    June 25, 2024 
 
To:    Dawn Buckingham, M.D., Chairwoman 

Judson Scott, Member 
James Rothfelder, Member 

 
From:     Darren Fitz Gerald, Assistant Executive Secretary 
 
Subject:    Agenda Item 9 a - Report on Veterans Land Board operations. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  This agenda item requires no action from the Board. 
 
Promotions: 
 
Bobby Breeden from Program Manager overseeing OSRs in Veterans Homes to Director V 
overseeing Texas State Veterans Homes division. 
Katina Herring from Junior Loan Processor to Loan Processor 
 
Veterans Appreciation Day and Memorial Day 
On May 7th Chairwoman Buckingham led a Veteran Appreciation Day where all Veterans employed 
by the General Land Office and Veterans Land Board were recognized.  It was a successful event that 
coincided with national Military Appreciation Month.   
 
On May 27th the staff and supporting community groups conducted successful Memorial Day 
ceremonies at each Cemetery and each Veteran Home.  The staff appreciates the Board for 
attending the various ceremonies at the cemeteries. 
 
Continuing Education Course Approved for Texas Real Estate Professionals 
On June 12, the Texas Real Estate Commission approved a course to educate Texas real estate 
professionals on VLB loan programs. Annually real estate licensees must complete 18 hours of 
continuing education.  10 of those hours are electives. The VLB course offers a free 1-hour course 
and titled, “Veterans Land Board (VLB) Free Course on Home and Land Loans.”  The Marketing and 
Outreach Team will now promote and teach this class. 
 
Texas State Veterans Cemetery Committee: 
The committee will meet on June 25, 2024, at 10:00 A.M. in Room 107 of the Stephen F. Austin 
Building.  The meeting is prior to the already scheduled Special Called Meeting of the Texas 
Veterans Land Board.  Once the Texas State Veterans Cemetery Committee completes its business 
and adjourns, the VLB Board meeting will begin at 11:00 A.M. 
 
 



2 

2 
 

The powers of the committee include: 
(1)  establish the guidelines for determining: 

(A)  the location and size of veterans cemeteries; and 
(B)  the eligibility for burial in a veterans cemetery; and 

(2)  select up to seven locations across the state for veterans’ cemeteries. 
 
The committee consists of the three members of the Texas Veterans Land Board, the chair of the 
Texas Veterans Commission, and two representatives of the Veterans community selected by the 
chair of the Texas Veterans Commission. 
 
The current members of the committee are: 

Dawn Buckingham, M.D., Chairwoman of the Texas Veterans Land Board 
Laura Koerner, Chairwoman, Texas Veterans Commission, U.S. Navy Veteran 
Kevin Barber, Member, Texas Veterans Commission, U.S. Army Veteran 
Kitty Meyers, Citizen Member, U.S. Air Force Veteran 
James Rothfelder, Member, Texas Veterans Land Board 
Jud Scott, Member, Texas Veterans Land Board, U.S. Navy Veteran 

 
Upcoming Dates of Importance: 
 
July 30, 2024 – Special Called meeting of the Texas Veterans Land Board, Stephen F. Austin Building, 
10:00 A.M. 
 
November 11, 2024 – Veterans Day – events at each Veteran Home and Veteran Cemetery 
 
November 12, 2024 – Special Called meeting of the Texas Veterans Land Board, Stephen F. Austin 
Building, 10:00 A.M. 
 
February 4, 2025 - Special Called meeting of the Texas Veterans Land Board, Stephen F. Austin 
Building, 10:00 A.M. 
 
May 13, 2025 – Special Called meeting of the Texas Veterans Land Board, Stephen F. Austin 
Building, 10:00 A.M. 
 
August 5, 2025 - Special Called meeting of the Texas Veterans Land Board, Stephen F. Austin 
Building, 10:00 A.M. 


	.1 Board Binder cover sheet
	1 VLB Board Agenda June 25, 2024
	1.1 Chaplain Rabbi Betcher Bio
	Agenda item 2 VLB Minutes for Apr 30 2024
	II. EXECUTIVE SESSION   10:38 A.M. – 10:46 A.M.
	III. RECONVENE REGULAR AGENDA  10:50 A.M.

	Agenda item 5 a memo Swap Authority
	Agenda Item 5 a supporting doc Swap Authority Resolution
	1. Authorization of Bond Enhancement Agreements.
	(a) Delegation.  Pursuant to Section 161.074(b) of Chapter 161 and Section 162.052(b) of Chapter 162, each Authorized Representative is hereby severally authorized to act on behalf of the Board in accepting and executing new or amended confirmations (...
	(b) Determination as Bond Enhancement Agreement.  The Board hereby determines that any such Bond Enhancement Agreement entered into by an Authorized Representative pursuant to this Resolution is necessary or appropriate to place the Board’s obligation...
	(c) Maximum Term.  The maximum term of each Bond Enhancement Agreement authorized by this Resolution shall not exceed the maturity date of the then outstanding related Bonds or the related Bonds anticipated to be issued in the future, as applicable.
	(d) Notional Amount.  The notional amount of any Bond Enhancement Agreement authorized by this Resolution shall not at any time exceed the aggregate principal amount of the then outstanding related Bonds or related Bonds anticipated to be issued in th...
	(e) Early Termination. No Confirmation entered into pursuant to this Resolution shall contain early termination provisions at the option of the counterparty except upon the occurrence of an event of default or a termination event, as prescribed in the...
	(f) Maximum Rate.  No Bond Enhancement Agreement authorized by this Resolution shall be payable at a rate greater than the maximum rate allowed by law.

	2. Authorization for Specific Transactions.  In addition to the authority otherwise granted in this Resolution, each Authorized Representative is hereby severally granted continuing authority to enter into the following specific transactions pursuant ...
	(a) Floating-to-fixed rate interest rate swap transactions under which the Board would pay an amount based upon a fixed rate of interest and the counterparty would pay an amount based upon a variable rate of interest with respect to Bonds then outstan...
	(b) Fixed-to-floating rate interest rate swap transactions under which the Board would pay an amount based upon a variable rate of interest and the counterparty would pay an amount based upon a fixed rate of interest, with respect to Bonds then outsta...
	(c) Basis swap transactions under which the Board would pay a variable rate of interest computed on one basis, such as the Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association Municipal Swap Index, and the counterparty would pay a variable rate of in...
	(d) Interest rate locks, caps, floors, and collars for the purpose of limiting the exposure of the Board to adverse changes in interest rates in connection with outstanding Bonds or additional Bonds anticipated to be issued in the future.  Prior to an...

	3. Bond Enhancement Agreements in Connection with Anticipated Bonds.
	(a) Requirement to Terminate or Modify Agreement for Non-issuance of Anticipated Bonds.  In the event a Bond Enhancement Agreement is entered into under this Resolution in connection with the anticipated issuance of Bonds and such Bonds are not actual...
	(b) Requirement to Terminate or Modify Agreement for Notional Amount in Excess of Anticipated Bonds as Issued. In the event a Bond Enhancement Agreement is entered into under this Resolution in connection with the anticipated issuance of Bonds and suc...
	(c) Board Recognition of Anticipated Bonds.  No Bond Enhancement Agreement may be entered into under this Resolution with respect to the Board’s obligations under an anticipated future issuance of Bonds unless such anticipated issuance of future debt ...
	(d) Required Description of Anticipated Bonds.  To the extent that an Authorized Representative other than the Chairwoman of the Board enters into an Bond Enhancement Agreement under this Resolution with respect to the Board’s obligations under an ant...
	(e) Board’s Statement of Intent to Issue Advance Refunding Debt for Savings.  If the conditions in this Resolution are otherwise satisfied, the Board hereby authorizes each Authorized Representative to enter into a Bond Enhancement Agreement in connec...

	4. Master Agreements.
	(a) New Master Agreements.  Each Authorized Representative is hereby severally authorized to enter into ISDA Master Agreements and Schedules thereto (the “New Master Agreements”) with counterparties satisfying the ratings requirements of the Board’s D...
	(b) Amendments to Master Agreements.  Each Authorized Representative is hereby further severally authorized to enter into amendments to the Master Agreements to allow Confirmations thereunder to be issued and entered into with respect to any then outs...

	5. ISDA Protocols.  Each Authorized Representative is hereby severally authorized to take such actions as are necessary or desirable as an Authorized Representative determines in his judgment are appropriate to enable the Board or any of its counterpa...
	6. Bond Retirement Change.  If a proposed “Bond Retirement Change” occurs with respect to an interest rate swap transaction (each, a “Transaction”) of the Board, each Authorized Representative is hereby severally authorized to take such actions in con...
	7. Authorization of Additional Acts.  The Authorized Representatives are hereby severally authorized and directed from time to time and at any time, in the name and on behalf of the Board, to do and perform all acts and things and to execute, deliver,...
	8. Open Meeting.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this resolution was adopted and approved was open to the public as required by law and public notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as r...
	9. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect on and as of the date hereof, and shall supersede and replace in its entirety the resolution of the same title adopted by the Board on July 25, 2023.  The delegation to each Authori...

	Agenda item 5 b memo Liquidity Authority
	Agenda Item 5 b supporting doc Liquidity Agreement Resolution
	1. Incorporation of Recitals.  All of the above recitals are found and determined to be true and correct and are incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.
	2. Approval of New Liquidity Facilities.  Each Authorized Representative is hereby severally authorized to act on behalf of the Board in obtaining and executing New Liquidity Facilities (i) for any Series 2024 Bonds issued as Variable Rate Bonds, (ii)...
	3. Amendment of Resolutions.  In connection with any substitution pursuant to this Resolution, on the substitution date the bond resolution for the related Variable Rate Bonds shall, in the discretion of an Authorized Representative, be deemed to be a...
	4. Extension of Prior Liquidity Facilities.  Each Authorized Representative is hereby severally authorized to act on behalf of the Board in connection with the extension of the term of any Prior Liquidity Facility, the terms of such extension subject ...
	5. Authorization and Ratification of Additional Acts.  The Authorized Representatives are hereby severally authorized and directed from time to time and at any time, in the name and on behalf of the Board, to do and perform or cause to be done and per...
	6. Open Meeting.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this resolution was adopted and approved was open to the public as required by law and public notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as r...
	7. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect on and as of the date hereof, and shall supersede and replace in its entirety the resolution of the same title adopted by the Board on July 25, 2023.

	Agenda item 5 c memo Taxable Bond Authority
	Agenda Item 5 c supporting doc Taxable Bond Resolution
	ARTICLE I   DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PROVISIONS OF GENERAL APPLICATION
	Section 1.1. Definitions.
	(i) “This Resolution” means this resolution as originally adopted or as it may from time to time be supplemented or amended by one or more resolutions supplemental hereto adopted pursuant to the applicable provisions hereof.
	(ii) All references in this Resolution to designated “Articles,” “Sections” and other subdivisions are to the designated Articles, Sections and other subdivisions of this Resolution as originally adopted.  The words “herein,” “hereof” and “hereunder” ...
	(iii) The terms defined in this Article have the meanings assigned to them in this Article and include the plural as well as the singular.  Reference to any named Person means that party and its successors and assigns.
	(b) The following terms have the meanings assigned to them below whenever they are used in this Resolution:
	Section 1.2. Effect of Headings and Table of Contents.  The Article and Section headings herein and the Table of Contents are for convenience only and shall not affect the construction hereof.

	ARTICLE II   AUTHORIZATION AND TERMS OF SERIES 2024 BONDS; ISSUANCE AND FORM OF SERIES 2024 BONDS
	Section 2.1. Authorization of Series 2024 Bonds.  To provide money for the purpose of augmenting Fund II, the Series 2024 Bonds are hereby authorized and shall be issued, in one or more series and installments, as general obligations of the State in t...
	Section 2.2. Form, Maturities, Interest Rates and Numbering. Each series of Series 2024 Bonds authorized hereby initially shall be dated as set forth in the related Pricing Certificate or Purchase Contract, and shall be issued and delivered in the for...
	Section 2.3. Execution.  Each of the Series 2024 Bonds shall be executed by and on behalf of the Board as general obligations of the State with the manual or facsimile signatures of the Chairwoman of the Board and the Executive Secretary of the Board,...
	Section 2.4. Approval by Attorney General; Registration by Comptroller.  After any Initial Series 2024 Bonds shall have been executed, it shall be the duty of the Authorized Representatives to deliver such Series 2024 Bonds to the Attorney General for...
	Section 2.5. Form of Bond. The form of all Weekly Rate Bonds, including the forms of (i) Comptroller’s Registration Certificate to accompany each Initial Series 2024 Bond that is a Weekly Rate Bond, (ii) Registrar’s Authentication Certificate, and (ii...
	Section 2.6. Registration, Transfer and Exchange.
	(b) The entity in whose name any Series 2024 Bond shall be registered in the related Bond Register at any time shall be treated as the absolute owner thereof for all purposes of this Resolution, whether or not such Series 2024 Bond shall be overdue, a...
	(c) Unless otherwise set forth in a Pricing Certificate or Purchase Contract, the Board hereby appoints the Comptroller in Austin, Texas, or any banking institution named in accordance with the provisions of Section 5.2(a) hereof (in either case, the ...
	(d) Each Series 2024 Bond may be converted into and exchanged for fully registered bonds in the manner set forth herein.  Each Series 2024 Bond may, upon surrender thereof to the applicable Registrar, together with a written request therefor duly exec...
	(e) All Series 2024 Bonds issued in conversion and exchange or replacement of any other Series 2024 Bond or portion thereof, (i) shall be issued in fully registered form, without interest coupons, with the principal of and interest on such Series 2024...
	(f) The Board shall pay each Registrar’s reasonable and standard or customary fees and charges for making transfers of Series 2024 Bonds, but the Holder of any related Series 2024 Bond requesting such transfer shall pay any taxes or other governmental...
	Section 2.7. Damaged and Missing Bonds.

	(b) Application for replacement of a damaged, mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed Series 2024 Bond shall be made by the Holder thereof to the applicable Registrar.  In every case of loss, theft, or destruction of a Series 2024 Bond, the Holder apply...
	(c) Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section, in the event any such Series 2024 Bond shall have matured, and no default has occurred which is then continuing in the payment of the principal of and premium, if any, or interest on the Se...
	(d) Prior to the issuance of any replacement Series 2024 Bond pursuant to the provisions of this Section, the applicable Registrar shall charge the Holder of such Series 2024 Bond with all legal, printing, and other expenses in connection therewith.  ...
	(e) In accordance with Section 1201.062 of Chapter 1201, this Section shall constitute authority for the issuance of any such replacement Series 2024 Bond without the necessity of further action by the Board or any other body or Person, and the duty o...

	Section 2.8. Sale and Delivery of Series 2024 Bonds.  The Series 2024 Bonds may be sold publicly or privately on a negotiated basis, as determined by the Authorized Representatives to assure that the Series 2024 Bonds are sold on advantageous terms.  ...
	Section 2.9. Preliminary Official Statement and Official Statement.  For any Series 2024 Bonds to be sold initially in a public offering, prior to the execution of the Purchase Contract, the Chairwoman of the Board, acting for and on behalf of the Boa...
	Section 2.10. Book-Entry System.  As provided in Section 2.8 of this Resolution, each series of Series 2024 Bonds initially shall be delivered against payment to the Initial Purchaser thereof.  The Series 2024 Bonds so delivered to such Initial Purcha...

	ARTICLE III   REDEMPTION OF SERIES 2024 BONDS
	Section 3.1. Redemption.
	(b) The Weekly Rate Bonds (including Purchased Bonds) shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity on the first Business Day of any month, at the option and direction of the Board, in whole or in part, at a redemption price of par plus accrued int...
	(c) Any series of Series 2024 Bonds issued as other than Weekly Rate Bonds shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option and direction of the Board, during the periods and at the redemption prices set forth in the related Purchase Co...
	(d) Converted Fixed Rate Bonds shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option and direction of the Board, during the periods specified by an Authorized Representative, in whole at any time or in part from time to time, at the redempti...
	(e) In the case of any redemption of less than all of the Series 2024 Bonds of a particular series and maturity, the particular Series 2024 Bonds within each such series and maturity to be redeemed shall be selected by the applicable Registrar by lot ...
	(f) Anything in this Section 3.1 to the contrary notwithstanding, in the event of any (i) optional redemption of Weekly Rate Bonds, Purchased Bonds of the same series shall be selected first for such redemption to the extent there are any such Purchas...
	Section 3.2. Notice of Redemption.  At least 30 days prior to the date fixed for any redemption of Series 2024 Bonds, a written notice of such redemption shall be sent by first class mail, postage prepaid by the Registrar to the Holders of the applica...

	ARTICLE IV   FUNDS AND INVESTMENTS
	Section 4.1. Establishment of Fund II.  The Comptroller (as successor to the Treasurer of the State) has established in the State Treasury the “Veterans’ Housing Assistance Fund II,” referred to herein as “Fund II.”  The Board hereby confirms and rati...
	Section 4.2. Deposits to Fund II.  Fund II is and shall be comprised of, and where feasible it is the duty of the Board, and the officers of the Board are hereby authorized and directed, to deposit into Fund II, the following:
	(i) any interest of the Board in Home Loans made from money in Fund II pursuant to the Program including proceeds of any insurance thereon or on the homes;
	(ii) the proceeds derived from the sale or other disposition of the Board’s interest in Home Loans;
	(iii) the money attributable to any Bonds (except Expenses Attributable to Bonds) issued and sold by the Board to provide money for Fund II which shall include, but shall not be limited to, the proceeds from the issuance and sale of such Bonds;
	(iv) income, rents, and any other pecuniary benefit received by the Board as a result of making Home Loans;
	(v) sums received by way of indemnity or forfeiture for the failure of any bidder for the purchase of any Bonds to comply with the person’s bid and accept and pay for such Bonds;
	(vi) payments received by the Board under bond enhancement agreements with respect to the Bonds;
	(vii) interest received from investments of any such money; and
	(viii) any equitable interest of the Board in properties encumbered by Home Loans and attributable to Fund II.
	Section 4.3. Home Loans.

	(b) The Board will fix interest rates to be charged Veterans receiving Home Loans from the Board which will assure that the proceeds from payments and repayments of Home Loans, together with other legally available moneys, including, without limitatio...
	Section 4.4. Source of Payment.

	(b) All payments of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, including payments by the Board under bond enhancement agreements with respect to principal of or interest on the Bonds, shall be made from Fund II; provided, that if the Legislature of t...
	(c) The Board recognizes the absolute and ultimate obligation of the State to provide during each Fiscal Year all moneys necessary to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds, including money to make payments by the Board under bond enhancement ...
	Section 4.5. Other Uses of Fund II Moneys.

	(b) The Constitutional Provision also provides that if the Board determines that assets from Fund II are not required for the purposes of Fund II, the Board may (i) transfer the assets to either the Veterans’ Land Fund or Fund I, (ii) use the assets t...

	Section 4.6. Program Administration.  The Program may be administered on behalf of the Board by one or more administrators, each of which shall be a nationally recognized institution with previous experience in the administration of mortgage lending p...
	Section 4.7. Investments.  The moneys of Fund II which are not immediately committed to the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds, the making of Home Loans as herein provided, or the payment of expenses as herein provided may be invested i...

	ARTICLE V   COVENANTS OF THE BOARD
	Section 5.1. Payment Procedures.
	Section 5.2. Paying Agent and Registrar.
	Section 5.3. Tax Covenants.  The Board does not intend to issue the Series 2024 Bonds in a manner such that the Series 2024 Bonds would constitute obligations described in Section 103(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (as amended, the “Code”), a...

	ARTICLE VI   SUPPLEMENTS AND AMENDMENTS
	Section 6.1. Amendment of Resolution With Consent of Holders.
	(i) make any change in the maturity of any of the Series 2024 Bonds of such series;
	(ii) reduce the rate of interest borne by any of the Series 2024 Bonds of such series;
	(iii) reduce the amount of the principal payable on any of the Series 2024 Bonds of such series;
	(iv) modify the terms of payment of principal of or interest on such Series 2024 Bonds, or any of them, or impose any conditions with respect to such payment;
	(v) change the minimum percentage of the principal amount of such Series 2024 Bonds necessary for consent to such amendment; or
	(vi) affect the rights of the Holders of less than all of the Series 2024 Bonds of such series then Outstanding,
	(b) If at any time the Board shall desire to amend this Resolution under this Section, the Board shall cause notice of the proposed amendment to be published in a financial newspaper or journal published in the City of New York, New York, or the City ...
	(c) Whenever at any time, within one year from the date of this publication of said notice or other service of written notice, the Board shall receive an instrument or instruments executed by the Holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of ...
	(d) Any consent given by the Holder of a Series 2024 Bond pursuant to the provisions of this Resolution shall be irrevocable for a period of six months from the date of the first publication or mailing of the notice provided for in this Resolution, an...
	(e) For the purposes of this Section, proof of ownership of any Series 2024 Bond shall be established by the registration of any such Series 2024 Bond on the Bond Register kept and maintained by the applicable Registrar.
	Section 6.2. Amendment of Resolution Without Consent of Holders.  The foregoing provisions of this Article notwithstanding, the Board may, without the consent of the Holders, pursuant to amendatory resolution, from time to time:
	(i) impose conditions or restrictions additional to, but not in diminution of, those contained in this Resolution, respecting the issuance of Bonds;
	(ii) undertake covenants additional to but not inconsistent with those contained in this Resolution;
	(iii) correct any ambiguity or correct or supplement any inconsistent or defective provision contained in this Resolution or any amendatory resolution;
	(iv) adopt amendments to this Resolution that become effective as to a series of Series 2024 Bonds following a mandatory tender of all of such Series 2024 Bonds then Outstanding; or
	(v) adopt amendments to this Resolution that, in the opinion of Bond Counsel, do not adversely affect the Holders.

	Section 6.3. Effect of Amendatory Resolutions.  Upon the adoption of any amendatory resolution pursuant to the provisions of this Section, this Resolution shall be deemed to be amended in accordance with such amendatory resolution, and the respective ...
	Section 6.4. Bonds May Bear Notation of Changes.  Series 2024 Bonds of the applicable series authenticated and delivered after the execution of any amendatory resolution pursuant to this Article may bear a notation in form approved by the applicable R...

	ARTICLE VII   FIXED RATE BONDS DEEMED PAID
	Section 7.1. Fixed Rate Bonds Deemed Paid.  Any Fixed Rate Bond shall be deemed to be paid and no longer Outstanding when payment of the principal of and premium, if any, on such Bond, plus interest thereon to the due date thereof (whether such due da...
	Section 7.2. Application of Trust Money.
	(b) Notwithstanding any provision of any other Section of this Resolution which may be contrary to the provisions of this Section, all money or Defeasance Obligations set aside and held in trust pursuant to the provisions of this Section for the payme...
	(c) Notwithstanding anything elsewhere in this Resolution contained, if money or Defeasance Obligations have been deposited or set aside with a paying agent pursuant to this Section for the payment of Fixed Rate Bonds and such Fixed Rate Bonds shall n...


	ARTICLE VIII   CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING
	Section 8.1. Definitions.  As used in this Article, the following terms have the meanings ascribed to such terms below:
	Section 8.2. Annual Reports.  The Board shall provide annually to the MSRB, within six months after the end of each fiscal year ending in or after 2024, financial information and operating data with respect to the Board of the general type included in...
	Section 8.3. Event Notices.  The Board shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner but in any event within ten Business Days, of any of the following events with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds subject to the Rule:
	(A) Principal and interest payment delinquencies;
	(B) Non-payment related defaults, if material;
	(C) Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;
	(D) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties;
	(E) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;
	(F) Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of such ...
	(G) Modifications to rights of holders of such Series 2024 Bonds, if material;
	(H) Series 2024 Bond calls of the applicable series, if material, and tender offers;
	(I) Defeasances;
	(J) Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of such Series 2024 Bonds, if material;
	(K) Rating changes;
	(L) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Board;
	(M) Consummation of a merger, consolidation or acquisition involving the Board or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Board, other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry of a definitive agreement to undertake such an ...
	(N) Appointment of a successor Paying Agent or Registrar or change in the name of the applicable Paying Agent or Registrar, if material.

	Section 8.4. Limitations, Disclaimers and Amendments.  The Board shall be obligated to observe and perform the covenants specified in this Article for so long as, but only for so long as, the Board remains an “obligated person” with respect to a serie...
	Section 8.5. Continuing Disclosure Relating to Other Obligated Persons.  The Board hereby determines that an Other Obligated Person would be an “obligated person” (as defined in the Rule) for whom financial information and operating data would be pres...
	Section 8.6. Agreement Regarding Assumption of Certain Home Loans.  The Board agrees not to permit the assumption of any Home Loan that would cause any Person to become an Other Obligated Person.

	ARTICLE IX   ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS RELATING TO SERIES 2024 BONDS
	Section 9.1. Interest Rates and Payment.
	(b) Payment and Calculation of Interest.  Interest on the Series 2024 Bonds shall be paid in arrears.  Interest on Weekly Rate Bonds (including Purchased Bonds) shall be computed on the basis of a 365/366-day year, for the number of days actually elap...
	(c) Ceiling Rate.  Anything to the contrary contained herein notwithstanding, the maximum rate of interest on the Series 2024 Bonds at any time shall be the Ceiling Rate.
	(d) Purchased Bonds.  All Purchased Bonds shall bear interest at the Purchased Bond Rate therefor, which shall be payable at such times, in such amounts and in such manner as is provided in the related Liquidity Facility.  The maximum rate of interest...
	Section 9.2. Determination of Weekly Interest Rate.

	(b) The first Interest Rate Period for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds shall commence on the Settlement Date and shall be a Weekly Interest Rate Period.  The initial Weekly Interest Rate to be borne by such Weekly Rate Bonds shall be determined by the I...
	(c) Notices.  On each date on which a Remarketing Agent determines the interest rate on any Weekly Rate Bond, such Remarketing Agent shall give the Board and the applicable Tender Agent, Paying Agent and Liquidity Provider notice by facsimile or e-mai...
	(d) Binding Effect.  Each determination of the interest rate for the Weekly Rate Bonds, as provided herein, shall be conclusive and binding upon the owners of the Weekly Rate Bonds, the Board and the applicable Remarketing Agent, Tender Agent, Liquidi...
	Section 9.3. Fixed Interest Rate.

	(b) Adjustment to Fixed Interest Rate Period.
	(i) At any time, the Board, by written direction to the applicable Registrar, Tender Agent, Paying Agent, Liquidity Provider and Remarketing Agent, may elect that a series of Weekly Rate Bonds shall be subject to a Fixed Interest Rate Period.  The dir...
	(ii) Such direction of the Board shall be accompanied by a form of the notice to be mailed by the applicable Registrar to the Holders of the series of Weekly Rate Bonds to be converted as provided in Section 9.3(c).
	(iii) If the Board shall deliver to the applicable Registrar, Remarketing Agent and Tender Agent on or prior to the date that the interest rate for the Fixed Interest Rate Period is determined a notice to the effect that the Board elects to rescind it...

	(c) Notice of Adjustment to Fixed Interest Rate Period.  The applicable Registrar shall give notice by first class mail of an adjustment to a Fixed Interest Rate Period to the Holders of the series of Weekly Rate Bonds to be converted not less than 30...
	(d) If the Board elects to convert a series of Weekly Rate Bonds to Fixed Rate Bonds, then the written direction furnished by the Board to the applicable Liquidity Provider, Registrar, Tender Agent and Remarketing Agent shall be made by registered or ...
	Section 9.4. Purchase of Weekly Rate Bonds.

	(b) Mandatory Tender for Purchase on First Day of Fixed Interest Rate Period.  A series of Weekly Rate Bonds shall be subject to mandatory tender for purchase on the first day of the Fixed Interest Rate Period therefor, or on the day which would have ...
	(c) Mandatory Tender for Purchase Upon Termination, Expiration, Suspension, Modification or Replacement of Liquidity Facility.  If at any time the Registrar for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds shall give notice in accordance with Section 9.7 that such W...
	(d) Mandatory Tender for Purchase Following Event of Default Under Liquidity Facility.  All Weekly Rate Bonds of a series shall be subject to mandatory tender for purchase on the tenth day (or the next succeeding Business Day if such day is not a Busi...
	(e) Notice of Mandatory Tender for Purchase.  In connection with any mandatory tender for purchase of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds in accordance with Section 9.4(b) or Section 9.4(c), the applicable Registrar shall include notice of a mandatory tende...
	(f) Delivery of Tendered Weekly Rate Bonds.  Subject to the provisions of Section 2.10 hereof if ownership of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds is determined only by a book entry at a securities depository for such Weekly Rate Bonds, for payment of the pu...
	(g) Irrevocable Notice Deemed to be Tender of Weekly Rate Bond; Undelivered Bonds.
	(i) The giving of notice by an owner of a Weekly Rate Bond as provided in Section 9.4(a) hereof shall constitute the irrevocable tender for purchase of each such Weekly Rate Bond with respect to which such notice shall have been given, regardless of w...
	(ii) A Tender Agent may refuse to accept delivery of any Weekly Rate Bonds for which a proper instrument of transfer has not been provided; such refusal, however, shall not affect the validity of the purchase of such Weekly Rate Bond as herein describ...

	Section 9.5. Amendments to Liquidity Facility.  Except with the consent of all the Holders of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds, neither the Board nor the applicable Tender Agent shall permit any amendment, supplement, modification or waiver to the applic...
	Section 9.6. Alternate Liquidity Facility.  If at any time there shall be delivered to a Tender Agent (i) an Alternate Liquidity Facility, (ii) written evidence from the applicable Rating Agency stating the ratings of the applicable series of Weekly R...
	Section 9.7. Notice of Termination or Other Change in Liquidity Facility.  The applicable Registrar shall give notice by mail to the Holders of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds on or before the 15th day preceding (i) the expiration of any applicable Liqu...
	Section 9.8. Remarketing Agent and Tender Agent.
	(b) The initial Tender Agent for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds shall be as designated in the applicable Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate.  The Board shall appoint any successor Tender Agent, subject to the conditions set forth in Section 9.9(b...
	(i) to hold all Weekly Rate Bonds delivered to it pursuant to Section 9.4 hereof, as agent and bailee of, and in escrow for the benefit of, the respective owners which shall have so delivered such Weekly Rate Bonds until moneys representing the purcha...
	(ii) to establish and maintain a separate segregated trust fund designated as the “State of Texas Veterans Bonds, Taxable Series 2024 Bond Purchase Fund” (each, a “Bond Purchase Fund”) (with the specific series designation to replace “2024,” if applic...
	(iii) to hold all moneys (without investment thereof) delivered to it hereunder in the Bond Purchase Fund for the purchase of Weekly Rate Bonds pursuant to Section 9.4 hereof, as agent and bailee of, and in escrow for the benefit of, the Person which ...
	(iv) to hold all moneys delivered to it by the Board for the purchase of Weekly Rate Bonds pursuant to Section 9.4 hereof, as agent and bailee of, and in escrow for the benefit of, the owners or former owners who shall deliver Weekly Rate Bonds to it ...
	(v) to hold all Weekly Rate Bonds registered in the name of the new owners thereof which have been delivered to it by the applicable Registrar for delivery to the applicable Remarketing Agent in accordance with the provisions of this Resolution; and
	(vi) to keep such books and records as shall be consistent with standard industry practice and to make such books and records available for inspection by the Board, the applicable Liquidity Provider and the applicable Remarketing Agent at all reasonab...


	Section 9.9. Qualifications of Remarketing Agent and Tender Agent; Resignation; Removal.
	(a) Each Remarketing Agent shall be a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, having a combined capital stock, surplus and undivided profits of at least $250,000,000 and authorized by law to perform all the duties imposed upon it by thi...
	(b) Each Tender Agent shall be a bank with trust powers or a trust company duly organized under the laws of the United States of America or any state or territory thereof, and authorized by law to exercise corporate trust powers and otherwise perform ...
	(c) Upon the effective date of resignation or removal of a Tender Agent, such Tender Agent shall deliver any Weekly Rate Bonds and moneys held by it in such capacity to its successor.
	(d) So long as any series of Weekly Rate Bonds are Outstanding, the same entity shall be the Tender Agent and Registrar therefor.
	Section 9.10. Notice of Weekly Rate Bonds Delivered for Purchase; Purchase of Weekly Rate Bonds.

	(b) Weekly Rate Bonds required to be purchased in accordance with Section 9.4 hereof shall be purchased from the owners thereof, on the date and at the purchase price at which such Weekly Rate Bonds are required to be purchased.  Funds for the payment...
	(i) proceeds of the sale of such Weekly Rate Bonds remarketed to any Person pursuant to Section 9.11 hereof and furnished to the applicable Tender Agent by the purchasers or by the applicable Remarketing Agent for deposit into the Remarketing Account ...
	(ii) moneys furnished to such Tender Agent for deposit into the Purchase Account of the applicable Bond Purchase Fund representing moneys received from draws on the applicable Liquidity Facility; and
	(iii) moneys furnished to such Tender Agent for deposit into the applicable Bond Purchase Fund representing moneys provided by the Board in its discretion.
	(c)

	(ii) If ownership of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds is no longer determined only by a book entry at a securities depository for such Series 2024 Bonds, in the event any such Weekly Rate Bonds purchased as provided in this Section shall not be presented...
	Section 9.11. Remarketing of Series 2024 Bonds; Notice of Interest Rates.


	(b) Each Remarketing Agent shall determine the rate of interest to be borne by the applicable Series 2024 Bonds during each Interest Rate Period and shall furnish to the Board and the applicable Registrar on the Business Day of determination each rate...
	(c) Each Remarketing Agent shall advise the applicable Tender Agent and Liquidity Provider in writing or by telephone (promptly confirmed by e-mail or fax if given by telephone) not later than the Business Day preceding the Business Day on which any a...
	Section 9.12. Delivery of Series 2024 Bonds.

	(b) Except as otherwise provided in a Liquidity Facility, Weekly Rate Bonds purchased with moneys described in clause (ii) of Section 9.10(b) hereof shall be held by the applicable Tender Agent on behalf of the applicable Liquidity Provider as Purchas...
	(c) Weekly Rate Bonds purchased with moneys described in clause (iii) of Section 9.10(b) hereof shall be canceled.
	(d) Series 2024 Bonds delivered as provided in this Section shall be registered in the manner directed by the recipient thereof.

	Section 9.13. Delivery of Proceeds of Sale.  The proceeds of the sale by a Remarketing Agent of any applicable Weekly Rate Bonds delivered to it by any Holder shall be turned over to the applicable Tender Agent.
	Section 9.14. Draws on Liquidity Facility to Pay Purchase Price of Weekly Rate Bonds.  Each Tender Agent, on each day on which applicable Weekly Rate Bonds are required to be purchased pursuant to Section 9.4 hereof, is directed to make drawings under...
	Section 9.15. Insufficient Funds for Purchase of Weekly Rate Bonds.  If payment of the purchase price of any Weekly Rate Bond shall not be made to the Holder thereof on any date such Weekly Rate Bond has been tendered for purchase pursuant to Section ...
	Section 9.16. Notices.
	(b) The Board shall provide to the applicable Rating Agency notice in writing or by telephone or fax, promptly confirmed in writing, of
	(i) any resignation or removal of any applicable Paying Agent, Registrar, Tender Agent or Remarketing Agent, and the appointment of any successor thereto;
	(ii) any conversion of an applicable series of Weekly Rate Bonds to Fixed Rate Bonds;
	(iii) any termination, expiration, replacement, suspension or modification of the applicable Liquidity Facility;
	(iv) the payment in full of the applicable series of Weekly Rate Bonds;
	(v) any mandatory tender of the applicable series of Weekly Rate Bonds; and
	(vi) any amendment or material change to this Resolution.

	(c) The Board shall provide or cause to be provided to each Rating Agency such information as is reasonably requested in order to maintain its rating on the applicable series of Weekly Rate Bonds.


	ARTICLE X   MISCELLANEOUS
	Section 10.1. Benefits of Resolution.  Nothing in this Resolution or in the Series 2024 Bonds, express or implied, shall give to any Person, other than the Board and each Paying Agent, Registrar, Tender Agent, Liquidity Provider and Remarketing Agent ...
	Section 10.2. Bonds to Rank Equally.  None of the Bonds shall be entitled to priority over any other Bond in the application of moneys in Fund II, nor in the application of moneys appropriated by the Legislature of the State or otherwise made availabl...
	Section 10.3. Enforcement.  All rights available to the Holders under the Constitution and laws of the State, by suit for mandamus or otherwise, to compel the performance of their official duties by the Board, its officers and employees, and by other ...
	Section 10.4. Separability Clause.  In case any provision in this Resolution shall be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby.
	Section 10.5. Governing Law.  This Resolution shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State.
	Section 10.6. Open Meeting.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which the Series 2024 Bonds were authorized was open to the public as required by law and public notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was gi...
	Section 10.7. References to Liquidity Provider.  Any provision of this Resolution regarding the consent of, or notice to, or mandating the direction of action by, a Liquidity Provider shall, except as expressly provided, be deemed ineffective (i) if t...
	Section 10.8. Liquidity Facilities Authorized.  In connection with the issuance of any series of Weekly Rate Bonds, the Authorized Representatives are hereby severally authorized and directed, in the name and on behalf of the Board, to cause to be iss...
	Section 10.9. Remarketing Agreements Authorized.  In connection with the issuance of any series of Weekly Rate Bonds, the Authorized Representatives are hereby severally authorized and directed to act for and on behalf of the Board to approve, execute...
	Section 10.10. Tender Agent Agreements Authorized.  In connection with the issuance of any series of Weekly Rate Bonds, if requested by the Tender Agent for such series, the Authorized Representatives are hereby severally authorized and directed to ac...
	Section 10.11. Authorization of Additional Acts.  The officers, employees, and agents of the Board, and each of them, shall be and each is expressly authorized, empowered, and directed from time to time and at any time to do and perform all acts and t...
	Section 10.12. Bond Enhancement Agreement Certificate.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the “Resolution of the Veterans’ Land Board of the State of Texas Authorizing Interest Rate Swap Transactions Relating to Bonds Issued or to ...
	Section 10.13. Prior Resolution.  This Resolution shall supersede and replace in its entirety that certain resolution adopted by the Board on July 24, 2023, relating to the Series 2024 Bonds.


	Agenda item 5 d memo Tax Exempt Bond Authority
	Agenda Item 5 d supporting doc Tax Exempt Bond Resolution
	ARTICLE I   DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PROVISIONS OF GENERAL APPLICATION
	Section 1.1. Definitions.
	(i) “This Resolution” means this resolution as originally adopted or as it may from time to time be supplemented or amended by one or more resolutions supplemental hereto adopted pursuant to the applicable provisions hereof.
	(ii) All references in this Resolution to designated “Articles,” “Sections” and other subdivisions are to the designated Articles, Sections and other subdivisions of this Resolution as originally adopted.  The words “herein,” “hereof” and “hereunder” ...
	(iii) The terms defined in this Article have the meanings assigned to them in this Article and include the plural as well as the singular.  Reference to any named Person means that party and its successors and assigns.
	(b) The following terms have the meanings assigned to them below whenever they are used in this Resolution:
	Section 1.2. Effect of Headings and Table of Contents.  The Article and Section headings herein and the Table of Contents are for convenience only and shall not affect the construction hereof.

	ARTICLE II   AUTHORIZATION AND TERMS OF SERIES 2024 BONDS; ISSUANCE AND FORM OF SERIES 2024 BONDS
	Section 2.1. Authorization of Series 2024 Bonds.  To provide money for the purpose of augmenting Fund II, the Series 2024 Bonds are hereby authorized and shall be issued, in one or more series and installments, as general obligations of the State in t...
	Section 2.2. Form, Maturities, Interest Rates and Numbering. Each series of Series 2024 Bonds authorized hereby initially shall be dated as set forth in the related Pricing Certificate or Purchase Contract, and shall be issued and delivered in the for...
	Section 2.3. Execution.  Each of the Series 2024 Bonds shall be executed by and on behalf of the Board as general obligations of the State with the manual or facsimile signatures of the Chairwoman of the Board and the Executive Secretary of the Board,...
	Section 2.4. Approval by Attorney General; Registration by Comptroller.  After any Initial Series 2024 Bonds shall have been executed, it shall be the duty of the Authorized Representatives to deliver such Series 2024 Bonds to the Attorney General for...
	Section 2.5. Form of Bond. The form of all Weekly Rate Bonds, including the forms of (i) Comptroller’s Registration Certificate to accompany each Initial Series 2024 Bond that is a Weekly Rate Bond, (ii) Registrar’s Authentication Certificate, and (ii...
	Section 2.6. Registration, Transfer and Exchange.
	(b) The entity in whose name any Series 2024 Bond shall be registered in the related Bond Register at any time shall be treated as the absolute owner thereof for all purposes of this Resolution, whether or not such Series 2024 Bond shall be overdue, a...
	(c) Unless otherwise set forth in a Pricing Certificate or Purchase Contract, the Board hereby appoints the Comptroller in Austin, Texas, or any banking institution named in accordance with the provisions of Section 5.2(a) hereof (in either case, the ...
	(d) Each Series 2024 Bond may be converted into and exchanged for fully registered bonds in the manner set forth herein.  Each Series 2024 Bond may, upon surrender thereof to the applicable Registrar, together with a written request therefor duly exec...
	(e) All Series 2024 Bonds issued in conversion and exchange or replacement of any other Series 2024 Bond or portion thereof, (i) shall be issued in fully registered form, without interest coupons, with the principal of and interest on such Series 2024...
	(f) The Board shall pay each Registrar’s reasonable and standard or customary fees and charges for making transfers of Series 2024 Bonds, but the Holder of any related Series 2024 Bond requesting such transfer shall pay any taxes or other governmental...
	Section 2.7. Damaged and Missing Bonds.

	(b) Application for replacement of a damaged, mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed Series 2024 Bond shall be made by the Holder thereof to the applicable Registrar.  In every case of loss, theft, or destruction of a Series 2024 Bond, the Holder apply...
	(c) Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section, in the event any such Series 2024 Bond shall have matured, and no default has occurred which is then continuing in the payment of the principal of and premium, if any, or interest on the Se...
	(d) Prior to the issuance of any replacement Series 2024 Bond pursuant to the provisions of this Section, the applicable Registrar shall charge the Holder of such Series 2024 Bond with all legal, printing, and other expenses in connection therewith.  ...
	(e) In accordance with Section 1201.062 of Chapter 1201, this Section shall constitute authority for the issuance of any such replacement Series 2024 Bond without the necessity of further action by the Board or any other body or Person, and the duty o...

	Section 2.8. Sale and Delivery of Series 2024 Bonds.  The Series 2024 Bonds may be sold publicly or privately on a negotiated basis, as determined by the Authorized Representatives to assure that the Series 2024 Bonds are sold on advantageous terms.  ...
	Section 2.9. Preliminary Official Statement and Official Statement.  For any Series 2024 Bonds to be sold initially in a public offering, prior to the execution of the Purchase Contract, the Chairwoman of the Board, acting for and on behalf of the Boa...
	Section 2.10. Book-Entry System.  As provided in Section 2.8 of this Resolution, each series of Series 2024 Bonds initially shall be delivered against payment to the Initial Purchaser thereof.  The Series 2024 Bonds so delivered to such Initial Purcha...

	ARTICLE III   REDEMPTION OF SERIES 2024 BONDS
	Section 3.1. Redemption.
	(b) The Weekly Rate Bonds (including Purchased Bonds) shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity on the first Business Day of any month, at the option and direction of the Board, in whole or in part, at a redemption price of par plus accrued int...
	(c) Any series of Series 2024 Bonds issued as other than Weekly Rate Bonds shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option and direction of the Board, during the periods and at the redemption prices set forth in the related Purchase Co...
	(d) Converted Fixed Rate Bonds shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option and direction of the Board, during the periods specified below, in whole at any time or in part from time to time, at the redemption prices (expressed as a ...
	(e) In the case of any redemption of less than all of the Series 2024 Bonds of a particular series and maturity, the particular Series 2024 Bonds within each such series and maturity to be redeemed shall be selected by the applicable Registrar by lot ...
	(f) Anything in this Section 3.1 to the contrary notwithstanding, in the event of any (i) optional redemption of Weekly Rate Bonds, Purchased Bonds of the same series shall be selected first for such redemption to the extent there are any such Purchas...
	Section 3.2. Notice of Redemption.  At least 30 days prior to the date fixed for any redemption of Series 2024 Bonds, a written notice of such redemption shall be sent by first class mail, postage prepaid by the Registrar to the Holders of the applica...

	ARTICLE IV   FUNDS AND INVESTMENTS
	Section 4.1. Establishment of Fund II.  The Comptroller (as successor to the Treasurer of the State) has established in the State Treasury the “Veterans’ Housing Assistance Fund II,” referred to herein as “Fund II.”  The Board hereby confirms and rati...
	Section 4.2. Deposits to Fund II.  Fund II is and shall be comprised of, and where feasible it is the duty of the Board, and the officers of the Board are hereby authorized and directed, to deposit into Fund II, the following:
	(i) any interest of the Board in Home Loans made from money in Fund II pursuant to the Program including proceeds of any insurance thereon or on the homes;
	(ii) the proceeds derived from the sale or other disposition of the Board’s interest in Home Loans;
	(iii) the money attributable to any Bonds (except Expenses Attributable to Bonds) issued and sold by the Board to provide money for Fund II which shall include, but shall not be limited to, the proceeds from the issuance and sale of such Bonds;
	(iv) income, rents, and any other pecuniary benefit received by the Board as a result of making Home Loans;
	(v) sums received by way of indemnity or forfeiture for the failure of any bidder for the purchase of any Bonds to comply with the person’s bid and accept and pay for such Bonds;
	(vi) payments received by the Board under bond enhancement agreements with respect to the Bonds;
	(vii) interest received from investments of any such money; and
	(viii) any equitable interest of the Board in properties encumbered by Home Loans and attributable to Fund II.
	Section 4.3. Home Loans.

	(b) The Board will fix interest rates to be charged Veterans receiving Home Loans from the Board which will assure that the proceeds from payments and repayments of Home Loans, together with other legally available moneys, including, without limitatio...
	Section 4.4. Source of Payment.

	(b) All payments of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, including payments by the Board under bond enhancement agreements with respect to principal of or interest on the Bonds, shall be made from Fund II; provided, that if the Legislature of t...
	(c) The Board recognizes the absolute and ultimate obligation of the State to provide during each Fiscal Year all moneys necessary to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds, including money to make payments by the Board under bond enhancement ...
	Section 4.5. Other Uses of Fund II Moneys.

	(b) The Constitutional Provision also provides that if the Board determines that assets from Fund II are not required for the purposes of Fund II, the Board may (i) transfer the assets to either the Veterans’ Land Fund or Fund I, (ii) use the assets t...

	Section 4.6. Program Administration.  The Program may be administered on behalf of the Board by one or more administrators, each of which shall be a nationally recognized institution with previous experience in the administration of mortgage lending p...
	Section 4.7. Investments.  The moneys of Fund II which are not immediately committed to the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds, the making of Home Loans as herein provided, or the payment of expenses as herein provided may be invested i...

	ARTICLE V   COVENANTS OF THE BOARD
	Section 5.1. Payment Procedures.
	Section 5.2. Paying Agent and Registrar.
	Section 5.3. Tax Covenants.
	(b) General Tax Covenant.  The Board covenants not to take any action, or knowingly omit to take any action, within its control, that, if taken or omitted, respectively, would cause the interest on any Series 2024 Bonds to be includable in gross incom...
	(c) Use of Proceeds.  The Board covenants that at least 95% of the Net Proceeds of each series of Series 2024 Bonds will be used to finance Home Loans for Qualified Veterans.  The Board further covenants that (i) no portion of the proceeds of a series...
	(d) Mortgage Eligibility Requirements.
	(i) The Board covenants: (A) to attempt in good faith to meet, with respect to each Home Loan, before the execution thereof, the mortgage eligibility requirements of Section 143(c), (g), (i)(1) and (l) of the Code (as more fully described below in thi...
	(ii) The Board covenants to require, and the Origination Agreement and the Program Guide require, with respect to each Home Loan, a certification of the mortgagor and other appropriate evidence demonstrating that the mortgagor is a Qualified Veteran. ...
	(iii) The Board covenants to require, and the Origination Agreement and the Program Guide require, with respect to each Home Loan, a certification of the mortgagor and other appropriate evidence demonstrating that the residence being financed with the...
	(iv) The Board covenants to require, and the Origination Agreement and the Program Guide require, with respect to each Home Loan, a certification of the mortgagor and other appropriate evidence demonstrating that, in accordance with Section 143(i) of ...
	(v) The Board covenants to require, and the Origination Agreement and the Program Guide require, that each Home Loan include provision for acceleration in the event that the Board discovers that any of such mortgage eligibility requirements described ...
	(vi) The following terms used in this Section 5.3(d) shall have the respective meanings set forth in Section 143 of the Code and applicable Regulations thereunder:  mortgage, principal residence, residence and single-family residence.

	(e) Mortgage Rate.  The Board will take all actions necessary to ensure that the blended Yield on the Home Loans properly allocable under Sections 1.148-1 through 1.148-10 of the Regulations to an issue of Series 2024 Bonds will not exceed the Yield o...
	(f) No Arbitrage Covenant.  The Board covenants that it will make such use of the Gross Proceeds of an issue of Series 2024 Bonds and related revenues, regulate investments of proceeds of any issue of Series 2024 Bonds and related revenues, and take s...
	(g) Rebate of Arbitrage Profits.  Pursuant to Section 143(g)(3)(D) of the Code, the Board hereby elects to pay to the United States any amounts described in Section 143(g)(3)(A) of the Code.  The Board will pay to the United States such amounts at the...
	(h) Limitations on Issuance Costs.  The Board covenants that the Costs of Issuance financed with the proceeds of an issue of Series 2024 Bonds will not exceed two percent of the Sale Proceeds of such issue of  Series 2024 Bonds.
	(i) No Federal Guaranty.  The Board covenants not to take any action, or knowingly omit to take any action within its control, that, if taken or omitted, respectively, would cause any Series 2024 Bonds to be “federally guaranteed” within the meaning o...
	(j) Information Reporting.  The Board covenants to file or cause to be filed with the Secretary of the Treasury, not later than the fifteenth day of the second calendar month after the close of the calendar quarter in which an issue of Series 2024 Bon...
	(k) Changes in Use of Mortgage Property.  The Board acknowledges that the provisions of Section 150(b) of the Code (relating to changes in use of property financed with the proceeds of private activity bonds) will apply to the Home Loans, and covenant...
	(l) Volume Limitation.  The aggregate amount of the Series 2024 Bonds increased by the aggregate amount of all other “qualified veterans’ mortgage bonds” issued by the Board during calendar year 2024 does not exceed (a) the aggregate amount of qualifi...
	(m) Hedge Bonds.  The Board covenants that not more than 50 percent of the Sale Proceeds of an issue of  Series 2024 Bonds will be invested in nonpurpose investments having a substantially guaranteed yield for four years or more within the meaning of ...
	(n) Record Retention.  The Board will retain all pertinent and material records relating to the use and expenditure of the Proceeds of an issue of Series 2024 Bonds until three years after the last such issue of Series 2024 Bond is redeemed, or such s...
	(o) Continuing Obligation.  Anything in this Resolution to the contrary notwithstanding, the Board’s obligations under the covenants and provisions of this Section 5.3 will survive the defeasance and discharge of an issue of Series 2024 Bonds for as l...

	ARTICLE VI   SUPPLEMENTS AND AMENDMENTS
	Section 6.1. Amendment of Resolution With Consent of Holders.
	(i) make any change in the maturity of any of the Series 2024 Bonds of such series;
	(ii) reduce the rate of interest borne by any of the Series 2024 Bonds of such series;
	(iii) reduce the amount of the principal payable on any of the Series 2024 Bonds of such series;
	(iv) modify the terms of payment of principal of or interest on such Series 2024 Bonds, or any of them, or impose any conditions with respect to such payment;
	(v) change the minimum percentage of the principal amount of such Series 2024 Bonds necessary for consent to such amendment; or
	(vi) affect the rights of the Holders of less than all of the Series 2024 Bonds of such series then Outstanding,
	(b) If at any time the Board shall desire to amend this Resolution under this Section, the Board shall cause notice of the proposed amendment to be published in a financial newspaper or journal published in the City of New York, New York, or the City ...
	(c) Whenever at any time, within one year from the date of this publication of said notice or other service of written notice, the Board shall receive an instrument or instruments executed by the Holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of ...
	(d) Any consent given by the Holder of a Series 2024 Bond pursuant to the provisions of this Resolution shall be irrevocable for a period of six months from the date of the first publication or mailing of the notice provided for in this Resolution, an...
	(e) For the purposes of this Section, proof of ownership of any Series 2024 Bond shall be established by the registration of any such Series 2024 Bond on the Bond Register kept and maintained by the applicable Registrar.
	Section 6.2. Amendment of Resolution Without Consent of Holders.  The foregoing provisions of this Article notwithstanding, the Board may, without the consent of the Holders, pursuant to amendatory resolution, from time to time:
	(i) impose conditions or restrictions additional to, but not in diminution of, those contained in this Resolution, respecting the issuance of Bonds;
	(ii) undertake covenants additional to but not inconsistent with those contained in this Resolution;
	(iii) correct any ambiguity or correct or supplement any inconsistent or defective provision contained in this Resolution or any amendatory resolution;
	(iv) adopt amendments to this Resolution that become effective as to a series of Series 2024 Bonds following a mandatory tender of all of such Series 2024 Bonds then Outstanding; or
	(v) adopt amendments to this Resolution that, in the opinion of Bond Counsel, do not adversely affect the Holders.

	Section 6.3. Effect of Amendatory Resolutions.  Upon the adoption of any amendatory resolution pursuant to the provisions of this Section, this Resolution shall be deemed to be amended in accordance with such amendatory resolution, and the respective ...
	Section 6.4. Bonds May Bear Notation of Changes.  Series 2024 Bonds of the applicable series authenticated and delivered after the execution of any amendatory resolution pursuant to this Article may bear a notation in form approved by the applicable R...

	ARTICLE VII   FIXED RATE BONDS DEEMED PAID
	Section 7.1. Fixed Rate Bonds Deemed Paid.  Any Fixed Rate Bond shall be deemed to be paid and no longer Outstanding when payment of the principal of and premium, if any, on such Bond, plus interest thereon to the due date thereof (whether such due da...
	Section 7.2. Application of Trust Money.
	(b) Notwithstanding any provision of any other Section of this Resolution which may be contrary to the provisions of this Section, all money or Defeasance Obligations set aside and held in trust pursuant to the provisions of this Section for the payme...
	(c) Notwithstanding anything elsewhere in this Resolution contained, if money or Defeasance Obligations have been deposited or set aside with a paying agent pursuant to this Section for the payment of Fixed Rate Bonds and such Fixed Rate Bonds shall n...


	ARTICLE VIII   CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING
	Section 8.1. Definitions.  As used in this Article, the following terms have the meanings ascribed to such terms below:
	Section 8.2. Annual Reports.  The Board shall provide annually to the MSRB, within six months after the end of each fiscal year ending in or after 2024, financial information and operating data with respect to the Board of the general type included in...
	Section 8.3. Event Notices.  The Board shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner but in any event within ten Business Days, of any of the following events with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds subject to the Rule:
	(A) Principal and interest payment delinquencies;
	(B) Non-payment related defaults, if material;
	(C) Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;
	(D) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties;
	(E) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;
	(F) Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of such ...
	(G) Modifications to rights of holders of such Series 2024 Bonds, if material;
	(H) Series 2024 Bond calls of the applicable series, if material, and tender offers;
	(I) Defeasances;
	(J) Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of such Series 2024 Bonds, if material;
	(K) Rating changes;
	(L) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Board;
	(M) Consummation of a merger, consolidation or acquisition involving the Board or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Board, other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry of a definitive agreement to undertake such an ...
	(N) Appointment of a successor Paying Agent or Registrar or change in the name of the applicable Paying Agent or Registrar, if material.

	Section 8.4. Limitations, Disclaimers and Amendments.  The Board shall be obligated to observe and perform the covenants specified in this Article for so long as, but only for so long as, the Board remains an “obligated person” with respect to a serie...
	Section 8.5. Continuing Disclosure Relating to Other Obligated Persons.  The Board hereby determines that an Other Obligated Person would be an “obligated person” (as defined in the Rule) for whom financial information and operating data would be pres...
	Section 8.6. Agreement Regarding Assumption of Certain Home Loans.  The Board agrees not to permit the assumption of any Home Loan that would cause any Person to become an Other Obligated Person.

	ARTICLE IX   ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS RELATING TO SERIES 2024 BONDS
	Section 9.1. Interest Rates and Payment.
	(b) Payment and Calculation of Interest.  Interest on the Series 2024 Bonds shall be paid in arrears.  Interest on Weekly Rate Bonds (including Purchased Bonds) shall be computed on the basis of a 365/366-day year, for the number of days actually elap...
	(c) Ceiling Rate.  Anything to the contrary contained herein notwithstanding, the maximum rate of interest on the Series 2024 Bonds at any time shall be the Ceiling Rate.
	(d) Purchased Bonds.  All Purchased Bonds shall bear interest at the Purchased Bond Rate therefor, which shall be payable at such times, in such amounts and in such manner as is provided in the related Liquidity Facility.  The maximum rate of interest...
	Section 9.2. Determination of Weekly Interest Rate.

	(b) The first Interest Rate Period for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds shall commence on the Settlement Date and shall be a Weekly Interest Rate Period.  The initial Weekly Interest Rate to be borne by such Weekly Rate Bonds shall be determined by the I...
	(c) Notices.  On each date on which a Remarketing Agent determines the interest rate on any Weekly Rate Bond, such Remarketing Agent shall give the Board and the applicable Tender Agent, Paying Agent and Liquidity Provider notice by facsimile or e-mai...
	(d) Binding Effect.  Each determination of the interest rate for the Weekly Rate Bonds, as provided herein, shall be conclusive and binding upon the owners of the Weekly Rate Bonds, the Board and the applicable Remarketing Agent, Tender Agent, Liquidi...
	Section 9.3. Fixed Interest Rate.

	(b) Adjustment to Fixed Interest Rate Period.
	(i) At any time, the Board, by written direction to the applicable Registrar, Tender Agent, Paying Agent, Liquidity Provider and Remarketing Agent, may elect, subject to Section 9.3(e), that a series of Weekly Rate Bonds shall be subject to a Fixed In...
	(ii) Such direction of the Board shall be accompanied by a Favorable Opinion of Bond Counsel and by a form of the notice to be mailed by the applicable Registrar to the Holders of the series of Weekly Rate Bonds to be converted as provided in Section ...
	(iii) If the Board shall deliver to the applicable Registrar, Remarketing Agent and Tender Agent on or prior to the date that the interest rate for the Fixed Interest Rate Period is determined a notice to the effect that the Board elects to rescind it...

	(c) Notice of Adjustment to Fixed Interest Rate Period.  The applicable Registrar shall give notice by first class mail of an adjustment to a Fixed Interest Rate Period to the Holders of the series of Weekly Rate Bonds to be converted not less than 30...
	(d) If the Board elects to convert a series of Weekly Rate Bonds to Fixed Rate Bonds, then the written direction furnished by the Board to the applicable Liquidity Provider, Registrar, Tender Agent and Remarketing Agent shall be made by registered or ...
	(e) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, in connection with any conversion of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds to Fixed Rate Bonds, the Board shall cause to be provided to the applicable Tender Agent and Remarketing Agent a Favorable Opinion ...
	Section 9.4. Purchase of Weekly Rate Bonds.

	(b) Mandatory Tender for Purchase on First Day of Fixed Interest Rate Period.  A series of Weekly Rate Bonds shall be subject to mandatory tender for purchase on the first day of the Fixed Interest Rate Period therefor, or on the day which would have ...
	(c) Mandatory Tender for Purchase Upon Termination, Expiration, Suspension, Modification or Replacement of Liquidity Facility.  If at any time the Registrar for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds shall give notice in accordance with Section 9.7 that such W...
	(d) Mandatory Tender for Purchase Following Event of Default Under Liquidity Facility.  All Weekly Rate Bonds of a series shall be subject to mandatory tender for purchase on the tenth day (or the next succeeding Business Day if such day is not a Busi...
	(e) Notice of Mandatory Tender for Purchase.  In connection with any mandatory tender for purchase of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds in accordance with Section 9.4(b) or Section 9.4(c), the applicable Registrar shall include notice of a mandatory tende...
	(f) Delivery of Tendered Weekly Rate Bonds.  Subject to the provisions of Section 2.10 hereof if ownership of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds is determined only by a book entry at a securities depository for such Weekly Rate Bonds, for payment of the pu...
	(g) Irrevocable Notice Deemed to be Tender of Weekly Rate Bond; Undelivered Bonds.
	(i) The giving of notice by an owner of a Weekly Rate Bond as provided in Section 9.4(a) hereof shall constitute the irrevocable tender for purchase of each such Weekly Rate Bond with respect to which such notice shall have been given, regardless of w...
	(ii) A Tender Agent may refuse to accept delivery of any Weekly Rate Bonds for which a proper instrument of transfer has not been provided; such refusal, however, shall not affect the validity of the purchase of such Weekly Rate Bond as herein describ...

	Section 9.5. Amendments to Liquidity Facility.  Except with the consent of all the Holders of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds, neither the Board nor the applicable Tender Agent shall permit any amendment, supplement, modification or waiver to the applic...
	Section 9.6. Alternate Liquidity Facility.  If at any time there shall be delivered to a Tender Agent (i) an Alternate Liquidity Facility, (ii) a Favorable Opinion of Bond Counsel, (iii) written evidence from the applicable Rating Agency stating the r...
	Section 9.7. Notice of Termination or Other Change in Liquidity Facility.  The applicable Registrar shall give notice by mail to the Holders of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds on or before the 15th day preceding (i) the expiration of any applicable Liqu...
	Section 9.8. Remarketing Agent and Tender Agent.
	(b) The initial Tender Agent for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds shall be as designated in the applicable Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate.  The Board shall appoint any successor Tender Agent, subject to the conditions set forth in Section 9.9(b...
	(i) to hold all Weekly Rate Bonds delivered to it pursuant to Section 9.4 hereof, as agent and bailee of, and in escrow for the benefit of, the respective owners which shall have so delivered such Weekly Rate Bonds until moneys representing the purcha...
	(ii) to establish and maintain a separate segregated trust fund designated as the “State of Texas Veterans Bonds, Series 2024 Bond Purchase Fund” (each, a “Bond Purchase Fund”) (with the specific series designation to replace “2024,” if applicable), a...
	(iii) to hold all moneys (without investment thereof) delivered to it hereunder in the Bond Purchase Fund for the purchase of Weekly Rate Bonds pursuant to Section 9.4 hereof, as agent and bailee of, and in escrow for the benefit of, the Person which ...
	(iv) to hold all moneys delivered to it by the Board for the purchase of Weekly Rate Bonds pursuant to Section 9.4 hereof, as agent and bailee of, and in escrow for the benefit of, the owners or former owners who shall deliver Weekly Rate Bonds to it ...
	(v) to hold all Weekly Rate Bonds registered in the name of the new owners thereof which have been delivered to it by the applicable Registrar for delivery to the applicable Remarketing Agent in accordance with the provisions of this Resolution; and
	(vi) to keep such books and records as shall be consistent with standard industry practice and to make such books and records available for inspection by the Board, the applicable Liquidity Provider and the applicable Remarketing Agent at all reasonab...


	Section 9.9. Qualifications of Remarketing Agent and Tender Agent; Resignation; Removal.
	(a) Each Remarketing Agent shall be a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, having a combined capital stock, surplus and undivided profits of at least $250,000,000 and authorized by law to perform all the duties imposed upon it by thi...
	(b) Each Tender Agent shall be a bank with trust powers or a trust company duly organized under the laws of the United States of America or any state or territory thereof, and authorized by law to exercise corporate trust powers and otherwise perform ...
	(c) Upon the effective date of resignation or removal of a Tender Agent, such Tender Agent shall deliver any Weekly Rate Bonds and moneys held by it in such capacity to its successor.
	(d) So long as any series of Weekly Rate Bonds are Outstanding, the same entity shall be the Tender Agent and Registrar therefor.
	Section 9.10. Notice of Weekly Rate Bonds Delivered for Purchase; Purchase of Weekly Rate Bonds.

	(b) Weekly Rate Bonds required to be purchased in accordance with Section 9.4 hereof shall be purchased from the owners thereof, on the date and at the purchase price at which such Weekly Rate Bonds are required to be purchased.  Funds for the payment...
	(i) proceeds of the sale of such Weekly Rate Bonds remarketed to any Person pursuant to Section 9.11 hereof and furnished to the applicable Tender Agent by the purchasers or by the applicable Remarketing Agent for deposit into the Remarketing Account ...
	(ii) moneys furnished to such Tender Agent for deposit into the Purchase Account of the applicable Bond Purchase Fund representing moneys received from draws on the applicable Liquidity Facility; and
	(iii) moneys furnished to such Tender Agent for deposit into the applicable Bond Purchase Fund representing moneys provided by the Board in its discretion.
	(c)

	(ii) If ownership of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds is no longer determined only by a book entry at a securities depository for such Series 2024 Bonds, in the event any such Weekly Rate Bonds purchased as provided in this Section shall not be presented...
	Section 9.11. Remarketing of Series 2024 Bonds; Notice of Interest Rates.


	(b) Each Remarketing Agent shall determine the rate of interest to be borne by the applicable Series 2024 Bonds during each Interest Rate Period and shall furnish to the Board and the applicable Registrar on the Business Day of determination each rate...
	(c) Each Remarketing Agent shall advise the applicable Tender Agent and Liquidity Provider in writing or by telephone (promptly confirmed by e-mail or fax if given by telephone) not later than the Business Day preceding the Business Day on which any a...
	Section 9.12. Delivery of Series 2024 Bonds.

	(b) Except as otherwise provided in a Liquidity Facility, Weekly Rate Bonds purchased with moneys described in clause (ii) of Section 9.10(b) hereof shall be held by the applicable Tender Agent on behalf of the applicable Liquidity Provider as Purchas...
	(c) Weekly Rate Bonds purchased with moneys described in clause (iii) of Section 9.10(b) hereof shall be canceled.
	(d) Series 2024 Bonds delivered as provided in this Section shall be registered in the manner directed by the recipient thereof.

	Section 9.13. Delivery of Proceeds of Sale.  The proceeds of the sale by a Remarketing Agent of any applicable Weekly Rate Bonds delivered to it by any Holder shall be turned over to the applicable Tender Agent.
	Section 9.14. Draws on Liquidity Facility to Pay Purchase Price of Weekly Rate Bonds.  Each Tender Agent, on each day on which applicable Weekly Rate Bonds are required to be purchased pursuant to Section 9.4 hereof, is directed to make drawings under...
	Section 9.15. Insufficient Funds for Purchase of Weekly Rate Bonds.  If payment of the purchase price of any Weekly Rate Bond shall not be made to the Holder thereof on any date such Weekly Rate Bond has been tendered for purchase pursuant to Section ...
	Section 9.16. Notices.
	(b) The Board shall provide to the applicable Rating Agency notice in writing or by telephone or fax, promptly confirmed in writing, of
	(i) any resignation or removal of any applicable Paying Agent, Registrar, Tender Agent or Remarketing Agent, and the appointment of any successor thereto;
	(ii) any conversion of an applicable series of Weekly Rate Bonds to Fixed Rate Bonds;
	(iii) any termination, expiration, replacement, suspension or modification of the applicable Liquidity Facility;
	(iv) the payment in full of the applicable series of Weekly Rate Bonds;
	(v) any mandatory tender of the applicable series of Weekly Rate Bonds; and
	(vi) any amendment or material change to this Resolution.

	(c) The Board shall provide or cause to be provided to each Rating Agency such information as is reasonably requested in order to maintain its rating on the applicable series of Weekly Rate Bonds.


	ARTICLE X   MISCELLANEOUS
	Section 10.1. Benefits of Resolution.  Nothing in this Resolution or in the Series 2024 Bonds, express or implied, shall give to any Person, other than the Board and each Paying Agent, Registrar, Tender Agent, Liquidity Provider and Remarketing Agent ...
	Section 10.2. Bonds to Rank Equally.  None of the Bonds shall be entitled to priority over any other Bond in the application of moneys in Fund II, nor in the application of moneys appropriated by the Legislature of the State or otherwise made availabl...
	Section 10.3. Enforcement.  All rights available to the Holders under the Constitution and laws of the State, by suit for mandamus or otherwise, to compel the performance of their official duties by the Board, its officers and employees, and by other ...
	Section 10.4. Separability Clause.  In case any provision in this Resolution shall be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby.
	Section 10.5. Governing Law.  This Resolution shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State.
	Section 10.6. Open Meeting.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which the Series 2024 Bonds were authorized was open to the public as required by law and public notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was gi...
	Section 10.7. References to Liquidity Provider.  Any provision of this Resolution regarding the consent of, or notice to, or mandating the direction of action by, a Liquidity Provider shall, except as expressly provided, be deemed ineffective (i) if t...
	Section 10.8. Liquidity Facilities Authorized.  In connection with the issuance of any series of Weekly Rate Bonds, the Authorized Representatives are hereby severally authorized and directed, in the name and on behalf of the Board, to cause to be iss...
	Section 10.9. Remarketing Agreements Authorized.  In connection with the issuance of any series of Weekly Rate Bonds, the Authorized Representatives are hereby severally authorized and directed to act for and on behalf of the Board to approve, execute...
	Section 10.10. Tender Agent Agreements Authorized.  In connection with the issuance of any series of Weekly Rate Bonds, if requested by the Tender Agent for such series, the Authorized Representatives are hereby severally authorized and directed to ac...
	Section 10.11. Authorization of Additional Acts.  The officers, employees, and agents of the Board, and each of them, shall be and each is expressly authorized, empowered, and directed from time to time and at any time to do and perform all acts and t...
	Section 10.12. Bond Enhancement Agreement Certificate.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the “Resolution of the Veterans’ Land Board of the State of Texas Authorizing Interest Rate Swap Transactions Relating to Bonds Issued or to ...
	Section 10.13. Prior Resolution.  This Resolution shall supersede and replace in its entirety that certain resolution adopted by the Board on July 24, 2023, relating to the Series 2024 Bonds.


	Agenda item 5 e memo Bond Defeasance Series 2004A and 2005B
	Agenda Item 5 e supporting doc Bond Redemption Resolution
	1. Incorporation of Recitals.  All of the above recitals are found and determined to be true and correct and are incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.
	2. Exercise of Option to Redeem Bonds.  The Board hereby exercises its option pursuant to each Resolution to redeem Bonds at a redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof together with interest accrued thereon to the applicable redemption d...
	3. Determination of Bonds to Be Redeemed.  The Chairwoman of the Board, the Executive Secretary of the Board, the Director of VLB Bond Funds Management of the Board and the Assistant Director of VLB Bond Funds Management of the Board (collectively, th...
	4. Determination of Redemption Dates.  The Authorized Representatives are each hereby severally authorized to act on behalf of the Board in establishing a redemption date for any Bonds to be redeemed as in his judgment is in the best interests of the ...
	5. Notice of Redemption.  In connection with the redemption of any Prior Bonds, the Authorized Representatives are hereby authorized and directed to cause notice to be given pursuant to each related Resolution that such Prior Bonds have been called fo...
	6. Authorization and Ratification of Additional Acts.  The Authorized Representatives are hereby severally authorized and directed from time to time and at any time, in the name and on behalf of the Board, to do and perform or cause to be done and per...
	7. Open Meeting.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this resolution was adopted and approved was open to the public as required by law and public notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as r...
	8. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect on and as of the date hereof.

	Agenda item 5 f memo Taxable Bond Refunding
	Agenda Item 5 f supporting doc Taxable Refunding Resolution
	ARTICLE I   DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PROVISIONS OF GENERAL APPLICATION
	Section 1.1. Definitions.
	(i) “This Resolution” means this resolution as originally adopted or as it may from time to time be supplemented or amended by one or more resolutions supplemental hereto adopted pursuant to the applicable provisions hereof.
	(ii) All references in this Resolution to designated “Articles,” “Sections” and other subdivisions are to the designated Articles, Sections and other subdivisions of this Resolution as originally adopted.  The words “herein,” “hereof” and “hereunder” ...
	(iii) The terms defined in this Article have the meanings assigned to them in this Article and include the plural as well as the singular.  Reference to any named Person means that party and its successors and assigns.
	(b) The following terms have the meanings assigned to them below whenever they are used in this Resolution:
	Section 1.2. Effect of Headings and Table of Contents.  The Article and Section headings herein and the Table of Contents are for convenience only and shall not affect the construction hereof.

	ARTICLE II   AUTHORIZATION AND TERMS OF SERIES 2024 BONDS; ISSUANCE AND FORM OF SERIES 2024 BONDS
	Section 2.1. Authorization of Series 2024 Bonds.  To provide money for the purpose of augmenting Fund II, the Series 2024 Bonds are hereby authorized and shall be issued, in one or more series and installments, as general obligations of the State in t...
	Section 2.2. Form, Maturities, Interest Rates and Numbering. Each series of Series 2024 Bonds authorized hereby initially shall be dated as set forth in the related Pricing Certificate or Purchase Contract, and shall be issued and delivered in the for...
	Section 2.3. Execution.  Each of the Series 2024 Bonds shall be executed by and on behalf of the Board as general obligations of the State with the manual or facsimile signatures of the Chairwoman of the Board and the Executive Secretary of the Board,...
	Section 2.4. Approval by Attorney General; Registration by Comptroller.  After any Initial Series 2024 Bonds shall have been executed, it shall be the duty of the Authorized Representatives to deliver such Series 2024 Bonds to the Attorney General for...
	Section 2.5. Form of Bond. The form of all Weekly Rate Bonds, including the forms of (i) Comptroller’s Registration Certificate to accompany each Initial Series 2024 Bond that is a Weekly Rate Bond, (ii) Registrar’s Authentication Certificate, and (ii...
	Section 2.6. Registration, Transfer and Exchange.
	(b) The entity in whose name any Series 2024 Bond shall be registered in the related Bond Register at any time shall be treated as the absolute owner thereof for all purposes of this Resolution, whether or not such Series 2024 Bond shall be overdue, a...
	(c) Unless otherwise set forth in a Pricing Certificate or Purchase Contract, the Board hereby appoints the Comptroller in Austin, Texas, or any banking institution named in accordance with the provisions of Section 5.2(a) hereof (in either case, the ...
	(d) Each Series 2024 Bond may be converted into and exchanged for fully registered bonds in the manner set forth herein.  Each Series 2024 Bond may, upon surrender thereof to the applicable Registrar, together with a written request therefor duly exec...
	(e) All Series 2024 Bonds issued in conversion and exchange or replacement of any other Series 2024 Bond or portion thereof, (i) shall be issued in fully registered form, without interest coupons, with the principal of and interest on such Series 2024...
	(f) The Board shall pay each Registrar’s reasonable and standard or customary fees and charges for making transfers of Series 2024 Bonds, but the Holder of any related Series 2024 Bond requesting such transfer shall pay any taxes or other governmental...
	Section 2.7. Damaged and Missing Bonds.

	(b) Application for replacement of a damaged, mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed Series 2024 Bond shall be made by the Holder thereof to the applicable Registrar.  In every case of loss, theft, or destruction of a Series 2024 Bond, the Holder apply...
	(c) Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section, in the event any such Series 2024 Bond shall have matured, and no default has occurred which is then continuing in the payment of the principal of and premium, if any, or interest on the Se...
	(d) Prior to the issuance of any replacement Series 2024 Bond pursuant to the provisions of this Section, the applicable Registrar shall charge the Holder of such Series 2024 Bond with all legal, printing, and other expenses in connection therewith.  ...
	(e) In accordance with Section 1201.062 of Chapter 1201, this Section shall constitute authority for the issuance of any such replacement Series 2024 Bond without the necessity of further action by the Board or any other body or Person, and the duty o...

	Section 2.8. Sale and Delivery of Series 2024 Bonds.  The Series 2024 Bonds may be sold publicly or privately on a negotiated basis, as determined by the Authorized Representatives to assure that the Series 2024 Bonds are sold on advantageous terms.  ...
	Section 2.9. Preliminary Official Statement and Official Statement.  For any Series 2024 Bonds to be sold initially in a public offering, prior to the execution of the Purchase Contract, the Chairwoman of the Board, acting for and on behalf of the Boa...
	Section 2.10. Book-Entry System.  As provided in Section 2.8 of this Resolution, each series of Series 2024 Bonds initially shall be delivered against payment to the Initial Purchaser thereof.  The Series 2024 Bonds so delivered to such Initial Purcha...

	ARTICLE III   REDEMPTION OF SERIES 2024 BONDS
	Section 3.1. Redemption.
	(b) The Weekly Rate Bonds (including Purchased Bonds) shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity on the first Business Day of any month, at the option and direction of the Board, in whole or in part, at a redemption price of par plus accrued int...
	(c) Any series of Series 2024 Bonds issued as other than Weekly Rate Bonds shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option and direction of the Board, during the periods and at the redemption prices set forth in the related Purchase Co...
	(d) Converted Fixed Rate Bonds shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option and direction of the Board, during the periods specified by an Authorized Representative, in whole at any time or in part from time to time, at the redempti...
	(e) In the case of any redemption of less than all of the Series 2024 Bonds of a particular series and maturity, the particular Series 2024 Bonds within each such series and maturity to be redeemed shall be selected by the applicable Registrar by lot ...
	(f) Anything in this Section 3.1 to the contrary notwithstanding, in the event of any (i) optional redemption of Weekly Rate Bonds, Purchased Bonds of the same series shall be selected first for such redemption to the extent there are any such Purchas...
	Section 3.2. Notice of Redemption.  At least 30 days prior to the date fixed for any redemption of Series 2024 Bonds, a written notice of such redemption shall be sent by first class mail, postage prepaid by the Registrar to the Holders of the applica...

	ARTICLE IV   FUNDS AND INVESTMENTS
	Section 4.1. Establishment of Fund II.  The Comptroller (as successor to the Treasurer of the State) has established in the State Treasury the “Veterans’ Housing Assistance Fund II,” referred to herein as “Fund II.”  The Board hereby confirms and rati...
	Section 4.2. Deposits to Fund II.  Fund II is and shall be comprised of, and where feasible it is the duty of the Board, and the officers of the Board are hereby authorized and directed, to deposit into Fund II, the following:
	(i) any interest of the Board in Home Loans made from money in Fund II pursuant to the Program including proceeds of any insurance thereon or on the homes;
	(ii) the proceeds derived from the sale or other disposition of the Board’s interest in Home Loans;
	(iii) the money attributable to any Bonds (except Expenses Attributable to Bonds) issued and sold by the Board to provide money for Fund II which shall include, but shall not be limited to, the proceeds from the issuance and sale of such Bonds;
	(iv) income, rents, and any other pecuniary benefit received by the Board as a result of making Home Loans;
	(v) sums received by way of indemnity or forfeiture for the failure of any bidder for the purchase of any Bonds to comply with the person’s bid and accept and pay for such Bonds;
	(vi) payments received by the Board under bond enhancement agreements with respect to the Bonds;
	(vii) interest received from investments of any such money; and
	(viii) any equitable interest of the Board in properties encumbered by Home Loans and attributable to Fund II.
	Section 4.3. Home Loans.

	(b) The Board will fix interest rates to be charged Veterans receiving Home Loans from the Board which will assure that the proceeds from payments and repayments of Home Loans, together with other legally available moneys, including, without limitatio...
	Section 4.4. Source of Payment.

	(b) All payments of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, including payments by the Board under bond enhancement agreements with respect to principal of or interest on the Bonds, shall be made from Fund II; provided, that if the Legislature of t...
	(c) The Board recognizes the absolute and ultimate obligation of the State to provide during each Fiscal Year all moneys necessary to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds, including money to make payments by the Board under bond enhancement ...
	Section 4.5. Other Uses of Fund II Moneys.

	(b) The Constitutional Provision also provides that if the Board determines that assets from Fund II are not required for the purposes of Fund II, the Board may (i) transfer the assets to either the Veterans’ Land Fund or Fund I, (ii) use the assets t...

	Section 4.6. Program Administration.  The Program may be administered on behalf of the Board by one or more administrators, each of which shall be a nationally recognized institution with previous experience in the administration of mortgage lending p...
	Section 4.7. Investments.  The moneys of Fund II which are not immediately committed to the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds, the making of Home Loans as herein provided, or the payment of expenses as herein provided may be invested i...

	ARTICLE V   COVENANTS OF THE BOARD
	Section 5.1. Payment Procedures.
	Section 5.2. Paying Agent and Registrar.
	Section 5.3. Tax Covenants.  The Board does not intend to issue the Series 2024 Bonds in a manner such that the Series 2024 Bonds would constitute obligations described in Section 103(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (as amended, the “Code”), a...

	ARTICLE VI   SUPPLEMENTS AND AMENDMENTS
	Section 6.1. Amendment of Resolution With Consent of Holders.
	(i) make any change in the maturity of any of the Series 2024 Bonds of such series;
	(ii) reduce the rate of interest borne by any of the Series 2024 Bonds of such series;
	(iii) reduce the amount of the principal payable on any of the Series 2024 Bonds of such series;
	(iv) modify the terms of payment of principal of or interest on such Series 2024 Bonds, or any of them, or impose any conditions with respect to such payment;
	(v) change the minimum percentage of the principal amount of such Series 2024 Bonds necessary for consent to such amendment; or
	(vi) affect the rights of the Holders of less than all of the Series 2024 Bonds of such series then Outstanding,
	(b) If at any time the Board shall desire to amend this Resolution under this Section, the Board shall cause notice of the proposed amendment to be published in a financial newspaper or journal published in the City of New York, New York, or the City ...
	(c) Whenever at any time, within one year from the date of this publication of said notice or other service of written notice, the Board shall receive an instrument or instruments executed by the Holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of ...
	(d) Any consent given by the Holder of a Series 2024 Bond pursuant to the provisions of this Resolution shall be irrevocable for a period of six months from the date of the first publication or mailing of the notice provided for in this Resolution, an...
	(e) For the purposes of this Section, proof of ownership of any Series 2024 Bond shall be established by the registration of any such Series 2024 Bond on the Bond Register kept and maintained by the applicable Registrar.
	Section 6.2. Amendment of Resolution Without Consent of Holders.  The foregoing provisions of this Article notwithstanding, the Board may, without the consent of the Holders, pursuant to amendatory resolution, from time to time:
	(i) impose conditions or restrictions additional to, but not in diminution of, those contained in this Resolution, respecting the issuance of Bonds;
	(ii) undertake covenants additional to but not inconsistent with those contained in this Resolution;
	(iii) correct any ambiguity or correct or supplement any inconsistent or defective provision contained in this Resolution or any amendatory resolution;
	(iv) adopt amendments to this Resolution that become effective as to a series of Series 2024 Bonds following a mandatory tender of all of such Series 2024 Bonds then Outstanding; or
	(v) adopt amendments to this Resolution that, in the opinion of Bond Counsel, do not adversely affect the Holders.

	Section 6.3. Effect of Amendatory Resolutions.  Upon the adoption of any amendatory resolution pursuant to the provisions of this Section, this Resolution shall be deemed to be amended in accordance with such amendatory resolution, and the respective ...
	Section 6.4. Bonds May Bear Notation of Changes.  Series 2024 Bonds of the applicable series authenticated and delivered after the execution of any amendatory resolution pursuant to this Article may bear a notation in form approved by the applicable R...

	ARTICLE VII   FIXED RATE BONDS DEEMED PAID
	Section 7.1. Fixed Rate Bonds Deemed Paid.  Any Fixed Rate Bond shall be deemed to be paid and no longer Outstanding when payment of the principal of and premium, if any, on such Bond, plus interest thereon to the due date thereof (whether such due da...
	Section 7.2. Application of Trust Money.
	(b) Notwithstanding any provision of any other Section of this Resolution which may be contrary to the provisions of this Section, all money or Defeasance Obligations set aside and held in trust pursuant to the provisions of this Section for the payme...
	(c) Notwithstanding anything elsewhere in this Resolution contained, if money or Defeasance Obligations have been deposited or set aside with a paying agent pursuant to this Section for the payment of Fixed Rate Bonds and such Fixed Rate Bonds shall n...


	ARTICLE VIII   CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING
	Section 8.1. Definitions.  As used in this Article, the following terms have the meanings ascribed to such terms below:
	Section 8.2. Annual Reports.  The Board shall provide annually to the MSRB, within six months after the end of each fiscal year ending in or after 2024, financial information and operating data with respect to the Board of the general type included in...
	Section 8.3. Event Notices.  The Board shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner but in any event within ten Business Days, of any of the following events with respect to a series of Series 2024 Bonds subject to the Rule:
	(A) Principal and interest payment delinquencies;
	(B) Non-payment related defaults, if material;
	(C) Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;
	(D) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties;
	(E) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;
	(F) Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of such ...
	(G) Modifications to rights of holders of such Series 2024 Bonds, if material;
	(H) Series 2024 Bond calls of the applicable series, if material, and tender offers;
	(I) Defeasances;
	(J) Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of such Series 2024 Bonds, if material;
	(K) Rating changes;
	(L) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Board;
	(M) Consummation of a merger, consolidation or acquisition involving the Board or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Board, other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry of a definitive agreement to undertake such an ...
	(N) Appointment of a successor Paying Agent or Registrar or change in the name of the applicable Paying Agent or Registrar, if material.

	Section 8.4. Limitations, Disclaimers and Amendments.  The Board shall be obligated to observe and perform the covenants specified in this Article for so long as, but only for so long as, the Board remains an “obligated person” with respect to a serie...
	Section 8.5. Continuing Disclosure Relating to Other Obligated Persons.  The Board hereby determines that an Other Obligated Person would be an “obligated person” (as defined in the Rule) for whom financial information and operating data would be pres...
	Section 8.6. Agreement Regarding Assumption of Certain Home Loans.  The Board agrees not to permit the assumption of any Home Loan that would cause any Person to become an Other Obligated Person.

	ARTICLE IX   ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS RELATING TO SERIES 2024 BONDS
	Section 9.1. Interest Rates and Payment.
	(b) Payment and Calculation of Interest.  Interest on the Series 2024 Bonds shall be paid in arrears.  Interest on Weekly Rate Bonds (including Purchased Bonds) shall be computed on the basis of a 365/366-day year, for the number of days actually elap...
	(c) Ceiling Rate.  Anything to the contrary contained herein notwithstanding, the maximum rate of interest on the Series 2024 Bonds at any time shall be the Ceiling Rate.
	(d) Purchased Bonds.  All Purchased Bonds shall bear interest at the Purchased Bond Rate therefor, which shall be payable at such times, in such amounts and in such manner as is provided in the related Liquidity Facility.  The maximum rate of interest...
	Section 9.2. Determination of Weekly Interest Rate.

	(b) The first Interest Rate Period for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds shall commence on the Settlement Date and shall be a Weekly Interest Rate Period.  The initial Weekly Interest Rate to be borne by such Weekly Rate Bonds shall be determined by the I...
	(c) Notices.  On each date on which a Remarketing Agent determines the interest rate on any Weekly Rate Bond, such Remarketing Agent shall give the Board and the applicable Tender Agent, Paying Agent and Liquidity Provider notice by facsimile or e-mai...
	(d) Binding Effect.  Each determination of the interest rate for the Weekly Rate Bonds, as provided herein, shall be conclusive and binding upon the owners of the Weekly Rate Bonds, the Board and the applicable Remarketing Agent, Tender Agent, Liquidi...
	Section 9.3. Fixed Interest Rate.

	(b) Adjustment to Fixed Interest Rate Period.
	(i) At any time, the Board, by written direction to the applicable Registrar, Tender Agent, Paying Agent, Liquidity Provider and Remarketing Agent, may elect that a series of Weekly Rate Bonds shall be subject to a Fixed Interest Rate Period.  The dir...
	(ii) Such direction of the Board shall be accompanied by a form of the notice to be mailed by the applicable Registrar to the Holders of the series of Weekly Rate Bonds to be converted as provided in Section 9.3(c).
	(iii) If the Board shall deliver to the applicable Registrar, Remarketing Agent and Tender Agent on or prior to the date that the interest rate for the Fixed Interest Rate Period is determined a notice to the effect that the Board elects to rescind it...

	(c) Notice of Adjustment to Fixed Interest Rate Period.  The applicable Registrar shall give notice by first class mail of an adjustment to a Fixed Interest Rate Period to the Holders of the series of Weekly Rate Bonds to be converted not less than 30...
	(d) If the Board elects to convert a series of Weekly Rate Bonds to Fixed Rate Bonds, then the written direction furnished by the Board to the applicable Liquidity Provider, Registrar, Tender Agent and Remarketing Agent shall be made by registered or ...
	Section 9.4. Purchase of Weekly Rate Bonds.

	(b) Mandatory Tender for Purchase on First Day of Fixed Interest Rate Period.  A series of Weekly Rate Bonds shall be subject to mandatory tender for purchase on the first day of the Fixed Interest Rate Period therefor, or on the day which would have ...
	(c) Mandatory Tender for Purchase Upon Termination, Expiration, Suspension, Modification or Replacement of Liquidity Facility.  If at any time the Registrar for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds shall give notice in accordance with Section 9.7 that such W...
	(d) Mandatory Tender for Purchase Following Event of Default Under Liquidity Facility.  All Weekly Rate Bonds of a series shall be subject to mandatory tender for purchase on the tenth day (or the next succeeding Business Day if such day is not a Busi...
	(e) Notice of Mandatory Tender for Purchase.  In connection with any mandatory tender for purchase of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds in accordance with Section 9.4(b) or Section 9.4(c), the applicable Registrar shall include notice of a mandatory tende...
	(f) Delivery of Tendered Weekly Rate Bonds.  Subject to the provisions of Section 2.10 hereof if ownership of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds is determined only by a book entry at a securities depository for such Weekly Rate Bonds, for payment of the pu...
	(g) Irrevocable Notice Deemed to be Tender of Weekly Rate Bond; Undelivered Bonds.
	(i) The giving of notice by an owner of a Weekly Rate Bond as provided in Section 9.4(a) hereof shall constitute the irrevocable tender for purchase of each such Weekly Rate Bond with respect to which such notice shall have been given, regardless of w...
	(ii) A Tender Agent may refuse to accept delivery of any Weekly Rate Bonds for which a proper instrument of transfer has not been provided; such refusal, however, shall not affect the validity of the purchase of such Weekly Rate Bond as herein describ...

	Section 9.5. Amendments to Liquidity Facility.  Except with the consent of all the Holders of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds, neither the Board nor the applicable Tender Agent shall permit any amendment, supplement, modification or waiver to the applic...
	Section 9.6. Alternate Liquidity Facility.  If at any time there shall be delivered to a Tender Agent (i) an Alternate Liquidity Facility, (ii) written evidence from the applicable Rating Agency stating the ratings of the applicable series of Weekly R...
	Section 9.7. Notice of Termination or Other Change in Liquidity Facility.  The applicable Registrar shall give notice by mail to the Holders of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds on or before the 15th day preceding (i) the expiration of any applicable Liqu...
	Section 9.8. Remarketing Agent and Tender Agent.
	(b) The initial Tender Agent for a series of Weekly Rate Bonds shall be as designated in the applicable Purchase Contract or Pricing Certificate.  The Board shall appoint any successor Tender Agent, subject to the conditions set forth in Section 9.9(b...
	(i) to hold all Weekly Rate Bonds delivered to it pursuant to Section 9.4 hereof, as agent and bailee of, and in escrow for the benefit of, the respective owners which shall have so delivered such Weekly Rate Bonds until moneys representing the purcha...
	(ii) to establish and maintain a separate segregated trust fund designated as the “State of Texas Veterans Bonds, Taxable Refunding Series 2024 Bond Purchase Fund” (each, a “Bond Purchase Fund”) (with the specific series designation to replace “2024,”...
	(iii) to hold all moneys (without investment thereof) delivered to it hereunder in the Bond Purchase Fund for the purchase of Weekly Rate Bonds pursuant to Section 9.4 hereof, as agent and bailee of, and in escrow for the benefit of, the Person which ...
	(iv) to hold all moneys delivered to it by the Board for the purchase of Weekly Rate Bonds pursuant to Section 9.4 hereof, as agent and bailee of, and in escrow for the benefit of, the owners or former owners who shall deliver Weekly Rate Bonds to it ...
	(v) to hold all Weekly Rate Bonds registered in the name of the new owners thereof which have been delivered to it by the applicable Registrar for delivery to the applicable Remarketing Agent in accordance with the provisions of this Resolution; and
	(vi) to keep such books and records as shall be consistent with standard industry practice and to make such books and records available for inspection by the Board, the applicable Liquidity Provider and the applicable Remarketing Agent at all reasonab...


	Section 9.9. Qualifications of Remarketing Agent and Tender Agent; Resignation; Removal.
	(a) Each Remarketing Agent shall be a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, having a combined capital stock, surplus and undivided profits of at least $250,000,000 and authorized by law to perform all the duties imposed upon it by thi...
	(b) Each Tender Agent shall be a bank with trust powers or a trust company duly organized under the laws of the United States of America or any state or territory thereof, and authorized by law to exercise corporate trust powers and otherwise perform ...
	(c) Upon the effective date of resignation or removal of a Tender Agent, such Tender Agent shall deliver any Weekly Rate Bonds and moneys held by it in such capacity to its successor.
	(d) So long as any series of Weekly Rate Bonds are Outstanding, the same entity shall be the Tender Agent and Registrar therefor.
	Section 9.10. Notice of Weekly Rate Bonds Delivered for Purchase; Purchase of Weekly Rate Bonds.

	(b) Weekly Rate Bonds required to be purchased in accordance with Section 9.4 hereof shall be purchased from the owners thereof, on the date and at the purchase price at which such Weekly Rate Bonds are required to be purchased.  Funds for the payment...
	(i) proceeds of the sale of such Weekly Rate Bonds remarketed to any Person pursuant to Section 9.11 hereof and furnished to the applicable Tender Agent by the purchasers or by the applicable Remarketing Agent for deposit into the Remarketing Account ...
	(ii) moneys furnished to such Tender Agent for deposit into the Purchase Account of the applicable Bond Purchase Fund representing moneys received from draws on the applicable Liquidity Facility; and
	(iii) moneys furnished to such Tender Agent for deposit into the applicable Bond Purchase Fund representing moneys provided by the Board in its discretion.
	(c)

	(ii) If ownership of a series of Weekly Rate Bonds is no longer determined only by a book entry at a securities depository for such Series 2024 Bonds, in the event any such Weekly Rate Bonds purchased as provided in this Section shall not be presented...
	Section 9.11. Remarketing of Series 2024 Bonds; Notice of Interest Rates.


	(b) Each Remarketing Agent shall determine the rate of interest to be borne by the applicable Series 2024 Bonds during each Interest Rate Period and shall furnish to the Board and the applicable Registrar on the Business Day of determination each rate...
	(c) Each Remarketing Agent shall advise the applicable Tender Agent and Liquidity Provider in writing or by telephone (promptly confirmed by e-mail or fax if given by telephone) not later than the Business Day preceding the Business Day on which any a...
	Section 9.12. Delivery of Series 2024 Bonds.

	(b) Except as otherwise provided in a Liquidity Facility, Weekly Rate Bonds purchased with moneys described in clause (ii) of Section 9.10(b) hereof shall be held by the applicable Tender Agent on behalf of the applicable Liquidity Provider as Purchas...
	(c) Weekly Rate Bonds purchased with moneys described in clause (iii) of Section 9.10(b) hereof shall be canceled.
	(d) Series 2024 Bonds delivered as provided in this Section shall be registered in the manner directed by the recipient thereof.

	Section 9.13. Delivery of Proceeds of Sale.  The proceeds of the sale by a Remarketing Agent of any applicable Weekly Rate Bonds delivered to it by any Holder shall be turned over to the applicable Tender Agent.
	Section 9.14. Draws on Liquidity Facility to Pay Purchase Price of Weekly Rate Bonds.  Each Tender Agent, on each day on which applicable Weekly Rate Bonds are required to be purchased pursuant to Section 9.4 hereof, is directed to make drawings under...
	Section 9.15. Insufficient Funds for Purchase of Weekly Rate Bonds.  If payment of the purchase price of any Weekly Rate Bond shall not be made to the Holder thereof on any date such Weekly Rate Bond has been tendered for purchase pursuant to Section ...
	Section 9.16. Notices.
	(b) The Board shall provide to the applicable Rating Agency notice in writing or by telephone or fax, promptly confirmed in writing, of
	(i) any resignation or removal of any applicable Paying Agent, Registrar, Tender Agent or Remarketing Agent, and the appointment of any successor thereto;
	(ii) any conversion of an applicable series of Weekly Rate Bonds to Fixed Rate Bonds;
	(iii) any termination, expiration, replacement, suspension or modification of the applicable Liquidity Facility;
	(iv) the payment in full of the applicable series of Weekly Rate Bonds;
	(v) any mandatory tender of the applicable series of Weekly Rate Bonds; and
	(vi) any amendment or material change to this Resolution.

	(c) The Board shall provide or cause to be provided to each Rating Agency such information as is reasonably requested in order to maintain its rating on the applicable series of Weekly Rate Bonds.


	ARTICLE X   MISCELLANEOUS
	Section 10.1. Benefits of Resolution.  Nothing in this Resolution or in the Series 2024 Bonds, express or implied, shall give to any Person, other than the Board and each Paying Agent, Registrar, Tender Agent, Liquidity Provider and Remarketing Agent ...
	Section 10.2. Bonds to Rank Equally.  None of the Bonds shall be entitled to priority over any other Bond in the application of moneys in Fund II, nor in the application of moneys appropriated by the Legislature of the State or otherwise made availabl...
	Section 10.3. Enforcement.  All rights available to the Holders under the Constitution and laws of the State, by suit for mandamus or otherwise, to compel the performance of their official duties by the Board, its officers and employees, and by other ...
	Section 10.4. Separability Clause.  In case any provision in this Resolution shall be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby.
	Section 10.5. Governing Law.  This Resolution shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State.
	Section 10.6. Open Meeting.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which the Series 2024 Bonds were authorized was open to the public as required by law and public notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was gi...
	Section 10.7. References to Liquidity Provider.  Any provision of this Resolution regarding the consent of, or notice to, or mandating the direction of action by, a Liquidity Provider shall, except as expressly provided, be deemed ineffective (i) if t...
	Section 10.8. Liquidity Facilities Authorized.  In connection with the issuance of any series of Weekly Rate Bonds, the Authorized Representatives are hereby severally authorized and directed, in the name and on behalf of the Board, to cause to be iss...
	Section 10.9. Remarketing Agreements Authorized.  In connection with the issuance of any series of Weekly Rate Bonds, the Authorized Representatives are hereby severally authorized and directed to act for and on behalf of the Board to approve, execute...
	Section 10.10. Tender Agent Agreements Authorized.  In connection with the issuance of any series of Weekly Rate Bonds, if requested by the Tender Agent for such series, the Authorized Representatives are hereby severally authorized and directed to ac...
	Section 10.11. Reduction of Available Commitment.  In connection with the issuance of any series of Series 2024 Bonds, the Authorized Representatives are hereby severally authorized and directed, in the name and on behalf of the Board, to cause the av...
	Section 10.12. .  Designation and Redemption of Refunded Bonds.  In connection with the issuance of any series of Series 2024 Bonds, the Authorized Representatives are hereby severally authorized and directed, in the name and on behalf of the Board, t...
	Section 10.13. Payment of Refunded Bonds.  (a)  On the Settlement Date for a series of Series 2024 Bonds, the Board shall cause, from the proceeds of such Bonds and other available funds or resources of the Board, an amount sufficient to provide for t...
	(b) If any Refunded Bonds are to be redeemed other than on the Settlement Date for the related Series 2024 Bonds, the deposit made pursuant to this Section 10.13 shall be invested, to the extent, if any, determined to be practicable by an Authorized R...

	Section 10.14. Partial Transfer of Interest Rate Swap Transactions.  Effective on the Settlement Date for a series of Series 2024 Bonds, the Board hereby exercises its right to transfer to such Series 2024 Bonds the portion of each interest rate swap ...
	Section 10.15. Authorization of Additional Acts.  The officers, employees, and agents of the Board, and each of them, shall be and each is expressly authorized, empowered, and directed from time to time and at any time to do and perform all acts and t...


	Agenda Item 6 a memo M & O contract for the Ussery-Roan Texas State Veteran Home in Amarillo
	Agenda Item 6 b memo Renewal of Omnicare Pharmaceutical Services Contract
	Agenda Item 6 b supporting document Omnicare Contract
	22-008-000-C938
	Signature Page
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C
	Attachment D
	Attachment E
	Signature Page

	Attachment F
	Supporting Documents
	VLB Agenda - 10/28/2021
	VLB Minutes - 10/28/2021
	Form1295

	Attestation Letter
	Signature Page
	Attachment
	Supporting Documents

	VLB Agenda & Minutes
	VLB Agenda - 02/11/2022
	VLB Minutes - 02/11/2022

	Insurance
	Insurance - 2023
	COI - 1/1/2023
	COI - 1/1/2023

	Insurance - 2024
	COI - 1/1/2024
	COI - 1/1/2024
	COI - 1/1/2024
	COI - 1/1/2024

	Insurance - 2025
	COI - 01/01/2025
	COI - 01/01/2025


	Monitoring
	FY22 – Enhanced Round 2 - Fiscal
	FY23 -Enhanced Round 1 - Monitoring Report

	Vendor Performance
	VPR – Annual FY 2022
	VPR - Annual FY 2023
	VPR - Annual FY 2024


	Agenda Item 6 c memo - Veteran Home Room Rates Confirmation
	Agenda Item 6 c supporting doc Room Rates -  Effective 07.01.2024
	Agenda item 7 a memo  Proposed Amendments_40 TAC 178.5_TSVC burial eligibility_revised_mk_5-31-2024
	Agenda item 7 b memo  Easement Request Lubbock TSVC_City of Lubbockdraft_board meeting memo_Lubbock TSVC easement
	Agenda item 7 c memo City of Abilene deed to Abilene TSVC
	Agenda Item 7 c supporting document Attachment VLB Abilene Deed_5.13.2024
	[Remainder of page intentionally left blank; signature to follow]

	Agenda item 7 d memo Review of Texas Administartive Code Rules
	Agenda Item 8 a memo Report on Construction Services
	Agenda Item 9 a  memo Executive Secretary Report on VLB Ops



